Environmental and Social Impact Assessment Final Report

Project Number: 51090-001 March 2018

ARM: Yerevan Gas-Fired Combined-Cycle Power Project

Prepared by Fichtner, Stuttgart, Germany

The environmental and social impact assessment report is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, Management, or staff, and may be preliminary in nature. Your attention is directed to the "Term of Use" section of this website.

In preparing any country program or strategy, financing any project, or by making any designation of or reference to a particular territory or geographic area in this document, the Asian Development Bank does not intend to make any judgments as to the legal or other status of any territory or area.

Yerevan 2 CC Power Plant ArmPower CJSC

Environmental and Social Impact Assessment – Final



Source: Fichtner (July 2017)

FICHTNER

FICHTNER

Sarweystrasse 3 • 70191 Stuttgart P.O. 10 14 54 • 70013 Stuttgart Germany Phone: +49 711 8995-0 Fax: +49 711 8995-459

www.fichtner.de

Please contact: Extension: E-mail: Sofia Gomes de Sousa 726 Sofia.Sousa@fichtner.de

Rev No.	Rev-date	Contents /amendments	Prepared/revised	Checked/released
0	18.08.2017	Draft Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA)	Martin/ Paulsch/ Back/Heinold	Sousa
1	05.10.2017	Final Draft ESIA including IFC/ADB comments	Martin/ Paulsch/ Back	Sousa
2	20.11.2017	Final Draft ESIA including IFC/ADB comments	Paulsch/ Back	Sousa
3	06.12.2017	Final Draft ESIA including IFC/ADB comments	Paulsch/ Back	Sousa
4	14.02.2018	Final ESIA	Paulsch/ Back	Sousa
5	19.03.2018	Final ESIA - update	Paulsch/ Back	Sousa
6	20.03.2018	Final ESIA - update	Paulsch/ Back	Sousa

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	I
List of Tables	VI
Acronyms and Abbreviations	VIII
1. Introduction	1-1
1.1 Project Background	1-1
1.2 Objective of the Project	1-3
1.3 Objectives of the ESIA	1-3
1.4 Methodology	1-4
2. Policy, Legal and Administrative Framework	2-2
2.1 National Requirements	2-2
2.2 International Agreements	2-11
2.3 International Requirements	2-12
2.3.1 IFC Sustainability Framework	2-12
2.3.2 IFC/ World Bank EHS Guidelines	2-18
2.3.3 ADB Safeguard Policy Statement	2-18
2.3.4 Other Relevant Guidelines	2-21
2.4 Environmental Standards	2-21
2.5 Gap Analysis between National and International Legislation	2-31
3. Description of the Project	3-1
3.1 Summary Technical Description	3-1
3.2 Project Area and Project Area of Influence	3-10
3.3 Schedule for Project Realization	3-12
4. Analysis of Alternatives	4-1
4.1 The 'No Project' Scenario	4-1
4.2 Comparison of Alternatives and Options	4-1
4.2.1 Location	4-1
4.2.2 Alternative Methods of Power Generation	4-1
4.2.3 Design alternatives	4-3
4.3 Summary of the Comparative Assessment of Alternatives	4-4
5. Description of the Environment (Baseline Data)	5-1
5.1 Environmental Conditions	5-1

FICHTNER

I

5.1.1	Flora, Fauna and Biodiversity	5-3
5.1.2	Protected Areas	5-4
5.1.3	Geology and Seismic Situation	5-5
5.1.4	Soil	5-7
5.1.5	Water Resources	5-9
5.1.6	Climate and Air Quality	5-18
5.1.7	Noise	5-21
5.1.8	Landscape	5-24
5.2 Soci	o-economic Conditions	5-24
5.2.1	Population within the Project Area of Influence	5-24
5.2.2	Sensitive Receptors	5-24
5.2.3	Livelihood and Housing	5-26
5.2.4	Land Usage and Ownership	5-26
5.2.5	Historical and Cultural Sites	5-27
6. Enviror	nmental and Social Impact Assessment	6-1
6.1 Env	ironmental Impacts during Construction Phase	6-1
6.1.1	Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	6-1
6.1.2	Protected Areas	6-2
6.1.3	Soil	6-2
6.1.4	Water Resources	6-3
6.1.5	Climate and Air Quality	6-5
6.1.6	Landscape and Visual Aspects	6-6
6.1.7	Waste	6-7
6.2 Env	ironmental Impacts during Operation Phase	6-10
6.2.1	Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	6-10
6.2.2	Protected Areas	6-10
6.2.3	Soil	6-10
6.2.4	Water Resources	6-11
6.2.5	Climate and Air Quality	6-16
6.2.6	Landscape and Visual Aspects	6-19
6.2.7	Waste	6-19
6.3 Soci	al Impacts during Construction Phase	6-20
6.3.1	Local Workforce	6-20
6.3.2	Land Usage and Ownership	6-21
6.3.3	Historical and Cultural Sites	6-21

FICHTNER

		FICHTNER	111
1(0. Overall	Findings, Conclusion, and Recommendations	10-1
	9.8 Env	ronmental and Social Action Plan	9-66
	9.7 Gap	Analysis regarding compliance with IFC Performance Standards	9-54
	9.6 Sum	mary of Costs for Implementation of the EMSP	9-53
	9.5 Ada	ptive management	9-53
	9.4 Rep	orting requirements	9-52
	9.3 Imp	ementation Arrangements and Capacity Building	9-51
	9.2.4	Monitoring during the Decommissioning Phase	9-51
	9.2.3	Monitoring during the Operation Phase	9-36
	9.2.2	Monitoring during the Commissioning Phase	9-35
	9.2.1	Monitoring during the Construction Phase	9-18
	9.2 Mor	itoring Measures	9-18
	9.1.3	Mitigation Measures for the Decommissioning Phase	9-17
	9.1.2	Mitigation Measures for the Operation Phase	9-11
	9.1.1	Mitigation Measures for the Construction Phase	9-2
	9.1 Miti	gation Measures	9-2
9.	Enviror	mental and Social Management Plans (ESMPs)	9-1
	8.2 Wor	kers Grievance Mechanism	8-4
	8.1 Gen	eral Public Grievance Mechanism	8-1
8.	Grievar	ce Redress Mechanism	8-1
	7.3 Con	sultation of nearby temporary residents	7-4
	7.2 Resu	Its from the 2018 Public Consultation meeting	7-2
	7.1 Bacl	cground	7-1
7.	Informa	tion Disclosure, Consultation, and Participation	7-1
	6.7 Sum	mary of Impacts	6-37
	6.6 Add	itional Impacts during Decommissioning Phase	6-36
	6.5.2	Additional Impacts during Operation Phase	6-36
	6.5.1	Additional Impacts during Construction Phase	6-35
	6.5 Add	itional Impacts from new Connection Facilities	6-34
	6.4.3	Job Opportunities	6-34
	6.4.2	Occupational and Community Health and Safety	6-26
	6.4.1	Electricity Supply	6-25
	6.4 Soci	al Impacts during Operation Phase	6-25
	6.3.4	Occupational and Community Health and Safety	6-22

11. References 11		
12. Annexes	12-3	
12.1 Communication from Yerevan Municipality - illegal dwellings	12-3	
12.2 Communication from Veolia Djur CJSC on water supply	12-5	
12.3 Record of Meetings	12-9	
12.4 Analysis of Oil in the Contaminated Soil from Construction Site	12-10	
12.5 Report on Groundwater Quality and Possible Soil Contamination from August 2017	12-14	
12.6 Noise Impact Study	12-15	
12.7 Waste Water Temperature Study (steady state), ArmPower	12-16	
12.8 Air Dispersion Calculation	12-17	
12.9 Stakeholder Engagement Plan	12-18	
12.10Legal Framework of Earth Cover Pollution Standardization in Armenia and Results of the YCCPP-2 Territory Research, Consecoard 2018	12-19	
12.11 Report on Soil Analysis, Groundwater and Hrazdan River Water Quality from February 2018	12-20	
12.12Legal Framework of Air Emissions Standardization in Armenia and Assessment of the planned YTPP-2 Emissions, Consecoard 2018	12-21	
12.13 Public Consultation Meeting at Yerevan 10 th February 2018	12-22	

List of Figures

Figure 1-1:	Site location (red) of the planned YCCPP-2 (black), next to the existi	ng	
YCCPP-1; acce	ess road (yellow) and temporary laydown area for construction (blue), w	which	
are in possessic	on YCCPP-1	1-2	
Figure 1-2:	Baseline Monitoring Points - Air Quality	1-6	
Figure 1-3:	Baseline Monitoring Points - Noise	1-7	
Figure 1-4:	Baseline Monitoring Points - Soil and groundwater (November 2017)	1-8	
Figure 3-1:	General design of a Combined Cycle Power Plant	3-1	
Figure 3-2:	YCCPP-2 Key Plan (Source: RENCO SPA)	3-3	
Figure 3-3:	Overview plan showing the new interconnections of YCCPP-2	3-9	
Figure 3-4:	Location of existing YCCPP-1 and future YCCPP-2 in the south of		
Yerevan	3-10		
Figure 3-5:	Project Area (in red) located south of Yerevan, nearest residential area	as	
and illegal hous	sings	3-11	
Figure 3-6:	Project Area of Influence with residential areas in a distance of 10 km	1	
from the YCCP	P-2 that might be impacted by the Project	3-12	
Figure 3-7: Pre	liminary Project Schedule	3-13	
Figure 5-1:	Ecology and former land use of the construction site (Source: courtes	y of	
ADB)	5-2		
Figure 5-2:	Typical vegetation at the construction site with some reed and bushes		
(Source: Fichtn	er, July 2017)	5-4	
Figure 5-3:	Hrazdan River in the area of treated waste water final discharge (Sour	ce:	
courtesy of AD	B, February 2018)	5-4	
Figure 5-4:	Oil leakages near to some empty oil drums at YCCPP-2 site (Source:		
Fichtner, July 2	2017)	5-7	
Figure 5-5:	Channels part of the channel network discharging the treated waste waste	ater	
of YCCPP-1fin	ally to Hrazdan River (Source: courtesy of ADB, February 2018)	5-10	
Figure 5-6:	Hrazdan River in the area where the channels discharge the treated wa	aste	
water of YCCP	P-1 finally to the river (Source: courtesy of ADB, February 2018)	5-11	
Figure 5-7:	Final discharge for the treated waste water from YCCPP-1 (and in the	;	
future for YCC	PP-2 as well)	5-11	
Figure 5-8:	Average temperatures (min. and max.) and precipitation (mm) in Yere	evan	
(30-year global	history with hourly weather data).	5-18	
Figure 5-9:	The diagram for Yerevan shows how many days within one month ca	n be	
expected to rea	ch certain wind speeds	5-19	
Figure 5-10:	Wind rose for the years 2014-2016 (wind blowing from)	5-19	
Figure 5-11:	Baseline Monitoring Points - Noise	5-22	
Figure 5-11:	Location of illegal houses located northeast and south of new YCCPP	-2	
and training cer	nter of fire brigade	5-25	
Figure 5-12:	Illegal houses located northeast of YCCPP-1 and YCCPP-2 (Source:		
Fichtner, July 2	2017)	5-26	
Figure 6-1:	Location of waste on the site found during the site visit of July 2017	6-8	
Figure 6-2: Scr	an metal	6-9	
Figure 6-3. Wo	oden and metal material	6-9	
Figure 6-4: Me	tal cabin on concreted area	6-9	
Figure 6-5: Old toilets and wash basins 6-9			
Figure 6-6. Gas	s cylinders / scrap metal	6-9	
Figure 6-7. Old	filter	6-9	
Figure 6-8: Scrap metal at the temporary laydown area 6-9			
	-r he compound in a we	~ /	

FICHTNER

Figure 6-9:	Preliminary Water Balance of YCCPP-2 (Source: RENCO)	6-12
Figure 7-1:	Meeting with residents of the nearby temporary houses (source: RENC	CO,
February 2018)	7-5	
Figure 8-1:	Flowchart of Grievance Redress Mechanism	8-3

List of Tables

Table 1-1:	Evaluation of impacts using International and National Standards	1-9
Table 2-1:	National laws of RA, implemented to regulate the protection of the	
environment an	d expropriation issues	2-2
Table 2-2:	Limit values for noise regarding population (IFC/WB General EHS	
Guidelines)	2-21	
Table 2-3:	Limit values for noise regarding population (Sanitary Norm N2-III-11	.3)2-
21		
Table 2-4:	Limit values for noise regarding workers	2-22
Table 2-5:	Performance Guarantees of YCCPP-2 - noise (ArmPower, 2017)	2-22
Table 2-6:	IFC air emission guidelines for facilities larger than 50 MW with	
combustion turl	pines (IFC, 2008)	2-22
Table 2-7:	Performance Guarantees for YCCPP-2 - air emissions (ArmPower, 20 2-22	17)
Table 2-8:	National and ECD Ambient Air Quality Standards	2-23
Table 2-9:	Industrial Effluent Conditions as given in ArmPower Design Data,	
Effluent Standa	rds for YCCPP-1 set by MNP, and applicable Effluent Guidelines for	
wastewater from	n thermal power plants (Source: IFC/WB EHS Guidelines for Thermal	
Power Plants)	2-25	
Table 2-10:	Guideline values for Sanitary Sewage Discharges (Source: IFC/WB	
General EHS G	uidelines)	2-26
Table 2-11: Dut	tch Standards for groundwater quality (Soil Remediation Circular, 2009	9) 2-
26		
Table 2-12:	German Standards for groundwater quality	2-27
Table 2-13:	Water quality comparative data - RA Decision N75-N (2014)	2-28
Table 2-14: Dut	tch Standards for soil quality (Soil Remediation Circular, 2009)	2-29
Table 2-15:	Maximum allowable concentrations (MAC) of chemical substances in	soil
(Sanitary norms	s and rules N 2.1.7.003-10)	2-29
Table 2-16:	Proposals for land use based on the degree of pollution (Annex to the	
Sanitary norms	and rules N 2.1.7.003-10)	2-30
Table 2-17:	Limits defined by ICNIRP to manage human exposure to electric and	
magnetic fields	2-30	
Table 3-1:	Planned Site Facilities at YCCPP-2 (source: RENCO)	3-7
Table 5-1:	Surface water quality analysis from November 2017 and comparative 5-13	data
Table 5-2:	Groundwater quality comparative data (November 2017 data)	5-17
Table 5-3:	Results of the baseline noise monitoring at the Project site	5-23
Table 6-1:	Predicted noise pressure at Measurement point 'Noise 4'	6-29
Table 6-3: 37	Summary of impacts during operation phase (incl. associated facilities	6) 6-
Table 6-4: facilities)	Summary of impacts during decommissioning phase (incl. associated 6-38	

Table 0 1:	Summery of Mitigation Magguras during Construction Activities			
Table 9-1: Summary of Mingation Measures during Construction Activities				
Table 0.2:	na and Fiora Summery of Mitigation Massuras during Construction Activities	9-2		
concerning From	sign Control	02		
Table 0.2:	Summary of Mitigatian Massuras during Construction Activities	9-2		
Table 9-5.	Pollution	0.2		
Table 0.4:	Summary of Mitigatian Massuras during Construction Activities	9-5		
Table 9-4.	summary of whitgation measures during Construction Activities	0.4		
Table 0.5:	Summary of Mitigatian Massuras during Construction Activities	9-4		
Table 9-3.	Summary of Wingation Measures during Construction Activities	0.4		
Table 0.6:	Summery of Mitigation Massuras during Construction Activities	9-4		
Table 9-0.	deepen and Viguel Agneets	0.5		
Table 0.7:	Summery of Mitigation Massures during Construction Activities	9-5		
Table 9-7.	Summary of Wingation Measures during Construction Activities	0.6		
Table 0.9	Summery of Mitigation Magguras during Construction Activities	9-0		
Table 9-8:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities	07		
T-1-1- 0.0	Concernant Cultural Siles and Goods	9-/		
Table 9-9:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities	07		
concerning Occ	supational Health & Safety	9-/		
Table 9-10:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities	0.0		
concerning Con	nmunity Health & Safety	9-9		
	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities	D 10		
concerning Soc	al Aspects	9-10		
Table 9-12:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Protect	10n		
of Flora and Fa	una.	9-11 1		
Table 9-13:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Soil an	d		
Water Pollution				
Table 9-14:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Climate	e		
and Air Quality				
Table 9-15:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Landsc	ape		
and Visual Asp	ects	9-13		
Table 9-16:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Waste			
Management	9-14			
Table 9-17:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning			
Occupational H	ealth & Safety	9-15		
Table 9-18:	Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning			
Community He	alth & Safety	9-16		
Table 9-19:	Summary of monitoring measures during Construction Phase	9-18		
Table 9-20:	Summary of monitoring measures during Operation Phase	9-36		
Table 9-21:	Monitoring costs for implementation of the ESMP	9-54		
Table 9-22: Compliance of the Project with main requirements of IFC Performance				
Standards (PS) 9-55				
Table 9-23:	Environmental and Social Action Plan including the main mitigation			
topics	9-66			

Acronyms and Abbreviations

ADB	Asian Development Bank
ADC	Air Dispersion Calculation
CCPP	Combined Cycle Power Plant
CEMS	Continuous Emissions Monitoring System
CJSC	Closed Joint Stock Company
EIA	Environmental Impact Assessment
EPC	Engineering, Procurement, Construction
ESAP	Environmental and Social Action Plan
ESIA	Environmental and Social Impact Assessment
ESMP	Environmental and Social Management Plan
GIIP	Good International Industry Practice
GLC	Ground Level Concentration
GT	Gas Turbine
GRM	Grievance Redress Mechanism
HHV	Higher Heating Value
HRSG	Heat Recovery Steam Generator
HSE	Health Safety and Environment
HSEMP	Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan
HSEMS	Health, Safety, and Environment Management System
IBA	Important Bird and Biodiversity Area
IFC	International Financing Corporation
IFIs	International Financing Institutions
ILO	International Labor Organization
kV	Kilo Volt
kV LHV	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value
kV LHV MNP	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection
kV LHV MNP MOE	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS RA	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards Republic of Armenia
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS RA SEP	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards Republic of Armenia Stakeholder Engagement Plan
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS RA SEP SNCO	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards Republic of Armenia Stakeholder Engagement Plan State Non-Commercial Organization
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS RA SEP SNCO ST	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards Republic of Armenia Stakeholder Engagement Plan State Non-Commercial Organization Steam Turbine
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS RA SEP SNCO ST UHC	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards Republic of Armenia Stakeholder Engagement Plan State Non-Commercial Organization Steam Turbine Unburned Hydrocarbons
kV LHV MNP MOE MPC MW NGO NPS PAP PCB PPE PS RA SEP SNCO ST UHC USD	Kilo Volt Lower Heating Value Ministry of Nature Protection Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources of RA Maximum Permissible Concentration Mega Watt Non-Governmental Organization Noise Propagation Study Project Affected People Polychlorinated Biphenyls Personal Protective Equipment Performance Standards Republic of Armenia Stakeholder Engagement Plan State Non-Commercial Organization Steam Turbine Unburned Hydrocarbons US Dollar

Disclaimer

The content of this document is intended for the exclusive use of Fichtner's Employer and other contractually agreed recipients. It may only be made available in whole or in part to third parties with the Employer's consent and on a non-reliance basis. Fichtner is not liable to third parties for the completeness and accuracy of the information provided therein.

Executive Summary

Project Background and Objectives

The Ministry of Energy (MOE) of the Republic of Armenia plans to improve the total output capacity of its electric energy production, complementing the power units of the existing Yerevan Combined Cycle Thermal Power Plant (YCCPP-1) with a modern and efficient power plant. For this reason a new gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant of 254 MWe (YCCPP-2) is planned to be built at the site next to the existing YCCPP-1.

To obtain financing from the International Financing Corporation (IFC) and the Asian Development Bank (ADB), a bankable Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) Report regarding the YCCPP-2 ("the Project") on the basis of the relevant IFC/World Bank Group's guidelines and the ADB Safeguard Policy Statement has to be delivered to the financing institutions for review and approval.

The new CCPP will include a Gas Turbine (GT), a Steam Turbine (ST), a Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG), and all auxiliary equipment and systems that, at local conditions with an ambient temperature of 15°C, will produce 254 MW. Interconnections to gas, water and electrical grid are already planned. The new CCPP shall be connected with the facilities of the existing grid infrastructure.

Along with a rapidly growing economy and a rising population, power demand in Armenia is constantly increasing. The main objective of the construction of YCCPP-2 is to:

- Improve the total output capacity of electric energy production;
- Provide reliable power supply;
- Shift the financial burden for power generation from the government to the private sector;
- Promote commercial development of thermal technology and cost reduction that enables Armenia to become a major net exporter of electricity; and
- Build and sustain local capacity in the development and maintenance of power generation infrastructure.

Objectives and Methodology of the ESIA Study

On the basis of the existing environmental situation and the technical planning of the power plant, FICHTNER determined and evaluated the environmental and social impacts during construction, operation, and decommissioning of the planned YCCPP-2. The impact assessment examined the impacts to physical environment of the Project and the effects for the local population. In a second step, appropriate mitigation measures and monitoring measures were considered to reduce possible adverse impacts and to monitor their implementation.

FICHTNER

After public disclosure of the ESIA, including the ESMP, public consultations were executed in order to seek feedback and concerns of stakeholders and people possibly affected by the Project. A Stakeholder Engagement Plan has also been prepared as part of this ESIA study.

A general overview about biophysical settings has been done based on a desktop study, including existing studies about the Project and on field surveys. The first field surveys were conducted by FICHTNER's environmental and social experts in July 2017 and February 2018, visiting the proposed CCPP site. Other surveys have been undertaken consisting of sampling of air, soil and groundwater at the site and its surroundings. The environmental and social impacts of the Project are predicted in relation to environmental and social receptors and natural resources. This is accomplished by comparing baseline conditions with situations ensuing when the Project is implemented. Additional information was gained by consultations of representatives of governmental and non-governmental organizations. New campaigns for monitoring of surface water, groundwater and soil quality have been undertaken with the objective to deepen the knowledge about the existing pollution levels in the area.

To obtain up-to-date data about the ground level concentrations (GLC) of air pollutants in the Project Area of Influence, and help defining the airshed as degraded or non-degraded (according to the WB EHS Guidelines), FICHTNER undertook air quality monitoring campaigns in Summer 2017, Autumn 2017, and Winter 2017/2018 including the measurement of SO₂, NO₂ and PM₁₀. This monitoring campaign will be repeated next Spring in order to cover all seasons of an annual cycle.

To obtain data about the existing noise levels in the Project Area of Influence, FICHTNER undertook a noise monitoring campaign in an area around the YCCPP-2 site at five monitoring points. The results were used as an input for a Noise Propagation Study report.

Soil sampling at the construction site was done in November 2017 for analyses of TPH, PAH, BTEX, and metals. Furthermore analyses of groundwater upstream, at the site, and downstream for content of TPH, PAH, BTEX, metals, as well as pH, mineralization, BOD5, COD-Cr were performed at the same time. Analyses of water quality parameters of the Hrazdan River upstream and downstream of the discharge point and at the discharge channel close to the discharge point were also performed.

Due to the fact that there is no official international consensus on an agreed approach for assessing the significance of impacts on the environment, FICHTNER uses an own evaluation procedure. This transparent evaluation procedure is based upon FICHTNER's extensive experience over the last fifteen years in performing Environmental and Social Impact Assessments and has proven to be a reliable method for assessing a project's impacts on the environment. It includes identification, prediction and evaluation of the significance of impacts based on IFC/WB guidelines and ADB Safeguard Policy Statement, as well as national legal requirements. Wherever possible, impacts are quantified. The focus of the used evaluation procedure is to decide whether the Project is likely to cause significant adverse environmental effects resulting from construction, operation, and decommissioning.

Policy, Legal and Administrative Framework

National Requirements

The planned implementation of any activity in Armenia that may cause environmental impacts needs a positive conclusion of an EIA expertise. All environmental impacts of planned physical activities or sectoral/ regional development plans/ programs have to be assessed during the EIA preparation period. The **RA Law on Environmental Assessment and Expertise** of 2014 stipulates provisions regarding environmental impact assessment, realization and terms, thus being the most important national law for carrying out the EIA. **National Environmental Project approval** from Ministry of Nature Protection has been given in July 2017 based on national EIA and geological reports. The national law requires an EIA, while the present draft report is about ESIA, as the Law on the Environmental Impact Assessment and Expertise does require coverage of social aspects of a proposed activity.

International Agreements

Armenia has ratified a number of international agreements and conventions relating to the protection of the environment and biodiversity as there are among others:

- The Convention on the Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural Habitats (Bern)
- Convention on Wetlands of International Importance (Ramsar)
- Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn)
- Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora (Washington)
- European Landscape Convention (Florence)
- Convention Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and Natural Heritage (Paris)
- Convention on Biological Diversity (Rio de Janeiro).
- Framework Convention on Climate Change (Rio de Janeiro)
- Kyoto Protocol (linked to the Convention on Climate Change)
- Paris Agreement (linked to the Convention on Climate Change)

With respect to handling of hazardous substances, the Government of the Republic of Armenia ratified the Stockholm Convention and is a party of the Basel Convention. In addition, an important, environmentally relevant international agreement to which Armenia is a signatory is the Aarhus

FICHTNER

Convention on access to information, public participation in decisionmaking and access to justice in environmental matters.

International Requirements

According to IFC's Sustainability Framework (2012) the Project falls into environmental **Category A**. In accordance with ADB Safeguard Policy Statement (2009) the project is categorized as **Category A** for environment, Category C for Involuntary Resettlement and Category C for Indigenous Peoples. This categorization requires preparation of an ESIA study. ADB and IFC define that ESIAs shall be conducted in line with national laws and regulations as well as in line with international environmental and social safeguard standards. From the policies, the following are highlighted as of importance for the present ESIA:

- IFC Performance Standards on Social and Environmental Sustainability (2012)
- IFC/ WB Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Guidelines (2007)
- ADB Safeguard Policy Statement (2009).

The specific IFC/World Bank Group guidelines applicable to this Project are the following:

- IFC/World Bank Group General EHS Guidelines (2007)
- IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Electric Power Transmission and Distribution (2007)
- IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008)

The IFC Performance Standards (PS) triggered by the Project are given in the table below.

IFC PS	Name of PS	Triggered by the Project?
PS 1	Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts	yes
PS 2	Labor and Working Conditions	yes
PS 3	Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention	yes
PS 4	Community Health, Safety, and Security	yes
PS 5	Land Acquisition and Involuntary Resettlement	no
PS 6	Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Management of Living Natural Resources	yes
PS 7	Indigenous Peoples	no
PS 8	Cultural Heritage	(yes)*

IFC Performance Standards triggered by the Project

* In case of chance finds

ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement (SPS) (2009) sets out the policy objectives, scope and triggers, and principles for three key safeguard areas:

environmental safeguards (triggered by the Project), involuntary resettlement safeguards, and Indigenous Peoples safeguards.

Detailed guidance on environmental and social management of the Project, as well as on ESIA and ESMP preparation is provided in ADB's Safeguards Requirements 1 to 3 in appendices 1 to 3 of ADB's SPS. An EIA report includes the following major elements: (i) executive summary, (ii) policy, legal and administrative framework, (iii) description of the project, (iv) description of the environment (with comprehensive baseline data), (v) anticipated environmental impacts and mitigation measures, (vi) analysis of alternatives, (vii) environmental management plan(s), (viii) consultation and information disclosure, (ix) grievance redress mechanism, and (x) conclusion and recommendations.

Gap Analysis regarding national and International Legislation

The legal framework of the Republic of Armenia does in the essence correspond with the international regulations and safeguards. Gaps however do exist in enforcement of the regulations. There is still a considerable lack of institutional capacities for implementation, monitoring and evaluation.

Project Description

The new YCCPP-2 will consist of a gas turbine with generator (GTG), a Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG), and a steam turbine with generator (STG) which will be installed in a new West East shaft centerline, and related auxiliaries.

The Gross Power output at Design Conditions and 'Base Load' operation mode of the combined cycle (GT Gross Power output + ST Gross Power output), is:

- Guaranteed Gross Power Output: 254 MW (at design conditions)
- Gross Heat Rate (based on LHV: 47,479 kJ/kg): 6,438 kJ/kWh
- Efficiency: 55.91%

The new power plant will be designed for full power generation mode, but will also be capable to run at partial load operation. The design life for YCCPP-2 is set to 20 years.

Interconnections to gas, water and electrical grid are planned. The new CCPP shall be connected with the facilities of the existing grid infrastructure provided below:

• Electricity: A new 220 kV substation is just under construction for YCCPP-1; the connection from the new power plant to the new substation is proposed to be by underground cable (still subject of design, if overhead transmission line or underground cable will be used); the

distance between the new power plant and the new 220 kV substation is approx. 400 m

- New connection to the natural gas supply pipeline system from Gazprom Armenia, approx. 1,500 m (under responsibility of Gazprom Armenia)
- New connection to the city water system managed by Veolia (make-up water), approx. 1,000 m
- New connections to the water sewerage of the city, approx. 450 m
- New connection to the industrial waste water discharge system downstream of YCCPP-1, less than 100 m

The <u>Project Area</u> comprises the YCCPP-2 site which is located at 929 m a.s.l. (average) at the south eastern border of Shengavit, a highly industrialized district in the southern part of Yerevan. There are no people living in the Project Area/YCCPP-2 site. The site is situated approx. 2 km southeast of Erebuni Airport, bordering Erebuni district and has many large industrial plants and factories in its vicinity. Despite their industrial character, Shengavit and Erebuni Districts are home to a high number of residents of Yerevan (see Figure below).



Project Area located south of Yerevan (in red), nearest residential areas and illegal housings

The <u>Project Area of Influence</u> comprises the YCCPP-2 site and adjacent residential areas. The closest residential areas are located in a distance between 1,200 m and 1,500 m from the YCCPP-2, and some temporary houses exist close to (but outside) the site. The Project Area of Influence is

determined to extend up to 10 km away from the site in all directions, covering the areas that might be impacted e.g. by air emissions during operation of the new power plant (see Figure below).



Project Area of Influence (circle) with residential areas in a distance of 10 km from the YCCPP-2 that might be impacted by the Project

For the construction of YCCPP-2 approx. 30 months are estimated. Thus, it is expected that the new power plant will be commissioned at the end of 2019.

Analysis of Alternatives

A comparative assessment of alternatives regarding different options for power generation, location and design has been conducted. Considering this assessment, the construction and operation of a gas-fired Combined Cycle Power Plant in an existing industrial site with a sufficient stack height, considerations for mitigation of air and water emissions, and adequate management of waste will have the least environmental and social impacts.

The 'No Project' Scenario describes the situation without implementation of the Project. In this alternative, all environmental and social impacts of the Project would be avoided, but on the other hand the main objectives of the Project would not be achieved, having potentially negative implications on the regional power supply, including also implications for potential business opportunities.

There are basically three different types of energy production: Renewable energy (mainly hydropower, wind, solar and geothermal power); Nuclear

energy; and Thermal energy. The option of gas and steam combined cycle power plant was chosen due to different constraints faced by the other alternatives for power production (factors such as area needed, cost of generation and community H&S play an important role). Gas fired power plants imply in addition less air, noise and waste water emissions and lower generation of solid waste compared to other thermal options of power generation.

The foreseen site location allows to use the pipeline and channel for discharge of treated waste water to Hrazdan River, which is already used by YCCPP-1, as well as using the adjacent substation for power evacuation and main access road to the site. Possible alternative locations for the proposed new YCCPP-2 were considered prior to opting for the foreseen site. On account to minimize environmental impacts and additional costs for newly developing such a site and modifying the transmission network to accommodate the new power plant, the foreseen site was selected together with MOE as a final option.

The initial design of the new YCCPP-2 had foreseen a stack height of 35 meters. The results of the air dispersion calculation show, however, that a stack height of 66 meters (the Good Engineering Practice stack height) is more adequate because this allows the fulfillment of the national and international air quality standards. In addition to this, the project foresees the installation of equipment to mitigate air and water emissions (low NOx burners, drift eliminators and a waste water treatment plant). Without this equipment, the investment costs would be lower, but the E&S impacts would be higher.

Another design option foreseen as a result of the ESIA is the inclusion of a temporary storage area for hazardous waste to avoid the disposal of this type of waste in a mixed waste landfill. This option has revealed to be advantageous from an environmental point of view because presently there is not a solution for hazardous waste disposal in Armenia.

The new YCCPP-2 is part of the strategic plan for energy production of the Government of Armenia. Design of the new plant reflects the latest available technology.

Description of the Environment (Baseline Data)

The baseline data collection for the Project Area of Influence focused on the subjects of protection: fauna and flora, soil, water, climate, air quality, noise, landscape, historical and cultural sites and socio-economic conditions (including health and safety).

The following documents have already been prepared for the Project:

• RENCO SPA: Armenia 250 MW CCGT Yerevan Capital City. Draft Feasibility Study [CCGT 250 MW – Yerevan /Armenia]

- Ecobarik-Audit LLC (2016): Report of Evaluation of Environmental Impact of the new Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant in Yerevan
- Geoterproject LTD (2016): Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area
- ArmPower CJSC (2017): Geological Report of Armhydroenergyproject CJSC
- Consecoard LLC (2017): Report on Monitoring Services

Environmental Conditions

The construction site is part of the Yerevan industrial area. The site itself and the surrounding land are poorly vegetated with much of the area having been disturbed by industrial developments. Only sparse vegetation composed of grass, herbs and some reed and bushes can be found at the construction site. The ecological value of the Project Area is assessed to be low, also considering that vegetation at the area has been cleared in 2008 and that the area has been obviously earth worked in the past. No vegetation is found at the foreseen laydown area for construction of YCCPP-2. The water quality of the Hrazdan River is categorized as bad (5th class of the surface water quality assessment system of RA) in the area south of Yerevan. The ecological value of the river is assessed to be low. The vegetation at the river banks will not be negatively affected by the final discharge of the treated waste water via a network of channels.

No **Protected Areas** are located within or in the vicinity of the Project Area of Influence. This includes Important Bird and Biodiversity Areas (IBA) and Ramsar Sites.

In order to ensure the proper setting of YCCPP-2, two **geotechnical investigation programs** have been performed in 2016 and 2017 including topographic mapping, geophysical and engineering geological works, experimental borehole drilling, piezometer installation in some boreholes to measure the ground water level fluctuation, periodic measurement of water level and sample taking. The main outcomes of these studies include:

- In the study area underground waters have been detected in all the boreholes with 0.5-7.0 m depth and have seasonal fluctuation from 0.5 to 1.0 m. Detected underground waters have strong sulphate aggressiveness against ordinary concrete.
- There are no hazardous physical-geological phenomena and processes (landslides, rock slides, rockfall, erosion, suffosion, etc.) in the study areas.
- The study area is suitable for capital construction.

Earthquake risk has been considered in the design of the new YCCPP-2.

The geological studies which were performed at the construction site found mainly clayey **soils** which are in some places covered by fill up soils.

In August 2017 and in November 2017 two monitoring studies were performed regarding possible historic soil contamination at the construction site. Soil has been found to be not contaminated according to international threshold values (German, Dutch). However, according to the very strict Armenian limits, several MACs of heavy metals are exceeded. Despite these exceedances, and according to calculations made based on the Armenian Decision N 1277-N, the soil in the area is classified as "permissible". This kind of soil may be used for construction of non-high vulnerability objects¹ without further mitigation measures. This is the case for the YCCPP-2.

The area was used as laydown area during the construction of YCCPP-1. The usage of the area for illegal disposal of different waste materials in the past has been reported. During the site visit in July 2017 some empty oil drums were found at the site. Near to these drums the topsoil was found to be contaminated by an oil leakage. Samples of the contaminated soil taken during the site visit in July 2017 were analyzed by a certified laboratory in Germany for content of PCBs. All PCB concentrations were below the detection limit of 0.2 ppm. During the site visit in February 2018 it was found that the oil drums had been removed to the property of YCCPP-1.

Regarding the Project Area, the nearest **water body**, Artashati Jrants Canal, is located 700 m south east of the construction site. Thus, no risk of flooding of the area is foreseen. No water from the canal will be used for YCCPP-2 and no water will be discharged to it. It is planned that YCCPP-2 will use the pipeline and channel for discharge of treated waste water to Hrazdan River, which is already used by YCCPP-1. YCCPP-2 is located in Hrazdan River basin management area. Water in the lower stream of Hrazdan River is classified as "bad" (5th grade) according to Armenian water quality standards. Samples of the surface water of the Hrazdan River have been taken. The results of the analyses show that applicable European and German limit values are not exceeded. The results show also that the discharge of the treated waste water from YCCPP-1 does not affect the water quality of Hrazdan River negatively, as the analyzed parameters upstream and downstream of the discharge point do not show any qualitative difference.

According to the geological studies **underground waters** have been detected in all the boreholes with 0.5-7.0 m depth and have seasonal fluctuation from 0.5 to 1.0 m. Two monitoring studies were performed in August 2017 and November 2017 regarding groundwater quality at the construction site. The results of all groundwater sampling tests made in August 2017 were within the limits of the 5th grade of water quality; however, limit values for groundwater do not exist in Armenia. Additional analysis of groundwater was undertaken in November 2017 at three sampling sites (upstream of the site, at the site, and downstream of the site) for content of TPH, PAH, BTEX, metals, as well as pH, dissolved oxygen, mineralization, BOD5, and COD5. The chemical analyses were compared to

¹ High vulenrability objects are: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains

German threshold values and Dutch Standards. Analyses show that concentrations of several metals exceed the German and/or Dutch threshold values. Concentrations of organic pollutants have also been analyzed. No PAH were detected in the groundwater samples. Concentrations of BTEX and Benzol were below the respective threshold values. Concentrations of TPH exceed the German limit values at groundwater well No. 1 and especially at well No. 2.

Analyzed concentrations of some metals in the groundwater samples also exceed the limit value of the worst class 5 of the surface water quality assessment system in Armenia: concentrations of Sodium (Na) are 5 to 10fold higher, Vanadium (V) 10 to 95-fold higher, Manganese (Mn) up to 10fold higher, Cobalt (Co) up to 5-fold higher, Arsenic (As) 2-fold higher.

Thus, according to the new samples taken in November 2017, the groundwater at the site has to be regarded as contaminated with some heavy metals and organic pollutants. These high values of some heavy metals in the analyzed groundwater are most probably based on the industrial background of the wider area around the construction site. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur.

In Yerevan the prevailing **climate** is a mountainous continental climate. It is characterized by hot and arid summers and rather cold winters; in a year there are on average a hundred days with minimum temperatures below freezing. The average temperature in Yerevan is 11.6°C. In summer (July and August) the average temperature exceeds 30°C. The coldest month is January at -4°C.Generally, there is little rainfall throughout the year; precipitation averages 319 mm. The driest months are June to October with an average below 25 mm of rain. The wettest months are February, April and May with an average of 40 mm of rain.

On average, the most wind is seen in July. The strongest wind speed is observed in March and April (> 38 km/h). On average, the least wind is seen in September. The mean monthly wind speed over the year is 6.1 km/h. The wind mainly blows from NE, SSW and S.

The results of the air quality baseline monitoring show that the **airshed** in the Project Area of Influence surrounding the future YCCPP2 can be classified as **non-degraded** regarding the pollutants PM_{10} , SO_2 and NO_2 .

The results of the noise baseline monitoring show that some receptors in the area **are presently affected by noise levels that exceed the limits** due to the presence of industrial facilities and traffic.

The Project Area is located in a highly industrialized area in southern Yerevan. Here, the existing YCCPP-1, chemical plants, metal factories and other industrial infrastructure dominate the **landscape**.

Socio-Economic Conditions

The **population** in the Project Area of Influence can be differentiated into urban population of the districts of Shengavit (approx. 140,000 inhabitants) and Erebuni (approx. 117,000 inhabitants); and the village population of Ayntap (approx. 11,000 inhabitants) and Kharberd (approx. 17,000 inhabitants).

Sensitive receptors which might be affected by noise and air emissions during construction, operation, and decommissioning of YCCPP-2 have been identified in the residential areas up to several kilometers away from the site of the new power plant. There are groups of people living in illegal housings adjacent to the YCCPP-1 site. <u>There are no persons living within the YCCPP-2 site/Project Area.</u>

Despite economic reforms and some recent growth, unemployment and poverty remain widespread in Armenia. Agriculture is the country's largest labor sector, followed by services and industry. The poorest Armenians are found in rural areas with the least favorable conditions for agricultural activities. There is a stark contrast between the city of Yerevan and the remote rural areas in terms of socio-economic opportunities.

The Project Area is part of a highly industrialized region of Yerevan. Only the area west of the foreseen construction site is used for pasture and/or agricultural purposes. The whole area of the construction site has already been acquired by ArmPower CJSC and local population does not inhabit or **use the land** in any way.

As the history of human settlement in Armenia goes back to the Neolithic age and the area has since then been important as settlement, trade and agricultural area, numerous historical and cultural sites exist. No known **historical or cultural sites** are located within the Project Area. The Ministry of Culture shall be informed by the EPC Contractor about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site, including a preconstruction field survey, if deemed necessary by the Ministry.

Environmental and Social Impact Assessment

Possible environmental and social impacts from the construction, operation, and decommissioning of YCCPP-2 and auxiliary facilities are analyzed. Potential impacts of the Project in relation to environmental and social receptors are characterized and the Significance of Impact (after implementation of mitigation measures) is assessed.

Environmental Impacts during Construction Phase

As the ecological value of the construction site is assessed to be low, there are only low impacts on **flora and fauna** expected during the construction phase. No **protected or sensitive areas** will be influenced by the Project.

The Project Area is not prone to soil erosion. **Soil** use is restricted to the area of the planned construction activities. Analyses of possible historic soil contamination at the construction site have been performed in August 2017 and November 2017. According to international threshold standards the soil is not contaminated. However, according to national Armenian limits, the concentrations of some heavy metals in the analyzed soil samples exceed national MACs. Despite these exceedances, and according to calculations undertaken based on the Armenian Decision N 1277-N, the soil is classified as "permissible". This kind of soil may be used for construction of non-high vulnerability objects² without further mitigation measures. This is the case for the YCCPP-2.

Soil contamination during construction works can arise from improper waste disposal and accidental leakage from tanks of lubricants, solvents, paint, oil, diesel, chemicals, etc.

Surface water will not be influenced during the construction period. Contamination of the soil can indirectly lead to a pollution of the **groundwater**. Two groundwater investigations have been undertaken. An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur. The current proposal is to install subsurface drainage to permanently deviate groundwater around the site. The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction, including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network).

Dust generation from transportation and construction activities, as well as emissions from vehicles and construction machinery will be the main impacts on **air quality** during the construction phase of the proposed Project.

Construction of the new power plant will add further highly visible structures (e.g. stacks and buildings) to the Project Area of Influence. Due to the already existing industrial infrastructure in the area, the construction of YCCPP-2 will not enhance the contrast between the industrial site and the surrounding areas significantly.

² High vulnerability objects are: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains

Possible impacts on soil and water can be prevented and mitigated by a professional handling and storage of hazardous substances and a proper handling of waste. The EPC Contractor shall develop a Waste Management Plan for the construction period containing among others the waste management hierarchy of avoidance, preparing for reuse, recycling as much as possible, recovery, and proper disposal of remaining waste. Hazardous waste shall be stored in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at the new YCCPP-2 site, clearly identified by labels, and Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) shall be provided for each kind of hazardous waste. If any asbestos containing material (ACM) will be found at the construction site, all ACM has to be securely double bagged and sealed. All bags shall be clearly labeled and stored in a bunded and locked storage room with a warning sign installed. The final disposal of hazardous waste is subject to medium to long term national-level solutions to be decided upon and provided by the Government of RA.

Social Impacts during Construction Phase

During the construction period **local workforce** (mainly unskilled workers) from the nearby villages and Yerevan shall be employed for the construction works. This will contribute to much needed monetary income in the region. Special attention shall be laid on the recruitment of women, wherever possible. However, the income generation opportunity is not of long term duration, as it will be mostly limited to the construction period.

No one lives at the YCCPP-2 site and there is no **land use** by the local population, as the area has already been acquired, fenced, and is foreseen for construction of the YCCPP-2. ArmPower/RENCO have entered a land purchase agreement with the seller (Yerevan Thermal Power Plant CJSC) in March 2017. No acquisition of further land will be necessary for this Project. There are no houses located inside the construction site, so that no project-related physical relocation is foreseen.

Within the construction site and the Project Area of Influence no cultural or historic sites are known. The Ministry of Culture shall be informed by the EPC Contractor about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site, including a preconstruction field survey, if deemed necessary by the Ministry. For the case of an unexpected encounter of Cultural and Historical Sites or Goods, a **Chance Find Procedure** has to be implemented. In case of any chance finds, the construction has to be stopped immediately and the Agency of Protection of Historical and Cultural Monuments/ Ministry of Culture has to be informed to agree on further steps (as according to Armenian Law).

For construction of YCCPP-2 a site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (**HSEMP**) will be developed by RENCO as EPC Contractor and a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) will be implemented during construction. An H&S manager of RENCO shall be on duty all the time during construction period. These HSEMP and HSEMS shall also be valid for any third parties or subcontractors in the supply chain.

Working personnel from abroad will be accommodated in RENCO's guesthouse or at hotels in Yerevan. Local workforce shall be employed from Yerevan and the adjacent villages. No workers' camps will have to be established as local workers will return to their homes daily. Transfer to and from the construction site will be carried out by private means or public transport, and in addition by means managed by the EPC Contractor. A Traffic Management Plan shall be developed and implemented by the EPC Contractor.

Adequate security measures to prevent accidents and injuries have to be taken when transporting construction equipment on trucks as this might be dangerous to residents, when trucks drive through residential areas or small villages (to be included in a Traffic Management Plan). The construction site itself will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access to the site, thus also minimizing possible impacts on **community health & safety**. Development and implementation of a Security Force Management Plan include training and monitoring of security personnel regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community is foreseen.

The EPC Contractor shall develop an **Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan** for the construction period based on robust Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) / Hazard Identification Study (HAZID), and assist and collaborate with the potentially affected communities and local government agencies in their preparation to respond effectively to emergency situations.

Construction workers will wear ear protection devices as part of their Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), if they are exposed to **noise levels** higher than 80 dB (A), according to Armenian legislation. Residential areas up to several kilometers away from the site, which are located near to major roads, will be exposed to higher noise levels due to a greater volume of heavy truck traffic passing by on the main roads. Thus, truck movements shall only be allowed during daylight, but not between 7 pm and 6 am.

Environmental Impacts during Operation Phase

No sensitive **species** and no **protected areas** occur in the Project Area. All waste water coming from the power plant operation will be duly collected and routed to an onsite waste water treatment plant at YCCPP-2 (which is still in the detailed design phase). It will include an API and, if necessary, a CPI oil separator, as well as a biological treatment of the waste water. The treated water will be discharged to the existing discharge pipeline and channels downstream of YCCPP-1. The treatment system will be suitably selected and implemented to meet the environmental limits and the good

industry practice. The utility sewerage will be connected to the city's sewerage system.

Soil contamination can be possible due to spillages from oil/ fuel/ paint/ chemicals used during operation of the power plant.

All **water** will be taken from the Yerevan potable water grid and will be used for all civil utilities like cooking, drinking, etc. It will also be used as process water which is connected to the raw water storage tank and for all other uses (e.g. cooling tower make up, HRSG blow-down tank quench, firewater tank and network, utility water network, etc.). A monthly monitoring program shall be established to be performed by ArmPower and results shall be reported to the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO at the Ministry of Nature Protection and the project financers (ADB and IFC) in order to guarantee the adherence of all wastewater, sanitary water and drainage water to the effluent standards still to be set for YCCPP-2 or international limit values, whichever are more stringent. Calculations of the waste water temperature show that the treated waste water from YCCPP-2 will have no significant impact on the water of Hrazdan River as ultimate receiver, after passing a pipeline and an open channels system of 7-9 km length.

Contamination of the soil can indirectly lead to a pollution of the **groundwater**. An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently deviate groundwater around the site. The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction, including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network).

The results of the ADC show that the national and international **air quality** standards are expected to be fulfilled in the area if a stack height of 66 meters is considered in the design. A Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) will be installed at the stack of the new power plant. Adherence to the limit values at the stack shall be checked continuously by ArmPower and the results shall be reported monthly to the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO at the Ministry of Nature Protection and the project financers (ADB and IFC). Cooling towers' particulate emissions will be controlled through the use of drift eliminators, in order to have low drift phenomena (0.01 % drift loss).

Noise calculation outcomes of the model for YCCPP-2 have shown that the operation of the new plant will not produce any significant increase of the noise pressure at the sensitive receptors. It has also to be underlined that,

although at the YCCPP-2 fence no sensible receivers are present, the sound level contribution of the plant will be significantly below the applicable international industrial areas noise limits (70 dB(A)). Noise levels will have to be measured regularly during the operation phase of the new power plant and their compliance with the Performance Guarantees will be monitored.

The planned new power plant will add further highly visible structures (e.g. stacks and buildings). However, due to the already existing industrial infrastructure in the area, the realization of the project will not enhance the contrast between the industrial site and the surrounding areas.

Domestic **waste** produced by the plant staff shall be collected in provided bins and picked up by a contracted waste collector for disposal at Yerevan dumping site. All hazardous waste shall be stored in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at new YCCPP-2 site for future disposal. Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) shall be provided for each kind of hazardous waste. The final disposal of hazardous waste is subject to medium to long term national-level solutions to be decided upon and provided by the Government of RA. The Waste Management Plan for operation of the power plant shall also include a risk assessment. Sizing of the storage area for hazardous waste shall be adapted to the projected volume of hazardous material and the anticipated storage duration.

Social Impacts during Operation Phase

Power demand in Armenia is constantly rising due to rapidly growing economy and a rising population. Operation of YCCPP-2 with a guaranteed gross power output of 254 MW will improve the total output capacity of electric energy production and provide a more reliable power supply.

For operation of YCCPP-2 a site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (**HSEMP**) will be developed by ArmPower as Operator and a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (**HSEMS**) implemented for operation. An **H&S manager** of ArmPower shall be on duty all the time.

The area of the new power plant will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access to YCCPP-2 site, thus also minimizing possible impacts on **community health & safety**. Security arrangements shall be guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice and Armenian law, and include training and monitoring of security personnel regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community. A Security Force Management Plan shall be prepared for the operation phase.

The operator shall develop an **Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan** based on robust Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) / Hazard Identification Study (HAZID) for the operation period, and assist and collaborate with the potentially affected communities and local government agencies in their preparation to respond effectively to emergency situations.

Performance Guarantees for the new power plant provide **noise levels** which comply with IFC/ World Bank Group General EHS Guidelines for workers and for the public, as well as with national legislation. The calculation outcomes of the noise study for YCCPP-2 have shown that the operation of the new plant will not produce any significant increase of the noise pressure at the sensitive receptors (there is compliance with the IFC standard of not exceeding an increase of 3 dB in the background levels).

During operation most **jobs** at YCCPP-2 will be for skilled workers like engineers which will require specific power plant training and will not be readily found in Armenia. Graduated people (with electrical and mechanical training) from Yerevan, who could potentially work at the new plant, would need extensive training on the job, as well as theory training. A few simpler jobs (e.g. food supply, housekeeping, etc.) however, will also be available for people which shall be employed from the adjacent residential areas (if possible) in order to create some additional income.

Additional Impacts from the new Connection Facilities

The impacts and mitigation measures mentioned in the sections above concerning the construction and operation of the Project also apply to the necessary additional connection facilities. **Additional aspects** to be considered are related to eventual fell of trees, soil erosion, eventual chance finds of historical and cultural goods, possible damages to existing gas and water infrastructures and possible impacts on public health and safety.

Additional Impacts during Decommissioning Phase

If the power plant will be dismantled after closedown, environmental and social impacts will be mainly the same as during the construction phase. Dismantling works will have to adhere to the latest editions of national and international laws and guidelines, or even to new ones that will be relevant at this time. A Decommissioning Plan shall be prepared by the operator at least 5 years before closure of the plant, and a Detailed Decommissioning Plan shall be developed by the operator at least 18 months in advance of the closure of the plant.

A large amount of waste will have to be managed, if the plant will be dismantled. This will also include different types of hazardous waste. A detailed Waste Management Plan will have to be developed by ArmPower following the same principles as for the construction phase, respecting the waste management hierarchy.

Summary of Impacts

The assessment of environmental and social impacts **after implementation of the mitigation measures** presented in the ESMP is given in the following tables.

Summary of impacts during construction phase (incl. associated infrastructures)

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by	
Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	•	
Protected Areas	0	
Soil Use and Soil Erosion		
Soil Contamination		
Surface Water	0	
Groundwater deviation	(still unknown - see ESAP)	
Groundwater contamination		
Climate and Air Quality	•	
Landscape and Visual Aspects		
Waste		
Local Workforce	+	
Land Use and Ownership	0	
Historical and Cultural Sites	■ (if any)	
Occupational Health and Safety		
Community Health and Safety		
Noise		

Summary of impacts during operation phase (incl. associated infrastructures)

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by
Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	
Protected Areas	0
Soil Contamination	
Water Courses	
Groundwater deviation	(still unknown - see ESAP)
Groundwater contamination	
Climate and Air Quality	
Landscape and Visual Aspects	0
Waste	
Electricity Supply	++
Occupational Health and Safety	
Community Health and Safety	
Noise	
Job opportunities	+

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by
Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	
Protected Areas	0
Soil Use and Soil Erosion	
Soil Contamination	
Surface Water	0
Groundwater contamination	
Climate and Air Quality	
Landscape and Visual Aspects	
Waste	
Local Workforce	+
Land Use and Ownership	0
Historical and Cultural Sites	0
Occupational Health and Safety	
Community Health and Safety	
Noise	

Summary of impacts during decommissioning phase (incl. associated infrastructures)

Significance of Impact:

	=	high
	=	medium
	=	low
0	=	nil
+	=	locally positive
++	=	regionally positive

In conclusion, from the results of the impact assessment it can be seen that the environmental and social impacts will be low or medium, if all proposed mitigation measures of the ESMPs are implemented. Positive impacts are related to creating of job opportunities especially during construction. The additional power generation will increase the total output of electric energy, providing a more reliable power supply countrywide.

Information Disclosure, Consultation, and Participation

During the site visit in July 2017 FICHTNER's environmental and social specialists performed stakeholder meetings with mayors of the adjacent villages Kharberd and Ayntap, with the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts, with the Environmental Monitoring and Information Center, with the Environmental Department of the Municipality of Yerevan, and with the Aarhus Center. Mayors of Kharberd and Ayntap had no concerns regarding the implementation of the Project. As both villages suffer under a high unemployment rate (> 70%), the mayors hope that the Project will create jobs for the local population. These statements have also been supported during the discussions with the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts.

The Draft Final ESIA, including the ESMP, and the Non Technical Executive Summary were disclosed to the public in English and Armenian versions. Interested people have been provided real access to the documents, which were therefore not only posted on ArmPower's website, but were also delivered in printed copies to the local administration offices; advertisements in local media about their availability were made. Also Aarhus Center Yerevan received printed copies and ensured their sharing to representative civil society organizations. According to national Armenian requirements, the disclosure period is only 7 days, but disclosure of the documents for at least two weeks was recommended. After disclosure of the documents, one public consultation meeting on the Draft Final ESIA was held. The consultation meeting concentrated on interpreting the ESIA report to the stakeholders and seeking their feedback and concerns, which were then considered in the Final ESIA report. A SEP (Stakeholder Engagement Plan) providing further details is presented as an Annex to this ESIA Report.

To avoid that the people living in temporary houses nearby the site would be left unaware of the consultation process, RENCO organized a personal meeting on the 12th of February 2018. These residents are hopeful that the project will bring new business opportunities, jobs during construction, and improved public transportation. The temporary situation of the housing is unrelated to the YCCPP-2 project.

Grievance Redress Mechanism

In the course of the construction process, **project affected people (PAP)** may feel treated unjustly, for which case ArmPower shall maintain a viable grievance redress mechanism. PAPs are encouraged to proceed in the following way:

- a) Contact the contractor's designated grievance staff in the following way: in person via designated telephone number, via email, via regular mail. Alternatively, PAPs can contact their community leader, who would convey their grievance to the contractor's designated grievance staff.
- b) Lodge complaint and provide information on the case. Each complaint will be registered and a tracking number will be assigned to it. Responses to all complaints should be provided within 15 days (or 25 days in cases where complaint resolution requires special efforts).
- c) Agree with the contractor on mitigation measure.
- d) Sign if the mitigation measure has been implemented as agreed
- e) Seek redress from ArmPower if not satisfied with above mentioned procedure though designated telephone numbers, in person, or via email or regular mail. ArmPower should register all grievances and provide response within 15 days.
- f) Seek redress from court if all else fails.

Nevertheless, the above mentioned grievance mechanism does not limit the citizen's right to submit the case straight to the court of law just in the first

stage of grievance process. The grievance mechanism is designed to avoid lengthy court procedures.

The EPC Contractor RENCO and the future operator of YCCPP-2 ArmPower are requested to implement an independent grievance management system to enable the workers (and their organizations, where they exist) to raise reasonable workplace concerns. This includes complaints related to non-compliance with Health & Safety matters, discrimination cases and non-consideration of equal opportunities. **The workers' grievance mechanism** shall follow the same principles as the one created for the general public: complaints must be answered in a timely and effective manner without fear of retribution; the access to the grievance mechanism shall not replace or impede the subsequent access to other redress mechanisms; the promoter will inform workers of the grievance mechanism at the time of hire and make it accessible to them.

Environmental and Social Management Plans (ESMPs)

The negative environmental and social impacts of the Project can be avoided, minimized or mitigated by performing suitable measures. The ESMPs deal with the concrete mitigation measures and the monitoring measures to be taken during the construction, operation, and decommissioning phases of YCCPP-2. They summarize the anticipated environmental and social impacts and provide details on the measures, responsibilities to mitigate these impacts, the costs of mitigation, and the ways in which implementation and effectiveness of the measures will be monitored and supervised.

Mitigation Measures for the Construction Phase

The main possible impacts during construction period will be contamination of soil and water, and impacts on health and safety of workers and the public.

Contamination of soil and groundwater can be avoided e.g. by regular maintenance of all vehicles and machines at regular service stations, maintenance and re-fueling of the construction equipment only on sealed and enclosed areas, providing spill control material and training of workers regarding handling of oil, fuel, etc. and how to avoid and clean up spills.

The construction site has to be equipped with toilets and sanitary rooms separately for men and women. Sewage water shall be led to the city's sewage water system or septic tanks for collecting sewage water have to be used, which have to be emptied by a specialized company from time to time.

Soil has been found to be not contaminated according to international threshold values (German, Dutch). However, according to Armenian limits, several MACs of heavy metals are exceeded. Despite these exceedances, and according to calculations undertaken based on the Armenian Decision N

1277-N, the soil is classified as "permissible". This kind of soil may be used for construction of non-high vulnerability objects³ without further mitigation measures. This is the case for the YCCPP-2.

An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently deviate groundwater around the site. The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction, including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network).

The EPC Contractor shall develop a site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (HSEMP) and implement a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) for construction phase. An H&S manager of EPC Contractor shall be on duty all the time during construction period. The HSEMP shall also include a Waste Management Plan as well as an Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan.

Mitigation Measures for the Operation Phase

The main possible impacts during the Operation Phase will be the air and noise emissions as well as effluents from the new power plant.

The stack of the new power plant will be equipped with a Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS). The foreseen emissions at the stack are below the relevant national and international limit values. Compliance of air emissions with the Performance Guarantees of ArmPower and IFC/ World Bank limits for air emissions shall be monitored by the operator and reported to national authorities, e.g. "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO, as well as the financing agencies IFC and ADB. Based on the ADC results, a Good Engineering Practice stack height of 66 meters (GEP stack height) will be built for the power plant to guarantee the compliance with the air quality standards at the ground level (instead of the originally foreseen 35 meters stack).

All waste water from the power plant's operation will be collected and routed to a waste water treatment plant (including API and, if needed, CPI oil separators) before being discharged to recipient existing system of YCCPP-1 discharging to Hrazdan River. Rain water which may be potentially oily will be routed to the same system; other rain water collected

³ High vulenrability objects are: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains

from the paved areas will be collected for irrigation purposes inside the power plant.

HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system will be neutralized at the chemical shop of the power plant to meet relevant water quality standards and will then be discharged using the existing discharge system. The utility sewerage will be connected to the already existing city sewerage system. A monthly monitoring program shall be established to be performed by the operator and reported e.g. to "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO and the financing agencies in order to guarantee the adherence of all wastewater, sanitary water and drainage water to Performance Guarantees of ArmPower, national Armenian effluent limits (still to be defined specifically for the YCCPP-2 by the national authorities) and/or IFC/ World Bank limits, whichever are more stringent.

An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently deviate groundwater around the site. The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction, including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network).

ArmPower as operator of the new power plant will have to develop and implement an Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan as part of its site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (HSEMP).

Mitigation Measures for the Decommissioning Phase

Environmental and social impacts during the decommissioning phase will be mainly the same as during the construction phase. Thus, mitigation measures for the construction phase will be also valid for the dismantling works, which will have to adhere to the latest editions of national and international laws and guidelines.

Implementation Arrangements and Capacity Building

RENCO SPA as EPC Contractor has to implement the ESMP within its own site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) in a proper way and shall have an HSE manager on duty throughout the construction period. This HSE officer shall prepare monthly reports of all HSE relevant incidents and accidents and send these reports to the Health, Safety and Environment Manager of ArmPower and the relevant national authorities as well as to the external internationally experienced auditor.
An external internationally experienced auditor shall perform quarterly supervision of the implementation of the ESMP and monitor the implementation of the mitigation measures during construction phase. The aim of the audits will be to ensure that all mitigation measures are implemented adequately. In case of any discrepancies, the specialist shall implement proper actions to establish compliance with the ESMP. If this is not possible and if the discrepancy is considered to be severe, the person(s) in charge shall be empowered to stop the work immediately until compliance is achieved again. Based on his quarterly supervision and the monthly reports provided by the Health, Safety and Environment Manager of RENCO, the external auditor will produce narrative analytical quarterly reports on environmental and social performance in the course of the Project and furnish these reports to ADB/ IFC and to ArmPower. Additional site investigations shall be performed by the external auditor during the commissioning (once) and operation phases (once per year).

Measures for capacity building at "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO" shall be considered. These measures should include employment of additional staff or contracting outside resources for monitoring purposes (or both). Existing staff shall be trained in effective monitoring procedures including knowledge about national and international (ADB, IFC/World Bank) guidelines and limit values.

Reporting requirements

The results of the monitoring measures shall be compiled in the form of HSE monitoring reports. During the construction and decommissioning stages, a daily HSE log, HSE incidents and chance finds reports, internal HSE audit reports, and monthly HSE reports compiling all the previous shall be prepared. During operation, HSE incidents reports, internal HSE audit reports, and monthly HSE reports shall be prepared.

Adaptive management

The monitoring of the works may reveal the necessity to adapt the mitigation and monitoring measures of the ESMP to specific site conditions not known at the time of preparation of this ESIA.

Summary of Costs for Implementation of the EMSP

A total cost of **255,000 USD** is foreseen for implementation of the ESMP. This value includes quarterly supervision of construction sites and one additional site investigation during the commissioning phase to be performed by an internationally experienced auditor. Furthermore the total cost includes monitoring of air quality during commissioning and of noise during construction and commissioning. Expenses for other measures are included in the regular construction/ operational/ decommissioning works. Additional costs of 10,000 USD per year will arise for each of the yearly audits of the external auditor during the operation phase of YCCPP-2.

Gap Analysis regarding compliance with IFC Performance Standards

After implementation of the mitigation measures and the ESAP, the Project complies with the requirements of all applicable IFC Performance Standards and ADB Safeguard Requirements.

Environmental and Social Action Plan

An Environmental and Social Action Plan (ESAP) is presented in order to highlight the most urgent steps for implementation of the mitigation measures given in the ESMPs, according to the relevant IFC Performance Standards and ADB Safeguard Requirements as well as other international guidelines and standards.

Overall Findings, Conclusion and Recommendations

The main possible impacts of the Project will be contamination of soil and water, impacts on health and safety of workers and the public, air and noise emissions, and liquid effluents from the new power plant.

Negative environmental and social impacts of the Project will be low or medium, if all proposed mitigation measures of the ESMPs and ESAP are implemented. There will be no severe social impacts from the Project; no land acquisition or project-related resettlement will be necessary. Regular **monitoring of noise, ground level concentrations of air pollutants and air emissions as well as liquid effluents** during construction and /or operation phase shall be performed, in order to guarantee adherence to relevant national and/or international limit values.

Calculations of the Noise Propagation Model for YCCPP-2 have shown that the operation of **the new plant will not produce any significant increase of the noise pressure at the sensitive receptors**. The indicative cumulative impacts of the power plant on air quality are foreseen to be kept below the national and international standards if a **stack height with 66 meters** is installed.

Positive impacts are related to creating job opportunities, especially during construction. New job opportunities during operation may be created if investment on training of qualified workers is done. The additional power generation will increase the total output of electric energy, providing a more reliable power supply countrywide.

An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently **deviate groundwater** **around the site.** The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction.

In summary, it can be concluded that the proposed Project of Yerevan Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP-2) can be implemented without having significant adverse impacts on the ecological and social environment, if all mitigation measures proposed in the ESMPs and the ESAP are implemented.

1. Introduction

This report is the Final version of the Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) report for the Yerevan-2 CC Power Plant Project. This version reflects the status quo at February 2018.

1.1 Project Background

The Ministry of Energy (MOE) of the Republic of Armenia plans to improve the total output capacity of its electric energy production, complementing the power units of the existing Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP-1) with a most modern and efficient power plant. For this reason a new gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant of 254 MW (YCCPP-2, or "the Project") is planned to be built at the uninhabited site next to the existing YCCPP-1 (see Figure 1-1) in an already industrialized region in the south of Yerevan. The implementation of the Project is urgent in consideration of the closure of the Metsamor Nuclear Power Plant that will strongly reduce the capacity of electric energy production for the next years (US AID, 2010).

The new CCPP will include a Gas Turbine (GT), a Steam Turbine (ST), a Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG) and all auxiliary equipment and systems that, at local conditions with an ambient temperature of 15°C, will produce 254 MW electrical output.

Interconnections to gas, water and electrical grid are planned. The new CCPP shall be connected with the facilities of the existing grid infrastructure provided below (see Figure 3-3):

- Electricity: A new 220 kV substation is just under construction for YCCPP-1; the connection from the new power plant to the new substation is proposed to be by underground cable (still subject of design, if overhead transmission line or underground cable will be used); the distance between the new power plant and the new 220 kV substation is approx. 400 m
- New connection to the natural gas supply pipeline system from Gazprom Armenia, approx. 1,500 m (under responsibility of Gazprom Armenia)
- New connection to the city water system managed by Veolia (make-up water), approx. 1,000 m
- New connections to the water sewerage of the city, approx. 450 m
- New connection to the industrial waste water discharge system (pipeline and channels) downstream of YCCPP-1, less than 100 m



Figure 1-1: Site location (red) of the planned YCCPP-2 (black), next to the existing YCCPP-1; access road (yellow) and temporary laydown area for construction (blue), which are in possession YCCPP-1

The construction site is part of the Yerevan industrial area and has been earth worked in the past. No industrial activities have been performed on the site in the past, but is has been used as temporary laydown area for construction of the adjacent YCCPP-1. An existing road grants access to the construction site and an area belonging to the property of YCCPP-1 will be used as temporary laydown area for the construction (see Figure 1-1). There is an agreement in place between ArmPower/Renco and YCCPP-1 for using the access road and the temporary laydown area. Material that is stored at the moment in this area will be moved to another site inside the property of YCCPP-1.

The foreseen site location allows to use the pipeline and channel for discharge of treated waste water to Hrazdan River, which is already used by YCCPP-1, as well as using adjacent substation for power evacuation and main access road to the site. Possible alternative locations for the proposed new YCCPP-2 had been considered prior to opting for the foreseen site. On account to minimize the additional costs for newly developing such a site and modifying the transmission network to accommodate the new power plant, the foreseen site was selected together with MOE as a final option.

As the energy sector development has a critical impact on the economic development of the entire country, the Government of Armenia considers this project to be of outmost significance with the highest priority for execution (fast-track project).

The following documents have already been prepared for the Project:

- RENCO SPA: Armenia 250 MW CCGT Yerevan Capital City. Draft Feasibility Study [CCGT 250 MW – Yerevan /Armenia]
- Ecobarik-Audit LLC (2016): Report of Evaluation of Environmental Impact of the new Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant in Yerevan
- Geoterproject LTD (2016): Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area

These documents have been the basis for issuance of the **national environmental approval** to the planned Project, which is documented in the following Conclusion: "*RA Minister of Nature Protection (11.01.2017)*: *State Expert Examination Conclusion on Expert Examination of Influence on the Environment BP 02. Report of evaluation of influence on environment of the new power station in Yerevan with combined cycle of steam and gas*".

1.2 Objective of the Project

Along with a rapidly growing economy and a rising population, power demand in Armenia is constantly increasing. The main objective of the construction of the 254 MW Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP-2) is to:

- Improve the total output capacity of electric energy production;
- Provide reliable power supply;
- Shift the financial burden for power generation from the government to the private sector;
- Promote commercial development of thermal technology and cost reduction that enables Armenia to become a major net exporter of electricity; and
- Build and sustain local capacity in the development and maintenance of power generation infrastructure.

1.3 Objectives of the ESIA

The overall aim of the ESIA is to give an overview of the present situation in the area of implementation of the Project ("the Project Area") and its wider area ("the Project Area of Influence"), to assess the potential (positive and negative) impacts of the Project, and to name appropriate mitigation measures and monitoring approaches. This shall be for the benefit of the plant owner, the concerned public and the future sponsors of the Project.

The main objectives of the ESIA Study are to:

- (i) explain the Project framework including the current design and key technical aspects;
- (ii) analyze the environmental and social baseline in the Project Area of Influence and the resulting requirements for impact assessment

in compliance with all relevant international policies (e.g. ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement, IFC/World Bank EHS Guidelines, EU EIA Guideline) as well as Armenian national environmental guidelines and requirements;

- (iii) perform a detailed environmental and social impact assessment on the basis of the technical design, available data and field surveys with the purpose of understanding the current environmental and social situation in the Project Area of Influence and to assess the potential positive and negative impacts of the Project;
- (iv) identify and recommend measures to avoid, minimize or mitigate adverse environmental and social impacts of the Project during the construction, operation, and decommissioning phases, and recommend referring monitoring measures to be addressed during Project implementation through the preparation of an ESMP (Environmental and Social Management Plan).

On the basis of the existing environmental situation and the technical planning FICHTNER determined and evaluated the environmental and social impacts during construction, operation, and decommissioning of the planned YCCPP-2. The impact assessment examined the impacts to physical environment of the Project and the effects for the local population. In a second step, appropriate mitigation measures and monitoring measures were considered to reduce possible adverse impacts.

After public disclosure of the ESIA, including the ESMP, public consultations were executed on 10th February 2018 in order to seek feedback and concerns of stakeholders and people possibly affected by the Project (see also Stakeholder Engagement Plan in Annex 12.9).

1.4 Methodology

The following documents have already been prepared for the Project:

- RENCO SPA: Armenia 250 MW CCGT Yerevan Capital City. Draft Feasibility Study [CCGT 250 MW – Yerevan /Armenia]
- Ecobarik-Audit LLC (2016): Report of Evaluation of Environmental Impact of the new Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant in Yerevan
- Geoterproject LTD (2016): Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area
- ArmPower CJSC (2017): Geological Report of Armhydroenergyproject CJSC
- Consecoard LLC (2017): Report on Monitoring Services

A **general overview** about the Project site's biophysical settings has been done based on a desktop study, including a review of the existing studies about the Project (see above) and on a field surveys. The first field survey was conducted by FICHTNER's environmental and social experts in July 2017, including visiting the proposed CCPP site. Between July 2017 and January 2018 further surveys (air, noise, soil, surface water and groundwater baseline monitoring) have been undertaken.

To obtain up-to-date data about the ground level concentrations (GLC) of air pollutants in the Project Area of Influence, and help defining the airshed as degraded or non-degraded (according to the WB EHS Guidelines), Fichtner undertook an air quality monitoring campaign including the measurement of SO₂, NO₂ and PM₁₀. For gases (SO₂ and NO₂), the Consultant performed a 7 days, a 10 days, and a 30 days campaign with diffusion tubes at five sampling points, followed by a laboratory analysis in Summer 2017, Autumn 2017 and Winter 2017/2018. The monitoring campaign will be repeated next Spring in order to cover all seasons of an annual cycle. Figure 1-2 below shows the sampling points. Measurement point Air 1 is situated in an industrial area near the southeast border of YCCPP-1. Measurement point Air 2 is placed approx. 1,700 m to the south-west of YCCPP-2; it is located near the northeast border of Avntap community. Air 1 and Air 2 are located downwind the main wind direction. Measurement point Air 3 is placed in an industrial area near the northern border of the YCCPP-2. Two additional sampling points have been defined after one test model run, being located in the areas where the highest GLC of NO₂ resulting from the operation of YCCPP-2 are expected. For particulates (PM_{10}) , the Consultant performed two 5 day campaigns and one 30 days campaign in Summer and Autumn 2017 and Winter 2017/2018. The dust concentration was measured by using the dust particle meter DT-96 in accordance with the GOST 17.2.4.05-83 - "Environmental protection. Atmosphere. Gravimetric method for determination of suspended dust particles". The equipment has collected 5 daily measurements of 5 minutes along all the days in each campaign.



Figure 1-2: Baseline Monitoring Points - Air Quality

The air quality baseline data have been used as an input for an **Air Dispersion Calculation** (ADC) whose complete report can be read in Annex 12.8. The ADC was performed using the dispersion modeling software BREEZE AERMOD, version 8.0.39 (2017), which predicts pollutant concentrations from continuous point, flare, area, line, volume and open pit sources. 3 scenarios were simulated: baseline scenario, or Scenario A; one where only YCCPP-2 is operating (Scenario B); and Scenario C for assessing cumulative impacts.

To obtain data about the existing **noise levels** in the Project Area of Influence, FICHTNER undertook a noise monitoring campaign in an area around the YCCPP-2 site at five monitoring points (Figure 1-3 below). The campaign used the Sound Level Meter WS1361, a high precision instrument in line with the International Committee TYPE 2 ANSI S1.4 and the United States National Standard TYPE 2 IEC 651. Measurement point Noise 1 is at the same location as Air 2 (see above). Measurement point Noise 2 is situated approx. 1,750 m to the west of YCCPP-2. This point is located on the eastern border of Noragavit settlement in front of the highway. Measurement points Noise 3 and Noise 5 are located in Kharberd horticultural settlement. Both points are situated along the northern border of the settlement. Noise 5 is located at a distance of approx. 1,100 m, while the distance between Noise 3 and YCCPP-2 is 1,500 m. Measurement point Noise 4 is at the same location as Air 3 (see above).



Figure 1-3: Baseline Monitoring Points - Noise

The results of the monitoring campaign were used as an input for a **Noise Propagation Study** whose complete report can be read in Annex 12.6. On the basis of the Project data, the sound contribution of the YCCPP-2 during operation at the most exposed sensors was calculated. The calculation was performed using the software SoundPlan (open field propagation simulation software) after setting the model parameters. The predictive noise pressure at the sensitive receptors has been calculated by adding the value of the background noise sound pressure to sound level contribution calculated by the model.

Soil sampling at the construction site was done in November / December 2017 for analyses of TPH, PAH, BTEX, and metals. Furthermore analysis of groundwater upstream, at the site, and downstream for content of TPH, PAH, BTEX, metals, as well as pH, mineralization, BOD5, COD-Cr was performed at the same time (see Figure 1-4 below for sampling points). An

analysis of water quality parameters of Hrazdan River upstream and downstream of the discharge point and at the discharge channel close to the discharge point was also performed.



Figure 1-4: Baseline Monitoring Points - Soil and groundwater (November 2017)

The **environmental and social impacts** of the Project are predicted in relation to the environmental and social receptors (fauna and flora, land use, residents of villages, etc.) and natural resources. This is accomplished by comparing the baseline conditions with situations ensuing when the Project is implemented. Additional information was gained by consultations of representatives of governmental organizations (e.g. Yerevan Municipality, Environmental Monitoring and Information Center at the Ministry of Nature Protection), non-governmental organizations (NGOs) and other organizations (e.g. Aarhus Centers of Armenia).

Due to the fact that there is no official international consensus on an agreed approach for **assessing the significance of impacts** on the environment, FICHTNER uses an own evaluation procedure. This transparent evaluation procedure is based upon FICHTNER's extensive experience over the last fifteen years in performing Environmental and Social Impact Assessments and has proven to be a reliable method for assessing a project's impacts on the environment. It includes identification, prediction (e.g. long or short term, direct or indirect, avoidable or unavoidable, reversible or irreversible) and evaluation of the significance of impacts based on the IFC/WorldBank guidelines and ADB Safeguard Policy Statement, as well as on legal requirements. Wherever possible, impacts are quantified. The focus of the used evaluation procedure is to decide whether the Project is likely to cause significant adverse environmental effects resulting from construction, operation, and decommissioning. The criteria used in this study for assessing negative impact significance are extent, duration and intensity. Three classes of significance/ importance are used: high, medium, or low negative. The more an impact is extended, durable or intense, the more significant/ important it will be. Significance of Impacts is mainly measured on basis of the impacted area: the more the impact has limited extent or is local, the more that impact is considered to be low. Intensity of an impact is measured based on the extent of modifications observed on the component affected by a project's activity. For a physical component, intensity of modification refers to the level of disturbance caused by the project; while for biological components, it additionally refers to specialists' value judgement that takes into consideration the ecological and social context of the relevant environment and the component's value. Regarding the duration of an impact, the construction of a power plant implies longterm impacts and temporary impacts. Long-term impacts may occur as long as the plant exists, such as aesthetic impacts. Temporary impacts occur during the construction or at less frequent intervals. The significance of an impact is therefore the result of an overall judgment on the effect of an activity of the project in regards with a component of the environment, based on the described criteria.

For the purpose of a transparent presentation and evaluation, a tabulated evaluation matrix is applied. On the basis of a point scale, the significance of the particular environmental or social impact together with its general trend - that is, negative or positive - is described. The following evaluation scale is applied:

Significance of Impact:

	=	high negative
	=	medium negative
	=	low negative
	=	nil
+	=	locally positive
++	=	regionally positive

For final judgment of the significance of an impact, international standards like standards from the World Bank, World Health Organization (WHO), etc. are used (see Section 2.3), supported by Armenian standards (see Section 2.1). According to these standards, the evaluation of impacts is done as follows (Table 1-1):

Table 1-1:	Evaluation of impacts using l	International and National Standards
------------	-------------------------------	--------------------------------------

Significance of impact	Reason
High	International and national standards are exceeded
Medium	Between international and national standards, international and national standards are barely met
Low	International and national standards are met

2. Policy, Legal and Administrative Framework

This Chapter presents the policy, legal and administrative framework for environmental and social management in the Republic of Armenia (RA), with particular reference to the provisions for conducting an ESIA. The Project will conform to applicable local/ national and international environmental and social legislation, regulations and guidelines as well as specific procedures and policies of State Authorities, the Asian Development Bank (ADB) and the International Financing Cooperation (IFC), and other available best practices. These require that an ESIA of the designed works is carried out, and the ESIA report reviewed and approved in the light of prevailing environmental and social policies and regulations.

2.1 National Requirements

Following independence in 1991, the environmental legislation was reviewed with the aim of developing a more comprehensive state policy towards ecological protection and sustainable use of resources. To this end, a series of laws have been developed, including regulations relating to protected areas, a land code (both 1991) and a forest statute (1994). From 1999 to today, a number of national laws of RA were implemented to regulate the protection of the environment. Key laws/ regulations related to the Project are given in Table 2-1 below and their relevance for the Project is indicated.

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
Decree of RA Supreme Council on Adoption of Fundamentals of the Nature Protection Legislation of RA	1991	RA nature protection policy is based on fundamentals dedicated to maintain protection and using arrangement of the natural environment in the territory of Armenia, as well as creation of the necessary legal basis to develop nature protection legislation to regulate relationships regarding mining; use and protection of forest and water, flora and fauna, atmospheric air protection.	Relevant for the Project, as this law provides fundamentals on use and protection of water, flora and fauna, as well as air protection.

Table 2-1:National laws of RA, implemented to regulate the protection of theenvironment and expropriation issues

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
RA Law on Protection of Atmospheric Air	1994	Subjects of that law are prevention and elimination of atmospheric air pollution and realization of international cooperation within protection of atmospheric air. The main legislative issues in this domain are: - maintenance of improvement of purity and quality of atmospheric air - prevention and reduction of chemical, physical, biological and other influences over atmospheric air conditions - regulation of public relationships within that sphere - strengthening of legality within that sphere.	Relevant due to the air emissions from the planned power plant
RA Law on Environmental Protection and Environmental Usage Fees	1998	 That law provides definition of environmental protection and environmental usage fees, scope of payers, types of fees, calculation and payment rules, and liabilities against breach of that law as well regulates other relationships on fee payments. Types of environmental protection fees are payments: against emission of hazardous substances at environment (air and water basin) for industrial waste and household refuse disposal within adopted regulation against environmental usage fees are payments. for water use for resources of environmental protects. 	This law is relevant for the Project regarding emissions to air and water, waste disposal and water use.

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
RA Law on Conservation and Use of Historical and Cultural Monuments and Historic Environment	1998	 The subjects of that law are: provision of legal basis within domain of protection and use of monuments and regulation of relationships, which are begotten within those activities. The main issues of that law are: envisaging of general provisions of the state policy within domain of protection and use of monuments envisaging of regulation principals of recording, conservation, research, restoration and use of monuments envisaging of authorities of the state governmental and local self-governmental bodies, legal entities and natural persons within domain of protection and use of monuments envisaging of special features of ownership rights to possess, use and dispose monuments, which are specific type of real estate. 	This law will only be relevant to the Project if during construction any historical or cultural goods will be found (Chance Find Procedure).

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
RA Law on Fauna	1999	 That law provides RA state policy regarding conservation, protection, reproduction and use of species of wild fauna. The subjects of that law are: conservation, protection, natural reproduction of genetic and species diversity prevention of infringement of comprehensiveness of animals' living environment protection of comprehensiveness of animal species, their populations and relatives protection of animals migration routes regulation of relationships regarding using of objects of fauna. Responsibilities of different organizations, including government abodies are envisaged by that law. 	As biodiversity values at the construction site and in Hrazdan River are rated to be low, this law will not be relevant for the Project
RA Law on Flora	1999	Law on flora provides RA state policy regarding approved science-based protection, conservation, use and reproduction of natural flora.	Biodiversity value at the construction site is rated to be low, thus this law will not be relevant for the Project

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
RA Land Code	2001	That Code provides legal basis of land relationships (regarding improvement of the state regulation, development of the land management in various organizational-legal forms, soil fertility, increment of the efficiency of land use, protection and improvement of favorable environment for human life and health, protection of rights to land) by taking into consideration significant environmental, economic and social essence of land, due to which the land is used and maintained as a condition of life for population in RA. According to the Code, possession, using and disposal of land must not damage the environment, security and defensibility of the state as well as must	Not relevant for the Project as no additional land will have to be acquired and no project-related relocation will occur
		not violate rights and interests of citizens and other persons that are protected by the law.	

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
RA Water Code	2002	By this legal act, the relationships regarding using of water are mainly regulated. Article 3 of the Code envisages that RA Government through appropriate state authorized bodies realizes purposes of the code, maintain water saving, protection from harmful influence, using of water for public interests aimed at conserving security of each person. Vital principals of water resources management are: - satisfaction of main vital needs of present and future generations - maintenance and increase of the volume of the national water resources - protection of water and related ecosystems and their biological diversity - recognition of complete and coherent relationship of land, air, water and biological diversity - regulation of water use through water use	Relevant for wastewater effluents from the planned power plant to surface water bodies, and for water use during operation
RA Law on Waste	2004	permission. This law shall regulate relations on waste collection, transportation, storage, processing, recycling, removal, volume reduction and other relations regarding the before mentioned activities, as well as legal and economical bases for prevention of adverse effects of waste on human health and environment.	Relevant for waste management during construction, operation, and decommissioning, as well as for handling of existing material on the site.

Law/ Policy	Year	Main scopes	Relevance for the Project
Resolution N160-N of the Government of Armenia on the approval of the normatives of environmental air polluting substances threshold limit values in residential areas	2 February 2006	This resolution defines the threshold limit values for NO ₂ and CO concentrations in residential areas.	Relevant for compliance of ground level concentrations of NO ₂ and CO produced by the emissions of YCCPP-2 with national standards
Order N27-N on determining the chemicals threshold limit values in the work zone air of workplaces of organizations	6 December 2010	This order defines the threshold limit values for NO ₂ concentration in industrial areas.	Relevant for compliance of ground level concentrations of NO ₂ produced by the emissions of YCCPP-2 with national standards
Resolution N1673-N of the Government of Armenia on defining the development and approval procedure of environmental air polluting substances emission limits normatives	27 December 2012	This resolution defines the approval procedure of environmental air polluting substances emission limits normatives, including as an annex the "Guideline of the composition and content of the emission limits values normatives" for different projects.	Defining the national limit values of emissions to be used for the Project
RA Law on Environmental Assessment and Expertise	21 June 2014	This law regulates environmental impact assessment (through legal, economic and organizational principles) of proposed activities and concepts.	Most important law for carrying out EIA studies and therefore relevant for the Project

The planned implementation of any activity in Armenia that may cause environmental impacts needs a positive conclusion of an EIA expertise. All environmental impacts of planned physical activities or sectoral/ regional development plans/ programs have to be assessed during the EIA preparation period. The **RA Law on Environmental Assessment and Expertise** of 2014 stipulates provisions regarding environmental impact assessment, realization and terms, thus being the most important national law for carrying out an EIA. In this law "*Thermo power plants, heat and hot water producing plants*" are listed requiring an EIA process.

The consequent steps for obtaining environmental approval, as set forth in the national legislation, are given below:

- Preliminary stage: During this stage preliminary information regarding the project (activity) is presented to the head(s) of the affected community(ies), and public hearings are organized by the project proponent jointly with the head(s) of community(ies). The general information about the project and the notice should be published on the websites of the project owner and the affected community(ies) or other public media seven days prior to the date of the public hearing. According to the Draft Government Decree on organization of public hearings the notice should be published on the web sites not less than 7 days prior, and the project information not less than three days before.
- 2) An application is then to be submitted to the Ministry of Nature Protection (not to the *Nature Protection Expertise* SNCO directly). This request includes general description of the project, measures for mitigation/ compensation and the results of a first public hearing organized by the community(ies) head(s) and the project owner.
- Within 30 days the Ministry of Nature Protection, 1) makes a decision about the a necessity of state environmental expertise, 2) provides an impact category to the project (e.g. a thermal power plant = Cat A),
 provides a list of activities, and volume and depth of the works for the development of an Environmental Impact Assessment Report (provides the ToRs for the EIA). Within this period, the execution of a second public hearing is needed to be jointly performed by project proponent, head(s) of affected municipality(ies) and the Ministry of Nature Protection. The same rules for dissemination as for the first public hearing shall be applied.
- 4) The Project proponent prepares the draft EIA Report and submits it to the Ministry of Nature Protection.
- 5) The next stage is the main stage of the environmental expertise. During this stage, which lasts 40 days for Projects of Category B and 60 days for those of Category A, the Ministry of Nature Protection submits the draft EIA report to all involved and specialized parties (e.g. to its departments, to the relevant departments of Academy of Science, the Ministry of Healthcare, the Ministry of Emergency Situations, State Committee for

Water Resources, etc.) as an internal procedure of the Ministry. The Project proponent is not involved in this. During this stage the Project proponent, jointly with the head(s) of community(ies) and the Ministry, organizes the 3rd public hearing, during which the whole draft EIA report is introduced to the general public. The Ministry provides all the comments and recommendations of all parties involved in the revision of the draft EIA, as well as main comments and recommendations which were arisen during the 3rd public hearing. The Project proponent either makes amendments to the draft or justifies the rejection of amendments.

- 6) At the end, the Ministry organizes the final public hearing, during which it represents all the comments and recommendations provided, the results of these comments and recommendations (if the proposed changes were adopted or not), and gives an opinion on the EIA report (approval or rejection).
- 7) Based on this, the Ministry provides the final approval or rejection of the project, signed by the Minister. Steps 5-7 are included in the total duration (40 days for Category B and 60 days for Category A).

The above procedure is generally consistent with ADB's and IFC's environmental safeguard policies. The national law requires an EIA, at the same time that it requires coverage of the social aspects of a proposed activity. This is included in this report, which is denominated ESIA and not EIA for this motive. The **National Environmental Project Approval** from the Ministry of Nature Protection has been given in July 2017 based on the national EIA and geological reports. The Approval is documented in the Conclusion: "*RA Minister of Nature Protection (11.01.2017): State Expert Examination Conclusion on Expert Examination of Influence on the Environment BP 02. Report of evaluation of influence on environment of the new power station in Yerevan with combined cycle of steam and gas"*.

ADB's and IFC's policies require that once a draft ESIA report is disclosed, sufficient time is allowed for stakeholders to get acquainted with the document prior to participating in a consultation meeting or otherwise communicating their feedback. According to ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement (2009) and ADB's Public Communication Policy (2011), a draft EIA report for a category A project shall be publicly disclosed for at least 120 days on ADB's website before Board consideration. IFC's Sustainability Framework (IFC 2012) requires a disclosure of 60 days for a category A project.

2.2 International Agreements

Armenia has ratified a number of international agreements and conventions relating to the protection of the environment and biodiversity, including:

- The Convention on the Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural Habitats (Bern)
- Convention on Wetlands of International Importance (Ramsar)
- Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn)
- Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora (Washington)
- European Landscape Convention (Florence)
- Convention Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and Natural Heritage (Paris)
- Convention on Biological Diversity (Rio de Janeiro)
- Framework Convention on Climate Change (Rio de Janeiro)
- Kyoto Protocol (linked to the Convention on Climate Change)
- Paris Agreement (linked to the Convention on Climate Change).

With special respect to handling of hazardous substances:

- Stockholm Convention "On Persistent Organic Pollutants" (ratified by the Government of the Republic of Armenia 2003)
- Basel Convention "On the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal" (being a party since 1999).

In addition Armenia is a signatory to the Aarhus Convention on Access to Information, Public Participation in Decision-Making and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters.

International agreements and conventions triggered by the Project are especially: Convention Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and Natural Heritage (if any cultural or historical goods will be found at the construction site by chance); Framework Convention on Climate Change + Kyoto Protocol and Paris Agreement (due to air emissions including GHG emissions); Stockholm Convention On Persistent Organic Pollutants + Basel Convention On the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal (due to necessary handling of hazardous material and waste); and Aarhus Convention on Access to Information, Public Participation in Decision-Making and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters (regarding all aspects of public consultations). These guidelines and conventions are the basis for related mitigation measures given in the ESMP.

2.3 International Requirements

ADB and IFC define that ESIAs shall be conducted in line with national laws and regulations as well as in line with international environmental and social safeguard standards. To this end, projects financed by these institutions must meet the respective environmental, social and disclosure policies. From the policies, the following are highlighted as of importance for the present ESIA:

- IFC Performance Standards on Social and Environmental Sustainability (IFC, 2012)
- IFC/ WB Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Guidelines (IFC, 2007)
- ADB Safeguard Policy Statement (SPS, 2009).

In sectors where no appropriate IFC/ADB policies or guidelines exist, the banks apply "good international industry practice".

2.3.1 IFC Sustainability Framework

IFC adopted eight Performance Standards (PS) on Social and Environmental Sustainability (IFC, 2012) in order to manage social and environmental risks and impacts and to enhance development opportunities.

Performance Standard 1 establishes the importance of (i) integrated assessment to identify the environmental and social impacts, risks, and opportunities of projects; (ii) effective community engagement through disclosure of project-related information and consultation with local communities on matters that directly affect them; and (iii) the client's management of environmental and social performance throughout the life of the project.

Performance Standards 2 to 8 establish objectives and requirements to avoid, minimize, and where residual impacts remain, to compensate/ offset for risks and impacts to workers, affected communities, and the environment. While all relevant environmental and social risks and potential impacts should be considered as part of the assessment, Performance Standards 2 to 8 describe potential environmental and social risks and impacts that require particular attention. Where environmental or social risks and impacts are identified, the client is required to manage them through its Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) consistent with Performance Standard 1.

A number of cross-cutting topics such as climate change, gender, human rights, and water, are addressed across multiple Performance Standards.

IFC PS 1: Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts

Performance Standard PS 1 **applies to all projects** that have environmental and social risks and impacts. It underscores the importance of managing environmental and social performance throughout the life of a project. Its objectives are:

- To identify and evaluate environmental and social risks and impacts of the project.
- To adopt a mitigation hierarchy to anticipate and avoid, or where avoidance is not possible, minimize, and, where residual impacts remain, compensate/ offset for risks and impacts to workers, affected communities, and the environment.
- To promote improved environmental and social performance of clients through the effective use of management systems.
- To ensure that grievances from affected communities and external communications from other stakeholders are responded to and managed appropriately.
- To promote and provide means for adequate engagement with affected communities throughout the project cycle on issues that could potentially affect them and to ensure that relevant environmental and social information is disclosed and disseminated.

IFC PS 2: Labor and Working Conditions

Performance Standard PS 2 recognizes that the pursuit of economic growth through employment creation and income generation should be accompanied by protection of the fundamental rights of workers. The requirements set out in PS 2 have been in part guided by a number of international conventions and instruments, including those of the International Labour Organization (ILO) and the United Nations (UN).

Its objectives are:

- To promote the fair treatment, non-discrimination, and equal opportunity of workers.
- To establish, maintain and improve the worker-management relationship.
- To promote compliance with national employment and labor laws.
- To protect workers, including vulnerable categories of workers such as children, migrant workers, workers engaged by third parties, and workers in the client's supply chain.
- To promote safe and healthy working conditions, and the health of workers.
- To avoid the use of forced labor.

Workers will be employed especially during the construction phase of the Project, thus **triggering this Performance Standard**. This PS also applies to the operational and decommissioning phases of the Project.

IFC PS 3: Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention

Performance Standard PS 3 recognizes that increased economic activity and urbanization often generate increased levels of pollution to air, water, and land, and consume finite resources in a manner that may threaten people and the environment at the local, regional, and global levels. There is also a growing global consensus that the current and projected atmospheric concentration of greenhouse gases (GHG) threatens the public health and welfare of current and future generations. PS 3 outlines a project-level approach to resource efficiency and pollution prevention and control in line with internationally disseminated technologies and practices. In addition, it promotes the ability of private sector companies to adopt such technologies and practices as far as their use is feasible in the context of a project that relies on commercially available skills and resources.

Its objectives are:

- To avoid or minimize adverse impacts on human health and the environment by avoiding or minimizing pollution from project activities.
- To promote more sustainable use of resources, including energy and water.
- To reduce Project-related GHG emissions.

As the new Combined Cycle Power Plant will have emissions to the air from burning gas for power generation and as certain amounts of waste water and different types of waste will be produced during construction, operation, and decommissioning of the plant, **this Performance Standard is triggered**.

IFC PS 4: Community Health, Safety, and Security

Performance Standard 4 recognizes that project activities, equipment, and infrastructure can increase community exposure to risks and impacts. While acknowledging the public authorities' role in promoting the health, safety, and security of the public, PS 4 addresses the client's responsibility to avoid or minimize the risks and impacts to community health, safety, and security that may arise from project related-activities, with particular attention to vulnerable groups.

Its objectives are:

- To anticipate and avoid adverse impacts on the health and safety of the affected community during the project life from both routine and non-routine circumstances.
- To ensure that the safeguarding of personnel and property is carried out in accordance with relevant human rights principles and in a manner that avoids or minimizes risks to the affected communities.

Community health, safety and security will be a topic during all phases of the Project.

IFC PS 5: Land Acquisition and Involuntary Resettlement

Performance Standard 5 recognizes that project-related land acquisition and restrictions on land use can have adverse impacts on communities and persons that use this land. Involuntary resettlement refers both to physical displacement (relocation or loss of shelter) and to economic displacement (loss of assets or access to assets that leads to loss of income sources or other means of livelihood) as a result of project-related land acquisition and/ or restrictions on land use.

Its objectives are:

- To avoid, and when avoidance is not possible, minimize displacement by exploring alternative project designs.
- To avoid forced eviction.
- To anticipate and avoid, or where avoidance is not possible, minimize adverse social and economic impacts from land acquisition or restrictions on land use by (i) providing compensation for loss of assets at replacement cost and (ii) ensuring that resettlement activities are implemented with appropriate disclosure of information, consultation, and the informed participation of those affected.
- To improve, or restore, the livelihoods and standards of living of displaced persons
- To improve living conditions among physically displaced persons through the provision of adequate housing with security of tenure at resettlement sites.

This **Performance Standard will not be triggered by the Project**, as all land necessary for the construction, operation, and decommissioning of YCCPP-2 has already been acquired. ArmPower/RENCO has entered a land purchase agreement with the seller (Yerevan Thermal Power Plant CJSC) in March 2017. According to this agreement, the Seller guarantees that the land is free of any form of occupancy or any other possession by any third party and there are no current and, to the best of its knowledge, threatened or pending actions, suits or other proceedings which may affect the Seller's rights to dispose of the Project Land, and the Purchaser's title to the Project Land. The designated purpose of the Land is "for energy, transport, communication, utility infrastructure objects", as stated in the title certificate 18042017-01-0184. A legal opinion has been emitted by an Armenian lawyers company, which stated that the preliminary agreement is legally binding and enforceable. Existing access roads will be used and no physical relocation will be necessary for implementation of the Project.

IFC PS 6: Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Management of Living Natural Resources

Performance Standard 6 recognizes that protecting and conserving biodiversity, maintaining ecosystem services, and sustainably managing living natural resources are fundamental to sustainable development. The requirements set out in PS 6 have been guided by the Convention on Biological Diversity.

Its objectives are:

- To protect and conserve biodiversity.
- To maintain the benefits from ecosystem services.
- To promote the sustainable management of living natural resources through the adoption of practices that integrate conservation needs and development priorities.

Due to air emissions from the planned power plant as well as due to the production of waste water and wastes during construction, operation, and decommissioning, this Performance Standard is **triggered by the Project**.

IFC PS 7: Indigenous Peoples

Performance Standard 7 recognizes that Indigenous Peoples, as social groups with identities that are distinct from mainstream groups in national societies, are often among the most marginalized and vulnerable segments of the population. In many cases, their economic, social, and legal status limits their capacity to defend their rights to, and interests in, lands and natural and cultural resources, and may restrict their ability to participate in and benefit from development.

Its objectives are:

- To ensure that the development process fosters full respect for the human rights, dignity, aspirations, culture, and natural resource-based livelihoods of Indigenous Peoples.
- To anticipate and avoid adverse impacts of projects on communities of Indigenous Peoples, or when avoidance is not possible, to minimize and/or compensate for such impacts.
- To promote sustainable development benefits and opportunities for Indigenous Peoples in a culturally appropriate manner.
- To establish and maintain an ongoing relationship based on Informed Consultation and Participation (ICP) with the Indigenous Peoples affected by a project throughout the project's life-cycle.
- To ensure the Free, Prior, and Informed Consent (FPIC) of the Affected Communities of Indigenous Peoples when the circumstances described in this Performance Standard are present.
- To respect and preserve the culture, knowledge, and practices of Indigenous Peoples.

This **Performance Standard will not be triggered by the Project** as no groups of Indigenous People are living in the Project Area of Influence.

IFC PS 8: Cultural Heritage

Performance Standard 8 recognizes the importance of cultural heritage for current and future generations. Consistent with the Convention Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and Natural Heritage, PS 8 aims to ensure that clients protect cultural heritage in the course of their project activities. In addition, the requirements of this PS on a project's use of cultural heritage are based in part on standards set by the Convention on Biological Diversity.

Its objectives are:

- To protect cultural heritage from the adverse impacts of project activities and support its preservation.
- To promote the equitable sharing of benefits from the use of cultural heritage.

There is no cultural heritage known to be located in the Project Area of Influence. Thus, this Performance Standard would only be **triggered** if any unexpected cultural or archeological goods were found during construction. In this case a Chance Find Procedure would take effect.

In its Sustainability Framework (IFC, 2012) IFC uses a process of environmental and social **categorization** to reflect the magnitude of a Project's risks and impacts. These categories are:

- Category A. Business activities with potential significant adverse environmental or social risks and/or impacts that are diverse, irreversible, or unprecedented.
- Category B. Business activities with potential limited adverse environmental or social irks and/or impacts that are few in number, generally site-specific, largely reversible, and readily addressed through mitigation measures.
- Category C. Business activities with minimal or no adverse environmental or social risks and/or impacts.
- Category FI. Business activities involving investments in FIs or through delivery mechanisms involving financial intermediation.

According to IFC's Sustainability Framework (2012) the Project falls into environmental **Category A**, due to its likelihood of causing significant adverse environmental impacts by air pollution. Thus the Project requires an ESIA.

2.3.2 IFC/ World Bank EHS Guidelines

The IFC/ WB Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Guidelines are technical reference documents with general and industry-specific examples of Good International Industry Practice (GIIP). The General EHS Guidelines contain a series of specific guidelines for different projects. They are designed to be used together with the relevant Industry Sector EHS Guidelines which provide guidance to users on EHS issues in specific industry sectors. The EHS Guidelines contain the performance levels and measures that are generally considered to be achievable in new facilities by existing technology at reasonable costs. When host country regulations differ from the levels and measures presented in the EHS Guidelines, projects are expected to achieve whichever is more stringent.

The specific guidelines applicable to this Project are the following:

- IFC/World Bank Group General EHS Guidelines (2007)
- IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Electric Power Transmission and Distribution (2007)
- IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008)

2.3.3 ADB Safeguard Policy Statement

The ADB requires environmental assessment of all project loans, program loans, sector loans, sector development program loans, financial intermediation loans, and private sector investment operations. Environmental assessment is a process rather than a one-time report, and includes necessary environmental analyses and environmental management planning that take place throughout the project cycle.

The objectives of ADB's safeguards are to:

- avoid adverse impacts of projects on the environment and affected people, where possible;
- minimize, mitigate, and/or compensate for adverse project impacts on the environment and affected people when avoidance is not possible; and
- help borrowers/clients to strengthen their safeguard systems and develop the capacity to manage environmental and social risks.

ADB's SPS (2009) sets out the policy objectives, scope and triggers, and principles for three key safeguard areas:

- environmental safeguards,
- involuntary resettlement safeguards, and
- Indigenous Peoples safeguards.

ADB staff, through their due diligence, review, and supervision, will ensure that borrowers/clients comply with safeguard requirements during project

FICHTNER

preparation and implementation. These safeguard requirements are as follows:

- Safeguard Requirements 1: Environment,
- Safeguard Requirements 2: Involuntary Resettlement,
- Safeguard Requirements 3: Indigenous Peoples, and
- Safeguard Requirements 4: Special Requirements for Different Finance Modalities.

ADB uses a classification system to reflect the significance of a project's potential impacts through three types of impacts of the proposed projects: environmental impacts, probable involuntary resettlement and potential impacts on Indigenous Peoples. ADB categorizes projects separately under environmental and social impacts.

- Category A. A proposed project is classified as category A if it is likely to have significant involuntary resettlement impacts, significant impacts on Indigenous Peoples and/or significant adverse environmental impacts that are irreversible, diverse, or unprecedented. These impacts may affect an area larger than the sites or facilities subject to physical works. An environmental impact assessment (EIA), including an environmental management plan (EMP), an Indigenous Peoples plan (IPP), including assessment of social impacts and a resettlement plan, including assessment of social impacts are required, if the Project is categorized A both under environmental and social impacts.
- Category B. A proposed project is classified as category B if it includes involuntary resettlement impacts that are not deemed significant, if it is likely to have limited impacts on Indigenous Peoples, and/or if its potential adverse environmental impacts are less adverse than those of category A projects. These impacts are site-specific, few if any of them are irreversible, and in most cases mitigation measures can be designed more readily than for category A projects. An initial environmental examination (IEE), including an EMP, a resettlement plan, including assessment of social impacts and an IPP, including assessment of social impacts.
- Category C. A proposed project is classified as category C if it has no involuntary resettlement impacts, if it is not expected to have impacts on Indigenous Peoples, and if it is likely to have minimal or no adverse environmental impacts. An EIA or IEE is not required, although environmental implications need to be reviewed.
- Category FI. A proposed project is classified as category FI if it involves the investment of ADB funds to, or through, a financial intermediary.

A project's category is determined by the category of its most environmentally sensitive component, including direct, indirect, induced, and cumulative impacts, its most sensitive component in terms of involuntary resettlement impacts and its most sensitive component in terms of impacts on Indigenous Peoples. The Project subject to this ESIA is classified as of **Category A** for environment, as impacts will affect an area larger than the site itself (due to air and water pollution). Neither resettlement impacts, nor impacts on Indigenous Peoples are expected. Thus, the Project is categorized as Category C for Involuntary Resettlement and Category C for Indigenous Peoples. An ESMP is included in Section 9.8.

Detailed guidance on environmental and social management of the Project, as well as on ESIA and ESMP preparation is provided in ADB's Safeguards Requirements 1 to 3 in appendices 1 to 3 of ADB's SPS. As a summary, the following items are of importance for the Project and are included in this report:

- Analysis of alternatives;
- Appropriate environmental and social baseline data;
- All potential impacts and risks of the project on physical, biological, socioeconomic (occupational health and safety, community health and safety, vulnerable groups and gender issues, and impacts on livelihoods through environmental media) and physical cultural resources in an integrated way and in the context of the project's area of influence;
- Preparation of an environmental management plan (EMP) including:
- proposed mitigation and compensation measures, environmental monitoring and reporting requirements, emergency response procedures, related institutional or organizational arrangements, capacity development and training measures, implementation schedule, cost estimates, and performance indicators;
- Principles to monitor and measure the progress of implementation of the EMP;
- Information Disclosure, Consultation and Participation;
- A Grievance Redress Mechanism;
- Application of pollution prevention and control technologies and practices consistent with international good practice;
- Occupational and Community H&S.

Still according to ADB's SPS (2009), an EIA report includes the following major elements: (i) executive summary, (ii) policy, legal and administrative framework, (iii) description of the project, (iv) description of the environment (with comprehensive baseline data), (v) anticipated environmental impacts and mitigation measures, (vi) analysis of alternatives, (vii) environmental management plan(s), (viii) consultation and information disclosure, (ix) grievance redress mechanism, and (x) conclusion and recommendations.

2.3.4 Other Relevant Guidelines

Other international guidelines relevant for the Project are:

- EU EIA-Directive (2011/92/EU amended by Directive 2014/52/EU)
- EU Directive 2013/35/EC on the minimum health and safety requirements regarding the exposure of workers to the risks arising from physical agents (electromagnetic fields)
- EU Directive 2008/98/EC on waste (Waste Framework Directive)
- ICNIRP (International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection): Guidelines for Limiting Exposure to time-varying Electric, Magnetic, and Electromagnetic Fields (up to 300 GHz)

The three named EU Directives are for comparison of the Project's necessities on EU level. The ICNIRP Guidelines are triggered by the Project due to possible exposure or workers to electric, magnetic and electromagnetic fields. These Guidelines are the basis for the development of the related mitigation measures in the ESMP.

2.4 Environmental Standards

This Section presents a summary of the environmental standards applicable to the project, including national, international and performance guarantee standards/limits. The standards are to be applied according to the ESMP's instructions.

Receptor	One Hour L _{Aeq (dB A)}		
	Daytime 7:00 – 22:00	Night-time 22:00 – 7:00	
Residential; institutional; educational	55	45	
Industrial; commercial	70	70	
Noise impacts should not exceed the levels given above, or result in a maximum			

Table 2-2:Limit values for noise regarding population (IFC/WB General EHSGuidelines)

increase in background levels of 3 dB (A) at the nearest receptor location off-site.

Table 2-3:Limit values for noise regarding population (Sanitary Norm N2-III-11.3)

Receptor	One Hour L _{Aeq (dB A)}		
	Daytime 7:00 – 22:00	Night-time 22:00 – 7:00	
Residential areas	55	45	
Industrial activities/buildings	ies/buildings 80		
The limits refer to the total environment noise (the power plant contribution + the current sound pressure ("ante operam" sound pressure))			

Table 2-4:Limit values for noise regarding workers

IFC/WB General EHS Guidelines:

No employee should be exposed to a noise level greater than 85 dB (A) for a duration of more than 8 hours per day without hearing protection'.

Armenian legislation:

Construction workers will wear ear protection devices as part of their Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), if they are exposed to noise levels higher than 80 dB (A).

Table 2-5: Performance Guarantees of YCCPP-2 - noise (ArmPower, 2017)

The average A-weighted sound pressure level of the turbine halls 1.5 m above ground level and at 1 m from the turbine installation shall not exceed 80 dB(A).

The A-weighted sound pressure level of the overall plant at the plant boundary 1.5 m above ground will not exceed 50 dB(A) the noise occurring in the free field (before construction is started).

A maximum of 3 dB(A) measured as incremental noise from the base line measured before plant is completed at plant fence

Table 2-6:IFC air emission guidelines for facilities larger than 50 MW with
combustion turbines (IFC, 2008)

Pollutant	EG for combustion turbines; facilities > 50 MWth	
	Natural Gas	
NO ₂	51 mg/Nm3	
Dry gas, excess O ₂ content	15%	
Temperature flue gas	0°C	

Table 2-7:Performance Guarantees for YCCPP-2 - air emissions (ArmPower,2017)

Pollutant	Performance Guarantees
СО	30 mg/Nm3
NO ₂	51 mg/Nm3
UHC	10 mg/Nm3
Dry gas, excess O ₂ content	15%
Temperature flue gas	0°C
Load	From 60% to 100%

UHC: Unburned Hydrocarbons

Pollutant		Averaging period	Air Quality Standards [µg/m³]	
			National MAC	ECD
СО		Short-time	5,000	-
		24 hours	3,000	-
		Max. daily 8 hour mean	-	10,000
NO ₂		1 hour	-	200 Not to be exceeded more than 18 times per year
		Short-time for residential areas	200	-
		Short-time for industrial areas	2,000	-
		24 hours	40	-
		1 year	-	40
	Methane	-	-	-
	Ethane	-	-	-
	Propane	-	-	-
one	Butane	Short-time	200,000	-
	Pentane	Short-time	100,000	-
		24 hours	25,000	-
PM10		Maximum	300	-
		24 hours	60	50 Not to be exceeded more than 35 times per year
		1 year	-	40
SO ₂		Maximum	500	-
		1 hour	-	350 Not to be exceeded more than 24 times per year
		24 hours	50	125 Not to be exceeded more than 3 times per year

Table 2-8: National and ECD Ambient Air Quality Standards

ECD: European Council Directives UHC: Unburned Hydrocarbons

MAC: Maximum Allowable Concentration

The ECD 2008/50/EC does not set a limit for the type of UHC that are expected from natural gas operation (methane, ethane, propane, butane, and pentane). The limits shown in Table 3-3 for butane and pentane are based on the national legislation, but seem to be overly permissive. In fact, the national air quality monitoring network does not measure hydrocarbons (WHO, 2003), for what there is not a real experience on the application of the standards for UHC. Given this, these standards will are not be used in the present ADC, and focus will beis provided on CO and NO2.

Although PM_{10} and SO_2 are not expected to be emitted by the YCCPP - 2, these standards are mentioned as they are of importance for the air quality baseline assessment.

It shall be noted that the national MAC for 24 hr NO2 of 40 μ g/m³ corresponds to the ECD limit for annual averages. This shows implies that this national MAC is very stringent when compared to the international standards.

According to the RA Regulation Nr. 1673-N of 27 December 2012, to determine the specific emission limits for projects such as power plants, an air dispersion calculation shall be undertaken that evaluates the compliance with the short time MACs. The short time MAC for CO is 5,000 μ g/m³ and for NO₂ is 200 μ g/m³ (for residential areas). Therefore, in what regards compliance with national requirements, focus is only provided in this study to the short-time MACs (see also Annex 12.12 for the legal background on this particular issue). To evaluate compliance with international requirements, compliance with all applicable ECD air quality standards is also assessed.

Industrial Effluent Conditions as given in ArmPower Design Data, **Table 2-9:** Effluent Standards for YCCPP-1 set by MNP, and applicable Effluent Guidelines for wastewater from thermal power plants (Source: IFC/WB EHS Guidelines for **Thermal Power Plants)**

	mg/l (except pH, temp. and total coliform bacteria)			
Parameter	Effluent conditions as given in ArmPower Design Data	Effluent Standards for operation of YCCPP-1	IFC/WB Effluent Guidelines (to be applicable at relevant wastewater streams) ⁴	
рН	6.5 - 8.5	6.5 - 8.5	6 – 9	
Total suspended solids	50	40	50	
Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD)	6	6		
Chemical oxygen demand (COD)	30	30		
Dissolved O ₂	> 4	> 4		
Smells, odors	1 level	should not exist		
Coloring	shall not exist in 10 cm column	shall not exist in 10 cm column		
Oil	10	0.3	10	
Cu	0.1	0.1	0.5	
Fe	0.5	0.3	1.0	
Chlorides		350		
Sulfates		500		
Total coliform bacteria		<1000 MPN/l	4000 MPN/l*	
Temperature increase by thermal discharge from cooling system		Temperature of waste water: 5° C – 23° C	< 3°C increase of ambient water temperature [*]	

* according to IFC/World Bank Group General EHS Guidelines

MPN = Most Probable Number

⁴ as defined in IFC/WB EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008): Effluent guidelines (to be applicable at the relevant wastewater stream: e.g. from FGD system, wet ash transport, washing boiler / air preheater and precipitator, boiler acid washing, regeneration of demineralizers and condensate polishers, oil-separated water, site drainage, coal pile runoff, and cooling water)
Parameter	Unit	IFC/WB Effluent Guidelines
pН	pН	6-9
BOD	mg/l	30
COD	mg/l	125
Total N	mg/l	10
Total Ph	mg/l	2
Oil and grease	mg/l	10
Total suspended solids	mg/l	50
Total coliform bacteria	MPN*/100 ml	400

Table 2-10:Guideline values for Sanitary Sewage Discharges (Source: IFC/WBGeneral EHS Guidelines)

*MPN = Most Probable Number

Table 2-11: Dutch Standards for groundwater	r quality (Soil Remediation Circular,
2009)	

Substance	Dutch Standards		
Substance	Target value [µg/l]	Intervention value [µg/l]	
Antimony (Sb)	0.15	20	
Arsenic (As)	10	60	
Barium (Ba)	50	625	
Beryllium (Be)	0.05	15	
Cadmium (Cd)	0.4	6	
Chromium (Cr)	1	30	
Cobalt (Co)	20	100	
Copper (Cu)	15	75	
Nickel (Ni)	15	75	
Lead (Pb)	15	75	
Molybdenum (Mo)	5	300	
Selenium (Se)	0.07	160	
Tin (Sn)	2.2	50	
Vanadium (V)	1.2	70	
Zinc (Zn)	65	800	

	German Standards		
Substance	BBodSchG [µg/l]	GrwV [µg/l]	
Arsenic (As)	10	10	
Cadmium (Cd)	5	0.5	
Chromium (Cr)	50		
Cobalt (Co)	50		
Copper (Cu)	50		
Nickel (Ni)	50		
Lead (Pb)	25	10	
Molybdenum (Mo)	50		
Selenium (Se)	10		
Tin (Sn)	40		
Zinc (Zn)	500		
BETX	20		
Benzol	1		
ТРН	200		
РАН	0.2		

 Table 2-12:
 German Standards for groundwater quality

Demonster	I	Water Quality Standards and Classes				
Parameter	Unit	Ι	II *	III	IV	V
pН	-	6.5 - 9	6.5 - 9	6.5 - 9	6.5 - 9	<6.5/>9
Dissolved oxygen	mg O ₂ /l	>7	>6	>5	>4	<4
Mineralization	mg/l	74	148	1000	1500	>1500
BOD ₅	$mg \ O_2/l$	3	5	9	18	>18
Lithium	µg/l	-	-	-	<2500	>2500
Beryllium	μg/l	0.014	0.028	0.056	100	>100
Boron	µg/l	9	450	700	1000	>2000
Natrium	mg/l	5	10	20	40	>40
Magnesium	mg/l	2,8	50	100	200	>200
Aluminum	µg/l	65	130	260	5000	>5000
Total phosphorus	mg/l	0.025	0.2	0.4	1	>1
Potassium	mg/l	1.5	3.0	6.0	12.0	>12.0
Calcium	mg/l	9.7	100	200	300	>300
Vanadium	µg/l	1	2	4	8	>8
Chrome	μg/l	1.0	11.0	100	250	>250
Iron	mg/l	0.08	0.16	0.5	1	>1
Manganese	μg/l	5	10	20	40	>40
Cobalt	μg/l	0.14	0.28	0.56	1.12	>1.12
Nickel	µg/l	1.0	11.0	50	100	>100
Copper	μg/l	3.0	23.0	50	100	>100
Zinc	μg/l	3.0	100	200	500	>500
Arsen	μg/l	0.13	20	50	100	>100
Selene	μg/l	0.5	20	40	80	>80
Molybdenum	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56
Cadmium	μg/l	0.02	1.02	2.02	4.02	>4.02
Tin	μg/l	0.09	0.18	0.36	0.72	>0.72
Antimony	µg/l	0.2	0.38	0.76	1.52	>1.52
Barium	μg/l	9	18	36	1000	>1000
Lead	µg/l	0.3	10.3	25	50	>50

 Table 2-13:
 Water quality comparative data - RA Decision N75-N (2014)

* The Scale Value "II" is considered as the Armenian Surface Water Quality Standard; the other values are used as a reference for classifying the water into levels.

	Dutch Standards		
Substance	Target value [mg/kg]	Intervention value [mg/kg]	
Arsenic (As)	29	55	
Barium (Ba)	160	625	
Cadmium (Cd)	0.8	12	
Chromium (Cr)	100	380	
Cobalt (Co)	9	240	
Copper (Cu)	36	190	
Nickel (Ni)	35	210	
Lead (Pb)	85	530	
Molybdenum (Mo)	3	200	
Selenium (Se)	0.7	100	
Tin (Sn)	-	900	
Vanadium (V)	42	250	
Zinc (Zn)	140	720	

Table 2-14: Dutch Standards for soil quality (Soil Remediation Circular, 2009)

Table 2-15:Maximum allowable concentrations (MAC) of chemical substances in
soil (Sanitary norms and rules N 2.1.7.003-10)

Substance	Maximum Allowable Concentration [mg/kg]
Vanadium (V)	150
Mercury (Hg)	2.1
Antimony (Sb)	4.5
Cobalt (Co)	5.0
Manganese (Mn)	400 – 700 (depending on pH)
Copper (Cu)	3
Nickel (Ni)	4
Lead (Pb)	6
Zinc (Zn)	23
Chromium (Cr)	6

Category of contamination	Summary indicator of contamination	Proposals for land use
"Clean"	-	Using without any limitation
"Permissible" (allowable)	Less than 16	Use without restriction, with the exception of high vulnerability objects: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains
Moderately dangerous	16 - 32	For filling of trenches and pits during construction, in the areas intended for landscaping, adding 0.2m layer of clean ground
Dangerous	32 - 128	Restricted use for the filling of scrapers during construction, adding no less than 0.5m layer of clean ground. In the event of an epidemic hazard, by the recommendation of the hygienic anti- epidemic supervision body, disinfection (dezinvasion) is carried out with further laboratory supervision.
Extremely dangerous	More than 128	Transfer and handling in special polygons. In the event of an epidemic hazard, by the recommendation of the hygienic anti-epidemic supervision body, disinfection (disinvasion) is carried out with further laboratory supervision.

Table 2-16:Proposals for land use based on the degree of pollution (Annex to the
Sanitary norms and rules N 2.1.7.003-10)

The "Indicator of Contamination" described in the table above is established by the Armenian Decision N 1227-N "On establishment of technical regulations for general requirements for protection of lands from pollution, list of substances polluting the lands, and assessment of level of land pollution". It is calculated as follows (see also Annex 12.10 for the legal framework on this issue):

 $\label{eq:Indicator} \textit{Indicator of Contamination} = \frac{\textit{Average concentration}}{\textit{National MAC}}$

Source	El. Field strength [V/m]	Magn. flux density [µT]
ICNIRP recommends for 50/60 Hz:		
Reference levels for exposure to time-varying electric and magnetic fields (unperturbed r.m.s. values)		
occupational exposure	10,000	500
general public exposure	5,000	100
Limit values according to the European Directive <u>2013/35/EC</u> exposure of workers	10,000	500

 Table 2-17:
 Limits defined by ICNIRP to manage human exposure to electric and magnetic fields

r.m.s. = root mean square (value)

ICNIRP=International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection

These limits also conform to the values given in European Directive 2013/35/EC for the exposure of workers. In some countries of the former USSR a formula is used to calculate the allowed exposure time of workers, that is:

- $T_{[hrs]} = 50/E 2$
- E = electric field [kV/m]

That means that the exposure time in an electric field of 25 kV/m is 0 hrs. Working in an electric field of 25 kV/m or more is not allowed without special protecting clothing.

2.5 Gap Analysis between National and International Legislation

The legal framework of the Republic of Armenia does in the essence correspond with the international regulations and safeguards. Gaps however do exist in enforcement of the regulations. There is still a considerable lack of institutional capacities for implementation, monitoring and evaluation.

There have been improvements during recent years, compared to the analysis of CENN (2004) on Effectiveness of Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) System in Armenia, but some problematic issues still persist. There is a lack of specific Social and Environmental (S&E) qualification of governmental staff and a specific S&E department does often not exist in the implementing institutions, partly the existing structures are overloaded with work and staff is not sufficiently remunerated. In some cases, power relations are unfavorable to guarantee an effective enforcement. To some extent, the number of highly qualified staff is not sufficient to cope with the amount of work to guarantee an effective enforcement of the regulations.

The lack of access to legal support and lack of trust in the institutions, especially for weaker sections of the society may create further gaps concerning implementation of compensation and resettlement. Additional training would be a necessity but however not sufficient component to improve implementation and monitoring performance. Compliance with international safeguards could be increased with independent monitoring by internationally experienced auditors/ consultants.

The following tables have been prepared for comparison of the IFC Performance Standards (2012), the concerning conventions stipulated by the International Labor Organization (ILO), and the related IFC/ WB General EHS Guidelines (2007), as well as the EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008) with the current legislation of the Republic of Armenia (RA).

The Performance Standards are to be cross-read and refer to each other. Only applicable standards have been considered. Additionally, the concerning international conventions ratified by Armenia are considered, as they are converted into a constituent part of the legal system of RA. The focus was laid on the project relevant guidelines and laws. The relevant Armenian Legislation was compiled by national legal experts.

The comparison results in the following conclusions:

- The Constitution has the supreme legal force in Armenia. Article 6 sets the keystones of the Armenian Legislation, stipulating that laws shall conform to the Constitution, whereas other legal acts (mainly Decrees of the President and Decisions of the Government) have to conform both to the Constitution and the laws.
- International agreements come into force after being ratified or approved, being then converted into a constituent part of the legal system of the Republic of Armenia. They supersede Armenian Legislature. International agreements not complying with the Constitution cannot be ratified.
- The Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014) defines the framework for the Project, covering environmental and social aspects of the proposed activities.
- In Armenia, the Labor Code is the general legal act that regulates labor relationship. The specific features for regulating particular spheres of labor relations may be determined by other laws.
- The IFC Performance Standard 2 on Labor and Working Conditions is based on a number of international conventions and instruments, including those of the International Labor Organization (ILO) and the United Nations (UN). All of them are ratified by the Republic of Armenia, except "UN - International Convention on the Protection of the Rights of All Migrant Workers and Members of Their Families", which has only been signed and ratification is still pending.
- The remaining IFC Performance Standards are covered by a range of Laws, Government Decisions, Decrees and Orders.

As can be seen in the following tables, there are no known significant gaps relevant for the Project, i.e, the related national legislation addresses the requirements of the IFC Performance Standards (2012).

Covering the IFC Performance Standards does also imply adherence to the ADB Safeguard Requirements as given in the ADB Safeguard Policy Statement (SPS 2009).

IFC Performance Standard 1 and related Armenian Legislation

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 1 - Assessment and Management of Environmental Ris	ks and Impacts	
Conduct a social and environmental assessment and establish and maintain an Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) including:		Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014)
Policy, Identification of risks and impacts, Management programs, Organizational capacity and competency, Emergency preparedness, Monitoring and Review, Stakeholder engagement, External Communication and Grievance Mechanisms for Affected Communities.		
The Impact assessment and the ESMS apply to all the project activities. Corresponding details are given for each applicable Performance Standard.		

IFC Performance Standard 2 and related Armenian Legislation

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 2 - Labor and Working Conditions		
Social risks and impacts are assessed and necessary actions are managed through the ESMS (see Performance Standard 1). The scope of application is direct workers (engaged by the client) as well as contracted workers (engaged by third parties).		 Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014); covering environmental and social aspects of proposed activities "Civil relationship contracts" with third parties (companies providing appropriate services, having appropriate certificates and licenses required by RA law) can be signed. Within those contracts parties may envisage necessary requirements.
Provide reasonable working Conditions and Terms of Employment (eventually regarding collective bargaining agreements)	 ILO – Convention On Collective Bargaining 	 RA Constitution, Article 48 RA Labor Code, Article 2 and 3 RA Constitution, Article 35 : special protection for maternity RA Government Decree N201-N (2007): schedule features of work and rest for workers of power supply sector. RA Government Decree N1223-N (2005): workers that can be involved in works with 24 hours working day

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 2 - Labor and Working Conditions		
Provide workers with documented information (clear and understandable) regarding national labor and employment laws	EHS - 2.2 Communication and Training	RA Labor Code Chapter 7, Article 43
If accommodation services are provided, a reasonable policy regarding their quality is provided		 There is no equivalent requirement within RA legislation. Employer pays employee for accommodation during business trip according to RA Government Decree N2335-N (2005)
Compliance with national law regarding workers' Organizations, adequate collaboration with their representatives	ILO – Convention on Freedom of Association and Protection of the Right to Organise	RA Labor Code Chapter 3
Assure non-discrimination and equal opportunity to all the workers (regarding age, origin, gender, health etc., in concern to employment, wages, benefits, etc.), compliance with national laws regarding this concern	 ILO - Convention on Discrimination in Respect of Employment and Occupation ILO - Convention on Equal Remuneration for Men and Women Workers ILO - Convention on Labor Inspection 	 RA Constitution, Article 32 RA Labor Code Chapter 19, Article 180: Organization of Remuneration for Work RA Law on Remuneration (2003) RA Labor Code Chapter 5: control and supervision over compliance with labor legislation
Retrenchment only after an analysis of possible alternatives, a timely notice of dismissal and after elaboration of a retrenchment plan, considering pack pays and social security benefits		RA Labor Code Chapter 15
Provision of a Grievance Mechanism for workers	ILO - Convention on Labor Administration	 If the right of the employee is breached, a claim can be submitted to the court Some mechanisms can be envisaged by collective agreement as well. However, collective agreement will not deter an employee to submit a claim to the court. An employee may submit any grievance to employer for consideration and hearing. Also, grievance mechanisms may be stipulated by collective agreement.
Not employ children in any manner that is economically exploitative or could be harmful to them	 ILO - Convention on Worst Forms of Child Labor ILO - Convention On Minimum Age UN - Convention on the Rights of the Child 	RA Constitution, Article 32
Not employ forced labor	 ILO - Convention on the Forced Labor ILO - Convention on Abolition of Forced Labor 	RA Constitution, Article 32

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 2 - Labor and Working Conditions		
Occupational Health and Safety: provide a safe and healthy work environment	 EHS - 2.3 Physical Hazards EHS - 2.4 Chemical Hazards EHS - 2.7 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) EHS - 2.8 Special Hazard Environments EHS - 2.9 Monitoring EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants: 1.2 Occupational Health and Safety ICNIRP Guidelines for Limiting Exposure to time-varying Electric, Magnetic, and Electromagnetic Fields 	 RA Constitution, Article 32: right to working conditions in compliance with the safety and hygiene requirements RA Labor Code Chapter 23 RA Government Decree N1698-N (2010): heavy, harmful, especially heavy and especially harmful productions, works, professions and positions.

IFC Performance Standard 3 and related Armenian Legislation

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 3 - Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention		
The principles and techniques applied during the project life- cycle will be tailored to the hazards and risks associated with the nature of the project and consistent with good international industry practice (see Performance Standard 1)		 Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014) RA Constitution, Article 10
Resource Efficiency (Greenhouse Gases): Implement technically and financially feasible and cost- effective options to reduce project-related GHG-emissions during design and operation (e.g. reduction of fugitive emissions)	 EHS - 1.1 Air Emissions and Ambient Air Quality EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants: 1.1 Air Emissions, GHG Emissions Convention on Climate Change (+ Kyoto Protocol, Paris Agreement) 	 RA Law on Protection of Atmospheric Air (1994) RA Decree No. 160-N: Norms of maximum permissible concentrations of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 3 - Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention		
Resource Efficiency (Water Consumption): adopt measures that avoid or reduce water usage so that the project's water consumption does not have significant adverse impacts on others	 EHS - 1.3 Wastewater and Ambient Water Quality EHS - 1.4 Water Conservation EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants: 1.1 Water Consumption, Effluents 	 RA Water Code (2002) The RA Law On National Water Program" The RA Law "On the Fundamentals of National Water Policy (2005) RA Government Decision N 1147-N (2005): On the Regulations of Defining Water Standards RA Government Decision N 982-N (2003): On Approving the Procedure for Use of Absorbent Pits, Exhausted Mines and Open Shafts for Discharge of Wastewater and Drainage Water and Outflow Permission RA Government Decision N 75-N (2011): On Defining the Norms for Securing Water Quality of Each Basin Management Area Depending on the Features of the Specific Area RA Government Decision N 118-N (2010) "On Defining The Measures for Application of Advanced Technologies, Improvement of Monitoring, Reduction and Prevention of Pollution of Water Resources" RA Government Decision N 354-N (2003)" On Approving the Procedure for Determination of Quantities and Regimes of Water intake from Water Resources for Water Users" Order of RA Minister of Nature Protection N 464-N (2003) "On Approving the Methodology of Calculation of Allowed Marginal Outflow Quantities Discharged onto Water Resources"
Resource Efficiency (Waste): Generation of waste is avoided where possible. If not, reduction and reuse are considered. Where waste cannot be recovered or reused, the client will treat, destroy, or dispose of it in an environmentally sound manner	 EHS - 1.6 Waste Management EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants: 1.1 Solid Wastes 	 RA Law "On Waste" (2004) RA Law "On Refuse Collection and Sanitary Cleaning" RA Government Decision No 47-N "On Defining Procedure for Waste Passportization (2006) Order No 19-N of RA Minister of Nature Protection(2007): On Defining the Form of Sample Passport of Waste Order No 342-N of RA Minister of Nature Protection (2006): On Approving the List of Industrial (Including Mining) and Consumption Waste Generated in the Territory of the Republic of Armenia Order N 430-N of RA Ministry of Nature Protection (2006): On Defining the List of Waste Classified by Risk Level Order No 112-N (2002) of the Ministry of Nature Protection

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 3 - Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention		
Resource Efficiency (Hazardous Materials Management): If the generated waste is considered hazardous, the client will adopt alternatives for its environmentally sound disposal while adhering to the limitations applicable to its transboundary movement. The production, transportation, handling, storage, and use of hazardous materials for project activities should be assessed	 EHS - 1.5 Hazardous Materials Management EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants: 1.1 Hazardous Materials and Oil Stockholm Convention "On Persistent Organic Pollutants" (ratified 2003) Basel Convention "On the Control of Transboundary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal" (being a party since 1999) 	 RA Government Decision No 874-N (2004) On Approving the List of Hazardous Wastes of the Republic of Armenia Government Decree N97(1995): "Regulating the Import, Export and Transboundary Movement of Hazardous and Other Types of Waste in the Territory of the Republic of Armenia" RA Government Decision N 546-N (2015): On Approving the Technical Regulation for Lubrication Substances, Oil and Special Liquids Decree No 1483-N On Fulfillment of the obligations of the Republic of Armenia proceeding from UN Stockholm Convention

IFC Performance Standard 4 and related Armenian Legislation

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 4 - Community Health, Safety, and Security		
The client will identify risks and impacts and propose mitigation measures that are commensurate with their nature and magnitude. These measures will favor the avoidance of risks and impacts over minimization (see Performance Standard 1)	 EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants: 1.3 Community Health and Safety 	Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014); covering environmental and social aspects of proposed activities
Design, construction, operation, and decommission of the structural elements or components is done considering safety risks to third parties or Affected Communities	 EHS - 3.2 Structural Safety of Project Infrastructure EHS - 3.3 Life and Fire Safety (L&FS) 	The Law of the RA On Fire Safety (2001)
Potential for community exposure to hazardous materials and substances that may be released will be avoided or minimized	EHS - 3.5 Transport of Hazardous Materials	 RA Law On Waste (2004) chapter 2, article 9 Order N 20-N of the Minister of Healthcare (2009): On Defining Sanitary Rules and Norms N 2.1.7.001-09 "Hygienic Requirements to the Management of Hazardous Waste and Storage and Transportation of Hazardous Chemical Substances" RA Government Decision N 546-N (2015): On Approving the Technical Regulation for Lubrication Substances, Oil and Special Liquids

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 4 - Community Health, Safety, and Security		
Identify risks and potential impacts on priority ecosystem services (incl. those that may be exacerbated by climate change). Adverse impacts should be avoided, and if these impacts are unavoidable, the client will implement mitigation measures	EHS - 3.1 Water Quality and Availability	RA Government Decision N 927-N (2011) "On Defining Assessments of the Demand of Water Used for Drinking- Household and Agricultural Purposes as well as Environmental Flows for Water Basin Areas of the Republic of Armenia"
Emergency Preparedness and Response to concerns of Affected Communities, local government agencies, and other relevant parties	EHS - 3.7 Emergency Preparedness and Response	The Law of the RA On Protection of the Population in Emergency Situations (1998)

IFC Performance Standard 6 and related Armenian Legislation

IFC Performance Standard	Ratified International Treaties (ILO / EHS guidelines)	Armenian Legislation
PS 6 - Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Manager	nent of Living Natural Resources	
Any significant residual impact must be assessed including: Relevant threats to biodiversity and ecosystem services, especially focusing on habitat loss, degradation and fragmentation, invasive alien species, overexploitation, hydrological changes, nutrient loading, and pollution. It will also take into account the differing values attached to biodiversity and ecosystem services by Affected Communities and, where appropriate, other stakeholders. (see Performance Standard 1)		Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014)
Impacts on biodiversity and ecosystem services will be avoided where possible. If not avoidable, the impacts will be minimized and mitigation measures that aim to maintain the value and functionality of priority services will be implemented	 Convention on the Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural Habitats (Bern) Convention on Wetlands of International Importance (Ramsar) Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn) Convention on Biological Diversity (Rio de Janeiro) 	 RA Constitution, Article 10 Law of the Republic of Armenia on Environmental Assessment and Expertise (2014) RA Government Decision N 927-N (2011) "On Defining Assessments of the Demand of Water Used for Drinking- Household and Agricultural Purposes as well as Environmental Flows for Water Basin Areas of the Republic of Armenia"

3. Description of the Project

3.1 Summary Technical Description

A combined-cycle plant produces electricity and captures waste heat from the gas turbine to increase efficiency and electrical output (see Figure 3-1). The compressed air is mixed with fuel that is heated to a very high temperature. The hot air-fuel mixture then moves through the gas turbine blades, making them spin. A generator is driven by the fast-spinning turbine and converts the spinning-energy partly into electricity. A Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG) captures exhaust heat from the gas turbine that would otherwise escape through the exhaust stack. The heat is used to produce high pressure steam which is delivered to the steam turbine to produce additional electricity. In a multi-shaft CCPP, in contrary to a singleshaft CCPP, each gas turbine and each steam turbine has its own generator.



Figure 3-1: General design of a Combined Cycle Power Plant⁵

Sophisticated design will minimize operational and maintenance working load and so increase the reliability and availability of the total plant. For optimizing the layout of the new power plant, coordinated building and plant area location and orientation are considered to minimize influences due to meteorological conditions and to realize better accessibility during construction, installation and maintenance. Special attention is paid to the power plant internal roads, interconnecting route and access requirements for construction, erection, operation and maintenance to minimize interference and crossing of main routes and to obtain short connection paths of main piping and cabling ways.

⁵ http://www.wrexham-power.com/wrexham-energy-centre-eng.html

The new power plant, owing to its multi-shaft design, will have the immense advantages of higher efficiency, wider flexibility, higher availability to the maximum extent with simple piping arrangement.

The following technical description and the components specifications are taken from the Basic Engineering Design Data (ArmPower, 2017):

The new power plant will consist of a gas turbine with generator (GTG), a Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG), and a steam turbine with generator (STG) which will be installed in a new West East shaft centerline (see Figure 4-2), and related auxiliaries.

The Gross Power output at Design Conditions and 'Base Load' operation mode of the combined cycle (GT Gross Power output + ST Gross Power output) is:

- Guaranteed Gross Power Output: 254 MW (at design conditions)
- Gross Heat Rate (based on LHV: 47,479 kJ/kg): 6,438 kJ/kWh
- Efficiency: 55.91%



Figure 3-2: YCCPP-2 Key Plan (Source: RENCO SPA)

n'	DESCRIPTION	ITEM
01	Gas Turbine & Electric Generator	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
02	Steam Turbine & Steam Turnine Generator	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
03	Vacuum Condenser	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
04	Unit Auxiliary Trasformer	00BBT10
05	Step-Up Trasformer	00BAT10
06	HP Feed Water Pump	13LAC 10/20 AP001
07	Condensate Extraction Pump (LP Feed Water)	14LCB 10/20 AP001
08	HRSG Blowdown Vessel	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
09	Service Cooling Water Pump	04PAC 10/20/30 AP002
10	Utility Water distribution Pump	03GAF10AP003
11	CCCW Circulation Pump	05PGC 10/20/30 AP001
12	Cooling Water Pump	04PAC 10/20 AP001
13	Final Filtering Stati	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
14	Fuel GAS Booster Compressor	01EKH 10/20/30 AN001
15	Fuel GAS Fiscal metering Skyd	01EKU01AK001
16	Integrated Coalescer Cartridge filter	01EKB 10/20 AT001
17	Diesel Storage Tank	19MJN018B001
18	Diesel Generator	19MJA01AK001
19	Demi water production package	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
20	Demi Water Tank	06GLC0188001
21	Raw & Fire Water Tank	03GAD018B001
22	H2SO4 Tank (HOLD)	NO ITEM (HOLD)
23	Chemical Injection package	22QCA01AK001
24	Cooling Tower	04PAD 10/20/30AC001 - 04PAD 10/20/30 AC002
25	Rain Water Bacin	NO ITEM
26	API Separator Package	20GUA01AK001
27	Auxiliary Boiler - Electrical Super Heater	10QHA01AV001 - Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
28	Demi Water Pump	06GHC 10/20/30 AP001
29	Fire Water Pump (Electrical & Diesel) / Jockey Pump	085GA01AP001 - 085GA01AP002 - 085GA10AP001
30	Neutral. Package & Neutral. Basin Discharge Pump	07GDR01AK001 - 07DGR 10/20 AP001
31	Waste Water PIT & Transfer Pump	Item Pumps 20GUA 10/20 AP001



n.	DESCRIPTION	ITEM
32	Distribution Trafo	OBMT 01/02 - OBLT 01/02 - OBHT 01/02
33	Turbogas Generator Circuit Braker	11BAC10
34	Steam Turbine Gen. Circuit Braker	18BAC10
35	Pulsation Damper	08SGA01BB001
36	Fuel GAS Electrical Heater	01EKC01AC001
37	Compressor Cleaning System	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
38	Vacum pumps skid & Condensate control valve	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
39	Condenser Flash Box	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
40	Raw Water Sand Filter	03GAA 10/20 AT001
10A	Sand Filter Backwash Pump	03GAF 10/20 AP001
41	Start-Up, Excitation & Auxiliary Transformers	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
42	CCCW Heat Exchanger	05PGD 10/20 AC001
43	Diesel Transfer Pump	19MJN01AP001
44	CCCW Expansion Vessel	05PGB01BB001
45	Air Prod. room (air compressor, compressed	025CA 10/20 AN001 - 025CB01BB001 -
	air receiver, air dryer package & instrument	02QFA01AK001 - 02QFB01BB001
	air receiver) & Nitrogen Production Package	
46	Close Drain Sump	21GMA0188001
47	Condensate Recirculation Pump	13LCP 10/20 AP001
51	PCC Power Control Center	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
52	GT Base Module	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
53	Bus Duct For Gas & Steam Turbine	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
55	Heat recovery Steam Generator	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
59	HRSG Blowdown Pumps	15LCQ 10/20 AP001
60	Raw Water Pump	03GAF 10/20/30 AP002
61	Oily Water Transfer Pump	20GUA01AP001
62	Anti Surge Aircooler	01EKH01AC001
63	Steam turbine lube oil & Steam turbine oil unit	Siemens TAG number (HOLD)
64	Water Reuse Tank	NO ITEM
65	Compressor Washing Holding Tank	11MB501BB001

The new power plant will be designed for full power generation mode, but will also be capable to run at partial load operation. The design life for YCCPP-2 is set to 20 years. YCCPP-2 will include the following main elements:

Gas Turbine

The gas turbine package will mainly be composed by:

- Air compressor (axial type driven directly by the gas turbine, coupled at the same shaft)
- Burner (dry low NO_X)
- Gas Turbine (installed into a dedicated enclosure)
- Gas Turbine Air Preheater System
- Anti-icing System
- Evaporative Cooler
- High Fogging System
- Fuel Gas Filtration Skid
- Main Lube Oil System

The highly efficient gas turbine with the dry low NOx combustion system is coupled with a generator. The gas turbine will convert the fuel energy into mechanical energy to drive the generator. The gas turbine will be designed to be continuously operated at loads from 75% up to full load rating. It will be out of service only for periodical maintenance. The combustor will be designed of low NOx type to keep NOx emission level low. A part of compressor flow will be extracted for cooling turbine blades. The gas turbine will be provided with an air inlet system both filtering and silencing of the combustion air. Dust laden outside air will flow into a field of two stage high efficiency filter system.

Heat Recovery Steam Generator

The exhaust gas flows inside the HRSG in counter current with the high pressure boiling feed water. It shall be an outdoor, two pressure level type with a main stack, condensate preheater, low pressure drum, low pressure evaporator, low pressure super heater, high pressure economizer, high pressure drum, high pressure evaporator and high pressure super heater. A Blow Down vessel will collect all continuous and non-continuous drains from HP and LP drums. A stack provided with a Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) will be installed at the end of the HRSG. The height of the stack was first foreseen to be of 35 meters, but will be changed to a height of 66 m according to Good Engineering Practice.

Steam Turbine

The steam, produced and superheated in the HRSG, is supplied at two different pressure levels to the Steam Turbine stages (High pressure stage and Low pressure stage). The turbine is provided also with a high pressure and low pressure bypass. The exhaust steam discharged by the turbine is condensed by a cooling water exchanger. The condensed mixture of steam and air will be discharged to a suitable drain, leading to the wastewater treatment plant.

Main Generators

Two generators will be provided to the new plant:

- Generator for the gas turbine: nominal capacity 205 MVA at 15.0 kV
- Generator for the steam turbine: nominal capacity 100 MVA at 11.5 kV

The two generators will be capable of operating at power factor of 0.9 lagging to 0.9 leading. They shall be connected by MV bus duct through No. 1 three winding step up transformer (15-11,5/220 kV) for the connection to the new 220 kV substation. The connection between the transformer and the substation shall be provided by high voltage power underground cables or by overhead transmission line (underground cable is the proposed option).

Emergency Diesel Generator System

Emergency Diesel Generator System shall be 400V, 50 Hz connected to LV Power Center in the electrical building. The emergency Diesel Generator will be deigned to feed all emergency load in case of power failure.

Instrument/ Service Air Stream

The instrument air compressor package shall be provided with 2x100% + 10% extra capacity screw compressors oil free type. Two air dryers heatless type designed for 100% (+10 % overdesign) of the maximum compressor capacity shall be foreseen. Between compressors and dryers one buffer vessel of appropriately designed volume shall be foreseen in order to dump the pulsation. Downstream the dryer a storage vessel of sufficient capacity to assure 15 minutes shall be provide the instrument air consumption for plant shutdown scenario.

Auxiliary Boiler

A fired auxiliary boiler shall be provided, in order to guarantee the start-up activities of power train and the building heating during the Plant Shutdown. The boiler will be fed by fuel gas. The required design duty shall be evaluated.

Main Cooling System

The main cooling system will consist of a system of six closed-looped evaporative towers designed for 110% of maximum flow rate and duty. Evaporative towers shall be designed also to have a low drift phenomena (0.01% drift loss) to limit the water make up. Number three 50% capacity (+ 10% overdesign) vertical pumps shall be provided to pump water to Steam Turbine condenser; three (each at 50% capacity) other pumps shall be installed to provide the water circulation in closed cooling water circuit.

Fuel Gas Supply System

The Plant shall be operated on the specified fuel gas without any backup of fuel oil. The Centrifugal compressors shall be designed for the available fuel gas composition and quality. The compressor, without the use of a bypass, shall be suitable for continuous operation at any capacity at least 10% greater than the predicted surge capacity.

Demineralized Water System

The Demineralized water production package is part of TP supply and will provide the necessary make up for Combined Cycle consumption. The demi water system will use the reverse osmosis (RO) technology and ion exchange resin and will include:

- Multimedia Filters;
- Coagulant and Antiscalant dosing package;
- Cartridge Filters;
- Reverse Osmosis Unit;
- Deionization unit;
- Demineralized Water Storage Tank and pumps

The demineralized water is distributed to the users by three 50% Demineralized Feeding Water Pumps which supply the water to the expected pressure. The capacity of the whole system shall foresee a 10% margin; the raw water pumps and the demi water pump shall follow the sparing philosophy.

Waste Water System

The onsite wastewater treatment system is still under design to treat the oily wastewater (API and CPI separators, if needed) and chemical wastewater (neutralization system) generated at the plant to meet the following effluent conditions, which fulfill the standards of IFC/ World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (to be confirmed during detailed engineering):

- Total suspended solids: 50 mg/l
- Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD): 6 mgO₂/l
- Iron: 0.5 mg/l
- Copper: 0.1 mg/l
- Smells, odors: 1 level
- Coloring: shall not be in 10 cm column
- pH: 6.5 8.5
- Dissolved O₂ not less than 4 mg/l
- COD: 30 mg/l
- Oil : 10 mg/l

According to RENCO the site facilities will include the following:

Description	Size [m ²]
Office Project Management	29.16
Office Employer	17.26
Office ArmPower – Independent Engineer	14.40
Office Construction Management	28.74
Office TP - Construction Management	30.23
First Aid Room	39.14
Office Secretaries + DCC + Translator	Open Space
Office Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)	Open Space
Commissioning	Open Space
General Archivium	Open Space
Toilette 1	25.16
Toilette 2	18.70
Office Site Engineering	Open Space
Printers Room	18.69
Office IT Room	19.00
Office TP – Specialists	Open Space
Office Planning + Cost Control + Quantity Surveyor	Open Space
Dining Room	116.90
Kitchen	17.26
Meeting Room - 12 Attendants	27.84
Meeting Room - 6/8 Attendants	18.75
Office Procurement	Open Space
Office Logistic + Material Managment	Open Space
Office QA/QC	Open Space
Civil Prefabrication Area	195.00
Batching Plant	3558.00
Storage Area – Mech. & Piping	5620.00
Warehouses	1585.00
Open Storage Area	1564.00
Piping Prefabrication Area	4624.00
Toilettes	144.00
35 kV Electrical Substation	-
Vehicles Parking Lot	1660.00
Vehicles Workshop + Diesel Storage	775.00
Subcontractor Office Area	1587.00
I&C Workshop	262.00
TP Warehouse	804.00
Available Area – 1	2840.00
Available Area – 2	1976.00
Available Area – 3	264.00
Available Area – 4	2560.00

 Table 3-1:
 Planned Site Facilities at YCCPP-2 (source: RENCO)

Interconnections to gas, water and electrical grid are planned. The new CCPP shall be connected with the facilities of the existing grid infrastructure provided below (see Figure 3-3):

- Electricity: A new 220 kV substation is just under construction for YCCPP-1; the connection from the new power plant to the new substation is proposed to be by underground cable (still subject of design, if overhead transmission line or underground cable will be used); the distance between the new power plant and the new 220 kV substation is approx. 400 m
- New connection to the natural gas supply pipeline system from Gazprom Armenia, approx. 1,500 m (under responsibility of Gazprom Armenia)
- New connection to the city water system managed by Veolia Djur CJSC (make-up water), approx. 1,000 m
- New connections to the water sewerage of the city, approx. 450 m
- New connection to the industrial waste water discharge system downstream of YCCPP-1, less than 100 m



Figure 3-3: Overview plan showing the new interconnections of YCCPP-2

3.2 Project Area and Project Area of Influence

The **Project Area** comprises the site of YCCPP-2 which is located at 929 m a.s.l. (average) at the south eastern border of Shengavit, a highly industrialized district in the southern part of Yerevan (see Figures 4-3 and 4-4). The Project Area is uninhabited. The coordinates of the site center are approximately:

- Northing: 40° 6'48.06"N;
- Easting: 44°29'49.55"E;
- Zone: 38T (WGS 84).



Figure 3-4: Location of existing YCCPP-1and future YCCPP-2 in the south of Yerevan

The Project Area is situated approx. 2 km southeast of Erebuni Airport, bordering Erebuni district and has many large industrial plants and factories in its vicinity. Despite their industrial character, Shengavit and Erebuni Districts are home to a high number of residents of Yerevan.

The following residential complexes are found in a distance between 1,200 m and 1,500 m from YCCPP-2 site:

- the nearest residential area of Shengavit District (Noragavit village) is located approx. 1,350 m to the west
- Ayntap, a major village in the Ararat Province is located approx. 1,500 m to the south west
- Kharberd, another major village in the Ararat Province is located approx. 1,200 m to the south

• the nearest residential area of Erebuni District is located approx. 1,200 m to the north east.

Some temporary houses exist close to (but outside) the site. Further details are provided in Section 5.2.2.



Figure 3-5: Project Area (in red) located south of Yerevan, nearest residential areas and illegal housings

The **Project Area of Influence** thus comprises the uninhabited YCCPP-2 site and the residential areas (temporary and permanent) located up to 10 kilometers away from the site, as those might be impacted e.g. by air emissions during operation of the new power plant.



Figure 3-6: Project Area of Influence with residential areas in a distance of 10 km from the YCCPP-2 that might be impacted by the Project

3.3 Schedule for Project Realization

For the construction of the YCCPP-2, approx. 30 months are estimated (see Figure 3-7 below). Thus, it is expected that construction works for the new power plant will start in April 2018 and it will be commissioned at the end of 2019.

ARMPOWER. Q0040 - Yerevan Combi	ne	d	Cyc	cle	Po	w	er	PI	an	t 2	- 1	Pro	oje	ct	Su	m	ma	ary	S	che	ed	ule	ele	eve	2 2	(-	R	EN C	æ
Activity ID Activity Name													-		1	Mont	h	1 45					1.10	1	1.00	1.24					
Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant 2 - REV 2	-5	-4	-3	-2	-1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	_ 11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
Project							1	1	1			1			1	1					111			1						-	
Engineering									-		1.0			1						-								1		-	
Early engineering		v									1	1=1							1		1E I							1-1	1		
Detailed engineering																		-			-									-	
Procurement															1					1											
Material Supply				11																	111							1			
Structure & Civil Procurement						1		0								11											12.1				
Piping & Mechanical Procurement						80							11		11	TI			-				11								
Electrical Procurement	1-1				1	00	h -	1	hm				I		II I				th or				-	10					-		
Machinery & Package Procurement						00	di -	1	t nu n				I							11			to 1								
Instrumentation & Control Procurement								1		D			1			Ш			ф				-	TIT	III						
Fire Fighting & Detection Procurement	1						1	1													T				1						
HVAC Procurement			1					1	0														10								
Construction								1000					1						1						1-1			1	- 1		
Site Over Heads						1		-			-	1-1				-			1	1-1		-		H	-			1-1	1		
Temporary Construction Facilities																				1											
Preliminary activities	1							1					T 1					1		1											
Mobilization - Demobilization					_	-																									
Construction Works																									1-1						
Structure & Civil Construction																		1	III	m	T		1	1							
Piping & Layouts Construction				_																											
Tie-ins Construction						1.1														1									-		
Electrical Construction	1					1																	-					1			
Machinery & Package Construction							1													1	1		1								
Instrumentation & Control Construction			-				1		11-11			111		1	1		1	1			14		h	1		F					
Fire Fighting & Detection Construction	1-1					1		-	1			161	- í			-					ir.		-								1
HVAC Construction						-	1														E.	1									1
Commissioning						1														1										- 1	
Start Up & Reliability								11															11								

Figure 3-7: Preliminary Project Schedule

4. Analysis of Alternatives

4.1 The 'No Project' Scenario

The 'No Project' Scenario describes the situation without implementation of the Project. In this alternative, all environmental and social impacts of the Project would be avoided but it would potentially have negative implications on the regional power supply, as well as on potential business opportunities. In this case main objectives of the Project would not be achieved, like e.g. improving the total output capacity of electric energy production; providing reliable power supply; and promoting commercial development of thermal technology and cost reduction in order to enable Armenia to become a major net exporter of electricity.

4.2 Comparison of Alternatives and Options

4.2.1 Location

The site for YCCPP-2 is located in an industrial area south of Yerevan city which is foreseen for further industrial development. In the neighborhood an old thermal power plant that is no longer working and will be dismantled in the near future can be found, and other industrial plants are located in the vicinity. Directly north of the foreseen site, the YCCPP-1 is located that was constructed in 2010. In the foreseen area no protected or ecologically sensitive zones are found which could be the case at a potential greenfield construction site. The land was previously owned by the government and by Yerevan Thermal Power Plant CJSC since the 1960s, so that no additional land acquisition from private land owners will be necessary. Furthermore, the foreseen site location allows utilizing the pipeline and channel for discharge of treated waste water to Hrazdan River, which is already used by YCCPP-1, as well as using adjacent substation for power evacuation and main access road to the site, which is an advantage compared to a greenfield site.

Possible alternative locations for the proposed new YCCPP-2 were considered prior to opting for the foreseen site. On account to minimize environmental impacts and additional costs for newly developing such a site and modifying the transmission network to accommodate the new power plant, the foreseen site was selected together with MOE as the final option.

4.2.2 Alternative Methods of Power Generation

There are basically three different types of energy production:

- Renewable energy: common resources used are water (hydropower), wind, solar and geothermal power;
- Nuclear energy;
- Thermal energy.

FICHTNER

Renewable energy

Special regard is taken on the renewable energy sources, because they are considered as the basis for a sustainable future power system development. Nonetheless, they face several constraints:

In order to produce the same amount of electricity as the YCCPP-2 using <u>hydropower</u>, a large dam would need to be build. The environmental and social impacts of large dams may be difficult to mitigate and manage. Alternatively, a cascade of medium sized dams would need to be build, or the energy production of several independent hydropower plants would need to be combined. This would spread the environmental impacts through several locations, making them more difficult to handle and control. In addition, according to SREP (2014), the identified potential for HPP investment in Armenia is of only up to 90 MW. This is not sufficient to compete with the energy output of the YCCPP-2.

In the dry climate of Armenia, <u>solar energy</u> is quite favorable. The potential for development of the photovoltaic industry in Armenia has been studied in the framework of the project "Assistance for Development of Actual Solar PV Energy in Armenia". Based on this, a Renewable Energy Investment Plan for Armenia was approved, in accordance to which resources are being allocated to develop up to 110 MW utility-scale photovoltaic plants.⁶ However, some constrains are imposed: high land consumption, the need for great investments and, based on SREP (2014), the limited capacity for equipment acquisition and installation, together with a lack of experience with the technology in Armenia. Given the above, solar energy is not considered at this stage to be an alternative to thermal generation in Armenia, but instead a complementary energy source which is being planned under parallel programs, and which faces different challenges to be overcome in the right instances.

<u>Wind is an unsteady energy resource.</u> Both its varying direction and intensity do not allow guarantying that energy is always produced, which would be a disadvantage in comparison to thermal production, especially at a time when the pressing need to replace the nuclear power generation emerged in Armenia. Besides, the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources plans to develop up to 500 MW of its wind energy potential by the year 2025. 500 MW is the amount that can be economically feasible for commercial utility scale presently (US AID, 2010). This implies that further investments in this technology are presently not feasible.

In the field of <u>geothermal</u> energy, big advances were made to spread the usage of these technologies as a source of power. They are generally considered as reliable, cost effective and sustainable. Nonetheless, there are still serious and long-term researches required for the arrangement of geothermal energy production, making it a disadvantageous source for the

⁶ http://www.minenergy.am/en/page/416

case at hand, where a pressing energy demand requires a solution which is readily and easily implementable.

Nuclear energy

Nuclear power is electric power generated in a nuclear reactor. Nuclear power stations generally work in a similar way as conventional fossil fuelburning stations. The main difference is the fuel. Nuclear fuel is typically uranium-based rods, instead of coal or gas. Nuclear Power plants do not create smoke or carbon dioxide and are more reliable compared to above mentioned renewables. Although power generation does not produce much waste, the residual radiation of the waste is very dangerous and requires sophisticated handling for years and centuries to come. Nuclear reactors are discussed controversial, with many people categorizing them as inherently unsafe. Despite laying in a seismically active zone, Armenia has one operating nuclear reactor (Metsamor) and there are plans to build another. There are many controversies and concerns about its security. Given the environmental, health and safety risks derived from an eventual failure of the power plant, as well as the difficulties in the management of the waste, this is considered a disadvantageous alternative.

Thermal energy

Thermal energy uses organic fossils for energy production, therefore releasing formerly stored greenhouse gases which contribute to climate change. This makes it generally unfavorable from an environmental point of view. It has to be considered that power stations working on the basis of natural gas have far less impact on the environment than stations working on the basis of other fuel types. Modern gas turbines allow to significantly increase the efficiency and to reduce the generation of combustion outcome.

Conclusion

Given these considerations the option of gas and steam combined cycle power plant was chosen. The new YCCPP-2 is part of the strategic plan for energy production of the Government of Armenia⁷ in order to improve the total output capacity of its electric energy production with a most modern and efficient power plant. The Government of RA considers this project to be of outmost significance with highest priority for execution (fast-track project), due to the fact that the energy sector development has a critical impact on the economic development of the entire country.

4.2.3 Design alternatives

The initial design of the new YCCPP-2 had foreseen a stack height of 35 meters. The results of the air dispersion calculation (Annex 12.8 to this report) show, however, that a stack height of 66 meters is more adequate because this corresponds to the Good Engineering Practice (GEP) stack height. Installation of a low NOx burner and a drift eliminator at the cooling towers will reduce the emissions of YCCPP-2. The new power plant will

⁷ http://minenergy.am/en/page/493

furthermore include an onsite waste water treatment plant at state of the art technology to reduce the liquid emissions from the power plant. Finally, as a result of the ESIA, a decision has been made to build a specific area for storage of hazardous wastes at the construction and future YCCPP-2 site. This option has been considered because presently there is not a solution for disposal of hazardous waste in Armenia, and the disposal of this type of waste in a mixed/general landfill shall not be undertaken.

4.3 Summary of the Comparative Assessment of Alternatives

The tables below provide an overview of the comparative assessment of alternatives regarding options for power generation, location options and design options. The potential E&S impacts are comparatively assessed as being "high", "medium", or "low". Considering this assessment, the construction and operation of a gas-fired Combined Cycle Power Plant in an existing industrial site with a GEP stack height, considerations for mitigation of air and water emissions, and proper management of waste will have the least environmental and social impacts.

Power Generation Options - comparative assessment									
Alternati- ves E&S impacts	Renewable energies (wind, solar, hydro- power, geothermal)	Nuclear energy	Coal fired PP	CC Gas fired PP (the Project)					
Resettlement	High - larger area needed for the installations or reservoir	Medium - limited area needed for the installations, but a population exclusion area may apply *	Low - limited area needed for the installations	Low - limited area needed for the installations					
Economic displacement	High - larger area needed for the installations or reservoir	Low - limited area needed for the installations	Low - limited area needed for the installations						
Community H&S	Medium - risk of HPP reservoir break if not well maintained; risk due to unannounced / sudden water releases; ice throw in wind farms; increase in seismic risk for HPP and geothermal	High - although considered a safe technology, an accident may have serious impacts on CHS; no air and noise emissions, but hazardous waste generation	Medium - air and noise emissions; larger quantities of waste are generated than in other thermal alternatives	Low - air, noise emissions and waste generation are lower than in other thermal alternatives					

Power Generation Options - comparative assessment				
Alternati- ves E&S impacts	Renewable energies (wind, solar, hydro- power, geothermal)	Nuclear energy	Coal fired PP	CC Gas fired PP (the Project)
Degradation of terrestrial habitat	High - larger area needed for the installations or reservoir	Low - limited area needed for the installations	Low - limited area needed for the installations	Low - limited area needed for the installations
Degradation of aquatic habitat	Medium - in the case of large HPP, negative impacts on water quality and quantity may be observed	High - hazardous emissions to water may be present	Medium - several liquid effluent streams are present	Low - limited liquid effluent streams are present
Air and GHG emissions	Low - no air emissions directly associated	Low - no air emissions directly associated	High - higher stack GHG emissions than natural gas; emissions of particulates and SO ₂ are critic	Medium - lower air and stack GHG emissions than in other thermal alternatives
Generation of solid waste	Low - Very low amounts of solid waste are generated	High - Hazardous waste generation with difficult management is unavoidable	Medium - Larger quantities of waste are generated than in other thermal alternatives	Low - Very low amounts of solid waste are generated
Dependency on imported fuel	Low - No imported fuel is necessary	High - The fuel for the existing nuclear plant is supplied externally +	High - Armenia has no proven reserves of coal ⁺⁺	High Armenia has no proven reserves of natural gas
Cost of generation §	High - up to 18 Euro ct/kWh	Low - up to 8,4 Euro ct/kWh	Medium - up to 11,6 Euro _ct/kWh	High - up to 16,8 Euro ct/kWh
SUMMARY	High - 4 Medium - 2 Low - 3	High - 4 Medium - 2 Low - 3	High - 2 Medium - 4 Low - 3	High - 2 Medium - 1 Low - 6

For example, according to USNRC regulations 10CFR Part 100.21

** https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world-factbook/geos/am.html
+ http://www.world-nuclear.org/information-library/country-profiles/countries-a-

+ <u>http://www.world-nuclear.org/information-library/country-profiles/countries-a</u> <u>f/armenia.aspx</u>

Based on European real case studies by VGB, 2015 (https://www.vgb.org/en/lcoe2015.html?dfid=74042)

The comparison table for power generation options above shows that the option for a gas fired power plant implies the highest number of "low" E&S impacts. The options for renewable energies and nuclear power show the

highest number of "high" E&S impacts, for which factors such as area needed, cost of generation and community H&S play an important role.

Regarding location options, the comparative summary table below shows that opting for the Yerevan industrial site instead of a greenfield or undeveloped site implies a larger number of "low" E&S impacts and "low" investment costs, due to the characteristics of the industrial site chosen.

Location Options - comparative assessment			
Alternatives E&S impacts	Greenfield / undeveloped site	Industrial / Brownfield site (the Project)	
Resettlement	Low - greenfield sites are not, per definition, inhabitated sites	Low - the site is not inhabitated	
Economic displacement	Potentially <mark>high</mark> - greenfield sites may be agricultural fields or pastures in private possession	Low - the site is not owned or used by any private persons	
Degradation of terrestrial habitat	Potentially <mark>high</mark> - greenfield sites are undeveloped sites whose ecological value may be high	Low - the site has a low ecological value	
Investment costs	High - need to develop infrastructure for supply and export of fuel, water, effluents, and electricity	Low - infrastructure for supply and export of fuel, water, effluents, and electricity is available	
SUMMARY	<mark>High - 3</mark> Medium- 0 Low - 1	<mark>High - 0</mark> Medium- 0 Low - 4	

When comparing design options for the stack in the below table (with the support of the results of the Air Dispersion Calculation - see Annex 12.8), it can be concluded that the highest number of "low" E&S impacts is achieved when building a stack with a GEP height. This option is still preferable even when considering the comparatively "high" construction costs.

Design Options (1) - comparative assessment			
Alternati- ves E&S impacts	Stack height - 35 meters	Stack height - 42 meters	Stack height - 66 meters (the Project)
Community H&S	High - highest ground level concentrations of NO ₂ ; no compliance with	Medium - lower ground level concentrations of NO ₂ ; no compliance with IFC's	Low - lowest ground level concentrations of NO ₂ ; compliance with IFC's
Air quality impacts	IFC's recommendation for future sustainable development	recommendation for future sustainable development	recommendation for future sustainable development
Investment costs	Low - lowest construction costs	Medium - lower construction costs	High - highest construction costs
SUMMARY	High - 2 Medium- 0 Low - 1	High - 0 Medium- 3 Low - 0	<mark>High - 1</mark> Medium- 0 Low - 2

The YCCPP-2 project foresees the installation of equipment to mitigate air and water emissions (low NOx burners, drift eliminators and a WWTP). Without this equipment, the investment costs would be comparatively "low", but the E&S impacts would be "high" (see table below).

Design Options (2) - comparative assessment			
Alternati- ves E&S impacts	No air or water emissions mitigation equipment	Installation of low NOx burners, drift eliminators and an own WWTP (the Project)	
Community H&S Environmental impacts (water, air)	High - without low NOx burners or a waste water treatment plant, the air and water emissions would potentially contribute to a contamination of surface waters and the airshed above the legal limits/international standards.	Low - the installation of emissions reduction equipment allows the project to fulfill the legal limits/international standards.	
Investment costs	Low - less investment costs would be needed	High - investment costs associated with designing, installing, operating and maintaining the equipment are applicable	
SUMMARY	<mark>High - 2</mark> Medium- 0 Low - 1	High - 1 Medium- 0 Low - 2	

Another design option foreseen as a result of the ESIA is the inclusion of a temporary storage area for hazardous waste (table below). This option has revealed to be advantageous from an environmental point of view (2 "low" impacts, and no "high" impacts) because presently there is not a solution for hazardous waste disposal in Armenia (further details can be consulted in Section 6 of this report).

Design Options (3) - comparative assessment			
Alternati- ves E&S impacts	No site storage of hazardous wastes; sending these to a mixed landfill	On-site storage of hazardous wastes (the Project)	
Community H&S	High - hazardous wastes require special landfills or landfill cells, which are not readily available in Armenia.	Low - a temporary storage with specific characteristics is foreseen, while a solution	
Environmental impacts (water, groundwater, soil)	Therefore, potential contamination of groundwater, soil and surface waters cannot be excluded.	for the hazardous wastes at national level is procured	
Investment costs	Low - no need for special storage locations, waste would be disposed off together with other (mixed) waste	Medium - a small storage space following specific recommendations is foreseen	
SUMMARY	<mark>High - 2</mark> Medium- 0 Low - 1	High - 0 Medium- 1 Low - 2	

5. Description of the Environment (Baseline Data)

The following chapter provides baseline data for the Project Area of Influence focusing on the subjects of protection: fauna and flora, soil, water, climate, air quality, noise, landscape, historical and cultural sites and socioeconomic conditions. The documents already prepared for the Project (see Section 1.4) have been used, among others, as a basis for writing this Section.

5.1 Environmental Conditions

The foreseen construction area of YCCPP-2 is bordering the already existing YCCPP-1 in the south. The construction site is part of the Yerevan industrial area and has been used for agricultural and pasture purposes in the past. Since 2008 the vegetation at the area was cleared and the site was visibly earth worked (see historical pictures in Figure 5-1). No industrial activities have been performed on the site in the past, but is has been used as temporary laydown area for construction of the adjacent YCCPP-1 since 2009. Some parts of the area are now covered with gravel, some concreted areas can also be found at the site, and an old pipeline crosses the area in the eastern part. Some old material like scrap metal, old metal cabins, old toilets and wash basins are found on the site.

An area belonging to the property of YCCPP-1 will be used as temporary laydown area for the construction of YCCPP-2 (see Figure 1-1 in Section 1). There is an agreement in place between ArmPower/RENCO and YCCPP-1 for using the temporary laydown area. Material that is stored at the moment in this area will be moved to another site inside the property of YCCPP-1.









Figure 5-1: Ecology and former land use of the construction site (Source: courtesy of ADB)




5.1.1 Flora, Fauna and Biodiversity

The Republic of Armenia is a mountainous country characterized by a rich diversity of plants and animals, as well as landscapes and vegetation types. More than 3,800 species of vascular plants and more than 17,700 animal species including 549 species of vertebrates are found on the territory of Armenia. The biodiversity of Armenia is notable for its high endemism: about 500 species of fauna and 144 species of flora are considered endemics (MNP 2014).

The construction site itself and the surrounding land are poorly vegetated with much of the area having been disturbed by industrial developments in the past. Only sparse vegetation composed of grass, herbs and some reed and bushes can be found at the construction site (see pictures below). The ecological value of the Project Area is assessed to be low, also considering that the area has been obviously cleared of vegetation and earth worked in the past. No vegetation is found at the foreseen laydown area for construction of YCCPP-2. The water quality of the Hrazdan River is categorized as bad (5th class of the surface water quality assessment system of RA⁸) in the area south of Yerevan. This bad water quality could be empirically confirmed during a site visit in February 2018 by visual impression and a bad smell of the river water. Samplings undertaken in November 2017 confirm the classification of the river water as "bad" (see Section 5.1.5 below). The ecological value of the river is assessed to be low. In the area where the treated waste water will be finally discharged to the river via a network of man-made channels, the river is bordered by a narrow reed area along its bank and also shows areas with poor vegetation disturbed by human activities (see photos below). This vegetation will not be negatively affected by the final discharge of the treated waste water via the network of channels.

⁸ Source: RA Decision N75-N (2014) on the definition of the norms of ensuring water quality of management zone of each water basin based on peculiarities of the area



Figure 5-2: Typical vegetation at the construction site with some reed and bushes (Source: Fichtner, July 2017)



Figure 5-3: Hrazdan River in the area of treated waste water final discharge (Source: courtesy of ADB, February 2018)

5.1.2 Protected Areas

Biodiversity conservation in Armenia is implemented mainly in the specially protected natural areas, where 60-70% of the species composition of the flora and fauna is concentrated including the overwhelming majority of rare, critically endangered, threatened and endemic species. According to MNP (2014) at present approx. 13% of the total territory of Armenia are covered by protected areas. These comprise 3 state reserves, (Khosrov, Shikahogh and Erebuni), 4 national parks (Sevan, Dilijan, Arpi Lake and Arevik), 232 natural monuments, and 27 state sanctuaries.

However, no Protected Areas are located within or in the vicinity of the Project Area of Influence. Also no other sensitive areas like Important Bird and Biodiversity Areas (IBA) or Ramsar Sites are located near the Project Area of Influence.

5.1.3 Geology and Seismic Situation

5.1.3.1 General Geological Conditions of the Area

Yerevan is part of the quaternary geologic unit. According to MNP (2002), Armenia is a part of the Transcaucasus great arched fold and medium-Araxian intermountain lowering. These two geological structural units are included in the Caucasus-Anatolia-Iranian segment of the Mediterranean plicate zone. Given the time of establishment of geological structural units and accomplishment age of plicate formation the territory of Armenia is divided into the Somkheti-Ghapan complex, Bazum-Zangezur and trans-Araksian zones.

The trans-Araksian weak plicate zone is divided into the Yerevan-Ordubad and orogenic lowering sub-zones. The Project area of Influence is part of the Yerevan-Ordubad sub-zone which is located in the south of the Bazum-Zangezur zone and is characterized by meogeocyncline type. Land, carbonate, ophyolite, volcanic and sedimentary formation stratums, as well as volcanic origin and land formations of Quaternary period are found here. The sub-zone is composed of two structural units: the Yerevan-Ordubad concave fold and Urts-Vayots Dzor arched fold.

5.1.3.2 Tectonics and Seismicity

Armenia is located in a seismically active zone stretching from Turkey to the Arabian Sea. Here, the Arabian landmass slowly collides with the Eurasian plate. As large earthquakes with magnitudes over 5.5 occur in Armenia every 30 to 40 years reaching magnitudes up to 7.1 on the Richter scale, a high-level seismic hazard is indicated for the country. The Garni earthquake in 1679 was the most destructive one, with a magnitude oscillating between 5.5 and 7. Another destructive earthquake with a magnitude of 6.9 occurred in Spitak in 1988⁹. In 2011 an earthquake with a magnitude of 3.2 occurred 37 km north of Gyumri¹⁰.

Maximum seismic risk is given around the city of Yerevan, where the Project Area is located, and in a zone from Gyumri to Vanadzor and the northern part of Lake Sevan, where active faults exist. Seismic stability of 9 magnitudes by Richter scale and more is to be followed because the country is classified as the third seismic zone under

⁹http://info.worldbank.org/etools/docs/library/114715/istanbul03/docs/istanbul03/09melku myan3-n%5B1%5D.pdf

¹⁰ http://www.emsc-csem.org/Earthquake/earthquake.php?id=210376

MSK 64 standards with an acceleration value of 0.4G m/s and a speed of 32 cm/s. 11

Earthquake risk has been considered in the design of the new power plant YCCPP-2.

5.1.3.3 Field Investigations at the Construction Site

In order to ensure the proper setting of YCCPP-2, a geotechnical investigation program has been performed¹². The program comprised execution of core drillings, engineering-geological reconnaissance surveys and collection and review of existing geological data. The scope of investigations was set to determine the natural, geo-mechanical and geo-hydraulical characteristics of the underground, as well as groundwater levels and the location of rock surfaces, if any.

Another geological study¹³ has been performed in 2017 by "Armhydroenergyproject" CJSC in the construction site area including topographic mapping, geophysical and engineering geological works, experimental borehole drilling, piezometer installation in some boreholes to measure the ground water level fluctuation, periodic measurement of water level and sample taking.

The following main outcomes resulted from the geological studies:

- The territory's geological-lithological structure is mainly formed by clayey soils, in some places covered by fill up soils.
- In the study site the 2nd and the 3rd layers can serve as foundation bottom.
- In the study area underground waters have been detected in all the boreholes with 0.5-7.0 m depth and have seasonal fluctuation from 0.5 to 1.0 m. According to the laboratory data, the detected underground waters have strong sulphate aggressiveness against ordinary concrete.
- There are no hazardous physical-geological phenomena and processes (landslides, rock slides, rockfall, erosion, suffosion, etc.) in the study area.
- According to RA Construction Standards II-6.02-06 the guideline largely passes by the third (III) seismic zone (9 points and more). The class of the soils of the areas according to their seismic characteristics belongs to the II (second) and III (third) classes.
- The maximum depth of frost in soil is 60 cm.
- The study area is suitable for capital construction.

¹¹ RENCO SPA: Armenia 250 MW CCGT Yerevan Capital City. Draft Feasibility Study [CCGT 250 MW – Yerevan /Armenia]

¹² Geoterproject LTD (2016): Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area

¹³ Armpower CJSC (2017): Geological Report of Armhydroenergyproject CJSC

5.1.4 Soil

In the area where the Project will be situated, semi-desert alkali soils are common. The warm, mild and variable humid climate, the long period of active soil formation, presence of sufficient drainage system and seasonal change in ground streams direction promote deep and intensive weathering of primary minerals, formation of secondary mineral substances and rather thick clay soils. The geological structure of the area and the study site is represented by radical clays, generally covered by contemporary alluvial, diluvial-proluvial, and technogenic generations, formed of clayey and sandy soils.

The geological studies which were performed at the construction site found mainly clayey soils which are in some places covered by fill up soils.

The construction site has obviously been earth worked in the past. According to the information gathered during the site visits in July 2017 and February 2018 by Fichtner's environmental specialists, the site has never been covered by buildings and has never been used for industrial purposes. The site was used as temporary laydown area for construction of adjacent YCCPP-1. The area might have also been used for illegal disposal of different waste materials in the past, however during the site visits no asbestos-containing material or other hazardous waste was found, except for some empty oil drums at two different spots. Near to these drums the topsoil was found to be contaminated superficially by an oil leakage (see Figure 5-4). During the site visit in July 2017, Fichtner's environmental specialist took samples of the contaminated soil at each of the two spots. The samples were analyzed by a certified laboratory in Germany for contents of PCBs. All PCB concentrations were below the detection limit of 0.2 ppm (see Section 12.4 in the Annexes for test results). The site visit in February 2018 showed that the empty oil drums had been removed meanwhile to the property of YCCPP-1.



Figure 5-4: Oil leakages near to some empty oil drums at YCCPP-2 site (Source: Fichtner, July 2017)

Due to the superficial oil contamination at these two areas and the potential former illegal storage of waste at the construction site, as well as the existence of some fill soil in the area, in August 2017 a monitoring study was performed on behalf of RENCO regarding groundwater quality and possible historic soil contamination at the construction site (Consecoard

LLC, 2017). Sampling was conducted according to the methodology of the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO of the Ministry of Nature Protection and the samples were analyzed for metal contents at the laboratory of the named institution. The measured concentrations of Chromium, Manganese, Cobalt, Nickel, Copper, Zinc, Lead and Arsenic exceed the limit values of the national Sanitary Norms and Rules N 2.1.7.003-10. For details and further analysis results see Section 12.5 in the Annexes.

Additional soil sampling was undertaken in November 2017 by the Armenian company GeoterProject Ltd. for the analysis of concentration of heavy metals and possible organic pollutants in the soil. Field work had been primarily planned by the German company U/C-tec GmbH. In total 45 bore holes with a diameter of 110 mm were distributed over the area. They were drilled to 2 meters (20 x) or to 4 meters (25 x) depth. The sampling depth was 1.7 to 1.9 m, and 3.7 to 3.9 m respectively. The chemical analyses were performed by the laboratory of the Environmental Monitoring and Information Center in Yerevan. Analytical results were compared to Armenian, German and Dutch threshold values (as no common European standards exist) by U/C-tec GmbH.

Analysis results of the soil samples taken in November 2017 regarding content of metals confirm the findings of August 2017 with Chromium, Manganese, Cobalt, Nickel, Copper, Zinc, Lead and Arsenic exceeding the national Armenian MACs. However, it has to be stated that **Armenian national MACs are very strict compared to internationally used threshold values** for industrial areas (e.g. German and Dutch MACs). All analysis results of the soil samples are far below the existing respective German and Dutch standard thresholds (see examples for Chromium and Arsenic below). It has also to be clarified, that during construction and operation of the new YCCPP-2 no pollutants will be added to soil, if the mitigation measured are implemented. RENCO has no liability for soil remediation in their land purchase agreement.

These very strict MACs can be directly used for the construction of schools, playgrounds, etc. If other usage of the area is foreseen (e.g. industrial use) a calculation has to be done according to Armenian Decision N 1277-N¹⁴ in order to classify the soil as clean, permissible, moderately dangerous, dangerous or extremely dangerous (see Section 2.4). According to this calculation, **the soil is classified as "permissible". This kind of soil may be used for construction of non-high vulnerability objects¹⁵ without further mitigation measures. This is the case for the YCCPP-2. Details about the Armenian legal framework for standardization of soil pollution (Consecoard LLC 2018a) can be found in Section 12.10 in the Annexes.**

¹⁴ Decision N 1277-N "On establishment of technical regulations for general requirements for protection of lands from pollution, list of substances polluting the lands, and assessment of level of land pollution"

¹⁵ High vulenrability objects are: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains

Concentrations of Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH), BTEX (Benzene, Toluene, Ethylene, Xylene) and Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH) have also been analyzed. No Benzene and Ethylbenzene could be detected in any of the analyzed soil samples; concentrations of Toluene and Xylene are below the respective Armenian and German MACs. No PAH were detected in the soil samples. The concentrations of TPH were analyzed, but no national or international MAC exist.

The reports from GeoterProject Ltd. and U/C-tec GmbH including the detailed analyses results are presented in Section 12.11 in the Annexes.

In summary, soil has been found to be not contaminated according to international threshold values (German, Dutch). In addition, according to the Armenian legislation, even though several MACs of heavy metals are exceeded, the land may be used for implementing structures such as industrial plants without further mitigation/remediation measures for the existing soil.

5.1.5 Water Resources

5.1.5.1 Surface Water

The Republic of Armenia is covered with a dense net of rivers. Armenian rivers belong to the Caspian Sea basin. Basins of the tributaries of Kur River occupy an area of 700 km² (Debed, Pambak, Aghstev, Tavush Rivers, etc.), and basins of the tributaries of Arax River an area of 22,790 km² (Akhuryan, Kasakh, Metsamor, Hrazdan, Azat, Vedi, Arpa, Vorotan Rivers, etc.). Armenia's rivers have mixed feeding - melting, groundwater, and rain. Their flow changes considerably within a year. During summer-time and fall, when water demand is approaching its maximum, the annual water share amounts to 20-25 %, in winter-time to 10-12 % of the total flow, whereas in spring-time is 55-70 %.

The Republic of Armenia is not rich in lakes. Sevan is the biggest lake in the Caucasus and Armenia. Its surface amounts to 1,240 km². The lake is located at an altitude of 1,897 m a.s.l. The rest of the lakes in the country (Kari, Akna, and Sev, etc.) are small and mostly located in the highland zones. Lake Arpi and Lake Parz (in Dilijan National Park) are located at a medium altitude highland zone. Lake Ayghr is a lowland lake fed by underground waters.

The Hrazdan River is the primary waterway in Armenia and the country's second largest river. While the Hrazdan River receives effluent from various agricultural, commercial, industrial, and residential sources, it is most significantly impacted by the discharge of Yerevan's almost entirely untreated wastewater. The effects of this poorly treated wastewater are

evident through a variety of water quality indicators, most notably through drastic drops in dissolved oxygen levels downstream of the city¹⁶. Water quality of the Hrazdan River is categorized as bad (5th class of the surface water quality assessment system of RA¹⁷) in the area south of Yerevan¹⁸. Comparative data for assessing the water quality are given in Table 2-12 in Section 2.4.

Regarding the Project Area, the nearest water body, Artashati Jrants Canal, is located 700 m southeast of the construction site. Thus, no risk of flooding of the area is foreseen. No water from this canal will be used for YCCPP-2 and no water will be discharged to it. It is planned that YCCPP-2 will only use the water from the city water grid and use the existing discharge structure (pipeline and open channels) downstream of YCCPP-1 for the discharge of the treated waste water (see Figure 3-3 in Section 3 for location of raw water tie-in, treated waste water and sewage water tie-in points). The YCCPP-1 discharges the treated wastewater into a 1 km pipeline and later to an existing man-made network of open channels – Figure 5-5. Afterwards, the water is finally discharged into the Hrazdan River as its ultimate receiver. The ultimate receiving point is located ca. 7-9 km away from the site (aerial distance) (Figure 5-6 and Figure 5-7). The same discharge infrastructure will be used by the new YCCPP-2. The waste water from YCCPP-2 will fulfill the requirements from IFC/World Bank General EHS Guidelines defining less than 3°C increase of ambient water temperature (see Section 2.4). For further details of the study see Section 12.7 in the Annexes.



Figure 5-5: Channels part of the channel network discharging the treated waste water of YCCPP-1finally to Hrazdan River (Source: courtesy of ADB, February 2018)

Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant in Yerevan

¹⁶ http://ace.aua.am/monitoring-dissolved-oxygen-in-the-hrazdan-river/

 ¹⁷ Source: RA Decision N75-N (2014) on the definition of the norms of ensuring water quality of management zone of each water basin based on peculiarities of the area
 ¹⁸ Ecobarik-Audit LLC (2016): Report of Evaluation of Environmental Impact of the new



Figure 5-6: Hrazdan River in the area where the channels discharge the treated waste water of YCCPP-1 finally to the river (Source: courtesy of ADB, February 2018)



O Discharge Point Waste Water YCCPP-2 construction site

Figure 5-7: Final discharge for the treated waste water from YCCPP-1 (and for the future for YCCPP-2 as well)

Analysis of the water quality of Hrazdan River were undertaken in November 2017 by GeoterProject Ltd. Samples were taken from one of the main channels leading the treated waste water from YCCPP-1 to Hrazdan River, as well as upstream and downstream of this discharge point. Analyzes of water quality was performed by the laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center in Yerevan. Analytical results were compared to the classes of the surface water quality assessment system of RA, as well to as European and German threshold values by U/C-tec GmbH and in this ESIA study.

The results of the analysis show that applicable European and German limit values are not exceeded (see Table 5-1). Bold results (Vanadium, Sodium, and Iron) justify the categorization of Hrazdan River as exceeding the national standards and as level 5 ("bad" water quality). The results show also that the **discharge of the treated waste water from the existing YCCPP-1 does not seem to affect the water quality of Hrazdan River negatively**, as the analyzed parameters upstream and downstream of the discharge point do not show any qualitative difference.

Parameter	Unit	Upstream	In the	Downstream	Armenian Water Quality Classes and Standards				European standard	German standard	
		channel	channel	channel	Ι	II *	Ш	IV	V	EU-WFD	OGewV
pН	-	7.45	7.76	7.47		6.5 – 9.	0		<6.5/>9		5.5 - 8.5
Minerals	mg/l	666	593	661							
BOD ₅	mgO ₂ /l	2.52	2.87	3.91	3	5	9	18	>18		<3
COD-Cr	mgO/l	42	26	30	10	25	40	80	>80		
Lithium	μg/l	26.6	25.28	27	1	36	50	<2500	>2500		
Sodium	mg/l	64.94	82.2	59.63	4.96	9.92	19.84	39.68	>39.68		
Magnesium	mg/l	27.5	21.96	27.46	2.8	50	100	200	>200		
Aluminium	μg/l	13.8	3.3	13.2	65	130	260	5000	>5000		
Potassium	mg/l	5.74	4.715	5.58	1.54	3.08	6.16	12.32	>12.32		
Calcium	mg/l	68.06	50.65	67.72	9.7	100	200	300	>300		
Titanium	μg/l	6.72	6.09	6.374	7	14	28	56	>56		
Vanadium	µg/l	14.96	17.7	13.205	1	2	4	8	>8		
Chrom	μg/l	4.34	3.73	4.477	1	10	100	250	>250		
Iron	μg/l	106.72	80.14	106.66	0.08	0.16	0.5	1	>1		
Manganese	µg/l	26.11	8.18	28.988	5	10	20	40	>40		
Cobalt	µg/l	0.34	0.55	0.304	0.14	0.28	0.56	1.12	>1.12		
Nickel	μg/l	3.31	4.04	3.085	1	11	50	100	>100	34	34
Copper	µg/l	1.83	1.53	1.679	3	23	50	100	>100		
Zinc	μg/l	2.5	0.6	2.253	3	100	200	500	>500		
Arsenic	μg/l	6.77	7.58	6.365	0.13	20	50	100	>100		
Selen	µg/l	2.1	1.1	2.069	0.47	20	40	80	>80		
Strontium	μg/l	387.97	254.36	391.98							
Molybdenum	μg/l	3.24	5.98	2.763	7	14	28	56	>56		
Cadmium	µg/l	0.021	0.03	0.019	0.02	1.02	2.02	4.02	>4.02	0.45-1.5	0.45
Tin	μg/l	0.0006	0.003	0.006	0.09	0.18	0.36	0.72	>0.72		
Stibium	μg/l	0.0912	0.12	0.11	0.19	0.38	0.76	1.52	>1.52		
Barium	µg/l	32.3	16.72	32.977	9	18	36	1000	>1000		
Lead	µg/l	0.21	0.092	0.692	0.3	10.3	25	50	>50	14	14
BETX	µg/l	<1	<1	<1	10	30	42	50	>50		50

Table 5-1: Surface water quality analysis from November 2017 and comparative data

Parameter	Unit	Upstream	In the	Downstream	Armenian W	ater Q	uality Cl	asses and	Standards	European standard	German standard
		channel	channel	channel	Ι	II *	III	IV	V	EU-WFD	OGewV
TPH	μg/l	<1	<1	<1	0.05	0.1	0.3	0.5	>0.5		
PAH	μg/l	ND	ND	ND							0.27

* The Scale Value "II" is considered as the Armenian Surface Water Quality Standard; the other values are used as a reference for classifying the water into levels. EU-WFD: EU Water Framework Directive

OGewV: Surface Water Regulation (Oberflächengewässerverordnung)

5.1.5.2 Groundwater

According to one of the geological studies¹⁹ the main water horizon at the construction site is connected with quaternary age sediments, which are spread on Miocene age hydrophobic clays. In quaternary water sediments the ground waters have widespread diffusion. These waters are non-pressure ground water flow, which is directed towards the incidence of the relief. The mentioned water horizon is fed by technical waters through precipitation, which penetrate into old CCPP area from Artashat channel underground drain and irrigation waters. The latter plays a great role connected with the intensity of irrigation associated with water level in the area. In the area of Yerevan CCPP during different years, ground water level fluctuate measuring data have shown that there is no pattern which proves that ground water level is related to irrigation, discharge of technical waters and drainage works.

Besides the described main horizon of the ground waters, also layer waters with weak pressure are met. Their level height from pit mouth is 0.3 m, which extends in Miocene age clays, in first layers and sub layers of sand. These layers have weak water tankage; in some places they supply to the water horizon and in some way affect its chemical composition. According to the archival materials the waters of the study area mainly have sulphate-sodium partly chlorine-sulphate-magnesium chemical composition. Ground waters existing in the area are considered to be strong saline, where the content of dissolved minerals according to archival materials fluctuates from 1,949 mg/l to 10,884.4 mg/l that is why they have a sulphate aggressive attitude to concrete marks.

According to another geological study²⁰, the groundwater level in the Project area is located at a depth of 0.5 to 7.0 m and shows a seasonal fluctuation of 0.5 to 1.0 m.

One monitoring study was performed in August 2017²¹ regarding groundwater quality and possible historic soil contamination at the construction site. Sampling was conducted according to the methodology of the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO of the Ministry of Nature Protection and the samples have been analyzed at the laboratory of the named institution. According to the RA Government Decree "On defining water quality norms for each water basin management area taking into consideration the peculiarities of the Locality," (RA Government Decree N 75-N, dated on 27 January 2011), the surface water quality assessment system in Armenia distinguishes five classes or grades: "excellent" (1st grade), "good" (2nd grade), "mediocre" (3rd grade);

¹⁹ Armpower CJSC (2017): Geological Report of Armhydroenergyproject CJSC

²⁰ Geoterproject LTD (2016): Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area

²¹ Consecoard LLC (2017): Report on Monitoring Services

envisages maximum permissible concentrations (MPC) for all classes. In case of exceeding them, the flow to water resources is prohibited.

YCCPP-2 is located in Hrazdan River basin (water shade) management area. The water in the lower stream of the Hrazdan River is classified as "bad". The results of all groundwater sampling tests made in August 2017 were within the limits of the 5th grade of water quality; however, limit values for groundwater do not exist in Armenia. For details and analysis results see Section 12.5 in the Annexes.

Dutch Standards²² are internationally used reference values for environmental pollutants used mainly in environmental remediation, investigation and cleanup. Values are given as "target values" and "intervention values" for groundwater and soil. For shallow groundwater between 1 m and 10 m below ground, the concentrations of all analyzed heavy metals are below the intervention values except for Vanadium and Zinc, according to initial samples undertaken by Consecoard (2017 - Annex 12.5).

Additional analyses of groundwater were undertaken in November 2017 by GeoterProject Ltd. to confirm or further extend the results from the analysis undertaken in August 2017. Field work was primarily planned by the German company U/C-tec GmbH. Three new groundwater wells were installed at the site with a depth of 10 meters. Groundwater table was measured between 1.9 to 2.7 m below surface. The chemical analyses were performed by the laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center in Yerevan. Analytical results were compared to German threshold values (Federal Soil Protection Act -BBodSchG and Groundwater Ordinance - GrwV) by U/C-tec GmbH and additionally to Dutch Standards in this ESIA report.

Analyses of the groundwater samples (November 2017) show that concentrations of several metals exceed the German and/or Dutch threshold values. This is the case for Vanadium (V), Arsenic (As), and Molybdenum (Mo) and slightly for Cadmium (Cd). Especially groundwater well No. 2 shows very high values (see Table 5-2). Concentrations of Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH), BTEX (Benzene, Toluene, Ethylene, Xylene) and Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH) have also been analyzed. No PAH were detected in the groundwater samples. Concentrations of BTEX and Benzol were below the respective threshold values. Concentrations of TPH exceed the German limit values at groundwater well No. 1 and especially at well No. 2.

Analyzed concentrations of some metals in the groundwater samples also exceed the limit value of the worst class 5 of the surface water quality assessment system in Armenia (RA Government Decree N 75-N, dated on 27 January 2011): concentrations of Sodium (Na) are 5 to 10-fold higher,

²² Soil Remediation Circular (2009). http://esdat.net/Environmental_Standards.aspx

Vanadium (V) 10 to 95-fold higher, Manganese (Mn) up to 10-fold higher, Cobalt (Co) up to 5-fold higher, Arsenic (As) 2-fold higher.

Thus, according to the new samples taken in November 2017, the **groundwater at the site exceeds international standards for some heavy metals and organic pollutants**. These high values of some heavy metals in the analyzed groundwater are most probably based on the industrial background of the wider area around the construction site. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur.

The reports from GeoterProject Ltd. and U/C-tec GmbH including the detailed analyses results are presented in Section 12.11 in the Annexes.

Sakatanaa	German Sta	ndards	Dutch Standard	Measured values [µg/l] - November 2017		
Substance	BBodSchG [µg/l]	GrwV [µg/l]	Intervention value [µg/l]	Well 1	Well 2	Well 3
Arsenic (As)	10	10	60	22.94	215.5	16.57
Barium (Ba)			625	39.86	31.43	36.57
Cadmium (Cd)	5	0.5	6	0.25	0.59	0.16
Chromium (Cr)	50		30	4.41	12.37	9.98
Cobalt (Co)	50		100	1.1	5.4	2.33
Copper (Cu)	50		75	7	9.47	10.74
Nickel (Ni)	50		75	14.96	5.41	25.28
Lead (Pb)	25	10	75	0.08	0.18	0.09
Molybden um (Mo)	50		300	72.97	219.4	58.45
Selenium (Se)	10		160	6.73	8.75	8.42
Tin (Sn)	40		50	0.04	0.1	0.05
Vanadium (V)			70	84.95	759.87	52.84
Zinc (Zn)	500		800	4.64	3.78	7.41
BETX	20			<1	0.56	<1
Benzol	1			<1	<1	<1
ТРН	200			168	7,407	<1
РАН	0.2			n.d.	n.d.	n.d.

 Table 5-2:
 Groundwater quality comparative data (November 2017 data)

BBodSchG: Federal Soil Protection Act (Bundesbodenschutzgesetz) GrwV: Groundwater Ordinance (Grundwasserverordnung) The studies from August 2017 and November 2017 show some common results, but also some differences. In respect for international practices (prevention principle), the worst case scenario is considered in this ESIA, and mitigation measures are defined accordingly.

5.1.6 Climate and Air Quality

5.1.6.1 Climate

Because of Armenia's position in the deep interior of the northern part of the subtropical zone, enclosed by lofty ranges, its general climate is dry and continental. Nevertheless, regional climatic variation is considerable. The capital Yerevan is located at the lowest altitudes of the country (between 900 and 1200 m a.s.l.). Here, the prevailing climate is a mountainous continental climate. The location is classified as BSk by Köppen and Geiger. It is characterized by hot and arid summers (Figure 5-8) and rather cold winters; in a year there are on average a hundred days with minimum temperatures below freezing. The average temperature in Yerevan is 11.6°C. In summer (July and August) the average temperature exceeds 30°C. The coldest month is January at -4°C.Generally, there is little rainfall throughout the year; precipitation averages 319 mm. The driest months are June to October with an average below 25 mm of rain. The wettest months are February, April and May with an average of 40 mm of rain.



Figure 5-8: Average temperatures (min. and max.) and precipitation (mm) in Yerevan (30-year global history with hourly weather data).²³

On average, the most wind is seen in July. The strongest wind speed is observed in March and April (> 38 km/h). On average, the least wind is seen

²³ https://www.weather-and-climate.com





Figure 5-9: The diagram for Yerevan shows how many days within one month can be expected to reach certain wind speeds

Figure 5-10 presents the wind rose for the years 2014 to 2016. It shows that the prevailing winds blow from northeast (NE). The wind rose also indicates that the more frequent wind speeds are between 1.5 and 3 m/sec, which is equivalent, in the Beaufort scale, to the levels "light air" and "light breeze". The wind data is relevant especially for the Air Dispersion Calculation (see Section 12.8 in the Annexes). Data was used from the meteorological station at Zvartnots Airport, which is the closest site to YCCPP-2.



Figure 5-10: Wind rose for the years 2014-2016 (wind blowing from)

5.1.6.2 Air Quality

Air pollution has always been a sensitive issue in Armenia. According to a recent report of the WHO²⁴ these unfavorable conditions have hardly improved and Armenia is on the top ten list of deaths linked to air pollution in Europe, with 125 deaths per 100,000 inhabitants per annum. Although data from 2004 (when population depended mainly on solid fuel) was used, numbers are still very high. Particulate matter (PM_{10}) is the most important air pollutant in urban atmospheres of Armenia, which is created in a considerable degree from vehicle air emissions. Old diesel vehicles, an insufficiently developed public transport and problematic traffic management lead to high emissions from motor transport.

The City of Yerevan is surrounded by mountains on three sides which does not allow for natural dispersion of pollutants in the atmosphere, thereby resulting in high concentrations in the air. The main source of air pollutants are emissions arising from automobiles.

According to Ecobarik-Audit LLC (2016) the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO (Ecomonitoring) of the Ministry of Nature Protection of the RA monitors the atmospheric air pollution of Yerevan city with five stationary points of measurement. On the basis of their measurements the background level of city air pollution is calculated. The following data on the pollution of the air basin of Yerevan are according to 2014 reference of Ecomonitoring:

- Air basin observations were done by 24-hour active sampling. The contents of dust, SO₂, NOx and near-ground O₃ were determined. In total 9,963 air samples were taken by active sampling. The average annual concentrations of the determined materials did not exceed the maximum permissible concentrations (MPC).
- Atmospheric air observations through automatic devices were made at five observation points in the city. The contents of CO, SO₂ and NOx in the atmosphere were determined. In total 347,538 observations of air were made through automatic devices. According to the data of automatic observations the average annual concentrations of the materials determined in the atmosphere did not exceed the MPC.
- Air basin observations with passive samplers were made in 48 observation points of the city. 4,715 samples of air were taken, in which the average annual concentrations of SO₂ and NOx did not exceed the maximum permissible concentrations (MPC).

To obtain up-to-date data about the ground level concentrations (GLC) of air pollutants in the Project Area of Influence, and help defining the airshed as degraded or non-degraded (according to the WB EHS Guidelines), FICHTNER undertook a baseline air quality assessment in July/August 2017 (Summer), October/November 2017 (Autumn), and December

²⁴ WHO (2016), World Health Statistics 2016

2017/January 2018 (Winter) in the Project Area of Influence. These campaigns included the measurement of SO₂, NO₂ and PM₁₀ in 5 locations around the project area, including the specific areas where the highest pollution levels resulting from the operation of the YCCPP - 2 are expected:

- For gases (SO₂ and NO₂), the Consultant performed a 7 days campaign in Summer, a 10 days campaign in Autumn, and a 30 days campaign in Winter with diffusion tubes, followed by a laboratory analysis.
- For particulates (PM₁₀), the Consultant performed 5 days campaigns in Summer and Autumn, and a 30 days campaign in Winter.

The results show that the airshed surrounding the future YCCPP - 2 can be classified as **non-degraded** regarding the pollutants PM_{10} , SO_2 and NO_2 . Please consult further details on this study on Annex 12.8 to this ESIA.

New monitoring campaigns will be undertaken in Spring 2018 to capture the seasonal variations in the pollutant's GLC, and reinforce or adapt this conclusion.

5.1.7 Noise

To obtain data about the existing noise levels in the Project Area of Influence, FICHTNER undertook a noise monitoring campaign in an area around the YCCPP-2 site at five monitoring points, including work-days and weekends at day-time as well as night-time. Measurement point Noise 1 is placed approx. 1,700 m to the south-west of YCCPP-2; it is located near the northeast border of Ayntap community. Measurement point Noise 2 is situated approx. 1,750 m to the west from YCCPP-2. This point is located on the eastern border of Noragavit settlement in front of the highway. Measurement points Noise 3 and Noise 5 are located in Kharberd horticultural settlement. Both points are situated along the northern border of the settlement, south of YCCPP-2. Noise 5 is located at a distance of approx. 1,100 m, while the distance between Noise 3 and YCCPP-2 is 1,500 m. Measurement point Noise 4 is placed in an industrial area near the northern border of the YCCPP-2 (Figure 5-11). The results are shown in Table 5-3. Please consult further details on this study on Annex 12.6 to this ESIA.



Baseline monitoring - Noise

Figure 5-11: Baseline Monitoring Points - Noise

The campaign used the Sound Level Meter WS1361, a high precision instrument in line with the International Committee TYPE 2 ANSI S1.4 and the United States National Standard TYPE 2 IEC 651. According to The Sanitary Norms N2-III-11.3, the applicable noise limits in the residential areas are 45 dB(A) during the night time and 55 dB(A) during the day time (the same limits imposed by the IFC General EHS Guidelines). In the industrial areas the limits fluctuate from 50 dB(A) to 80 dB(A) depending on the category of works. The IFC General EHS Guidelines impose a limit of 70 dB(A) for industrial sites. The said limits are referred to the total environment noise (the power plant contribution + the current sound pressure ("ante operam" or baseline sound pressure)).

Point of measurement	Wind speed [m/s]	Time of measurement	Leq(A) [db(A)]
Work-day		·	
D1	< 1.7	Day-time	49.8
K1	< 1.8	Night-time	47.1
D2	< 1.9	Day-time	72.6
K2	< 2.3	Night-time	62.4
D2	< 1.8	Day-time	48.1
K3	< 1.7	Night-time	40.0
D.4	< 1.6	Day-time	53.6
K4	< 1.9	Night-time	57.3
D.5	< 1.7	Day-time	36.2
KJ	< 2.0	< 2.0 Night-time	
Weekend			
D 1	< 1.5	Day-time	43.3
K1	< 2.1	Night-time	49.0
DJ	< 1.8	Day-time	72.8
KZ	< 2.5	Night-time	59.2
D2	< 1.9	Day-time	43.9
KJ	< 2.0	Night-time	33.9
D4	< 1.8	Day-time	56.4
K4	< 2.0	Night-time	57.2
P5	< 1.5	Day-time	35.6
KJ (< 1.8	Night-time	34.2

 Table 5-3:
 Results of the baseline noise monitoring at the Project site

Note: On sensitive receptor R4 the limit of 70 dB(A) is applicable during the day and during the night.

Baseline day-time noise evaluation

Based on the noise measurement results conducted during work-days and weekend days, it can be concluded that the noise equivalent levels in/near the residential areas were generally within the applicable limits except the point R2 (located in front of the highway), where the noise level exceeded the 55 dB(A) normative value. This can be explained by the movement of heavy vehicles and high traffic density along the highway.

Baseline night-time noise evaluation

Equivalent noise levels during work-days and weekend days at measurement points R3 and R5 are within the 45 dB(A) limit. Noise levels at point R1 during both work-days and weekend days were slightly exceeding the limit (2.1 dB(A) and 4 dB(A) accordingly). This is due to the existence of background night noise from the facilities located in the vicinities. As a result of night-time measurements, the equivalent noise level at point R2 (located in front of the highway) is above the 45 dB(A) limit. The reason is high traffic density along the highway even at night-time.

5.1.8 Landscape

In spite of its comparably small surface area, Armenia is topographically highly diverse. A broad range of landscapes is found. Yerevan is part of the "low mountain dry steppe" landscape zone.

The Project Area is located in a highly industrialized area in southern Yerevan. Here, the existing YCCPP-1, chemical plants, metal factories and other industrial infrastructure dominate the landscape that is characterized by existing stacks, gas pipelines and other visual burdens.

5.2 Socio-economic Conditions

5.2.1 Population within the Project Area of Influence

The Republic of Armenia has a population of approx. 3 million people with a territory of 29,743 km². Population density is 101 persons/km². Nominal GDP is \$10.56 billion (2015), per capita \$ 3,595. The Human Development Index is estimated for 2010 at 0.733 which ranks the country 85th, the lowest among the Transcaucasian republics. After the break-up of the USSR the country has experienced a problem of population decline due to elevated levels of emigration. The rates of emigration have decreased drastically in the recent years and a moderate influx of Armenians returning to Armenia is expected to continue.

Ethnic Armenians make up 98.1 % of the population. Yazidis make up 1.2 %, and Russians 0.4 %. Other minorities include Assyrians, Ukrainians, Greeks, Kurds, Georgians, and Belarusians. There are also smaller communities of Vlachs, Mordvins, Ossetians, Udis, and Tats. Minorities of Poles and Caucasus Germans also exist though they are heavily russified.²⁵ According to the Statistical Yearbook of Armenia 2016²⁶ Yerevan has a population of 1,075,000 inhabitants with a density of 4,815 persons/km².

There are no people living within the YCCPP-2 site/Project Area. The population in the Project Area of Influence can be differentiated into urban population of the districts of Shengavit (approx. 140,000 inhabitants) and Erebuni (approx. 117,000 inhabitants) and the village population of Ayntap (approx. 11,000 inhabitants) and Kharberd (approx. 17,000 inhabitants).

5.2.2 Sensitive Receptors

People living in the residential areas at a distance between 1,200 m and 1,500 m from YCCPP-2 site might be affected by noise and air emissions during construction, operation, and decommissioning of the new power

²⁵ Source: Asatryan, Garnik; Arakelova, Victoria (2002). The Ethnic Minorities of Armenia. Routledge

²⁶ National Statistical Service of RA 2016; http://www.armstat.am

plant. As YCCPP-2 will be located in an industrial area with the existing YCCPP-1, chemical plants, metal factories and other industrial infrastructure, the newly created noise and air emissions will accumulate with the already existing burden.

This might be the case for people living in the legal and illegal residential areas in the Project Area of Influence, as well as the training center of the fire brigade located to the southwest of the project site. All these receptors, including illegal residents, are located <u>outside the land plot</u> allocated for the project (see Figure 5-12 and Pictures below). Notwithstanding, since these residential areas are located within the Project Area of Influence, they are considered in this ESIA as receptors for potential impacts. It shall be noted that, according to a written communication from the Municipality of Yerevan, the YCCPP-2 Project will not have any influence on the future of the nearby illegal houses located northeast and south of the construction site (see Annex 12.1). These people are classified as vulnerable under ADB's Safeguard Requirements as they are poor and occupy illegal housing. Their vicinity to the Project Area makes them directly affected by construction and operation impacts, however no physical or economic displacement will occur due to the Project.



Figure 5-12: Location of illegal houses located northeast and south of new YCCPP-2 and training center of fire brigade



Figure 5-13: Illegal houses located northeast of YCCPP-1 and YCCPP-2 (Source: Fichtner, July 2017)

In a distance of about 1 km from the new YCCPP-2 no schools, kindergartens, hospitals, etc. are found. Nearest hospital is Erebuni Medical Center which is located approx. 3 km northeast of the new power plant.

5.2.3 Livelihood and Housing

Despite economic reforms and some recent growth, unemployment and poverty remain widespread in Armenia. Agriculture is the country's largest labor sector, followed by services and industry. The UNDP report (Spoor 2004) analyses that rural poverty used to be lower than urban poverty, and access to land has been important in the explanation of this phenomenon. However, rural poverty in 2003 has surpassed its urban counterpart, stagnating at a level similar to 1996. While access to land is still widespread in rural Armenia, amongst farm households, the poor and extreme poor are those who own very little land, or the landless. The poorest Armenians are found in rural areas with the least favorable conditions for agricultural activities. There is a stark contrast between the city of Yerevan and the remote rural areas in terms of socio-economic opportunities. The industrial area in the south of Yerevan provides some jobs also for people living in the surrounding villages.

5.2.4 Land Usage and Ownership

According to the Statistical Yearbook of Armenia (2016) RA has approx. 2 million ha of agricultural land, meaning about 70 % of the country's land area. Most of this, however, are pastures (about 1 million ha). Cultivable land comprises about 446,700 ha arable land, 34,400 ha perennial grass, 121,100 ha plough-land, and 392,200 ha others.

The Project Area is part of a highly industrialized region of Yerevan. Only the area west of the foreseen construction site (but outside of it) is used for pasture and/or agricultural purposes. The whole area of the construction site has already been acquired by ArmPower CJSC and local population does not live in nor use the land in any way. ArmPower/RENCO entered a land purchase agreement with the seller (Yerevan Thermal Power Plant CJSC) in March 2017. According to this agreement, the Seller guarantees that the land is free of any form of occupancy or any other possession by any third party and there are no current and, to the best of its knowledge, threatened or pending actions, suits or other proceedings which may affect the Seller's rights to dispose of the Project Land, and the Purchaser's title to the Project Land. The designated purpose of the Land is "for energy, transport, communication, utility infrastructure objects", as stated in the title certificate 18042017-01-0184. A legal opinion has been emitted by an Armenian lawyers company, which stated that the preliminary agreement is legally binding and enforceable. The land was owned by the government and the seller since the 1960s. Some fields and farmlands are located to the west and south of the construction site but outside of the Project Area. These fields and farmlands will not be impacted by the Project. As already mentioned in Section 5.2.2 there are some people living illegally in houses outside of the construction site (northeast and south).

5.2.5 Historical and Cultural Sites

As the history of human settlement in Armenia goes back to the Neolithic age and the area has since then been important as settlement, trade and agricultural area, numerous historical and cultural sites exist. However, there are no maps indicating exact locations (GPS coordinates) of the sites. Also, only a minor part of the existing monuments are visible and known to the public. Others are known only to a few local experts linked to the Department for the Protection of Monuments of RA.

No known historical or cultural sites are located within the Project Area of Influence. As there has been significant ground disturbance of the area in the past, the presence of undisturbed historical or cultural remains at the site is very unlikely. Nonetheless, the Ministry of Culture shall be informed by the EPC Contractor about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site, if deemed necessary. For the case of an unexpected encounter of Cultural and Historical Sites or Goods a Chance Find Procedure will be implemented for construction period (see Section 6.3.3). The Erebuni Museum of History and Architecture is located approx. 4 km from the foreseen construction site.

6. Environmental and Social Impact Assessment

In this chapter, possible environmental and social impacts from the construction, operation and decommissioning of YCCPP-2 are analyzed. Potential impacts of the Project in relation to environmental and social receptors are characterized and the extent of the impact (after implementation of mitigation measures) is assessed. The following evaluation scale is applied:

Significance of impact:

0	-	
	=	high negative
	=	medium negative
	=	low negative
	=	nil
+	=	locally positive
++	=	regionally positive

6.1 Environmental Impacts during Construction Phase

6.1.1 Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity

Site preparation for the plant extension requires clearing of vegetation and ground excavation. Hence, the construction activities will result in a permanent loss of the sparse vegetation composed of grass, herbs and some bushes. As the biodiversity value of the construction site is assessed to be low, there are only low impacts on biodiversity expected during the construction phase.

Under normal dry weather conditions, a significant amount of dust will be released by excavating activities. Hence, vegetation and animal habitats in the vicinity of the site might be affected by wind-blown dust and its deposition. The contribution to the natural dust concentration in the air will only be of relevance at the beginning of the construction phase, during the main excavation activities. During this period, dust can be expected to settle on plant leaves, which could hinder plant's air exchange and assimilation.

The temporarily increased vehicular traffic coupled with high noise levels due to various construction activities may also have some negative impacts on animals. Especially birds and other acoustically orientated animals potentially living in the vicinity of the site and the roads used could be disturbed by noise. However, the site has been assessed to be of low ecological value. No significant impacts by dust and noise on the flora and fauna in the vicinity of the site and the used roads are to be expected.

The impact significance will be low if mitigation measures are implemented. Adequate mitigation measures are possible and are given in the ESMP.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Fauna and Flora	

6.1.2 Protected Areas

As no Protected Areas or other sensitive areas like Ramsar Sites or Important Bird and Biodiversity Sites (IBA) are located within or near to the Project Area of Influence, there will be no impacts from the Project on any of these areas.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Protected Areas	0

6.1.3 Soil

6.1.3.1 Soil Use and Soil Erosion

Loss of vegetation and soil compaction increases the soils' vulnerability to erosion. Erosion can cause further unwanted interactions. Earthmoving activities such as vegetation clearing, grading and grubbing for site preparation, and heavy equipment hauling over unpaved ground, may loosen soils and cause fugitive dust and particulate matter to become airborne.

Armenia suffers significant soil erosion problems. But, compared to other regions in Armenia, the Project Area is not prone to soil erosion due to the following reasons:

- the terrain at construction site is nearly flat
- there are no hazardous physical-geological phenomena and processes (like landslides, rock slides, rock fall, erosion, suffosion, etc.) in the Project Area

Due to the restricted surface area of the planned construction activities and after implementation of the mitigation measures given in the ESMP, impacts on soil use and soil erosion are considered low. However, it is recommended that the EPC Contractor develops and implements an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Soil Use and Soil Erosion	

6.1.3.2 Soil Contamination

As mentioned in Section 5.1.4, analysis of a possible historic soil contamination at the construction site has been performed in August 2017 and an additional analysis to confirm the initial results and provide a more detailed picture of the site was done in November 2017. For details and analysis results see Sections 12.5 and 12.11 in the Annex. Concentration of heavy metals in the analyzed soil samples are far below international threshold standards. However, national Armenian MACs are exceeded by some heavy metals. These very strict MACs can be directly applied if the site is used for the construction of schools, playgrounds, etc. If other usage of the area is foreseen (e.g. industrial use) a calculation has to be done according to Armenian Decision N 1277-N in order to classify the soil as clean, permissible, moderately dangerous, dangerous or extremely dangerous (see Section 2.4). According to this calculation, the soil at the YCCPP-2 is classified as "permissible" (see more details in Annex 12.10). This kind of soil may be used for construction of non-high vulnerability objects²⁷ without further mitigation measures. This is the case for the YCCPP-2.

It has also to be clarified, that during construction and operation of the new YCCPP-2 no pollutants will be added to soil, if the mitigation measured are implemented. RENCO has no liability for soil remediation in their land purchase agreement.

Soil contamination during construction works can arise from improper waste disposal and accidental leakage from tanks of lubricants, solvents, paint, oil, diesel, chemicals, etc. Depending on the kind of the contaminant, soil can be polluted short- or long-term. Measures given in the ESMP to prevent pollution of soil by oil and chemical spills have to be implemented during construction phase.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Soil Contamination	

6.1.4 Water Resources

6.1.4.1 Surface Water

The nearest water body to the construction site is Artashati Jrants Canal, located about 700 m to the south east. The Hrazdan River is located at least 5 km away from the construction site. Thus, surface water is not expected to

²⁷ High vulenrability objects are: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains

be influenced during the construction period, including possible phenomena of soil erosion.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Surface Water	ο

6.1.4.2 Groundwater

No groundwater will be used in any way during construction period of the Project. Operation of workers' camps during the construction period will not be necessary, as local workforce from Yerevan will be employed who can return to their homes daily, and those from other cities/abroad will be lodged in RENCO's guesthouse or hotels. However, during construction period toilets and sanitary rooms will have to be provided for the workforce at the construction site, separately for men and women and according to IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note²⁸. Sewage water shall be led to the city sewage water system, or septic tanks will have to be used for collecting sewage water which then would have to be emptied by a specialized company from time to time. An alternative has not yet been chosen by the EPC Contractor. In terms of environmental impacts, both alternatives are acceptable as long as a proper final destination of the liquid effluents is provided.

Contamination of the soil can indirectly lead to a pollution of the groundwater. Groundwater contamination can e.g. arise from improper waste storage and accidental leakage from tanks of lubricants, solvents, paint, oil, diesel, chemicals, etc. Depending on the kind of the contaminant, the groundwater may be polluted short or long term. Measures given in the ESMP to prevent pollution of groundwater by oil and chemical spills have to be implemented during construction phase.

An effective mitigation strategy to prevent pollution of the groundwater at the construction sites is to enforce a Waste Management Plan (see Section 6.1.7). Storing of construction material and any kinds of waste outside defined places shall be prevented and potential pollutants shall be handled properly. The impact magnitude is expected to be low when applying the identified mitigation measures.

The results of all groundwater sampling tests made in August 2017 (Consecoard LLC) were within the limits of the 5th grade of water quality; however, limit values for groundwater do not exist in Armenia. For details and analysis results see Section 12.5 in the Annexes.

Additional analysis of groundwater was undertaken in November 2017 by GeoterProject at three sampling sites (upstream of the site, at the site, and downstream of the site) for content of TPH, PAH, BTEX, Metals, as well as

²⁸ see IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note on Workers' Accommodation (2009)

pH, dissolved oxygen, mineralization, BOD5, and COD5. Results of these analyses show that groundwater is contaminated by some heavy metals and organic pollutants (see Section 5.1.5.2 and Section 12.11 in the Annex for details and results). However, it is not foreseen that the groundwater will be influenced or used by the Project.

An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently deviate groundwater around the site. According to the latest engineering designs, the possibility is being studied of setting up a clay barrier around the site together with underground drainage trenches filled with gravel. These trenches would collect groundwater and naturally convey and disperse it away from the foundations. This solution is to be set before construction but be kept during operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur.

Notwithstanding the above, the Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction. This will include consideration of impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties.

In the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network), treatment options need to be included as well in the future assessment study. Options to remove hydrocarbons could include separation and filtration methods, such as an oil-water separator and activated carbon filter. It is noted that an oil-water separator is planned for the site. Depending on where the water would be discharged, different standards would apply. An overview of applicable standards can be consulted in Section 2.4 of this report.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)		
Groundwater deviation	(still unknown - see ESAP)		
Groundwater contamination			

6.1.5 Climate and Air Quality

Dust generation from transportation and construction activities as well as emissions from vehicles and construction machinery will be the main impacts on air quality during the construction phase of the proposed Project.

During construction activities dust particles can be swirled up resulting in a visible dust deposition close to the construction activities. Dust generation and distribution is dependent on weather conditions, wind speed,

FICHTNER

precipitation rate, as well as type and extent of construction activities. Dust deposition under low precipitation rates and high temperatures will be much higher than under wet conditions.

The main sources of dust emissions during construction are site clearing, site excavation and other earthworks as well as movement of construction vehicles.

During construction, the proposed project will lead to an increase in overall traffic flows for a limited period, which will cause a rise in vehicular emissions. These emissions together with exhaust emissions from construction machinery are likely to result in marginal increases in the emissions of SO_2 , NO_x , CO, CO_2 , and unburned hydrocarbons (UHC).

Due to the limited duration of the construction period and implementation of mitigation measures (like covering soil piles with tarps, etc.), the impact on air quality during construction can be considered as low.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Climate and Air Quality	

6.1.6 Landscape and Visual Aspects

The construction site is located in a highly industrialized area in southern Yerevan. Here, the existing YCCPP-1, chemical plants, metal factories and other industrial infrastructure dominate the landscape. During construction activities heavy construction machinery will be working at the site producing dust (e.g. due to excavation works) and thus representing a visual impact which can be mitigated by spraying water during this kind of activity. The construction of the new power plant will add further highly visible structures (e.g. stacks and buildings) to the Project Area of Influence. However, due to the already existing industrial infrastructure in the area, the construction of YCCPP-2 will not enhance the contrast between the industrial site and the surrounding areas significantly. It is recommended to develop and implement a landscape / planting plan for the YCCPP-2 site. As a recommendation that came up during the Public Consultation meeting it shall also be taken into account to include landscaping in the Shengavit and Erebuni Districts. After construction works all construction waste shall be cleared up and all machinery shall be removed. Any adjacent damaged areas (if any) shall be reinstated.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Landscape and Visual Aspects	

6.1.7 Waste

The main waste types generated during construction works can be generally classified as follows:

- domestic wastes generated by the workers (e.g. paper, plastic, drink containers, food waste etc.)
- plant debris from clearance of the construction site
- excavated inert material
- spilled soil polluted e.g. by fuel, engine oil or lubricants
- construction waste (e.g. unused/ unusable construction material, wood from framework, maintenance waste, packaging material, empty containers etc.)
- small amounts of hazardous waste like fuel, oils, paint, lubricants, etc.

Waste Management Plan:

Possible impacts on soil and water can be prevented and mitigated by a professional handling and storage of hazardous substances and a proper handling of waste. The EPC Contractor (RENCO) shall develop a **Waste Management Plan** for the construction period that contains at least the following principles:

- respecting the waste management hierarchy of avoidance, preparing for reuse, recycling as much as possible, recovery, and proper disposal of remaining waste according to EU Directive 2008/98/EC (Waste Framework Directive)
- segregating all waste by category on site, based on their nature, and ultimate disposal sites
- good technical planning in order to minimize the generation of construction waste
- regular staff training to increase awareness of waste minimization issues and handling of different wastes.

A **Waste Management System** shall be implemented. In general, the generated construction waste shall be recycled as much as possible on site and the construction activities shall be controlled regularly. Storing of construction material, excavated soil and all kinds of waste outside defined places as well as throwing waste in open spaces shall be prevented.

The EPC Contractor will have to establish an official agreement with municipal authorities regarding the final disposal of the different wastes resulting from the works. This may include using the services of communal service providers for domestic waste disposal purposes during the construction period. If any scrap metal will accrue as waste, this can be sold to local recycling companies in Yerevan like e.g. Metexim LLC, or others.

Small amounts of hazardous waste like residual oil, fuel, paint or spill contaminated soil may accrue and shall be stored in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at the new

FICHTNER

YCCPP-2 site. All hazardous wastes shall be securely packed in sealed drums or other suitable containers, clearly identified by labels, and marked according to national and internationally recognized requirements and standards, including the International Chemical Safety Cards (ICSC), Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), or equivalent. If any asbestos containing material (ACM) will be found at the construction site, all ACM has to be securely double bagged in high-density polyethylene (HDPE) bags and sealed (e.g. using duct tape). All bags shall be labeled to show that they contain asbestos containing materials and shall be stored in a separate bunded and locked storage room with a warning sign installed. The final disposal of hazardous waste is subject to medium to long term national-level solutions to be decided upon and provided by the Government of RA, as no suitable disposal sites do exist in Yerevan or Armenia at the time being.

During the site visit in July 2017 empty oil drums, gas cylinders, scrap metal, old metal cabins, old toilets and wash basins and other material that has been disposed on the foreseen construction site of YCCPP-2 were found (see figure and pictures below). During the site visit in February 2018 it was found that the gas cylinders and the empty oil drums had been removed meanwhile to the property of YCCPP-1. All the material presently existing at the site is in possession of YCCPP-1 and will be removed by them. It is recommended that this material shall be segregated and stored or disposed of accordingly. There are also some concreted areas at the construction site which will have to be removed. Concrete waste can be disposed of at Yerevan dumping site or used as land filling material. The material located at the temporary laydown area (mainly scrap metal and wood) will be removed by YCCPP-1 to another location at their property.



Figure 6-1: Location of waste on the site found during the site visit of July 2017

FICHTNER



Figure 6-2: Scrap metal



Figure 6-4: Metal cabin on concreted area



Figure 6-6: Gas cylinders / scrap metal

(Source: Fichtner, July 2017)



Figure 6-8: Scrap metal at the temporary laydown area

(Source: Fichtner, February 2018)



Figure 6-3: Wooden and metal material



Figure 6-5: Old toilets and wash basins



Figure 6-7: Old filter

If all mitigation measures given in the ESMP are implemented, including a Waste Management Plan and a Waste Management System, the impact from waste is rated as medium (because there is not a solution for hazardous waste disposal in Armenia presently).

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Waste	

6.2 Environmental Impacts during Operation Phase

6.2.1 Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity

Compliance with the performance guarantees for NO_X , CO and UHC will be achieved at the plant and monitored by a CEMS. Added to this, as no sensitive fauna and flora species occur in the Project Area of Influence the impact on these components derived from air emissions will be low.

Impacts on aquatic organisms of the Hrazdan River, which is categorized as having a bad water quality, are foreseen to be low. The waste water streams will be treated and discharged according to applicable requirements (see Section 6.2.4 for further details).

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Fauna and Flora	

6.2.2 Protected Areas

As no Protected Areas or other sensitive areas like Ramsar Sites or Important Bird and Biodiversity Sites (IBA) are located near the Project Area of Influence, there will be no impacts from the operation of YCCPP-2 on any of these areas.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Protected Areas	ο

6.2.3 Soil

Soil contamination can be possible due to spillages from oil/ fuel/ paint/ chemicals used during operation of the power plant. However, if the mitigation measures given in the ESMP (like correct storage and handling of those items; use of spill-fighting materials, etc.) are implemented, the impact is rated low.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Soil Contamination	

6.2.4 Water Resources

6.2.4.1 Water Supply

Water supply during operation of the YCCPP-2 will be branched from the existing water pipelines which are presently serving the YCCPP-1. All water will be taken from the Yerevan potable water grid and will be used for all civil utilities like cooking, drinking, etc. It will also be used as process water which is connected to the raw water storage tank and for all other uses (e.g. cooling tower make up, HRSG blow-down tank quench, firewater tank and network, utility water network, etc.). Cooling towers are designed as evaporative towers needing the highest share of the raw water (approx. 310 m³/h). The maximum power plant water flow rate (referred to normal operation) will be 450 m³/h (annual average). The necessary average monthly water quantity will be around 300,000 m³. Use of potable water is agreed and described in the Framework Agreement between ArmPower and the Government of Armenia and in the correspondence between ArmPower and Veolia Djur CJSC, the local drinking water supplier (see Section 12.2 in the Annex). The location of the tie-in point for raw water can be consulted in Figure 3-3 in Section 3.


Figure 6-9: Preliminary Water Balance of YCCPP-2 (Source: RENCO)

6.2.4.2 Surface Water

All waste water coming from the power plant operation will be duly collected and routed to an onsite waste water treatment plant at YCCPP-2 (which is still in the detailed design phase). It will include an API and, if necessary, a CPI oil separator, as well as a biological treatment of the waste water. The treated water will be discharged to the existing discharge pipeline and open channels downstream of YCCPP-1. It will finally be discharged to the Hrazdan River, 7-9 km away from the site (see Figure 5-7). The treatment system will be suitably selected and implemented to meet the environmental limits and the good industry practice.

Since there are no Armenian standards for the quality of the liquid effluents, the limits applicable to the effluents of the YCCPP-2 will be defined by the Ministry of Nature Protection based on a nationally recognized calculation method. This ESIA recommends that such limits are at least as stringent as those provided in the Design Data of ArmPower for YCCPP-2 (2017), as these comply with the IFC Guidelines (see Section 2.4 of this report, where also the allowed concentrations on the effluent of YCCPP-1 are provided for comparison).

According to RENCO, rain water from internal roads and other paved areas will be collected and led to the onsite waste water treatment plant before discharging it to the existing system of YCCPP-1. Rain water from roofs of buildings and shelters will be collected in an underground tank (location and routing will be defined) for reusing the water without any treatments for irrigation inside the YCCPP-2 site.

According to the water balance scheme the HRSG blow down water will be led to the cooling towers. Drainage from these cooling towers will be neutralized at the chemical shop of the power plant, and will then enter the onsite waste water treatment plant to meet the relevant water quality standards.

The domestic sewage will be connected to the already existing city sewage collection system.

According to RENCO's water balance, approx. 70 m³/h of treated waste water will be discharged by YCCPP-2 into the existing discharge system downstream of YCCPP-1, which is large enough to accommodate this additional flow (for location of the tie-in point see Figure 3-3). Additionally, approx. 14 m³/h of sanitary sewage water will be led to the city sewage system operated by Veolia Djur CJSC, which is (according to RENCO) large enough to receive this additional flow.

A monthly monitoring program shall be established to be performed by ArmPower and results shall be reported to the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO at the Ministry of Nature Protection. The objective is to guarantee the adherence of all industrial wastewater, sanitary

water to the effluent standards that are still to be set by national authorities for YCCPP-2, the design data/performance guarantee values, or international limit values, whichever are **more stringent**.

In order to assess the influence of the YCCPP-2 treated waste water (together with YCCPP-1 waste water) on the water quality of the ultimate recipient Hrazdan River, chemical water quality parameters were analyzed from samples taken upstream and downstream of the discharge point to the River. Results of analyses show that the discharge of the treated waste water of YCCPP-1 has no negative effect on the water quality of Hrazdan River (see Section 5.1.5.1).

According to RENCO the temperature of the treated waste water will be in the range of 25°C to max. 34°C depending on the seasonally varying ambient temperature. However, thermal impacts of the water finally discharged to Hrazdan River as ultimate receiver via the existing discharge pipeline and channels are not expected to be significant. This is because the discharge point for the treated waste water is located far away from the plant, and before reaching the river it is transported in a 1 km pipeline and afterwards in open channels for over 7-9 km (aerial distance). The "Waste Water Temperature Study" from ArmPower (2018) evaluated the water effluent temperature profile from YCCPP-2 up to the Hrazdan River during winter and summer conditions. The results are shown below:

Season	Temp. of the Cooling Tower Discharge [°C]	Temp. of the water effluent discharging into the Hrazdan River [°C]	Seasonal temp. of the Hrazdan River [°C]	Difference [°C]
Winter	25.0	7.6	10.3	-2.7
Summer	34.0	17.8	20.5	-2.7

Based on a waste water temperature of 25°C (winter) and 34°C (summer) when leaving the YCCPP-2, the waste water temperature is calculated to be 7.6°C (winter) and 17.8°C (summer) when finally reaching the Hrazdan River. The water temperature of the Hrazdan River was observed in 2015 and 2016 to be between 10.3°C (winter average) and 20.5°C (summer average). Thus, the waste water from YCCPP-2 will fulfill the requirements from IFC/World Bank General EHS Guidelines defining less than 3°C increase of ambient water temperature (see Section 2.4). For further details of the study see Section 12.7 in the Annexes.

If all mitigation measures given in the ESMP are implemented the impact is rated to be low.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Water Courses	•

6.2.4.3 Groundwater

Contamination of the soil can indirectly lead to pollution of the groundwater. Contamination can be possible due to spillages from oil/ fuel/ paint/ chemicals used during operation of the power plant. However, if the mitigation measures given in the ESMP (like correct storage and handling of those items; use of spill-fighting materials, etc.) will be implemented, the impact from contamination is rated low.

An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently deviate groundwater around the site. According to the latest engineering designs, the possibility is being studied of setting up a clay barrier around the site together with underground drainage trenches filled with gravel. These trenches would collect groundwater and naturally convey and disperse it away from the foundations. This solution is to be set before construction but be kept during operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur.

Notwithstanding the above, the Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction. This will include consideration of impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties.

In the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network), treatment options need to be included as well in the future assessment study. Options to remove hydrocarbons could include separation and filtration methods, such as an oil-water separator and activated carbon filter. It is noted that an oil-water separator is planned for the site. Depending on where the water would be discharged, different standards would apply. An overview of applicable standards can be consulted in Section 2.4 of this report.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Groundwater deviation	(still unknown - see ESAP)
Groundwater contamination	

6.2.5 Climate and Air Quality

Stack emissions:

During the operation of the new power plant the impact on atmospheric air is due to emissions generated as a result of fuel combustion. IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008) describe emission levels for new thermal power plants. For combustion turbines using natural gas the NOx emissions shall be less than 51 mg/Nm³ (referring to dry exhaust and 15% O_2). In order to comply with this limit value, a low-NOx burner will be used in the new YCCPP-2.

There are no Armenian air emission limits for thermal power plants. The specifications for YCCPP-2 demand compliance with the following Performance Guarantee values (ArmPower, 2017): NOx emissions equal or less than 50 mg/Nm³, CO emissions equal or less than 30 mg/Nm³ and UHC emissions equal or less than 10 mg/Nm³ (referring to dry exhaust and $15\% O_2$).

A Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) will be installed at the stack of the new power plant. Adherence to the limit values shall be continuously checked by ArmPower and the results shall be monthly reported to "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO at Ministry of Nature Protection and the financing agencies. When emissions are exceeded, this means that the conditions of the performance guarantee tests are not fulfilled anymore - there needs to be a verification of the combustion conditions and the air emissions reduction equipment. If the situation does not improve, or a problem is detected, the plant must be temporarily shut down for repairing.

An Air Dispersion Calculation (ADC) has been prepared to allow understanding what is the expected impact of the YCCPP-2 in the airshed of Yerevan (see Section 12.8 in the Annex). Indicative results for the cumulative effects have also been assessed. Altogether **3 scenarios** were simulated:

- Baseline scenario, or Scenario A;
- Project scenario, or Scenario B;
- Cumulative scenario, or Scenario C.

Each of the scenarios was simulated for a stack height of 35 meters (design), for a stack height of 43 meters (alternative), and for a stack height of 66 meters (alternative 2, or Good Engineering Practice (GEP) stack height).

The results of the ADC show that the standards for CO are expected to be fulfilled in all cases. The effect of YCCPP-2 on the ground level concentrations of NO₂ would, however, represent more than 25% of the national and international standards for this pollutant if a stack with 35 meters or with 43 meters would be built. However, if the stack height is raised to 66 meters (GEP stack height), the GLC of NO₂ will be kept below

25% of the standards. This will allow fulfilling IFC's recommendation for a future sustainable development in the area. To keep up with best international practice, and fulfill the requirements of the financing agencies IFC and ADB, the **YCCPP-2 will be built with a 66 m stack height**. Details about the Armenian legal framework for standardization of air emissions (Consecoard LLC, 2018b) can be found in Section 12.12 in the Annexes.

Greenhouse gases:

The project's greenhouse gases emissions are, according to RENCO, expected to be 785,000 tons CO_{2eq} /year (considering 8,350 OH at 12°C) and 371 g CO_2 /kWh gross, respectively. This value is within the range of the typical CO_{2eq} emissions provided in the IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (CCGT with 51% efficiency: 396 g CO_2 /kWh gross). According to IFC Performance Standard PS 3 an annual quantification of greenhouse gas emissions shall be done for plants emitting more than 25,000 t CO_2 /year, which is the case for YCCPP-2. ADB's Safeguard Requirements demand annual quantification of greenhouse gas emissions for Projects emitting at least 100,000 t CO_{2eq} /year for aggregate emissions (direct and indirect²⁹). This annual quantification of direct and indirect emissions shall be reported to the financing institutions and the national authorities.

In its "Intended Nationally Determined Contribution (INDC)" from 2015 ³⁰, Armenia describes its approach to establishing a level of GHG emissions of 5.4 tons CO_{2eq} /year (average) that it will not exceed during the period 2015-2050. The INDC notes Armenia's 2010 GHG emissions of 2.14 tons per person ³¹.

The emissions of the power plant correspond to a per capita value of $0.23 \text{ tons } CO_{2eq}$ /year (according to the INDC, a population of 3.35 million is accounted for in Armenia). This corresponds to 11% of the 2010 emission levels and to 4% of the 2015-2050 annual averaged emission target. Given this, there is no reason to declare that the new YCCPP-2 negatively affects the pursue of recent national strategies and policies promoting the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions like the 'Action Plan for Implementation of the National Program for Energy Saving and Renewable Energy (2010)', 'RA Renewable Energy Development Roadmap (2011)', 'Energy Security Concept of RA (2013)' and others (MNP, 2015).

²⁹ Indirect emissions refer to the off-site generation by others of electricity, and heating and cooling energy used by the Project (IFC, 2012)

³⁰ <u>http://www4.unfccc.int/Submissions/INDC/Published%20Documents/Armenia/1/INDC-Armenia.pdf</u>

https://www.climatelinks.org/sites/default/files/asset/document/2017_USAID_GHG%20E missions%20Factsheet_Armenia.pdf

The YCCPP-2 will be fueled with natural gas, which has comparatively lower GHG emissions than other fossil fuels (oil, coal). In addition, it will be built with state-of-the art technology with elevated combustion efficiency (51%), which supports the minimization of GHG emissions. In order to keep the GHG emissions of the plant as low as technically possible, process control techniques and good maintenance of the combustion system shall be applied. The monitoring of GHG emissions (CO₂) shall be undertaken by means of the CEMS, which will allow keeping a tight control of the plant's performance in this field. The direct emissions of other GHG (CH₄ and N₂O), as well as the indirect emissions of GHG shall be calculated based on internationally recognized guidelines (for example, the guidelines from the IPCC³² or the US EPA³³).

Particulate Matter (PM) emissions from cooling towers:

The principal air pollutant emitted directly from wet cooling towers is small particulate matter (PM). Dissolved solids in the circulating water result in fine particulate emissions ($PM_{10} / PM_{2.5}$) when water droplets are ejected from the tower evaporate before they reach the ground. Cooling tower particulate emissions are controlled through the use of drift eliminators, which are shaped materials that collect small water droplets as they exit the tower. Design Data of ArmPower (2017) mention that the evaporative towers of YCCPP-2 shall be designed to have a low drift phenomena (0.01 % drift loss, which will be approx. 1.3 m³/h according to the preliminary water balance provided by RENCO).

In order to reduce the emissions of particulate matter from the cooling towers during operation of the power plant, drift eliminators according to Good International Industry Practice (GIIP) shall be included in the design of cooling towers and raw water shall be filtered in order to reduce the content of Total Dissolved Solids (TDS). A baseline air quality monitoring was just undertaken by FICHTNER in August 2017 at the surroundings of the power plants' site which included the measurement of PM_{10} . Results show that PM_{10} concentrations (measured at different daytime periods) are clearly below the maximum permissible concentrations and the daily average concentration limits as set by RA Decree No. 160-N "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas". The international air quality standards for PM_{10} are also fulfilled.

Implementing all mitigation and monitoring measures as given in the ESMP, the impact of the Project on climate and air quality is rated at this stage as low.

³² <u>http://www.ipcc-nggip.iges.or.jp/public/2006gl/index.html</u>

³³ https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-

^{03/}documents/stationaryemissions 3 2016.pdf

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Climate and Air Quality	

6.2.6 Landscape and Visual Aspects

The Project Area is located in a highly industrialized area in southern Yerevan. Here, the existing YCCPP-1, chemical plants, metal factories and other industrial infrastructure dominate the landscape. The planned new power plant will add further highly visible structures (e.g. stacks and buildings). However, due to the already existing industrial infrastructure in the area, the realization of the project will not enhance the contrast between the industrial site and the surrounding areas. Planting of trees in the framework of the recommended Landscape Management Plan would add an positive impact to the area.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Landscape and Visual Aspects	0

6.2.7 Waste

According to IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008), gas fired thermal power plants generate essentially no solid waste during operation because of the negligible ash content.

Domestic waste produced by the plant staff shall be collected in provided bins and picked up by a contracted waste collector for disposal at Yerevan dumping site.

Oil separated from water in the API separator of the waste water treatment plant will be collected by a licensed company for final disposal. Currently there are no suitable dumping sites for hazardous waste in Armenia. All hazardous waste generated by the Project (if any) shall therefore be stored in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and with bunded floor) at the new YCCPP-2 site for future disposal (see also Section 6.1.7).

In the Chemical Workshop of the new YCCPP-2, acids and alkaline solutions will be used for neutralization of HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system in order to meet the effluent standards (still to be set by national authorities for YCCPP-2) or international limit values, whichever are more stringent (see Section 6.2.4). These hazardous materials have to be adequately stored and used only by trained personnel using the adequate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Material has to be clearly labeled and marked according to national and internationally recognized requirements and standards, including the International

Chemical Safety Cards (ICSC), Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), or equivalent. Waste material from these processes as well as e.g. used turbine oil, has to be stored accordingly as hazardous waste (see above). Related to the mid-term or long-term storage of hazardous waste on the site, the Waste Management Plan (WMP) for operation of the power plant shall also include a risk assessment considering among others (i) implications of longterm storage of waste types including consideration of any potential change in hazardous properties over time, (ii) risks associated with reactivity between waste types, and (iii) type of containers to be used for storage including consideration of container integrity and resilience over the projected timeframe of storage. Furthermore, the size of the storage area for hazardous waste shall be adapted to the projected volume of hazardous material and the anticipated storage duration. The frequency of checks for the integrity of the waste storage facilities shall be as well defined in the WMP.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Waste	

6.3 Social Impacts during Construction Phase

6.3.1 Local Workforce

During the construction period local workforce (mainly unskilled workers) from the nearby villages and Yerevan shall be employed for the construction works. According to RENCO in peak construction times about 450 workers will be needed. This will contribute to much needed monetary income in the region. Special attention shall be laid on the recruitment of women, wherever possible. However, the income generation opportunity is not of long term duration, as it will be limited to the construction period. The EPC Contractor shall discuss potential barriers for employment with local labor / training organizations so that measures to overcome these barriers can be developed and put in place.

RENCO SPA as the EPC Contractor has a systematic approach which fully complies with the international standards ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001. RENCO has a Human Resources Policy in place that will be applied to the Project as it has been done by RENCO for many other projects in the past (including a non-discriminatory hiring and wage policy according to IFC PS 2; clearly stating that the company will not discriminate in hiring and salaries based on gender, age, religion, ethnicity or place of origin, etc.) The Human Resources Policy shall in addition include international labor standards as defined in ILO (2014), in order to fulfill the requirements of IFC PS 2.

Impost of on	Significance of Impact
Impact of/ on	(after Mitigation)

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Local Workforce	+

6.3.2 Land Usage and Ownership

There are no people living at the site nor the land is used by the local population. The area has already been acquired, fenced, and foreseen for construction of YCCPP-2. ArmPower/RENCO entered a land purchase agreement with the seller (Yerevan Thermal Power Plant CJSC) in March 2017. According to this agreement, the Seller guarantees that the land is free of any form of occupancy or any other possession by any third party and there are no current and, to the best of its knowledge, threatened or pending actions, suits or other proceedings which may affect the Seller's rights to dispose of the Project Land, and the Purchaser's title to the Project Land. The designated purpose of the Land is "for energy, transport, communication, utility infrastructure objects", as stated in the title certificate 18042017-01-0184. A legal opinion has been emitted by an Armenian lawyers company, which stated that the preliminary agreement is legally binding and enforceable. Also, there are no houses or private assets located inside the construction site, so that no physical relocation or acquisition of further land will be necessary for this Project. Some fields and farmlands are located to the west and south of the construction site but outside of the Project Area. These will not be impacted by the Project. There are some people living illegally in houses northeast and south of the construction site, which will be affected by noise and air impacts, however no physical or economic displacement will occur due to the Project.

There is already an agreement in place with YCCPP-1 for usage of the access road to the construction site and for usage of the temporary laydown area, which are both in the possession of YCCPP-1.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Land usage and ownership	ο

6.3.3 Historical and Cultural Sites

Within the construction site and the Project Area of Influence no cultural or historic sites are known. For the case of an unexpected encounter of Cultural and Historical Sites or Goods a **Chance Find Procedure** has to be implemented. In case of any chance finds, the construction has to be stopped immediately and the Agency of Protection of Historical and Cultural Monuments/ Ministry of Culture has to be informed to agree on further steps (as according to Armenian Law). The Chance Find Procedure will include:

- Stop the construction activities immediately in the area of the find.
- Notify the responsible local authorities and the Ministry of Culture.
- Evaluation of the findings to be performed by the archaeologists of the Agency of Protection of Historical and Cultural Monuments/ Ministry of Culture.
- Decision on how to handle the find to be taken by the responsible authorities and implementation of the decision concerning the management of the finding.
- Construction work could resume only after written permission is given from the responsible local authorities and the Ministry of Culture concerning safeguard of the heritage.

The Ministry of Culture shall be informed by the EPC Contractor about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site, including a preconstruction field survey, if deemed necessary by the Ministry.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Historical and Cultural Sites	■ (if any)

6.3.4 Occupational and Community Health and Safety

6.3.4.1 Occupational Health and Safety

RENCO SPA will be the EPC Contractor for this Project. RENCO has a Health, Safety and Environment Policy (2015) in place, in order to meet the requirements, regulations and communities affairs for the health of all persons working under the control of RENCO, environment protection and plants safety. An integrated system for safety, environment and quality has been implemented in compliance to international guidelines and standards (RENCO is OHSAS 18001 and ISO 14001 certified).

For construction of YCCPP-2 a site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (HSEMP) will be developed and a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) implemented during construction, considering national and international requirements like Occupational Health and Safety Guidelines presented in the IFC/WB General EHS Guidelines and the IFC/WB EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants. An H&S manager of RENCO shall be on duty all the time during construction period. These HSEMP and HSEMS shall also be valid for any third parties or subcontractors in the supply chain.

The HSEMS shall include among others medical health care, proper sanitation installations and use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) such as wearing of helmets and ear plugs when working under high noise levels, wearing of safety shoes, protection clothes, etc. The HSEMS shall explicitly

include measures aiming at health and safety of the public (e.g. Life and Fire Safety, Traffic Safety, etc.). Construction workers shall be trained in proper handling and storage of hazardous construction materials etc. Handling and storing materials involve diverse operations such as driving a truck; hoisting tons of steel with a crane; carrying bags or materials manually and stacking materials such as drums, iron parts, barrels, etc. Therefore, specially designated, logistically applicable lay-down areas will be set up inside the boundaries of the foreseen construction site. To manage human exposure to electric and magnetic fields IFC PS and IFC/ WB EHS Guidelines for Electric Power Transmission and Distribution require respecting the limits established by the International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP) - see Section 2.4.

Areas (if any) at the construction site and the adjacent new substation (which is proposed to be connected by underground cable to the new power plant), where high electric or magnetic fields occur, shall be signed. The exposure of workers has to be below the values given above. Workers have to be equipped with special Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for working in these areas.

Skilled working personnel (partly from abroad) will be accommodated in RENCO's guesthouse or at hotels in Yerevan. Distance to the construction site is approx. 7 km. Local (mainly unskilled) workforce shall be employed from Yerevan and the adjacent villages. No workers' camps will have to be established as local workers will return to their home daily, and workers from abroad/other cities will be lodged in RENCO's guesthouse or hotels. Transfer to and from the construction site will be carried out by personnel private means or public transport, and in addition by means managed by the EPC Contractor. A Traffic Management Plan shall be developed and implemented by the EPC Contractor including, among others, the transport of workers, planning of truck movements, short-term closure of roads (if necessary: details about road use (by whom and for what purpose) and alternative routes), description of communication measures, etc.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Occupational Health and Safety	

6.3.4.2 Community Health and Safety

Transporting construction equipment on trucks might be dangerous to residents, when trucks drive through residential areas or small villages. Thus, adequate security measures to prevent accidents and injury have to be foreseen as part of the Traffic Management Plan (e.g. keeping speed limits, inform population along public roads in advance in case of transporting heavy equipment, etc.)

The construction site itself will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access to the site, thus also minimizing possible impacts on community health and safety. Development and implementation of a Security Force Management Plan guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice³⁴ and Armenian national law and include training and monitoring of security personnel regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community.

The new transmission line (overhead line or underground cable) connecting new YCCPP-2 with the high voltage substation just under construction, will be constructed mainly inside the properties of YCCPP-2 or the new substation, just crossing one road. The proposed option is construction of an underground cable.

Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan

RENCO as EPC Contractor shall develop an **Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan** based on robust Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) / Hazard Identification Study (HAZID) for the construction period that contains at least the following principles (according to IFC PS 1):

- Identification of areas where accidents and emergency situations may occur
- Definition of assembly points in case of an emergency
- Consideration of earthquake and flood risks
- Identification of communities and individuals that may be impacted
- Establishment of response procedures
- Provision of equipment and resources
- Designation of responsibilities
- Communication with workers and the public
- Training of workers

RENCO shall also assist and collaborate with the potentially affected communities and local government agencies in their preparation to respond effectively to emergency situations. RENCO shall provide appropriate information to potentially affected communities and relevant government agencies. The emergency preparedness and response activities shall be periodically reviewed and revised, if necessary.

The impact on human health for the public during construction can be assessed to be low, if the mitigation measures of the ESMP are implemented.

Impact of on	Significance of Impact
Impact of on	(after Mitigation)

³⁴ e.g. UN Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials; UN Basis Principles on the Use of Force and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; IFC (2017): Good Practice Handbook on Use of Security Forces - Assessing and Managing Risks and Impacts.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Community Health and Safety	

6.3.4.3 Noise

As stipulated in the General EHS Guidelines of IFC/ World Bank Group, 'no employee should be exposed to a noise level greater than 85 dB (A) for a duration of more than 8 hours per day without hearing protection'. Construction workers will wear ear protection devices as part of their Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), if they are exposed to noise levels higher than 80 dB (A), according to Armenian legislation (see also Section 2.4).

Noise impacts to the public will be generated by operation of heavy equipment at the construction site and by an increased frequency of vehicular traffic in the area. However, these impacts are short term, intermittent and temporary in nature.

Residential areas in the located several kilometers away from the site, which are located near to major roads, will be exposed to higher noise levels due to a greater volume of heavy truck traffic passing by on the main roads. Thus, truck movements shall only be allowed during daylight, but not between 7 pm and 6 am.

The overall impact of noise on the environment that is generated during construction of the plant is temporary only and mainly confined to daylight hours, as working hours will only be during the day. It is anticipated that - with the measures outlined in ESMP - it will be possible to reduce noise impacts during construction to an acceptable minimum according to the most stringent limits (see Section 2.4).

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Noise	•

6.4 Social Impacts during Operation Phase

6.4.1 Electricity Supply

Power demand in Armenia is constantly rising due to rapidly growing economy and a rising population. The Armenian Government is becoming more focused on financial support for projects that have nation-wide significance, are capable of ensuring an adequate level of energy security and independence, and can secure social and economic development (Government of Armenia, 2005). The new YCCPP - 2 is listed as one of the projects that shall support achieving these objectives.

The operation of YCCPP-2 with a guaranteed gross power output of 254 MW will increase the total output of electric energy, providing a more reliable power supply countrywide.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Electricity Supply	++

6.4.2 Occupational and Community Health and Safety

6.4.2.1 Occupational Health and Safety

The new power plant YCCPP-2 will be operated by ArmPower CJSC, which is a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA and Siemens. ArmPower is a fit-to-purpose new company. It is assumed that the shareholders' certification will apply to ArmPower, too.

RENCO SPA has a Health, Safety and Environment Policy (2015) in place, in order to meet the requirements, regulations and communities affairs for the health of all persons working under the control of RENCO, environment protection and plants safety. An integrated system for safety, environment and quality has been implemented in compliance to international guidelines and standards (like OHSAS 18001 and ISO 14001 standards).

The implementation of the HSE management system assures a systematic control of safety and environment performances through a constant internal monitoring in order to improve the performances itself. To meet these targets, among others the following actions have been established:

- Provide a safe working environment to safeguard health of personnel and environment
- Prevent risk situation and hazard to the people, to the material and to the environment
- Prevent and protect in the field of safety and environment (incidents, damages pollution, etc.), under overall aspects managing all the activities in conformity with applicable laws and local regulations
- Provide adequate equipment and qualified personnel to match the requirements of the task
- Provide training, information and dialogue to our personnel
- Preparation of environmental and safety reporting in order to monitor the performance of each project site
- RENCO's responsibilities cover all people working under the RENCO control: consultants, suppliers, subcontractors, etc.

Among others, RENCO SPA has also a Social and Cultural Heritage Policy (2016), as well as an Anti-Corruption Policy (2016) and a Code of Ethics in place.

The above mentioned policies and HSE management systems shall also be established at ArmPower CJSC as subsidiary company of RENCO SPA and Siemens considering national and international requirements like Occupational Health and Safety Guidelines presented in the IFC/WB General EHS Guidelines and the IFC/WB EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (including among others exposure to heat, confined spaces, fire and explosion hazards, and chemical hazards). The HSEMS shall explicitly include measures aiming at health and safety of the public (including Life and Fire Safety).

RENCO's Human Resources Policy shall include international labor standards as defined in ILO (2014), in order to fulfill the requirements of IFC PS 2.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Occupational Health and Safety	

6.4.2.2 Community Health and Safety

The Performance Guarantees (ArmPower, 2017) demand the guaranteed gaseous emissions described in Section 2.4. These limits comply with the IFC/World Bank Group EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants (2008). There are no national air emission limits for thermal power plants.

The Final Air Dispersion Calculation (see Section 12.8 in the Annex) proposes a rise in the stack height to 66 meters in order to assure compliance with national and international air quality standards. RENCO will implement this proposal.

Emission of particulate matter $(PM_{10} / PM_{2.5})$ from cooling towers will be reduced by including drift eliminators according to Good International Industry Practice (GIIP) in the design of cooling towers and filtering of raw water in order to reduce the content of Total Dissolved Solids (TDS).

The area of the new power plant will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access to YCCPP-2 site. Development and implementation of a Security Force Management Plan guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice³⁵ and Armenian national law is recommended. This

³⁵ e.g. UN Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials; UN Basis Principles on the Use of Force and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; IFC (2017): Good Practice Handbook on Use of Security Forces - Assessing and Managing Risks and Impacts.

shall include training and monitoring of security personnel regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community.

Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan

ArmPower as Operator of YCCPP-2 shall develop an **Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan** for the operation phase, based on the emergency preparedness and response activities already implemented during construction phase of the project. The plan shall be based on robust Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) / Hazard Identification Study (HAZID) taking into account general and site-specific risks and contain at least the following principles (according to IFC PS 1):

- Identification of areas where accidents and emergency situations may occur
- Consideration of earthquake and flood risks
- Identification of communities and individuals that may be impacted
- Establishment of response procedures
- Provision of equipment and resources
- Designation of responsibilities
- Communication with workers and the public
- Training of workers

ArmPower shall also assist and collaborate with the potentially affected communities and local government agencies in their preparation to respond effectively to emergency situations. ArmPower shall provide appropriate information to potentially affected communities and relevant government agencies. The emergency preparedness and response activities shall be periodically reviewed and revised, if necessary.

If the mitigation measures given in the ESMP will be implemented the impact on public health and safety will be low.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Community Health and Safety	

6.4.2.3 Noise

Noise levels will have to be measured regularly during the operation phase of the new power plant and their compliance with the Performance Guarantees (see Section 2.4) will have to be monitored.

YCCPP-2 has been designed with particular attention to limit the noise emissions. The most relevant noise sources will be located inside soundproofed cabins/ buildings to minimize noise propagation.

A Noise Propagation Study is available in Annex 12.6 and includes a Noise Calculation for the new power plant (YCCPP-2) site. The Noise Calculation

has been done by using the propagation model SoundPlan. The model determines sound propagation based on the provisions of ISO 9613. This model is widely used in EU noise mapping projects. Application of this model allows determining whether the noise levels emitted by the new plant will represent a nuisance to the surrounding areas, i.e., if the resulting ambient noise will be above the national and international standards. For more details and methodology refer to Annex 12.6. The simulation results can be consulted in Tables 6-1 and 6-2 below. The corresponding noise map (at 2 meters high) is shown in Figure 6-10 below.

The results provide a comparison to the national and the international noise limit values. The international limit values (IFC EHS General Guidelines) have the particularity that, whenever the background levels are presently above the applicable limits, a maximum increase of 3 dB(A) due to a project is accepted. This is evaluated in the tables below.

Table 0-1. If curcicu noise pressure at the sensitive receptors and post – operand noise mints compliance of	Table 6-1:	Predicted noise pressure at the s	sensitive receptors and	"post – operam"	' noise limits complianc	e check
--	------------	-----------------------------------	-------------------------	-----------------	--------------------------	---------

ID Receptor	Reference period	Applicable limit	"Ante operam" sound pressure LAeq [dB(A)]	"Ante operam" noise limits compliance check	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted noise ("post operam") pressure value LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted ("post operam") noise limits compliance check
Wo	rk-day						
	Day time	55	49,8	Compliant	32,5	49,88	Compliant
R1	Night time	45	47,1	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	32,5	47,25	Compliant: the maximum increase is of +0,15 dB (A)
R2	Day time	55	72,6	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	72,60	Compliant: the maximum increase is of +0,00 dB (A)
	Night time	45	62,4	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	62,42	Compliant: the maximum increase is of +0,02 dB (A)
22	Day time	55	48,1	Compliant	34,9	48,30	Compliant
кэ	Night time	45	40,0	Compliant	34,9	41,17	Compliant
БЛ	Day time	70	53,6	Compliant	42,7	53,94	Compliant
N4	Night time	70	57,3	Compliant	42,7	57,45	Compliant
DE	Day time	55	36,2	Compliant	31,8	37,55	Compliant
RD	Night time	45	39,4	Compliant	31,8	40,10	Compliant
We	ekend						
	Day time	55	43,4	Compliant	32,5	43,74	Compliant
R1	Night time	45	49,0	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	32,5	49,10	Compliant : the maximum increase is of +0,10 dB (A)
R2	Day time	55	72,8	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	72,80	Compliant : the maximum increase is of +0,00 dB (A)
	Night time	45	59,2	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	59,23	Compliant : the maximum increase is of +0,03 dB (A)
R3	Day time	55	43,9	Compliant	34,9	44,41	Compliant

ID Receptor	Reference period	Applicable limit	"Ante operam" sound pressure LAeq [dB(A)]	"Ante operam" noise limits compliance check	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted noise ("post operam") pressure value LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted ("post operam") noise limits compliance check
	Night time	45	33,9	Compliant	34,9	37,44	Compliant
Ви	Day time	70	56,4	Compliant	42,7	56,58	Compliant
R4	Night time	70	57,2	Compliant	42,7	57,35	Compliant
DE	Day time	55	35,6	Compliant	31,8	37,11	Compliant
КЭ	Night time	45	34,2	Compliant	31,8	36,17	Compliant

As measurement point 'Noise 4' is located in an industrial area, limit values for industrial areas have been used in Table 6-1 for this point. However, as this measurement point is located near to the illegal housings northeast of YCCPP-1, Table 6-2 below shows in addition the relevant noise pressure at this point under consideration of limit values (international = national) for residential areas.

Table 6-2:	Predicted noise pressure at the sensitive	receptors and "pos	st – operam"	noise limits compliance check -	measurement point 'Noise 4'
	1	1 1	1	1	1

ID Receptor	Reference period	Applicable limit - <u>residential</u> <u>areas</u>	"Ante operam" sound pressure LAeq [dB(A)]	"Ante operam" noise limits compliance check	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted noise ("post operam") pressure value LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted ("post operam") noise limits compliance check
Woi	rk-day						
	Day time	55	53,6	Compliant	42,7	53,94	Compliant
R4	Night time	45	57,3	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	42,7	57,45	Compliant : the maximum increase is of + 0.15 dB (A)
Wee	ekend						
D4	Day time	55	56,4	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	42,7	56,58	Compliant : the maximum increase is of + 0.18 dB (A)
Κ4	Night time	45	57,2	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	42,7	57,35	Compliant : the maximum increase is of + 0.15 dB (A)

The calculation outcomes of the model for YCCPP-2 have shown that the operation of **the new plant will not produce any significant increase of the noise pressure at the sensitive receptors**. In particular:

- where the current noise pressure is under the applicable limits, the YCCPP-2 operation will not produce any exceedance of the said limit either during the daytime or during the night time;
- where the current noise pressure is already over the applicable limits, the YCCPP-2 will produce a negligible contribution, i.e., a contribution below 3 dB(A). The IFC standards are therefore respected as well as these locations.

As last consideration, it has to be underlined that, although at the YCCPP-2 fence no sensible receivers are present, the sound level contribution of the plant will be significantly below the applicable international industrial areas noise limit (70 dB(A)) and national industrial buildings noise limit (80 dB(A)).

Under implementation of the mitigation measures given in the ESMP the impact of noise generated during operation of YCCPP-2 is at the moment rated to be low.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Noise	





Plant layout

Item	Source	Lp(A) (@1m) [dB(A)]
HRSG	Lateral Walls	71
	Roof	71
Air Intake GT	Intake	77
HRSG Diffusor	All surfaces	70
Main Machine Building (GT, ST)	All surfaces	60
Stack	External surfaces	75
	Mouth	80
Close cycle heat exchanger	All surfaces	75
Cooling Towers	All surfaces	80
Main Transformer	All surfaces	80
Units Transformer	All surfaces	75
Fuel Gas Booster Compressors Building	All surfaces	80
Auxiliary Boiler	All surfaces	60

Most relevant Nolse emission items considered in the Plant project





6.4.3

6.4.3 Job Opportunities

During operation phase the workforce is estimated by RENCO to be approx. 120 people comprised of administration, and operation and maintenance staff on roster working shifts. Most jobs during operation of YCCPP-2 will be for specialized workers (electrical engineers, automation and control engineers, mechanical engineers, etc.) which will require specific power plant training and will not be readily found in Armenia, with exception of personnel presently operating at similar plants (e.g. YCCPP-1). These personnel would also require some retraining to adapt to the new facilities. There are also graduated people (with electrical and mechanical training) from Yerevan who could potentially work at the new plant. However, extensive training on the job as well as theory training is recommended.

A few simpler jobs (e.g. food supply, housekeeping, etc.) however, will also be available for people which shall be employed from the adjacent residential areas (if possible) in order to create some additional income. Special attention shall be laid on the recruitment of women.

Impact of/ on	Significance of Impact (after Mitigation)
Job opportunities	+

6.5 Additional Impacts from new Connection Facilities

Interconnections to gas, water and electrical grid are planned. The new CCPP shall be connected with the facilities of the existing grid infrastructure provided below (see Figure 3-3):

- Electricity: A new 220 kV substation is just under construction for YCCPP-1; the connection from the new power plant to the new substation is proposed to be by underground cable (still subject of design, if overhead transmission line or underground cable will be used); the distance between the new power plant and the new 220 kV substation is approx. 400 m
- New connection to the natural gas supply pipeline system from Gazprom Armenia, approx. 1,500 m (under responsibility of Gazprom Armenia)
- New connection to the city water system managed by Veolia (make-up water), approx. 1,000 m
- New connections to the water sewerage of the city, approx. 450 m
- New connection to the industrial waste water discharge system downstream of YCCPP-1, less than 100 m

6.5.1 Additional Impacts during Construction Phase

Impacts and mitigation measures mentioned in the sections above concerning the construction phase of the Project also apply to the construction of the necessary additional connection facilities. Additional **aspects** to be considered are presented in the following, based on the information available at the time of writing this report.

Impacts on **flora and fauna** from construction of the new connection facilities will be low after implementation of mitigation measures. If any trees will have to be felled for construction of water and gas pipelines or for the transmission line/ underground power cable, replanting of trees (native site-adapted tree species) shall be performed, based on a replanting plan to be developed.

Possible **soil erosion** due to the excavation for underground pipelines shall be additionally considered in the Erosion and Sediment Control Plan that is already recommended.

No additional **land** will have to be acquired for the construction of the planned connections, as the land is already in possession of the operator or the Government. No physical relocation will be necessary for the above mentioned construction activities.

The Chance Find Procedure regarding **historical and cultural goods** will also apply to the construction activities considered here in this section.

HSE Management Plan and HSE Management System to be set up by the EPC Contractor have to consider also the construction of the mentioned connection facilities. Specially trained workers equipped with the necessary personal protective equipment will be required for connecting the additional gas pipeline to the existing gas infrastructure. The same applies for connection of the new transmission line/ underground cable to the substation.

The **Traffic** Management Plan to be developed by the EPC Contractor has also to consider the construction works of these connections. Construction sites will have to be clearly signed and a short-time closure of roads for construction works may be necessary.

Special attention has to be paid to already **existing infrastructure** like e.g. gas, water and power connections of the already existing YCCPP-1 and existing communal supply lines or sewerage systems, in order not to damage any existing infrastructure during construction works. If for connections works the gas or water supply has to be interrupted, all affected parties (e.g. industries, private persons) will have to be informed in advance about the date, extent and duration of the foreseen interruption.

6.5.2 Additional Impacts during Operation Phase

Impacts and mitigation measures mentioned in the sections above concerning the operation phase of the Project also apply to the operation of the necessary additional connection facilities. These have also to be considered in the Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan to be developed and implemented by the operator of YCCPP-2.

Regarding health and safety of the public the new transmission line (overhead line or underground cable) connecting new YCCPP-2 with the high voltage substation just under construction, will run nearly completely inside the properties of YCCPP-2, crossing one road to reach the tie-in point at the border of the substation. Good Engineering Practice will be implemented in order to avoid any danger to the public, according to the alternative chosen (it is foreseen to construct an underground cable). If an overhead line will be constructed it will be assured that e.g. in the case of falling down of cut wires circuit breakers will immediately stop the power flow.

The new gas pipeline that will lead from the metering point inside the property of YCCPP-2 to the tie-in point proposed by Gazprom Armenia and will be under the responsibility of Gazprom. It is recommended, however, to construct an overhead pipeline (as the already existing ones) and to construct concrete poles where the pipeline runs on the ground to avoid possible accidents with cars from the road.

6.6 Additional Impacts during Decommissioning Phase

Design life of YCCPP-2 is 20 years. Even though the operator ArmPower will probably apply for an extension of the operating permit, the decommissioning phase is also considered shortly in this ESIA.

If the power plant will be dismantled after closedown, environmental and social impacts regarding air emissions, noise, traffic, local workforce, etc. will be mainly the same as during the construction phase. The dismantling works will have to adhere to the latest editions of national and international laws and guidelines, or even to new ones that will be relevant at this time. Mitigation measures regarding the impacts during decommissioning will also be mainly the same as during construction phase. A Decommissioning Plan shall be prepared by the operator at least 5 years before closure of the plant, and a Detailed Decommissioning Plan shall be developed at least 18 months in advance of the closure of the plant.

It shall be highlighted that a large amount of waste will have to be managed, if the plant will be dismantled. This will also include different types of hazardous waste. A detailed Waste Management Plan for Decommissioning will have to be developed by ArmPower following the same principles as given in Section 6.1.7 respecting the waste management hierarchy of avoidance, preparing for reuse, recycling as much as possible (e.g. scrap metal, batteries), recovery, and proper disposal of remaining waste

according to EU Directive 2008/98/EC (Waste Framework Directive). Scrap metal and used batteries can be sold to local recycling companies at Yerevan like e.g. Metexim LLC, or others.

In the next 20 years a solution for the final disposal of hazardous waste will probably be decided upon and provided by the Government of RA. Hazardous waste shall be stored first in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at the YCCPP-2 site. All hazardous wastes shall be securely packed in sealed drums or other suitable containers, clearly identified by labels, and marked according to national and internationally recognized requirements and standards, including the International Chemical Safety Cards (ICSC), Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), or equivalent. Hazardous waste shall then be disposed of, if adequate disposal sites exist at the time.

6.7 Summary of Impacts

A summary of the assessment of the environmental and social impacts, **after implementation of the mitigation measures** presented in the ESMP, is given in the following tables.

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by
Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	
Protected Areas	0
Soil Use and Soil Erosion	
Soil Contamination	
Surface Water	0
Groundwater deviation	(still unknown - see ESAP)
Groundwater contamination	
Climate and Air Quality	
Landscape and Visual Aspects	
Waste	
Local Workforce	+
Land Use and Ownership	0
Historical and Cultural Sites	■ (if any)
Occupational Health and Safety	
Community Health and Safety	
Noise	

Table 6-3:Summary of impacts during construction phase (incl. associatedfacilities)

Table 6-4:Summary of impacts during operation phase (incl. associatedfacilities)

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by
Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	
Protected Areas	0

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by
Soil Contamination	
Water Courses	
Groundwater deviation	(still unknown - see ESAP)
Groundwater contamination	
Climate and Air Quality	
Landscape and Visual Aspects	
Waste	
Electricity Supply	++
Occupational Health and Safety	
Community Health and Safety	
Noise	
Job opportunities	+

Table 6-5:Summary of impacts during decommissioning phase (incl. associated
facilities)

Impact of/on	Significance of Impact on/by
Fauna, Flora and Biodiversity	
Protected Areas	0
Soil Use and Soil Erosion	
Soil Contamination	
Surface Water	0
Groundwater contamination	
Climate and Air Quality	
Landscape and Visual Aspects	0
Waste	
Local Workforce	+
Land Use and Ownership	0
Historical and Cultural Sites	0
Occupational Health and Safety	
Community Health and Safety	
Noise	

Significance of Impact:

	=	high
	=	medium
	=	low
0	=	nil
+	=	locally positive
++	=	regionally positive

In conclusion, from the results of the impact assessment it can be seen that the environmental and social impacts will be of low or medium extent, if all proposed mitigation measures of the ESMP are implemented. The highest expected impacts relate to solid waste, as presently there is not a solution for management of hazardous waste in Armenia. Positive impacts are related to creating of job opportunities especially during construction. The additional

power generation will increase the total output of electric energy, providing a more reliable power supply countrywide.

7. Information Disclosure, Consultation, and Participation

7.1 Background

During the preparation of the National ESIA (Ecobarik-Audit LLC 2016), consulting and information disclosure activities with some stakeholder groups have been undertaken. The invitations for these sessions can be consulted in the Final SEP (Stakeholder Engagement Plan) presented as an Annex (Section 12.9) to this ESIA Report.

This chapter describes shortly the stakeholder meetings held by FICHTNER during the site visit in July 2017 and provides an overview about the requirements for disclosure of the ESIA study to the public and performing of a Public Consultation meeting at 10th February 2018, where stakeholders and Project Affected People (PAP) had the chance to give their feedback and concerns regarding the ESIA study and the implementation of the Project. The Final SEP provides further details about this procedure.

During the site visit in July 2017, FICHTNER's environmental and social specialists performed stakeholder meetings with mayors of the adjacent villages Kharberd and Ayntap, with the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts, with the Environmental Monitoring and Information Center, with the Environmental Department of the Municipality of Yerevan, and with the Aarhus Center ³⁶(for a record of the meetings see Section 12.3).

The mayors of the villages Kharberd and Ayntap had no concerns regarding the implementation of the Project. No medical/ health issues of local population concerning the operation of existing YCCPP-1 were reported. As both villages suffer under a high unemployment rate (> 70%) the mayors hope that the Project will create jobs for the local population. These statements have also been supported during the discussions with the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts.

The Final Draft version of the ESIA, including the ESMP and Non-Technical Executive Summary (NTES) were disclosed to the public in English and Armenian versions. Interested people were provided access to the documents, which were not only posted on ArmPower's website, but were also delivered in printed copies to the local administration offices; advertisements in local media about their availability were made. Also the Aarhus Center received printed copies and ensured their sharing to the representatives of civil society organizations.

ADB's and IFC's policies require that once draft final ESIA report is disclosed, sufficient time is allowed for stakeholders to get acquainted with

³⁶ Aahrus Center Yerevan is a NGO that promotes public participation in environmental/ social decision making processes and in managing activities of upcoming projects.

the document prior to participating in a consultation meeting or otherwise communicating their feedback. According to national Armenian requirements the disclosure period is only 7 days, but disclosure of the documents for at least two weeks is recommended and was undertaken.

After disclosure of the documents, a public consultation meeting on the ESIA was held on 10th February 2018. It concentrated on interpreting the ESIA report to the stakeholders and seeking their feedback and concerns, which were then used as an input for the preparation of the Final ESIA report.

Various NGOs and the Aarhus Center Yerevan were invited to the public consultation meeting. The Aarhus Center helped to identify relevant NGOs and ensured sharing of information/ studies.

According to ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement (2009) and ADB's Public Communication Policy (2011), a draft environmental impact assessment (EIA) report for an environment category A project shall be disclosed for at least 120 days on ADB's website before Board consideration. ADB disclosed the Draft ESIA study in August 2017 on its website. IFC's Sustainability Framework (IFC 2012) requires a disclosure of 60 days for a category A project. An Environmental & Social Review Summary as well as the Draft ESIA study were disclosed on IFC's webpage in 27 December 2017.

For further details see the Final Stakeholder Engagement Plan in Section 12.9.

7.2 Results from the 2018 Public Consultation meeting

A public consultation meeting was held at 10th February 2018 at the Milano Hall in Double Tree Hotel in Yerevan city center. The meeting was advertised in the newspapers, invitation letters have been sent to relevant governmental institutions and stakeholders, and the invitation was published on RENCO's website. Local governments made the invitation available on their websites, at their offices and in other public places. For participating in the consultations, free transportation was made available from four pick-up points located in the residential areas nearest to the foreseen construction site.

At the public consultation meeting the Non-Technical Summary of the ESIA study was made available to the participants in printed copies in English and Armenian languages. A printed leaflet in both languages presented the main possible environmental and social impacts and the respective mitigation measures, as well as information about the grievance mechanism, including the contact details of RENCO's grievance coordinator. Furthermore, public grievance forms, comment forms to the ESIA study and feedback forms in English and Armenian were given to the participants.

After an introduction to the Project given by the Industrial Plants Division Director of RENCO, Fichtner's environmental and social specialist held a non-technical introduction (with slides) presenting the main contents and results of the ESIA. It was held in English and translated consecutively in Armenian language. All questions raised in Armenian were translated into English language; the answers to these questions were also translated consecutively into Armenian. The slides to the presentation were shown in Armenian.

This introduction presented a project description, stated who did the investigation, and gave information about the method of investigation and the method of assessment. Analysis of different alternatives was shortly demonstrated. Main possible environmental and social impacts of the Project were communicated and some examples were shown in detail, measures for mitigation and their monitoring were introduced, and recommendations were presented. The ESMP and Grievance Redress Mechanism were also introduced. After the introduction the discussion started. Answers to the questions were given by Fichtner's specialist and the representatives of RENCO.

The main concerns raised by the participants were about possible air pollution, water sources for operation, waste water treatment, waste management including hazardous substances, potential historical or cultural goods at the construction site, landscaping as additional possible mitigation measure, and more generally on the risk of higher electricity prices due to the involvement of private sector in energy production and regarding the necessity of building this power plant.

The questions raised and the corresponding answers of the meeting are given in the Minutes of Meeting in Section 12.13 in the Annexes, as well as the list of participants.

Recommendations from the Public Consultation Meeting

- Monitoring data which will be regularly collected during operation in order to verify the adherence of the new power plant's air and liquid emissions to the relevant limits shall be made available online. This will be taken into account by RENCO.
- Cooperation with the "Dalma-Sona" Cultural and Educational, Social and Ecological Foundation shall be foreseen in case of any chance find of historical or cultural goods during construction, which in any case will be reported to the Ministry of Culture.
- The landscape management plan shall foresee to include also landscaping in the Shengavit and Erebuni Districts apart from the area directly adjacent to the new power plant.
- It was suggested and welcomed by RENCO to cooperate with the Consumers Support Center as much as possible in relation to the grievance redress mechanism.

The returned feedback forms criticized that no representatives of authorities were present at the meeting, in order to answer e.g. questions about the necessity of the construction of YCCPP-2. However, as is shown in Section 12.13 in the Annexes they have been invited and verbally confirmed their participation. The mayors of the adjacent villages Kharberd and Ayntap and the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts were directly consulted by Fichtner in July 2017 about their possible concerns regarding the Project.

As no participants of the people living illegally in the vicinity of the existing YCCPP-1 (as nearest sensitive receptors) have been present at the consultation meeting, it was agreed with RENCO that the above mentioned documents that were presented at the meeting will also be distributed to them directly.

Conclusion

The Public Consultation meeting was successfully conducted with a good participation. Apart from interested private persons, mainly representatives of NGOs as well as from other public entities participated actively in the discussion.

7.3 Consultation of nearby temporary residents

Nearby the project site there are people living in temporary houses. These people are classified as vulnerable under ADB's Safeguard Requirements as they are poor and occupy illegal housing. Their vicinity to the Project Area makes them directly affected by construction and operation impacts, however no physical or economic displacement will occur due to the Project.

To avoid that the people living in temporary houses nearby the site would be left unaware of the consultation process, RENCO organized a personal meeting on the 12th of February (Figure 7-1 below).



Figure 7-1: Meeting with residents of the nearby temporary houses (source: RENCO, February 2018)

The residents had been absent from the Public Consultation Session that happened two days before because, according to their own declarations, they are mostly concerned about their housing problems (not project related). The people expressed their hope that the construction works will provide them with business opportunities (little markets, stores, canteens and fast food) and jobs. They also expect that their public transportation problems will be solved with the flow of YCCPP-2 construction workers. RENCO's responsible's telephone and email contacts have been transmitted to the residents.

8. Grievance Redress Mechanism

8.1 General Public Grievance Mechanism

In the course of the construction and operation, Project Affected People (PAP) may feel treated unjustly. This might happen for various reasons such as: the contractor does not adhere to sound construction principles, misunderstandings have arisen, or disagreement with procedures of consultation or notification. If this happens people shall be encouraged to lodge their complaints in a timely and effective manner without directly addressing the court, i.e., through a grievance mechanism.

All PAP will be notified about the Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM) of the YCCPP -2 Project during the Public Consultation meetings, as well as through the disclosed project information leaflets. Contact data of the **RENCO's Grievance Coordinator (GC)**, part of the **Grievance Redress Committee (GRC)**, will be disclosed.

During consultation the PAP shall be notified orally or in a written form about their rights and the procedure of filing complaints. Local NGOs, e.g. the local Aarhus Centre, can inform communities about the possibility to raise complaints and how and where to address them. The grievance mechanism has to be locally implemented at the level of village institutions and local self-government, as well as bundled on national level at RENCO/ArmPower.

Grievances can be addressed at the local community level ('marzpet'), where the grievance will be recorded and forwarded to RENCO's GC. Grievances that are addressed to the EPC Contractor during the execution of civil works shall also be forwarded to RENCO's GC. Even if the constructor decides to settle the grievance on the spot, the documentation of the grievance settlement procedure needs to be prepared by RENCO's GC.

All project related complaints can in addition be directly addressed to RENCO's GC via phone, e-mail or grievance form (the SEP presents an example of the public grievances form). A project grievance hotline shall be made available by RENCO for direct complaints (at national level), and all received grievances shall be recorded in the Stakeholder Log.

The RENCO GC then decides whether to settle directly or to arrange a meeting with the Grievance Committee. The decision has to be taken within 15 days. In case of major grievances that cannot be directly settled, permanent and non-permanent members of the Grievance Committee will be called for a meeting. In case of failure of the grievance redress system, the PAP can submit their case to the appropriate court of law.

The EPC Contractor RENCO is obliged to carry out the work in accordance with the contractual requirements that include:

- Nominate a person of staff responsible for the reception and handling of grievances;
- Preparation of regular monitoring reports including details of any complaints that arose and how they were handled;
- If vulnerable affected people are identified, then the contractor will appoint professional advocates (social workers/legal experts) to assist those people during the entire process, and to act as independent advocates for them should any grievances arise;
- Arbitration of grievances with ArmPower and PAP.

ArmPower will carry out works that include:

- Nominate a person of staff responsible for grievance procedure coordination, hereby referred to as Grievance Coordinator (including first contact, periodical site visiting of mitigation measure to be implemented by contractor);
- A telephone line, e-mail address and contact name on project boards;
- Arbitration of grievances with contractor and PAP.
- Liaison with court.

The PAP have the option to choose a different representative, or directly liaison with ArmPower' staff responsible for grievance redress. Vulnerable households will have the support of their individual social worker and legal support, if applicable.

PAP need to be informed that in case of conflict with the community leader they can address NGO staff to follow up their complaint.

The aggrieved person (PAP) is encouraged to proceed in the following way:

- a) Contact contractor's designated grievance staff in the following way: in person via the designated telephone number, via email, via regular mail. Alternatively, the PAP can contact their community leader, who would convey their grievance to the contractor's designated grievance staff.
- b) Lodge a complaint and provide information on the case. Each complaint will be registered and a tracking number will be assigned to it.
 Responses to all complaints should be provided within 15 days (or 25 days in cases where complaint resolution requires special efforts).
- c) Agree with the contractor on a mitigation measure.
- d) Agree with the contractor on time limit for grievance settlement. Grievances have to be settled within two weeks, or otherwise specified in scheduled agreement.
- e) Sign if the mitigation measure has been implemented as agreed
- f) Seek redress from ArmPower if not satisfied with the above mentioned procedure though the designated telephone numbers, in person, or via email or regular mail. ArmPower should register all grievances and provide response within 15 days.

- g) Involve appropriate NGOs
- h) Seek redress from court if all else fails.

Although the grievance mechanism is designed to avoid lengthy court procedures, it does not limit the citizen's right to submit the case straight to the court of law.

Figure 8-1 provides a flowchart of the Grievance Redress Mechanism as described above.



Figure 8-1: Flowchart of Grievance Redress Mechanism

ADB and IFC are not directly a part of the Grievance procedure but shall receive reports about which complaints were received and how they have been followed up/ mitigated.

Special consideration has to be taken for vulnerable people as complaint mechanisms may be unusual and contact with legal procedures let alone courts of law may appear uninviting. This would prevent the most disadvantaged persons from addressing their grievance. A personal contact with PAP is therefore recommended.

Vulnerable PAP (all households below the poverty line) will be entitled to a legal aid/ social worker to support them with complaints procedures.

An example of the public grievances form that is available in the developer's webpage is provided in the Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP) (Section 12.9 in the Annex).
8.2 Workers Grievance Mechanism

The EPC Contractor RENCO and the future operator of YCCPP-2 ArmPower are requested to implement an independent grievance management system to enable the workers (and their organizations, where they exist) to raise reasonable workplace concerns. This includes complaints related to non-compliance with Health & Safety matters, discrimination cases and non-consideration of equal opportunities.

The workers grievance mechanism shall follow the same principles as the one created for the general public: complaints must be answered in a timely and effective manner without fear of retribution; the access to the grievance mechanism shall not replace or impede the subsequent access to other redress mechanisms; the promoter will inform workers of the grievance mechanism at the time of hire and make it accessible to them.

The grievance management system shall consider the possibility to contact directly a member of the Site Management Staff. The contacted staff members must take a note of the reported complaint or non-compliance and must report it to the Site Manager.

The Site Manager is requested to solve the complaint or non-compliance within 3 working days. In case the problem cannot be solved an action procedure specifying the needed activities together with a predicted deadline for resolution of the problem must be prepared and submitted to the general manager.

The EPC Contractor RENCO and ArmPower as operator are requested to provide as well the possibility for the workers to notify a complaint or noncompliance in a confidential way.

According to RENCO SPA a grievance mechanism for workers will be established for this Project, as it has been done in other international projects before. The system will allow staff and contractors to provide feedback on any element of the work via email or by hand delivery to a box placed on site. Grievances will be logged into a spreadsheet where they will be then delegated to the appropriate person for close out. Grievances will be confidential and staff and contractors will be in no way penalized for providing their feedback.

9. Environmental and Social Management Plans (ESMPs)

The negative environmental and social impacts of the Project that are described in Chapter 6 can be avoided, minimized or mitigated by performing suitable measures.

This chapter deals with the concrete mitigation measures (Section 9.1) and the monitoring measures (Section 9.2) to be taken during the construction, operation and decommissioning phases of YCCPP-2. It summarizes the anticipated environmental and social impacts and provides details on the measures; responsibilities to mitigate these impacts; the costs of mitigation; and the ways in which implementation and effectiveness of the measures will be monitored and supervised.

The compliance of the Project with IFC Performance Standards (PS) after implementation of the mitigation and monitoring measures given in the ESMPs is analyzed in Section 9.7.

An Environmental and Social Action Plan (ESAP) is presented in Section 9.8 in order to highlight the most urgent steps for implementation of the mitigation measures given in the ESMP, according to the relevant IFC Performance Standards and/or international guidelines and standards.

9.1 Mitigation Measures

9.1.1 Mitigation Measures for the Construction Phase

Table 9-1: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Fauna and Flora

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Fauna and Flora		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 6 and General EHS Guidelines)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Prohibition of herbicides for site clearance (use mechanical process only)	- EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
Mitigation measures to be implemented to reduce risks of soil and water contamination also mitigate the impact on flora and fauna (see Table 9-3 and Table 9-4)		
Mitigation measures to be implemented to noise reduction like using low sound power mechanical equipment also mitigate the impact on noise sensitive fauna (if any)		
Dust generated by construction works (e.g. excavation works) shall be suppressed by spraying water		

Table 9-2: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Erosion Control

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Erosion		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3 and General EHS Guidelines)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Develop and implement an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
Minimization of the area of construction site and material storage		
Minimize removing topsoil at construction site and store in line with international good practice, so that it can be re- used after construction		
Protect excess spoils, if any, from runoff		

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Soil pollution		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Waste Management, Hazardous Material Management)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Regular maintenance of all vehicles and machines at regular service stations, if possible		
Maintenance and re-fueling of the construction equipment only on sealed and enclosed areas	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
In case of any spillage: Localization of the spilled material and immediate cleaning of the contaminated area in order to prevent the pollutant from entering soil		
Store all liquid materials (e.g. fuel, engine oil, paint, chemicals, lubricants, etc.) in locked tanks and on sealed, bunded and roofed areas. Installation of secondary containment for storing liquid materials is recommended.		
Store construction material (bags of cement etc.) in containers in order to avoid rinsing out		
Train transporters and workers in spill prevention and control especially in handling of oil and fuel		
Provide spill-control materials to drivers and workers, in order to clean up spills, if necessary		
Equip all construction vehicles with spill-control kits		
Report and respond to spills promptly and train workers in how to report		
Remove contaminated soil if spills occur and handle as hazardous waste		

Table 9-3: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Soil Pollution

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Water pollution		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Water and Sanitation, Wastewater and Ambient Water Quality, Waste Management, Hazardous Material Management)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Mitigation measures given in Table 9-3 (Soil Pollution) also apply to avoid groundwater pollution	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
Construction site has to be equipped with toilets and sanitary rooms according to IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note ³⁷ - separately for men and women; lead sewage water to city sewage water system or use septic tanks for collecting sewage water, which have to be emptied by a specialized company from time to time.		
Train workers in appropriate sanitation practices		
Provide waste bins at the construction site in order to collect workers' waste (implement Waste Management Plan)		
Conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of the foreseen groundwater deviation at site including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network); assessment to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction.		

Table 9-4: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Water Pollution

Table 9-5: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Climate and Air Quality

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Air Quality and Climate Change		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guideline: Air Emissions and Ambient Air Quality)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Reduction of speed to 20 km/h within the construction site and optimization of the movement of vehicles		
Optimize transportation management to avoid needless truck trips (as part of a Traffic Management Plan)	- EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
Maintain vehicles and construction machinery properly maintained, as recommended by suppliers		
Cover truck beds with tarps during material transport		

³⁷ see IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note on Workers' Accommodation (2009)

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Air Quality and Climate Change		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guideline: Air Emissions and Ambient Air Quality)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Use dust-suppressing water spray during civil works, where necessary		
Store and handle material appropriately to limit dust (e.g. protect cement with tarpaulins)	- EPC Contractor	Included in
Avoid unnecessary idling of construction machines and vehicles		construction costs

Table 9-6: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Landscape and Visual Aspects

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Landscape and Visual Aspects		
Mitigation measures (considering General EHS)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Use dust-suppressing water spray during civil works, where necessary	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
Clear up the construction waste and remove all machinery after construction works		
Reinstate any adjacent damaged areas		
Development and implementation of a landscape / planting plan is recommended		

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts from Waste generation and disposal		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Water and Sanitation, Wastewater and Ambient Water Quality, Waste Management, Hazardous Material Management)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Collect and segregate all type of wastes. EPC Contractor will agree with municipal authorities about using services of communal service providers for waste disposal purposes.	EPC Contractor Local authorities	Included in construction costs
Development of a Waste Management Plan (as part of the site specific HSE Management Plan) containing the following principles: (I) respecting the waste management hierarchy of avoidance, preparing for reuse, recycling as much as possible, recovery, and proper disposal of remaining waste according to EU guideline 2008/98/EC; (II) segregating all waste by category on site, based on their nature, and ultimate disposal sites; (III) good technical planning in order to minimize the generation of construction waste; (IV) regular staff training to increase awareness of waste minimization issues and handling of different wastes.	EPC Contractor	Included in
Store all hazardous waste (e.g. oil, fuel, paint, spill contaminated soil) in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) for future disposal		
Pack all hazardous wastes securely in sealed drums or other suitable containers, clearly identify them by labels, and provide Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)		
Soil polluted with any substances (oil, asbestos, other hazardous waste) that is excavated during construction, will have to be stored on site on a concreted and bunded area, protected against rain and wind for future disposal as hazardous waste (once an adequate disposal site is available)		
Train workers in handling and disposal of recyclable, sanitary, solid, liquid and hazardous waste	_	
Presently existing waste material at the construction site (e.g. scrap metal, old cabins, old toilets and wash basins, etc.) has to be segregated and stored or disposed of accordingly. Concrete waste can be disposed of at Yerevan dumping site or be used as land filling material		
Scrap metal shall be sold to local recycling companies		
If any asbestos containing material (ACM) will be found at the construction site, all ACM has to be securely double bagged in high-density polyethylene (HDPE) bags and sealed (e.g. using duct tape).		

Table 9-7: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Waste Management

 Table 9-8:
 Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Historical and Cultural Sites and Goods

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Historical and Cultural Sites and Goods		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 8 and General EHS-Guideline)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Inform the Ministry of Culture about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site.	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
Implementation of a Chance Find Procedure (see Section 6.3.3) and training of the construction workers		
Report chance finds immediately to RA Ministry of Culture, Dep. Protection of Monuments and Historical Sites		

Table 9-9: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Occupational Health & Safety

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Workers' Health and Safety		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 2, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Occupational Health and Safety)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Health and Safety) EPC Contractor shall develop and implement a site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (HSEMP) for the construction phase EPC Contractor shall develop and implement a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) for construction phase. An H&S manager of EPC Contractor shall be on duty all the time during construction period. These HSEMP and HSEMS shall also be valid for any third parties or subcontractors in the supply chain Make sure that all workers have a health insurance or provide it to workers who don't have Awareness raising regarding sexually transmitted diseases (STD) should be provided to workforce Consider possible occurrence of venomous snakes during working (train the workers on venomous species identification and bite handling, provide related first aid equipment). According to national legislation for workers noise levels shall be kept below 80 dB (A), wherever possible. Hand out ear protection devices to all workers, when necessary (according to WB/IFC General EHS Guideline, workers are obliged to wear ear protectors where 85 dB (A) are exceeded for a duration of more than 8 hours). Provide workers with appropriate protective equipment (PPE) according to RENCO's Occupational Health & Safety Standards Train workers accordingly regarding work at heights, electrical and vehicular safety, handling of hazardous	Responsible Party EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs
materials, PPE, hazard avoidance and reduction measures, use of first aid and rescue techniques, emergency response, etc.		

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Workers' Health and Safety		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 2, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Occupational Health and Safety)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Forbid alcohol and other drugs at the construction site		
Assure transfer of injured workers to hospitals in the case of serious accidents		
Identify area emergency responders, hospitals, and clinics		
Limit occupational exposure to electric or magnetic fields (EMF) by use of shielding materials, signing of relevant areas and training of workers		
Licensing and training of drivers; improvement of driving skills		
Training and licensing industrial vehicle operators in the safe operation of specialized vehicles, including safe loading/ unloading, and load limits	EPC Contractor	Included in
Maintain vehicles regularly and use manufacturer approved parts to minimize potentially serious accidents caused by equipment malfunction or premature failure		construction costs
Record work-hours as well as all accidents and incidents		
Skilled working personnel (partly from abroad) will be accommodated in RENCO's guesthouse or at hotels in Yerevan. Local (mainly unskilled) workforce shall be employed from Yerevan and the adjacent villages. No workers' camps will have to be established as local workers will return to their home daily Transfer of workers to and from the construction site shall be managed by the EPC Contractor (e.g. bus transfer) by means of a Traffic Management Plan	-	
Implement and communicate an accessible grievance mechanism for workers to address any complaints		

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase		
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Public Health and Safety		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 4, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Community Health and Safety)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Optimization of transportation management to avoid needless truck drives (as part of Traffic Management Plan)		
Allow truck movements only during daylight, but not between 7 pm and 6 am (as part of Traffic Management Plan)		
Reduce vehicle speeds (stick to recommended speeds; 20 km/h for heavy trucks) in populated areas to avoid noise and accidents (as part of Traffic Management Plan)		
Development and implementation of a Traffic Management Plan (including regulations for truck movements, transport of workers, short-term closure of roads (if necessary), etc.)		
Use of machines with low sound power and fitting of construction machines with silencers or mufflers		
Regular maintenance and service of building machinery and other vehicles during construction works		
Shut down or throttling down of noisy machinery to a minimum		
For residents the noise levels may not exceed 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night.	EPC Contractor	Included in costs
Notify population in advance about start date and duration of the overall construction works and of specific operations with high noise level (see also SEP in Annex 12.9)		construction costs
The construction site itself will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access to the site, thus also minimizing possible impacts on community health.		
Security arrangements to be guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice ³⁸ and national law. A Security Force Management Plan shall be prepared for the construction stage.		
Security personnel shall be trained and monitored regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community		
Provide adequate security measures to prevent accidents and injury (e.g. keeping speed limits on public roads)		
Inform population of small villages along public roads in advance, in case of transporting heavy equipment		
Establish worker code of conduct to help prevent friction or conflict with communities		

 Table 9-10:
 Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Community Health & Safety

³⁸ e.g. UN Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials; UN Basis Principles on the Use of Force and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; IFC (2017): Good Practice Handbook on Use of Security Forces - Assessing and Managing Risks and Impacts.

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase				
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Public Health and Safety				
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 4, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Community Health and Safety)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)		
Provide cultural awareness training to be given for non-local workers (expand to local workers if grievances are raised or observations made of inappropriate behavior)				
Develop and implement an Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan (see Section 6.3.4)	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs		
Provide appropriate information about the Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan to potentially affected communities and individuals				

Table 9-11: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Construction Activities concerning Social Aspects

Mitigation measures to be applied during construction phase			
Issue for Mitigation: Social Aspects			
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 2, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guideline: Occupational Health and	Responsible Party	Budget for	
EPC's Human Resources Policy shall include international labor standards as defined in ILO (2014), in order to fulfill IFC PS 2		Implementing (USD)	
Develop and implement a non-discriminatory hiring and wage policy according to international labor standards as defined in ILO 2014 (clearly stating that the company will not discriminate in hiring and salaries based on gender, age, religion, ethnicity or place of origin), if not already in place			
Prosecute offenses related to payment of wages by sub-contractors strictly			
Prioritize employment of local people for construction works (offer job opportunities in nearby villages and Yerevan)	EPC Contractor	Included in construction costs	
Improve recruitment of women for construction works			
Discuss potential barriers for local employment with labor / training organizations so that measures to overcome these barriers (if any) can be developed and put in place			
Zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the work place			
Implement and communicate an accessible grievance mechanism for PAP to address any complaints			

9.1.2 Mitigation Measures for the Operation Phase

Table 9-12: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Protection of Flora and Fauna.

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation				
Issue for Mitigation: Flora and Fauna				
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 6, General EHS Guidelines and EHC Guideline: Thermal Power Plants)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)		
Oily waste water from Power plant operation will be duly collected and routed to a treatment plant including API and, if needed, CPI separators before being discharged to the existing system downstream of YCCPP-1.	ArmPower	Included in operational costs		
HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system will be neutralized at the chemical shop to meet relevant water quality standards and will then be discharged to the Hrazdan River using existing YCCPP-1 discharge system				
Compliance with international stack emission standards ensures that critical levels will not be exceeded and will thus not represent any danger for flora and fauna				
Compliance with national and international noise emission standards ensures that critical levels will not be exceeded and will thus not represent any danger for fauna				
Strict prohibition of herbicide use for maintaining YCCPP-2 site (use mechanical methods only)				

Table 9-13: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Soil and Water Pollution

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation		
Issue for Mitigation: Soil and Water Pollution		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Water and Sanitation, Wastewater and Ambient Water Quality, Waste Management, Hazardous Material Management, Thermal Power Plants)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Oily waste water from Power plant operation will be duly collected and routed to a treatment plant including API and, if needed, CPI separators before being discharged to recipient existing system. Treatment system will be suitably selected and implemented to meet the environmental limits and the good industry practice.	ArmPower	Included in operational costs

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation		
Issue for Mitigation: Soil and Water Pollution		
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Water and Sanitation, Wastewater and Ambient Water Quality, Waste Management, Hazardous Material Management, Thermal Power Plants)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)
Rain water from internal roads and other paved areas will be collected and led to the waste water treatment plant before discharging it to the existing system of YCCPP-1. Rain water from roofs of buildings and shelters will be collected in an underground tank for reusing the water without any treatments for irrigation inside the plant site.		
HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system will be neutralized at chemical shop to meet relevant water quality standards (see Section 6.2.4.2) and will then be discharged to Hrazdan River using the existing YCCPP-1 discharge system		
The utility's domestic sewerage will be connected to the city's sewerage system		
Train staff in appropriate sanitation practices		Included in operational
Provide spill-control materials at YCCPP-2, in order to clean up spills, if necessary	A	
Enforcement of a Waste Management Plan	ArmPower	costs
Elaboration of an emergency plan in case of accidental leakage		
Remove contaminated soil if spills occur and handle as hazardous waste	-	
Prohibition of herbicides for maintenance of YCCPP-2		
Proper handling and storage of hazardous material (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor)		
Train staff in proper management of recyclable, sanitary, solid, liquid, and hazardous wastes		
Regular maintenance of all vehicles and machines at regular service stations, if possible		
Maintenance and re-fueling of the equipment only on sealed and enclosed areas		
Conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of the foreseen groundwater deviation at site including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network); assessment to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction.	EPC Contractor and ArmPower	Included in construction and operational costs

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation				
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Air Quality and Climate Change				
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Air Emissions and Ambient Air Quality, Thermal Power Plants)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)		
Maintain vehicles and engines properly, as recommended by suppliers				
Avoid unnecessary idling of vehicles		Included in operational costs		
Compliance with performance guarantees of the operator for emission values (see Section 6.2.5)				
Rise the stack height to 66 meters (GEP stack height)	ArmPower			
Greenhouse gases emissions shall be quantified at least annually and results reported to the national authorities and the financing institutions.				
In order to keep the GHG emissions of the plant as low as technically possible, process control techniques and good maintenance of the combustion system shall be applied.				

 Table 9-14:
 Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Climate and Air Quality

Table 9-15:	Summary of Mitigation	Measures during	Operation concerning	Landscape and '	Visual Aspects
-------------	-----------------------	-----------------	-----------------------------	-----------------	----------------

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation				
Issue for Mitigation: Landscape and Visual Aspects				
Mitigation measures (considering General EHS)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)		
Visual impact due to buildings and stack of YCCPP-2 is unavoidable		Included in operational costs		
Planting of indigenous trees and bushes along YCCPP-2 boundaries is recommended, in order to reduce the visual burden at least to some extent (develop and implement landscape / planting plan)	ArmPower			

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation				
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts from Waste				
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 3, General EHS Guidelines and EHS-Guidelines: Water and Sanitation, Wastewater and Ambient Water Quality, Waste Management, Hazardous Material Management, Thermal Power Plants)	Responsible Party	Budget for implementing (USD)		
Collect all types of wastes including domestic and sanitary wastes during CCPP operation. Make arrangements for proper waste handling, treatment and disposal with municipal authorities about using services of communal service providers for waste disposal purposes.				
Oil separated from water in the API separator of the waste water treatment plant will be collected by a licensed company for final disposal				
Store all hazardous waste in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at YCCPP-2 site for future disposal				
Clearly label all hazardous waste and provide Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)	ArmPower	Included in operational costs		
Train staff in handling and disposal of recyclable, sanitary, solid, liquid and hazardous waste		operational costs		
Adequate storage and clear labeling and marking according to national / internationally recognized requirements and standards, including the International Chemical Safety Cards (ICSC), Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), or equivalent, of all hazardous substances in chemical workshop (e.g. acids and alkaline solutions)				
Waste Management Plan for operation shall also include a risk assessment associated with the mid-term to long-term storage of hazardous waste, as well as an appropriate sizing and monitoring requirements of the storage facilities (see Section 6.2.7)				

Table 9-16: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Waste Management

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation					
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Workers' Health and Safety					
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 2, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Occupational Health and Safety, Thermal Power Plants)	gation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 2, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Occupational th and Safety, Thermal Power Plants) Responsible Party Budget for implementation of the second se				
ArmPower will have a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) in place, according to their HSE Policy, considering IFC/WorldBank EHS guidelines for Thermal Power Plants					
Make sure that all staff has a health insurance					
Consider possible occurrence of poisonous snakes (train the workers on venomous species identification and bite handling, provide related first aid equipment).					
According to national legislation for workers noise levels shall be kept below 80 dB (A). Hand out ear protection devices to all workers, when necessary (according to WB/IFC General EHS Guideline, workers are obliged to wear ear protectors where 85 dB (A) are exceeded for duration of more than 8 hours).	ar k ArmPower Included in op costs				
Staff will be provided with appropriate protective equipment (PPE) according to RENCO's Occupational Health & Safety Standards and IFC/WorldBank EHS guidelines for Thermal Power Plants					
Train staff accordingly regarding work at heights, electrical and vehicular safety, handling of hazardous materials, use of PPE, hazard avoidance and reduction measures, use of first aid and rescue techniques, emergency response, firefighting, etc.		Included in operational costs			
Forbid alcohol and other drugs at YCCPP-2 site					
Assure transfer of injured staff to hospitals in the case of serious accidents					
Limit occupational exposure to electric or magnetic fields (EMF) by use of shielding materials, signing of relevant areas and training of staff (see Section 6.3.4.1)					
Maintain vehicles and machinery regularly and use manufacturer approved parts to minimize potentially serious accidents caused by equipment malfunction or premature failure					
ArmPower's/RENCO's Human Resources Policy shall include international labor standards as defined in ILO (2014), in order to fulfill IFC PS 2					
Record work-hours as well as all accidents and incidents					
Implement and communicate an accessible grievance mechanism for staff to address any complaints					

Table 9-17: Summary of Mitigation Measures during Operation concerning Occupational Health & Safety

Table 9-18:	Summary of Mitigation	Measures during	Operation of	concerning Commu	nity Health &	& Safety
-------------	-----------------------	------------------------	---------------------	------------------	---------------	----------

Mitigation measures to be applied during operation				
Issue for Mitigation: Impacts on Public Health and Safety				
Mitigation measures (considering IFC PS 1, PS 4, General EHS-Guideline and EHS-Guidelines: Community Health and Safety, Thermal Power Plants)Budget for implementing				
For residents the noise levels may not exceed 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night.				
Compliance with performance guarantees for emission limits and compliance with design specifications to keep noise emissions low				
YCCPP-2 site will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access.				
The development and implementation of a Security Force Management Plan guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice ³⁹ and national law is recommended	ArmPower	Included in operational costs		
Security personnel shall be trained and monitored regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community				
Develop and implement an Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan (see Section 6.4.2)				
Provide appropriate information about Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan to potentially affected communities and individuals				
Undertake regular public communication of the company's environmental and social performance (for example, via the website)				

³⁹ e.g. UN Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials; UN Basis Principles on the Use of Force and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; IFC (2017): Good Practice Handbook on Use of Security Forces - Assessing and Managing Risks and Impacts.

9.1.3 Mitigation Measures for the Decommissioning Phase

Environmental and social impacts during the decommissioning phase will be mainly the same as during the construction phase. Thus, mitigation measures for the construction phase will be also valid for the dismantling works, which will have to adhere to the latest editions of national and international laws and guidelines, or even to new ones that will be relevant at the time.

A Decommissioning Plan shall be prepared by the operator at least 5 years before closure of the plant, and a Detailed Decommissioning Plan shall be developed at least 18 months in advance of the closure of the plant.

The main impacts during decommissioning phase will be due to waste from dismantling, including different types of hazardous waste. A detailed Waste Management Plan will have to be developed by ArmPower following the same principles as given in Section 6.1.7 respecting the waste management hierarchy of avoidance, preparing for reuse, recycling as much as possible (e.g. scrap metal; batteries), recovery, and proper disposal of remaining waste according to EU Directive 2008/98/EC (Waste Framework Directive). Scrap metal and used batteries can be sold to local recycling companies at Yerevan like e.g. Metexim LLC, or others.

In the next 20 years a solution for the final disposal of hazardous waste will probably be decided upon and provided by the Government of RA. Hazardous waste resulting from the decommissioning activities shall be stored first in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at the YCCPP-2 site. All hazardous wastes shall be securely packed in sealed drums or other suitable containers, clearly identified by labels, and marked according to national and internationally recognized requirements and standards, including the International Chemical Safety Cards (ICSC), Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), or equivalent. Hazardous waste shall then be disposed of, if adequate disposal sites exist at the time.

9.2 Monitoring Measures

The local HSE officer of ArmPower will monitor the implementation of mitigation measures by the EPC Contractor (RENCO SPA), based on regular inspections. An external internationally experienced auditor will prepare environmental and social performance reports for ADB/ IFC, based on quarterly site inspections and the monthly reports of ArmPower's HSE officer during construction and one additional site inspection during commissioning. ArmPower will be responsible for monitoring of environmental and social performance during operation and decommissioning of the CCPP. The external auditor will also perform one audit per year during operation.

9.2.1 Monitoring during the Construction Phase

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How s the parameter to be monitored/ type of nonitoring equipment?		Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Impacts on flora and fauna	Prohibition of herbicides for site clearance	Construction Site	Visual inspection	No herbicides used	At the beginning of construction period during site clearance	ArmPower
	Mitigation measures to be implemented to reduce risks of soil and water contamination do also mitigate the impact on flora and fauna			Measures for reduction of soil and water contamination implemented (see below)	 Regularly during construction 	ArmPower External auditor
	Mitigation measures to be implemented to noise reduction like using low sound power mechanical equipment do also mitigate the impact on noise sensitive fauna (if any)			Measures for noise reduction implemented (see below)		

Table 9-19: Summary of monitoring measures during Construction Phase

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	WhereHowis the parameteris the parameter to be monitored/ type ofto be monitored?monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Impacts on flora and fauna	Suppress dust generated by construction works by spraying water	Construction Site	Visual inspection	Dust effectively suppressed	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Develop and implement an	Construction Site		Erosion and Sediment Control Plan implemented	In advance of construction	ArmPower
	Erosion and Sediment Control Plan	Office of EPC Contractor	Visual inspection			External auditor
	Minimization of areas for construction and material storage	Construction Site	Visual inspection	Areas as small as possible	Regularly during construction	
Soll Erosion	Minimize removing topsoil at construction site and store in line with international good practice, so that it can be re-used after construction			Topsoil stored accordingly		ArmPower External auditor
	Protect excess spoils, if any, from runoff			Excess spoils protected		
Soil (and water) pollution from vehicles and construction equipment	Regular maintenance of vehicles/ machines at regular service stations, if possible	Construction Site	Inspection of maintenance records	Vehicles and machines adequately maintained	Regularly during	ArmPower
	Maintenance and re-fueling of construction equipment on sealed and enclosed areas	Construction Site	Visual inspection of maintenance/ re-fueling areas	No unsuitable areas used for maintenance and re- fueling	construction	External auditor

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Soil (and water) pollution from inadequate storage	Store all liquid materials (e.g. fuel, engine oil, paint, chemicals, lubricants) in locked tanks and on sealed, bunded and roofed areas. Installation of secondary containment for storing liquid materials is recommended.	Construction Site Storage areas	Inspection of storage areas	All liquid materials stored accordingly	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Store construction material (bags of cement etc.) in containers in order to avoid rinsing out			Construction material stored accordingly		
	In case of any spillage: Localization of the spilled material and immediate cleaning of the contaminated area in order to prevent the pollutant from entering soil		Inspection of spill reports	Area accordingly cleaned		
Soil (and water) pollution from spills	Train transporters and workers in spill prevention and control especially in handling of oil and fuel	Construction Site	Inspection of training records	All workers and transporters trained accordingly	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Provide spill-control materials to drivers and workers, in order to clean up spills, if necessary		Inspection of equipment	Spill-control equipment provided		
	Equip all construction vehicles with spill-control kits		Visual inspection	All vehicles equipped accordingly		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Soil (and water) pollution from spills	Report and respond to spills promptly and train workers in how to report		Inspection of spill reports, and training records	Number of spill reports All workers trained accordingly	Regularly during	ArmPower
	Remove contaminated soil if spills occur and handle as hazardous waste	Construction Site Storage areas	Inspection of spill reports and storage areas	All contaminated materials adequately stored	construction	External auditor
Water pollution from sanitation	Construction site equipped with toilets and sanitary rooms according to IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note - separately for men and women		Visual inspection	Number and quality according to IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note ⁴⁰		
	Lead sewage water to the city's sewage water system or use septic tanks for collecting sewage water, which have to be emptied by a specialized company from time to time.	Construction Site	Visual inspection Inspection of contract with specialized company (if necessary)	Sewage water led to the city's sewage system or septic tanks in place. Appropriate emptying of tanks (if necessary)	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Train workers in appropriate sanitation practices		Inspection of training records	All workers trained accordingly		
Water pollution from waste	Provide waste bins at the construction site in order to collect workers' waste (implement Waste Management Plan)	Construction Site	Visual inspection	Waste bin sin place and used by workers	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor

⁴⁰ see IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note on Workers' Accommodation (2009)

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Deviation of groundwater	The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of the foreseen groundwater deviation at site, to be approved by IFC and ADB in compliance with the bank's safeguards requirements.	Near construction sites	Review of hydrological assessment report Interviews with third parties Inspection of complaints	Mitigation measures of hydrological assessment report implemented; Third parties informed and water supply secured; no complaints	In advance of construction	ArmPower External auditor
Limitation of exhaust gas pollution	Reduction of speed and limited movement of vehicles	Construction Site	Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents	Regularly during construction	
	Optimize transportation management to avoid needless truck trips (as part of a Traffic Management Plan)		Inspection of transportation management	No needless truck trips Traffic Management Plan implemented		ArmPower
	Maintain vehicles and construction machinery properly, as recommended by suppliers		Inspection of maintenance records	Equipment regularly maintained		External auditor
	Avoid unnecessary idling of construction machines and vehicles		Visual inspection	No unnecessary idling		
Limitation of dust	Cover truck beds with tarps during material transport	Construction Site	Visual inspection	Truck beds covered	Regularly during construction	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Use dust-suppressing water spray during civil works, where necessary		Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents		External auditor
Limitation of dust	Store and handle material appropriately to limit dust (e.g. protect cement with tarpaulins)	Construction Site	Visual inspection	Appropriate storage	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Landscape and	Use dust-suppressing water spray during civil works, where necessary		Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents	Regularly during construction	
	Clear up the construction waste and remove all machinery after construction works	Construction Site	Visual inspection	All waste and machinery removed		ArmPower
VISUAI ASpects	Reinstate any adjacent damaged areas		Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents		External auditor
	Development and implementation of a landscape / planting plan is recommended		Visual inspection	Landscape / planting plan implemented		
Waste management	Develop Waste Management Plan for construction period	Construction Site	Control of Waste Management Plan	Waste Management Plan developed	In advance of	ArmPower
	Implementation of Waste Management System	Office of EPC Contractor	Control of Waste Management System	Waste Management System implemented	construction	External auditor

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	EPC Contractor will agree with municipal authorities about using services of communal service providers for waste disposal purposes.		Control of written agreement	Written agreement provided		
	Collect and segregate all type of wastes	Construction Site Storage areas	Visual inspection	All wastes collected and segregated		
Waste management	Store all hazardous waste in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor)			All hazardous wastes adequately stored	Regularly during construction	ArmPower
	Pack all hazardous wastes securely in sealed drums or other suitable containers, clearly identify them by labels, and provide Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)			All hazardous wastes adequately packed and labeled and MSDS provided		External auditor
	Existing waste material at the construction site has to be segregated and stored or disposed of accordingly	Construction Site	Visual inspection	All existing waste material segregated and stored or disposed of	In advance of construction	
	Concrete waste can be disposed of at Yerevan dumping site or be used as land filling material			Concrete waste handled accordingly		ArmPower
	Scrap metal shall be sold to local recycling companies			Scrap metal recycled		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Training in waste handling	Train workers in handling and disposal of recyclable, sanitary, solid, liquid and hazardous waste	Construction Site	Inspection of training records	All workers trained accordingly	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Impacts on Historical and Cultural Sites and Goods	Inform the Ministry of Culture about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site.	Construction Site	Follow-up of the Ministry's answer	Ministry informed about Project	In advance of construction	ArmPower
	Implementation of Chance Find Procedure and training of the construction workers	Construction Site	Inspection of chance find reports and training records	Chance Find Procedure implemented and all workers trained	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Impacts on Historical and Cultural Sites and Goods	Report chance finds immediately to RA Ministry of Culture, Dep. Protection of Monuments and Historical Sites	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of chance find reports	All chance finds reported to Ministry of Culture	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
HSE Policy and HSE Management	EPC Contractor develops and implements site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (HSEMP) for the construction phase	Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of relevant documents	HSE Management Plan developed	In advance of construction works	ArmPower External auditor

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How <i>is the parameter to be monitored/ type of</i> <i>monitoring equipment?</i>		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
HSE Policy and HSE Management	EPC Contractor develops and implements Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) for construction phase. An H&S manager of EPC Contractor shall be on duty all the time during construction period.	Office of EPC Contractor Construction Site	Inspection of relevant documents	HSE Management System implemented H&S Manager employed	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	HSEMP and HSEMS shall also be valid for any third parties or subcontractors in the supply chain			Subcontracts contain adequate HSEMP		
	Make sure that all workers have a health insurance or provide to workers who don't have	Construction Site	Inspection of workers' health documents	All workers have health insurance		
Occupational	Awareness raising regarding sexually transmitted diseases (STD) should be provided to workforce		Inspection of training records	All workers trained accordingly		ArmPower
Health and Safety	Consider possible occurrence of poisonous snakes during working		Inspection of incident and accident reports	No accidents related to poisonous snakes	construction	External auditor
	For workers noise levels shall be kept below 80 dB (A), wherever possible. Hand out ear protection devices to all workers, when necessary.		Measurement with noise meter	Noise level below 80 dB (A); if noise levels are higher: workers fitted with PPE and warning signs installed		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		WhereHowWhenis the parameteris the parameter to be monitored/ type ofis the parameter to beto be monitored?monitoring equipment?monitored-frequency		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?			
Occupational	Provide workers with appropriate protective equipment (PPE) according to RENCO's Occupational Health & Safety Standards	Construction Site	Visual Inspection	All workers provided with and using PPE	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor		
	Train workers accordingly regarding work at heights, electrical and vehicular safety, handling of hazardous materials, PPE, hazard avoidance and reduction measures, use of first aid and rescue techniques, emergency response, etc.		Inspection of training records	All workers trained accordingly				
Health and Safety	Identify area emergency responders, hospitals, and clinics, and provide advance notice of Project activities		Interviews	Area emergency responders informed about Project activities				
	Forbid alcohol and other drugs at construction site		Inspection of incident records	No workers found under influence of alcohol or other drugs				
	Assure transfer of injured workers to hospitals in the case of serious accidents		Inspection of accident records	Workers transferred to hospital in case of serious accidents				
	Limit occupational exposure to electric or magnetic fields (EMF) by use of shielding materials, signing of relevant areas and training of workers		Interviews Inspection of training records	Shielding materials in place All workers trained accordingly				

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	WhereHowis the parameteris the parameter to be monitored/ type ofto be monitored?monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring	
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Occupational Health and	Licensing and training of drivers; improvement of driving skills		Inspection of licensing records	All drivers licensed and trained	Regularly during construction	
	Training and licensing industrial vehicle operators in the safe operation of specialized vehicles, including safe loading/ unloading, and load limits	Construction Site	Inspection of training records	All vehicle operators trained and licensed		ArmPower External auditor
	Maintain vehicles regularly and use manufacturer approved parts to minimize potentially serious accidents caused by equipment malfunction or premature failure		Inspection of maintenance records	Vehicles regularly maintained and approved parts used		
Survey	Record work-hours as well as all accidents and incidents		Inspection of records	Recording implemented		
	Skilled working personnel (partly from abroad) will be accommodated in RENCO's guesthouse or at hotels in Yerevan. Local (mainly unskilled) workforce shall be employed from Yerevan and the adjacent villages. No workers' camps will have to be established as local workers will return to their home daily		Interviews	Accommodation for skilled personnel in adequate condition No workers' camps established		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Occupational Health and Safety	Transfer of workers to and from the construction site shall be managed by the EPC Contractor (e.g. bus transfer)	Construction Site	Interviews	Transfer for workers established	Regularly during	ArmPower External auditor
	Implement and communicate an accessible grievance mechanism for workers to address any complaints	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of grievance log book Interviews	All grievances adequately treated	construction	
Noise impacts on public and on workers	Use of machines with low sound power and fitting of construction machines with silencers or mufflers	Construction Site	Visual inspection and inspection of complaints	Low sound equipment used; no complaints from residents	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Regular maintenance and service of building machinery and vehicles during construction works		Inspection of maintenance records	Equipment regularly maintained		
	Shut down or throttling down of noisy machinery		Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents		
Noise impacts	Optimize transportation management to avoid needless truck drives (as part of a Traffic Management Plan)	Construction Site	Inspection of	No complaints from	Regularly during	ArmPower
paone	Allow truck movements only during daylight, but not between 7 pm and 6 am (TMP)					External auditor

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How <i>is the parameter to be monitored/ type of</i> <i>monitoring equipment?</i>		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Noise impacts on public	Reduce vehicle speeds (stick to recommended speeds; 20 km/h for heavy trucks) in populated areas (TMP)	Villages around construction site	Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	For residents the noise levels may not exceed 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night, or a maximum increase of 3 dB(A)	Residential areas near construction site (up to 5 points)	Instrumental measurement	Noise level below 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night. or Maximum increase of 3 dB(A) at the receptors	5 hours of day-time measurements, twice per month during construction period (assumed no construction works at night)	RENCO/ ArmPower External auditor
	Notify population in advance about start date and duration of the overall construction works and of specific operations with high noise level	Residential areas near construction site	Inspection of complaints	No complaints from public	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Community Health and Safety	Development and implementation of a Traffic Management Plan (including regulations for truck movements, transport of workers, short-term closure of roads (if necessary), details about road use (by whom and for what purpose) and alternative routes.)	Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of Traffic Management Plan Inspection of complaints	Traffic Management Plan implemented No complaints from public	In advance of construction and regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Community Health and Safety	The construction site itself will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access to the site, thus also minimizing possible impacts on community health.	Construction Site	Inspection of incidents/ accidents records	No incidents/ accidents regarding public health and safety	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Security arrangements to be guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice ⁴¹ and national law	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of security concept and contracts	Arrangements according to good international practice; No complaints from public		
	Security personnel shall be trained and monitored regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community		Inspection of training records Review of recorded security incidents and adaptation of security management, if required	All security staff trained accordingly; No complaints from public; Adaptation of security management, if required		

⁴¹ e.g. UN Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials; UN Basis Principles on the Use of Force and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; IFC (2017): Good Practice Handbook on Use of Security Forces - Assessing and Managing Risks and Impacts.

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Community Health and Safety	Provide adequate security measures to prevent accidents and injury (e.g. keeping speed limits)	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of complaints and accident records	No complaints from residents; no accidents	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Inform population of small villages along public roads in advance, in case of transporting heavy equipment					
	Establish worker code of conduct to help prevent friction or conflict with communities	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of complaints	Worker code of conduct established		
	Provide cultural awareness training to be given for non- local workers (expand to local workers if grievances are raised or observations made of inappropriate behavior)	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of training records Inspection of complaints	All non-local workers trained accordingly No grievances		
	Develop and implement an Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan		Inspection of documents	Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan implemented		
	Provide appropriate information about Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan to potentially affected communities and individuals	Residents living near construction sites	Interviews with residents	Residents informed accordingly		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Employment	EPC's Human Resources Policy shall include international labor standards as defined in ILO (2014)	Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of Human Resources Policy	According to international labor standards, fulfilling IFC PS 2	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
	Develop and implement a non-discriminatory hiring and wage policy according to international labor standards as defined in ILO 2014 (clearly stating that the company will not discriminate in hiring and salaries based on gender, age, religion, ethnicity or place of origin), if not already in place	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of employment contracts (also of subcontractors) Inspection of complaints Interviews with employees No con High p people	Employment contracts according to international labor standards No complaints		
	Prosecute offenses related to payment of wages by sub- contractors strictly			Employment contracts according to international labor standards No complaints		
	Prioritize employment of local people for construction works (offer job opportunities in nearby villages and Yerevan)			High percentage of local people employed		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Employment	Discuss potential barriers for local employment with labor / training organizations so that measures to overcome these barriers (if any) can be developed and put in place	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of results and measures	High percentage of local people employed	In advance of construction and regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Employment / Gender aspects	Improve recruitment of women for construction works	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of employment contracts	25% of employees are female; thorough justification, if this rate cannot be kept	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Gender aspects	Zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the work place	Construction Site	Inspection of complaints	No complaints from residents and from workers	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
Grievance Redress Mechanism	Implement and communicate an accessible grievance mechanism for PAP to address any complaints	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of grievance log book Interviews with PAP	All grievances adequately treated	Regularly during construction	ArmPower External auditor
One audit per quarter by an external internationally experienced auditor	Compliance with ESMP; monitoring data	Construction Site Office of EPC Contractor	Inspection of the site, HSE reports from ArmPower, monitoring data (air emissions, noise emissions, waste water, etc.)	All mitigation measures of ESMP implemented and adaptive measures applied, where necessary; Monitoring data below the defined limit values or regulative measures implemented	One audit per quarter during the construction phase	External auditor Costs per audit: 10,000 USD

9.2.2 Monitoring during the Commissioning Phase

Additionally to the monitoring measures provided for the operation phase, during the commissioning phase of the Project especially ambient air quality and noise emissions shall be monitored:

- Ambient air quality regarding NO₂ shall be monitored at two locations: one predicted maximum ground level concentration location and one background site during two years (starting with the commissioning phase) using continuous methods (at hourly intervals). Ground level concentration of NO₂ shall not exceed national and international standards. Results shall be reported to the national authorities (Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO) and the financing agencies.
- For residents the noise levels may not exceed 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night, or a maximum increase of 3 dB(A) is to be applied. Instrumental measurements shall be done at legal and illegal residential areas near the YCCPP-2 site (up to 5 points) and results reported to the national authorities. 5 hours of day-time and night-time measurements shall be performed twice per month during the commissioning period.
9.2.3 Monitoring during the Operation Phase

Table 9-20:	Summary of monit	toring measures	during (Operation	Phase
-------------	------------------	-----------------	----------	-----------	-------

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Impacts on flora and fauna	Oily waste water from Power plant operation will be duly collected and routed to a treatment plant including API and eventually CPI separators before being discharged to the existing system of YCCPP-1.	Visual inspection Inspection of monitoring reports	Water treatment plant installed and working properly		ArmPower (results to be	
	HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system will be neutralized at chemical shop to meet relevant water quality standards and will then be discharged to Hrazdan River using existing YCCPP-1 discharge system	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of waste water monitoring reports	Drainage water does not exceed applicable limits	Monthly monitoring	reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)
	Compliance with international stack emission standards ensures that critical levels will not be exceeded and will thus not represent any danger for flora and fauna		Inspection of air emission monitoring reports	Air emission does not exceed applicable limits		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Impacts on flora and fauna	Compliance with national and international noise emission standards ensures that critical levels will not be exceeded and will thus not be dangerous for sensitive fauna (if any)	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of design data and noise measurements	Noise emissions do not exceed applicable limits (see below: noise impacts)	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
	Strict prohibition of herbicide use for maintaining YCCPP-2 site		Visual inspection	No herbicides used for maintaining	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Soil and Water pollution	Oily waste water from Power plant operation will be duly collected and routed to a treatment plant including API and eventually CPI separators before being discharged to the YCCPP-1 existing system. The treatment system will be suitably selected and implemented to meet the environmental limits and the good industry practice.	YCCPP-2 site	Visual inspection Inspection of monitoring reports	Treatment plant (oil separator) installed and working properly Drainage water does not exceed respective limits for water quality (national or IFC, whichever is more stringent)	Monthly monitoring	ArmPower (results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring	
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?		
Soil and Water pollution	Rain water from internal roads and other paved areas will be collected and led to the waste water treatment plant before discharging it to the existing system of YCCPP-1. Rain water from roofs of buildings and shelters will be collected in an underground tank for reusing the water without any treatments for irrigation inside the plant site.	YCCPP-2 site	Visual inspection Inspection of monitoring reports	Treatment plant (oil separator) installed and working properly Drainage water does not exceed respective limits for water quality (national or IFC, whichever is more stringent)	Monthly monitoring	Ari (re En Monthly monitoring Inf Ce	ArmPower (results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing
	HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system will be neutralized at chemical shop to meet relevant water quality standards and will then be discharged to Hrazdan River using the existing discharge system of YCCPP-1.		Visual inspection Inspection of waste water monitoring reports	Drainage water does not exceed respective limits for water quality (national or IFC, whichever is more stringent)		institutions and the external and internal auditors)	

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	All waste water		Analyses by a certified independent laboratory	All waste water complies with the applicable limits for water quality (national or IFC, whichever is more stringent)	Monthly monitoring	ArmPower (by hiring an independent certified laboratory). Results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)
	Utility sewerage will be connected to city's sewerage system		Inspection of monitoring reports	Sewage water led to city's sewerage system; not exceeding applicable limits for water quality (national or IFC, whichever is more stringent)		ArmPower
	Train staff in appropriate sanitation practices		Inspection of training records	All staff trained accordingly	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Soil and Water	Provide spill-control materials at YCCPP-2, in order to clean up spills	VCCPP 2 site	Inspection of equipment	Spill-control equipment provided	Regularly during	
pollution	Enforcement of a Waste Management Plan	1 CC1 1 -2 SHC	Site inspection	All waste collected, segregated and stored/ disposed of appropriately	operation	

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How <i>be monitored/ type of</i> <i>ent?</i>	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Elaboration of an emergency plan in case of accidental leakage		Inspection of emergency plan and of accident reports	Emergency Plan implemented and accidental leakages treated appropriately (if any)		
	Remove contaminated soil if spills occur and handle as hazardous waste	YCCPP-2 site Storage areas		Contaminated soil handled as hazardous waste		
	Prohibition of herbicides for maintenance of YCCPP-2	YCCPP-2 site	Visual inspection	No herbicides used for maintaining		
	Proper handling and storage of hazardous material (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor)	YCCPP-2 site Storage areas		Hazardous material properly handled and stored		
	Train staff in proper management of recyclable, sanitary, solid, liquid, and hazardous wastes	n proper t of recyclable, id, liquid, and vastes All staff training records	All staff trained accordingly			
	Regular maintenance of all vehicles and machines at regular service stations, if possible	TCCPP-2 site	Inspection of maintenance records	Vehicles and machines adequately maintained		
Soil and Water pollution	Maintenance and re-fueling of the equipment only on sealed and enclosed areas	YCCPP-2 site	Visual inspection of maintenance and re-fueling areas	No unsuitable areas used for maintenance and re- fueling	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Deviation of groundwater	The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of the foreseen groundwater deviation at site, to be approved by IFC and ADB in compliance with the bank's safeguards requirements.	Near the YCCPP- 2 site	Interviews with third parties Inspection of complaints	Third parties informed and water supply secured; no complaints	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Limitation of exhaust gas	Maintain vehicles and engines properly, as recommended by suppliers	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of maintenance records	Equipment properly maintained	Regularly during	ArmPower
pollution	Avoid unnecessary idling of vehicles		Visual inspection	No unnecessary idling	operation	
Air emissions and air quality	Monitoring of NO2, CO and UHC at the stack Compliance with performance guarantees of the operator for emission values	Stack of YCCPP- 2	Inspection of monitoring reports of CEMS data	Air emissions do not exceed ArmPower's Performance Guarantees (NOx: < 50; CO < 30; UHC < 10 mg/Nm ³)	Continuously	ArmPower (results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		How When is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment? is the parameter to be monitored-frequency		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?			
Air emissions and air quality	Monitoring of NO2, CO and UHC at the stack	Stack of YCCPP- 2	Analyses by a certified independent laboratory	Air emissions do not exceed ArmPower's Performance Guarantees (NOx: < 50; CO < 30; UHC < 10 mg/Nm ³)	Quarterly	ArmPower (by hiring an independent certified laboratory). Results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)		
Air emissions and air quality	Greenhouse gases emissions shall be monitored and/or quantified at least annually and results reported to national authorities and financial institutions (direct CO2 emissions shall be monitored with the CEMS; direct emissions of CH4 and N2O and indirect emissions of all GHG shall be calculated based on internationally recognized methods)	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of monitoring reports of CEMS data, and of quantification reports	GHG emissions do not exceed IFC/ WB typical value of 396 g CO ₂ /kWh gross	At least annually during operation	ArmPower (results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)		

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Monitoring of ambient air quality - NO ₂	At two locations: one predicted maximum ground level concentration location and one background site	Continuous electronic monitors	Ground level concentrations of NO ₂ do not exceed national and international standards	Continuous measurements (at hourly intervals) during 2 years, starting during the commissioning phase	
Landscape and Visual Aspects	Planting of indigenous trees and bushes along YCCPP-2 boundaries is recommended, in order to reduce the visual burden at least to some extent (develop and implement landscape / planting plan)	YCCPP-2 site	Visual inspection Inspection of landscape / planting plan	Native site adapted tree species planted according to landscape / planting plan	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Waste Management	Collect all type of wastes during CCPP operation. Make arrangements for proper waste handling, treatment and disposal with municipal authorities about using services of communal service providers for waste disposal purposes	YCCPP-2 site	Visual inspection Inspection of agreement with waste collector	All waste collected, segregated and stored/ disposed of appropriately Domestic waste picked up regularly be waste collector	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Waste Management	Oil separated from water in the API separator of the waste water treatment plant will be collected by a licensed company for final disposal	YCCPP-2 site Waste water treatment plant	Visual inspection Inspection of contract with licensed company	All oil accordingly collected	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Store all hazardous waste in adequate storage sites (lockable, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded floor) at YCCPP-2 site for future disposal	YCCPP-2 site Storage areas	Visual inspection Inspection of hazardous	Hazardous waste and materials stored appropriately and clearly labelled;		
	Clearly label all hazardous waste and provide Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)		material/waste register	Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) provided		
	Adequate storage and clear labeling according to national / internationally recognized requirements and standards, including the International Chemical Safety Cards (ICSC), Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), of all hazardous substances in chemical workshop (e.g. acids and alkaline solutions)	YCCPP-2 site Storage areas	Visual inspection Inspection of hazardous material/waste register	Hazardous waste and materials stored appropriately and clearly labelled; Materials Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) provided		
Waste Management	Waste Management Plan for operation shall also include a risk assessment associated with the mid-term to long- term storage of hazardous waste and adequate sizing of the storage area, as well as monitoring procedures	YCCPP-2 site Storage areas	Inspection of Waste Management Plan and storage sites	Risks assessed in Waste Management Plan and adequate storage implemented	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	e parameter is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Train staff in handling and disposal of recyclable, sanitary, solid, liquid and hazardous waste	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of training records	All staff trained accordingly		
HSE Policy and HSE Management	ArmPower will have a Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) in place, according to their HSE Policy, considering IFC/WorldBank EHS guidelines for Thermal Power Plants	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of relevant documents	HSEMS in place, considering relevant guidelines	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Employee Health and	Make sure that all staff has a health insurance	• YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of workers' health documents	All staff has health insurance	Regularly during operation	ArmPower
Safety	Consider occurrence of poisonous snakes		Inspection of incident and accident reports	No accidents related to poisonous snakes		ArmPower
Employee Health and Safety	For workers noise levels shall be kept below 80 dB (A), wherever possible. Hand out ear protection devices to all workers, when necessary	YCCPP-2 site	Visual Inspection	Noise level below 80 dB (A); if noise levels are higher: workers fitted with PPE and warning signs installed	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Staff will be provided with appropriate protective equipment (PPE) according to RENCO's Occupational Health & Safety Standards and IFC/WorldBank EHS guidelines for Thermal Power Plants		Visual Inspection	All staff provided with and using PPE		
	Train staff accordingly regarding work at heights, electrical and vehicular safety, handling of hazardous materials, use of PPE, hazard avoidance and reduction measures, use of first aid and rescue techniques, emergency response, firefighting, etc.		Inspection of training records	All staff trained accordingly		
	Forbid alcohol and other drugs at YCCPP-2 site		Inspection of incident records	No staff found under influence of alcohol or other drugs		
	Assure transfer of injured staff to hospitals in the case of serious accidents		Inspection of accident reports	Staff transferred to hospital in case of serious accidents		
Employee Health and Safety	Limit occupational exposure to electric or magnetic fields (EMF) by use of shielding materials, signing of relevant areas and training of staff	YCCPP-2 site	Interviews Inspection of training records	Shielding materials in place All workers trained accordingly	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	How is the parameter to be monitored/ type of monitoring equipment?		When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Maintain vehicles and machinery regularly and use manufacturer approved parts to minimize potentially serious accidents caused by equipment malfunction or premature failure		Inspection of maintenance records	Vehicles regularly maintained and approved parts used		
	Operator's Human Resources Policy shall include international labor standards as defined in ILO (2014)		Inspection of Human Resources Policy	According to international labor standards, fulfilling IFC PS 2		
	Record work-hours as well as all accidents and incidents		Inspection of records	Recording implemented		
	Implement and communicate an accessible grievance mechanism for staff to address any complaints		Inspection of grievance log book	All grievances adequately treated		
			Interviews			A
Noise impacts on public	For residents the noise levels may not exceed 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night, or a maximum increase of 3 dB(A).	Residential areas near the YCCPP- 2 site (up to 5 points)	Instrumental measurement	Noise level below 50 dB (A) during daytime and 45 dB (A) during night Or A maximum increase of 3 dB(A)	5 hours of day-time and night-time measurements, twice per month during commissioning period	ArmPower (results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
Public Health and Safety	Compliance with Performance Guarantees emission levels	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of monitoring reports of CEMS data Inspection of complaints	Air emissions do not exceed limits of ArmPower's Performance Guarantees No complaints	Regularly during operation	ArmPower (results to be reported to Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors)
	YCCPP-2 site will be fenced and the entrance gates will be guarded by security staff in order to prevent any unauthorized access.	YCCPP-2 site	Inspection of incidents/ accidents records	No incidents/ accidents regarding public health and safety		ArmPower
Public Health and Safety	Development and implementation of a Security Force Management Plan guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice and national law, is recommended	Construction Site Office of Operator at YCCPP-2	Inspection of security concept and contracts	Arrangements according to good international practice; No complaints from public	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme	How be monitored/ type of ent?	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency	Responsibility for monitoring
			Method	Indicator	of measurement or continuous?	
	Security personnel shall be trained and monitored regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community	Construction Site Office of Operator at YCCPP-2	Inspection of training records Review of recorded security incidents and adaptation of security management, if required	All security staff trained accordingly; No complaints from public; Adaptation of security management, if required		
	Develop and implement Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan	Office of Operator at YCCPP-2	Inspection of documents	Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan implemented		
	Provide appropriate information about Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan to potentially affected communities and individuals	Near the YCCPP- 2 site	Interviews with residents	Residents informed accordingly		
Information of public	Undertake regular communication of the company's environmental and social performance	Residents living near to site	Interviews with third parties	Third parties informed accordingly	Regularly during operation	ArmPower

Activity/ Impact	What parameter is to be monitored?	Where is the parameter to be monitored?	is the parameter to monitoring equipme Method	How be monitored/ type of ent? Indicator	When is the parameter to be monitored-frequency of measurement or continuous?	Responsibility for monitoring
One audit per year by an external internationally experienced auditor	Compliance with ESMP; monitoring data	YCCPP-2 site Office of ArmPower	Inspection of power plant, HSE reports from ArmPower, monitoring data (air emissions, noise emissions, waste water, etc.)	All mitigation measures of ESMP implemented and adaptive measures applied, where necessary; Monitoring data below the defined limit values or regulative measures implemented	One audit per year during the operation phase	External auditor Costs per audit: 10,000 USD

9.2.4 Monitoring during the Decommissioning Phase

As mitigation measures for decommissioning will be mainly the same as for the construction phase, also monitoring measures will be similar. Especially implementation of a Waste Management Plan for all wastes from deconstruction of the power plant will have to be monitored. This includes also the proper storage and disposal of hazardous wastes. Monitoring will be under the responsibility of ArmPower.

9.3 Implementation Arrangements and Capacity Building

The new power plant YCCPP-2 will be constructed by RENCO SPA and operated by ArmPower CJSC, which is a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA and Siemens.

RENCO SPA has a Health, Safety and Environment Policy (2015) in place, in order to meet the requirements, regulations and communities affairs for the health of all persons working under the control of RENCO, environment protection and plants safety. An integrated system for safety, environment and quality has been implemented in compliance to international guidelines and standards (like OHSAS 18001 and ISO 14001 standards). Among others RENCO SPA has also a Social and Cultural Heritage Policy (2016) as well as an Anti-Corruption Policy (2016) and a Code of Ethics in place.

The above mentioned policies and HSE management systems shall also be established at ArmPower CJSC as subsidiary company of RENCO SPA.

RENCO SPA as EPC Contractor has to implement the ESMP within its own site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) in a proper way and shall have an HSE manager on duty throughout the construction period. This HSE officer shall prepare monthly reports of all HSE relevant incidents and accidents as well as possible noncompliance during implementation of the mitigation measures as given in the ESMP. These reports shall be forwarded to the Health, Safety and Environment Manager of ArmPower and the relevant national authorities (like the Ministry of Nature Protection, Ministry of Health) as well as to the external internationally experienced auditor.

An external internationally experienced auditor shall perform quarterly supervision of the implementation of the ESMP and monitor the implementation of the mitigation measures during construction period. The aim of the audits will be to ensure that all mitigation measures are implemented adequately. In case of any discrepancies, the specialist shall implement proper actions to establish compliance with the ESMP. If this is not possible and if the discrepancy is considered to be severe, the person(s) in charge shall be empowered to stop the work immediately until compliance is achieved again. Based on his quarterly supervision and the monthly reports provided by the Health, Safety and Environment Manager of RENCO, the external auditor will produce narrative analytical quarterly reports on environmental and social performance in the course of the Project and furnish these reports to ADB/ IFC and to ArmPower. Additional site inspections by the external auditor shall be performed during the commissioning phase (one time) and the operational phase (once per year).

The monitoring of noise levels during construction and commissioning phases, of air emissions during commissioning and operation (during operation based on CEMS at the stack), as well as of liquid effluents during operation of YCCPP-2 shall be done by ArmPower and the results shall be shared with the "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center SNCO" of the Ministry of Nature Protection of the RA. During the site visit in July 2017 FICHTNER's environmental specialist was informed that **there are not enough capacities** at the named institution for implementing additional monitoring programs. Thus, measures for capacity building shall be considered so that in the future spot checks of the monitoring results can be undertaken by this authority. These measures should include employment of additional staff or contracting outside resources for monitoring purposes (or both). Existing staff shall be trained in effective monitoring procedures including knowledge about national and international (ADB, IFC/World Bank) guidelines and limit values.

9.4 Reporting requirements

The results of the monitoring measures foreseen in Section 9.2 of this ESIA shall be compiled in the form of HSE monitoring reports.

During the construction and decommissioning stages, the EPC Contractor (RENCO SPA) shall prepare:

- a daily HSE log;
- HSE incidents and chance finds reports;
- internal HSE audit reports;
- monthly HSE reports compiling all the above.

During operation, ArmPower shall prepare:

- HSE incidents reports;
- internal HSE audit reports;
- monthly HSE reports.

All reports shall be kept within the project's documentation and be readily available for disclosure to the national authorities, the financing institutions and the external and internal auditors. The reports must include the HSE situation at site and the results of the grievance mechanism (see Stakeholder Engagement Plan in Annex 12.9).

9.5 Adaptive management

The monitoring of the works may reveal the necessity to adapt the mitigation and monitoring measures of the ESMP to specific site conditions not known at the time of preparation of this ESIA. Items which are not anticipated in the ESMP may come up, as well as areas that need improvements. The Contractors shall be ready to handle both cases by adapting the dispositions of this ESIA.

Any changes to the commitments of this ESIA and the ESMP shall not be undertaken without the previous approval of the Project Owner and the Lenders.

9.6 Summary of Costs for Implementation of the EMSP

All costs for mitigation of the impacts during the construction, operation, and decommissioning periods of the Project are included in the regular construction / operational / decommissioning costs. Construction works are foreseen to run for 2.5 years.

Costs for the monitoring of ambient air and ambient noise at the power plant's surroundings are calculated as 145,000 USD. Additional costs are foreseen for **quarterly supervision of the construction sites** and **one additional site investigation during the commissioning phase**, to be performed by an internationally experienced auditor. One supervision mission is estimated to cost approx. 10,000 USD, including flights and reporting. Thus, the supervision will sum up to 110,000 USD for 10 visits during the 2.5 years of construction period and one visit during commissioning.

A total cost of 255,000 USD is foreseen (see Table 9-21).

Additional costs of 10,000 USD per year will arise for **yearly audits of the external auditor during the operation phase** of YCCPP-2.

Parameter	Stage	Frequency and duration	Location	Total cost	
Ambient	Construction	Twice per month, 5 hours each time, for 30 months	Up to 5 points in residential areas	50,000 USD	
Noise	Commissioning	Twice per month, 5 hours each time, for 12 months	Up to 5 points in residential areas	20,000 USD	
Ambient air quality - NO ₂	Commissioning and Operation	Continuously for 24 months	At two locations, one predicted maximum ground level concentration location and one background site.	75,000 USD	
SUB- TOTAL			145	,000 USD	
All EHS issues as	Construction	Every quarter of the year, for 2.5 years	The whole construction site	100,000 USD	
ESIA	Commissioning	One time	The power plant	10,000 USD	
SUB- TOTAL 110,000 USD					
TOTAL 255,000 USD *					

 Table 9-21:
 Monitoring costs for implementation of the ESMP

* Additional costs of 10,000 USD per year will arise for a yearly audit of the external auditor during the operation phase of YCCPP-2.

9.7 Gap Analysis regarding compliance with IFC Performance Standards

The compliance of the Project with the main requirements of the IFC Performance Standards after implementation of the mitigation and monitoring measures given in the ESMPs is analyzed in Table 9-22 below.

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment
PS 1: Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts	
PS 1: Policy	
Has a formal policy defining the environmental and social objectives and principles that guide the project been established?	Yes; RENCO has Health, Safety and Environment Policy in place and will develop a site specific Health, Safety and Environment Management System (HSEMS) for the Project; this shall also be established at ArmPower which is a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA and Siemens
Is the policy consistent with the principles of the PS or other internationally recognized standards?	Yes; the certified Policy complies to OHSAS 18001 and ISO 14001 standards
PS 1: Identification of risks and impacts	
Is there a process to assess the environmental and social impacts and risks of the project?	Yes; A National Environmental Impact Assessment has been prepared in 2016; Fichtner currently prepares the ESIA study (including ESMP) assessing environmental and social impacts
Have recent environmental and social baseline data at an appropriate level of detail been used in the assessment?	Yes; Site visit by Fichtner's environmental and social experts in 2017 and 2018 including stakeholder interviews; recent reports on geological situation and national EIA study as baseline; reports on groundwater quality and soil contamination at the site have just been prepared; measurements of background air quality and noise levels by Fichtner for Air Dispersion Calculation and Noise Propagation Study as part of the ESIA
Have all relevant risks and impacts been assessed, including the issues identified in PS 2 to 8?	Yes; all relevant impacts assessed in Fichtner's ESIA study. PS 5 and PS 7 are not applicable to the Project
Are the risks and impacts related to the emission of GHG and climate change considered, as well as adaptation opportunities?	Yes; see Section 6.2.5 of Fichtner's ESIA study
Have transboundary effects been considered?	Not applicable
Have the impacts been identified in the context of the project's area of influence?	Yes; assessed Project Area of Influence includes residential areas several km away and some illegal housings in the vicinity of the planned power plant

Table 9-22: Compliance of the Project with main requirements of IFC Performance Standards (PS)

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment
Have cumulative impacts been assessed?	Yes; Air Dispersion Calculation and Noise Propagation Study as part of Fichtner's ESIA study consider also the existing background levels
Have risks and impacts related to the actions of third parties been assessed?	Yes; if any third parties will be engaged they will have to comply to RENCO's HSE Policy and site-specific HSEMS
Has the assessment considered the findings of plans, studies and assessments prepared by relevant government authorities and other parties directly related to the project?	Yes; National project approval from Ministry of Nature Protection has been given in 2017 based on the national EIA and geological reports; National reports have been used as baseline for Fichtner's ESIA study
Have disadvantaged or vulnerable groups been identified?	Yes; Some illegal residents are located in the vicinity of the planned construction site
If so, do any adverse impacts fall disproportionately on them?	No
PS 1: Management Programs	
Has a program of mitigation and performance improvement measures that addresses identified impacts and risks been developed?	Yes; Environmental and Social Management Plans for construction, operation, and decommissioning phases of the Project are part of Fichtner's ESIA study. Mitigation Measures of the ESMPs will have to implemented by the EPC Contractor (RENCO SPA)
Does the program take into account the engagement process with affected communities?	Yes; Engagement process with affected communities is foreseen; Stakeholder Engagement Plan is part of Fichtner's ESIA study
Does the program include estimates of the resources for implementation?	Yes; Implementation of all mitigation measures during construction, operation and decommissioning phases are part of construction/ operational/ decommissioning budgets
Does the program include definition of the responsibilities for implementation?	Yes; Implementation arrangements are defined in Section 9.2.4 of Fichtner's ESIA study
PS 1: Organizational Capacity and Competency	
Are responsibilities and authorities for implementation of the management program defined and communicated appropriately through the client's organization?	Yes; National project approval has already been given by Ministry of Nature Protection; other authorities (e.g. for waste management, monitoring of air and noise emissions as well as effluents, possible chance finds of cultural goods) are named in Fichtner's ESIA and will be contacted by the client.

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment	
Do the persons with responsibility for implementing the management program have the necessary knowledge, skills and experience?	Yes; RENCO has a certified Health, Safety and Environment Policy in place and will establish a HSE Manager for the Project; the same will be done at ArmPower as subsidiary of RENCO	
PS 1: Emergency Preparedness and Response		
Are there emergency preparedness and response plans that are commensurate with the level of project risks?	Yes; Emergency preparedness and response plans will have to be developed by EPC Contractor for construction and Operator for operational phase; these plans are part of the mitigation measures given in Fichtner's ESIA study	
In the event emergency preparedness and response requires participation of the community and the local governmental agencies, have they been involved?	Yes; Communities and local government authorities will be involved in those plans	
PS 1: Monitoring and Review		
Have procedures to monitor and measure on a regular basis the effectiveness of the management program established, including the use of external experts and/or affected communities where appropriate?	Yes; Monitoring the implementation of mitigation measures is part of Fichtner's ESIA study; Monitoring will be done by RENCO's and ArmPower's HSE Managers and an internationally experienced auditor	
Is the management program regularly updated based on the results of the monitoring?	Yes; Monitoring reports will update the ESMP regularly, if necessary	
Is appropriate environmental and social performance information periodically reported internally to senior management?	Yes; ArmPower's HSE Manager will report the monitoring results to senior management of ArmPower and to international experienced auditor	
PS1: Stakeholder Engagement		
Has the range of stakeholders for the project been identified?		
Has a Stakeholder Engagement Plan been established?	Yes; see Stakeholder Engagement Plan (including Grievance	
Are differentiated measures deemed to allow the participation of those identified as disadvantaged or vulnerable included?	Redress Mechanism) which is part of Fichtner's ESIA study	
Has appropriate disclosure of relevant project information to, and consultation with, affected communities been conducted?	Yes; affected communities have been informed and possible concerns collected during site visit of Fichtner's environmental and social experts in 2017; Draft Final ESIA and ESMP was disclosed to public and Public Consultation meeting was performed to finalize ESIA study	

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment			
 Has the disclosure and consultation process been: Timely (early in the process)? Culturally appropriate (language, gender issues)? Free of external manipulation, interference, coercion or intimidation? Transparent? Meaningful? Documented? For projects with potentially significant adverse impacts on Affected Communities, has a process of Informed Consultation and Participation been undertaken?	Yes; see Stakeholder Engagement Plan (including Grievance Redress Mechanism) which is part of Fichtner's ESIA study			
Are Indigenous Peoples engaged in a process of ICP (Informed Consultation and Participation)?	Not applicable			
Was the Indigenous Peoples FPIC (Free, Prior and Informed Consent) obtained?				
PS 1: External Communications and Grievance Mechanisms				
Is there a procedure for receiving external communications, screening and assessing the issues raised and providing answers and adjustments to the management plan?	Yes; Grievance Mechanism is part of Fichtner's ESIA study and of the Stakeholder Engagement Plan; Public Consultation Meeting was performed to finalize ESIA study			
Are reports on the environmental and social sustainability of the project publicly available?	Yes; ESIA study and ESMP were disclosed before Public Consultation meeting			
Has an effective grievance mechanism for affected communities been established?	Yes; Grievance Mechanism is part of Fichtner's ESIA study and of the Stakeholder Engagement Plan			
PS 1: Ongoing reporting for affected communities				
Are (at least) annually reports provided to the affected communities describing the progress with the implementation of the Action Plans on issues involving risks to them and on those issues identified through the consultation/grievance mechanisms?	Yes; see Stakeholder Engagement Plan (including Grievance Redress Mechanism) which is part of Fichtner's ESIA study			
PS 2: Labor and Working Conditions				
PS 2: Human Resource Policies and Procedures				
Are appropriate human resources policies and procedures available that address all requirements of PS 2 and national law?	Yes; RENCO has a certified Health, Safety and Environment Policy (2015), a Social and Cultural Heritage Policy (2016), an			
Are the workers provided with information regarding their rights?	Anti-Corruption Policy (2016), and a Code of Ethics in place, which shall all also be established at ArmPower as subsidiary company of RENCO			

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment		
PS 2: Working conditions and terms of employment			
Are any established collective bargaining agreement with workers' organizations respected?	Yes; RENCO has a certified Health, Safety and Environment Policy (2015), a Social and Cultural Heritage Policy (2016), an Anti-Corruption Policy (2016), and a Code of Ethics in place, which shall all also be established at ArmPower as subsidiary company of RENCO.		
Is it ensured that the migrant workers are engaged on substantially equivalent terms and conditions to the non-migrant workers carrying similar work?			
Where accommodation services are provided, is it ensured that:			
 Policies on the quality and management of the accommodations and basic services are implemented? Principles of non-discrimination and equal opportunity guide the accommodation services? The accommodation's arrangements do not restrict worker's freedom of movement or association? 	Yes; Skilled workers (partly from abroad) will be accommodated in RENCO's guesthouse or in hotels in Yerevan; Unskilled workers will be employed in adjacent villages and Yerevan, thus no workers' camps are necessary, as workers can get back to their homes after work		
PS 2: Workers' Organizations			
Is there a compliance with the national law in allowing workers to form and join workers organizations?	PS 2 is based on a number of international conventions and instruments, including those of the International Labor Organization (ILO) and the United Nations (UN). All of them are ratified by the Republic of Armenia, except "UN - International Convention on the Protection of the Rights of All Migrant Workers and Members of Their Families" which has only been signed and ratification is still pending. For RENCO's and ArmPower's policies see above.		
If national law substantially restricts workers organizations, have there been restrictions imposed to workers to express their grievances and protect their rights organizations?			
PS 2: Non-discrimination and Equal Opportunity			
Is it ensured that employment decisions are not made on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to job requirements?	Yes: For RENCO's and ArmPower's policies see above. These		
Is harassment, intimidation and/or exploitation of workers, especially women and migrant workers, avoided?	issues are also part of the ESMPs in Fichtner's ESIA study.		
PS2: Retrenchment			
If any collective dismissal was applied, has an analysis of alternatives to retrenchment been made?			
If retrenchment of a significant number of employees is expected, has a plan been developed to implement the retrenchment in compliance with all legal and contractual requirements?	Not applicable		

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment
PS 2: Grievance Mechanism for workers	
Is a grievance mechanism for workers provided to raise workplace concerns that: is easily accessible; is understandable? is transparent? allows anonymous complains? 	Yes; RENCO and ArmPower will establish adequate grievance mechanisms for workers as has been done in many other international projects; this issue is also part of the ESMPs of Fichtner's ESIA study.
PS 2: Child Labor	
Does the project employ children?	No; for RENCO's and ArmPower's policies see above
 Where national laws allow the employment of minors: are the provisions of those laws followed by the client? are minors kept away from hazardous work? are minors subject to appropriate risk assessment and regular monitoring of health, working conditions and hours of work? 	Not applicable; national law does not allow child labor
PS 2: Forced Labor	
Does the project employ forced labor or trafficked persons?	No; for RENCO's and Armpower's policies see above
PS 2: Occupational Health & Safety (OHS)	
Does the project provide the workers with a safe and healthy work environment?	Yes; RENCO as EPC Contractor will establish site-specific HSE
Have steps been taken to prevent accidents, injury, and disease?	Management System according to its certified HSE Policy and
Have the workers been trained in occupational health and safety?	employ an HSE Manager for the project. ArmPower shall do the same for operation Emergency preparedness and response plans
Are occupational accidents, diseases, and incidents documented and reported?	will be developed for the Project. These topics are also part of
Is there an emergency prevention, preparedness and response arrangement for the project?	the ESMPs in Fichtner's ESIA study
PS 2: Workers Engaged by Third Parties	
Are there policies and procedures for managing and monitoring the performance of third party employers in relation to the requirements of this PS?	Yes; if any third parties will be engaged they will have to comply to RENCO's HSE Policy and site-specific HSEMS, including
Is the access of the workers engaged by third parties to a grievance mechanism guaranteed?	grievance mechanism
PS 2: Supply Chain	
If there is a high risk of child or forced labor in the primary supply chain, are these risks identified and monitored, and are the necessary steps taken to remedy them?	Yes; supply chain has to comply to RENCO's HSE Policy and site-specific HSEMS

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment	
If there is a high risk of significant safety issues related to supply chain workers, is it ensured that the primary suppliers are preventing these situations?	Yes; supply chain has to comply to RENCO's HSE Policy and	
In case of need, does the project shift its primary supply chain to suppliers that can demonstrate the compliance with this PS?	site-specific HSEMS	
PS 3: Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention		
PS 3: Resource Efficiency	_	
Have the project's operations incorporated resource conservation and energy efficiency measures?	Yes; Power plant will use highly efficient state-of the-art equipment and will work as closed cycle system	
Where GHG emissions (direct plus indirect from purchased electricity) exceed 25,000 tons CO ₂ annually is annual quantification undertaken?	Yes; annual quantification of GHG emissions is part of the operational ESMP in Fichtner's ESIA study	
In case the project is a potentially significant consumer of water, have measures to avoid or reduce the water usage been adopted?	Power Plant will work as closed cycle system	
PS 3: Pollution Prevention		
Is the release of pollutants avoided/ minimized?	Yes; release of pollutants will be minimized, e.g. by using highly efficient technology like low-NOx burner, cleaning/ neutralizing waste water; air emissions and effluents will be monitored in order to fulfill relevant national and IFC/WB standards	
Have the following factors been included in the assessment of potential adverse project impacts: existing ambient conditions; the finite assimilative capacity of the environment; existing and future land use; the project's proximity to areas of importance to biodiversity; and the potential for cumulative impacts?	Yes; most factors included in Fichtner ESIA study; ambient air pollution and noise level are measured as background data; land use, influence on biodiversity and potential for cumulative impacts have been assessed	
Is the following hierarchy for waste management followed: avoidance, reduction, recovery, re- usage, treatment, destruction and final environmentally sound disposal?	Yes; EPC Contractor will have to implement Waste Management Plan as part of his HSE Management Plan; these issues are also part of the ESMPs in Fichtner's ESIA study	
Are special provisions for hazardous waste disposal considered?	Yes; Hazardous waste will have to be stored in closed, roofed, ventilated, concreted and bunded storage areas for final disposal according to mitigation measures of ESMPs in Fichtner's ESIA study	

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment
Is the release of hazardous materials avoided/minimized/controlled?	Yes; oily waste water will be led to an oil separator before entering discharge system of YCCPP-1; HRSG blow down and other drainage from steam/water system will be neutralized at the chemical shop of the power plant before discharging
Are hazardous materials which are subject to international bans or phase-outs used?	No
If pesticides are used, is their selection and management consistent with good international industry practice and part of an integrated pest management and/or vector management strategy?	Not applicable, as no pesticides will be used for clearing of construction site or for maintenance during operation, according to the ESMPs in Fichtner's ESIA study
PS 4: Community Health, Safety, and Security	
PS 4: Community Health and Safety	
Has the potential for community risks and impacts associated with the project been evaluated?	Yes; risks and impacts are assessed in Fichtner's ESIA study and
Have preventive and control measures consistent with GIIP been established?	mitigation measured presented in the ESMPs
PS 4: Infrastructure and Equipment Design and Safety	
Have the structural elements of the project been designed, constructed, operated and decommissioned in accordance with GIIP?	Yes; new YCCPP-2 will be constructed as state-of-the-art power plant
PS 4: Hazardous Materials Management and Safety	
Is the potential for community exposure to hazardous materials and substances that may be released by the project avoided or minimized?	Yes; hazardous waste will be stored accordingly on-site; waste water will be cleaned and neutralized; construction site and power plant will be fenced and guarded by security personnel to avoid unauthorized entry; these topics are part of the ESMPs in Fichtner's ESIA study
PS 4: Ecosystem Services	
Have impacts and risks on priority ecosystem services in use by the Affected Communities been identified?	Not applicable
PS 4: Community Exposure to Disease	
Does the project avoid or minimize the potential for community exposure to water-related and vector-borne diseases caused by the project, including influx of labor?	Not applicable
PS 4: Emergency Preparedness and Response	
See PS 1	

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment			
PS 4: Security Personnel				
Have security arrangements guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice, and the national law been made?	Vec: Construction site and power plant will be fanced and			
Is it assured that the security personnel has not been implied in past abuses?	guarded by security personnel; PS 4 requirements are part of the			
Have the security personnel been provided training in the use of force and conduct towards the community?	ESMPs of Fichtner's ESIA study and thus, will have to be implemented by EPC Contractor and Operator; Grievance			
Has the community been provided with a grievance mechanism through which complains regarding the security arrangements can be done?	Mechanism will be implemented			
PS 5: Land Acquisition and Involuntary Resettlement				
PS 5 is not triggered by the Project: all land for construction/ operation of YCCPP-2 already acquired	d. No physical relocation. Existing access roads will be used.			
PS 6: Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Management of Living Natural Resources				
PS 6: General	-			
Has the significance of project impacts on biodiversity and ecosystem services been specifically addressed as part of the social and environmental assessment process?	Yes; see Sections 6.1.1 and 6.2.1 and mitigation measures in the ESMPs of Fichtner's ESIA study			
Has the practice of adaptive management been adopted?	Not applicable			
PS 6: Protection and Conservation of Biodiversity				
Has a hierarchy of avoidance, minimization, restoration and compensation (biodiversity offsets) been considered?	Not applicable			
Have natural habitat areas been conversed or degraded? If yes, have the conditions of PS 6 been respected?				
Have natural habitat areas suffered a net loss of biodiversity?	No			
Has the implementation of project activities been undertaken in critical habitat? If yes, have the conditions of PS 6 been respected?				
If critical habitat is affected, has a Biodiversity Action Plan been designed to achieve net gains of biodiversity?	Not applicable			
Has the implementation of project activities been undertaken in a protected or internationally recognized area? If yes, have the conditions of PS 6 been respected?	No			

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment
Do the project activities imply the introduction of alien species and/or of alien species with a high risk of invasive behavior?	No
If applicable, has the intentional introduction of alien species been carried out according to specific regulatory framework?	Not applicable
Have measures been designed to avoid unintentional introduction or spreading of alien species?	
PS 7: Indigenous Peoples	
PS 7 is not triggered by the Project as no groups of Indigenous People are living in the Project Area	of Influence.
PS 8: Cultural Heritage	
PS 8: Protection of Cultural Heritage in Project Design and Execution	
Has cultural heritage been considered as part of the environmental and social assessment?	Yes; see Section 6.3.3 of Fichtner's ESIA study
If the project is located in an area where cultural heritage is expected to be found, has a Chance Find Procedure been established?	No cultural heritage is expected to be found during construction. However, a Chance Find Procedure will be implemented, according to ESMP of Fichtner's ESIA study
Have the Affected Communities who use or have used the cultural heritage for long-standing cultural purposes been consulted?	
Is continued access allowed to the cultural site or is an alternative route provided, in case of affectation of sites used for long-standing cultural purposes?	
Has a hierarchy of avoidance, minimization, restoration in situ and restoration off site, and compensation been undertaken?	
If non-replicable cultural heritage needs to be removed, have the following conditions of PS 8 been satisfied?: no technically or financially feasible alternatives existed; the benefits of the projects outweighed the anticipated cultural heritage loss from removal; and removal was conducted by the best available technique.	Not applicable
If critical heritage is removed, significantly altered, or damaged by the project, have a process of ICP been undertaken with the Affected Communities?	
If the project is located in a legally protected area or a legally defined buffer zone, have the following conditions of PS 8 been satisfied?: compliance with defined regulations and the protected area management plans; consultation with the protected area sponsors and managers, local communities and other key stakeholders? Implementation of additional programs as appropriate to promote and enhance the conservation aims of the protected area.	

Main requirements of Performance Standards	Assessment
PS 8: Project's use of cultural heritage	
If the project will use cultural resources, knowledge, innovations, or practices of local communities embodying traditional lifestyles for commercial purposes, has the client entered a process of ICP?	Not applicable
Have fair and equitable sharing of benefits been ensured?	

After implementation of the mitigation measures and the below defined Environmental and Social Action Plan (ESAP), the Project complies with the requirements of all applicable IFC Performance Standards and ADB Safeguard Requirements.

9.8 Environmental and Social Action Plan

An Environmental and Social Action Plan is presented in this section in order to highlight the most urgent steps for implementation of the mitigation measures given in the ESMPs, naming also the relevant IFC Performance Standards and/or international guidelines and standards.

Action	Requirement (IFC Performance Standard, Best Practice)	Responsibility	Implementation Schedule (Timeline)	Target for successful implementation / Reporting requirement
Implementation of a Grievance Redress Mechanism for Project Affected People	IFC PS 1	RENCO as EPC Contractor ArmPower as Operator	In advance of construction; to be valid during construction, operation and decommissioning	Grievance log book and reports on successful handling the grievances
Conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of the foreseen groundwater deviation at site including: impacts and mitigation measures for changes to the groundwater profile, both within the site and on neighboring properties; study of water treatment options in the unlikely event that groundwater rises to the surface or needs to be removed from the site and discharged in a different receptor (river or public network); assessment to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction.	IFC PS 4 IFC/ WB General EHS- Guidelines	RENCO as EPC Contractor ArmPower as Operator	In advance of construction	Impact assessment and Management Plan including measures such as informing third parties and provision of water supply alternatives, if necessary
Emergency Preparedness and Response Plans based on robust Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) / Hazard	IFC PS 1, 4	RENCO as EPC Contractor	In advance of construction	Emergency Preparedness and Response Plans for construction, operation and

	Table 9-23:	Environmental and Social Action Plan in	ncluding the main	mitigation topics
--	-------------	---	-------------------	-------------------

Action	Requirement (IFC Performance Standard, Best Practice)	Responsibility	Implementation Schedule (Timeline)	Target for successful implementation / Reporting requirement
Identification Study (HAZID) taking into account general and site-specific risks (e.g. adjacent power plant, seismic risk, flood risk, etc.)		ArmPower as Operator		decommissioning
Security Force Management Plan guided by principles of proportionality, good international practice and Armenian national law, including training and monitoring of security personnel regarding the use of force and conduct towards the community	IFC PS 1, 4 IFC (2017): Good Practice Handbook on Use of Security Forces - Assessing and Managing Risks and Impacts.	RENCO as EPC Contractor ArmPower as Operator	In advance of construction	Security Force Management Plan for construction and for operation developed and implemented according to named requirements
Development of a site-specific Health, Safety and Environment Management Plan (HSEMP), Health, Safety and Environment System (HSEMS) including grievance mechanism for workers, and establishment of HSE officer	IFC PS 2, 3 IFC/ WB General EHS- Guidelines IFC/ WB EHS Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants IFC/ WB EHS Guidelines for Electric Power Transmission and Distribution	RENCO as EPC Contractor ArmPower as Operator	In advance of construction, valid during construction, operation and decommissioning phases	Site-specific HSEMP and HSEMS for construction, operation and decommissioning periods; Grievance log book and reports on successful handling the grievances; HSE officers established at RENCO and ArmPower
Development of Waste Management Plan and Waste Management System for construction, operation and decommissioning phases including, for operation: risk assessment associated with the mid-term to long-term storage of hazardous waste and adequate sizing and monitoring frequency of the storage area	IFC PS 3 EU Directive 2008/98/EC (Waste Framework Directive)	RENCO as EPC Contractor ArmPower as Operator	In advance of construction	Waste Management Plans according to EU Directive 2008/98/EC

Action	Requirement (IFC Performance Standard, Best Practice)	Responsibility	Implementation Schedule (Timeline)	Target for successful implementation / Reporting requirement
Provision of toilets and sanitary rooms for the workforce at the construction site, separately for men and women, as part of the HSEMP. Sewage water to be led to the sewage water system of YCCPP-1 or installation of septic tanks for collecting sewage water, which then would have to be emptied by a specialized company from time to time.	IFC PS 2, 3 IFC/ EBRD Guidance Note on Workers' Accommodation (2009)	RENCO as EPC Contractor	In advance of construction and during construction phase	Provision of adequate toilets and sanitary facilities and appropriate handling of sewage water Contract with specialized disposal company (if necessary)
Development of Chance Find Procedure regarding historic and cultural goods; and information of the Ministry of Culture about the Project prior to construction, in order to allow the Ministry to perform a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods at the Project site, including a preconstruction field survey, if deemed necessary by the Ministry	IFC PS 8	RENCO as EPC Contractor	In advance of construction to be valid during construction	Chance Find Procedure established as well as training program for workforce. Ministry of Culture informed about the Project
Development of site-specific non- discriminatory hiring and wage policy; Employment of local people for construction works (offer job opportunities in nearby villages and Yerevan); Improve recruitment of women for construction works	IFC PS 2 Guidelines of International Labor Organization (ILO)	RENCO as EPC Contractor ArmPower as Operator	In advance of construction	Work contracts according to guidelines of International Labor Organization (ILO)
Development of a Traffic Management Plan including among others transport of workers, planning of truck movements, short-term closure of roads (if necessary: including details about road use (by whom and for what purpose) and alternative routes), etc.	IFC PS 2, 3, 4	RENCO as EPC Contractor	In advance of construction	Transport of workers implemented; additional traffic due to construction adapted to existing traffic situation

Action	Requirement (IFC Performance Standard, Best Practice)	Responsibility	Implementation Schedule (Timeline)	Target for successful implementation / Reporting requirement
Air quality monitoring campaign to be repeated in next spring in order to cover all seasons of an annual cycle	IFC PS 3, 4	RENCO as EPC Contractor	In advance of construction	Spring Monitoring Report
Two years of continuous ambient air quality monitoring during the operational phase with continuous methods (at hourly intervals) at two locations, one predicted maximum ground level concentration location and one background site.	IFC PS 3, 4	ArmPower as Operator	During commissioning and operation	Monitoring reports prepared and disclosed to the financing agencies
Based on the monitoring results, analyze the need for further mitigation measures for air quality impacts	IFC PS 3, 4	ArmPower as Operator	During commissioning and operation	Monitoring reports prepared and disclosed to the financing agencies
Development of a Decommissioning Plan and of a Detailed Decommissioning Plan	IFC PS 2, 3, 4	ArmPower as Operator	Decommissioning Plan: At least 5 years before closure of YCCPP-2 Detailed Decommissioning Plan : At least 18 months before closure of YCCPP-2	Decommissioning Plan prepared and implemented

10. Overall Findings, Conclusion, and Recommendations

The main possible impacts of the Project will be contamination of soil and water, impacts on health and safety of workers and the public, , air and noise emissions, and liquid effluents from the new power plant.

Negative environmental and social impacts of the Project will be low or medium, if all proposed mitigation measures of the ESMPs are implemented. There will be no severe social impacts from the Project; no land acquisition or related resettlement will be necessary. Regular **monitoring of noise, air emissions and ground level concentrations of air pollutants and air emissions as well as liquid effluents** during construction and /or operation phase shall be performed, in order to guarantee adherence to relevant national and/or international limit values.

The calculations undertaken with a Noise Propagation Model for YCCPP-2 have shown that the operation of **the new plant will not produce any significant increase of the noise pressure at the sensitive receptors** (complies with the IFC standard of keeping the noise impacts to an a maximum increase of 3 dB in the background levels).

Based on the Air Dispersion Calculation results, a Good Engineering Practice stack height of 66 meters (GEP stack height) will be built for the power plant to guarantee the **compliance with the air quality standards** at the ground level (instead of the originally foreseen 35 meters stack).

Positive impacts are related to **creating job opportunities**, especially during construction. New job opportunities during operation may be created if investment on training of qualified workers is done. The additional power generation will increase the total output of electric energy, providing a more reliable power supply countrywide.

An evaluation is currently ongoing regarding the management of groundwater during construction and operation. No abstraction, discharge or other use of contaminated groundwater is to occur. The current proposal is to install sub-surface drainage to permanently **deviate groundwater around the site.** The Client will conduct further hydrological assessment and implement appropriate environmental management of this solution, to be approved by IFC and ADB before construction.

In summary, it can be concluded that the proposed Project of Yerevan Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP-2) can be implemented without having significant adverse impacts on the ecological and social environment, if all mitigation measures proposed in the ESMPs and the ESAP are implemented.

11. References

- ADB (2009): Safeguard Policy Statement, ADB, Philippines, 2009
- ArmPower CJSC (2017): Geological Report of Armhydroenergyproject CJSC
- ArmPower CJSC (2017): YCCPP-2: Basic Engineering Design Data / Performance Guarantees

ArmPower CJSC (2018): Waste Water Temperature Profile Study (Steady state)

- Consecoard LLC (2017): Report on Monitoring Services. Yerevan, August 11, 2017.
- Consecoard LLC (2018a): The legal framework of the earthcover pollution standardization in Armenia and the results of the YCCPP2 territory research. Yerevan, February 2018.
- Consecoard LLC (2018b): The legal framework of the emissions standardization in Armenia and the assessment of the planned YTPP-2 emissions. Yerevan, February 2018.
- Ecobarik-Audit LLC (2016): Report of Evaluation of Environmental Impact of the new Steam and Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant in Yerevan
- EU Directive on Environmental Impact Assessment (1997): Council Directive 97/11/EC of 3 March 1997 on Environmental Impact Assessment, amended by Directive 2014/52/EU.
- EU Waste Framework Directive (2008): Council Directive 2008/98/EC of 19 November 2008 on waste.
- Geoterproject LTD (2016): Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area
- Geoterproject (2017): Report on geological survey and laboratory analysis of the new territory of Yerevan TPP (two parts)
- Government of Armenia (GoA) (2005): Energy Sector Development Strategies in the Context of Economic Development in Armenia Adopted by the Government of Armenia at June 23, 2005 session N 1 resolution of N 24 protocol, August 2005. Available at: http://www.nature-ic.am/wp-content/uploads/2013/10/Energy-Strategy-Final-_Eng_.pdf
- WHO (2003): Air Quality and Health in Eastern Europe, Caucasus and Central Asia - Report on the WHO Workshop, World Health
Organization, St. Petersburg, Russian Federation, 13 - 14 October 2003

- IFC (2012): Sustainability Framework. Policy and Performance Standards on Environmental and Social Sustainability
- International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization (ILO) (2014): Guide to International Labour Standards. 2nd edition. Turin, Italy.
- Ministry of Nature Protection RA (MNP) (2002): National Action Program to combat desertification in Armenia. Yerevan.
- Ministry of Nature Protection RA (MNP) (2014): Fifth National Report of the Republic of Armenia to the Convention on Biological Diversity. Yerevan. http://www.cbd.int/doc/world/am/am-nr-05-en.pdf
- Ministry of Nature Protection RA (MNP) (2015): Third National Communication on Climate Change under the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change. Yerevan. unfccc.int/resource/docs/natc/armnc3.pdf
- RENCO SPA: Armenia 250 MW CCGT Yerevan Capital City. Draft Feasibility Study [CCGT 250 MW – Yerevan/Armenia]
- Spoor, M. (2004): UNDP Armenia White Paper Land Reform, Rural Poverty and Inequality: a pro-poor Approach to Land Policies, The Hague/Yerevan.
- SREP (2014): Scaling Up Renewable Energy Program (SREP), Republic of Armenia - Investment Plan for Armenia, Republic of Armenia, Yerevan, April 2014
- U/C-tec (2018): Yerevan YCCPP-2 Soil and Groundwater Report
- US AID (2010): Wind Energy in Armenia. Overview of Potential and Development Perspectives, US AID, March 2010
- WHO (2005): Air quality guidelines for particulate matter, ozone, nitrogen dioxide and sulfur dioxide.
- WHO (2016): World Health Statistics 2016

12. Annexes

12.1 Communication from Yerevan Municipality - illegal dwellings



No 50/2-#1827

10 H 2014 B

«ԱՐՄՓԱՈՒԵՐ» ՍՊԸ ԳԼԽԱՎՈՐ ՏՆՕՐԵՆ ՊԱՐՈՆ Ք.ԿՈՒԿՈՒՐԱԿԻԻՆ

Հարգելի պարոն Կուկուրակի

Ի պատասխան Երևանի քաղաքապետին հասցեագրված Ձեր 07.11.2017թ. գրության Երևանի Շննգավիթ վարչական շրջանում նախատեսվող ՀՇԳՅ-2 էլնկտրակայանի կառուցման կապակցությամբ բարձրացված հարցերի վերաբերյալ տեղեկացնում ենք, որ նախատեսվող ՀՇԳՅ-2 էլնկտրակայանից դեպի հյուսիս-արևելք ընկած հարակից տարածքներում Շենգավիթ վարչական շրջանի համար մշակված գոտիավորման նախագծով քաղաքաշինական ծրագրային գործունեություն չի նախատեսվում։ ՀՇԳՅ-2 էլնկտրակայանի շիւարարությունը որևէ սոցիալական բացասական ազդեցություն չի կարող ունենալ շինարարական հրապարակից նշված հեռավորության վրա գտնվող կացարանների հետագա ճակատագրի վրա։ Միաժամանակ այդ կացարանների և դրանց բնակիչների հետ կապված հետագա գործողությունները որևէ գույքային,սոցիալական և ֆինանսական հետանքներ չեն կարող առաջացնել ՀՇԳՅ-2 էլնկտրակայանի շինարարության ծրագրի համար։

S.PUPUE13UL

con'. 011 514 158

(BLANK OF)

YEREVAN MUNICIPALITY

MAIN ARCHITECTURE OF YEREVAN

10.11.2017

No50/2-71827

To the general director Of "ArmPower" CISC

Mr. C. Cucurachi

Dear Mr. Cucurachi,

In response to Your letter of 07.11.2017 addressed to the Yerevan Mayor, on the questions arisen for the planned OCPP-2 construction in the Shengavit administrative area, we inform, that in the adjacent areas situated to the north-east of the OCPP-2, a planned action of urban development is not foreseen by the project of the developed zoning for the Shengavit administrative area. The CCPP-2 construction cannot have any social negative impact on the further destiny of dwellings situated in the indicated distance from the construction site. At the same time, the further actions regarding those dwellings and their inhabitants cannot cause any property, social and financial consequences for the CCPP-2 construction project.

T. Barseghyan

12.2 Communication from Veolia Djur CJSC on water supply



«Արմփաուեր» ՓԲԸ Ք. Կուկուրակիին /հասցեն՝ ք. Երևան, Վ. Մարգսյան 10/

tipg/99/15/93/2411.17

Երևան կոյեմբերի 2017թ.

Առարկան՝ Պարզաբանում դիմումի վերաբերյալ

Հարգելի պարոն Կուկուրակի,

Ի պատասխան Ձեր 17.11.2017թ. դիմումի՝ հայտնում եմ, որ տեխնիկական պայմանը տրված է տեխնիկական բոլոր չափորոշիչների հաշվառմամբ։

Տեղեկացնում եմ նաև, որ սահմանված կարգով աշխատանքները սկսելուց առաջ անհրաժեշտ է ԿՕ/574 տեխնիկական պայմանի հիման վրա կազմված նախագծային փաստաթղթերը համաձայնեցնել «Վեոլիա Ջուր» ՓԲԸ-ի հետ։

Zunquilpnd'

Գործառնական տնօրեն Գոռ Գրիգորյան

Պատասխանատու՝ U. Uhpqnjuli 2lin.' 011 59 03 86

Յայաստանի Յանրապետություն ք. Երևան, 375025 Արովյան փ. 66^ա Յեռ./ֆաքս (+374-10) 56-93-57

15133 24

66a St. Abovyan 375025 Yerevan Republic of Armenia Tel./fax (+374 10) 56-93-57

forment



To the general director of "Armpower" CJSC C. Cucurachi,

/address: 10 V. Sargsyan str., Yerevan/

N 15193/24.11.17

Yerevan, 24 November, 2017

Subject: Clarification about the application letter

Dear Mr. Cucurachi,

As a reply to your application letter of 17.11.2017. I would like to inform you that the Technical specification has been provided taking into account all the technical norms and criteria.

I also inform you that before starting the works in accordance with the established procedure it is necessary to agree the design documents, compiled according to the technical specification N KO/574, with "Veolia Jur" CJSC.

Best regards,

Executive director

Gor Grigoryan

Responsible M. Mirzoyan Tel.: 011 59 03 86

ööa St. Abovyan 375025, Yerevan, Republic of Armenia Tel./Fax (+374 10) 56-93-57



«ԱՐՄՓԱՈՒԵՐ» ՓՔԸ գլխավոր տնօրեն՝ պարոն Ք. Կուկուրակիին

Ելից/40/ 2076 / 07.12.2017թ.

Երևան, 07 դեկտեմբեր, 2017թ.

Առարկա՝ Հարցում

Հարգելի պարոն Կուկուրակի,

Ի պատասխան հարցման՝ տեղեկացնում ենք, որ տրամադրված տեխնիկական պայմանով նախատեսված ջրաքանակը հաշվարկված է այն սկզբունքով, ինչը բացառում է այլ բաժանորդների հաշվին ջրաքանակի տրամադրումը մեկ այլ օբյեկտի և չի կարող հանգեցնել վերջիններիս ջրամատակարարման վատթարացմանը։

Zunguungi,

. «Վեոլիա Ջուր» ՓԲԸ «Արնելք» ՏՏ տնօրեն՝ Կարապետ Օհանյան

VEOLIA

O VEDUA

Armpower CJSC

To the general director C. Cucurachi

N KO/2076 / 07.12.2017

Yerevan, 07 December, 2017

Subject- Inquiry

Dear Mr. Cucurachi,

As a reply to your inquiry we would like to inform you that the water amount foreseen by the provided technical specification has been calculated according to the principle that excludes the water amount provision to another object at the expense of other subscribers and can't result in the latters' water supply deterioration.

Regards,

Karapet Ohanyan,

Technical Director of "Arevelk" "Veolia jur" CJSC

12.3 Record of Meetings

Date	Agency/ Institution	Place	Name of Person consulted	Reason for Visit
04.07.2017	RENCO SPA	Yerevan	Gegham Baklachev (RENCO), Vram Tevosyan (Consecoard LLC)	Discussion of technical and environmental issues of construction and operation of YCCPP-2
04.07.2017	Municipality of Kharberd village	Kharberd	Kamo Kakoyan (Mayor of Kharberd), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Introducing the Project; discussing possible concerns
04.07.2017	Municipality of Ayntap village	Ayntap	Karen Sargsyan (Mayor of Ayntap), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Introducing the Project; discussing possible concerns
05.07.2017	YCCPP-2 site	Yerevan	Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Visit of site and surrounding area
05.07.2017	RENCO SPA	Yerevan	Gabriele Colletta (RENCO engineer), Vram Tevosyan	Discussion of technical issues of construction and operation of YCCPP-2
06.07.2017	Municipality of Yerevan, Staff of Head of Erebuni Administrative District	Yerevan	Edgar Mkrtchyan (Head of Department), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Introducing the Project; discussing possible concerns
06.07.2017	Aarhus Center	Yerevan	Silva Ayvazyan (Coordinator of Yerevan Aarhus Center), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Introducing the Project; discussing environmental and social concerns
06.07.2017	Environmental Monitoring and Information Center	Yerevan	Shahnazaryan Gayane (Deputy Director), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Discussing monitoring of stack emissions and of ambient air pollution
06.07.2017	YCCPP-1	Yerevan	Arkadi Gevorgyan (Chief Engineer), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Discussing technical and environmental issues of operation of YCCPP-1
07.07.2017	Municipality of Yerevan, Environmental Department	Yerevan	Avet Martirosyan (Head of Environmental Department), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Introducing the Project; discussing possible concerns
07.07.2017	Municipality of Yerevan, Staff of Head of Shengavit Administrative District	Yerevan	Armen Sargsyan (Head of Department), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Introducing the Project; discussing possible concerns
07.07.2017	RENCO SPA	Yerevan	Avetik Horkannisyan (RENCO Engineer), Gegham Baklachev, Vram Tevosyan	Discussion of technical and environmental issues of construction and operation of YCCPP-2

12.4 Analysis of Oil in the Contaminated Soil from Construction Site

				WESSLING Gm Impexstraße 5 www.wessling	nbH • 69190 Walldorf .de
WESSLING GmbH, Impensiva@e 5, 69190 Waldorf				Geschöftefeld-	Urrweit
GefaÖ GmbH - Gesellschaft für angewandt	e				
Ükologie und Umweltplanung	5			Ansprechpartner: Durchwahl:	J. I nomsen +49 6227 8 209 36
Herr Dr. Koland Marthaler Impexstraße 5 69190 Walldorf				Fax: E-Mail:	+49 6227 8 209 15 Juian.Thomsen @wessling.de
Prüfbericht Jerevan CCPP-2 Prüfbericht Nr. 906172-1	Auftrag Nr.	CWA-0675	2-17		Datum 18.07.201
Probe Nr.	, and age the			17 1000/0 01	
Frobe INF.				10.07.2017	
Bezeichnung				Stelle1	
Probenart				Feststoff allgen	nein
Probenahme				06.0	07.2017
Probenahme durch				Auftraggeber	
Probenehmer				Jonas Martin	
Probengefäß				Tüte	
Anzahl Gefäße					1
Untersuchungsbeginn				11.0	07.2017
Untersuchungsende				18.0	07.2017
Probenvorbereitung Probe Nr.				17 Stelle 1	-109040-01
Bezeichnung		~		200	
Gesamtmasse der Originalprobe		g		200	
Polychlorierte Biphenyle (PCB)					
Probe Nr.				17 Stelle 1	-109040-01
Bezeichnung		-	~~~	<0.05	
FGB NF 52		mg/Kg maika	08	<0.05	
PCB Nr 101		maka	00	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 118		marka	20	<0.05	
PCB Nr. 138		marka	05	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 153		ma/ka	os	<0,05	
DOD N. 200		mg/ka	OS	<0,05	
PGB NF. 180		mg/kg	OS	-/-	
Summe der 6 PCB		0.0			
Summe der 6 PCB PCB gesamt (Summe 6 PCB x 5)		mg/kg	OS	-/-	

BERATUNG	ANALTIIN	PLANONG			WESSLING Impexstra www.wess	3 GmbH 19e 5 - 69190 Walldorf sling.de
Prüfbericht Nr.	CWA17-016172-1	Auftrag Nr.	CWA-0675	2-17		Datum 18.07.20
Probe Nr.						17-109040-01
Summe der 7 P	СВ		mg/kg	OS	-/-	
		- -				
		Seite 2 vo	n 4			

BERATUNG ANALYTIK PLANUNG



WESSLING GmbH Impexstraße 5 · 69190 Walldorf www.wessling.de

Prüfbericht Nr.	CWA17-016172-1	Auftrag Nr.	CWA-06752-17	Datum 18/07-201
Probe Nr.				17-109040-02
Eingangsdatum				10.07.2017
Bezeichnung				Stele2
Probenart				Feststoff allgemein
Probenahme				06.07.2017
Probenahme duro	ch			Auftraggeber
Probenehmer				Jonas Martin
Probengefäß				Tüte
Anzahl Gefäße				1
Untersuchungsbe	eginn			11.07.2017
Untersuchungser	nde			18.07.2017

Probenvorbereitung

Probe Nr.		17-109040-02
Bezeichnung		Stelle2
Gesamtmasse der Originalprobe	g	200

Polychlorierte Biphenyle (PCB)

Probe Nr.		17-109040-02	
Bezeichnung		Stelle2	
PCB Nr. 28	mg/kg OS	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 52	mg/kg OS	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 101	mg/kg CS	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 118	mg/kg OS	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 138	mg/kg OS	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 153	mg/kg QS	<0,05	
PCB Nr. 180	mg/kg OS	<0,05	
Summe der 6 PCB	mg/kg OS	-/-	
PCB gesamt (Summe 6 PCB x 5)	mg/kg OS	-/-	
Summe der 7 PCB	ma/ka OS	-/-	



Darch die DAkkS nach DN EN ISQNES 17825 alkersötiste Arbitekter Arbitekter Professioner informatiste in der Akkreditierung und einer Anzeiteren Professioner informatiste und structure informatiste und structure

1 1	WE Ima ww	SSLING GmbH Haxstraßa 5 + 69190 Wallderf w.wessling.de
Prüfbericht Nr. CWA17-016172-1	Auftrag Nr. GWA-06752-17	Catum 18.07.2017
Abkürzungen und Methoden Polyolikoriete Bigkenyle (PCB)	DIN EN 15006 ⁸	ausführender Standort Umetandytik Waldor Umetandytik Waldor
05	Griginalsubstanz	
Jele Stron		
Julian Thomsen M. Se Biogeowisserscheften Sachverständiger Umwelt und Wasser		
	Setta A your A	

12.5 Report on Groundwater Quality and Possible Soil Contamination from August 2017

12.6 Noise Propagation Study

12.7 Waste Water Temperature Study (steady state), ArmPower

12.8 Air Dispersion Calculation

12.9 Stakeholder Engagement Plan

12.10 Legal Framework of Earth Cover Pollution Standardization in Armenia and Results of the YCCPP-2 Territory Research, Consecoard 2018 12.11 Report on Soil Analysis, Groundwater and Hrazdan River Water Quality from February 2018 12.12 Legal Framework of Air Emissions Standardization in Armenia and Assessment of the planned YTPP-2 Emissions, Consecoard 2018

12.13 Public Consultation Meeting at Yerevan 10th February 2018

Report

On Monitoring Services

Yerevan, August 11, 2017

Based on the contract signed between "Renco Armestate" LLC and "Consecoard" LLC on 14.07.2017, the specialists of "Consecoard" LLC carry out monitoring of Yerevan TPP-2 construction site, which includes:

- topsoil, surface water and groundwater sampling according to the list submitted by the Client,
- organizing the tests in the appropriate licensed laboratory according to the List of Materials and Indicators Provided by the Client,
- analysis of results and comparison with sanitary norms in the Republic of Armenia.

Currently, "Consecoard" LLC specialists have conducted all samplings:

1. Land

- from the central part of the area allocated for construction,

- from the roadside,
- near the pile of barrels of used oils existing in the area
- 2. Water

- water leak during drilling of the area. Sampled water taken during drilling of a site for construction. The water was taken from the wells 7.9 m and 2.8 m, dug for sampling near the BH 1 (x - 457072.44, y - 4440369.06) and BH 17 (x - 457316.96, y - 4440491.54) wells for geological survey. Sampling was carried out 3 hours after the drilling works to ensure water simplicity.

- water running through the pipe in the central part of the construction site,
- outflow of canal water from the operating Yerevan TPP1

The sampling was conducted by the methodology of the Monitoring Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection of the Republic of Armenia with the participation of the representative of Renco company: Gegham Baklachev.

The collected samples have been moved to the "Laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO of the Ministry of Nature Protection of the Republic of Armenia. The results and data analysis are presented below.

Nº	Measured indicator	Unit of	Th	e results of an	The method of analysis	
		measurement	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	
1	Hydrogen indicator (pH)	-	7.25	6.68	8.34	Electrochemical
2	Dissolved oxygen	mgO ₂ /I	1.34	7.37	6.61	Electrochemical
3	Mineralization	mg/l	1708	111	786	Electrochemical
4	BOD ₅	mgO ₂ /I	1.50	1.19	6.80	Electrochemical
5	COD ₅ ¹	mgO ₂ /l	288	136	416	Oxidation by bichromate

Table 1. Water, common indicators:

¹ The COD value is high since the laboratory test was performed weeks after sampling.

	measurement	Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	
Lithium	Mg/l	0.0340	0.0038	0.0212	ICP-MS ²
Beryllium	Mg/l	<10-6	<10-6	<10-6	ICP-MS
Boron	Mg/l	0.9258	0.0259	0.2678	ICP-MS
Natrium	Mg/l	269.5	6.8	95.5	ICP-MS
Magnesium	Mg/l	18.8	5.8	24.0	ICP-MS
Aluminum	Mg/l	0.0795	0.0052	0.0097	ICP-MS
Total phosphorus	Mg/l	0.0798	0.1148	0.2157	ICP-MS
Potassium	Mg/l	2.4	2.4	8.2	ICP-MS
Calcium	Mg/l	171.1	14.8	28.8	ICP-MS
Titan	Mg/l	0.0110	0.0037	0.0020	ICP-MS
Vanadium	Mg/l	0.3475	0.0213	0.0092	ICP-MS
Chrome	Mg/l	0.0079	0.0010	0.0063	ICP-MS
Iron	Mg/l	0.2262	0.0337	0.0828	ICP-MS
Manga	Mg/l	0.0818	0.0009	0.0020	ICP-MS
Cobalt	Mg/l	0.0017	0.0007	0.0002	ICP-MS
Nickel	Mg/l	0.0029	0.0003	0.0012	ICP-MS
Copper	Mg/l	0.0034	0.0006	0.0033	ICP-MS
Zinc	Mg/l	3.0628	0.0025	0.0038	ICP-MS
Arsen	Mg/l	0.0541	0.0011	0.0059	ICP-MS
Selen	Mg/l	0.0054	0.0002	0.0014	ICP-MS
Strontium	Mg/l	2.2267	0.0821	0.2446	ICP-MS
Molybdenum	Mg/l	0.0588	0.0009	0.0485	ICP-MS
	Lithium Lithium Beryllium Boron Natrium Natrium Aluminum Colal phosphorus Calcium Calcium Calcium Calaium Calaium Chrome	measurementLithiumMg/1BerylliumMg/1BoronMg/1NatriumMg/1MagnesiumMg/1AluminumMg/1Total phosphorusMg/1PotassiumMg/1CalciumMg/1TitanMg/1VanadiumMg/1IronMg/1MangaMg/1CobaltMg/1NickelMg/1ZincMg/1SelenMg/1StrontiumMg/1MangaMg/1Mg/1Mg/1MangaMg/1<	measurement Sample 1 Lithium Mg/l 0.0340 Beryllium Mg/l <10-6	measurement Sample 1 Sample 2 Lithium Mg/l 0.0340 0.0038 Beryllium Mg/l <10-6	measurement Sample 1 Sample 2 Sample 3 Ideau Mg/l 0.0340 0.00388 0.0212 Beryllium Mg/l <10-6

The results of analysis

The method of analysis

Table 2. Water, Metals and Organic Compounds:

Unit of

Nº Measured indicator

² The applied method: Inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry (ICP-MS)

28	Cadmium	Mg/l	0.00017	0.00001	0.00014	ICP-MS
29	Tuna	Mg/l	0.00109	0.00020	0.00041	ICP-MS
30	Antimony	Mg/l	0.00015	0.00010	0.00008	ICP-MS
31	Barium	Mg/l	0.0268	0.0070	0.0219	ICP-MS
32	Lead	Mg/l	0.0011	0.0002	0.0005	ICP-MS
33	Benzene	Mg/l	<0,0001	-	<0,0001	Gas chromatography
34	Toluene	Mg/l	<0,0001	-	0.001	Gas chromatography
35	Oktan	Mg/l	<0,0001	-	<0,0001	Gas chromatography
36	Ethylbenzene	Mg/l	<0,0001	-	<0,0001	Gas chromatography
37	Xylol	Mg/l	<0,0001	-	<0,0001	Gas chromatography
38	Nona	Mg/l	<0,0001	-	0.00014	Gas chromatography
<mark>39</mark>	Mixture of alkanes (C ₁₀ H ₂₂ -C ₂₂ H ₄₆)	Mg/l	<mark>3.474</mark>	-	<mark>2.758</mark>	Gas chromatography

According to RA Government Decree " On defining water quality norms for each water basin management area taking into consideration the peculiarities of the Locality," (RA Government Decree N 75-N, dated on 27 January 2011,) the surface water quality assessment system in Armenia distinguishes five class statuses for each grade: "excellent" (1st grade), "good" (2nd grade), "mediocre" (3rd class); "Insufficient" (grade 4) and "bad" (5th grade).

The government's decision envisages maximum permissible concentrations for all classes, in case of exceeding them, the flow to water resources is prohibited.

Yerevan Thermal Power Plant territory is located in Hrazdan river basin(watershade) management area. According to "Armecomonitoring"'s reference outcomes on " Ecological Monitoring of the RA Environment" for 2015, the water in the lower stream of the Hrazdan River is "bad" (5th grade).

Below are the 5 th class limits for the Hrazdan River basin management, along with the results of the analysis.

N⁰	Comparable index	Unit of	Ν	lorms by	The average			
		measure	I	П	III	IV	V	result of the
		ment						analysis
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
1	Hydrogen indicator (pH)	-	6.5-9	6.5-9	6.5-9	6.5-9	<6.5	7.25 - 8.34
							>9	
2	Dissolved oxygen	mgO₂/l	>7	>6	>5	>4	<4	1.34 - 7.37
3	Mineralization	mg/l	74	148	1000	1500	>1500	111 - 1708

Table 3. Water quality comparative data. General indicators

4	BOD ₅	mgO ₂ /l	3	5	9	18	>18	1.19 - 6.80
5	Benzene	Mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	<0,0001
6	Toluene	Mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	0.001
7	Octane	Mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	<0,0001
8	Ethylbenzene	Mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	<0,0001
9	Xylol	Mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	<0,0001
10	Nona	Mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	0.00014
11	Mixture of alkanes (C ₁₀ H ₂₂ -	Mg/I	-	-	-	-	-	2 759 2 474
	C ₂₂ H ₄₆)							2.750 - 3.474

Table 4. Water quality comparative data. Metals

Nº	Comparable index	Unit of	Norms by Water Quality Classes				The average	
		measure	1	11		IV	V	result of the
		ment						analysis
1	Lithium	mkg/l	\$ Ч	\$Ч	\$ Ч	<2500	>2500	3.8 - 34.0
2	Beryllium	mkg/l	0.014	0.028	0.056	100	>100	< 0.001
3	Boron	mkg/l	9	450	700	1000	>2000	25.9 – 925.8
4	Natrium	mg/l	5	10	20	40	>40	6.8 – 269.5
5	Magnesium	mg/l	2,8	50	100	200	>200	5.8 - 24.0
6	Aluminum	mkg/l	65	130	260	5000	>5000	5.2 – 79.5
7	Total phosphorus	mg/l	0,025	0,2	0,4	1	>1	0.08 - 0.2157
8	Potassium	mg/l	1,5	3,0	6,0	12,0	>12,0	2.4 - 8.2
9	Calcium	mg/l	9,7	100	200	300	>300	14.8 - 171.1
10	Titanium	mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	0.002 - 0.011
11	Vanadium	mkg/l	1	2	4	8	>8	9.2 - 34.79
12	Chrome	mkg/l	1.0	11.0	100	250	>250	1.0 - 7.9
13	Iron	mg/l	0,08	0,16	0,5	1	>1	0.0337 - 0.226
14	Manga	mkg/l	5	10	20	40	>40	0.9 - 81.8
15	Cobalt	mkg/l	0,14	0,28	0,56	1,12	>1,12	0.2 – 1.7
16	Nickel	mkg/l	1.0	11.0	50	100	>100	0.3 – 2.9
17	Copper	mkg/l	3.0	23.0	50	100	>100	0.6 - 3.4
18	Zinc	mkg/l	3.0	100	200	500	>500	2.5 - 3063.0
19	Arsen	mkg/l	0,13	20	50	100	>100	1.1 – 54.1
20	Selene	mkg/l	0,5	20	40	80	>80	0.2 - 5.4
21	Strontium	mg/l	-	-	-	-	-	0.081 - 2.2267
22	Molybdenum	mkg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	0.9 - 58.8
23	Cadmium	mkg/l	0,02	1,02	2,02	4,02	>4,02	0.01 - 0.17
24	Tin	mkg/l	0,09	0,18	0,36	0,72	>0,72	0.2 - 1.09
25	Antimony	mkg/l	0,2	0,38	0,76	1,52	>1,52	0.08 - 0.15
26	Barium	mkg/l	9	18	36	1000	>1000	7.0 - 26.8
27	Lead	mkg/l	0,3	10,3	25	50	>50	0.2 - 1.1

As can be seen from the table, the results of all sampling tests are within the limits of this class of water, and consequently, this quality water can be directed to the downstream of Hrazdan River, without additional cleaning.

2. Land

Based on the characteristics of soil analysis, preliminary analysis have been performed for some indicators, the results of which are given below.

External inspection: brown soil and ground, with the average content of rock material.

Vegetal and sub-vegetal layer, 13 -22 cm:

pH- in water extract 6.5 - 7.3

The sum of absorbed cations, m/eqv 100g in land: 28.5 – 32.2.

Table 5. Soil quality data. Metals

N	Measured index	Unit	N	leasured value	Mathed availant	
N			Sample 1	Sample 2	Sample 3	wiethod applied
6	Lithium	g/kg	0.0061	0.0175	0.0140	ICP-MS
7	Beryllium	g/kg	0.0004	0.0012	0.0010	ICP-MS
8	Boron	g/kg	0.0373	0.0435	0.0440	ICP-MS
9	Sodium	g/kg	6.0	15.7	10.3	ICP-MS
10	Magnesium	g/kg	2.4	14.8	8.7	ICP-MS
11	Aluminium	g/kg	9.17	73.24	45.77	ICP-MS
12	General Phosphorus	g/kg	0.28	0.84	0.64	ICP-MS
13	Potassium	g/kg	5.8	14.9	10.9	ICP-MS
14	Calcium	g/kg	18.2	83.4	44.4	ICP-MS
15	Titanium	g/kg	1.72	4.40	3.24	ICP-MS
16	Vanadium	g/kg	0.0633	0.1329	0.1010	ICP-MS
17	Chromium	g/kg	0.0174	0.0957	0.0518	ICP-MS
18	Iron	g/kg	5.77	41.04	22.07	ICP-MS
19	Manganese	g/kg	0.1579	0.8231	0.4255	ICP-MS
20	Cobalt	g/kg	0.0077	0.0179	0.0164	ICP-MS
21	Nickel	g/kg	0.0218	0.0549	0.0472	ICP-MS
22	Copper	g/kg	0.0167	0.0691	0.0354	ICP-MS
23	Zinc	g/kg	0.0454	0.1010	0.0588	ICP-MS
24	Arsenic	g/kg	0.0086	0.0118	0.0110	ICP-MS

25	Selenium	g/kg	0.0018	0.0012	0.0043	ICP-MS
26	Strontium	g/kg	0.1022	0.3144	0.1845	ICP-MS
27	Molybdenum	g/kg	0.0101	0.0049	0.0106	ICP-MS
28	Cadmium	g/kg	0.00008	0.00025	0.00016	ICP-MS
29	Tin	g/kg	0.00049	0.00206	0.00098	ICP-MS
30	Antimony	g/kg	0.00027	0.00086	0.00039	ICP-MS
31	Barium	g/kg	0.0779	0.4139	0.2195	ICP-MS
32	Lead	g/kg	0.0065	0.0369	0.0129	ICP-MS

The applied method: Inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry (ICP-MS)

The results of soil survey and general indicators analysis indicate that soil quality is in line with the general characteristics of the region and is within the limits of permitted norms.

V. Tevosyan, director of "Consecoard" LLC

Yerevan 2 CC Power Plant ArmPower CJSC

Noise Impact Study

FICHTNER

FICHTNER

Sarweystrasse 3 • 70191 Stuttgart P.O. 10 14 54 • 70013 Stuttgart Germany Phone: +49 711 8995-0 Fax: +49 711 8995-459

www.fichtner.de Please contact: Email:

Filippo Sormani filippo.sormani@fichtner.it

Rev No.	Rev-date	Contents /amendments	Prepared/revised	Checked/released
0	28/07/2017	Draft	E C Consulting /F.Sormani	
1	18/08/2017	First Emission	E C Consulting /F.Sormani	
2	05/10/2017	Draft Final Report	E C Consulting /F.Sormani	Sousa
3	20/11/2017	Draft Final Report	E C Consulting /F.Sormani	Sousa
4	19/03/2018	Final Report	E C Consulting /F.Sormani	Sousa
5	20/03/2018	Final Report - update	Sousa	Paulsch

Disclaimer

The content of this document is intended for the exclusive use of Fichtner's client and other contractually agreed recipients. It may only be made available in whole or in part to third parties with the client's consent and on a non-reliance basis. Fichtner is not liable to third parties for the completeness and accuracy of the information provided therein.

Table of Contents

1.	Scope of	1-1	
2.	Brief Pr	2-1	
3.	Method	3-2	
4.	Noise s	ources	4-1
5.	Noise P	Propagation Model	5-1
	5.1 Soft	ware used for simulation: Sound Plan	5-1
	5.2 Mod	lel runs	5-2
	5.1.1	Setting boundary conditions	5-2
	5.2 Setti	ng the sound sources	5-5
	5.2.1	Calculation settings	5-6
	5.2.2	Sound pressure levels "ante-operam"	5-7
	5.2.3	Calculation of the sound contribution to the most exposed sensitive receptors	5-10
	5.2.4	Calculation of noise maps	5-12
6.	Predicti	ive noise limit compliance check	6-1
7.	Conclus	sions	7-1
8.	Annexe	S	8-1

List of Figures

Figure 3-1:	Geographic overview of the project	3-2
Figure 3-2:	Detailed geographic overview of the project	3-3
Figure 5-1:	The computational area	5-3
Figure 5-2:	A geodatabase 3D view of the computational area	5-4
Figure 5-3:	Sensitive receptors potentially impacted	5-7
Figure 5-4:	Position of the calculation points along the Plant fence	5-11

1. Scope of the Report

This Noise Propagation Study has been produced as part of the ESIA Report.

A Noise Calculation (NC) was produced for this purpose for the new power plant (YCCPP-2) site. The NC has been done by using the propagation model SoundPLAN (Braunstein + Berndt GmbH). The model determines sound propagation based on the provisions of ISO 9613 - 2. This model is widely used in EU noise mapping projects.

The application of the model allowed determining whether the noise levels emitted by the new plant will represent a nuisance to the surrounding areas, i.e., if the resulting ambient noise will be above the national and international standards.

2. Brief Project Description

To partially reduce the gap between the offer and demand of electric energy foreseen in the Republic of Armenia for the next years, the MOE has signed for the construction of a new 254 MW Combined Cycle type Power Plant, gas fired (the CCGT), in the surroundings of Yerevan city.

The electrical power shall be generated by means of a gas turbine driven generator and, at the same time, steam shall be produced from heat recovery from the GT exhausts. The steam will be fed to a steam turbine, driving an additional power generation unit.

The technology of the most modern gas turbine improving the overall efficiency of the thermal cycle joined with the low environmental impact makes the natural gas fired combined cycle technology, at present, an ideal solution in power sectors.

The Project is a combined cycle plant in a multi-shaft arrangement. The plant will consist of a Gas Turbine (GT) with generator, a Steam Turbine (ST) with generator, a Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG) and other associated equipment and systems.

The plant will be designed for highly efficient operation and for high reliability and availability.

The multi-shaft arrangement is a proper solution with its high flexibility allowing different modes of operation and easy maintenance.

3. Methodology

The aims of this study are:

- calculation of noise emission contributions at the sensitive receptors determined by the CCGT operation;
- predictive definition of the acoustic pressure at the sensitive receptors during CCGT operation;
- predictive verification of the compliance with the applicable limits at sensitive receptors.

On the basis of the Project data, the sound contribution of the CCGT during operation at the most exposed sensors was calculated. The values thus obtained were compared to the applicable limits.

The new 254 MW Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant ("CCPP") will be located in the vicinity of Yerevan city, in the area adjacent to the existing Yerevan CCPP, currently managed by the Yerevan TPP CJSC.



Figure 3-1: Geographic overview of the project



The following figure shows the location of the Power Plant.

Figure 3-2: Detailed geographic overview of the project

The first step of the Noise Calculations has been to state the area potentially most affected by the Project's noise emissions, defined as Assessment area.
4. Noise sources

The whole plant has been designed with particular attention to limit the noise emissions.

The most relevant noise sources will be located inside soundproofed cabin/buildings to minimize noise propagation.

The acoustic enclosure for Gas Turbine and Generator is located over the Gas Turbine thermal block and the generator. It includes the sidewalls for the exhaust gas diffuser area.

The acoustical enclosure is designed and suitable for indoor application, i.e. the thermal block compartment, the generator compartment and the exhaust gas diffuser area compartment are located inside a building.

The main purposes of the acoustic enclosure and the related installations are:

- To reduce the noise emissions generated by the Gas Turbine thermal block, the exhaust gas diffuser and the generator
- To cool down the Gas Turbine set environment during operation.

The acoustical enclosure is completely equipped with structural steel frame, acoustic panels (removable for maintenance), penetration elements for cabling and piping, fully automatic ventilation system, access stairs and ladders, industrial grade/self-closing access doors with panic bars and internal lighting, emergency lighting and small power outlets.

5. Noise Propagation Model

The calculation of the predictive noise propagation was performed in accordance with the ISO 9613-2.

The calculation was performed through SoundPlan (open field propagation simulation software) after setting the model parameters:

- contour setting (geomorphological-acoustic parameters of the propagation environment);
- calculation settings;
- characterization of sound emission sources.

5.1 Software used for simulation: Sound Plan

SOUND PLAN is an open-field sound propagation simulation program and is one of the most used software in environmental noise studies. Modeling of sound propagation is done through a numerical calculation model called 'search angle method'. Starting from every single point of reception considered in the simulation of sound propagation, SOUND PLAN simulates a series of search rays that propagate uniformly in all directions and, for each of them, the software analyzes the physical-geometric and acoustic characteristics of the propagation environment, determines the 'path' leading to the sound source by applying known properties on the direction of propagation of the sound rays.

Therefore, for each sound radius that reaches the source, it applies the attenuating factors related to the acoustic phenomena affected by the ray (the attenuating factors are evaluated quantitatively by means of the ISO 9613-2) and then, it sums, at the receiving point considered, all the contributions made by the sound rays that had reached at least one sound source.

For this numeric procedure to be executed in a reasonable time by the computer, using Sound Plan it is possible to make 'settings' on the accuracy of the calculation model and in particular on:

- the incremental value of the angle that identifies two contiguous rays of search;
- the maximum number of reflections to be considered for the search radius before its contribution is considered null;
- the circular width of the field of research.

Sound Plan is basically based on three modules:

- a 'geo-database'
- a calculation module
- a result display module

In the geo-database, the propagation environment is represented in the three dimensions and the surfaces of the same are acoustically characterized. Emission sources are also located, each of which must be associated with acoustic characterization (source spectrum or total source sound pressure level).

By the calculation module it's possible to select the calculation standard to be used and once selected, the standard can be 'set' in the values of the propagation environment conditions.

The result display module renders the calculation results according to the purpose of the calculation.

5.2 Model runs

The model has been set up and launched. The results have been collected and analyzed.

The Set up of the model has implied the input of all basic data into the software. This has included information regarding the location of sensitive receptors, the noise emission and the technical data of the new YCCPP-2 including terrain data, and dimensions of the nearby structures. The following aspects have been considered

- The soil use and occupation (including sensitive receptors)
- The terrain characteristics:
- The Plant's noise emissions and technical data.

5.1.1 Setting boundary conditions

The propagation area considered is the installation area of the Project Center and its immediate vicinity and is such as to include sensitive receptors identified.

The calculation of the contribution of the sound sources has been carried out on an area of the territory so that the effects of the sound can be considered as null.

In order to cover within the spatial scope of the study the sensitive receptors identified a computational area of about 3 km x 3 km was considered.

The geo-database was built through a detailed plan of the area.



Figure 5-1: The computational area



Figure 5-2: A geodatabase 3D view of the computational area

5.2 Setting the sound sources

The allocation of the sound emission to the various components of the plant was made in analogy to the technical specifications for the purchase of the various equipment, according to the designers' instructions according to the values reported in the Table 5-1.

Item	Source	Lp(A) (@1m) [dB(A)]
HRSG	Lateral Walls	71
	Roof	71
Air Intake GT	Intake	77
HRSG Diffusor	All surfaces	70
Main Machine Building (GT, ST)	All surfaces	60
Stack	External	75
	surfaces	
	Mouth	80
Close cycle heat exchanger	All surfaces	75
Cooling Towers	All surfaces	80
Main Transformer	All surfaces	80
Units Transformer	All surfaces	75
Fuel Gas Booster Compressors	All surfaces	80
Building		
Auxiliary Boiler	All surfaces	60

 Table 5-1:
 Sound pressure level of the most relevant sources considered in the model

Some sound sources have been modeled as areal sources and others as point sources.

The surfaces of buildings are acoustically considered as good reflectors (as is also indicated in ISO 9613-2). This is a typical assumption in the study of environmental noise propagation where 'natural screens' to be considered always have a significant thickness that, following the formulation proposed by ISO 9613-2 for the assessment of the sound pressure level loss at a reflection, is equivalent to the loss of 1 dB at every reflection. The allocation of the sound power to the different components of the plant was made in analogy to the technical specifications for the purchase of the various equipment, according to the designers' instructions.

The following cautionary assumptions were made in the calculation model parameters setting:

- Continuous operation 24hours / day 365 days / year (continuous operation both during the diurnal reference period and during the night reference period)
- Operating characteristics characterized by cautionary sound levels if compared to those guaranteed

5.2.1 Calculation settings

In order to obtain good accuracy results, the search angle method through which SOUND PLAN performs the calculation was set by initializing the relevant parameters with the following values:

- Incremental value of the search beam angle = 2°
- Maximum number of reflections (after which the contribution of the search radius is considered null) = 3

The settings made on the parameters of the calculation standard are as follows:

Environmentel	Humidity	70%
Conditions	Temperature	10°C
Conditions	Atmospheric pressure	1013,25 mbar
	Contribution limits due to	Single diffraction=20dB
	diffractions	Double
	ulliactions	diffraction=25dB
Diffractions	Values assumed for the	C1=3
Calculations	parameters in the	C2=20
Galoulations	formulations of ISO 9613 for calculating the diffractions	C3=0

Table 5-2:Calculation settings

5.2.2 Sound pressure levels "ante-operam"

Sensitive receptors that could potentially be more impacted by noise were detected through a site survey. They are reported in the Figure below.



Figure 5-3: Sensitive receptors potentially impacted

According to the Sanitary Norms N2-III-11.3:

• the applicable noise limits In the residential areas are 45 dBA during the Night time and 55 dBA during the Day time

In the industrial areas the limits fluctuate from 50 dBA to 80 dBA depending on the category of works.

The said limits are referred to the total environment noise (the power plant contribution including the current sound pressure ("ante operam" sound pressure).

The applicable national and international limits to the sensitive receptors potentially impacted are shown in the Tables below.

Point of measurement	Time	TLV (equivalent to sound level), [dB(A)]
(Work-day and Weekend)		- • • •
B1	Day-time	55
KI	Night-time	45
P2	Day-time	55
RZ	Night-time	45
D 2	Day-time	55
кэ	Night-time	45
B4	Day-time	70
R4	Night-time	70
P6	Day-time	55
КJ	Night-time	45

 Table 5-3:
 Applicable limits to the sensitive receptors potentially impacted

 National limits
 •

Table 5-4:Limit values for noise regarding population - IFC/WB General EHSGuidelines

Receptor	One Hour	r L _{Aeq (dB A)}
	Daytime 7:00 – 22:00	Night-time 22:00 – 7:00
Residential; institutional; educational	55	45
Industrial; commercial	70	70
Noise impacts should not exceed th maximum increase in background le location off-site.	e levels given above evels of 3 dB (A) at th	, or result in a le nearest receptor

In order to characterize the acoustic climate at the sensitive receptors, noise measurements were performed at each of them during the survey. For the measurement report, refer to the report "Noise and PM10 Baseline Study" rev.01 dated August 2017.

In the Table 5-5 the summary of the measurements outcome is reported.

Point of	Wind speed	Time of	
measurement	(m/s)	measurement	Leq(A) [dB(A)]
Work-day			
D4	<1.7	Day-time	49.8
R I	<1.8	Night-time	47.1
D0	<1.9	Day-time	72.6
RZ	<2.3	Night-time	62.4
Do	<1.8	Day-time	48.1
R3	<1.7	Night-time	40.0
D4	<1.6	Day-time	53.6
K4	<1.9	Night-time	57.3
D5	<1.7	Day-time	36.2
R0	<2.0	Night-time	39.4
Weekend			
D4	<1.5	Day-time	43.4
R I	<2.1	Night-time	49.0
D0	<1.8	Day-time	72.8
RZ	<2.5	Night-time	59.2
Do	<1.9	Day-time	43.9
КJ	<2.0	Night-time	33.9
D4	<1.8	Day-time	56.4
K4	<2.0	Night-time	57.2
55	<1.5	Day-time	35.6
א <u>ן</u>	<1.8	Night-time	34.2

 Table 5-5:
 Current sound pressure ("ante operam") at the sensitive receptors

"Ante operam" Day-time noise evaluation

Based on the noise measurement results conducted during work-days and weekend days, it can be concluded that noise equivalent levels in/near the residential areas were generally within the TLV except the point R2 (located in front of the highway), where the noise level exceeded the 55 dBA normative value. This can be explained by the movement of heavy vehicles and high traffic density along the highway

"Ante operam" Night-time noise evaluation

Equivalent noise levels during work-days and weekend days at measurement points R3 and R5 are within the 45 dBA TLV. Noise levels at point R1 during both work-days and weekend days were slightly exceeding the TLV (2.1 dBA and 4 dBA accordingly). This is due to the availability of background night noise from the facilities located in the vicinities. As a result of night-time measurements, the equivalent noise level at point R 2 (located in front of the highway) is above the 45 dBA TLV (see). The reason is high traffic density along the highway even at night-time.

5.2.3 Calculation of the sound contribution to the most exposed sensitive receptors

The calculation of the sound pressure level generated by the operation of the Power Plant towards the sensitive receptors has been performed by positioning the sensitive receptors in the model geodatabase. The calculation outcomes are reported in the Table below.

ID Receptor	Reference period (Work- day and Weekend)	Sensitive receptor applicability	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]
D 4	Day time	Yes	32,5
R1	Night time	Yes	32,5
50	Day time	Yes	38,0
RZ	Night time	Yes	38,0
50	Day time	Yes	34,9
R3	Night time	Yes	34,9
54	Day time	Yes	42,7
R4	Night time	Yes	42,7
55	Day time	Yes	31,8
R5	Night time	Yes	31,8

Table 5-6:Calculation outcomes: Sound Pressure generated by the Plantoperation at the sensitive receivers

In addition calculation points along the Plant fence have been considered. The calculation outcomes are reported in the Table below.

ID Fence Point	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]
P East 1	51,3
P East 2	51,6
P East 3	51,5
P North 1	64,0
P North 2	57,3
P North 3	53,1
P South 1	54,2
P South 2	59,6
P South 3	60,2
P West 1	62,6
P West 2	67,9
P West 3	66,2

Table 5-7:Calculation outcome: Sound Pressure generated by the Plant
operation at the Plant fence.

The calculation point along the fence have been positioned as shown in the Figure below.



Figure 5-4: Position of the calculation points along the Plant fence

5.2.4 Calculation of noise maps

Through the calculation model also the noise maps have been generated.

The noise maps represent the sound pressure level curves, generated by the Plant during operation at the quotas of:

- +2 m from the ground level (Annex A)
- +10 m from the ground level (Annex B)

6. Predictive noise limit compliance check

The predictive noise pressure at the sensitive receptors has been calculated by adding the value of the background noise sound pressure to sound level contribution calculated by the model.

The formula used is the following:

$$Lpi_{r} = 10Log(10^{\frac{Lpe_{r}}{10}} + 10^{\frac{Lpf}{10}})$$

Where:

- Lpi_r is the predicted noise pressure value at the 'r' sensitive receptor
- Lpe_r is the Sound level contribution of the Plant at the 'r' sensitive receptor
- Lpf is the current back ground sound level

The calculation outcomes are shown in the Table 6-1. As measurement point 'Noise 4' is located in an industrial area, limit values for industrial areas have been used for this point. However, as this measurement point is located near to the illegal housings northeast of YCCPP-1, Table 6-2 shows the relevant noise pressure at this point under consideration of limit values (international = national) for residential areas.

The results provide a comparison to the national and the international noise limit values. The international limit values (IFC EHS General Guidelines) have the particularity that, whenever the background levels are presently above the applicable limits, a maximum increase of 3 dB(A) due to a project is accepted. This is evaluated in the tables below.

As indicated in Table 6-1 and Table 6-2, where the predicted noise pressure is higher than the applicable limits, this is due to the high background 'ante operam' noise pressure. Contribution from the operation of YCCPP-2 in these cases will be negligible (0.00 - 0.18 dB(A)). This complies with the IFC standard of not exceeding an increase of 3 dB in the background levels.

Table 6-1: Predicted noise pressure at the sensitive receptors and "post – operam" noise limits compliance check

ID Receptor	Reference period	Applicable limit	"Ante operam" sound pressure LAeq [dB(A)]	"Ante operam" noise limits compliance check	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted noise ("post operam") pressure value LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted ("post operam") noise limits compliance check
Wo	rk-day						
	Day time	55	49,8	Compliant	32,5	49,88	Compliant
R1	Night time	45	47,1	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	32,5	47,25	Compliant: the maximum increase is of +0,15 dB (A)
D 2	Day time	55	72,6	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	72,60	Compliant: the maximum increase is of +0,00 dB (A)
RZ	Night time	45	62,4	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	62,42	Compliant: the maximum increase is of +0,02 dB (A)
D3	Day time	55	48,1	Compliant	34,9	48,30	Compliant
КJ	Night time	45	40,0	Compliant	34,9	41,17	Compliant
R4	Day time	70	53,6	Compliant	42,7	53,94	Compliant
1.14	Night time	70	57,3	Compliant	42,7	57,45	Compliant
R5	Day time	55	36,2	Compliant	31,8	37,55	Compliant
1.5	Night time	45	39,4	Compliant	31,8	40,10	Compliant
Wee	ekend						
	Day time	55	43,4	Compliant	32,5	43,74	Compliant
R1	Night time	45	49,0	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	32,5	49,10	Compliant : the maximum increase is of +0,10 dB (A)
R2	Day time	55	72,8	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	72,80	Compliant : the maximum increase is of +0,00 dB (A)
	Night time	45	59,2	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	38,0	59,23	Compliant : the maximum increase is of +0,03 dB (A)
R3	Day time	55	43,9	Compliant	34,9	44,41	Compliant

9P01/FICHT-19334846-v4

FICHTNER

ID Receptor	Reference period	Applicable limit	"Ante operam" sound pressure LAeq [dB(A)]	"Ante operam" noise limits compliance check	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted noise ("post operam") pressure value LAeq [dB(A)]	<i>Predicted ("post operam") noise limits compliance check</i>
	Night time	45	33,9	Compliant	34,9	37,44	Compliant
Ъ٨	Day time	70	56,4	Compliant	42,7	56,58	Compliant
R4	Night time	70	57,2	Compliant	42,7	57,35	Compliant
DE	Day time	55	35,6	Compliant	31,8	37,11	Compliant
КЭ	Night time	45	34,2	Compliant	31,8	36,17	Compliant

Table 6-2: Predicted noise pressure at the sensitive receptors and "post – operam" noise limits compliance check - measurement point 'Noise 4'

ID Receptor	Reference period	Applicable limit - <u>residential</u> <u>areas</u>	"Ante operam" sound pressure LAeq [dB(A)]	"Ante operam" noise limits compliance check	Sound level contribution LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted noise ("post operam") pressure value LAeq [dB(A)]	Predicted ("post operam") noise limits compliance check
Woi	·k-day						
	Day time	55	53,6	Compliant	42,7	53,94	Compliant
R4	Night time	45	57,3	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	42,7	57,45	Compliant : the maximum increase is of + 0.15 dB (A)
Wee	ekend						
D4	Day time	55	56,4	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	42,7	56,58	Compliant : the maximum increase is of + 0.18 dB (A)
К4	Night time	45	57,2	Not compliant: In this case, a max. increase of 3 dB (A) is allowed for "post operam"	42,7	57,35	Compliant : the maximum increase is of + 0.15 dB (A)

7. Conclusions

The assessment of the acoustic impact associated with the New CCGT has been carried out applying a predictive mathematic model to the actual project data.

The calculation has been performed in accordance with the calculation models defined in the ISO 9613-2 standard. The calculation was performed through the SoundPlan software after setting the model parameters.

The sensitive receivers that are more exposed to the new Power Plant operation noise have been detected. The current noise level pressure at the said sensitive receivers have been assessed by an acoustic survey.

The applicable reference noise limit are prescribed by The Sanitary Norms N2-III-11.3.

The final calculation outcomes have shown the compatibility of the New CCGT operation with the applicable noise limits.

The New CCGT operation will not produce any significant increase of the noise pressure at the sensitive receptors. In particular:

- where the current noise pressure is under the applicable limits, the New CCGT operation will not produce any exceedance of the said limit, either during the daytime or during the night time
- where the current noise pressure is already over the applicable limits, the New CCGT operation will produce a negligible contribution, respecting the IFC standard of not exceeding an increase of 3 dB in the background levels.

As last consideration, it has to be underlined that, although at the CCGT fence no sensible receivers are present, the Sound level contribution of the New CCGT operation will be significantly below the applicable industrial areas noise limits.

8. Annexes

Annex A – noise map at +2m Annex B – noise map at +10m





Plant layout

	Source	L ₁ p(Λ) (@1m) [dB(Λ)]
	Lateral Walls	71
	Roof	71
	Intake	77
	All surfaces	70
ilding (GT, ST)	All surfaces	00
	External surfaces	75
	Mouth	08
schanger	All surfaces	75
	All surfaces	80
	All surfaces	08
	All surfaces	75
Compressors Building	All surfaces	08
	All surfaces	60

Most relevant Noise emission items considered in the Plant project

Noise emissions - 2 m height noise map Annex A





Plant layout

	Source	L ₁ p(Λ) (@1m) [dB(Λ)]
	Lateral Walls	71
	Roof	71
	Intake	77
	All surfaces	70
ilding (GT, ST)	All surfaces	00
	External surfaces	75
	Mouth	08
schanger	All surfaces	75
	All surfaces	80
	All surfaces	08
	All surfaces	75
Compressors Building	All surfaces	80
	All surfaces	60

Most relevant Noise emission items considered in the Plant project

Annex B Noise emissions - 10 m height noise map

ARMPOWER	Customer:	ARMPOWER CJSC	Cpy n.:		Cls	-
	Plant Location:	Yerevan - Armenia	Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Project:	Armenia 250 MW CCGT	Page 1 o	f 12		

WASTE WATER TEMPERATURE PROFILE STUDY (STEADY STATE)



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 2 of 12		

CONTENTS

1	INTR	RODUCTION	3
	1.1	Site Location	3
	1.2	The Project	3
2	SCO	PE	4
2	2.1	Temperature Profile Models (steady state)	4
2	2.2	Main Design Basis and assumptions follows:	4
2	2.3	Calculation	6
	2.3.1	Winter Season temperature Case	6
	2.3.2	Summer Season temperature Case	9
3	Conc	clusion	11



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 3 of 12		

1 INTRODUCTION

Ministry of Energy (MOE) of Republic of Armenia has planned, inside a wider program of develop of production of Energy in the Country, to improve the total efficiency of the existing power plant by replacing the older and lower efficient power units with the most modern steam gas combined cycle power generation technology.

To partially reduce the gap between the offer and demand of electric Energy foreseen in the Republic of Armenia for the next years, the MOE has signed for the construction of a new 250 MW (nominal) combined cycle type power plant, gas fired, to be built on the clean and empty field adjacent to the existing YCCPP-1, in the vicinity of Yerevan city.

1.1 SITE LOCATION

The new 250MW Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant ("YCCPP2") will be located in the vicinity of Yerevan city, in the area adjacent (on the west side lot) to the existing Yerevan CCPP-1, currently managed by the Yerevan TPP CJSC.

1.2 THE PROJECT

The YCCPP2 Project consists of a nominal 250MW power output power plant, combined cycle as per latest state-of-the art, located in the vicinities of the existing power plant sharing some of the utilities and facilities necessary for its operation. The power output will be assured by a single gas turbine driven electric generator train, which flue gas will be used to produce high pressure stem for additional power recovery through a steam turbine driven electric generator. The Project will be designed for more efficient operation and for higher reliability and availability.



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 4 of 12		

2 SCOPE

The aim of the present study is the evaluation of the water effluent temperature profile from YCCPP2 Power Plant battery limit, up to the existing Hrazdan River during both winter and summer condition:

- Waste water temperature discharge from 25°C in winter to 34,2 in summer season ;
- Lowest River Temperature (Maximum DT between waste water and the receptor-river temperature) during winter season;
- Highest Cooling Water outlet temperature during summer season

As a general note, it shall be considered that the dilution factor due to the very huge flow rate and velocity of the river, has not been considered in the present calculation. These factors could be taken into account to justify, themselves, the negligible environmental impact of the YCCPP-2 waste water on the Hrazdan river. In this regard, data from YCCPP-1 report "YEREVAN TPP CJSC COMBINED CYCLE POWER PLANT (CCPP) STANDARDS OF MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE OUFLOW (MOA) OF HARMFUL SUBSTANCES POURED INTO THE SEWERAGE COLLECTOR AND WATER RESOURCES" state the following river characteristics:

- Flow Rate: around 80.000 m3/hour
- Velocity: 2m/sec

2.1 **TEMPERATURE PROFILE MODELS (STEADY STATE)**

Two dedicated heat transfer model have been adopted depending the specific trunk line discharge section considered.

Basically we have two main trunk line:

- 1. Trunk line 1: From tie-in point up to Existing Pit;
- 2. Trunk line (open channel) : From existing pit to Hrazdan river

Calculation has been done for two main season average temperature: Winter season temperature and Summer season temperature.

2.2 MAIN DESIGN BASIS AND ASSUMPTIONS FOLLOWS:

Trunk line 1:

- Lenght: 1000 meters
- Material: cement pipe
- Manning Factor : 0.013
- Concrete roughness: 3.05 10-4
- Pipe tickness: 0.04 meter
- ID : 0.297 meters
- Slope 1/100
- Flowrate 100 m3/h

Trunk line 2 (open channel):

- Trapezoidal channel
- Flowrate 100 m3/h
- Assumed water velocity = 1.5 m/sec



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 5 of 12		



- Assumed wind speed : 3 m/sec and 1 m/sec respectively during Winter and Summer season
- Assumed Humidity : 75 % and 45 % respectively during Winter and Summer season
- Assumed T water at Tie-in point : 25 °C and 34 °C respectively during Winter and Summer season
- Assumed lenght of open channel surface (section) : 1 meter
- Calulated open channel Area (assuming 1 meter surface section lenght) : 0.018 m²
- No credit has been taken for the Radiation heat flux effect due to the sunlight
- No credit has been taken for the sensible heat term;
- No credit has been taken for the heat transfer rate due to the internal channel surface.



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 6 of 12		

2.3 CALCULATION

2.3.1 Winter Season temperature Case

Trunk line 1 (buried cement pipe) calculation

Temperature drop along cement trunk line has been calculated assuming that the only heat transfer rate envisaged is belonging to wetted pipe area. Basically the heat dissipation (due to the lower ground temperature assumed as 10 °C) will take place by means the temperature difference between inlet pipe water and outlet pipe bulk material.

To evaluate the liquid depth in the pipe (due to the gravity flow) the manning equation has been adopted:

Manning Equation :	Q = 1/n x /	A x R _h ^{2/3} x S ^{1/2}		
Consider a liquid depth as D/5	meters as first gues	SS.		
Liquid Depth	Y	0.0594	m	-
Manning Factor	'n	0.013		
Radius	B	0.1485	m	A= A
Centre Angle	20	106.2602047	٥	R
Liquid Section	A	0.020448929	m2	÷ e
Wetted Perimeter	P	0.275406447	m	
Hydraulic Radius	Rh = A/P	0.07425	m	R
Hydraulic diameter	$D_{\rm b} = 4R_{\rm b}$	0.297	m	
Slope in the line	S	0.0100		-
Froude Number	Fr = V / √	(g x D)		
(From McGraw-Hill_20Pipin	ng_20Handbook_2	0_287E_29)		
Liquid Velocity	v	1.36	m/s	
Full Pipe Area	At	0.07	m2	
Full Pipe Velocity	Vt	0.40	m/s	A. X. X. X
Froude Number	Fr =	0.23501859	≤ 0.3	in order to be selfventing
Conclusion				

Considering a slope of 10 meters every 1000 meters a 297 Internal Diameter Pipe with a liquid depth of 0.0594 m shall be calculated.

Liquid Exit Temperatu			
INPUT DATA			
Pipeline Lenght	L	1000	m
Elevation change	Y	10	m
Pipeline Internal Diameter	ID	0.297	m
Burial depht to center	h	1.15	m
Inlet Temperature	T1	25	°C
Ground Temperature	Tg	10	°C
Ground Thermal Conductivity	k	1.49	kcal/hm°C
Mass Flow	М	100000	kg/h
Specific Heat	Cp	1	kcal/kg°C
Factorj	j	426.5	kgm/kcal

Q040-Waste Water Temperature Study-Rev02_180330_ERRATA CORRIGE.docx



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 7 of 12		

Heat Transfer Factor calculation						
α = 2h/D	α	7.74				
s = $2k\pi/[\ln(x+(x^2-1)^{1/2})]$	s	3.42	kcal/hm°C			
Heat Flow Ratio per unit lenght ca	lculation					
a = s/MCp	а	0.000034	1/m			
Asymptotic Temperature calculati	on					
Ta = Tg - (J x DP + Y/(j x Cp))/aL	(Joule Tho	mson Effect no	t considered; J*	DP = 0)		
	Та	9.31	°C			
Downstream Temperature calcula	ation					
T2 = (T1 - Ta) x e ^{-aL} + Ta	T2	24.5	°C			
Therefore calculated duty relevan	t temperatu	re drop from 2	5 to 24.5 °C is c	alculated as foll	ows:	
Delta Q = (25-24.5) x 1 x 100000	Delta Q	50000	Kcal/h			
Assuming that only a part of the p	ipe surface	will be affected	l by the heat flux	x, a 60% of the ł	neat flow will	be
considered: 30000 kcal/h						
Hence:						
30000 = DeltaT x 1 x 100000	Delta T	0.3	°C			

As result the exit pipe temperature shall be reasonable assumed as 24.7 °C.

Trunk line 2 (open channel) calculation

Since the water is flowing through an open channel, we assume that the evaporative heat flux across the airwater interface is the most significant factor in dissipation of stream heat (Parker and Krenkel 1969).

Special consideration must be taken in addressing the simulation of evaporation rates, since the evaporation flux is the energy process in which streams dissipate most heat energy, and therefore, contributes most to decreases in water column temperature.

The vapor pressure gradient between the water surface (es) and the air (ea) directly above the stream drives evaporation (i.e. the vaporization of water molecules) when the gradient is positive (ea - es). Only when the air is saturated does evaporation cease to occur (ea = es). The evaporative flux can be calculated as a summation of the sensible carried with evaporated water vapor and the product of the latent heat of evaporation (LHV), density of water (pw) and the rate of evaporation (\bar{E}). The energy needed for water to change from a liquid to a gas, the latent heat of vaporization (LHV), is a function of water temperature (McCutcheon 1989).

The evaporative flux can be calculated as follows (Eq. 1):

$$\Phi_{\text{evaporation}} = \rho_{H,0} \cdot L_e \cdot E$$

(Eq. 1)

Where Le is the latent heat of vaporization expressed as (eq.2):



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 8 of 12		

(Eq.2)
$$L_e = 1000 \cdot (2501.4 + (1.83 + T_W))$$

While \bar{E} is the evaporation rate. The Mass transfer evaporation rate can be calculated considering the Dingman equation (Digman 2002).

(Eq.3)..... Where e_s is calculated as

(Eq.5).....

$$e_{\cdot \cdot} = 6.1275 \cdot e^{\left(\frac{17.27 \cdot T_{w_1}^{t}}{(237.3 + T_{w_1}^{t})}\right)}$$

 $\overline{E} = f(\overrightarrow{W}) \cdot (e_s \cdot - e_a \cdot)$

(Eq.4).... And e_a is calculated as

 $e_{a'} = \frac{H}{100\%} \cdot e_{s'}$

(Eq.6).... $f(\vec{W}) = a + b \cdot \vec{W}$

From the above equation the Evaporation Flux is calculated considering the following step: Using for Eq 4 and 5 followings coefficient respectively

- es = 31.2
- ea = 23.4

Using Eq. 6 f(W) is equal to 1.4×10^{-8} considering the followings coefficient

- a = 5 x 10-9
- b = 3 x 10-9

By using Dingman equation the Evaporation mass rate is

- $\bar{E} = 1.4 \times 10^{-8} (31.2 23.4) = 1.1 \times 10^{-7}$
- L_e = 1000 x (2501.4 (1.83+ 24.7 °C) = 2527930 J/kg

 $\Phi_{\text{evaporation}} = 1000 \text{ x } 2527930 \text{ x } 1.1 \text{ 10}^{-7} = 276 \text{ W/m}^2$

In order to estimate the temperature changes along the entire open channel we can reasonably assume that the heat load for each m^2 of the channel is 276 W.

Water will be exposed for this specific heat load during the time (sec) needed to reach river discharge located at 7000 meter far away. Hence the total time required to reach the river is: 7000 [meter]/ 1.5 [m/sec] = 4667 sec

The calculated Duty associated to 4667 sec is: 276 W * 4667 [sec] = 1288963 J = ΔQ

The Mass of water considered for 1 meter of specific water surface is calculated as follows: Mass water = Volume x ρ_w = 0.018 * 1000 = 18 kg

Therefore the heat load associated to 18 kg of water mass can be expressed also as: $\Delta Q = M \text{ cp} \Delta T$

And the calculated ΔT is : (1288963 [J]) / (18 [kg]*4186 [J/Kg °C]) = 17.1 °C

So the final Winter Case waste water temperature into the river is 7.6 °C.

Q040-Waste Water Temperature Study-Rev02_180330_ERRATA CORRIGE.docx



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 9 of 12		

2.3.2 Summer Season temperature Case

Trunk line 1 (buried cement pipe) calculation

Temperature drop along cement trunk line has been calculated assuming that the only heat transfer rate envisaged is belonging to wetted pipe area. Basically the heat dissipation (due to the lower ground temperature assumed as 10 °C) will take place by means the temperature difference between inlet pipe water and outlet pipe bulk material.

To evaluate the liquid depth in the pipe (due to the gravity flow) the manning equation has been adopted:

Manning Equation :	Q = 1/n x /	$A \ge R_h^{2/3} \ge S^{1/2}$		
Consider a liquid depth as D/5	ometers as first gues	SS.		
Liquid Depth	v	0.0594	m	
Manning Factor	'n	0.013		
Radius	B	0.1485	m	A= AT
Centre Angle	20	106.2602047	۰	RR
Liquid Section	A	0.020448929	m2	
Wetted Perimeter	P	0.275406447	m	
Hydraulic Radius	Rh = A/P	0.07425	m	R
Hydraulic diameter	$D_{\rm b} = 4R_{\rm b}$	0.297	m	
Slope in the line	S	0.0100		
Froude Number	Fr = V / √	(g x D)		
(From McGraw-Hill_20Pipin	ng_20Handbook_2	0_287E_29)		
			_	
Liquid Velocity	v	1.36	m/s	
Full Pipe Area	At	0.07	m2	
Full Pipe Velocity	Vt	0.40	m/s	
Froude Number	Fr =	0.23501859	≤ 0.3	in order to be selfventing
Conclusion				Con 11 1 1 1 1 1
Considering a slope of 10 me	ters every 1000 me	ters a 297 Internal	Diameter Pi	pe with a liquid depth

Considering a slope of 10 meters every 1000 meters a 297 Internal Diameter Pipe with a liquid depth of 0.0594 m shall be calculated.

Liquid Exit Temperature Calculation

INPUT DATA			
Pipeline Lenght	L	1000	m
Elevation change	Y	10	m
Pipeline Internal Diameter	ID	0.297	m
Burial depht to center	h	1.15	m
Inlet Temperature	T1	34	°C
Ground Temperature	Tg	10	°C
Ground Thermal Conductivity	k	1.49	kcal/hm°C
Mass Flow	м	100000	kg/h
Specific Heat	Ср	1	kcal/kg°C
Factor j	j	426.5	kgm/kcal

Q040-Waste Water Temperature Study-Rev02_180330_ERRATA CORRIGE.docx



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 10 of 12		

Heat Transfer Factor calculation						
α = 2h/D	α	7.74				
s = 2kπ/[ln(x+(x ² -1) ^{1/2})]	s	3.42	kcal/hm°C			
Heat Flow Ratio per unit lenght c	alculation					
a = s/MCp	а	0.000034	1/m			
Asymptotic Temperature calculat	ion					
Ta = Tg - (J x DP + Y/(j x Cp))/aL	(Joule Tho	mson Effect no	ot considered; .	J*DP = 0)		
	Ta	9.31	°C			
Downstream Temperature calcula	ation					
T2 = (T1 - Ta) x e ^{-aL} + Ta	T2	33.2	°C			
Therefore calculated duty relevar	nt temperat	ure drop from	25 to 24.5 °C i	s calculated	as follows:	
Delta Q = (25-24.5) x 1 x 100000	Delta Q	83042	kcal/h			
Assuming that only a part of the	oipe surfac	e will be affec	ted by the hea	t flux, a 60%	of the heat fl	ow
considered:		49825	kcal/h			
Hence:						
49825 = DeltaT x 1 x 100000	Delta T	0.5	°C			
As result the exit pipe temperatu	re shall be	reasonable as	sumed as 33.5	°C.		

Trunk line 2 (open channel) calculation

Using for Eq. 4 and 5 followings coefficient respectively:

- es = 51.9
- ea = 23.4

Using Eq. 6 f(W) is equal to 3.5×10^{-9} considering the followings coefficient:

- a = 2.5 x 10-9
- b = 1.0 x 10-9

By using Dingman equation the Evaporation mass rate is

- Ē = 3.5 x 10-9 (51.9 23.4) = 1 x 10-7
- Le = 1000 x (2501.4 (1.83+ 33.5 °C) = 2536730 J/kg

 $\Phi_{\text{evaporation}}$ = 1000 x 2536730 x 1 x 10⁻⁷ = 253 W/m²

In order to estimate the temperature changes along the entire open channel we can reasonably assume that the heat load for each m^2 of the channel is 253 W.

Water will be exposed for this specific heat load during the time (sec) needed to reach river discharge located at 7000 meter far away. Hence the total time required to reach the river is: 7000 [meter]/ 1.5 [m/sec] = 4667 sec

The calculated Duty associated to 4667 sec is:



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 11 of 12		

253 W * 4667 [sec] = 1182675 J = ∆Q

The Mass of water considered for 1 meter of specific water surface is calculated as follows: Mass water = Volume x \mathbf{p}_{w} = 0.018 * 1000 = 18 kg

Therefore the heat load associated to 18 kg of water mass can be expressed also as: $\Delta Q = M \text{ cp} \Delta T$

And the calculated ∆T is : (1182675 [J]) / (18 [kg]*4186 [J/Kg °C]) = 15.7 °C

Summer Case waste water temperature into the river is : 17.8 °C.

Considering a lower evaporation rate due to the solar radiation effect (assumed as 20% of the evaporation flux) the new calculated ΔQ is:

ΔQ = 1182675 [J] x 0.8 = 946140 J

The calculated ΔT is : (946140 [J]) / (18 [kg]*4186 [J/Kg °C]) = 12.6 °C

Summer lower evaporation Case waste water temperature into the river is : 20.9 °C.

3 CONCLUSION

The final estimated waste water temperatures at Hrazdan river discharge (as per above mentioned calculation procedure and assumption) is reported in the here below table 1.

The Cooling Water outlet temperature for seasonal cases, is reported in respect to waste water temperature into the river

SEASON	Cooling Tower Discharge Temp [°C]	Water Effluent Discharging in Hrazdan River Temp [°C]	Seasonal Hrazdan River Temp (Average 2015-2016) [°C]	Temperature Change Δτ [°C]	Deviation from Hrazdan River Temp (< 3°C) [°C]
WINTER	25.0	7.6	10.3	17.1	-2.7
SUMMER	34.0	17.8	20.5	15.7	-2.7

Table 1 Water Temperatures

The outlet water temperature as per above calculation results to be in compliance with the seasonal average values of Hrazdan river being always below the 3 degree threshold limit. (refer to table 1)

Seasonal average values of Hrazdan river have been calculated according the following assumptions.

For winter season the following months have been considered for average value calculation:

- January
- February
- November
- December

For Summer season the following months have been considered for average value calculation:

- May
- June
- July
- August



Cpy n.:		C/s	-
Ctr n.:	Q040- WW-TEMPERATURE	Rev	02
	Page 12 of 12		

For Season average River temperature refer to Table 2:

D.d web	2015	2016	
wonth	[°C]	[°C]	
1	9.8	9.7	
2	10.8	10.8	
3	12.1	11.8	
4	15.7	14.4	
5	19.4	17.8	
6	21.2	19.4	
7	22.7	20.2	
8	23.6	19.8	
9	20.7	16.9	
10	17.6	13.5	
11	13.6	10.1	
12	10.2	7.6	
	[°C]	[°C]	Average (2015-2016) [°C]
Winter average Temp Month (1-2-11-12)	11.1	9.6	10.3
Summer average Temp Month (5-6-7-8)	21.7	19.3	20.5

Table 2 Average water Temperature of Hrazdan river

Final Report March 2018

Yerevan 2 CC Power Plant Armpower CJSC

Air Dispersion Calculation



FICHTNER

FICHTNER

Sarweystrasse 3 70191 Stuttgart • Germany Phone: +49 711 8995-0 Fax: +49 711 8995-459

www.fichtner.de

Please contact:Sofia SousaExtension:726E-mail:sofia.sousa@fichtner.de

Rev No.	Rev-date	Contents /amendments	Prepared/revised	Checked/released
0	18.08.2017	Draft Report for incorporation into the Draft ESIA	Sousa	Heinold
1	04.10.2017	Draft Final Report for incorporation into the Draft Final ESIA	Sousa	Heinold
2	20.11.2017	Draft Final Report for incorporation into the Draft Final ESIA	Sousa	Back
3	07.12.2017	Draft Final Report for incorporation into the Draft Final ESIA	Sousa	Paulsch
4	14.02.2018	Final Report for incorporation into the Final ESIA	Sousa	Paulsch
5	19.03.2018	Final Report for incorporation into the Final ESIA	Sousa	Paulsch

Disclaimer

The content of this document is confidential and intended for the exclusive use of Fichtner's client and other agreed recipients. It may only be made available in whole or in part to third parties with Fichtner's written consent and on a non-reliance basis. Fichtner is not liable to third parties for the completeness and accuracy of the information provided therein.

Table of Contents

D	isclai	mer		I
Та	able o	of Con	itents	Ш
Li	st of	figure	PS	I
Li	st of	abbre	viations and acronyms	II
1.	Sco	ope of	the Report	1-1
2.	Pro	oject S	bite	2-1
3.	Air	Emis	sions and Air Quality Legislation	3-1
	3.1	Air Ei	mission Limits	3-1
	3.2	Air Q	uality Standards	3-2
4.	Ba	seline	Data	4-1
	4.1	Affect	ted area and receptors	4-1
	4.2	Meteo	prological Data	4-2
	4.3	Terrai	n data	4-3
	4.4	Emiss	ion Data	4-6
	4.5	Baseli 2017/2	ine Air Quality Data - Summer and Autumn 2017; Winter 2018	4-8
	4.	5.1	PM ₁₀	4-9
	4.	5.2	SO ₂ and NO ₂	4-10
	4.	5.3	Treatment of the baseline data - NO ₂	4-11
	4.	5.4	Baseline assessment - conclusion and future work	4-13
5.	Air	Dispe	ersion Calculation	5-1
	5.1	Air Q	uality Model	5-1
	5.2	Calcu	lation Scenarios	5-1
	5.	2.1	Note on Scenarios A and C	5-2
	5.3	Buildi	ings and downwash effects	5-3
	5.4	ADC	Results	5-3
	5.	4.1	CO - Short-time MAC	5-4
	5.	4.2	CO - 8 hours International AQS	5-7
	5.	4.3	NO2 - Short-time MAC and 1 hour International AQS	5-10
	5.	4.4	NO ₂ - Annual International AQS	5-13
6.	Su	mmar	y of the results	6-1

FICHTNER

Ш
7.	Co	nclusion	7-1
8.	Re	ferences	8-1
9.	An	nexes	9-1
	9.1	Annex 1: PM ₁₀ Baseline Studies	9-1
	9.2	Annex 2: NO ₂ and SO ₂ Baseline Studies	9-2
	9.3	Annex 3: Temperature statistics in Yerevan - Winter 2017 vs. historical data (raw data source: accuweather.com)	9-1

List of tables

Table 3-1:	IFC emission guidelines for facilities larger than 50 MW with combustion
turbines (IFC, 2	
Table 3-2:	Performance Guarantees for YCCPP-2 - air emissions
Table 3-3:	National and ECD Ambient Air Quality Standards
Table 4-1:	Emission data for YCCPP-2 and YCCPP-1
Table 4-2:	Baseline air quality measurement results - PM ₁₀ 4-10
Table 4-4:	Baseline air quality measurement results - SO ₂
Table 4-5:	Multiplying factor to convert 24 hour concentrations to 1 hr concentrations
(adapted from H	EPA, 1992)
Table 4-6:	Multiplying factor for point sources to convert 1 hour concentrations to
annual periods	(EPA, 1992)4-12
Table 4-7:	Measured and calculated NO ₂ baseline concentrations in the project area 4-
12	
Table 5-1:	Maximum simulated 1 hr CO GLC and comparison with the air quality
standards	5-4
Table 5-2:	Maximum simulated 8 hr CO GLC and comparison with the air quality
standards	5-7

List of figures

Figure 2-1:	Location of the future Yerevan - 2 PP (source of the topographic map:	
URL 1)	2-2	
Figure 2-2:	Overview of the immediate surroundings of the Yerevan Power Plants 1	
and 2	2-3	
Figure 4-1:	Location of the affected area	4-1
Figure 4-2:	Closer view of the affected area	4-2
Figure 4-3:	Wind rose for the years 2014-2016 (wind blowing from)	4-3
Figure 4-4:	Representation of the terrain of the affected area	4-4
Figure 4-5:	Landscape/terrain at the site and its surroundings (Fichtner, July 2017) .	4-6
Figure 4-6:	Baseline Monitoring Points - Air Quality	4-8
Figure 5-1:	Maximum simulated 1 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects -	
YCCPP-1 + YC	CPP-2	5-5
Figure 5-2:	Maximum simulated 1 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects -	
YCCPP-1 + YC	CCPP-2 - closer view of the higher values	5-6
Figure 5-3:	Maximum simulated 8 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects -	
YCCPP-1 + YC	ССРР 2	5-8
Figure 5-4:	Maximum simulated 8 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects -	
YCCPP-1 + YC	CCPP-2 - closer view of the higher values	5-9
Figure 5-7:	Maximum simulated 1 hr NO2 GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only5	-11
Figure 5-8:	Maximum simulated 1 hr NO2 GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only- close	er
view of the high	ner values5	-12
Figure 5-12:	Maximum simulated 1 yr NO2 GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only - clos	ser
view of the high	ner values5	-15

List of abbreviations and acronyms

AQS = Air Quality Standard(s) CC = Combined Cycle CO = Carbon Monoxide ECD = European Council Directive(s) ELV = Emission Limit Values IFC = International Finance Corporation MAC = Maximum Allowable Concentration masl = meters above sea level NG = Natural Gas NO₂ = Nitrogen Dioxide PP = Power Plant UHC = Unburned hydrocarbon(s) WB = World Bank YCCPP = Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant

1. Scope of the Report

The Ministry of Energy (MOE) of the Republic of Armenia plans to improve the total output capacity of its electric energy production, complementing the power units of the existing Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP-1) with a more modern and efficient power plant. For this reason a new gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant of 234 MWe (YCCPP-2) is planned to be built at the site next to the existing YCCPP-1.

RENCO SPA will be the EPC Contractor for this Project, which will be operated by ArmPower CJSC, a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA.

In order to obtain financing from the International Financing Corporation (IFC) and the Asian Development Bank (ADB), a bankable Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) Report to the YCCPP-2 ("the Project") on the basis of the relevant World Bank Group's guidelines has to be delivered to IFC and ADB for review and approval.

Fichtner is providing Technical Advisory Services to Armpower CJSC ("Project Company" or "Client"), including the elaboration of the bankable ESIA. The present report presents the Air Dispersion Calculation performed for the Project, and is part of the ESIA.

The objective of the study is to assess the contribution of the air emissions of the YCCPP-2 to the air quality in the area, and to indicate whether the national and international air quality standards are expected to be fulfilled or not. The assessment ultimately leads to the determination of the conditions required to fulfill these standards. The criteria pollutants CO and NO_2 are subject of analysis in this context.

The Air Dispersion Calculation is performed using the dispersion modeling software BREEZE AERMOD (version 8.0.0.39 from 2017), based on a U.S. EPA (United States Environmental Protection Agency) Regulatory Model.

2. Project Site

The YCCPP-2 will be located in the city of Yerevan, Armenia, nearby the existing YCCPP-1 in an industrial area (Figure 2-1 and Figure 2-2). The coordinates of the site center are approximately:

- Northing: 40°6'48.06"N;
- Easting: 44°29'49.55"E;
- Zone: 38T (WGS 84).

Noragvit (a residential district of Yerevan) is located approx. 1,350 m to the west, Ayntap (a major village in the Ararat Province) is located approx. 1,500 m to the south west, Kharberd (another major village in the Ararat Province) is located 1,200 m to the south, and the nearest residential areas of the Erebuni District are located approx. 1,200 m north east of the proposed plant site. Right at the vicinity of the site there are some temporary houses, as well as former industrial buildings and a local Fire Service Training Center. There is no one living within the site.

Nearby the Project site, there is one non-operational power plant and many other active industrial plants:

- YCCPP-1
- "Plant of Pure Iron" OJSC
- "Armenian Molybdenum Production" LLC
- "Nairit 1" and "Nairit 2" Chemical Plants
- Others

Information about the air emissions of other active industrial plants in the area could only be obtained for the YCCPP-1, since this power plant is from the same complex as the new YCCPP-2. The other neighboring industrial plants belong to companies unrelated to the developers of the Yerevan power plants 1 and 2, who shared only some limited information with the Client. Such data did not have enough detail to be used in the ADC.

The site is located close to the Erebuni Airport, and the E 117 highway.

Although the present study focus on the impacts of the Yerevan - 2 PP on the air quality, it would be necessary to consider as well the emissions of the existing neighboring plants, road and airport for a complete analysis. Since there is a large number of air emission sources in the area, and it is not possible to obtain data for all of them, a baseline air quality assessment has been undertaken. Please see Section 4.5 for further details.

The future installation of other industrial plants in the area cannot be reasonably foreseen at this stage.



Figure 2-1: Location of the future Yerevan - 2 PP (source of the topographic map: URL 1)



Figure 2-2: Overview of the immediate surroundings of the Yerevan Power Plants 1 and 2

3. Air Emissions and Air Quality Legislation

In order to protect human health, vegetation and/or properties from the negative effects of air pollution, limits are imposed to:

- the concentrations of the pollutants that are emitted from various sources <u>air emission limits;</u> *and to*
- the concentrations of the pollutants that are present in the atmosphere <u>air quality standards</u>.

In several countries, these limits (or standards) are defined in the national laws/regulations, but there are also internationally accepted values like the ones from the World Bank Group Guidelines or the European Union Directives.

The <u>air emission limits</u> represent the maximum concentrations that are allowed in the flue gas coming out of the source (a stack, in this case) and are given in mg of pollutant per normal m³ of dry flue gas (mg/Nm³). The N stands for "Normal conditions": temperature of 0°C and atmospheric pressure of 101.3 kPa.

The <u>air quality standards</u> (AQS) state the maximum concentrations that are allowed in the ambient air, in this case, in the airshed surrounding the power plant. The standards are presented in μ g of pollutant per m³ of ambient (exterior) air (μ g/m³). For gaseous pollutants, the results of the air quality monitoring shall be standardized at a temperature of 293 K (20°C) and an atmospheric pressure of 101.3 kPa.

This chapter presents the national and international standards for air emissions and for air quality that are applicable to the project.

3.1 Air Emission Limits

The International Finance Corporation (IFC, World Bank Group) defined emission guidelines (EG) for facilities with a power input larger than 50 MW_{th} using gas turbines (Table 3-1).

Pollutant	EG for combustion turbines; facilities > 50 MW _{th}
	Natural Gas
NO ₂	51 mg/Nm ³
Dry gas, excess O ₂ content	15%
Temperature flue gas	0°C



There are no national air emission limits for thermal power plants. The specifications for Yerevan 2 demand the compliance with the performance

guarantee values for CO, NO₂ and Unburned Hydrocarbons (UHC) as shown in Table 3-2.

Pollutant	Performance Guarantees
CO	30 mg/Nm ³
NO ₂	50 mg/Nm ³
UHC	10 mg/Nm ³
Dry gas, excess O ₂ content	15%
Temperature flue gas	0°C
Load	From 70% to 100%

UHC: Unburned Hydrocarbons

 Table 3-2:
 Performance Guarantees for YCCPP-2 - air emissions

The performance guarantee values for NO₂ comply with the IFC emission guidelines. No emission guidelines are defined by IFC for CO. For the project at hand, and based on the specific natural gas composition, the emissions of UHC may include pollutants such as methane (85 to 96% of the gas is composed of methane), ethane, propane, butane, and pentane. IFC does not define emission guidelines for UHC in general nor for any of the listed chemicals in particular.

3.2 Air Quality Standards

The Air Quality Standards are defined according to the different levels of danger that the pollutants pose depending on the exposition period. This way, the standards are defined for different time frames, allowing the protection against the short term acute impacts, the medium term impacts and the long term impacts.

IFC states that emissions from projects shall not result in pollutant concentrations in the ambient air that reach or exceed the relevant ambient air quality guidelines and standards by applying the national legislated standards or, in their absence, the World Health Organization (WHO) Guidelines or other internationally recognized sources like the U.S. EPA (United States Environmental Protection Agency) or the European Council Directives (ECD).

The IFC recommends, in addition, that the emissions from a single project should not contribute with more than 25% of the applicable ambient air quality standards to allow additional, future sustainable development in the same airshed. This implies that even when a ground level concentration (GLC) of a certain pollutant respects the air quality standard, it shall be evaluated whether it is below or above 25% of that standard. This is also assessed in the present study.

Table 3-3 presents the national ambient air quality standards, or MAC - maximum allowable concentrations (established by Governmental Decree

FICHTNER

Nr. 160-N of 2 February 2006), and the standards defined by the European Council Directive 2008/50/EC that are applicable to the project.

		Averaging	Air Quality Standards [µg/m³]			
Pollutan	t	period	National MAC	ECD		
		Short-time	5,000	-		
		24 hours	3,000	-		
CO		Max. daily 8 hour mean	-	10,000		
		Short-time	200	-		
NO ₂		1 hour	-	200 Not to be exceeded more than 18 times per year		
		24 hours	40	-		
		1 year	-	40		
	Methane	-	-	-		
	Ethane	-	-	-		
инс	Propane	-	-	-		
UNC	Butane	Short-time	200,000	-		
	Pentane	Short-time	100,000	-		
		24 hours	25,000	-		
		Maximum	300	-		
PM ₁₀		24 hours	60	50 Not to be exceeded more than 35 times per year		
		1 year	-	40		
		Maximum	500	-		
SO ₂		1 hour	-	350 Not to be exceeded more than 24 times per year		
		24 hours	50	125 Not to be exceeded more than 3 times per year		

 Table 3-3:
 National and ECD Ambient Air Quality Standards

The ECD 2008/50/EC does not set a limit for the type of UHC that are expected from natural gas operation (methane, ethane, propane, butane, and pentane). The limits shown in Table 3-3 for butane and pentane are based on the national legislation, but seem to be overly permissive. In fact, the national air quality monitoring network does not measure hydrocarbons (WHO, 2003), for what there is not a real experience on the application of

the standards for UHC. Given this, these standards are not be used in the present ADC, and **focus is provided on CO and NO**₂.

Although PM_{10} and SO_2 are not expected to be emitted by the YCCPP - 2, these standards are mentioned as they are of importance for the air quality baseline assessment shown in Section 4.5.

It shall be noted that the national MAC for 24 hr NO_2 of 40 μ g/m³ corresponds to the ECD limit for annual averages. This shows that this national MAC is very stringent when compared to the international standards.

According to the RA Regulation Nr. 1673-N of 27 December 2012, to determine the specific emission limits for projects such as power plants, an air dispersion calculation shall be undertaken that evaluates the compliance with the <u>short time MACs</u>. The short time MAC for CO is 5,000 μ g/m³ and for NO₂ is 200 μ g/m³ (for residential areas). Therefore, in what regards compliance with national requirements, focus is only provided in this study to the short-time MACs. To evaluate compliance with international requirements, compliance with all applicable ECD air quality standards is also assessed.

4. Baseline Data

4.1 Affected area and receptors

The air quality standards considered in this study are defined for protection of human health. Given this, the study will focus particularly on the analysis of the air quality effects in areas where human presence exists. An area of 314 km^2 around the power plant is defined as the eventually affected area for air pollution impacts. This includes the neighboring settlements up to 10 km in all directions counting from the stack of the YCCPP-2 (Figure 4-1).



Figure 4-1: Location of the affected area

In the direct proximity of the power plant (up to 1 km), there are some temporary informal houses to the northeast and southeast, deactivated industries and the local Firefighters Training Center to the southwest, a non-operational power plant to the east, and agricultural fields/pastures to the west and northwest (Figure 4-2).



Figure 4-2: Closer view of the affected area

4.2 Meteorological Data

In order to conduct the Air Dispersion Calculation, recent meteorological data from a monitoring station located nearby the project site (Zvartnots Airport) have been analyzed. The data set includes information such as wind speed and direction, cloud cover, temperature, sensible heat flux, surface roughness, etc.

Figure 4-3 presents the wind rose for the years 2014 to 2016. It shows that the prevailing winds blow from northeast (NE). The wind rose also indicates that the more frequent wind speeds are between 1.5 and 3 m/sec, which is equivalent, in the Beaufort scale, to the levels "light air" and "light breeze".



Figure 4-3: Wind rose for the years 2014-2016 (wind blowing from)

4.3 Terrain data

To account for the different heights above sea level of the sensitive receptors and the plants, terrain data were acquired. These allow a 3D representation of the terrain of the assessment area and a more accurate simulation of the pollutants' distribution. Figure 4-4 shows a representation of the area's terrain.



Figure 4-4: Representation of the terrain of the affected area

The project site is located at a height of ca. 930 masl. The terrain and the immediate surroundings are generally flat. Around 3 km to the east of the plant the terrain becomes more elevated where the Gegham mountains begin (Figure 4-5).







Figure 4-5: Landscape/terrain at the site and its surroundings (Fichtner, July 2017)

4.4 Emission Data

To the date of writing this report, emission data of YCCPP-1 and forecast emission data for YCCPP-2 could be obtained (see Table 4-1). Complete data for other neighboring plants could not be obtained, since these belong to companies unrelated to the developers of the Yerevan power plants 1 and 2, who shared only some limited information with the Client. Such data did not have enough detail to be used in the ADC.

- /	New YCCPP-2		Existing YCCPP-1		
Parameter	Value	Source	Value	Source	
Number of stacks	1		1		
Location of stacks [m: W/CS 94, Zono 397]	Easting: 457,128		Easting: 457,150		
	Northing: 4,440,461		Northing: 4,440,617		
Height of stacks [m]	35 - 66 (TBD)		45	Site visit	
Diameter of stacks (inner) [m]	6.23		6.7		
Flue gas exit temperature [K]	370	Tender	399		
Flue gas exit velocity [m/s]	20	specifications/Client	19		
Actual* flue gas exit flow [m ³ /s] per stack	606		670	Calculated based on information collected during the site visit	
Concentration CO [mg/Nm ³] dry, 15% O2	30		0.86	Client	
Concentration NO ₂ [mg/Nm ³] dry, 15% O2	50		43.4	Client	
Concentration UHC [mg/Nm ³] dry, 15% O2	10		-	-	
Emission rate CO [g/s] per stack	12.4	Calculated based	0.4		
Emission rate NO ₂ [g/s] per stack	20.6	on information provided by the	18.0	Calculated based on information provided by the Client	
Emission rate UHC [g/s] per stack	4.1	Cilent	NA	-	

TBD = To be determined

* Actual means at the actual conditions of temperature, pressure, moisture and O₂ content of the flue gas

Table 4-1:Emission data for YCCPP-2 and YCCPP-1

4.5 Baseline Air Quality Data - Summer and Autumn 2017; Winter 2017/2018

A baseline air quality assessment has been undertaken in July/August 2017 (Summer), October/November 2017 (Autumn), and December 2017/January 2018 (Winter) in the Project Area of Influence, including the specific areas where the highest pollution levels resulting from the operation of the YCCPP - 2 are expected.

The primary objective of this assessment was to determine if the Project's airshed is degraded or non-degraded. A degraded airshed is one where the applicable air quality standards are exceeded (IFC, 2007). With this objective, the ground level concentrations (GLC) of PM_{10} , SO_2 and NO_2 have been monitored in 5 different locations as shown in Figure 4-6. Although PM_{10} and SO_2 are virtually not expected to be emitted by the YCCPP - 2, it is important to determine their concentrations to assess whether the airshed is degraded or not.



Baseline monitoring - Air Quality

Figure 4-6: Baseline Monitoring Points - Air Quality

The measurement point Air 1 is situated in industrial area near the southeast border of YCCPP - 1, between the local Firefighters Training Center and an abandoned production facility. The measurement point Air 2 is placed approx. 1,700 m to the south-west of YCCPP - 2; it is located near the northeast border of the Ayntap community between the cemetery and private cultivated gardens. Points Air 1 and Air 2 are located downwind the main wind direction. The measurement point Air 3 is placed in an industrial area near the northern border of the YCCPP - 2. The points Air 4 and Air 5 have been defined after one test model run, being located in the areas where the highest GLC of NO₂ resulting from the operation of YCCPP - 2 are expected.

4.5.1 PM₁₀

The complete reports of the measurements of PM_{10} can be found in Annex 1 to this ADC.

The dust concentration was measured by using the dust particle meter DT-96 in accordance with the GOST 17.2.4.05-83 - "Environmental protection. Atmosphere. Gravimetric method for determination of suspended dust particles".

The equipment collected 5 daily measurements of 5 minutes along 5 days between 27.07.2017 and 05.08.2017 (Summer), along 5 days between 28.10.2017 and 04.11.2017 (Autumn), and along 30 days between 17.12.2017 and 03.02.2018 (Winter). The results are presented in Table 4-2.

The baseline data for PM_{10} has been collected as averages of 5 minutes sampled 5 times per day, meaning that 25 minutes of data have been sampled per day. Electronic equipment to undertake continuous monitoring like the ones used, for example, in the European Union, is not readily available in Armenia. Monitoring with such equipment would allow a direct comparison of the measured values with the air quality standards. Because such equipment is not available, such comparison is hindered. One can however state, as a reasonable approximation, that the averaged values assessed on these campaigns correspond to approximations of 1 hour averages. The corresponding daily (24hr) and annual (1yr) averages are expected to be lower than the presented 1 hour averages.

According to the results shown in Table 4-2, the air quality standards for PM_{10} are presently respected in the area.

	PM ₁₀ [µg/m ³]	PM₁₀ [µg/m³]	PM ₁₀ [μg/m ³]	Air Qu	؛ ality [µg/ı	Standa n³]	ards	
Point	Average 5 mins in 5	Average 5 mins in 5	Average 5 mins in 30	Natio MA	onal C	EC	D	
	days Summer 17	days Autumn 17	days Winter 17/18	Max.	24 hr	24 hr	1 yr	
Air 1	11.4	17.7	6.3					
Air 2	18.2	21.0	6.6					
Air 3	18.2	28.6	6.4	300	60	50	40	
Air 4	N.A.	18.4	6.0					
Air 5	N.A.	23.4	6.1					

N.A. = Not Available

Table 4-2:Baseline air quality measurement results - PM10

4.5.2 SO₂ and NO₂

The complete reports of the measurements of gases $(SO_2 \text{ and } NO_2)$ can be found in Annex 2 to this ADC.

The baseline concentration of gases in the project area has been measured with diffusion tubes, which is the method used in the national monitoring network. The tubes have been placed in monitoring points Air 1 to Air 5 for 7 days in Summer, 10 days in Autumn and 30 days in Winter. The resulting GLC has been determined in the Laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection (Table 4-3 and Table 4-4).

	NO ₂ [μg/m ³]	NO ₂ [μg/m ³]	NO ₂ [μg/m ³]	Air Q	uality : [µg/ı	Standa m³]	rds			
Point	Average 7 days	Average 10 days	Average 30 days	Natio MA	onal \C	EC	D			
	Summer 17	Autumn 17	Winter 17/18	Max.	24 hr	1 hr	1 yr			
Air 1	16.0	4.3	15.8							
Air 2	11.9	4.7	16.0							
Air 3	21.3	4.5	20.2	200	40	200	40			
Air 4	20.1	4.7	16.7							
Air 5	9.2	4.7	19.4							

 Table 4-3:
 Baseline air quality measurement results - NO2

	SO ₂ [µg/m ³]	SO ₂ [µg/m ³]	SO ₂ [µg/m ³]	Air Q	uality [µg/	Stand m³]	ards
Point	Average 7 days	Average 10 days	Average 30 days	Natio MA	onal C	E	CD
	Summer 17	Autumn 17	Winter 17/18	Max.	24 hr	1 hr	24 hr
Air 1	19.4	18.7	25.4				
Air 2	22.1	26.7	17.6				
Air 3	28.4	19.7	23.2	500	50	350	125
Air 4	N.A.	26.2	17.1				
Air 5	N.A.	33.5	26.0				

N.A. = Not Available

 Table 4-4:
 Baseline air quality measurement results - SO2

The Autumn measurements of NO_2 show a significant difference to those of the other seasons. This may be explained by the rainy weather that was felt during the Autumn measurement campaign. The Winter and the Summer averages are not significantly different, unlike what would be expected (i.e., it is normally expected that the GLC of pollutants in Winter are higher). This may be explained by the abnormally mild weather felt in Yerevan during the Winter sampling period (see Annex 3 for related temperature graphics).

The baseline data for gases has been collected as averages of several days. Electronic equipment to undertake continuous monitoring like the ones used, for example, in the European Union, is not readily available in Armenia. Monitoring with such equipment would allow a direct comparison of the measured values with the air quality standards. Because such equipment is not available, such comparison is hindered. One can however state, as a reasonable approximation, that the averaged values assessed on each monitoring point correspond to approximations of 24 hour averages.

According to the results shown in Tables 4-3 and 4-4, the national and international 24 hr air quality standards for SO_2 and NO_2 are presently respected in the area. The following section depicts a calculation of the 1 hour and annual averages of NO_2 based on a recognized U.S. EPA methodology.

4.5.3 Treatment of the baseline data - NO₂

NO₂ baseline data needs to be used as an input to the model with the objective of assessing the cumulative impacts of the YCCPP-2 in the hourly and annual NO₂ ground level concentrations. As described in the previous section, the concentrations resulting from the monitoring campaign can be approximated to daily (24 hr) averages. Based on EPA, 1992, the following

multiplying factor has been developed to convert the 24 hr averages into 1 hr averages:

Multiplying F	actor - to	convert 24	hr to	1 hr
---------------	------------	------------	-------	-------------

2.5

Table 4-5:Multiplying factor to convert 24 hour concentrations to 1 hrconcentrations (adapted from EPA, 1992)

The conversion of 1 hour averages into other averaging periods can be done as well. In the present case, there is the need to estimate annual averages. This is done by applying the multiplying factor shown in Table 4-6 below to the 1 hr value.

Averaging period	Multiplying Factor - to convert 1 hr to other averaging periods
Annual	0.08

Table 4-6:Multiplying factor for point sources to convert 1 hour concentrationsto annual periods (EPA, 1992)

In order to assess the cumulative impacts of the YCCPP-2 in the worse case scenario possible, the highest GLC detected during the sampling period are used to represent the baseline/existing 24 hr concentrations. The 1 hr and 1 yr concentrations are calculated based on the multiplying factors shown in the previous tables. The results are found below. They show that presently all national and international standards are respected in the area.

Point	NO lug/m^{3}				Air Quality Standards [µg/m³]			
		National MAC		ECD				
	24 hr (measured highest value) *	1 hr (calculated) **	Annual (calculated) ***	Max.	24 hr	1 hr	1 yr	
Air 1	16.0	40.0	3.2	200	40	200	40	
Air 2	16.0	40.0	3.2					
Air 3	21.3	53.2	4.3					
Air 4	20.1	50.2	4.0					
Air 5	19.4	48.5	3.9					

* See Table 4-3

** Using the multiplying factor shown in Table 4-5

*** Using the multiplying factor shown in Table 4-6

Table 4-7:Measured and calculated NO2 baseline concentrations in the projectarea

4.5.4 Baseline assessment - conclusion and future work

The results show that the airshed surrounding the future YCCPP - 2 can be classified as **non-degraded** regarding the pollutants PM_{10} , SO_2 and NO_2 . New monitoring campaigns will be undertaken in Spring 2018 to capture the seasonal variations in the pollutant's GLC, and reinforce or adapt this conclusion.

5. Air Dispersion Calculation

5.1 Air Quality Model

The Air Dispersion Calculation was performed using the dispersion modeling software BREEZE AERMOD, version 8.0.0.39 (from 2017), which predicts pollutant concentrations from continuous point, flare, area, line, volume and open pit sources. This steady-state plume model is a US-EPA Regulatory Model.

The simulations performed with BREEZE AERMOD for each of the pollutants CO and NO_2 result in worst case scenarios, that is, the software outputs the maximum concentrations expected to be found in the area due to the operation of the plants.

The NO₂ results were obtained after application of the following ratios to the simulations of NOx:

- Short term (1 hour) NO₂ results are calculated by applying a rate of 50% to the modeled short term NOx results;
- Long term (annual) NO₂ results are assumed to be 100% of the modeled long term NOx results.

This approach is valid for short range modeling and is recommended by the Air Quality Modelling and Assessment Unit from the United Kingdom's Environment Agency as a worst case approach¹. Such conversion ratios are only considered appropriate for combustion processes, where no more than 10% of the emitted NOx is in form of NO₂. This is applicable for the project at hand.

One of the objectives of the ADC is determining the height that the stacks of the plant shall have so that the national and international air quality standards (AQS) are fulfilled at the next receptor points in every scenario. Three stack heights are considered: 35 meters (as planned by design), 43 meters (alternative design 1) and 66 meters (alternative design 2).

5.2 Calculation Scenarios

Altogether 3 scenarios are simulated:

- Baseline scenario, or **Scenario A** considers only the baseline air quality data collected in the area for NO₂; for CO, it considers the contribution of YCCPP-1.
- Project scenario, or **Scenario B** considers the isolated operation of YCCPP-2;

¹ <u>http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140328232919/http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/static/documents/Conversion_ratios_for__NOx_and_NO2_.pdf</u>

Cumulative scenario, or Scenario C - considers the baseline air quality data *and* the operation of the YCCPP-2 (determination of cumulative impacts) for NO₂; for CO, it considers the operation of YCCPP - 1 and YCCPP - 2.

Each of the scenarios is simulated for a stack height of 35 meters (design), for a stack height of 43 meters (alternative design 1), and for a stack height of 66 meters (alternative design 2).

5.2.1 Note on Scenarios A and C

In respect for international requirements, it is important to understand the quality of the airshed before the project is implemented (baseline - Scenario A). Only considering the baseline it is possible to understand the cumulative impact of the project (Scenario C). In simple terms, the following applies:

Scenario C = Scenario A + Scenario B

The baseline (Scenario A) can be determined in two alternative ways:

- a) Data regarding all surrounding industries and other emission sources is made available, and given as an input to the model; the model will then simulate the impacts of the existing sources in the air quality in the area; *or*
- b) An air quality monitoring campaign is undertaken at site.

For CO:

The contribution of all other surrounding sources for the existing CO GLC (option a) could not be considered, due to a lack of important technical and emission data - only data for YCCPP-1 was made available. For this reason, for this pollutant Scenarios A and C are indicative only. Considering the usually very low ambient concentrations of CO, and the comparably very permissive ambient air quality standards, this approximation is deemed to be acceptable, and an air quality campaign for CO was not undertaken.

For NO₂:

In the same way as for CO, the contribution of all other surrounding sources for the existing NO₂ GLC (option a) could not be considered, due to a lack of important technical and emission data - only data for YCCPP-1 was made available. For this reason, Fichtner undertook a baseline air quality monitoring campaign in Summer 2017, Autumn 2017, and Winter 2017/2018 (option b). The <u>highest GLC sampled in each monitoring point</u> are used to represent Scenario A for this pollutant.

5.3 Buildings and downwash effects

The term "building downwash" describes the effect that wind flowing over or around buildings has on pollutant plumes released from nearby stacks. Essentially, buildings create a cavity of recirculating winds in the area near the buildings, and these building cavities cause increased vertical dispersion of plumes emitted from stacks on or near the buildings. Building downwash often leads to elevated concentrations downwind of affected stacks (Wanger, A., 2011).

For the present ADC, a 3D model of the main buildings of both power plants YCCPP-1 and YCCPP-2 has been set up and included in the model in order to account for eventual downwash effects. Based on this, AERMOD calculated the Good Engineering Practice stack height - GEP stack height following the recommendations of the IFC EHS guidelines. The GEP stack height is the one that avoids the creation of downwash effects. For the case of YCCPP-2, the GEP stack height is of 66 meters.

5.4 ADC Results

This Section contains the results of the simulations performed with BREEZE AERMOD for each of the pollutants CO and NO_2 for all the different averaging periods for which the applicable standards are defined.

The results are presented in the form of:

- Tables showing the **maximum simulated ground level concentrations** (GLC) in the assessment area for all scenarios. The respective comparison with the Air Quality Standards is made. The tables show in addition the percentage of the AQS which the maximum GLC represent.
- Plot maps of the maximum simulated GLC for selected outputs.

It is **important to note** that the results shown represent maximum GLC. The maximum GLC are expected in different times and locations for each scenario. This implies that there is not a direct correlation between the maximum GLCs simulated for the three scenarios.

As explained in Section 3.2, to assess compliance with national requirements only the short-time MACs are evaluated (the short time MAC for CO is $5,000 \ \mu\text{g/m}^3$ and for NO₂ is $200 \ \mu\text{g/m}^3$). On the other hand, to assess compliance with international requirements, the fulfillment of all defined applicable AQS is assessed.

5.4.1 CO - Short-time MAC

The national legislation defines a short-time MAC for CO of 5,000 μ g/m³. A definition of "short-time" is given in the national legislation as a 2 hours period. In this study the comparison is made with the simulated 1-hour values. The ECD does not define a 1-hour AQS for CO.

The comparison of the model results with the national MAC shows that the MAC is expected to be respected throughout the entire assessment area in all scenarios for all stack heights (Table 5-1). The contribution of YCCPP-2 represents less than 25% of the applicable AQS (i.e., 1.9% for 35 meters stack, 1.8% for 43 meters stack, and 1.1% for 66 meters stack), being in line with IFC's recommendation for a future sustainable development in the area.

Time period	CO maxin	Air Quality Standards [μg/m³]						
	Stack YCCPP- 2: 35 m (original design)	Stack YCCPP-2: 43 m (alternative design)	Stack YCCPP-2: 66 m (GEP stack height)	National MAC	ECD			
Indicative SCENARIO A - Only YCCPP-1								
1 hour / Short time	2.0	2.0	2.0	5,000	-			
SCENARIO B - Only YCCPP-2								
1 hour /	92.5	88.5	53.9	5 000				
Short time	% of the AQS: 1.9%	% of the AQS: 1.8%	% of the AQS: 1.1%	5,000	-			
Indicative SCENARIO C - YCCPP-1 + YCCPP-2								
1 hour / Short time	93.9	89.9	55.2	5,000	-			
Standard is not exceeded Standard is exceeded								
Table 5-1: Maximum simulated 1 hr CO GLC and comparison with the air								



The concentration plots for the simulation of the Scenario C with a 66 meters stack (Figure 5-1 and Figure 5-2) show that the higher values are found in the areas to the east and southeast of the power plants' area. All the high values are below the AQS.



Figure 5-1: Maximum simulated 1 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects - YCCPP-1 + YCCPP-2



Figure 5-2: Maximum simulated 1 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects - YCCPP-1 + YCCPP-2 - closer view of the higher values

FICHTNER

5.4.2 CO - 8 hours International AQS

The ECD defines an 8-hours air quality standard for CO, unlike the Armenian legislation. The model results (Table 5-2) show that no difficulties are expected regarding fulfillment of this standard in any of the scenarios.

The contribution of YCCPP-2 represents less than 25% of the applicable AQS for all stack heights (i.e., 0.6% and 0.3%), being in line with IFC's recommendation for a future sustainable development in the area.

	CO maxim	Air Quality Standards [µg/m³]					
Time period	Stack YCCPP-2: 35 m (original design)	Stack YCCPP- 2: 43 m (alternative design)	Stack YCCPP-2: 66 m (GEP stack height)	National MAC	ECD		
Indicative SCENARIO A - Only YCCPP-1							
8 hours	0.98	0.98	0.98	-	10,000		
SCENARIO B - Only YCCPP 2							
	59.5	57.8	30.9	-	10,000		
8 hours	% of the AQS: 0.6%	% of the AQS: 0.6%	% of the AQS: 0.3%				
Indicative SCENARIO C - YCCPP-1 + YCCPP 2							
8 hours	60.3	58.6	31.8	-	10,000		
Standard is not exceeded Standard is exceeded							

Table 5-2:Maximum simulated 8 hr CO GLC and comparison with the air
quality standards

The concentration plots for Scenario C (66 meters stack height) (Figure 5-3 and Figure 5-4) show that the absolute cumulative maximum of $31.8 \ \mu g/m^3$ is found in the areas to the east and southeast of the power plants' area. All the high values are below the AQS.



Figure 5-3: Maximum simulated 8 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects - YCCPP-1 + YCCPP 2

FICHTNER



Figure 5-4: Maximum simulated 8 hr CO GLC - indicative cumulative effects - YCCPP-1 + YCCPP-2 - closer view of the higher values

5.4.3 NO₂ - Short-time MAC and 1 hour International AQS

The national legislation defines a short-time MAC for NO₂ of 200 μ g/m³. A definition of "short-time" is given in the national legislation as a 2 hours period. In this study the comparison is made with the simulated 1-hour values. The ECD defines a 1 hour standard of 200 μ g/m³ for NO₂.

Table 5-4 shows that the maximum modeled 1 hr NO_2 GLCs are expected to be below the national and the international standards throughout the entire assessment area for all scenarios and all stack heights.

The results of Scenario B show that the effect of YCCPP-2 is expected to represent more than 25% of the standards for a 35 meters stack (i.e., 38.5%) and for a 43 meters stack (i.e. 36.7%), but less than 25% of the standards for a 66 meters stack. In other words, if the power plant is built with a GEP stack height, the IFC recommendation for a future sustainable development in the area is respected.

	NO ₂ maxir	Air Quality Standards [µg/m³]					
Time period	Stack YCCPP- 2: 35 m (original design)	P- Stack YCCPP- 2: 43 m (alternative design) Stack YCCPP- 2: 66 m (GEP stack height)		National MAC	ECD		
SCENARIO A - Baseline data							
1 hour / Short time	40.0 - 53.2	40.0 - 53.2	40.0 - 53.2	200	200 18 times/year		
SCENARIO B - Only YCCPP-2							
1 hour /	77	73.5	44.7	200	200 18 times/year		
Short time	% of the AQS: 38.5%	% of the AQS: 36.7%	% of the AQS: 22.3%	200			
SCENARIO C - Cumulative impacts							
1 hour / Short time	127.0 - 130.2	113.5 - 126.7	84.7 - 97.9	200	200 18 times/year		
Standard is not exceeded Standard is exceeded							

Table 5-3:Maximum simulated 1 hr NO2 GLC and comparison with the air
quality standards

Figure 5-5 (overview) and Figure 5-6 (close-up) show the maximum concentration plots for Scenario B with a 66 meters stack height. The plots show that the higher values are expected to be found in the industrial and residential areas to the east and to the southeast of the YCCPP-1 and 2. These higher values are, however, below the national MAC and the international AQS.



Figure 5-5: Maximum simulated 1 hr NO₂ GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only



Figure 5-6: Maximum simulated 1 hr NO₂ GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only- closer view of the higher values

FICHTNER
5.4.4 NO₂ - Annual International AQS

The predicted annual NO_2 values in the project area are very low. The comparison with the applicable air quality standard (only ECD) reveals that this is not expected to be exceeded (Table 5-4).

The maximum increment in the NO_2 annual mean represents far less than 25% of the ECD AQS, which respects IFC's dispositions regarding future sustainable development in the area.

	NO ₂ maximu	m modeled GL	.C [µg/m³]	Air Quality Standards [µg/m ³]	
Time period	Stack YCCPP- 2: 35 m (original design)Stack YCCPP-2: 43 		Stack YCCPP-2: 66 m (GEP stack height)	National MAC	ECD
SCENARIO A	- Baseline data				
1 year	3.2 - 4.3	3.2 - 4.3	3.2 - 4.3	-	40
SCENARIO B	- Only YCCPP 2				
	1.0	1.0	0.8		
1 year	% of the AQS: 2.5%	% of the AQS: 2.5%	% of the AQS: 2.0%	-	40
SCENARIO C	 Cumulative imp 	pacts			
1 vear	4.2 - 5.3	4.2 - 5.3	4.0 - 5.1	-	40
Standard is not exceeded Standard is exceeded					

Table 5-4:Maximum simulated annual NO2 GLC and comparison with the air
quality standards

Figure 5-7 and Figure 5-8 show the maximum GLC plots for Scenario B (only YCCPP-2) for a 66 meters stack. The plots show that the maximum GLC are expected very close to the power plant. These maximum GLC are below the applicable standard.



Figure 5-7: Maximum simulated 1 yr NO₂ GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only



Figure 5-8: Maximum simulated 1 yr NO₂ GLC - Scenario B - YCCPP 2 only - closer view of the higher values

6. Summary of the results

The present ADC allows understanding what is the expected impact of the YCCPP-2 on the airshed of Yerevan.

In respect for international requirements, it is important to understand the quality of the airshed before the project is implemented (**baseline**). Only considering the baseline it is possible to understand the **cumulative impact** of the project. Baseline data have been collected in Summer 2017, Autumn 2017 and Winter 2017/2018 in the project area with this objective. They show that the airshed in the area is non-degraded.

Altogether **3 scenarios** were simulated:

- Baseline scenario, or Scenario A;
- Project scenario, or Scenario B;
- Cumulative scenario, or Scenario C.

Each of the scenarios was simulated for a stack height of **35 meters** (design), for a stack height of **43 meters** (alternative), and for a stack height of **66 meters** (alternative 2, or Good Engineering Practice (GEP) stack height). To keep up with best international practice, the YCCPP-2 will be built with a 66 m stack height.

The simulation of **CO** shows that all applicable international and national air quality standards are foreseen to be fulfilled in the area in all scenarios for all stack heights.

The maximum simulated GLCs of CO derived from the operation of YCCPP-2 only (Scenario B) represent less than 25% of all applicable air quality standards for all scenarios and for all stack heights investigated.

The maximum modeled NO_2 GLCs are expected to be below the national and the international AQS throughout the entire assessment area for all scenarios and for all stack heights.

The maximum modeled NO₂ 1 hr GLC as a result of the operation of YCCPP-2 only (Scenario B) represent less than 25% of the applicable standards only when considering a stack height of 66 meters. The annual GLC of NO₂ is kept below 25% of the applicable standards for all stack heights.

7. Conclusion

The ADC presents the simulation of the individual impact and the cumulative impact of the YCCPP-2 on the surrounding airshed. The results show that the national and international air quality standards for CO and NO₂ are expected to be fulfilled in all cases.

The fulfillment of IFC's specific requirements for a future sustainable development in the area is only achieved if a stack height of 66 meters is built (GEP stack height). The Client has committed to implement this measure into the design.

8. References

IFC, 2007: Environmental, Health, and Safety Guidelines - General EHS Guidelines: Air Emissions and Ambient Air Quality, International Finance Corporation, April 2007

IFC, 2008: *Environmental, Health, and Safety Guidelines for Thermal Power Plants*, International Finance Corporation, December 2008

U.S. EPA, 1992: Screening Procedures for Estimating the Air Quality Impact of Stationary Sources. EPA-454/R-92-019. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711

Wanger, A., 2011: Dispersion Modeling: new downwash calculations change the playing field, November 2011. Available at: http://www.trinityconsultants.com/Templates/TrinityConsultants/News/Article.aspx?id=3670

WHO, 2003: Air Quality and Health in Eastern Europe, Caucasus and Central Asia - Report on the WHO Workshop, World Health Organization, St. Petersburg, Russian Federation, 13 - 14 October 2003

WHO, 2006: Air quality guidelines - global update 2005, Summary of risk assessment, World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerland, 2006

9. Annexes

9.1 Annex 1: PM₁₀ Baseline Studies



Project: Environmental and Social Impact Assessment for a Combined Cycle Power Plant - Yerevan 2

Project Nº: 8559P01

Noise and PM10 Baseline Study

Report

Rev01

Prepared for Fichtner GmbH & Co. KG

Prepared by "ATMS Solutions" Ltd.

August, 2017

Contents

1.	Introduction	3
2.	Objective of the Study	4
3.	Measurement Methodology and Equipment	4
3.1	Measuring Equipment and Software	4
3.1.1	Noise Measurement	4
3.1.2	2 PM10 Measurement	5
4.	Normative Framework	5
4.1	Sanitary Norms for Noise	5
4.2	Environmental Norms for Dust	6
5.	Description of Measurement Points	6
6.	Measurement Results and Evaluation	11
Main	Conclusions	15
ANN	EX 1. Map of measurement points	16
ANN	EX 2. Verification documents of measuring devices	17

Rev01

1. Introduction

Within the Main Contract between ARMPOWER SJSC (hereinafter - Client) and Fichtner GmbH & Co. KG (hereinafter - Employer) the latter has signed a subcontractor agreement with ATMS Solutions Ltd. (hereinafter - Contractor) to conduct the following tasks:

- Task I. Noise measurements
- Task II. PM10¹ measurements
- Reporting.

Noise and PM10 measurement points have been selected by the Employer and presented in Annex 1. Quantities, durations and times (day-time / night-time) of noise and PM10 measurements were also defined by the Employer and presented below in Table 1.

Table 1. Measurement pre-conditions

Measurement point	Measuring parameters	Time of measurement	Quantity, measurements	Duration	Total quantity, measurements
Noise measure	ments				20
Work-day					10
Naisa 1	Noise, wind speed	Day-time/	1	1 hour	0
NOISE I	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Noise 2	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Naise O	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
Noise 3	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Nation 4	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
NOISE 4	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Naiss E	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
Noise 5	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Weekend					10
Noise 1	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	•
Noise 2	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	•
Noise 3	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Nation 4	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
NOISE 4	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
Naiss E	Noise, wind speed	Day-time	1	1 hour	0
NOISE 5	Noise, wind speed	Night-time	1	1 hour	2
PM10 measure	ments				75
Air 1	PM10, temperature, RH ²	Day-time	5 x 5 ³	5 min⁴	25
Air 2	PM10, temperature, RH	Day-time	5 x 5	5 min	25
Air 3	PM10, temperature, RH	Day-time	5 x 5	5 min	25

¹ Particle matters with 10 µm size

² Relative humidity

³ 5 measurements per day during the 5 days

⁴ 5 minutes for each measurement

Rev01

2. Objective of the Study

The objective of the Study is to conduct instrumental measurements of noise levels and PM10 concentrations at the points around the Yerevan 2 Power Plant, which are expected to be impacted during the construction and operation stages. The measurement points have been selected by the Employer (see Annex 1). The study results should be reported to the Employer.

This Noise and PM10 Baseline Study Report (hereinafter - Study Report) provides an overview of the measurement process and equipment, description of the measurement (sensitive) points, noise and dust (PM10) national sanitary standards, a quantitative analysis, assessment of measurement results and main conclusions. The instrumental measurements were conducted between the 27.07.2017-05.08.2017 at five 5 noise and 3 air sensitive points.

3. Measurement Methodology and Equipment

3.1 Measuring Equipment and Software

3.1.1 Noise Measurement

Instrumental measurements of noise levels are performed using a Sound Level Meter (SLM) "WS1361". The SLM consists of a microphone, electronic circuits and a readout display. The microphone detects the small air pressure variations associated with sound and transforms them into electrical signals. Afterwards, these signals are processed by the electronic circuitry of the instrument. The readout displays the sound level in decibels. The duration of each noise measurement is 1 hour.

The SLM has SLOW and FAST response options. The response rate is the time period over which the instrument averages the sound level before displaying it on the readout. Usually measurements of background noise are taken in the SLOW response mode.

Data on the State verification, as well as technical characteristics of the Sound level meter are listed in Verification certificate that presented in Annex 2. The verification date of the device is 16.05.2017. It is valid until 16.05.2018.

The SLM has the following technical characteristics:

- Measurement range: 30÷130 dB (sub-ranges: 30÷80, 40÷90, 50÷100, 60÷110, 70÷120, 80÷130, 30÷130),
- Frequency Range: 31.5÷8500 Hz,
- Accuracy: ±1.5 dB.

In order to ensure continuous measurements over a certain period of time and further analysis of the results, the SLM WS1361 is connected to a tablet. The special software installed in the tablet allows to record noise levels with one second frequency and provides complete information on the noise level (both in digital imaging and as a graph), including the minimum, maximum and average values of the sound level.

The wind speed during the noise measurements have been determined by the Microclimate parameters measuring device "Meteoscop". Data on the State verification, as well as technical characteristics of "Meteoscop" are listed in Verification certificate (see Annex 2) and summarized below:

 Measurement range of wind speed: 0.1~20 m/sec, Accuracy: ±(0.05+0.05V), if wind speed is up to 1m/sec and ±(0.1+0.05V), if wind speed is between 1÷20m/sec,

Rev01

- Measurement range of temperature: between -10 and + 50°C, Accuracy: ±0.2,
- Measurement range of relative humidity: between 3 and 97%, Accuracy: ±3,
- The verification date of the device is 16.05.2017. It is valid until 16.05.2018.

3.1.2 PM10 Measurement

Dust concentration is measured by using of Dust particle meter DT-96. This device is equipped with 2.5um and 10um size channels to measure PM2.5 and PM10 simultaneously as well as air temperature and relative humidity. The duration of each PM10 measurement is 5 minutes. The obtained data is analyzed and compared with corresponding threshold limit value.

Technical parameters of the device are listed below:

- Concentration measurement: 0~2000 ug/m³, resolution: 1 ug/m³,
- Temperature range: 0~50°C, resolution: 1°C, accuracy: ±0.1°C,
- Humidity Range: 0 to 100% RH, accuracy: ±5% RH, 0~20% RH, 80~100% RH; ±3.5% RH, 20~80% RH.

The verification of Dust particle meter is conducted by manufacturer on 08.08.2016 and valid till 08.08.2017 (Annex 2).

4. Normative Framework

4.1 Sanitary Norms for Noise

Noise instrumental measurements, analysis and evaluation of results were carried out in accordance with the following regulations/standards:

- RoA Sanitary Norms №2-III-11.3 "Noise in the workplaces, in residential and public buildings and in residential construction areas" adopted by the order of RoA⁵ Minister of Health №138 on 06.03.2002,
- Guidelines for Community Noise, World Health Organization (WHO), 1999.

As criteria for determination of the conformity level of the actual noise in identified measurement points, the normative value of the equivalent (average) sound level is used, according to the RoA Sanitary Norms Nº2-III-11.3 "Noise in the workplaces, in residential and public buildings and housing in construction areas" as well as WHO's Guidelines for Community Noise (see Table 2).

Table 2. Threshold limit value (TLV) for noise

N⁰	Premises and territories	Time	TLV (equivalent to sound level), dBA
4		07:00-22:00 Day-time	70
1	Industrial and commercial areas	22:00-07:00 Night-time	70
2	Territories adjacent to residential buildings, clinics, ambulatories, rest houses, care homes, disabled persons homes, libraries,	06:00-22:00 Day-time	55

⁵ Republic of Armenia

⁶ Source: WHO's Guidelines for Community Noise

Rev01

kinder gardens, schools and other educational facilities ⁷ 22:00-06:00 A5 Night-time	N⁰	Premises and territories	Time	TLV (equivalent to sound level), dBA
		kinder gardens, schools and other educational facilities ⁷	22:00-06:00 Night-time	45

4.2 Environmental Norms for Dust

The PM10 measurements were conducted and evaluated in accordance with the following normative documentation acting in the Republic of Armenia:

- GOST 17.2.4.05-83. "Environmental protection. Atmosphere. Gravimetric method for determination of suspended dust particles",
- RoA Government Decree №160-N. "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations (MPC) of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas".

The maximum permissible concentrations of PM10, including daily average values are defined by the RoA Government Decree Nº160-N and summarized below in Table 3.

Table 3. Daily average and maximum permissible concentrations (MPC) for PM10

NO	Name of substance	MPC (mg/m ³)			
IN-		Max	Daily average		
1	PM10	0.3	0.06		

5. Description of Measurement Points

The given Study Report presents results of noise levels and PM10 concentration measurements for the points defined by the Employer (see Annex 1) and described below. Totally, 20 noise instrumental measurements were conducted at 5 points and 75 PM10 measurements were carried out at 3 points.

<u>Noise 1, Air 2</u>

Measurement points Noise 1 and Air 2 are placed approx. 1700m to the south-west from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site. These points are located near the northeast border of Ayntap community between the cemetery and private cultivated garden (see Figures 1, 2).

Noise 2

Measurement point Noise 2 is situated at the distance of approx. 1750m to the west from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site. The point Noise 2 is located on the eastern border of Noragavit settlement in front of the highway, connecting the capital Yerevan with the M2 roadway (see Figure 3).

Noise 3 and Noise 5

Measurement points Noise 3 and Noise 5 are located in Kharberd horticultural settlement. Both points are situated along the northern border of the settlement. Noise 5 is the closest point to the CCPP Yerevan-2 site, at the distance of approx. 1100m, while the distance between the point Noise 3 and Project site is 1500m (see Figures 4, 5).

Noise 4, Air 3

⁷ Source: Sanitary Norms Nº 2-III-11.3 "Noise in the workplaces, in residential and public buildings and in residential construction areas"

Rev01

Measurement points Noise 4 and Air 3 are placed in industrial area near the northern border of the CCPP Yerevan-2 site (see Figures 6, 7).

<u>Air 1</u>

Measurement point Air 1 is situated in industrial area near the southeast border of current Yerevan-1 thermal power plant, between the fire brigade and abandoned production facility (see Figure 8).

Figure 1. Measurement process at point Noise 1



Figure 2. Measurement process at point Air 2



Figure 3. Measurement process at point Noise 2



Figure 4. Measurement process at point Noise 3



Figure 5. Measurement process at point Noise 5



Figure 6. Measurement process at point Noise 4



Figure 7. Measurement process at point Air 3



Figure 8. Measurement process at point Air 2



Rev01

6. Measurement Results and Evaluation

Noise and PM10 measuring results are summarized in Table 4 (for noise) and Table 5 (for PM10) correspondingly. Diagrams, demonstrating equivalent noise levels at measurement points compared with the TLV are shown in Figures 9-11. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations in comparison with the MPCs (maximum and daily average) are presented in Figures 12-14.

Point of measurement	Wind speed (m/ s)	Time of measurement	Leq(A), dB(A)	TLV (equivalent to sound level), dB(A)	Compliance
Work-day					
Noise 1	< 1.7	Day-time	49.8	55	
	< 1.8	Night-time	47.1	45	
Naine O	< 1.9	Day-time	72.6	55	
NOISE 2	< 2.3	Night-time	62.4	45	
Noise 3	< 1.8	Day-time	48.1	55	
	< 1.7	Night-time	40.0	45	
Noise 4	< 1.6	Day-time	53.6	70	
	< 1.9	Night-time	57.3	70	
Naisa F	< 1.7	Day-time	36.2	55	
NUISE 5	< 2.0	Night-time	39.4	45	
Weekend					
Naisa 1	< 1.5	Day-time	43.4	55	
NOISE I	< 2.1	Night-time	49.0	45	
Noice 2	< 1.8	Day-time	72.8	55	
	< 2.5	Night-time	59.2	45	
Noico 2	< 1.9	Day-time	43.9	55	
NUISE 3	< 2.0	Night-time	33.9	45	
Noice 4	< 1.8	Day-time	56.4	70	
INUISE 4	< 2.0	Night-time	57.2	70	
Noico 5	< 1.5	Day-time	35.6	55	
	< 1.8	Night-time	34.2	45	

Table 4. Results of noise measurement

Table 5. Results of PM10 measurement

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
30.07.2017						
	38	20	0.014			
	38	21	0.011			
Air 1	38	20	0.01	0.3	0.06	
	39	19	0.01			
	38	19	0.011			
	39	22	0.02			
	39	20	0.041			
Air 2	39	20	0.021	0.3	0.06	
	39	21	0.021			
	38	20	0.019			
	38	22	0.022			
	38	21	0.017			
Air 3	39	21	0.013	0.3	0.06	
	39	20	0.013			
	38	19	0.016			
01.08.2017						
	37	22	0.013			
	37	21	0.01			
Air 1	38	21	0.011	0.3	0.06	
	38	19	0.012			
	38	21	0.014			

Point of	Tomporaturo	Polativo	DM10	MPC may	MPC daily	Compliance
measurement		humidity %	ma/m^3	ma/m^3	average mg/m ³	compliance
measurement	38	20	0.02	mg/ m	average, mg/ m	
	20	10	0.02			
A:# 0	39	19	0.010	0.0	0.00	
All 2	39	19	0.010	0.3	0.06	
	39	20	0.019			
	39	21	0.02			
	37	23	0.027			
A: 0	38	21	0.023			
Air 3	38	20	0.011	0.3	0.06	
	39	20	0.016			
	38	21	0.025			
02.08.2017						
	38	20	0.014			
	38	21	0.011			
Air 1	39	21	0.017	0.3	0.06	
	39	20	0.01			
	37	22	0.009			
	39	20	0.02			
	40	18	0.018			
Air 2	39	19	0.017	0.3	0.06	
	40	19	0.017			
	39	21	0.02			
	39	21	0.042			
	39	22	0.037		0.06	
Air 3	39	20	0.031	0.3		
	38	19	0.023			
	38	20	0.027			
03.08.2017						
	37	20	0.013		0.06	
	38	21	0.009			
Air 1	38	21	0.01	0.3		
	39	20	0.011			
	39	19	0.009			
	38	23	0.013			
	39	22	0.01			
Air 2	39	19	0.011	0.3	0.06	
	39	20	0.012			
	39	20	0.014			
	38	19	0.009			
	38	20	0.011			
Air 3	39	20	0.012	0.3	0.06	
	38	19	0.013			
	38	19	0.012			
05.08.2017						
	38	20	0.012			
	39	21	0.01			
Air 1	39	20	0.012	0.3	0.06	
	39	18	0.011			
	38	19	0.011			
	37	22	0.011			
	38	21	0.019			
Air 2	38	22	0.013	0.3	0.06	
	39	19	0.036			
	38	19	0.01			
	37	23	0.009			
	39	22	0.008			
Air 3	39	19	0.014	0.3	0.06	
	39	19	0.012	0.0	5.00	
	38	20	0.012			
	30	20	0.012			

Rev01

Figure 9. Diagram of noise equivalent levels at measurement points located in/ near the residential areas compared with the TLV in day-time



Figure 10. Diagram of noise equivalent levels at measurement points located in/ near the residential areas compared with the TLV in night-time







Rev01

Figure 12. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 1 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



Figure 13. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 2 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



Figure 14. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 3 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



Rev01

Main Conclusions

- During the study totally 20 noise measurements were conducted at 5 selected points, which means that 4 measurements were carried out at each point, including work-day and weekend day measurements at day-time and night-time.
- 2) As TLVs for evaluation of noise actual levels at measurement points in/near the residential areas (points: Noise 1, Noise 2, Noise 3 and Noise 5) 55 dBA and 45 dBA as equivalent noise levels for day-time and night-time correspondingly have been applied. For the measurement point Noise 4 (located in industrial area) 70 dBA TLV is applied.
- 3) Day-time noise evaluation

Based on the noise measurement results conducted during work-days and weekend days, it can be concluded that noise equivalent levels in/near the residential areas were generally within the TLV (Noise 1, Noise 3 and Noise 5), except the point Noise 2 (located in front of the highway), where the noise level exceeded the 55 dBA normative value (see Figure 9). This can be explained by the movement of heavy vehicles and high traffic density along the highway (see Figure 3).

4) Night-time noise evaluation

Equivalent noise levels during work-days and weekend days at measurement points Noise 3 and Noise 5 are within the 45 dBA TLV. Noise levels at point Noise 1 during both work-days and weekend days were slightly exceeding the TLV (2.1 dBA and 4 dBA accordingly). This is due to the availability of background night noise from the facilities located in the vicinities, probably from the industrial area near the CCPP site. As a result of night-time measurements, the equivalent noise level at point Noise 2 (located in front of the highway) is above the 45 dBA TLV (see Figure 10). The reason is high traffic density along the highway even at night-time.

- 5) Noise equivalent levels in industrial area near the CCPP site during work-days and weekend days, measured at day-time and night-time, are below the 70 dBA TLV (see Figure 11).
- 6) 75 instrumental measurements were conducted in 3 sensitive points (Air 1, Air 2 and Air 3) during 5 days to determine the PM10 actual concentration. 5 measurements were conducted at each point per day, which means that totally 25 PM10 measurements were carried out at each point. The results of the study were compared with PM permissible concentrations (maximal is 0.3 mg/m³ and daily average is 0.06 mg/m³).
- 7) PM10 (dust particles of 10um size) actual concentrations at all sensitive points (Air 1, Air 2 and Air 3) in different daytime periods don't exceed the daily average and maximum permissible concentrations for residential areas set by the RoA Government Decree №160-N "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas" (see Figures 12-14).

ANNEX 1. Map of measurement points



ANNEX 2. Verification documents of measuring devices

มายองการครับอายา ราการของการครับอายา เป็นเรื่องการสุดภาพายายาร เป็นเรื่องการสุดภาพายายาร เป็นเรื่องการการของการเป็นเรื่องการ เป็นเรื่องการการการการการการการการการการการการการก	
ปุปปี3ี่ปุปไป № 017243 บรกษณวนดบบน บนบะน	ปราวอาว ปราว ป ปราว ป ป ป ป ป ป ป ป ป ป
Ստուգաչափման թվականը։ 201 <u>-7թ. Of «///</u> » Ուժի մեջ է մինչև։ 201 <u>8 թ. Of «///</u> »	Ստուգաչափման թվականը 201 <u>7 թ. <i>Q.5</i> «<i>16</i>»</u> Ուժի մեջ է ծինչև 201 8 թ. Օ - 5 <i>"</i> « <i>16</i> »
Aufolia Upergo dulutanta a visco ala BBEK. 431110,02 C5	Chouse in Scher 12
9ηηδωριωθωμίο hú. 9ηηδωριωθωμίο hú. 2ωιηδιωθι σημητιμο στη ματικά (3-52) % μη. 2ωιηδιωθι σημητιμο στη ματικά (3-52) % μη. 2ωιηδια ματικά (3-52) % μη. 3ωιηδια ματικά (3-52) % μη. 3ωι ματικά (3-52) % μη. 3ωι ματικά (3-52) % μη. 3ωι ματι	Annownwuu uhu ho. μ/h Ωwhowu uhunupp (30 + 130)4+; (3452+2=8+5724)
	ճշտության դասը, կարգը (սխալանքը) 1, 5-դ-դ- Արտադրողը
muniulinia t her frankover the phantage and a shall all with all and any the	munipulinist - 434 Polo 25 Un jun 2:45 2005
Ստուգաչափման արդյունքների իիման վրա չափման միջոցը ճանաչվել է պիտանի և թույլատրվում է կիրառման։	Ստուգաչափման արդյունքների հիման վրա չափման միջոցը ճանաչվել է պիտանի և թույլատրվում է կիրառման։
Ստուգաչափումը կատարվել է իամաձայն Հրջ առոգաչախնան մեթողիկայի անվանումը, նշագիրը	Ստուգաչափումը կատարվել է համաձայն
Unnique Sternard States R.	Unniquesunhan 22 United a string a generation of a
Pudlip (jupppunnphusp)) Junpugnised Ungeringer &	Puduh (juppnpuunnphujh) <u>Milling</u> peretusnyoen jun
Գաստասված է էկոնունիկայի նախարարի՝ 14.02.2013թ. թիվ 104-Ն իրամանով Գրանցված է ԴԴ Արդարադատության նախարարության կողմից 21.03.2013թ. թիվ 10313102	Դաստատված է Էկոնոմիկայի նախարարի։ 14.02.2013թ. թիվ 104-Ն հրամանով Գրանցված է ԴԴ Արդարադատության նախարարության կողմից 21.03.2013թ. թիվ 10313102







Project: Environmental and Social Impact Assessment for a Combined Cycle Power Plant - Yerevan 2

Project №: 8559P01

PM10 Assessment Report

Rev01

Time Period: Autumn 2017

Prepared for RENCO ARMESTATE Ltd. and Fichtner GmbH & Co. KG

Prepared by "ATMS Solutions" Ltd.

November, 2017

Contents

1.	Introduction	3
2.	Objective of the study	3
3.	Measurement methodology and equipment	4
4.	Normative framework	4
4.1	Environmental norms	4
4.2	Wind directions	5
5.	Description of measurement points/sites	6
6.	Weather conditions	. 11
7.	Measurement results and evaluation	. 12
Mair	a conclusions	. 17
ANN	IEX 1. Map of measurement points	. 18
ANN	EX 2. Verification documents of measuring devices	. 19

Rev01

1. Introduction

Based on the service provision contract dated 27 of October 2017 between RENCO ARMESTATE Ltd. (hereinafter - Client) and ATMS Solutions Ltd. (hereinafter - Contractor) the latter has engaged to conduct PM10¹ measurements at the 5 points/sites during the 5 days and elaborate PM10 assessment report for the period autumn 2017.

PM10 measurement points/sites have been selected by the Client. The map with the indication of measurement points are presented in Annex 1. Quantities, durations and other parameters to be monitored in parallel with the PM measurements are given below in Table 1.

Measurement point	Measuring parameters	Time of measurement	Quantity, measurements	Duration, minutes ²	Total quantity, measurements
PM10 measure	ments				125
Air 1	PM10, temperature, RH ³ , wind speed	Day-time	5 x 5 ⁴	5	25
Air 2	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 5	5	25
Air 3	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 5	5	25
Air 4	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 5	5	25
Air 5	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 5	5	25

Table 1. Measurement specification

Besides, the Contractor also should provide the Client with the wind directions (rose of wind) for the region (should be extracted from the Republic of Armenia Construction Norms II-7.01-2011 "Construction Climatology").

2. Objective of the study

The objective of the Study is:

- To conduct instrumental measurements of PM10 concentrations and other relevant parameters (RH, temperature, wind speed) at the points around the Yerevan 2 Power Plant, which are expected to be impacted during the construction and operation stages,
- To assess the compliance of the PM actual concentrations to the national environmental norms,
- To elaborate PM assessment report.

This PM10 assessment report (hereinafter - Report) provides an overview of the measurement process and equipment, description of the measurement (sensitive) points, dust (PM10) national environmental norms, a quantitative analysis, assessment of measurement results and main conclusions. The instrumental measurements were conducted between the 28.10.2017 and 04.11.2017 at 5 sensitive points.

¹ Particle matters with 10 µm size

² 5 minutes for each measurement

³ Relative humidity

⁴ 5 measurements per day during the 5 days

Rev01

3. Measurement methodology and equipment

Dust concentration is measured by using of Dust particle meter DT-96. This device is equipped with 2.5um and 10um size channels to measure PM2.5 and PM10 simultaneously as well as air temperature and relative humidity. The duration of each PM10 measurement is 5 minutes. The obtained data is analyzed and compared with corresponding threshold limit value.

Technical parameters of the device are listed below:

- Concentration measurement: 0~2000 ug/m³, resolution: 1 ug/m³,
- Temperature range: 0~50°C, resolution: 1°C, accuracy: ±0.1°C,
- Humidity Range: 0 to 100% RH, accuracy: ±5% RH, 0~20% RH, 80~100% RH; ±3.5% RH, 20~80% RH.

The wind speed during the noise measurements have been determined by the Microclimate parameters measuring device "Meteoscop". Technical characteristics of "Meteoscop" are summarized below:

- Measurement range of wind speed: 0.1~20 m/sec, Accuracy: ±(0.05+0.05V), if wind speed is up to 1m/sec and ±(0.1+0.05V), if wind speed is between 1÷20m/sec,
- Measurement range of temperature: between -10 and + 50°C, Accuracy: ±0.2,
- Measurement range of relative humidity: between 3 and 97%, Accuracy: ±3,
- The verification date of the device is 16.05.2017. It is valid until 16.05.2018.

Data on the State verification, as well as technical characteristics of the device is presented in Verification certificate (see Annex 2).

4. Normative framework

4.1 Environmental norms

The PM10 measurements were conducted and evaluated in accordance with the following normative documentation acting in the Republic of Armenia:

- GOST 17.2.4.05-83. "Environmental protection. Atmosphere. Gravimetric method for determination of suspended dust particles",
- RoA Government Decree Nº160-N. "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations (MPC) of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas".

The maximum permissible concentrations of PM10, including daily average values are defined by the RoA Government Decree Nº160-N and summarized below in Table 2.

Table 2. Daily average and	d maximum permissi	ble concentrations	(MPC) for PM10
----------------------------	--------------------	--------------------	----------------

Nº	Name of substance	MPC (mg/m ³)			
	Name of substance	Мах	Daily average		
1	PM10	0.3	0.06		

Rev01

4.2 Wind directions

The climatic conditions of Armenia, including wind directions and speeds were monitored using meteorological stations located in most of the settlements in Armenia. The monitoring results of the last 30 years were summarized in Republic of Armenia Construction Norms II-7.01-2011 "Construction Climatology". The data on wind directions and average speeds from the Erebuni meteorological station (PM10 measurement points were located in Erebuni administrative district of Yerevan) are given below in Table 3, while rose of wind is presented in Figure 1.

Table 3.	Daily average a	and maximum	permissible	concentrations	(MPC)	for PM10
	Bully avoiago			001100110110110	(

Settlement / meteorological station	Average atmospheric pressure (hPa)	Months	Frequency, % Average speed, m/sec						_	_			
			Northern	North-Eastern	Eastern	South-Eastern	Southern	South-Western	Western	North-Western	Average monthly speed, m/sec	Average annual speed, m/sec	Days of strong wind (≥15m/sec)
Yerevan / 91 Erebuni 91		January	4	9	11	14	21	25	12	4	0,7	- 1,5	29
			2,2	2,2	2,2	2,9	2,7	2,3	2,6	2,7			
		Amril	7	14	8	16	20	16	13	6	1,9		
	012.1	Арпі	3,1	3,2	2,8	4,0	3,1	3,0	3,8	3,6			
	912,1	July 5	17	28	4	9	17	13	8	4	2,8		
			5,2	5,7	2,8	2,7	2,4	2,7	2,9	4,3			
		October	6	18	10	10	21	20	10	5	1,0		
			2,9	2,5	2,1	2,5	2,3	2,4	2,9	3,5			

Figure 1. Rose of wind



Rev01

5. Description of measurement points/ sites

The given Report presents results of PM10 concentration measurements for the points defined by the Client (see Annex 1) and described below. Totally, 125 PM10 instrumental measurements were conducted at 5 points.

<u>Air 1</u>

X=456810.00 m E, Y=4440184.00 m N

Measurement point Air 1 is situated in industrial area near the south-east border of current Yerevan-1 thermal power plant, between the fire brigade and abandoned production facility (see Figure 2).

<u>Air 2</u>

X=455723.00 m E, Y=4439628.00 m N

Measurement point Air 2 is placed approx. 1700 m to the south-west from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site. This point is located near the northeast border of Ayntap community between the cemetery and private cultivated garden (see Figure 3).

<u>Air 3</u>

X=457405.00 m E, Y=4440835.00 m N

Measurement point Air 3 is placed in industrial area near the northern border of the CCPP Yerevan-2 site (see Figure 4).

<u>Air 4</u>

X=458540.00 m E, Y=4439142.00 m N

Measurement point Air 4 is located at the distance of approx. 1500 m to the south-east from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site, in front of the administrative building of "Food safety risk assessment research center" SNCO⁵ (see Figure 5).

<u>Air 5</u>

X=462777.00 m E, Y=4443372.00 m N

Measurement point Air 5 is located at the distance of approx. 5800 m to the north-east from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site, Jrashen residential block within the boundary of Erebuni administrative district (see Figure 6).

Figure 2. Measurement process at point Air 1



Figure 3. Measurement process at point Air 2





Figure 4. Measurement process at point Air 3





Figure 5. Measurement process at point Air 4



Figure 6. Measurement process at point Air 5





6. Weather conditions

The weather conditions during the measurement period (28.10.17-04.11.17) were presented in Figure 7 (source: meteoblue.com):



Figure 7. Whether conditions during the measurement period

7. Measurement results and evaluation

Measurement results of PM10 concentration and other relevant parameters are summarized in Table 4 (for PM10). Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations in comparison with the MPCs (maximum and daily average) are presented in Figures 8-12.

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
28.10.2017							
	16	47	0.02	<2.2			
	16	48	0.041	<2.7			
Air 1	18	48	0.021	< 2.8	0.3	0.06	
	17	46	0.021	< 2.8			
	16	45	0.019	< 2.5			
	16	50	0.022	<2.3			
	17	51	0.029	<2.2			
Air 2	18	48	0.035	< 2.5	0.3	0.06	
	18	48	0.038	<2.4			
	16	48	0.034	<2.4			
	15	50	0.038	< 3.2			
	16	47	0.046	< 3.1			
Air 3	17	48	0.053	< 4.1	0.3	0.06	
	17	46	0.047	< 3.8			
	16	46	0.045	< 3.4			
	14	47	0.023	< 3.4			
	15	47	0.03	< 3.4			
Air 4	15	48	0.032	<4.2	0.3	0.06	
	16	46	0.033	< 4.1			
	15	49	0.028	< 4.0			

Table 4. Results of PM10 measurement
PM10 Assessment Report (for autumn 2017)

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	13	49	0.028	< 3.0			
	14	46	0.037	< 3.2			
Air 5	16	45	0.049	< 3.5	0.3	0.06	
	16	46	0.046	< 3.4			
	15	48	0.036	< 3.2			
31.10.2017							
	14	46	0.012	< 0.8			
	16	45	0.012	< 0.6			
Air 1	17	44	0.014	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	17	40	0.015	< 1.0			
	15	42	0.014	< 0.5			
	13	48	0.016	<1.2			
	15	46	0.014	< 1.1			
Air 2	16	43	0.018	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	16	44	0.025	< 1.0			
	15	44	0.02	<1.2			
	14	43	0.022	< 1.2			
Air O	10	42	0.028	< 1.0	0.2	0.06	
Alf 3	17	40	0.033	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	10	40	0.042	< 0.0			
	17	41	0.035	< 0.9			
	15	43	0.015	< 2.4			
Air 4	17	40	0.016	< 2.7	0.3	0.06	
711 -	17	40	0.018	< 2.5	0.0	0.00	
	16	41	0.014	< 2.1			
	14	44	0.014	<1.1			
	16	42	0.017	< 1.2			
Air 5	16	41	0.018	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	17	40	0.019	< 1.2			
	16	40	0.012	< 1.1			
02.11.2017							
	8	47	0.01	< 1.2			
	10	43	0.014	< 1.1			
Air 1	12	44	0.014	< 1.5	0.3	0.06	
	13	42	0.017	< 1.6			
	12	43	0.012	< 1.1			
	9	43	0.008	< 0.7			
	11	41	0.01	< 0.7			
Air 2	13	40	0.015	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	13	41	0.017	< 0.9			
	13	40	0.016	< 0.9			
	9	43	0.02	< 0.9			
	10	41	0.028	< 0.8			
Air 3	12	42	0.027	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	13	40	0.021	< 1.2			
	13	42	0.015	< 1.0			
	o 10	42 40	0.012	< 0.7			
Air 1	10	4∠ 40	0.012	< 0.0	0.3	0.06	
AU 4	13	40 41	0.014	< 1.0 ~ 1.0	0.5	0.00	
	12	41	0.012	< 0.8			
	8	43	0.013	< 0.8			
	9	43	0.014	< 0.8			
Air 5	- 11	40	0.016	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
-	13	41	0.016	< 0.6			
	12	42	0.014	< 0.7			

PM10 Assessment Report (for autumn 2017)

Point of measurement	Temperature, ⁰C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
03.11.2017							
	9	41	0.012	< 0.8			
	11	40	0.015	< 0.7			
Air 1	13	37	0.016	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	14	34	0.017	< 1.1			
	14	36	0.024	< 1.1			
	8	42	0.018	< 0.9			
	11	40	0.023	< 0.7			
Air 2	14	40	0.028	< 0.6	0.3	0.06	
	15	37	0.024	< 0.8			
	14	39	0.02	< 0.8			
	10	39	0.017	< 0.9			
	11	37	0.027	< 0.7			
Air 3	14	35	0.022	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	14	34	0.015	< 1.3			
	13	37	0.028	<1.1			
	9	37	0.011	< 0.7			
	10	36	0.013	< 0.6			
Air 4	13	33	0.015	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	14	32	0.02	<1.2			
	14	34	0.018	< 1.0			
	9	36	0.015	< 0.8			
	11	33	0.019	< 0.8			
Air 5	13	32	0.025	< 0.7	0.3	0.06	
	15	31	0.024	< 0.9			
	14	33	0.018	<1.1			
04.11.2017							
	10	37	0.015	< 0.7			
	12	35	0.019	< 0.7			
Air 1	15	34	0.025	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	15	32	0.021	< 0.9			
	16	33	0.022	< 1.2			
	11	41	0.017	< 0.8			
A: 0	14	39	0.031	< 0.7		0.00	
Air 2	15	39	0.021	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	16	38	0.025	< 0.8			
	10	20	0.009	< 1.1			
	12	30 36	0.021	< 1.0			
Air O	15	30	0.016	< 1.1	0.2	0.06	
All 5	15	34	0.025	< 1.4	0.5	0.00	
	16	33	0.021	<1.3			
	10	40	0.022	<1.0			
	12	38	0.019	< 1.1			
Air 4	14	36	0.022	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	16	36	0.017	< 1.4			
	16	37	0.019	< 1.3			
	10	38	0.032	< 0.7			
	13	36	0.025	< 0.9			
Air 5	15	36	0.026	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	16	35	0.028	< 1.0			
	15	34	0.023	< 1.2			

Rev01

Figure 8. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 1 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



Figure 9. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 2 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



PM10 Assessment Report (for autumn 2017)

Rev01

Figure 10. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 3 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



Figure 11. Diagrams of PM10 actual concentrations at point Air 4 compared with the MPC (max and daily average)



PM10 Assessment Report (for autumn 2017)

Rev01





Main conclusions

- 125 instrumental measurements were conducted in 5 sensitive points (Air 1, Air 2, Air 3, Air 4 and Air 5) during 5 days to determine the PM10 actual concentration. 5 measurements were conducted at each point per day, which means that totally 25 PM10 measurements were carried out at each point. The results of the study were compared with PM permissible concentrations (maximal is 0.3 mg/m³ and daily average is 0.06 mg/m³).
- 2) PM10 (dust particles of 10um size) actual concentrations at all sensitive points (Air 1, Air 2, Air 3, Air 4 and Air 5) in different daytime periods don't exceed the daily average and maximum permissible concentrations for residential areas set by the RA Government Decree №160-N "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas" (see Figures 8-12).

PM10 Assessment Report (for autumn 2017) Rev01

ANNEX 1. Map of measurement points



PM10 Assessment Report (for autumn 2017)

Rev01

ANNEX 2. Verification documents of measuring devices

2UBUUSULF 2ULTUADSALPBBUL EAULAUFAUBF ເປັນເປັນເປັນເຊຍ ເປັນຍາຍເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນເປັນ
ЧЧЦЗЦЧЦՆ № 017243
ບາບມາ ບານປອມຊາຍເອຍ
Ստուգաչափման թվականը 201_7թ. of «/՚՚ »
Πιση ήταν τη
atter leavebar
Authlaub algorigh abdyating to introutin
Anntunuliuuhli hi 89610
2mhominus uppnige of protein magnety 1= (31-20) 3/2
Ստուգաչափման արդյունքների հիման վրա չափման միջոցը ճանաչվել է պիտանի և թույլատրվում է կիրառման։
Ստուգաչափումը կատարվել է համաձայն Հոգ ստուգաչափման մեթողիկայի անվանումը, նշագիրը
Unnique winning Bereining Strand Strand R. ⁿ pnzuh wpnwwnhup Pwduh (jwpnpwonnphwjh) ntatywidyn
Յաստատված է Էկոնոմիկայի նախարարի։ 14.02.2013թ. թիվ 104-Ն հրամանով Գրանցված է։ ՅՅ՝ Արդարադատության նախարարության կողմից 21.03.2013թ. թիվ 10313102



Project: Environmental and Social Impact Assessment for a Combined Cycle Power Plant - Yerevan 2

Project №: 8559P01

PM10 Assessment Report

Rev01

Time Period: Winter 2017-2018

Prepared for RENCO ARMESTATE Ltd. and Fichtner GmbH & Co. KG

Prepared by "ATMS Solutions" Ltd.

February, 2018

Contents

1.	Introduction	3
2.	Objective of the study	3
3.	Measurement methodology and equipment	4
4.	Normative framework	4
4.1	Environmental norms	4
4.2	Wind directions	4
5.	Description of measurement points/sites	6
6.	Weather conditions	7
7.	Measurement results and evaluation	8
Mair	1 conclusions	22
ANN	EX 1. Map of measurement points	23
ANN	EX 2. Pictures of measurements process at monitoring points	24
ANN	EX 3. Verification documents of measuring devices	39

Rev01

1. Introduction

Based on the service provision contract dated 20 of December 2017 between RENCO ARMESTATE Ltd. (hereinafter - Client) and ATMS Solutions Ltd. (hereinafter - Contractor) the latter has engaged to conduct PM10¹ measurements at the 5 points/sites during the 30 days and elaborate PM10 assessment report for the winter period of 2017-2018.

PM10 measurement points/sites have been selected by the Client. The map with the indication of measurement points are presented in Annex 1. Quantities, durations and other parameters to be monitored in parallel with the PM measurements are given below in Table 1.

Measurement point	Measuring parameters	Time of measurement	Quantity, measurements	Duration, minutes ²	Total quantity, measurements
PM10 measure	ments				750
Air 1	PM10, temperature, RH ³ , wind speed	Day-time	5 x 30 ⁴	5	150
Air 2	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 30	5	150
Air 3	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 30	5	150
Air 4	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 30	5	150
Air 5	PM10, temperature, RH, wind speed	Day-time	5 x 30	5	150

Table 1. Measurement specification

Besides, the Contractor also should provide the Client with the wind directions (rose of wind) for the region (should be extracted from the Republic of Armenia Construction Norms II-7.01-2011 "Construction Climatology").

2. Objective of the study

The objective of the Study is:

- To conduct instrumental measurements of PM10 concentrations and other relevant parameters (RH, temperature, wind speed) at the points around the Yerevan 2 Power Plant, which are expected to be impacted during the construction and operation stages,
- To assess the compliance of the PM actual concentrations to the national environmental norms,
- To elaborate PM assessment report.

This PM10 assessment report (hereinafter - Report) provides an overview of the measurement process and equipment, description of the measurement (sensitive) points, dust (PM10) national environmental norms, a quantitative analysis, assessment of measurement results and main conclusions. The instrumental measurements were conducted between the 17.12.2017 and 03.02.2018 at 5 sensitive points.

¹ Particle matters with 10 µm size

² 5 minutes for each measurement

³ Relative humidity

⁴ 5 measurements per day during the 30 days

Rev01

3. Measurement methodology and equipment

Dust concentration is measured by using of Dust particle meter DT-96. This device is equipped with 2.5um and 10um size channels to measure PM2.5 and PM10 simultaneously as well as air temperature and relative humidity. The duration of each PM10 measurement is 5 minutes. The obtained data is analyzed and compared with corresponding threshold limit value.

Technical parameters of the device are listed below:

- Concentration measurement: 0~2000 ug/m³, resolution: 1 ug/m³,
- Temperature range: 0~50°C, resolution: 1°C, accuracy: ±0.1°C,
- Humidity Range: 0 to 100% RH, accuracy: ±5% RH, 0~20% RH, 80~100% RH; ±3.5% RH, 20~80% RH.

The wind speed during the noise measurements have been determined by the Microclimate parameters measuring device "Meteoscop". Technical characteristics of "Meteoscop" are summarized below:

- Measurement range of wind speed: 0.1~20 m/sec, Accuracy: ±(0.05+0.05V), if wind speed is up to 1m/sec and ±(0.1+0.05V), if wind speed is between 1÷20m/sec,
- Measurement range of temperature: between -10 and + 50°C, Accuracy: ±0.2,
- Measurement range of relative humidity: between 3 and 97%, Accuracy: ±3.

Data on the State verification, as well as technical characteristics of the device is presented in Verification certificate (see Annex 3).

4. Normative framework

4.1 Environmental norms

The PM10 measurements were conducted and evaluated in accordance with the following normative documentation acting in the Republic of Armenia:

- GOST 17.2.4.05-83. "Environmental protection. Atmosphere. Gravimetric method for determination of suspended dust particles",
- RoA Government Decree №160-N. "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations (MPC) of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas".

The maximum permissible concentrations of PM10, including daily average values are defined by the RoA Government Decree №160-N and summarized below in Table 2.

Table 2.	Daily	average and	maximum	permissible	concentrations	(MPC)	for	PM10
						(

NO	Nama of substance	MPC (r	mg/ m³)
IN=	Name of substance	Max	Daily average
1	PM10	0.3	0.06

4.2 Wind directions

The climatic conditions of Armenia, including wind directions and speeds were monitored using meteorological stations located in most of the settlements in Armenia. The monitoring results of the last

Rev01

30 years were summarized in Republic of Armenia Construction Norms II-7.01-2011 "Construction Climatology". The data on wind directions and average speeds from the Erebuni meteorological station (PM10 measurement points were located in Erebuni administrative district of Yerevan) are given below in Table 3, while rose of wind is presented in Figure 1.

			Ave	Frequ rage s	ency, peed	% , m/se	— by	y direc	tions					
Settlement / meteorological station	Average atmospheric pressure (hPa)	Months	Northern	North-Eastern	Eastern	South-Eastern	Southern	South-Western	Western	North-Western	Average monthly speed, m/sec	Average annual speed, m/sec	Days of strong wind (≥15m/sec)	
			4	9	11	14	21	25	12	4	0.7	0,7		
		January	2,2	2,2	2,2	2,9	2,7	2,3	2,6	2,7	0,7			
		April	7	14	8	16	20	16	13	6	1.0			
Yerevan /	012.1	Арпі	3,1	3,2	2,8	4,0	3,1	3,0	3,8	3,6	1,9	15	20	
Erebuni	912,1	h i b e	17	28	4	9	17	13	13 8 4	0.0	1,5	29		
		July	5,2	5,7	2,8	2,7	2,4	2,7	2,9	4,3	2,0			
		Ostahan	6	18	10	10	21	20	10	5	1.0			
		October	2,9	2,5	2,1	2,5	2,3	2,4	2,9	3,5	1,0			

Table 3. Daily average an	d maximum	permissible	concentrations	(MPC)	for	PM10
---------------------------	-----------	-------------	----------------	-------	-----	------

Figure 1. Rose of wind



SW

SE

S

SE

S

SW

Rev01

5. Description of measurement points/ sites

The given Report presents results of PM10 concentration measurements for the points defined by the Client (see Annex 1) and described below. Totally, 750 PM10 instrumental measurements were conducted at 5 points.

<u>Air 1</u>

X=456810.00 m E, Y=4440184.00 m N

Measurement point Air 1 is situated in industrial area near the south-east border of current Yerevan-1 thermal power plant, between the fire brigade and abandoned production facility (see Annex 2).

<u>Air 2</u>

X=455723.00 m E, Y=4439628.00 m N

Measurement point Air 2 is placed approx. 1700 m to the south-west from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site. This point is located near the northeast border of Ayntap community between the cemetery and private cultivated garden (see Annex 2).

<u>Air 3</u>

X=457405.00 m E, Y=4440835.00 m N

Measurement point Air 3 is placed in industrial area near the northern border of the CCPP Yerevan-2 site (see Annex 2).

<u>Air 4</u>

X=458540.00 m E, Y=4439142.00 m N

Measurement point Air 4 is located at the distance of approx. 1500 m to the south-east from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site, in front of the administrative building of "Food safety risk assessment research center" SNCO⁵ (see Annex 2).

<u>Air 5</u>

X=462777.00 m E, Y=4443372.00 m N

Measurement point Air 5 is located at the distance of approx. 5800 m to the north-east from the CCPP Yerevan-2 site, Jrashen residential block within the boundary of Erebuni administrative district (see Annex 2).

6/39

⁵ State Non-Commercial Organization

Rev01

6. Weather conditions

The weather conditions during the measurement period (17.12.17 - 03.02.18) were presented in Figure 2 (source: meteoblue.com):

Figure 2. Whether conditions during the measurement period

a) December 2017



2018-01-08 - 2018-02-04 28 days



ATMS Solutions

Rev01

7. Measurement results and evaluation

Measurement results of PM10 concentration and other relevant parameters are summarized in Table 4 (for PM10).

Table 4. Results of PM10 measuremer	Table 4.	Results of	PM10	measuremen
-------------------------------------	----------	-------------------	------	------------

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
17.12.2017							
	5	49	0.017	< 1.0			
	5	48	0.018	< 1.3			
Air 1	6	47	0.020	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	6	45	0.020	< 1.0			
	6	47	0.020	< 0.9			
	4	50	0.015	< 0.6			
	5	52	0.016	< 0.8			
Air 2	5	50	0.015	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	6	49	0.019	< 0.8			
	6	48	0.018	< 0.9			
	4	43	0.017	< 1.7			
	5	44	0.018	< 2.0			
Air 3	5	42	0.020	< 2.1	0.3	0.06	
	6	42	0.018	< 1.6			
	6	41	0.022	<2.0			
	4	45	0.019	< 1.2			
A: 4	4	44	0.022	< 1.4	0.0	0.00	
Air 4	5	44	0.020	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	5	48	0.025	< 1.2			
	6	50	0.020	< 1.4			
	3	55 F7	0.025	< 0.9			
A: E	4 F	57	0.020	< 1.1	0.2	0.06	
AII D	5	60	0.026	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	6	60 E7	0.021	< 1.2			
40.40.0047	5	57	0.016	< 0.0			
19.12.2017							
	3	46	0.026	< 0.9			
•• •	4	44	0.025	< 0.9			
Air 1	4	43	0.029	< 0.6	0.3	0.06	
	4	43	0.028	< 1.1			
	5	44	0.028	< 1.0		0.06	
	3	52	0.043	< 1.3			
Air O	4	48 50	0.048	< 0.8	0.2	0.06	
Alf Z	4 5	5∠ 50	0.052	< 0.0	0.3	0.06	
	5 4	50	0.000	< 0.9			
	2	<u> </u>	0.050	<1.1			
	3	42	0.027	< 1.0			
Air O	4	42	0.030	< 0.0	0.2	0.06	
	+ 5	40 //1	0.033	< 0.7	0.3	0.00	
	5 4	41	0.030	< 0.7			
	- 1 3	44	0.004	~ 1.2			
	3	42	0.027	< 0.0 < 0.8			
Δir <i>Δ</i>	4	45	0.025	< 0.0	03	0.06	
7 W T	т 4	45	0.020	< 1.2	0.0	0.00	
	4	42	0.031	< 1.2			
	2	50	0.048	< 0.7			
Air 5	- 3	52	0.050	< 1.0			
	_ ~		0.000	\$ 1.0			

8/39

Point of measurement	Temperature, ⁰C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	4	57	0.046	<1.1	0.3	0.06	
	4	57	0.057	< 0.8			
	4	53	0.052	< 0.9			
21.12.2017							
	2	71	0.032	< 0.8			
	3	69	0.037	< 0.7			
Air 1	3	67	0.043	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	4	66	0.047	<1.2			
	4	67	0.042	< 1.2			
	3	67	0.021	< 1.0			
	4	63	0.023	< 0.7			
Air 2	4	60	0.020	< 0.7	0.3	0.06	
	5	61	0.021	< 0.8			
	5	63	0.024	< 1.0			
	2	62	0.044	< 1.3			
	4	60	0.057	<1.3			
Air 3	4	61	0.046	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	4	63	0.057	< 1.5			
	3	60	0.047	< 1.6			
	2	70	0.038	< 0.9			
A	2	68	0.042	< 0.8		0.00	
Air 4	3	67	0.047	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	4	65	0.048	< 0.8			
	3	<u> 64 </u>	0.044	< 1.1			
	2	70	0.042	< 0.0			
Air 5	3	60 64	0.051	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
All 5	3	04 61	0.041	< 1.0	0.3	0.00	
	4	63	0.042	< 0.7			
22 42 2047	4	00	0.037	< 0.7			
22.12.2017	_						
	0	71	0.031	< 0.9			
A1. 4	1	70	0.033	< 1.0		0.00	
Air 1	0	70	0.030	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	1	68	0.028	< 0.8			
	- -	70	0.030	< 1.0			
	1	67	0.019	< 1.1			
Air O	1 0	67	0.021	< 0.0	0.2	0.06	
All Z	2	68	0.018	< 0.0	0.3	0.00	
	- 1	65	0.017	< 0.0 < 0.0			
	1	69	0.022	< 0.8			
	1	71	0.047	< 0.8			
Air 3	1	70	0.048	< 0.6	0.3	0.06	
7.11 0	2	69	0.047	< 1.0	0.0	0.00	
	-	68	0.047	< 1.1			
	0	70	0.025	< 0.7			
	0	72	0.024	< 0.9			
Air 4	1	70	0.031	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	2	68	0.028	< 0.7			
	1	68	0.023	< 1.0			
	1	69	0.043	< 0.8			
	1	71	0.047	< 0.8			
Air 5	1	70	0.048	< 0.6	0.3	0.06	
	2	69	0.047	< 1.0			
	1	68	0.047	<1.1			
25.12.2017							
Air 1	6	48	0.005	< 1.8			

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	7	46	0.005	< 1.7			
	8	45	0.009	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	7	42	0.010	<2.2			
	7	44	0.007	< 2.3			
	6	40	0.008	< 0.9			
	8	40	0.009	<1.2			
Air 2	8	42	0.006	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	7	40	0.010	< 1.4			
	7	38	0.010	< 1.2			
	5	45	0.006	< 2.2			
A	6	46	0.005	< 2.0		0.00	
Air 3	/	44	0.008	<1./	0.3	0.06	
	7	44	0.009	< 2.8			
	/	43	0.011	<2./			
	5	50	0.005	< 3.1 2 5			
Air 1	7	50	0.008	< 3.0	0.3	0.06	
	8	51	0.000	< 2.0	0.5	0.00	
	6	51	0.000	< 1.8			
	6	44	0.007	< 0.7			
	7	43	0.027	< 1.2			
Air 5	8	42	0.043	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
741 0	6	45	0.042	< 0.9	0.0	0.00	
	5	43	0.038	< 1.0			
10 01 2018	0		0.000				
10.01.2010	6	25	0.000	.1.0			
	0	30	0.009	< 1.0			
Air 1	0	33	0.016	< 0.9	0.2	0.06	
AILI	10	3∠ 22	0.011	< 0.0	0.3	0.06	
	12	33	0.010	< 1.2			
	7	34	0.000	<1.1			
	8	32	0.020	< 0.9			
Air 2	12	32	0.000	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
/ WI Z	12	33	0.030	< 0.8	0.0	0.00	
	11	30	0.040	< 0.8			
	7	31	0.006	< 1.8			
	9	30	0.008	< 1.2			
Air 3	11	31	0.009	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	12	31	0.008	< 1.0			
	12	29	0.010	< 1.1			
	7	33	0.011	< 0.9			
	10	32	0.013	< 0.6			
Air 4	11	33	0.011	< 0.5	0.3	0.06	
	12	30	0.007	< 0.7			
	11	30	0.010	< 0.6			
	7	34	0.010	< 0.7			
	10	32	0.008	< 1.1			
Air 5	11	32	0.022	< 0.6	0.3	0.06	
	12	32	0.015	< 1.0			
	12	30	0.012	< 1.3			
11.01.2018							
	6	38	0.047	< 1.7			
	9	37	0.056	< 2.0			
Air 1	9	35	0.050	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	10	36	0.041	< 0.9			
	10	34	0.046	< 1.0			
Air 2	6	40	0.052	< 1.2			

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	9	38	0.057	< 1.1			
	10	39	0.050	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	10	38	0.044	< 0.8			
	9	38	0.026	< 1.3			
	5	42	0.037	< 0.7			
A: 0	9	40	0.033	< 1.4	0.0	0.00	
Air 3	9	40	0.026	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	10	41	0.020	< 0.4			
	<u>9</u> 5	35	0.023	< 1.0			
	8	34	0.040	< 0.9			
Air 4	9	32	0.041	< 0.5	0.3	0.06	
	10	32	0.034	< 1.0	0.0	0.00	
	10	32	0.035	< 1.0			
	5	41	0.036	< 1.2			
	8	42	0.039	< 1.0			
Air 5	9	40	0.032	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	10	40	0.054	< 0.8			
	9	41	0.035	< 0.7			
12.01.2018							
	6	64	0.058	< 1.4			
	8	62	0.051	<2.1			
Air 1	9	58	0.047	< 1.5	0.3	0.06	
	9	60	0.050	< 1.5			
	9	57	0.044	< 2.0			
	6	65	0.053	< 0.8			
	9	60	0.058	< 1.0			
Air 2	9	61	0.054	<1.2	0.3	0.06	
	10	57	0.051	< 0.9			
	9	55	0.048	< 0.9			
	6	60	0.045	< 0.8			
A: 0	8	58	0.052	< 0.4	0.0	0.00	
Air 3	9	52	0.053	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	9	54 53	0.047	< 0.9			
	<u> </u>	55	0.039	< 1.1			
	7	54	0.020	< 0.5			
Air 4	9	50	0.020	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
, ur 1	9	52	0.015	< 1.0	0.0	0.00	
	8	50	0.023	< 1.1			
	5	54	0.014	<2.1			
	7	50	0.018	< 2.0			
Air 5	9	51	0.020	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	10	48	0.024	< 1.7			
	9	48	0.013	< 1.4			
13.01.2018							
	6	49	0.033	< 1.5			
	9	48	0.035	< 2.0			
Air 1	10	46	0.037	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	10	46	0.039	< 1.8			
	9	47	0.033	< 1.7			
	6	39	0.032	< 0.7			
	9	40	0.048	< 1.0			
Air 2	9	38	0.033	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	10	36	0.022	< 1.1			
A : 0	9	36	0.034	< 1.1			
AIr 3	Ь	63	0.032	<1.5			

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	8	60	0.036	< 1.3			
	10	58	0.031	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	9	58	0.034	< 1.0			
	9	56	0.034	< 1.4			
	5	57	0.019	< 2.5			
	8	57	0.033	< 3.1			
Air 4	9	53	0.009	< 3.0	0.3	0.06	
	10	52	0.011	<2.8			
	9	52	0.038	< 1.8			
	5	62	0.023	< 1.4			
A	8	59	0.019	< 2.1			
Air 5	9	60	0.028	< 2.0	0.3	0.06	
	10	54	0.028	< 1./			
	10	55	0.031	< 1.8			
14.01.2018							
	4	58	0.051	< 1.0			
	6	57	0.054	<1.1			
Air 1	7	55	0.044	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	7	54	0.046	< 0.9			
	6	52	0.047	< 1.2			
	4	56	0.053	< 1.3			
	6	55	0.056	<1.2			
Air 2	7	54	0.048	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	8	52	0.045	< 1.2			
	7	52	0.048	< 1.0			
	4	62	0.039	< 1.2			
A '. O	6	61	0.037	< 0.9		0.00	
Air 3	7	59	0.045	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	8	54	0.043	< 1.2			
	8	<u> </u>	0.037	< 1.3			
	3	62	0.034	< 0.0			
Air 1	5 6	02 57	0.033	< 0.7	0.3	0.06	
	8	56	0.034	< 1.1	0.5	0.00	
	7	54	0.030	<1.4			
	3	66	0.028	<10			
	6	65	0.032	< 1.0			
Air 5	7	64	0.036	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	8	61	0.028	< 1.8			
	7	59	0.034	< 1.4			
15.01.2018							
	2	70	0.010	~11			
	2	67	0.010	< 1.4 20 0			
Air 1	4	65	0.012	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	5	65 65	0.009	< 1.7	0.5	0.00	
	4	67	0.003	< 1.0			
	2	68	0.025	<19			
	4	66	0.010	< 5.5			
Air 2	5	65	0.008	< 3.4	0.3	0.06	
	5	64	0.013	< 2.8	5.5		
	4	62	0.017	< 2.9			
	2	73	0.010	< 1.6			
	3	72	0.013	< 1.5			
Air 3	5	70	0.016	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	5	70	0.012	< 1.2			
	5	68	0.013	< 0.9			
Air 4	3	72	0.011	< 0.8			

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	5	72	0.009	< 1.2			
	5	70	0.013	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	5	68	0.028	< 1.5			
	4	69	0.022	<1.1			
	3	73	0.036	< 0.6			
	4	70	0.044	< 0.3			
Air 5	5	70	0.042	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	6	67	0.028	< 1.0			
	5	65	0.034	< 0.8			
16.01.2018							
	3	57	0.013	<1.1			
	5	54	0.018	< 0.9			
Air 1	6	53	0.016	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	6	53	0.012	<1.2			
	5	52	0.020	<1.2			
	3	61	0.019	< 0.8			
A: 0	4	60	0.032	< 1.0	0.0	0.00	
Air 2	5	58	0.025	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	6	56 55	0.025	< 1.1			
	2	55	0.014	< 1.1			
	5	04 61	0.032	< 0.9			
Air 3	5	60	0.045	< 1.1	03	0.06	
741 0	6	57	0.020	< 0.9	0.0	0.00	
	6	58	0.015	< 0.8			
	2	62	0.015	< 0.9			
	3	60	0.014	< 0.5			
Air 4	5	59	0.017	< 0.8	0.3	0.06	
	6	57	0.018	< 1.1			
	5	56	0.009	< 1.0			
	2	58	0.050	< 0.8			
	4	57	0.052	< 0.6			
Air 5	5	56	0.053	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	5	54	0.052	< 1.0			
	5	53	0.055	< 1.3			
17.01.2018							
	3	61	0.011	< 1.0			
	5	58	0.017	< 1.2			
Air 1	6	57	0.015	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	6	56	0.017	< 1.3			
	7	53	0.014	< 1.1			
	4	64	0.022	< 1.9			
	5	62	0.017	<2.0			
Air 2	6	60	0.037	<2.2	0.3	0.06	
	7	60	0.023	< 2.0			
	/	5/	0.019	< 1.4			
	3	65	0.013	< 1.2			
Air 2	4	03 50	0.017	< 1.4	0.2	0.06	
AII S	0 6	59 58	0.019	< 1.4	0.5	0.00	
	7	50	0.022	< 1.1 ~ 0.9			
	2	66	0.021	<0.0			
	4	64	0.018	< 1.1			
Air 4	5	62	0.017	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	6	61	0.016	< 1.0	0.0	5.00	
	6	60	0.019	< 1.3			
Air 5	2	59	0.010	< 0.8			

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	5	57	0.008	< 0.7			
	5	56	0.011	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	6	54	0.010	<1.1			
	6	53	0.011	< 0.9			
18.01.2018							
	4	64	0.047	< 0.9			
	6	62	0.044	< 0.4			
Air 1	7	61	0.051	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	8	60	0.053	< 1.0			
	8	58	0.037	< 1.1			
	4	65	0.045	< 0.8			
	6	64	0.042	< 0.3			
Air 2	7	62	0.048	< 0.7	0.3	0.06	
	9	60	0.038	< 0.6			
	8	59	0.042	< 1.0			
	4	70	0.038	<1.7			
	5	67	0.042	< 1.8			
Air 3	8	63	0.034	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	8	62	0.043	<1.2			
	8	60	0.031	< 1.3			
	3	70	0.029	< 1.0			
A: 4	5	67	0.033	< 1.5	0.0	0.00	
Air 4	7	65	0.030	<1.2	0.3	0.06	
	8	64	0.044	< 1.0			
	2	66	0.040	< 1.2			
	5	65	0.043	< 0.7			
Air 5	7	63	0.040	< 1.2	03	0.06	
All J	8	61	0.054	< 1.2	0.0	0.00	
	8	58	0.050	< 0.8			
10 01 2018	0		0.000				
19.01.2010		50	0.010	4 7			
	5	50	0.019	< 1.7			
Air 1	7	47	0.021	< 3.3	0.2	0.06	
	9	43	0.020	< 2.7	0.3	0.06	
	10	44	0.018	<2.0			
	5	51	0.010	< 2.8			
	8	47	0.018	< 5.0			
Air 2	10	46	0.025	< 3.7	0.3	0.06	
, _	11	44	0.028	< 1.6	010	0100	
	10	44	0.011	< 2.4			
	5	48	0.015	< 2.4			
	7	44	0.040	< 5.5			
Air 3	9	44	0.033	< 4.2	0.3	0.06	
	10	43	0.017	< 3.2			
	10	42	0.012	< 3.3			
	4	50	0.015	< 1.8			
	7	48	0.019	< 3.5			
Air 4	9	47	0.017	< 2.2	0.3	0.06	
	10	45	0.016	< 2.0			
	10	44	0.015	<1.7			
	4	54	0.011	< 1.7			
A: -	6	51	0.010	< 2.5			
Air 5	10	50	0.016	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	10	49	0.019	< 1.2			
	3	47	0.010	< 1.ŏ			
20.01.2018							

Point of measurement	Temperature, ℃	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	4	57	0.012	< 1.8			
	7	54	0.016	< 2.9			
Air 1	9	52	0.012	<2.4	0.3	0.06	
	11	51	0.008	< 2.1			
	10	50	0.012	< 1.1			
	4	54	0.015	<2.1			
	8	51	0.037	< 3.0			
Air 2	10	50	0.033	< 3.1	0.3	0.06	
	11	48	0.010	< 1.8			
	10	48	0.014	< 1.4			
	4	57	0.016	<2.0			
Air O	/	55	0.035	<2.1	0.2	0.06	
All 5	10	52	0.017	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	10	52	0.017	< 1.2			
	3	53	0.010	<1.2			
	7	50	0.015	< 2.0			
Air 4	, 10	48	0.017	< 2.0	0.3	0.06	
/	11	47	0.010	< 1.8	0.0	0.00	
	10	46	0.016	< 1.7			
	4	55	0.022	<1.3			
	6	52	0.028	< 1.9			
Air 5	10	50	0.029	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	10	49	0.037	<1.7			
	9	49	0.019	<1.7			
21.01.2018							
	5	52	0.047	< 1.5			
	8	50	0.046	< 2.0			
Air 1	10	49	0.037	<2.1	0.3	0.06	
	11	48	0.043	< 1.7			
	10	48	0.025	< 1.6			
	6	50	0.024	< 0.9			
	9	47	0.052	<2.1			
Air 2	11	46	0.031	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	11	45	0.058	<1.7			
	10	45	0.048	<1.7			
	5	58	0.028	< 1.8			
	9	55	0.029	<2.1			
Air 3	10	53	0.019	<1.7	0.3	0.06	
	11	52	0.034	< 1.1			
	11	51	0.025	< 1.4			
	С 0	50 52	0.043	< 1.1			
Air 1	0 10	50 52	0.015	< U.Ö	0.3	0.06	
A II 4	11	52 50	0.027 0.032	< 1.0 ~ 1.0	0.5	0.00	
	10	30 48	0.032	< 1.2			
	4	51	0.023	<14			
	8	48	0.033	< 2.0			
Air 5	10	46	0.035	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
-	11	45	0.030	< 1.4			
	10	44	0.040	< 1.6			
22.01.2018							
	5	58	0.032	<11			
	9	55	0.031	< 2 0			
Air 1	11	52	0.042	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	11	51	0.040	< 1.6			
	10	50	0.049	< 1.6			

Point of measurement	Temperature, ℃	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	6	55	0.035	< 1.4			
	9	53	0.030	< 1.2			
Air 2	10	50	0.045	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	11	48	0.051	< 1.1			
	10	47	0.048	< 1.0			
	5	52	0.042	< 1.7			
	9	50	0.048	< 1.8			
Air 3	11	48	0.039	<1.4	0.3	0.06	
	10	47	0.051	< 1.3			
	10	45	0.045	< 1.0			
	5	57	0.020	< 1.1			
•• •	8	54	0.033	< 0.8			
Air 4	10	53	0.028	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	10	51	0.041	< 1.3			
	9	50	0.031	< 1.0			
	5	51	0.015	< 1.0			
A: F	8	49	0.017	<1.3	0.0	0.00	
Air 5	10	48	0.021	< 1.5	0.3	0.06	
	9	48	0.020	< 1.5			
	9	48	0.019	< 0.9			
23.01.2018	-						
	6	46	0.039	< 1.4			
A	9	44	0.045	< 1.6		0.00	
Air 1	11	43	0.040	<1./	0.3	0.06	
	12	41	0.042	< 1.0			
		42	0.037	<1.1			
	0	49	0.040	< 1.2			
Air O	9	40	0.041	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
All Z	12	44	0.038	< 1.0		0.00	
	12	45	0.040	< 1.2			
	6	43	0.051	<1.1			
	9	42	0.030	< 1.0			
Air 3	12	40	0.051	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
741 0	12	39	0.045	< 1.3	0.0	0.00	
	11	40	0.041	< 1.1			
	5	43	0.052	< 0.9			
	9	40	0.045	< 0.4			
Air 4	10	39	0.058	< 0.9	0.3	0.06	
	11	39	0.051	< 1.1			
	11	37	0.054	< 1.4			
	5	45	0.042	< 1.6			
	8	43	0.043	< 1.8			
Air 5	10	42	0.050	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	11	41	0.038	< 1.5			
	11	40	0.036	< 1.1			
24.01.2018							
	6	52	0.038	< 2.0			
	9	50	0.036	< 1.9			
Air 1	12	47	0.035	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	13	45	0.045	< 1.4			
	12	45	0.047	< 1.7			
	6	55	0.042	< 1.2			
	10	52	0.044	< 1.6			
Air 2	12	50	0.053	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	12	49	0.047	< 1.7			
	12	48	0.050	< 1.3			

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	6	51	0.045	< 1.0			
	10	47	0.041	< 1.1			
Air 3	12	46	0.049	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	13	44	0.044	< 1.4			
	12	44	0.042	< 0.9			
	5	49	0.049	< 1.5			
	8	46	0.054	< 1.1			
Air 4	11	44	0.058	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	12	43	0.047	< 1.0			
	12	43	0.050	< 1.4			
	5	53	0.048	< 1.4			
	8	50	0.046	< 1.3			
Air 5	11	48	0.051	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	13	47	0.050	< 1.4			
	12	46	0.044	< 1.0			
25.01.2018							
	4	59	0.025	< 1.5			
	6	56	0.027	<2.4			
Air 1	8	54	0.024	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	9	55	0.019	< 1.5			
	9	54	0.027	< 1.1			
	4	58	0.022	< 1.3			
	7	56	0.026	< 1.5			
Air 2	9	55	0.036	< 1.5	0.3	0.06	
/ _	9	54	0.031	< 1.8	010	0.00	
	9	53	0.040	< 1.2			
	4	59	0.034	< 2.0			
	7	57	0.028	< 2.2			
Air 3	, 8	54	0.024	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	9	52	0.030	< 1.5		0.00	
	9	52	0.052	< 1.6			
	4	53	0.034	<11			
	5	52	0.038	< 1.0			
Air 4	7	50	0.030	<12	0.3	0.06	
/	, 9	50	0.028	< 1.3	0.0	0.00	
	9	51	0.020	< 1.0			
	4	59	0.004	<1.0			
	6	57	0.045	< 1.2			
Air 5	7	54	0.051	<14	0.3	0.06	
	, 10	52	0.042	<1.3	0.0	0.00	
	9	52	0.042	< 0.8			
26 01 2018	0	02	0.040	< 0.0			
	3	68	0.010	~) Q			
	5	68	0.019	< 2.0			
Air 1	5	67	0.018	< 1.6	0.2	0.06	
	7	65	0.016	< 1.0	0.3	0.00	
	7	05 65	0.010	< 0.4			
	<u> </u>	00 65	0.021	<2.7			
	5	63	0.010	< 2.2			
Air O	7	65	0.017	< 0.0	0.2	0.06	
	/ 7	64	0.010	< 2.0	0.5	0.00	
	/ 6	04 60	0.011	< 3./			
	0 2	67	0.010	< 2.3			
	5 F	07 65	0.045	< 1.0			
Air O	5 7	C0		< 3.0	0.2	0.06	
All 3	/ 7	04	0.042	< 1./	0.3	0.06	
	/ 6	04 60	0.052	< 1.5			
	O	02	0.044	< 1.9			

Point of measurement	Temperature, ℃	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	3	72	0.047	< 1.5			
	4	70	0.014	<2.2			
Air 4	6	70	0.017	<2.4	0.3	0.06	
	7	68	0.039	<1.1			
	6	65	0.048	< 2.4			
	3	70	0.018	< 1.0			
A: _	5	68	0.023	< 0.8			
Air 5	6	67	0.021	< 1.0	0.3	0.06	
	7	65	0.023	< 1.3			
	7	65	0.017	<1.1			
27.01.2018							
	2	75	0.007	< 1.0			
	4	72	0.010	< 1.4			
Air 1	5	72	0.008	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	6	70	0.005	<1.2			
	6	71	0.007	<1.7			
	2	76	0.005	< 1.3			
	5	74	0.005	< 1.0			
Air 2	5	72	0.014	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	6	72	0.01/	< 1./			
	6	72	0.020	< 1.3			
	2	75	0.008	< 1.1			
A:# 0	4 E	73	0.009	< 1.0	0.0	0.00	
Alf 3	5	70	0.011	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	5	72	0.000	< 1.2			
	1	69	0.012	<1.0			
	3	68	0.014	< 0.7			
Air 4	5	65	0.003	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
7 WI - F	6	64	0.014	< 1.2	0.0	0.00	
	5	64	0.015	< 1.4			
	1	71	0.016	< 1.3			
	4	68	0.023	< 0.7			
Air 5	6	67	0.012	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	6	65	0.015	< 1.3			
	5	64	0.011	< 0.9			
28.01.2018							
	1	48	0.014	< 1.8			
	3	48	0.013	< 2.6			
Air 1	6	46	0.014	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	7	45	0.018	< 2.4			
	5	46	0.008	< 2.0			
	1	44	0.012	< 1.2			
	4	45	0.010	< 1.9			
Air 2	6	43	0.011	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	7	42	0.010	<2.1			
	7	43	0.021	< 1.8			
	1	50	0.014	< 1.4			
	4	50	0.013	< 1.7			
Air 3	6	48	0.014	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	7	48	0.018	< 1.6			
	6	4/	0.008	< 1.8			
	U	50	0.014	< 1.8			
Air A	ර E	4/	0.013	< 1.8	0.2	0.06	
All 4	ວ 6	40 45	0.014	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	5	40	0.013	< 2.1 - 2 0			
	5	77	0.010	<u><u></u></u>			

Point of measurement	Temperature, ℃	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	1	54	0.036	< 0.8			
	3	52	0.041	< 0.9			
Air 5	6	53	0.036	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	6	50	0.031	< 1.2			
	5	50	0.023	< 1.0			
29.01.2018							
	0	36	0.013	< 0.8			
	2	36	0.009	< 1.3			
Air 1	4	35	0.008	<1.7	0.3	0.06	
	6	35	0.011	< 1.6			
	6	34	0.010	<1.7			
	1	38	0.015	< 1.8			
	3	36	0.028	<2.2			
Air 2	5	35	0.010	<1.7	0.3	0.06	
	6	34	0.008	<1.2			
	6	33	0.007	<1.2			
	1	35	0.011	<1.7			
	3	35	0.045	< 1.6			
Air 3	4	33	0.035	<1.7	0.3	0.06	
	6	32	0.042	< 1.1			
	6	32	0.037	<1.2			
	0	34	0.026	< 1.1			
A	2	33	0.021	< 0.6		0.00	
Air 4	5	34	0.014	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	6	32	0.014	< 1.2			
	5	34	0.021	< 1.5			
	0	40	0.010	< 1.0			
Air 5	2	30	0.032	< 1.5	0.3	0.06	
All J	4	37	0.033	< 1.5	0.5	0.00	
	6	38	0.020	< 0.7			
30 01 2018			0.044	< 0.7			
50.01.2010	0	26	0.042	-16			
	0	30	0.042	< 1.0			
Air 1	2	36	0.039	< 2.1	0.3	0.06	
	7	34	0.034	< 1.4	0.5	0.00	
	7	31	0.001	<1.4			
	1	34	0.046	<10			
	3	33	0.032	< 1.1			
Air 2	7	32	0.030	< 0.7	0.3	0.06	
	7	30	0.038	< 1.2			
	7	32	0.037	< 1.4			
	0	40	0.031	< 1.4			
	3	39	0.027	< 1.6			
Air 3	6	37	0.061	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	7	38	0.044	< 1.3			
	7	36	0.056	< 1.1			
	0	42	0.033	< 0.8			
	3	40	0.034	< 0.9			
Air 4	7	40	0.017	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	6	40	0.053	< 1.4			
	6	38	0.051	< 1.3			
	0	38	0.018	< 0.9			
	2	37	0.018	< 0.7			
Air 5	6	36	0.029	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	6	37	0.041	< 1.4			
	6	36	0.017	< 1.5			

Rev01

Point of measurement	Temperature, ⁰C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
31.01.2018							
	2	39	0.019	< 1.2			
	4	38	0.014	< 1.4			
Air 1	7	39	0.033	< 1.1	0.3	0.06	
	8	34	0.013	< 1.3			
	7	35	0.016	< 1.0			
	2	40	0.041	<1.7			
	4	38	0.051	< 1.8			
Air 2	8	38	0.038	<1.4	0.3	0.06	
	9	37	0.032	< 1.3			
	8	38	0.028	< 0.8			
	2	42	0.013	< 1.1			
A' 0	5	40	0.01/	<1./			
Air 3	8	41	0.015	< 1.8	0.3	0.06	
	8	38	0.016	< 1.6			
	1	37	0.026	<1.4			
	1	41	0.015	< 1.0			
A:# 4	4	40	0.016	< 1.1	0.0	0.00	
Alf 4	8	38	0.015	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	0 7	37	0.015	< 1.0			
	1	30	0.015	< 1.4			
	1	44	0.047	< 1.0			
Air 5	4	42	0.043	< 2.2	0.3	0.06	
All 5	7 8	42	0.044	< 1.7	0.5	0.00	
	8	40	0.034	<1.7			
01 02 2019	0	1	0.001	<u> </u>			
01.02.2010							
	3	35	0.011	< 1.8			
A*	/	34	0.010	<2.8		0.00	
Air 1	10	34	0.008	<2.1	0.3	0.06	
	10	30	0.007	<2.3			
	10	<u>31</u>	0.005	< 1.4			
	4	32	0.008	< 1.9			
Air 2	0 10	30	0.008	< 2.2	0.3	0.06	
All Z	10	28	0.006	< 1.0	0.5	0.00	
	11	28	0.003	< 1.8			
	4	33	0.007	< 1.8			
	8	30	0.000	< 1.0			
Air 3	11	29	0.005	<18	0.3	0.06	
741 0	11	28	0.006	<1.0	0.0	0.00	
	10	27	0.005	< 1.3			
	3	36	0.007	<1.4			
	8	31	0.006	< 1.1			
Air 4	10	30	0.005	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	11	31	0.008	< 1.0			
	11	30	0.008	< 1.2			
	3	37	0.010	< 1.4			
	7	34	0.011	< 2.1			
Air 5	11	30	0.009	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	11	31	0.008	< 1.7			
	10	32	0.006	< 2.0			
02.02.2018							
	4	34	0.045	< 1.8			
	7	31	0.017	< 3.2			
Air 1	11	30	0.016	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	12	31	0.042	< 2.9	0.0	0.00	
	· —	• •	0.012				

February 2018

Point of measurement	Temperature, °C	Relative humidity, %	PM10, mg/ m ³	Wind speed, m/ sec	MPC max, mg/ m ³	MPC daily average, mg/ m ³	Compliance
	11	30	0.016	< 2.0			
	3	36	0.046	<1.2			
	8	35	0.014	< 1.8			
Air 2	12	33	0.049	< 1.9	0.3	0.06	
	12	32	0.051	< 1.4			
	10	31	0.034	< 1.5			
	3	32	0.049	< 1.4			
	7	30	0.052	< 1.6			
Air 3	11	29	0.056	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	11	28	0.055	<1.7			
	10	28	0.050	< 1.0			
	3	34	0.016	< 1.0			
	7	30	0.012	<1.1			
Air 4	10	29	0.024	< 1.3	0.3	0.06	
	12	28	0.015	< 0.9			
	11	28	0.030	< 1.1			
	3	37	0.046	< 1.6			
	6	35	0.046	< 2.7			
Air 5	10	32	0.038	< 2.1	0.3	0.06	
	11	31	0.049	< 2.4			
	11	30	0.047	< 2.1			
03.02.2018							_
	3	33	0.028	< 1.6			
	5	31	0.022	< 2.0			
Air 1	7	30	0.027	< 1.6	0.3	0.06	
	8	29	0.020	< 1.9			
	8	29	0.029	< 1.0			
	3	35	0.033	<1.1			
	6	34	0.019	< 1.2			
Air 2	8	32	0.054	< 1.4	0.3	0.06	
	9	30	0.037	< 0.9			
	8	30	0.032	< 1.2			
	2	36	0.026	< 1.8			
	6	35	0.021	< 2.1			
Air 3	7	32	0.032	< 1.7	0.3	0.06	
	8	33	0.035	< 1.4			
	7	31	0.047	<1.1			
	2	38	0.028	< 1.5			
	5	35	0.031	< 1.4			
Air 4	6	36	0.037	< 1.2	0.3	0.06	
	8	32	0.039	<1.7			
	8	32	0.040	< 1.0			
	2	39	0.036	< 1.5			
	5	36	0.032	< 1.4			
Air 5	7	36	0.041	<1.1	0.3	0.06	
	8	34	0.035	< 1.4			
	8	33	0.029	<2.0			

Rev01

Main conclusions

- 1) 750 instrumental measurements were conducted in 5 sensitive points (Air 1, Air 2, Air 3, Air 4 and Air 5) during 30 days to determine the PM10 actual concentration. 5 measurements were conducted at each point per day, which means that totally 150 PM10 measurements were carried out at each point. The results of the study were compared with PM permissible concentrations (maximal is 0.3 mg/m³ and daily average is 0.06 mg/m³).
- 2) PM10 (dust particles of 10um size) actual concentrations at all sensitive points (Air 1, Air 2, Air 3, Air 4 and Air 5) in different daytime periods during the 30 days measurements don't exceed the daily average and maximum permissible concentrations for residential areas set by the RA Government Decree №160-N "Norms of maximum permissible concentrations of atmospheric air pollutants in residential areas".

ANNEX 1. Map of measurement points











ATMS Solutions

February 2018



ATMS Solutions

February 2018



ATMS Solutions


Rev01



ATMS Solutions



ATMS Solutions



ATMS Solutions



ATMS Solutions



Rev01



ATMS Solutions

Rev01



ATMS Solutions





ATMS Solutions

Rev01

ANNEX 3. Verification documents of measuring devices

2UBUUSULF 2ULTUALSAFABBUL ԷԿՈՆՈՄԻԿԱՅԻ ՆԱԽԱՐԱՐՈՒԹՅՈՒՆ ບແrՄԻՆ)
ՎԿԱՅԱԿԱՆ № 017243
ՍՏՈԻԳԱՉԱՓՄԱՆ ՄԱՍԻՆ
Homeway have adult for 201 To a 22
Ուժի մեջ է մինչև 201 <u>% թ. 01 «/%</u> »
Minting
5BEK. 431110.02 C5
Anntunuliuuhli hi 89690
Quebour 100 -10 -50/2 : (3-32) % Life (30-110) 2min
surfine alline by Subser and the 1 = (31 = 30) 2/5
f_{2} ση τερμά ημαρη (μηρη (μηραμιαρρ) $f_{2}^{2} c_{-}^{2} + 3 c_{+}^{3} + o_{+} s_{+}^{3} m_{+} c_{+} s_{+}^{3} m_{+}^{3}$ μησιμηρη (1+20) $f_{+}^{2} - s_{+}^{2} + (0, 1+o_{+}o_{+})$ μησιμηρη $f_{+}^{2} + s_{-}^{2} + (0, 1+o_{+}o_{+})$ ημοι ημαρισμό τη $f_{+}^{2} + s_{+}^{2} + s_{+}^{$
Ստուգաչափման արդյունքների հիման վրա չափման միջոցը ճանաչվել է պիտանի և թույլատրվում է կիրառման։
Ստուգաչափումը կատարվել է համաձայն 202
Unniquesuipno Burger R.
Բաժնի (լաբորատորիայի) ղեկավար
Յաստատված է էկոնոմիկայի նախարարի։ 14.02.2013թ. թիվ 104-Ն հրամանով Գրանցված է։ ՅՅ՝ Արդարադատության նախարարության կողմից 21.03.2013թ. թիվ 10313102

9.2 Annex 2: NO₂ and SO₂ Baseline Studies

REPORT

On Air Monitoring

In July-August 2017, air sampling from 5 points was carried out by the task presented by FICHTNER specialists.

Sampling was performed by natural diffusion method, through passive samplers.

The duration of all sampling was 7 days, the exact time of installation and removal was fixed for days, hours and minutes.

The samplers after removal were transported to the Laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection, where the content of SO_2 and NO_2 were determined by the chemical analysis method.

Measurement results are given below.

Table 1. Point coordinates

Point	Latitude	Longitude
Air 1	40° 6'39.08"N	44°29'35.57"E
Air 2	40° 6'20.92"N	44°28'49.68"E
Air 3	40° 7'0.26"N	44°30'0.58"E
Air 4	40° 6'6.11"N	44°30'51.85"E
Air 5	40° 8'25.39"N	44°33'41.81"E

Table 2. Results of the analysis according to points

Name of pollutants	Allowed pollutant concentrations: ¹ , mg/m ³		Air 1	Air 2	Air 3	Air 4	Air 5
	Average daily	Maximum short term					
NO ₂	0.04	0.2	0.016	0.0119	0.0213	0.0201	0.0092
SO ₂	0.05	0.5	0.0194	0.0221	0.0284	0.0328	0.0317

¹ Maximum Permissible Concentration of Air Polluting Substances in Settlements and Maximum Permissible Norms of Hazardous Substances in Emissions from Vehicles Operated in the Republic of Armenia (Decree of the Government of Armenia No. 160-N dated 2 February 2006)



CONSECOARD LLC

Address: 24, Azatutyan ave., Yerevan, Armenia <u>www.consecoard.am</u> E-mail: <u>tevosyan@consecoard.am</u> <u>inbox@consecoard.am</u>

REPORT N2 (Autumn) On Air Monitoring Yerevan, November 15, 2017

In November 2017, air sampling from 5 points was carried out by the task presented by FICHTNER specialists.

Sampling was performed by natural diffusion method, through passive samplers.

The duration of all sampling was 10 days because the rainy weather, the exact time of installation and removal was fixed for days, hours and minutes.

The samplers after removal were transported to the Laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection, where the content of SO_2 and NO_2 were determined by the chemical analysis method.

Measurement results are given below.

Table 1. Point coordinates

Point	Latitude	Longitude
Air 1	40° 6'39.08"N	44°29'35.57"E
Air 2	40° 6'20.92"N	44°28'49.68"E
Air 3	40° 7'0.26"N	44°30'0.58"E
Air 4	40° 6'5.35"N	44°30'49.03"E
Air 5	40° 8'25.39"N	44°33'41.81"E

Table 2. Results of the analysis according to points

Name of pollutants	Allowed pollutant concentrations: ¹ . mg/m ³		Air 1	Air 2	Air 3	Air 4	Air 5	Average
P	Average daily	Maximum short term						
NO ₂	0.04	0.2	0.0043	0.0047	0.0045	0.0047	0.0047	0.0046
SO ₂	0.05	0.5	0.0187	0.0267	0.0197	0.0262	0.0335	0.0250

Director

V.Tevosyan

¹ Maximum Permissible Concentration of Air Polluting Substances in Settlements and Maximum Permissible Norms of Hazardous Substances in Emissions from Vehicles Operated in the Republic of Armenia (Decree of the Government of Armenia No. 160-N dated 2 February 2006)

ՀԱՍՏԱՏՈՒՄ ԵՄ Պատվիրատուի անուն՝ **«Քոնսեկոարդ» ՍՊԸ** «Շրջակա միջավայրի մոնիթորինգի և Նմուշաոման ամսաթիվ՝ 02-13.11.2017թ. յրեղեկատվության կենտրոն» ՊՈԱԿ-ի Արդյունքների տրման ամսաթիվ՝ 14.11.2017թ. տոսօրեսի տեղակալ

9. Շահնազարյան

leud «14» «11» 2017p.

ՋԷԿ-ի մերձակա տարածքի մթնոլորտային օդի որակի երկրորդ ուսումնասիրության արդյունքները

	Ուսումնասիրվող դիտակետում միջ կոնցենտրացիա, մգ/մ ³		
Նմուշառման դիտակետի համար	ՍԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,05 Ծծմբի երկօքսիդ	ՍԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,04 Ազոտի երկօքսիդ	
PS1 ·	0.0187	0.0043	
PS2	0.0267	0.0047	
PS3	0.0197	0.0045	
PS4	0.0262	0.0047	
PS5	0.0335	0.0047	
Ուսումնասիրվող տարածքում միջին կոնցենտրացիա, մգ/մ ³	0.0250	0.0046	

ՍԹԿ-սահմանային թույլատրելի կոնցենտրացիա

Օդի որակի ուսումնասիրության լաբորատորիայի վարիչ / Katon

Ա. Գաբրիելյան



CONSECOARD LLC

Address: 24, Azatutyan ave., Yerevan, Armenia <u>www.consecoard.am</u> E-mail: <u>tevosyan@consecoard.am</u> <u>inbox@consecoard.am</u>

REPORT N3 (winter) On Air Monitoring Yerevan, February 1, 2018

In December 2017 – January 2018, air sampling from 5 points was carried out by the task presented by FICHTNER specialists. Such measurements have been done for 3 times.

Sampling was performed by natural diffusion method, through passive samplers.

The duration of each sampling was 10 days, the exact time of installation and removal was fixed for days, hours and minutes.

The samplers after removal were transported to the Laboratory of Environmental Monitoring and Information Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection, where the content of SO_2 and NO_2 were determined by the chemical analysis method.

Measurement results are given below.

Table 1. Point coordinates

Point	Latitude	Longitude
Air 1	40° 6'39.08"N	44°29'35.57"E
Air 2	40° 6'20.92"N	44°28'49.68"E
Air 3	40° 7'0.26"N	44°30'0.58"E
Air 4	40° 6'5.35"N	44°30'49.03"E
Air 5	40° 8'25.39"N	44°33'41.81"E

Table 2. Results of the analysis according to points: December 29, 2017 – January 8, 2018

Name of pollutants	Allowed pollutant concentrations ¹ , mg/m ³		Air 1	Air 2	Air 3	Air 4	Air 5	Average
	Average daily	Maximum short term						
NO ₂	0.04	0.2	0.0171	0.0229	0.0265	0.0191	0.0259	0.0223
SO ₂	0.05	0.5	0.0387	0.0238	0.0211	0.0118	0.0120	0.0215

¹ Maximum Permissible Concentration of Air Polluting Substances in Settlements and Maximum Permissible Norms of Hazardous Substances in Emissions from Vehicles Operated in the Republic of Armenia (Decree of the Government of Armenia No. 160-N dated 2 February 2006)

Name of pollutants	Allowed pollutant concentrations, mg/m ³		Air 1	Air 2	Air 3	Air 4	Air 5	Average
	Average daily	Maximum short term						
NO ₂	0.04	0.2	0.0184	0.0082	0.0152	0.0195	0.0153	0.0153
SO ₂	0.05	0.5	0.0116	0.0101	0.0283	0.0062	0.0284	0.0169

Table 3. Results of the analysis according to points: January 9, 2018 - January 19, 2018

Table 4. Results of the analysis according to points: January 19, 2018 - January 29, 2018

Name of pollutants	Allowed pollutant concentrations, mg/m ³		Air 1	Air 2	Air 3	Air 4	Air 5	Average
	Average daily	Maximum short term						
NO ₂	0.04	0.2	0.0120	0.0170	0.0188	0.0115	0.0170	0.0156
SO ₂	0.05	0.5	0.0259	0.0189	0.0202	0.0334	0.0375	0.0272

Table 5. Average figures for 3 measurements of winter campaign

Name of	Allowed pollutant	Average	
pollutants	Average daily	Maximum short term	
NO ₂	0.04	0.2	0.01773
SO ₂	0.05	0.5	0.02187

Director

V.Tevosyan

ՀԱՍՏԱՏՈՒՄ ԵՄ

«Շրջակա միջավայրի մոնիթորինգի և տեղեկատվության կենտրոն» ՊՈԱԿ-ի տնօրենի տեղակայ

տնօրենի տեղակալ Գ. Շահնազարյան Averi « 12 » « 01 » 2018р.

Պատվիրատուի անուն՝ **«Քոնսեկոարդ» ՍՊԸ** Նմուշառման ամսաթիվ՝ 29.12.2017-08.01.2018թ. Արդյունքների տրման ամսաթիվ՝ 12.01.2018թ.

> Երևան ՋԷԿ-ի մերձակա բնակելի հատվածում մթնոլորտային օդի որակի ձմեռային N 1 ուսումնասիրության արդյունքները

	Ուսումնասիրվող դիտակետում միջին օրական կոնցենտրացիա, մգ/մ ³			
Նմուշառման դիտակետի համար	ՍԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,05 Ծծմբի երկօքսիդ	ՍԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,04 Ազոտի երկօքսիդ		
PS1	0,0387	0,0171		
PS2	0,0238	0,0229		
PS3	0,0211	0,0265		
* PS4	0,0118	0,0191 ,		
PS5	0,0120	. 0,0259		
Ուսումնասիրվող տարածքում միջին կոնցենտրացիա, մգ/մ ³	0,0215	0,0223		

ՍԹԿ-սահմանային թույլատրելի կոնցենտրացիա

guiceee

Ա. Գաբրիելյան

Օդի որակի ուսումնասիրության լաբորատորիայի վարիչ

Պատվիրատուի անուն՝ **«Քոնսեկոարդ» ՍՊԸ** Նմուշառման ամսաթիվ՝ 09.01-19.01.2018թթ. Արդյունքների տրման ամսաթիվ՝ 30.01.2018թ. ՀԱՍՏԱՏՈՒՄ ԵՄ

«Շրջակա միջավայրի մոնիթորինգի և տեղեկատվության կենտրոն» ՊՈԱԿ-ի տնօրենի տեղակալ

Գ. Շահնազարյան

« 30 » « 01 » 2018р.

feeer

Երևան ՋԷԿ-ի մերձակա բնակելի հատվածում մթնոլորտային օդի որակի ձմեռային N 2 ուսումնասիրության արդյունքները

	Ուսումնասիրվող դիտակետում միջին օրական կոնցենտրացիա , մգ/մ ³		
Նմուշառման դիտակետի համար	ՍԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,05 Ծծմբի երկօքսիդ	ՄԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,04 Ազոտի երկօքսիդ	
PS1	0.0116	0.0184	
PS2	0.0101	0.0082	
PS3	0.0283	0.0152	
» PS4	0.0062	0.0195	
PS5	0.0284	0.0153	
Ուսումնասիրվող տարածքում միջին կոնցենտրացիա, մգ/մ ³	0.0169	0.0153	

ՍԹԿ-սահմանային թույլատրելի կոնցենտրացիա

Օդի մոնիթորինգի լաբորատորիայի վարիչ *ցապար* Ա. Գաբրիելյան

ՀԱՍՏԱՏՈՒՄ ԵՄ

«Շրջակա միջավայրի մոնիթորինգի և տեղեկատվության կենտրոն» ՊՈԱԿ-ի տնօրենի տեղակալ

Պատվիրատուի անուն՝ **«Քոնսեկոարդ» ՍՊԸ** Նմուշառման ամսաթիվ՝ 19.01-29.01.2018թթ. Արդյունքների տրման ամսաթիվ՝ 30.01.2018թ.

Գ. Շահնազարյան

decore

« 30» « 01 » 2018p.

Երևան ՋԷԿ-ի մերձակա բնակելի հատվածում մթնոլորտային օդի որակի ձմեռային N 3 ուսումնասիրության արդյունքները

	Ուսումնասիրվող դիտակետում միջին օրական կոնցենտրացիա , մգ/մ ³		
Նմուշառման դիտակետի համար –	ՍԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,05 Ծծմբի երկօքսիդ	ՄԹԿ _{միջ.օր} = 0,04 Ազոտի երկօքսիդ	
PS1	0.0259	0.0120	
PS2	0.0189	0.0170	
PS3	0.0202	0.0188	
PS4	0.0334	0.0115	
PS5	0.0375	0.0170	
Ուսումնասիրվող տարածքում միջին կոնցենտրացիա, մգ/մ ³	0.0272	0.0156	

ՍԹԿ-սահմանային թույլատրելի կոնցենտրացիա

grangy Ա. Գաբրիելյան

Օդի մոնիթորինգի լաբորատորիայի վարիչ

9.3 Annex 3: Temperature statistics in Yerevan - Winter 2017 *vs.* historical data (raw data source: accuweather.com)





Yerevan 2 CC Power Plant Armpower CJSC

Stakeholder Engagement Plan



Source: Fichtner (July 2017)

FICHTNER

FICHTNER

Sarweystrasse 3 70191 Stuttgart • Germany Phone: +49 711 8995-0 Fax: +49 711 8995-459

www.fichtner.de

Please contact:Sofia SousaExtension:726E-mail:sofia.sousa@fichtner.de

Rev No.	Rev-date	Contents /amendments	Prepared/revised	Checked/released
0	18.08.2017	Stakeholder Engagement Plan - Draft Report	Sousa/Paulsch/ Martin	Heinold
1	05.10.2017	Stakeholder Engagement Plan - Draft Final Report	Sousa	Heinold
2	20.11.2017	Stakeholder Engagement Plan - Draft Final Report	Paulsch	Sousa
3	07.12.2017	Stakeholder Engagement Plan - Draft Final Report	Sousa	Paulsch
4	14.02.2018	Stakeholder Engagement Plan - Final Report	Sousa	Paulsch
5	19.03.2018	Stakeholder Engagement Plan - Final Report	Sousa	Paulsch

Table of Contents

1.	Inti	roduc	tion	1-1
	1.1	Brief	Project description	1-1
2.	Pu	blic C	onsultation Regulations and Requirements	2-1
	2.1	Natio	nal framework	2-1
	2.2	Intern	ational framework	2-1
	2.	2.1	Stakeholders	2-2
	2.	2.2	Information Disclosure	2-3
	2.	2.3	Public Consultation	2-4
	2.	2.4	Grievance Mechanism	2-6
3.	Su	mmar	y of previous stakeholder engagement activities	3-1
4.	Pro	oject S	Stakeholders	4-1
5.	Infe	ormat	ion disclosure and consultation methods	5-1
	5.1	Engag	gement during the ESIA preparation	5-1
	5.	1.1	Notification of the project to the local authorities	5-1
	5.	1.2	Disclosure of the Draft Final ESIA and respective Non Technical Executive Summary	5-2
	5.2	Engag	gement during construction	5-5
	5.3	Engag	gement during operation	5-5
	5.4	Docu	mentation	5-6
6.	Gri	evano	ce Mechanism	6-1
	6.1	Gener	ral public grievance mechanism	6-1
	6.2	Work	ers grievance mechanism	6-3
7.	Tin	netabl	e	7-1
8.	Ro	les an	nd responsibilities	8-1
	8.1	Devel	loper - ArmPower/RENCO	8-1
	8.2	EPC (Contractor - RENCO SPA	8-1
	8.3	Proje	ct Operator - ArmPower/RENCO	8-2
	8.4	Suppo	orting roles - local authorties and NGOs	8-2
9.	Fin	al ren	narks	9-1
10). Ref	ferenc	ces	10-1

FICHTNER

11. Annexes	
11.1 Annex 1 - Invitations for the previous public consultation sessions	11-1
11.2 Annex 2 - Form for comments	11-1
11.3 Annex 3 - Stakeholder Log	11-2
11.4 Annnex 4 - Public Grievances Form	11-3

List of Figures

Figure 5-1:	Project site and its vicinity5	;-3	;
-------------	--------------------------------	-----	---

List of Tables

Table 2-1:	'able 2-1:Different techniques for undertaking Public Consultation (ADB,		
	2012)	2-5	
Table 4-1:	Stakeholder Analysis List	4-2	
Table 7-1:	Stakeholder Engagement and ESIA Schedule	7-1	
Table 7-2:	Stakeholder Engagement Schedule during construction and operation	7-2	

1. Introduction

The present Final **Stakeholder Engagement Plan** (SEP) is prepared within the context of the Final Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) of the Yerevan CCPP - 2 project.

The SEP describes the strategy and program to be implemented for engaging with the stakeholders of the Project in a culturally and timely appropriate manner. The goal is to ensure the timely provision of relevant and understandable information and to create a process that provides opportunities for stakeholders to express their opinions, aspirations and suggestions about environmental measures, eventual land acquisition and social impacts of the project, and that allows the Project Developer to consider and respond to them.

It is important to note that the Project has been in the past subject to a process of public consultation and that an Environmental Permit has been granted. The public engagement activities defined in the present SEP have as an objective to engage the public once more in a process that assures as well compliance with the requirements of the IFIs (International Financing Institutions) ADB (Asian Development Bank) and IFC (International Financing Financing Corporation).

1.1 Brief Project description

The Ministry of Energy (MOE) of the Republic of Armenia plans to improve the total output capacity of its electric energy production, complementing the power units of the existing Yerevan Combined Cycle Thermal Power Plant (YCCPP-1) with a modern and efficient power plant. For this reason a new gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant of 254 MWe (YCCPP-2) is planned to be built at the site next to the existing YCCPP-1, in an already industrialized region in the south of Yerevan.

The foreseen site location allows co-utilizing the existing auxiliary systems of YCCPP-1 such as water intake and discharge structures, fuel gas regulators, adjacent substation and devices. Possible alternative locations for the proposed new YCCPP-2 had been considered prior to opting for the foreseen site. On account to minimize the additional costs for newly developing such a site and modifying the transmission network to accommodate the new power plant, the foreseen site was selected together with MOE as a final option.

The Project has already been given national approval, which is documented in the following Conclusion: *RA Minister of Nature Protection* (11.01.2017): State Expert Examination Conclusion on Expert Examination of Influence on the Environment BP 02. Report of evaluation of influence on environment of the new power station in Yerevan with combined cycle of steam and gas. The new CCPP will include a Gas Turbine (GT), a Steam Turbine (ST), and a Heat Recovery Steam Generator (HRSG) and all auxiliary equipment and systems that, at local condition with an ambient temperature of 15°C, will produce 254 MW. Interconnections to gas, water and electrical grid are already in place (the new CCPP will use interconnections of existing YCCPP-1).

RENCO SPA will be the EPC Contractor for this Project, which will be operated by ArmPower CJSC, a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA.

2. Public Consultation Regulations and Requirements

This Section provides a brief description of the national regulation of Armenia concerning the public participation in the process of ESIA. Also the IFIs' requirements in these matters are summarized.

The Project has been in the past subject to a process of public consultation and obtained the necessary environmental license. For this reason, the present SEP and the corresponding procedures are/will be undertaken with the main focus of respecting the standards of the IFIs.

2.1 National framework

The notification of stakeholders in the Republic of Armenia and the implementation of public hearings are regulated by the Law on Environmental Impact Assessment and Examination (Article 26).

The public hearings organization is carried out according to the procedure defined by the Decree N 1325-N dated 19.11.2014. Depending on the impact of the planned activity, 2 or 4 hearings are conducted. The first and third hearings are organized by the affected community and the customer, the second and fourth hearings by the affected community and the Expertise Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection with the participation of the client.

2.2 International framework

The SEP follows the IFIs requirements for public engagement, namely the ones depicted in the following documents:

- ADB, 2009: Safeguard Policy Statement, ADB, Philippines, 2009
- ADB, 2012: Strengthening participation for development results an Asian Development Bank guide to Participation, ADB, Philippines, 2012
- IFC, 1998: Doing Better Business through Effective Public Consultation and Disclosure - A Good Practice Manual, IFC, Washington, D.C., October 1998
- IFC, 2007: Stakeholder Engagement: a good practice handbook for companies doing business in emerging markets, IFC, Washington, D.C., May 2007
- IFC, 2012: Performance Standard 1 Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts, IFC, Washington, D.C., January 2012

The requirements of importance for the Project are summarized in the following sections.

2.2.1 Stakeholders

Stakeholders are those who will be or are likely to be directly or indirectly affected, positively or negatively, by a project (commonly referred to as project-affected people or project-affected communities), as well as those who might have an interest in, or may influence, the project (the "interested parties").

Generally, stakeholders can be distributed in the following three groups (adapted from ADB, 2012 and IFC, 1998):

a) Civil society:

- General public: directly or indirectly affected population groups and subgroups (e.g., youth, girls, and women's groups), and ethnic minority groups:
 - People owning land or assets impacted by the project, both onand off-site.
 - People using agricultural land or natural resources, such as forests or rivers.
 - Squatters already on-site.
 - Immigrants attracted to the project and its potential labor benefits prior to implementation.
 - People's organizations and institutions affected by the project, such as village development associations, recreational groups, women's groups, farming and fishing cooperatives, and religious groups.
 - Locally disadvantaged and voiceless groups, such as the poor and women.
 - Indigenous or tribal peoples with special ties to land, or who have specific land, resource, and cultural rights that may be protected by national or international law.
 - People from surrounding villages who may be potential sources of labor.
- Civil society organizations: national and international NGOs, community-based organizations, foundations, labor unions, and independent research institutes.
- Informal representatives: scientific community, school teachers, religious leaders.

b) Government:

- Central Government: civil servants in ministries, cabinets, etc.
- Representative assemblies: elected government bodies (e.g., parliament, national and local assemblies, and elected community leaders)
- Bilateral and multilateral government institutions: international financial institutions, bilateral government donors, etc.

c) Private Sector:

- Private companies (including suppliers, customers, and contractors), umbrella groups representing groups in the private sector, and chambers of commerce.
- The media.

According to IFC PS 1 (2012), the stakeholders of the Project, including Affected Communities, shall be identified and a tailored SEP shall be prepared.

2.2.2 Information Disclosure

Disclosure is a formal-sounding term for making information accessible to stakeholders. Information is critical to the effective participation of affected citizens near the project. An informed public will better understand the trade-offs between project benefits and disadvantages; be able to contribute meaningfully to project design; and have greater trust in its new corporate neighbors. Communicating such information in a manner that is understandable to the stakeholders is an important first (and ongoing) step in the process of stakeholder engagement (IFC 2007; IFC 1998). Good practice principles in what concerns information disclosure are:

- Early disclosure: in order for the engagement process to be efficient, the disclosure of information about the project shall be undertaken early in the planning schedule, that is, before the decision-making has been finally undertaken and any impacts have been delivered. Only this way it is possible to include the stakeholders' visions and opinions on the decisions concerning the project.
- Disclose objective information: as far as possible, inform the stakeholders about numbers and facts (even if preliminary), so to avoid the creation of false expectations or unnecessary alarm.
- Design disclosure to support consultation: crucially, leave sufficient time between the provision of information about the benefits and disadvantages of the project (or changes to project operations and their implications) and the start of consultations.
- Provide meaningful information: transmit the information in a matter that is culturally adequate to the targeted public. Consider the local language, the access to information media, the literacy levels, etc.
- Ensure the accessibility of information adapt the disclosure techniques to the targeted public.

2.2.3 Public Consultation

Consultation is a process of deliberation, discussion and dialogue. It is more than just disclosing information, although clear, transparent and timely information is the basis for any consultation process. The objective of the consultation is also to seek feedback, advice and opinion of the stakeholders in order to shape the project, to the extent possible, to their needs and concerns. In this sense, the vulnerable groups shall be given a particular chance of having their voice heard.

The IFIs require that the client undertakes a process of meaningful consultation in a manner that provides the interested and affected parties with opportunities to express their views on project risks, impacts, and mitigation measures, and allows the client to consider and respond to them. Meaningful consultation is the one that (based on IFC, 2012):

- is based on the disclosure of relevant and adequate information including, where appropriate and relevant, draft documents and plans, prior to decisions being taken when options are still open;
- is undertaken early in the environmental and social appraisal process;
- focus on the social and environmental risks and adverse impacts, and the proposed measures and actions to address these;
- is carried out on an ongoing basis as the nature of issues, impacts and opportunities evolves;
- is undertaken in a manner that is inclusive and culturally appropriate, i.e., tailored to the language preferences of the affected parties, their decision-making process, and the needs of any disadvantaged or vulnerable groups;
- is free of external manipulation, interference, coercion or intimidation;
- reports back in a timely way to those consulted.

There is a vast amount of reference literature and tool kits detailing the variety of participatory techniques and methodologies that can be employed as part of the stakeholder engagement process. However, as is the case with most aspects of the process, the choice of methods will depend on the aim of the consultation, the nature of those being consulted (language, literacy, location, exposure to issues), and the timescale/resources available. Using more than one method yields better responses - in quality and quantity. Different methods can also produce different results (IFC, 2007; ADB, 2012).

Table 3-1 presents some of the techniques that are commonly used for undertaking Public Consultation during an ESIA process.

FICHTNER

Table 2-1:Different techniques for undertaking Public Consultation (ADB,2012)

Tecnique	Description
Online and Written Consultation	This typically involves using a specific consultation web page to introduce the policy, strategy, or project and the aim of the consultation. The consultation structure varies. A draft document, broad topics, or open-ended questions can be used to guide comments or a survey style with closed questions. Public comments allow discussion between stakeholders. Social media can be used. Online consultation enables open public consultation, but it only reaches those who are literate and with internet access, and therefore not the most disadvantaged. Written feedback posted or e-mailed is also common.
Public Meeting	Meetings are an open accessible method of consulting with the public. They take place at any level (community, regional, national, etc.). Ensure they are fully accessible and give adequate notice to interested bodies. Also the meeting size affects participation. Groups of fewer than 20 people ensure everyone can speak. Breakout sessions and participatory methodologies (e.g., ranking, diagrams) can help capture all viewpoints.
Workshop	Workshops involve gathering a group to gain their feedback in a structured format. The face-to-face format allows for brainstorming and testing ideas. Preferable to a single workshop, a series produces greater output. Try different workshop types (e.g., open space, write shop, participatory methods). Facilitation is important, and a skilled neutral individual can help ensure group rules are clear, views are taken seriously, and no participant dominates.
Focus Group Discussion (FGD)	Semi-structured qualitative discussions with a small homogenous group (generally 5–12 participants plus 1–2 skilled facilitators). Open discussion explores people's attitudes, concerns, and preferences toward a specific issue, with the range of viewpoints collated at the end. The mix of people depends on the purpose but numbers are typically restricted to 15 or fewer. Community members not used to formal meetings may feel more comfortable expressing themselves in a FGD (e.g., women, ethnic minorities, or disadvantaged groups; the disabled; or poor individuals and households).
In-Depth Interview	Qualitative phone or face-to-face interviews with individuals (e.g., community members, key informants, or civil society leaders) can get a sense of stakeholders' perspectives. They can be structured (formal, and closely following a written interview guide), semi-structured (partially directed by an interview guide, but open and conversational to allow interviewees to introduce other topics of interest), or unstructured (organized around a few general questions or topics, but informal and open-ended) depending on the context. Structured interviews are likely to yield information that can be compared and generalized, while less structured ones can explore an issue in depth and permit related issues to be raised. Interviews with key informants possessing particular knowledge of an issue are especially useful.
Survey	Surveys provide specific responses on certain issues. They can rapidly show who is interested and why and provide quantitative data. They indicate the weight of different views. Conduct surveys by post, online, or face to face.

2.2.4 Grievance Mechanism

A Grievance Mechanism constitutes the process by which people affected by the project can bring their grievances to the sponsor, in a culturally appropriate manner for consideration and redress (IFC, 1998). It is good international practice to ensure access to grievance and remedy to both the workers and the public by means of separate grievance mechanisms.

Ideally, grievance procedures should be in place from the beginning of the social and environmental assessment process and exist throughout construction and operation until the end of the project life. The promoter will duly inform workers and community members of the existence of the grievance mechanism.

The same way as for the information disclosure and consultation procedures, also the grievance procedures shall be readily understandable, accessible and culturally appropriate for the local population. It shall not be overly complicated to use nor should it require legal counsel to complete. However, the grievance redress mechanism shall not impede the access to legal counsel in case the negotiations fail. The following are desired characteristics of the grievance mechanism:

- legitimate and trusted;
- scaled to the risks and potential adverse impacts of the project;
- publicized and accessible, appropriately tailored to all potentiallyaffected persons and communities and other interested parties, irrespectively of their literacy and administrative capacity;
- free of cost for the stakeholders;
- includes the anonymity option, where feasible, and guarantee confidential handling of requests, if so requested by the complainant;
- fair, transparent and inclusive;
- guided by engagement and dialogue;
- predictable in terms of process;
- timely appropriate;
- not impeding access to grievance and resolution on grounds of one's financial ability to seek judicial remedy; and,
- a source of continuous learning for the promoter and the lending operation at large.

3. Summary of previous stakeholder engagement activities

During the preparation of the National ESIA (Ecobarik-Audit LLC 2016), consulting and information disclosure activities with some stakeholder groups have been undertaken.

Being nationally classified as a Category A Project, the YCCPP - 2 was subject to 4 public hearings in 2016. All hearings were held at RENCO Armenia's office.

The invitations for the sessions can be consulted in **Annex 1** to this report. Records of the hearings, the participants' lists with the signatures and the video clips were submitted to the Ministry of Nature Protection of the Republic of Armenia. They are not available for disclosure in this report.

The objective of the present SEP is to prepare a process of public consultation that will respect the requirements of the IFIs associated with the project. This new public consultation process will complement the national process undertaken in the past by:

- Encouraging the participation of the general public, interested NGOs and the concerned national authorities by means of a wide disclosure of information, a public session and a possibility for written participation;
- Presenting the changes in the design that have been done to the project since 2016;
- Record the results of the sessions and make them publicly available in the final ESIA Report.

4. Project Stakeholders

As stakeholders are identified, it is necessary to understand their level of interest and influence over the project, as well as the extent to which they are impacted (directly or indirectly).

The information obtained so far shows that there are some temporary informal houses nearby the project site (several families to the northeast and one woman to the south west). The land occupied by these temporary informal houses is not affected by the Project. All these residents are Armenian.

Table 4-1 lists these and other stakeholders identified so far for this project.

Table 4-1:Stakeholder Analysis List

Stakeholders	Stakeholder Interest	Perception of the problem/Issues to be discussed	Resources	Mandate in the project's context	Contact data
Civil Society					
Aarhus Center, NGO	Assist the public in exercising their rights granted by the international and national legislation	Environmental and social impacts of the project; Environmental and Social Management Plan	Internal budget and staff	The Centre's task is to promote the principles of the Aarhus Convention and work towards its implementation. Aarhus Centre will share the information about the public consultation meeting as well as the relevant documents with other NGOs.	Silva Ayvazyan Head of Yerevan Aarhus Centre info@aarhus.am (+374) 91 81-60-55 46 building Charents str. Yerevan
Informal Residents	They can be directly affected by environmental and social issues	Environmental and social impacts of the project; Environmental and Social Management Plan	Public resources (air, water, soil)	Not applicable	Not applicable. People are involved through publicly available invitations.
Inhabitants of surrounding areas	They can be directly affected by environmental and social issues; They can be potential sources of labor	Environmental and social impacts of the project; Environmental and Social Management Plan; Job opportunities	Work force Public resources (air, water, soil)	Not applicable	Not applicable. People are involved through publicly available invitations.
Private Sector					
Local businesses	Located in the Project Area of Influence Can be directly affected by environmental and social issues	ESIA, Environmental and Social Management Plan, SEP; Business opportunities	Internal budget and staff	Not applicable	Not applicable. Local businesses are involved through publicly available invitations.
Stakeholders	Stakeholder Interest	Perception of the problem/Issues to be discussed	Resources	Mandate in the project's context	Contact data
------------------	--	---	---	--	---
Media	Publication of information about the EIA process Publication of mandatory advertisements related to the project (e.g. public consultations)	Disclosure of project's information	Communication platforms (TV, radio, internet, newspapers)	The national, regional and local media fulfill the communication needs of the project.	Not applicable
Government					
Ayntap Village	Located in the Project Area of Influence; Residents can be directly affected by environmental and social issues	ESIA, Environmental and Social Management Plan, SEP; Disclosure of project's information; Public consultation in order to collect comments and questions	Internal budget and staff	Governments give orders in accordance with the law on implementation of public consultations on the projects of local importance, which can have economic, environmental and social consequences (for life of the people, for culture, health and social protection for local communities and public services), as well as on other issues which are of interest for all population of the administrative/ territory unit or its part.	+(374 094) 722-222 Ayntap village, Ararat Marz Head of Community Karen Sargsyan <u>ayntap.ararat@mta.gov.a</u> <u>m</u>
Kharberd Village					+(374 093) 400-122 Nor Kharberd village, Ararat Marz Head of the community Karo Kakoyan norkharberd.ararat@mta gov.am

Stakeholders	Stakeholder Interest	Perception of the problem/Issues to be discussed	Resources	Mandate in the project's context	Contact data
Shengavit District					+(374 11) 518-808 Building 26, G.Njdeh str. Yerevan Head of the district Armen Sargsyan
Erebuni District					+(374 11) 518-388 Building 87, Sasuntsi Davit str. Yerevan Head of the district Armen Grigoryan
Nature Protection Department of the Municipality of Yerevan	Monitoring of noise/ air emissions and effluents; Waste Management	ESIA, Environmental and Social Management Plan, SEP	Internal budget and staff	The Nature Protection Department participates in the development of state programs for the nature protection and environmental management and ensure their implementation in the territory of Yerevan	Avet Martirosyan +(374 11) 514-264 Building 1, Arghishti str. Yerevan

Stakeholders	Stakeholder Interest	Perception of the problem/Issues to be discussed	Resources	Mandate in the project's context	Contact data
Environmental Monitoring Center at Ministry of Nature Protection	Monitoring of noise/ air emissions and effluents	ESIA, Environmental and Social Management Plan, SEP	Internal budget and staff	The "Environmental Monitoring and Information Center" SNCO (Ecomonitoring) of the Ministry of Nature Protection of the RA monitors the atmospheric air, surface and groundwater, atmospheric precipitation, soil and sediment quality.	http://www.armmonitoring .amEMC: Building 46, Charents str. Yerevan, ArmeniaDirector: Simon PapyanLaboratory: Building 27, Komitas ave., Yerevan, ArmeniaDeputy director of EMC: Gayane Shahnazaryan
Ministry of Nature Protection	Its permission or agreement is necessary in order to construct YCCPP-2. This permission was already given (RA Minister of Nature Protection (11.01.2017): State Expert Examination Conclusion on Expert Examination of Influence on the Environment)	ESIA, Environmental and Social Management Plan, SEP Approvals: Application, ESIA Program/ToR, ESIA Documentation/ Report	Ministry's internal budget and staff	The Ministry of Nature Protection coordinated the process of national environmental impact assessment of the planned power plant.	min_ecology@mnp.am Governmental Buildig N 3, Republic Square, Yerevan

5. Information disclosure and consultation methods

The present Section describes the following main points:

- what information will be disclosed;
- in which formats will the information be presented;
- which methods will be used to communicate this information to each of the stakeholder groups;
- which methods will be used to consult with each of the stakeholder groups;
- how the results of the process will be captured, recorded, tracked, and disseminated.

The requirements of the Armenian law on Environmental Impact Assessment and Examination and of the international financing institutions (IFC and ADB) in respect to public engagement principles and scheduling are considered for the present SEP. Three phases are considered for the planning of the engagement activities:

- 1. ESIA preparation;
- 2. Construction;
- 3. Operation.

5.1 Engagement during the ESIA preparation

The engagement of the stakeholders during the preparation of the ESIA consists of the following actions:

- 1. Notification of the Project to the local authorities;
- 2. Disclosure of the Draft Final ESIA Report and respective Non Technical Executive Summary:
 - a) One Public Consultation Session;
 - b) Online and written consultation.

5.1.1 Notification of the project to the local authorities

During the site visit in July 2017, FICHTNER's environmental and social specialists performed stakeholder meetings with mayors of the adjacent villages Kharberd and Ayntap, with the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts, with the Environmental Monitoring and Information Center, and with the NGO Aarhus Center. The purpose of the meetings was to introduce the Project and to discuss issues concerning the presence of houses/ sensitive receptors in the vicinity of the Project area, environmental monitoring, concerns about the Project and the public consultation process. A record of the meetings undertaken can be consulted in the ESIA Report.

The mayors of the villages Kharberd and Ayntap had no concerns regarding the implementation of the Project. No medical/ health issues of local population concerning the operation of the existing YCCPP-1 were reported. As both villages suffer under a high unemployment rate (> 70%), the mayors hope that the Project will create jobs for the local population. These statements have also been supported during the discussions with the Heads of Departments of Erebuni and Shengavit Administrative Districts.

5.1.2 Disclosure of the Draft Final ESIA and respective Non Technical Executive Summary

A national process of engagement has been undertaken during the elaboration of the previous ESIA.

For the present ESIA, which aims at covering the gaps with the IFIs' requirements, this process will be complemented by making the new Draft Final ESIA and Non-Technical Executive Summary (NTES) publicly available and open to comments during a public consultation session. In addition, online and written consultation will be planned as described in the following sections.

a) Public Consultation Session

One Public Consultation Session will be planned and undertaken by RENCO/ARMPOWER with the support of Fichtner to present the ongoing results of the ESIA process and obtain feedback from the stakeholders concerning its content and the areas which may require more attention.

The Public Consultation Session will be conducted in Yerevan. All villages affected by the project will be invited to participate in the session. Transportation to and from the meeting shall be provided by the EPC Contractor to the community members and people living in the illegal houses in order to give all interested people the chance to participate in the Public Consultation Session. The following residential complexes are in the proximity of the site (Figure 5-1):

- the nearest residential area of Shengavit District (Noragvit village) is located approx. 1,350 m to the west;
- Ayntap, a major village in the Ararat Province is located approx. 1,500 m to the south west;
- Kharberd, another major village in the Ararat Province is located approx. 1,200 m to the south;
- the nearest residential area of Erebuni District is located approx. 1,200 m to the north east.



Figure 5-1: Project site and its vicinity

Theoretically, the Public Session could be organized at the YCCPP-1's building or at RENCO Armenia's office. However, since the YCCPP -1 is located far from the city and is difficult to reach, and the RENCO Armenia's office is small, it is more advisable to organize the Session in Yerevan's Aarhus Center, submitting a preliminary application to the center coordinator.

Before the Session

Before the Session takes place, publicity of the time and place will be made by the project's developer by putting out adverts in the mass-media or posting them on its official web-page. Local authorities (Ayntap and Kharberd villages; Shengavit and Erebuni districts) shall put up notices along with a copy of the Armenian version of the Non Technical Executive Summary of the Draft Final ESIA accessible for the public in their respective governmental buildings. The local governments may also post the advert regarding the conduct of the Session on their web-pages. The Aarhus Centre Yerevan agreed to assist with promoting the Public Consultation Session and with making the Draft Final ESIA and NTES available to the public.

The inhabitants of the nearby illegal residences may experience more difficulties in accessing the public invitations for the Session. To overcome this issue, RENCO will hang posters announcing the Session and the transportation options in the area.

During the Session

The meetings will be structured in two parts: presentation and Q&A (questions and answers).

The first part will consist of a presentation of the Project and the ESIA process, namely: results of the ESIA, project impacts (construction and operation), mitigation measures, monitoring, processes for ESIA feedback, Grievance Mechanism (incl. ADB's Accountability Mechanism and IFC's Compliance Advisor Ombudsman). This will be supported with audiovisual resources (slides, pictures, videos, and one leaflet containing a summary of the project and of the ESIA, as well as relevant links for consultation of project information and placement of grievances). The session will use straightforward, non-technical language. The second part of the meetings will consist of an open Q&A session and will be coordinated in order to allow all stakeholders present to manifest their opinion.

A written record of all stakeholder grievances, criticisms and/or suggestions will be undertaken. Further to voiced manifestations, stakeholders will have the option to register their written opinion in a book to be made available until the end of the meeting. The language of the session will be Armenian.

After the Session

The findings of the public session will be entered in a minute, with the indication of the total number of participants, the list of questions and the objections and proposals put forth. The minutes will be drawn up within 1 week following the date of the conduct of the Session. The participants will be given the possibility to receive the minutes per e-mail or letter.

Should no answers be provided to the questions put forth during the conduct of the public session, the developer will deliver the answers within 15 days following the date of the conduct of the public session to the authors on the postal or email addresses indicated during registration.

b) Online and written consultation

The Draft Final ESIA in English and the NTES in Armenian will be made available for public access, with the possibility to deliver written comments in the following platforms:

- Hard copies placed in the Aarhus Center, and the local governmental buildings (Noragavit, Ayntap, Kharberd, and Erebuni District).
- Soft copy at the official web-page of the developer;
- Soft copy at the web-page of the IFIs;
- Soft copy at the web-page of Yerevan's municipality;
- Soft copy at the web-page of the Aarhus Center.

In each of the physical or online platforms where the Draft Final ESIA and NTES will be placed, forms will be made available in Armenian to allow the persons to write their comments, if desired anonymously. See **Annex 2** for a model of the comments form.

The stakeholders will be given a time frame of two weeks after the Session to place any comments to the ESIA.

The physical and online platforms for consultation will be disclosed during the Public Consultation Session.

5.2 Engagement during construction

For the communities located near the project site the effects of noise, dust, vibration, traffic, and lighting associated with construction, as well as the presence of the sites themselves, can cause disturbances and stress, as well as pose a physical or health hazard. In addition, social conflicts with the workers may also arise in these villages. To avoid such situations, whether for large capital works or minor construction activities, it is advised to give the public notification of:

- the purpose and nature of the construction activities;
- the start date and duration of the overall construction works and of specific operations (blasting, terrain clearing, transport of heavy components, etc.);
- potential impacts;
- information on whom to contact if there are concerns/complaints related to the contractor.

Also recommended is the regular disclosure of information related to the management of the environmental and social matters (application of measures, monitoring efforts and results).

In the construction phase, it is not a common procedure to undertake public debates and discussions. Instead, the construction contractor shall keep functioning grievance mechanisms. This way it is possible for the interested and affected parties to make complaints or suggestions in relation to the project's activities (the mechanism shall be open for the public and for the workers). This is the project's phase where more grievances are expected to be received and the contractor and the Project Developer shall be ready to answer to them on time and efficiently. Please refer to Section 6 for guidance on the preparation of a grievance mechanism.

5.3 Engagement during operation

Typically during operation the number of grievances and frequency of engagement with stakeholders may decrease, along with a reduction in the overall employee and contractor workforce. The following shall be undertaken in this phase for the project:

a) In case the operator prepares an Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan, this shall be disclosed to the employees and communities so that all stakeholders likely to be affected have a basic understanding of the risks involved and what the key elements of the plan are; and that individuals from within and outside the project know what their allocated roles and responsibilities are during an emergency. Consultations shall be conducted, and formalized agreements (e.g. joint emergency plans) shall

be developed especially with emergency response service providers and the adjacent power plant. Disclose any important changes made to the Plan.

- b) Undertake a regular communication of the company's environmental and social performance (application of measures, monitoring efforts and results);
- c) Maintain the grievance mechanism there should always be a well functioning procedure for answering public concerns whenever they may arise throughout the life of the project.

In the operational phase, it is not a common procedure to undertake public debates and discussions. Instead, the operator shall keep functioning grievance mechanisms for the public and the workers. This way it is possible for the interested and affected parties to make complaints or suggestions in relation to the project's activities.

5.4 Documentation

Keeping track of the "who, what, when, and where" of consultation is key to effective implementation of the process. Any commitments made to stakeholders should also be recorded. Careful documentation can help to demonstrate to stakeholders that their views have been incorporated into the project strategies, and is a useful resource for reporting back to stakeholders on how their concerns have been addressed. For this, a Stakeholder Log needs to be developed and shall be maintained throughout the project's life cycle. The Log records:

- stakeholder organization;
- contact details;
- issues and concerns raised;
- actions for follow-up;
- responsibilities and deadline;
- confirmation of close-out.

Please refer to **Annex 3** for the Stakeholder Log for this project. So far, only comments from the authorities consulted by Fichtner in July 2017 have been received. They are described in Section 5.1.1 and in the Stakeholder Log.

Stakeholder consultation carried out during the course of the early stages of the ESIA studies will be recorded in the final ESIA report. This will include:

- The location and dates of meetings;
- A description of the project-affected parties and other stakeholders consulted;
- Presentations and communications;

- The minute of the sessions including:
 - Number of participants;
 - An overview of the issues raised (questions, objections and proposals);
 - How the project sponsor responded to the issues raised;
 - How these responses were conveyed back to those consulted;
- Project variations and impacts on the ESIA process;
- Details of outstanding issues and any planned follow-up.

6. Grievance Mechanism

This Section presents the grievance mechanism for the general public and the workers planned for the Project.

6.1 General public grievance mechanism

In the course of the construction and operation, Project Affected People (PAP) may feel treated unjustly. This might happen for various reasons such as: the contractor does not adhere to sound construction principles, misunderstandings have arisen, or disagreement with procedures of consultation or notification. If this happens people shall be encouraged to lodge their complaints in a timely and effective manner without directly addressing the court, i.e., through a grievance mechanism.

All PAP will be notified about the Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM) of the YCCPP -2 Project during the Public Consultation meetings, as well as through the disclosed project information leaflets. Contact data of the **RENCO's Grievance Coordinator (GC)**, part of the **Grievance Redress Committee (GRC)**, will be disclosed.

During consultation the PAP shall be notified orally or in a written form about their rights and the procedure of filing complaints. Local NGOs, e.g. the local Aarhus Centre, can inform communities about the possibility to raise complaints and how and where to address them. The grievance mechanism has to be locally implemented at the level of village institutions and local self-government, as well as bundled on national level at RENCO/ArmPower.

Grievances can be addressed at the local community level ('marzpet'), where the grievance will be recorded and forwarded to RENCO's GC. Grievances that are addressed to the EPC Contractor during the execution of civil works shall also be forwarded to RENCO's GC. Even if the constructor decides to settle the grievance on the spot, the documentation of the grievance settlement procedure needs to be prepared by RENCO's GC.

All project related complaints can in addition be directly addressed to RENCO's GC via phone, e-mail or grievance form (the SEP presents an example of the public grievances form in **Annex 4**). A project grievance hotline shall be made available by RENCO for direct complaints (at national level), and all received grievances shall be recorded in the Stakeholder Log (**Annex 3**).

The RENCO GC then decides whether to settle directly, or to arrange a meeting with the Grievance Committee. The decision has to be taken within 15 days. In case of major grievances that cannot be directly settled, permanent and non-permanent members of the Grievance Committee will be called for a meeting.

In case of failure of the grievance redress system, the PAP can submit their case to the appropriate court of law.

The EPC Contractor RENCO is obliged to carry out the work in accordance with the contractual requirements that include:

- a) Nominate a person of staff responsible for the reception and handling of grievances;
- b) Preparation of regular monitoring reports including details of any complaints that arose and how they were handled;
- c) If vulnerable affected people are identified, then the contractor will appoint professional advocates (social workers/legal experts) to assist those people during the entire process, and to act as independent advocates for them should any grievances arise;
- d) Arbitration of grievances with ArmPower and PAP.

ArmPower will carry out works that include:

- a) Nominate a person of staff responsible for grievance procedure coordination, hereby referred to as Grievance Coordinator (including first contact, periodical site visiting of mitigation measure to be implemented by contractor);
- b) A telephone line, e-mail address and contact name on project boards;
- c) Arbitration of grievances with contractor and PAP.
- d) Liaison with court.

The PAP have the option to choose a different representative, or directly liaison with ArmPower' staff responsible for grievance redress. Vulnerable households will have the support of their individual social worker and legal support, if applicable.

NGOs, e.g. Aarhus Centre or local member organizations will monitor grievance redress negotiations, assist with grievance arbitration, and raise public awareness. PAP need to be informed that in case of conflict with the community leader they can address NGO staff to follow up their complaint. NGOs will monitor the relationship between PAP and the community leader.

The aggrieved person (PAP) is encouraged to proceed in the following way:

- a) Contact contractor's designated grievance staff in the following way: in person via the designated telephone number, via email, via regular mail. Alternatively, the PAP can contact their community leader, who would convey their grievance to the contractor's designated grievance staff.
- b) Lodge a complaint and provide information on the case. Each complaint will be registered and a tracking number will be assigned to it. Responses to all complaints should be provided within 15 days (or 25 days in cases where complaint resolution requires special efforts).

- c) Agree with the contractor on a mitigation measure.
- d) Agree with the contractor on time limit for grievance settlement. Grievances have to be settled within two weeks, or otherwise specified in scheduled agreement.
- e) Sign if the mitigation measure has been implemented as agreed
- f) Seek redress from ArmPower if not satisfied with the above mentioned procedure though the designated telephone numbers, in person, or via email or regular mail. ArmPower should register all grievances and provide response within 15 days.
- g) Involve appropriate NGOs
- h) Seek redress from court if all else fails.

Although the grievance mechanism is designed to avoid lengthy court procedures, it does not limit the citizen's right to submit the case straight to the court of law.

ADB/ IFC are not directly a part of the Grievance procedure but shall receive reports about which complaints were received and how they have been followed up/ mitigated.

Special consideration has to be taken for vulnerable people as complaint mechanisms may be unusual and contact with legal procedures let alone courts of law may appear uninviting. This would prevent the most disadvantaged persons from addressing their grievance. A close monitoring on a village level by an independent social expert during the implementation of the project and a personal contact with PAP is therefore recommended.

Vulnerable PAP (all households below the poverty line) will be entitled to a legal aid/ social worker to support them with complaints procedures.

Annex 4 presents an example of the public grievances form that shall be made available in the developer's webpage.

6.2 Workers grievance mechanism

The EPC Contractor RENCO and the future operator of YCCPP-2 ArmPower are requested to implement an independent grievance management system to enable the workers (and their organizations, where they exist) to raise reasonable workplace concerns. This includes complaints related to non-compliance with Health & Safety matters, discrimination cases and non-consideration of equal opportunities.

The workers grievance mechanism shall follow the same principles as the one created for the general public: complaints must be answered in a timely and effective manner without fear of retribution; the access to the grievance mechanism shall not replace or impede the subsequent access to other redress mechanisms; the promoter will inform workers of the grievance mechanism at the time of hire and make it accessible to them.

The grievance management system shall consider the possibility to contact directly a member of the Site Management Staff. The contacted staff members must take a note of the reported complaint or non-compliance and must report it to the Site Manager.

The Site Manager is requested to solve the complaint or non-compliance within 3 working days. In case the problem cannot be solved an action procedure specifying the needed activities together with a predicted deadline for resolution of the problem must be prepared and submitted to the general manager.

The EPC Contractor and ArmPower are requested to provide as well the possibility for the workers to notify a complaint or non-compliance in a confidential way.

According to RENCO SPA a grievance mechanism for workers will be established for this Project, as it has been done in other international projects before. The system will allow staff and contractors to provide feedback on any element of the work via email or by hand delivery to a box placed on site. Grievances will be logged into a spreadsheet where they will be then delegated to the appropriate person for close out. Grievances will be confidential and staff and contractors will be in no way penalized for providing their feedback.

7. Timetable

Table 7-1 presents a preliminary schedule for the engagement of stakeholders during the ESIA Process. This schedule shall be continuously updated. Table 7-2 shows the schedule for the stakeholder engagement activities to be undertaken during construction and operation.

Table 7-1: Stakeholder Engagement and ESIA Schedu	ule
---	-----

Activity	Deliverables	Date
Disclosure of the Project to the local authorities		04 07.07.2017
Fichtner prepares the Draft ESIA Report in English	Draft ESIA Report in English Non-Technical Executive Summary in English	23.08.2017
RENCO/ARMPOWER and the IFIs review the Draft ESIA Report	-	27.08.2017
Fichtner prepares the Draft Final ESIA according to the review in English	Draft Final ESIA Report in English Non-Technical Executive Summary in English	07.12.2017
The NTES is translated into Armenian	Non-Technical Executive Summary in Armenian	20.12.2017
Preparation of a brief project/ESIA summary + public consultation invitations + official letter for the authorities	Project/ESIA summary Invitations for sessions (in English and Armenian)	05.01.2018
RENCO/ARMPOWER posts adverts in the mass-media and on its official web-page informing about the Public Consultation Session.	Adverts: brief summary of the project and invitation for the public consultation session	12.01.2018
The local governments post the advert regarding the conduct of the Session on their web-page, at their offices and in other public places.	Adverts: brief summary of the project and invitation for the public consultation session	19.01.2018
Public Consultation Session in Yerevan		10.02.2018 (Saturday)
The IFIs publicly disclose the Draft Final EIA Report	Draft Final ESIA Report in English Non-Technical Executive Summary in English Draft Final ESIA Report in Armenian Non-Technical Executive Summary in Armenian	27.12.2017 - 25.02.2018
The minutes of the Public Consultation Session are made available	Minutes of the session	17.02.2018

Activity	Deliverables	Date
The ESIA related documents are available for public comments	Draft Final ESIA Report in English Non-Technical Executive Summary in English Minutes of the session	12.01.2018 - 24.02.2018

Table 7-2:	Stakeholder Engagement Schedule during construction and
operation	

Activity Platforms Con		Content	Date					
CONSTRUCTION								
The developer notifies the public of the construction works or a specific construction activity	Official web page of the developer Letters to local representatives Newspaper notice	The purpose and nature of the construction activities The start date and duration of the overall construction works and of specific operations The potential environmental and social impacts Information on whom to contact if there are concerns/complaints related to the contractor Information related to the management of the environmental and social matters (application of	One month before construction works start					
		measures, monitoring efforts and results). The results of the grievance mechanism	construction works					
The contractor and developer keep a functioning grievance mechanism	Nomination of a GRC and of a GC Suggestion boxes in public locations Visible billboards Official web- page of the developer Stakeholder log	Contact information for sending of grievances Time frame in which all recorded complaints will be responded to	During construction works					
OPERATION								

Activity	Platforms	Content	Date
Inform the public of operation related issues (community and occupational health and safety; grievance mechanism; environmental and social monitoring)	Official web- page of the developer Letters to local representatives Newspaper notice	Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan, if existent The project's environmental and social performance reports The results of the grievance mechanism	Every 6 months during the life-time of the project
Keep a functioning grievance mechanism	Nomination of a GRC and of a GC Official web- page of the Project Operator Visible billboards Stakeholder log	Contact information for sending of grievances Time frame in which all recorded complaints will be responded to	During the life-time of the project

8. Roles and responsibilities

The implementation and monitoring of the SEP will be the direct responsibility of:

- During the ESIA stage: ArmPower/RENCO;
- During Construction: RENCO SPA as EPC Contractor;
- During Operation: ArmPower/RENCO as Project Operator.

Other entities will play an important supporting role, namely:

• During the ESIA stage, Construction and Operation: the local "marzpet"; and NGOs, e.g. Aarhus Centre or local member organizations;

The responsibility to audit the implementation of the SEP belongs to the IFIs until financial closure of the project.

This Section presents a review of the responsibilities and allocated resources for implementation of the SEP.

8.1 Developer - ArmPower/RENCO

The following is the summary of the responsibilities of ArmPower/RENCO as the Project's Developer.

- During the ESIA preparation:
- a) Plan and undertake one Public Consultation Session (see Section 5.1);
- b) Disclose the Draft Final ESIA Report and NTES (hard and soft copies) (see Section 5.1);
- c) Keep and update the Stakeholder Log (see Annex 3);
- d) Nominate a Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) and a Grievance Coordinator (GC), and manage the process of grievance redress for the general public (see Section 6.1).

8.2 EPC Contractor - RENCO SPA

Within the SEP, RENCO SPA as EPC Contractor has the following summarized responsibilities:

- During construction:
- a) Keep the public informed about the construction activities, environmental and social management at site, and contact persons (see Section 5.2);
- b) Keep and update the Stakeholder Log (see Annex 3);
- c) Nominate a Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) and a Grievance Coordinator (GC), and manage the process of grievance redress for the general public (see Section 6.1) and for the workers (see Section 6.2).

8.3 **Project Operator - ArmPower/RENCO**

The Project Operator (ArmPower/RENCO) will have the following SEP-related responsibilities:

- During operation:
- a) Keep the public informed about the environmental and social management at the plant (see Section 5.3);
- b) Disclose the Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan and develop formalized agreements with emergency response service providers and the adjacent power plant (see Section 5.3);
- c) Keep and update the Stakeholder Log (see **Annex 3**);
- d) Nominate a Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) and a Grievance Coordinator (GC), and manage the process of grievance redress for the general public (see Section 6.1) and for the workers (see Section 6.2).

8.4 Supporting roles - local authorties and NGOs

Local authorities incl. "marzpets", as well as NGOs will serve as a means of direct contact of the populations to present any grievances related to the project.

These entities will as well have an important role in disclosing project related information, namely the ESIA and the NTES.

9. Final remarks

The Final SEP presents the suggested methodologies, timing, and responsibilities for engaging the public and the workers during the implementation of the YCCPP 2 Project. The main focus of the SEP is to assure conformity with the requirements of IFC and ADB. It includes activities during the ESIA preparation, during construction, and during operation.

The present SEP does not necessarily include a strict engagement with the national authorities because such process has been undertaken in the past. However, it is recommended that RENCO keeps an open door for collaboration with local and national agencies, when necessary and if required by these.

In order for the SEP to be successfully implemented, it is necessary to include its dispositions into the Developer's, EPC Contractor's and Operator's own Environmental and Social Management Systems (ESMS). In case such systems are not presently implemented in any of the companies, at least one team shall be nominated in each case that will handle the E&S management at the different stages, and implement and monitor the SEP.

Transparency is important to assure an acceptance of the project by the general public, for what the information disclosure activities suggested in the SEP will play an important role. Engaging the public from the beginning of the implementation of the project and continuously throughout its life cycle is expected to bring benefits and reduce eventual unfounded reasons for grievances.

10. References

ADB, 2012: Strengthening participation for development results - an Asian Development Bank guide to Participation, ADB, Philippines, 2012

IFC, 1998: Doing Better Business through Effective Public Consultation and Disclosure - A Good Practice Manual, IFC, Washington, D.C., October 1998

IFC, 2007: *Stakeholder Engagement: a good practice handbook for companies doing business in emerging markets*, IFC, Washington, D.C., May 2007

IFC, 2012: *Performance Standard 1 - Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts*, IFC, Washington, D.C., January 2012

11. Annexes

11.1 Annex 1 - Invitations for the previous public consultation sessions



НАУАSTANY HANRAPETUTIUN DAILY, ЕЖЕДНЕВНАЯ ГАЗЕТА «АЙАСТАНИ АНРАПЕТУТЮН», ОРЦОБРО, LOPSU & SEUGORU 1990 (ОЧАБИРБРА 9-Р.

ՊԱՇՏՈՆԱԿԱՆ

33 նախագահի հրամանագրերով

33 նախագահ Utro Uwrgujանի հրամանագրով Արա Ա3-ՎԱՋՅԱՆԸ նշանակվել է Մեքսիկայի Միացյալ Նահանգնեrnւմ Rujuuswah Rwarumtsnipjwa wrswywrg ti jhwgnr դեսյան (նսջավայրը՝ Մեխիկը)։

Նախագահի մեկ այլ հրամանագրով Արա ԱՅՎԱՋՅԱՆԸ ազաsվել է Լիsվայի Յանrադեsությունում, Լաsվիայի Յանrumtsnipjniuniu եւ tusnupujh Յանrumtsnipjniuniu Յայասsանի Դանrապեsության աrsակաrգ եւ լիազոr դեսպանի mucsnühg:

33 Gwjuwqwhp hrwówGwghr t usnrwgrti Gwti Uróta ՅԱՐՈՒԹՅՈՒՆՅԱՆԻՆ Յայասջանի Յանrապեջության դաջական ակstrի գլխավոr հաrկադիr կաsաrողի ժամանակավոr **պաշոհակաչա** նշանակելու մասին։

33 նախագահի կարգադրությամբ Արմեն 3ԱՐՈՒԹՅՈՒ-ՆՅԱՆՆ ազաsվել է Դայասsանի Դանrադեsության նախագահի ռեֆեrենsի դաշsոնից։

ՅՅ նախագահի մամլո գտաենյակ

ԼՂՅ նախագահ Բակո Սահակյանը երեկ այցելել է Ասկեrանի շրջան եւ անցկացրել աշխաջանքային խորհրդակցություն, որի ընթացքում քննարկվել են ադրիլի 2-5-ը ադրբեջանական ագրեսիայի հեsեւանքով սsեղծված իրավիճակին եւ Ասկեւանի շրջվարչակազմի սչուաբաժանումների կողմից այդ ոլուջում օպեւաջիվ լուծում պահանջող խնդիւների իրականացմանը վեrաբեrող hաrgtr:

ինչպես sեղեկացրին LAR նախագահի աշխաչակացմի sեղեկաsվության գլխավոr վաrչությունից, LA3 նախագահը կոնկրեւ հանձնարարականներ է չվել քննարկված հարցերի **պահշամ ի**րականացման ուղղությամբ։

Քննաւկել են առողջաղահական uh curf brugttr

LAR նախագահ Բակո Սահակյանը եrեկ ընդունել է «Յայասsան» համահայկական հիմնադrամի գուծադիւ sնorեն Urա Վարդանյանին եւ հիմնադրամի Ֆրանսիայի մասնամյուղի süortü Պետոս Թեոզյանին։

Ինչպես sեղեկացրին LAR նախագահի աշխաչակացմի sեղեկաsվության գլխավոr վաrչությունից, քննաrկվել են Urցախի առողջաղահության ոլուջում մի շարք ծրագրերի իրականազմանն առնչվող hաrgtr:

Նախագահ Սահակյանը բաrðr է գնահաsել «Յայասչան» համահայկական հիմնադրամի դերակաsարությունը մեր հանrադեհության առջեւ ծառացած խնդիrների լուծման գործում` այն համարելով Դայասջան-Արցախ-սփյուռք եռամիասնության վառ դruեւոrումներից մեկը։

Յանոհումանո մասնակցում էին ԼՂՅ առորօատահության

Միասնականության եւ փոխօգնության դասեր

Եrեխաները դասsիաrակվում են այն ոգով, ոrով նrանց են նեrկայանում մեծերը

Դժվաr տահերին մենք միասնական ենք ու տարswynr ենք միշs միասնական լինել։ Պաrswynr ենք միասնականության եւ փոխօգնության դաubr swi նաեւ մեr եrեխաներին, nrsեղ էլ nr GrwGf asGybG' AmywuswGnig, Urgwfunig, pb սփյուռքում։ Այսօր սահմանը պահող քաջերի եւ ամեն ինչով նrանց թեւութիկունք կանգնած հասաrակության orինակով mbsf է մեծանան մեr զավակները։ Քանզի վաղը նrանք էլ սsացած դասերի հանգույն են ծառայելու իրենց հայրենիfhû` ınırwfwûşınırû hr stinnið:

Այս առումով կաrեւու են այն միջոցառումները, nrnûf hûwrwynrnıpjniû bû pûðbanis cyhybini երեխաներին։ Երեկ մայրաքաղաքում հյուրընկալվել էին զոհված ազաջամարջիկների ընջանիքների սեփանակերsgh 11 երեխա։ Կազմակերmhsutrn hng thu surti, nrmtugh wrgwlugh *պաշանիների ու աղջիկների երեւանյան քառօրյա* hwuqhusn huwrwynrhuu hwqtgwb (huh: Իսկ օրեր առաջ հայկական երկու տեջություննեrh մայrաքաղաքներից 23 երեխա միասին մկրsվեցին Սուրբ Ասչվածածին եկեղեցում։



Վեrադաrձ անցյալին չի լինելու

Առանց Արցախի մասնակցության հակամարչության լուծումն անհնար է

Առանց Աrgախի Դանrա**դեչության մասնակցության** Լեռնային Ղաrաբաղի հակա-ນພrsnເອງພົບ ເກເວັກເນີບ ພົບhົບພrին է: Այս մասին աrgախյան լrաsվամիջոցներին sված hurguqrnygnu wuti t LNR նախագահ Բակո Սահակյանը, ով անդրադարձել է ադրիլյան քառօրյա դաչերազմին, դրա հեsեւանքններին ու հայկական կողմի հեշագա wütihfütrhü:



«Չկա մի հավանական ւաչափով բանակցություննեզարգացում, որ խնդիրը լու- որ, քան mաstrազմական գորկան բանակցային գործընpug uyutini ntmfnid, nr Urցախը լինի այդ բանակցային գուծընթացի լիաւժեք կողմ։ Այս դահի դությամբ մենք չենք sեսնում այդ**դիսի հնա**ւավոrnւթյուն, fwնի nr այն, ինչ թույլ t syty Unretowin, nrtit ytrm չի խոսում այն մասին, nr մոs աղագայում վեrադառնալու ենք բանակցային սեղանի կյանը։

Արցախի նախագահն անnrunurati t dargaru udah

ները։ Դրանք չեն նպաստում մեr առաջադրանքի կաջարմաun: Uuhrudtcsnipjniu yu ysrnւկ դադաrեցնել այդ գնահաswywüütre, fwüh nr nrwüf չեն նպասչում մեr աշխաչանfhu: Uju swrhutrhu utr ynnմից բազմիցս hujsururutt t, nr վեrադաrð անցյալին չի լիatini, win pynia ti hnntrh հեց կաղված։ Մենք նաեւ հնաrավորություն ենք ունեցել մեr stuwytsp նեrywywgնtynu funufughütrhü` üctind, nr Garywyhu dhowyh, hnnarh has

Lrus4กะติ3กะบ

30 ЦЯРЫ 2016, СЦРИД, ФРЧ 78 (6360)

Սահմանային միջադեպեր

Ապրիլի 28-ի լույս 29-ի գիշերը հայ-ադրբեջանական պե-<mark>Տական սահմանագուու հյուսիսա</mark>րեւելյան հաչվածում գրանցվել է հրադադարի խախչման 13 միջադեղ, հայչնում են 77 ՊՆ sեղեկաsվության եւ հասաrակայնության հեs կաղերի վարչությունից։ Ադրբեջանական կողմը sաrբեr srամաչափի հrաձգային եւ դիղուկահաr զինաsեսակնեrից հիմնականում անկանոն բնույթի կrակահեrթեr է աrծակել հայ դիrքաղահների ուղղությամբ։ 77 ՋՈւ առաջաղահ սรուաբաժանումնեrը, ցուցաբեrելով զս**պվածություն, պա**ջասխան գոrծողությունների են դիմել միայն խիսs անհրաժեշsության դետքում եւ վսsահոrեն վեrահսկում են սահմանային իrավիճակը։

ԼՂՅ ՊԲ-ից սsացված օդեrաsիվ sեղեկաsվության համաձայն՝ ատրիլի 28-ի լույս 29-ի գիշերը ղարաբաղա-ադրբեջանական հակամարց զորքերի շփման գծի ողջ երկայնքով հակառակուդը շառունակել է խախչել կւակի դադառեցման



HAYASTANY HANRAPETUTIUN DAILY,

30 April 2016, Saturday, N 78(6360)

According to the procedure established by the RA law on "Assessment and expertise environmental impact" /26.06.2014, H0-110-N/, as well as established by the N 1325-N decision of 19.11.2014 of the Government of the Republic of Armenia (first phase) at 10 V. Sargsyan st., Yerevan on 10.05.2016 at 12.00 public discussions on the application of primary assessment for the environmental impact of the projects of new power plant being constructed by "RencoArmestate" LLC in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC, will be held.

Documents can be found at RencoArmestate LLC, 10 V. Sargsyan st..



Operativ Adress: 1 Italia Str., 0010 – Yerevan, RA Tel. + 374 10 590799 Fax. + 374 10 590798 E-mail rencoyerevan@renco.it Legal Adress 1st alley. 8 M. Khorenatsi str, 0010 – Yerevan, RA

ՌԵՆԿՈ ԱՐՄԷՍՏԵՅՏ ՄՊԸ Գործող հասցե՝ Իտալիայի փ. 1, 0010 Երևան, ՀՀ Հևո՝ + 374 10 590799 Ֆաքս՝ + 374 10 590798 email` rencoyerevan@renco.it

Իրավաբանական հասցե՝ Մ. Խորենացու փող., 1-ին փակուղի, շենք 8, 0010 Երևան, ՀՀ

Երևանի քաղաքապետի առաջին տեղակալ պարոն Կ. Արեյանին

02 05 2016p

Հարգելի պարոն Արեյան

<<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահատման և փորձաքննության մասին>> ՀՀ օրենքի /21.06.2014թ. ՀՕ-110-Ն/, ինչպես նաև ՀՀ կառավարության 19.11.2014թ. N 1325-Ն որոշմամբ սահմանված կարգով (առաջին փուլ) 2016թ. մայիսի 10-ին, ժամը 12.00-ին Երևան քաղաքի Վ. Սարգսյան 10 հասցեում տեղի կունենա «Ռենկո Արմէստեյտ» ՍՊ ընկերության կողմից կառուցվող "Երևանի ՋէԿ" ՓԲԸ-ի տարածքում նոր էներգաբլոկի նախագծերի շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության քննարկումներ։ հանրային վերաբերյայ hujuh գնահատման նախնական հանրային մասնակցությունը ապահովել Խնդրում եմ աջակցել h քննարկումներին, դրանց արձանագրությունը, տեսաձայնագրությունը, ինչպես նաև առաջարկներն ու դիտողությունները <<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա արված ազդեցության փորձաքննական կենտրոն>> ՊՈԱԿ-ին ներկայացնելու համար։

Տնօրեն

100

Ք. Կուկուրակի



Tax number: 02560091

ԵՐԵՎԱՆԻ ՔԱՂԱՔԱՊԵՏԱՐԱՆ

<, 0015, p. Երևան, Արգիշտիի 1

№<u>17/26486</u>

«11» 0.5 201 6p.

«ՌԵՆԿՈ ԱՐՄԷՍՏԵՅՏ» ՍՊԸ-Ի ՏՆՕՐԵՆ ՊԱՐՈՆ Ք. ԿՈՒԿՈՒՐԱԿԻԻՆ

Հարգելի Ք. Կուկուրակի.

Ի պատասխան Ձեր՝ 02.05.2016թ.-ի գրության, հայտնում եմ, որ ս/թ մայիսի 10-ին մասնակցելով «Երնանի ՋԷԿ» ՓԲԸ-ի տարածքում կառուցվող նոր էներգաբլոկի նախագծերի շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության նախնական գնահատման հայտի վերաբերյալ հանրային քննարկումներին՝ բնապահպանության վարչությունը տալիս է իր դրական եզրակացությունը նախատեսվող գործունեությանը։

Հարգանքով՝

Աշխատակազմի բնապահպանության վարչության պետ՝ *զե. գե. գե.*

Ա. Մարտիրոսյան

Կատարող. Ա. Հազարապետյան Հեռ. 011.514-263

To the First Deputy of Yerevan Municipality

Mr. K. Areyan

02.05.2016

Dear Mr. Areyan,

According to the procedure established by the RA law on the "Assessment and expertise environmental impact" /26.06.2014, H0-110-N/, as well as established by the N 1325-N decision of 19.11.2014 of the Government of the Republic of Armenia (first phase) at 10 V. Sargsyan st., Yerevan on 10.05.2016 at 12.00 public discussions on the application of primary assessment for the environmental impact of the new power plant projects in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC under construction by "RencoArmestate" LLC will be held.

I kindly ask you to support and ensure the presence in public discussions, for submitting the Minutes of meeting, video, as well as the proposals and observations to the "Center of expertise for environmental impact assessment" (State Non-Commercial Organization).

Director C. Cucurachi





YEREVAN MUNICIPALITY

1 Argishti str., Yerevan-0015, RA

11.05.2016

To the director of "RencoArmestate" LLC

Mr. C. Cucurachi

N 17/26486

Dear Mr. C. Cucurachi,

In response to Your letter of 02.05.2016, I inform, that, on 10.05.2016 participating in public discussions on the application of primary assessment for the environmental impact of the new power plant projects in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC, the Department of Nature Protection submits his positive conclusion on the planned activity.

Best regards

Director of the Department

of Nature Protection of Staff

A. Martirosyan



НАУАSTANY HANRAPETUTIUN DAILY, ЕЖЕДНЕВНАЯ ГАЗЕТА «АЙАСТАНИ АНРАПЕТУТЮН», ОРЦЮБРО, LOPSU & SEUVOPU 1990 2045500-50-0-53

ՊԱՇՏՈՆԱԿԱՆ

Ընդունել են Իrանի արարադատության նախարարին

Մայիսի 31-ին Ն.Ս.O.S.S. Գաrեզին Բ Ծայrագույն musrhարք եւ Ամենայն հայոց կաթողիկոսը Մայր Աթոռ Սուրբ Էջմիածնում ընդունեց Իrանի Իսլամական Յանrաmեsության աrդաrադաջության նախաrաr Մուսջաֆա Փուrմոհամմադիի գլխավուած պաշվիւակությանը, հայջնում են Մայւ Աթոռ Ս. Էջմիած նի sեղեկաsվական համակարգից։

Ողջունելով նախաrաrի այցը Յայասsան՝ Վեհափառ հայrա mtsp գոհունակություն հայsնեց, nr եrկու mtsnւթյունների մի ջեւ գործակցությունն օրեցօր բոլոր ոլորջներում ընդլայնվում է եւ 33 անկախության sաrեգrության մեջ հայ-իrանական հաrա բեռություններում շոշափելի վերընթաց է նկաչվում։

Նորին սրբությունը գնահաջանքով անդրադարձավ Իրանուս իայ իամայնքի նկաsմամբ ցուցաբեrվող իոգածու վեrաբեrմուն։ քին, ինչպես նաեւ հայոց սrբավայrեrի ու եկեղեցական կառույց ների նկաչմամբ դրսեւորվող առանձնահաչուկ խնամին։



Իr հեrթին Իrանի աrդաrադաsության նախաrաrն ուrախություն հայsնեց հանդիղման առիթով՝ նույնդես կաrեւուելով միջորեջական կաղերի զուացումը եւ ջարբեր ոլորջներում առկա utrs գուծակցությունը։

Շառունակությունը՝ էջ 2

Վաrչաղեց Յովիկ Աբrահամյանը եrեկ ընդունել է Իrանի Իսլամական Դանrադեsության աrդաrադաsության նախաrաr **Մուսsաֆա Փուrմոհամմադին**, հայsնում են 77 կառավարու- թյան sեղեկաsվության եւ hասաrակայնության hեs կաղերի վաrչությունից։



Տնչեսական ինչեգրում եւ անվչանգություն

Եվրասիական sնsեսական բարձրագույն խորհրդի նիսsը Ասsանայում

Երեկ Արջանայում Եվրասիական ջնչեսական միության անդամ տեշությունների ղեկավաrների մասնակցությամբ sեղի են ունեցել եվրասիական բնշեսական բարձրագույն խորhrnh նեղ, աղա ընդյայնված կազմով նիսstrը, nrngg Gtruw tr Gwti 77 Gwhwawh Utrd Սաrouյանը։ Նիսչերին մասնակցել է նաեւ եվrասիական sնsեսական hանձնաժողովի (ԵԱՏՅ) կոլեգիայի նախագահ Sharան Uաraսյանը, ով խորհրդի անդամների քննարկմանն nı hwuswsմանն է նեrywwgrti նիսstrh orwyurqn:

Ընդյայնված կազմով նիսsի ավաrsին նախագահները սոուագրել են ավելի քան մեկ չասնյակ փասջաթղթեr, այդ թվում՝ եվrասիական sնsեսական միության նավթի եւ նավթամթեrfների ընդհանուր շուկաների ձեւավորման մասին հայեցակարգը։

33 նախագահ Սեւժ Սաւզսյանը ելույթ է ունեցել բաrձrագույն խոrhrդի ընդլայնված կազմով նիսչում։ Stiu to 3



Գազի սակագինը նվազեց 9.3 դrամով

ՀԾԿՀ հեrթական նիսsում բավաrաrվեց նեrկայացված դիմումը

33 հանгային ծառայությունները կարգավորող հանձնաժողովի եrեկվա նիսsում քննաւկվեցին բնական գազի փոխադւման սակագնի, գազամաջակաrարման համաyurah ombrusnrh bununiniթյան մաչուզման եւ բնական գացի բաշխման սակագների, «Գազmrnմ Աrմենիա» փակ բաժնեչիրական ընկերության կողմից սպառողներին վաձառվող բնական գազի սակագների սահմանման մասին



կան գազի գինը 2016թ. աղրիytruuui-

վել է 33-ի համաr՝ 1000 խմ-ի

համաr 165 ԱՄՆ դոլարից ցա-

ծո գնի նվազեցումից։ Սակագ-

ների հաշվարկներում, ըսջ

մասնագեհի, հաշվի են առն-

JE Guite 2013-2015pp. guigu-

մաջակարարման համակար-

գում իրականացված կարի-

sայ ներդրումների փոխիա-

sուցման, դ**rամ-ԱՄՆ դոլա**r

փոխաrժեքի փոփոխության,

շահացուծման եւ դահդան-

ման ծախսերի փոփոխման

գործոնները. «Յիմք ընդունելով

Երեխայի դերն ու նշանակությունը տետության համա նույնն է, ինչ յուrաքանչյուr ընsանիքի համաr։ Այդ դեrն ու կաrեւոrությունը չաrժեւոrելը, զաrգացմանը չն**պաս**sելը կնշանակի չմѕածել ու քայլեւ չձեռնաւկել եւկւի առաջընթացի իամաr։ Խաղաղ ու աղահով մանկության, վսsահելի աղագայի հուսալի գrավականը խաղաղություն աrաrող եւ այն mաcsղանել կաrողացող, իr քաղաքացիների բաrեկեցությունը անրեկանելի նրաչակակեչ իամարող տեչությունն է։

1 LAFTER 2016, 9APERCUROP, OPU 100 (6382)



เกมรนกหติงกหบ

Շնուհավուական ուղեւծ

Երեխաների պաշտղանության միջազգային օրվա առթիվ

ՅՅ Ազգային ժողովի նախագահ Գալուսs Սահակյանը շնորհավորական ուղերձ է հղել Երեխաների տաշշտանության միջազգային օrվա առթիվ։ Ուղեrձում ասվում է. «Uhrելի՛ եւեխանեւ եւ ծնողնեւ, շնուհավուում եմ Եւեխանեւի тисsтиնпւթյшն միջազգային orվш шпрիվ:

նակագույն մեշաղաղլասշե պաչուհանների պաչուսսչում եւ չեղադրում, ներաոյալ բացվող սաrfեrը (ընդիանուr 364 քառակուսի մեsr)։ 4. Ֆասադային վիsrաժի դաsrասsում եւ sեղադrում (ընդիանուr 145 քառա-

ynuh útsr): 5. Բնակաrանների աrsաքին թվով 30 հաs մեsաղական դռների **դաsrաusում**

եւ sեղադրում, նեrառյալ եrկու փականնեr, առանց եrեսաղաsման։ Առաջաrկությունները ըսs լոsերի կքննաrկվեն առանձին-առանձին։ Ֆինան-

սավորումը 20%-կանխավճաr, մնացած գումարը` աշխաsանքն ավարչվելուց հեsn մեկ ամսվա ընթացքում։ Եrկու sաrի եrաcխիք։

Süorhünumnü

<<Շrջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահաsման եւ փորձաքննության մասին>> 77 orենքի /21.06.2014թ. 70-110-Ն/, ինչպես նաեւ 77 կառավարության 19.11.2014թ. N 1325-Ն որոշմամբ սահմանված կարգով (երկrnrդ փուլ) 2016թ. հունիսի 14-ին, ժամը 11.00-ին Եrեւան քաղաքի Վ. Սաrgսյան 10 հասցեում sեղի կունենա «Ռենկո Աrմtusեյs» ՍՊ ընկերության կողմից կառուցվող Եrեւանի ՋԷԿ ՓԲԸ-ի sաrածiում նու էնեւգաբլոկի նախագծերի շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության նախնական գնահաsման հայsի վեrաբեrյալ հանrային քննաrկումնեr։

Փասչաթղթերին կարելի է ծանոթանալ «Ռենկո Առմէսչեյ»» ՍՊ ընկեrությունում, Վ. Սաrգսյան 10 հասցեում, 77 բնատահտանության նախաrաության պաշոնական կայքում (mnp.am), f. Երեւան, Կոմիsաս 29 հասgtnui: +374-22-02-18

านวรนกนกกหองกหบ

Սաթենիկ Գեւուգյանի հաշվին մամուլում հայsաւառություն հւաղա rակել Դայկ Սաշայի Դովհաննիսյանին (ծնված 11.08.1969թ.) անհայs բացակայող Ճանաչելու վեrաբեrյալ գուծ հառուցելու մասին։

խնդրվում է բոլոր քաղաքացիներին այդ անձի վերաբերյալ sեղեկությունները հաղուդել Երեւանի Շենգավիթ վարչական շրջանի ընդհանուր իrավասության առաջին աsյանի դաsաrան։

01.06.2016 p.

ष (प्प्र)

ն եղանակով ձեռք բերել ծառայություններ,

nuqnunıpjnıu», WVA/CFE/PBE-16/001.

ազմակերպված մրցույթներին՝ նախապե սնչյուր մրցույթի համար ՎՎՀ երևանյան երով (ծրարի վրա պետք է նշված լինի նը, պաշտոնը, մրցույթի անունը)։

ւ գրասենյակ անձը հաստատող վավեր

շ ներկայացված փաթեթները չեն

քան վերջնաժամկետ չի սահմանվում,

[huughny

-74-91-19: 374 60- 49 10 10

incements

ունենա Քաղցրաշեն համայնքի սեփականություն ս հողամասը, նպատակային ևշանակությունը ագիրը 30-307-0196-0038) մեկնարկային գինը հակավայրերի, գործառնական նշանակությունը Հայրիկ Մուրադյան 5 հասցեում գտնվող 0,10004 կառուցապատման (կադրատրային ծածկագիրը հողամասը, նպատակային նշանակությունը՝ ագիրը 03-097-0196-0016), մեկնարկային գինը անակությունը՝ բնակավայրերի, գործառնական գինը 810500գրամ։6. Հ Մուրադյան փողոց 10 ս նշանակությունը՝ բնակնի կառուցապատման գինը 810500դրամ. Հ. Մուրադյան փողոց 10 լ գինը 810500դրամ. Հ. Մուրադյան փողոց 10 և նշանակությունը՝ բնակնի կառուցապատման g 12 հասցեում գտնվոր 0.10004 հա հողանար և (կադաստրային ծանկագիրը 03-07-0196-0029) պատակային գինը 646000դրամ.9. Հ. Մուրադյան ի, գործառնական հշմանպությունը՝ բնակնի բնկացու փողոց 8 հասցեում գտնվող 0.10004 հա առացապատման (կադաստրային ծանկագրոր 03-ս հողամասը, նպատակային նշանակությունը՝ անակությունը՝ բնակավայրերի, գործառնակնա ինը 649000դրամ.13. Գ. Նարեկացու փողոց 14 նշանակությունը՝ բնակնայրերի, արոթանանյան լ 2 հասցեում գտնվող 0.0982 հա հողամասը, և Հայաստրային ծածկագիրը 03-097-0196-0003), պատակային նշանակությունը՝ բնակավարերի, . մեկնադիկային գինը 65900դրաս: 16. Հայրիկ ինքի, գործառնական նշանակությունը՝ բնակնի ն (պադաստրայիս շաօպագրըլ ա. ա. ա. ա. ա. ս առավային նշանակությունը՝ բնակավայրերի, սեկնարկային նշանակությունը՝ նեակեյ նքի, գործառնական նշանակությունը՝ ինակեյ իկ Մուրայան փողոց 18 հասցեում՝ գտնվող ՝ բնակելի կառուցապատման (կադաստրային գտնվող 0.0623 հա հողամապը, նպատակային ին ծածկագիրը 03-097-0196-0033), մեկնարկային անակությունը՝ բնակավայրերի, գործառնական գինը 730000դրամ։20. Գ. Եփեհի փողց 17 Նշանակությունը՝ բնականի կառուցապատման ց 19 հասցեում՝ գոնվող 0.501 հա հողամասը, լ (կադաստրային ծածկագիրը 03-097-0196-0043), տեղեկությունների համար դիմել Քաղցրաշենի

UIUUUUUUU

Եւբել իաւկանի ոբփական snւն Դիլիջանում։ Ունի msղաsnւ այգի, մեrձակայքում՝ գեչ, անչառ։ Մանrամասների համաr զանգահաrել 094 22-75-55,0079165395558:

YULL F

Վարդուհի Յայկի Բաղդասաւյանի՝ Եւեւանի Ձ. Ձոքոrյանի անվան լեզունեrի մանկավաrժական համալսաrանից 2007 թ. ս**ջացված թիվ** AB 039622 դիպլոմը։ Յամաrել անվավեr։

a.azəonə, əmsəqəyir 4-m yarah` 2.5709 nə, ajnınyəsüstəvəyədi avij nınyəstər 0.0169 həə 1 insini: Մեկնաryəyin ahlığı yanyavsrayını ərdətin 50 sinyinin şavyını; ins-2/bublughr 02-058-0332-0099/ 11.5011 hu gininusüstuuluu üculuulu

թյան հողաsեսք,ուից 3-ոդ կարգի վարելահող՝ 9.0567hա, արդչավայր 4-ոդ կարգի՝ 2.3191 հա, գյուղաsնsեսական այլ հողաsեսք՝ 0.1253 հա 1 լոsով։ Մեկնարկային գինը կադաս-

ուս, գյուղաչնենսական այլ հողաչեսի՝ 0.1253 հա 1 լոռով։ Մեկնարկային գինը՝ կաղաս-srային աrdtifh 50 չոկոսի չափով։ լու»-3/ծածկագիր 02-058-0332-0041/ 1.5604 հա գյուղաչնեսական նշանակության հողաչեսք,որից 4-որ կարգի կորիզավոր՝ 0.8454հա, 4-որ կարգի վարելահող՝ 0.63 հա,արո-չավայր 4-որ կարգի՝ 0.285 հա 1 լուռով։ Մեկնարկային գինը կաղասչոային աrdtifh 50 չո-կոսի չափով։

կոսի չափով։ Աճուտին մայլը 10000դում: Դողաsեսքերը սեղվիչու չով ծանռաբեռնված չեն։ Աճուտին մասնակցելու համաr անիռաժեշչ է նեղկայացնել՝ ա/ հայչ՝ սահմանված կարգով), p/ վճաrի անդուագիր գ/ անձնագիր։ Դայչերի ընդունումը դադարեցվում է աճուտից 3 or առաջվոշի նկաչմամբ սահմանափակումներ չկան։ Լուցուցիչ չեղեկու-թյունների համաr դիմել Կարբիի գյուղադեչարան։ Դեռ. 093 44-44-10 չէլ. փոսչ karbi-karbi@mail.ru։ Դատեի՝ 33 Արաբառունի կառը գ. կարեի Ֆոգ խորոց թիվ 1 բենք

Դասցե՝ ԴԴ Աrագածունի մաrզ, գ. Կաrբի 3-ոդ փողոց թիվ 1 շենք

RUSSUCUCOFASOR

Կոտայքի մո կունենա հա	արզի Քանայ մայնքային հ	քեռավան ողերի վա	իամայնյ ոծակայս	քում 2016թ. hn սկան մոցույթ	ւլիսի 1-ին օ	եսմը 11-ին տեղի
Յողատար ածքի նկարագիր	Նպատակ ային նշանակու թյուն	Չափը /hɯ/	Чшрд	Ծածկագիրը	Մեկնարկայ ին՝ գինը /հազ. Դուսմ/	Սահման ափակումների առկայություն
գյուղատնտե սական	արոտավայ ր	2,0401	4	0254-0001	2,479	չկան
Յայտերի ըն։ Լրացուցիչ տ	դունումը դաղ Եղեկությունն	արեցվում ների համա	մ է մրցույ ար դիմել	թից երեք օր առ Քանաքեռավան	աջ։ ի համայնթապե	նտարան

านวรนกนกกหลวกหบ

Լուսինե Յենгիկի Բաբախանյանը դիմել է 33 ԿոՏայքի մաrզի ընդհանուr իrավասության դաշառան՝ Գարիկ Ֆեդիկի Յառությունյանի անհայs բացակայող ձանաչելու պահանջով։ Խնդrվում է բոլոr կազմակերդություններին ու քաղաքացիներին այդ անձանց վեrաբեrյալ իրենց հայsնի stղեկությունները հայsնել 33 Կուայքի մաrզի ընդհանուr իrավասության դաsաrան հեsեyալ հասցեով՝ f. Աբովյան, դաsաrան, հեռ. (0-222) 2-13-39

RUSSUPUPARASIN

33 Առացածութնի մաrզի Աշնակ համայնքի գյուղապեշառանի շենքում 2016թ.-ի հուլիսի 1-ին ժամը 16-00 ին չեղի կունենա համայնքի սեփականու-թյուն հանդիսացող 02.011-0104-0103 ծածկագոի 0.0912 հա առուջավայրի աճուռդ վաճառք 1 լուուվ:1մ2մակերեսի գինը սահմանված է 40 դռամ:Աճուռդի ուրան հողամասի նկացմամբ սեղվիչութնեւ եւ այլ սահմանափակումներ չկան։

Դայsեղը նեrկայացվում են մինչեւ սույն թվականի հունիսի 20-ը։ Լուցուցիչ sեղեկությունների համաr համաr դիմել Աշնակի գյուղապե-Տաrան։ Դեռ. 093-74-70-30



ԱրմենՏելը տեղեկացնում է -

«ԱրմենՏել» ՓԲԸ-ն (Beeline ապրանքանիշ) տեղեկացնում է այն մասին, որ ընկերությունը ԱաՃառում է իր սեփականություն հանդիսացող քաղաք Երևանում և ՀՀ մարզերում գտնվող անշարժ գույքի օբյեկտներ։ ԱաՃառքի ենթակա օբյեկտների ցանկի և պայմանների վերաբերյալ մանրամասն տեղեկատվություն կարող եք ստանալ www.beeline.am կայքի «Նորություններ» բաժնում։

Արմենիա Տելեֆոն Կոմպանի



Յիմնադիr՝ «Յանrադեsություն» ՓԲԸ Գrանցման վկայական N 02U-050153, գrանցման ամսաթիվ՝ 22.03.2001թ.:

Եrեւան 23, Աrcակունյաց դողուա 2, 13–14–ւդ հաւկեւ։

Գովազդ՝ 526974։ Յեռապաsձենը (fax)՝ 548611։ www.hhpress.am: E-mail: hh@hhpress.am Գովազդի **դա**ջասխանաչվությունը կrում է դաչվիrաչուն։ Յղումը «ՅՅ»–ին դաrչադիr է։ Նյութեrն ընդունվում են միայն մեքենագիr վիճակում (5 մեքենագիr էջից ոչ ավելի)։ խմբագրությունը պաrsավոr չէ գrախոսել, խմբագrել եւ վեrադաrձնել չպաsվիrված նյութեrը։ <u>R</u> sառով հոդվածները գովազդային են, ուոնց համաr խմբագրությունը պաsասխանաsվություն չի կrում։ «Տիգrան Մեծ» hrաsաrակչություն ՓԲԸ։ Ծավալը՝ 4 smագrական մամով։ Գrանցման թիվը՝ 1113։ Դասիչ (index)՝ 69120։ Գինը՝ 100 դրամ։ Իջեցված է Տղագրության ժ. 24.00–ին։ Պաջասխանաջու քարջուղար՝ Սամվել ՍԱՐԳՍՅԱՆ։

Յամաrի պաsասխանաsու, գլխավոr խմբագrի sեղակալ` Աrմեն ՅՈՎԱԿԻՄՅԱՆ։

Գլխավու խմբագիլ՝ Տիգլան ՖԱՐՄԱՆՅԱՆ

HAYASTANY HANRAPETUTIUN DAILY,

1 June 2016, Wednesday, N 100 (6382)

According to the procedure established by the RA law on "Assessment and expertise environmental impact" /21.06.2014, H0-110-N/, as well as established by the N 1325-N decision of 19.11.2014 of the Government of the Republic of Armenia (second phase) at 10 V. Sargsyan st., Yerevan on 14.06.2016 at 11.00 public discussions on the application of primary assessment for the environmental impact of the projects of new power plant being constructed by "RencoArmestate" LLC in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC, will be held.

Documents can be found at RencoArmestate LLC, 10 V. Sargsyan st., on the official Website of the RA Ministry of Nature Protection (mnp.am), 29 Komitas st., Yerevan (+374-22-02-18).

ԵՐԵՎԱՆԻ ՔԱՂԱՔԱՊԵՏԱՐԱՆ

<u>Х</u>, 0015, <u>р</u>. Երևան, Արգիշտիի 1

Nº 17/34356°

«<u>14</u> 06 201 <u>E</u>p.

ՀՀ ԲՆ «Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության փորձաքննական կենտրոն» ՊՈԱԿ-ի տնօրեն պարոն Վ. Սահակյանին

Հարգելի պարոն Սահակյան

Ի պատասխան Ձեր՝ 03.06.2016թ. հ. Վ/Ս-33/283 գրության, հայտնում եմ, որ ս/թ հունիսի 14-ին մասնակցելով «Երևանի ՋԷԿ» ՓԲԸ-ի տարածքում կառուցվող նոր էներգաբլոկի նախագծերի շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության նախնական գնահատման հայտի վերաբերյալ հանրային քննարկումներին՝ բնապահպանության վարչությունը տալիս է իր դրական եզրակացությունը նախատեսվող գործունեությանը։

Հարգանքով՝

Աշխատակազմի բնապահպանության Jupenipjuli yton Michay of come

Ա. Մարտիրոսյան

Կատարող. Ա. Հազարապետյան Հեռ. 011.514-263

YEREVAN MUNICIPALITY

1 Argishti str., Yerevan-0015, RA

14.06.2016

To the director of

"Center of expertise for environmental impact assessment"

State Non-Commercial Organization of RA NP

Mr. V. Sahakyan

N 17/34356

Dear Mr. Sahakyan,

in response of Your h. V/S-33/283 letter of 03.06.2016, I inform, that, on 14.06.2016 participating in public discussions on the application of primary assessment for the environmental impact of the projects of new power plant being constructed in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC, the Department of Nature Protection submits his positive conclusion on the planned activity.

Best regards

Director of the Department

of Nature Protection of Staff

A. Martirosyan

НАУАSTANY HANRAPETUTIUN DAILY, ЕЖЕДНЕВНАЯ ГАЗЕТА «АЙАСТАНИ АНРАПЕТУТЮН», ОРЦОФРО, LOP3U & SUUDAPU 1990 404SUPDPP 9-P8

ՊԱՇՏՈՆԱԿԱՆ

Նախագահը դաջահրավական բաrեփոխումներին նվիրված tunrhrnակցություն է անցկացրել

Երեկ նախագահ Սերժ Սարգսյանը հանրադեչությունում իրականացվող դաշաիրավական բարեփոխումներին նվիրված խորհրդակցություն է անցկացրել։ Պաշասխանաշու մաrմիննեrի ղեկավաrների մասնակցությամբ քննաrկվել է hանrաmtsnւթյան նախագահի կաrգադrությամբ հասsաsված 33 իրավական եւ դաշական բաrեփոխումների 2012-2016թթ. ռազմավա**ւական Երագրի կաչարման վիճակը։**

Ռազմավաrական ծrագրի նոյաsակն է Դայասsանի Դանrատեշությունում ձեւավորել ժամանակակից ժողովրդավարական mtsnւթյան չափանիշներին hամաmաsասխանող hrավական համակարգ եւ դաշական իշխանություն։



Եւկւի ղեկավարը նշել է, ու ռազմավաւական ծւագիրը մեւ իrավական եւ դաշական համակարգի զարգացման համար էական նշանակություն ունեցող փասչաթուղթ է, եւ դրա պաշշած իrականացումը խիսs կաrեւոr է բաrեփոխումնեrի շառունակականությունն ատահովելու համաr։

քննաւկման աղյունքնելով առնանագրվել է, ու ծրագրի կաsաrման cnurg snru sաrիների ընթացքում եղել են ինչպես դrական ձեռքբերումներ, այնպես էլ լուրջ թերացումներ եւ բացթողումներ։ խորհրդակցության ավարչին հանրադեչության նախագահը պաշասխանաչու մաrմինների ղեկավաrներին հանձնաrարել է մինչեւ sարեվերջ գործուն միջոցներ ձեռնարկել չկաsաrված ծrագrային գոrծողություննեrն առավելագույնս աrդյունավեs իrականացնելու համաr։

ՅՅ նախագահի մամլո գrասենյակ

36 musuhrwyniejwu hts fuurydti t CARMAC 2 brugh nupugfn

33 գյուղաsնsեսության նախաrաr Utron Կաrաղեsյանը ոնդունել է Յամաշխարհային բանկի դաշվիրակությանը, որի կազմում էին 3Բ ծրագրերի ՠաչասխանաչու, Դամայնքների գյու-

Յայաստանում բռնի ուժով հաrgեr չեն լուծվելու **Չինված խումբը պեsf է սթափվի եւ օգsվի հեsքայլ կաsաrելու հնաrավոrությունից**

Եrեկ Յայասsանի Յանrադեsության նախագահի մոs sեղի է ունեցել խորհրդակցություն ազգային անվչանգության ծառայության, ոսsիկանության, դաsախազության եւ քննչական մաrմինների ղեկավարների մասնակցությամբ, իայջնում են 33 նախագահի մամլո գrասենյակից։ Եrկrի ղեկավաrին նեrկայացվել է 2016թ. հուլիսի 17-ին 33 ոսշիկանության պահակապաrեկային գնդի surubfnui stղի ունեցած զինված հաrծակման եւ դrան հաջուդած իrադաrձությունների մանrամասները, ինչպես նաեւ իrականացվող միջոցառումների աrդյունքները։

Դանrաղեչության նախագահին զեկուցվել է նաեւ, ոr դահակաղարեկային գնդի sարածքում դահվող դաsանդներին ազաs արծակելու, զինված խմբի անդամների կողմից զենքը վայr դնելու եւ իշխանություններին հանձնվելու նպաsակով շաունակաբաr վաrվում են ակsիվ բանակցություննեr, ձեռնաrկվում են իրավիճակից թելադրվող այլ անհրաժեշs գործողուpjnLüütr:

Յանսատեշության նախագահն ընդգծել է, ու ուեղծված իրավիճակին խաղաղ հանգուցալուծում ѕալու համար պետք է ձեռնաւկվեն հնաւավու բոլու միջոցնելը, կառեւուել է ենթադrյալ բոլոr իrավախախsումնեrի համակողմանի եւ անաչառ fննությունը, ինչպես նաեւ մեղավուների համաr պահժի անխուսափելիության աղահովումը։ Խորհորակցության առդյունքնեrnվ իrավապահ մաrմիննեrի ղեկավաrնեrին srվել են անhrաժեշ իանձնաrաrականներ։

«Մինչ մեr հեւթական խուհրդակցությունը սկսելը մեկ անցամ եւս փասsենք, ու մեւ եւկիւն այս օրերին աղրում է դժվարին եւ պաsասխանաsու ortr։ Պաsձառներին, իիարկե, այս դահին չեմ անդրադառնալու։ Յիմա դրա ժամանակը չէ։ Կասեմ միայն, nr pnįnru mեsf է urwնից դասեr funtuf:

Մեկ անգամ եւս ցավակցում եմ զոհված գնդապեց Աթուր Վանոյանի ընչանիքին եւ հարազաչներին։ Բոլորս պաrsf ունենք նրա առաջ։ Մենք պեsք է անենք ամեն ինչ, որղեսզի այս բարդ իրավիճակը կարգավորվի, եւ նման ողբերգություն այլեւս չկրկնվի։

Այս վիճակի ակունքում է մեր իրողության մեջ ամենավ-<u>Տանգավու մշայնությունը՝ hurgtrը լուծել բռնությամբ եւ</u> ուժի կիրառմամբ։ Այս մշայնության հեշագա զարգացումը hnh t cws yswagwynr htstrwafatrny htag atr tryrh tr **պե**ջականության համար։

Դայաստանում բռնի ուժով, հարձակումով եւ պատանդ վերցնելով hwrgtr չեն լուծվելու։ Եվ դա երբեք մենք թույլ չենք ջալու։ Այս իրավիձակի հանգուցալուծումը պեջք է լինի Չայասջանի եւ մեr հասարակության, պետության հասունության կառեւուագույն քննություն։

Ոսչիկանության պառեկապահակային գնդի չառածքը գրաված զինյալներին կոչ եմ անում ցուցաբերել զսովածություն եւ իրենց սադրիչ գործողություններով չվջանգել nurheüterh luwüfn:



անի Յանrապետության Սահմանադրության եւ օրենքների խահիվ ուսիուսնմամբ։

Անձնական վոեժխնդության բոլու փորձերը կասեցվե-In the orthoff nidnut:

Այո՛, Չայասչանում դժգոինեւ շաջ կան։ Սակայն թող ng nf guluwidh ta gaswoh, nr ywrng t nrtat webe ywa ղաsձառ շահագործել մեր դե<u></u>չականության հիմքերը քայքայելու համար։

Յուդուում եմ մեր հանրության բոլոր ներկայացուցիչներին իրենց քաղաքական եւ քաղաքացիական իրավունքները ուացնել բացառատես խաղաղ եւ օրենքի շրջանակներում։ annnnu եմ նաեւ, nr snuf չsան ծայրահեղ քայլեր եւ սաղրանքներ հրահրող անձանց առաջարկներին եւ գաղափաrներին։ Դա հղի է նու մարդկային կուուսsների լուրջ վութմաշկ։

Յուդուում եմ, ու յուրաքանչյուր ոք գիջակցի այդ սաղանքներից եւ ծայրահեղ քայլերից բխող իրական վշանգնե-

Յանձնաrարում եմ ձեզ՝ իրավայաի մարմինների ղեկավարներիդ, որդեսզի ձեր գործունեությունը շարունակեք

ջոցները իրավիձակին վերջնական խաղաղ հանգուցալուծում չայու համար։

nüti gtüfn:

թանկ է մեզ համար։

հանությունն այս լառվածության պաշանդը դառնա։ Կարծում եմ, որ այս իրավիձակն արդեն ավելի երկար է stunid, full dtilf ywrng tilf dtg pnyj swj: Umrhj wduhg դեռ այնքան շաs ժամանակ չի անցել, ուղեսզի մեւ հասառակությունն իրեն թույլ sա մոռանալու sեղի ունեցածի մասին։

Մեկ անցամ եւս բոլորիս զգոնության եւ գսովածության կոչ եմ անում՝ հանուն Չայասջանի Չանrumեչու-



23 LANLAU 2016, CUAUD, Ond 138 (6420)

Կւկին կոչ եմ անում զինված խմբին՝ ժամ առաջ վայր

Ubuf anronid buf bi anrobini buf hudptrusur: Ubr trկրի յուրաքանչյուր քաղաքացու կյանքը եւ առողջությունը

Մենք չենք գնացել այստիսի իրավիձակներում դասական համաrվող ձանարարհով։ Սրանով մենք հնարավորություն ենք չվել զինված խմբին հեչքայլ կաչառելու համար։ Յուսով եմ, որ նրանք կսթափվեն։

Fung util hrudnilf sniltlif pnij suini, nr utr ngo

to 6

Sujuusuup

อนบุคนานุกษ

υ τη ε τη συνό ταυνηρ



ຆຆຆຉຬໞຆໞຬຨຌຎຬ

Գիrքը՝ նաեւ էկrանին

Դա ոչ թե «դավաճանություն», այլ կյանքը եւկաւացնել է

Ժամանակակից «լեզուն» փոխում է գrfի մասին պաsկեrացումնեrը։ Եթե, ասենք, օrինակ՝ 30 sաrի առաջ գիrքը միայն թղթից գիrfն էr, ապա այսօr այն նաեւ փոքրիկ էկrանի sեսքով է։ Ու դեռ չենք կաrող ասել, թե 30 sաrի հեsո գիsությունն ընթեrցանության համաr ինչ նոrություն կառաջաrկի։

Ոմանց կողմից ուղես «դասական» գոքի հանդեպ «դավաճանություն» ընդունվող էլեկsոնային sաrբեւակը, եթե չասենք, ու փւկեց գոքի «ֆիզիկական» կյանքը՝ կընկալվի ուպես դավաճանություն գիsության ու նուաւաւության նկաsմամբ։ Ահա թե ինչու՝ միշs չէ, ու գիոքն ընթեւցվում է միայն ընթեւցանության համա։։ Յաsկապես կոթական ծուսգրեւում նեուսոված գոականությունը սեւցել է պեցք։ Իսկ դա ենթադրում է գոքի պարբեւաբաւ թեւթում։ Եվ ուքա՞ն կաւող է գոյացեւել աւդեն դեղնած, հնացած, եւբեմն նաեւ գրեթե փշովող թուղթը։ Ի վեղջո այդօրինակ էջի ձակացագիրը կլինի առցացոաուսնային միջոցով կապը գոքի հեց։

Եվ ինչու չօգsվել ժամանակի թելադrանքից՝ պահպանելով, այսպես ասած՝ բնorինակը։ Յաsկապես ոr այդպիսի հնաrավոrություն ընձեռող կայքեrի թիվը վեrջին crջանում կաrծես cաsանում է։ Orինակ՝ «grqamol.am»-ն առաջաrկում է բազմաժանr գrականություն՝ ինչպես oնլայն ընթեrցանության, այնպես էլ նեrբեռնման համաr։ Այդ հասցեից orական կաsաrվում է միջինը cուrջ 320, ամսական ավելի քան 9100 բեռնում։ «Գrքամոլ» նախաձեռնության հիմնադիrնեrից **Յասմիկ Մելիքսեթյանը «֏֏»**-ի հեs զrույցում նշեց՝ քանի ոr կայքում էլեկsrոնային գrfեrի քանակն առայժմ այդքան էլ cաs չէ, եւ ընթեrցողն ընsrելու լայն հնաrավոrություն չունի, ուսsի sեղադrված բոլոr գrfեrն էլ հավասաr քանակով են նեrբեռնվում։ Իսկ վեrջին ժամանակնեrում ամենաշաջը նեrբեռնվել են trիխ Մաrիա Ռեմաrկի եւ Վաrդգես Պեsrոսյանի գrftrր։

Գոճեն էլեկտոնային դառծնելը բավականին ժամանակատա եւ աշխատատ գործընթաց է։ «Պատկերացրեք լուսադատճենահանվում է յուրաքանչյուր էջ, այնուհետեւ դրանք մշակվում են, համադատասխանեցվում մեր կայքի համար մշակված հատուկ չափանիշին, ադա մի քանի ֆորմատով դահդանվում եւ հետ միայն տղադրվում կայքում։ Մի գիրքը թվայնացնելու համար 10-20 or ժամանակ է դահանջվում»,աշխատանքները ներկայացնում է Յասմիկը։

Կայքում իիմա sեղադrված է մոsավոrապես 50 էլեկsmնային գիrք։ Բայց էլեկsmնայնացման աշխաsանքները շաrունակական են։ Նշանակում է՝ գrքեrի բազան շաrունակում է թաrմացվել։ Միայն թե հայալեզու գrականությունն էլեկsmնային sաrբեrակով ավելի քիչ է։ Դrա պաsճառները, ըսs «գrքամոլ» նախաձեռնության հիմնադrի, բազմաթիվ են՝ սկսած հrավականից, ինչո ենթառում է հեռինականը հրավունքնե-

LUSSUPUPARDSARD

2016 թ. հուլիսի 31-ին, ժամը 13ին, ՎԱՅԱՆ ՏԵՐՅԱՆԻ ծննդավայում՝ Վւասջանի Նինոծմինդայի crջանի Գանձա գյուղում, sեղի կունենա «ՏԵՐՅԱՆԱԿԱՆ ՕՐ» ավանդական ջոնահանդեսը, նվիւված մեծանուն դոեջին։



«Strjwű» մշակութային կենsrnն «Զավախք» հայrենակցական միություն

Տոնահանդեսին մեկնող ավորբուսները կշաrժվեն «Տերյան» մշակութային կենուոնին հաrող ցաrածքից (հասցեն՝ Երեւան, Տերյան փ. թիվ 72), հուլիսի 31-ին, ժամը 07.00-ին։

Տոնահանդեսից հեșո ավչոբուսնեrը կմեկնեն ՎԱՅԱՆ ՏԵ-ԴՅԱՆԻ չուն-թանգաrան եւ Փաrվանա լիճ։

<<Շrջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահաջման եւ փորձաքննության մասին>> ጓጓ օրենքի /21.06.2014թ. ጓ0-110-Ն/, ինչղես նաեւ ጓጓ կառավարության 19.11.2014թ. N 1325-Ն որոշմամբ սահմանված կարգով (երորդ փուլ) 2016թ. օգոսsոսի 2-ին, ժամը 11.00-ին Երեւան քաղաքի Վ. Սարգսյան 10 հասցեում sեղի կունենա «Ռենկո Արմէսsեյs» ՍՊ ընկերության կողմից կառուցվող Երեւանի ԶԷԿ ՓԲԸ-ի sարածքում նոր էներգաբլոկի նախագծերի շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահաջման հայցի վերաբերյալ հանրային քննարկումներ։

Փասջաթղթերին կարելի է ծանոթանալ «Ռենկո Առմէսsեյ» ՍՊ ընկերությունում, Վ. Սարգսյան 10 հասցեում, ՅՅ բնաղահղանության նախարարության դաշջոնական կայքում (mnp.am), f. Երեւան, Կոմիջաս 29 հասցեում։ +374-22-02-18

านวรนคนคกหลวกหบ

2016 թվականի օգոսsոսի 25-ին ժամը 11.00-ին Գեղաrքունիքի մաrզի Վաrսեւի գյուղապեշաrանում չեղի կունենա համայնքի վաrչական շաrածքում գsնվող LDS 105-086-0128 նածկագողվ 0,10 հա բնակավայրերի հասառակական կառուցապացման հողակշորների ածուոդ վաճառք։ Յասաrակական կառուցապաց ման հողակշորի 1 հՆ-ի մեկնաrկային գնիը 380 դrամ է Աճուոդի մասնակցության գումաrը` 1000 դrամ, նախավճաrը` մեկնաrկային գնի 5%-ը Աճուոդի մասնա նակցության հայշեղը ընդունվում են մինչեւ 2016 թվականի օգոսչոսի 19-ը ժամը 17.00 Lrացուցիչ եղեկությունների համաr դիմել Վաrսերի գյուղապեշաrան։ Դեռ. 0261-2-74-63 Վաrսերի գյուղապեշաrան

านวรมานากหองกาบ

ԳԴ Առնավիդի մառզի ընդհանու իռավառայան առաջին ասյանի դասառանի 30.05.2016թ. թիվ ԱՐԴ004004/։ Անանկ-Ափոն օդնական ումի մեջ է մեն 30.05.2016թ.եւ նույն դասառանի 04.07.2016թ. ուղումյա/ մանաչվել Կառանյանի սնանկության գործով կառավարչ է Շանակվել Կառեն Ասագրանը։

ությունը ուրան հարաքություն արանությունը ու ուրանում է։ Հայ հարաքություն գրություն գրությունը հարաքությունը ու որությունը հարաքությունը հետ գրությունը հարաքու հարաքությունը հարաքությունը հարաքությունը հարաքությունը հարաքությունը հարաքությունը հարաքությունը հարաքությունը

Պաrsաsերերի առաջին ժողովը նշանակված է 12.09.2016թ., ժամը 12:00-ին, 73 Առնավիրի մարզի ընդիանու իրավատության առաջին աշյանի դաշառանի շենհում էԱռնավիր, Դանդադեշության 41/։


HAYASTANY HANRAPETUTIUN DAILY,

23 July 2016, Saturday, N 138(6420)

According to the procedure established by the RA law on "Assessment and expertise environmental impact" /21.06.2014, H0-110-N/, as well as established by the N 1325-N decision of 19.11.2014 of the Government of the Republic of Armenia (third phase) at 10 V. Sargsyan st., Yerevan on 02.08.2016 at 11.00 public discussions on the application of primary assessment for the environmental impact of the projects of new power plant being constructed by "RencoArmestate" LLC in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC, will be held.

Documents can be found at RencoArmestate LLC, 10 V. Sargsyan st., on the official Website of the RA Ministry of Nature Protection (mnp.am), 29 Komitas st., Yerevan (+374-22-02-18).



ՀՀ, 0015, բ. Երևան, Արգիշտիի 1

№ <u>17/16676</u>4

. 02 08 201 G

«ՌԵՆԿՈ ԱՐՄԷՍՏԵՅՏ» ՍՊԸ-Ի ՏՆՕՐԵՆ ՊԱՐՈՆ Ք.ԿՈՒԿՈՒՐԱԿԻԻՆ

Հարգելի Ք. Կուկուրակի.

Հայտնում եմ, որ ս/թ օգոստոսի 2-ին մասնակցելով «Երևանի ՋԷԿ» ՓԲԸ-ի տարածքում կառուցվող նոր էներգաբլոկի նախագծերի շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահատման հայտի վերաբերյալ հանրային քննարկումներին՝ բնապահպանության վարչությունը տալիս է իր դրական եզրակացությունը նախատեսվող գործունեությանը։

Հարգանքով՝

Աշխատակազմի բնապահպանության վարչության պետի ժ/պ՝ վարչության պետի ժ/պ՝

Ս.Մաքսապետյան

Կատարող. Ա. Հազարապետյան Հեռ. 011.514-263

YEREVAN MUNICIPALITY

1 Argishti str., Yerevan-0015, RA

02.08.2016

To the director of "RencoArmestate" LLC

Mr. C. Cucurachi

N 17/16676

Dear Mr. Cucurachi,

I inform, that, on 02.08.2016 participating in public discussions on the application of assessment for the environmental impact of the projects of new power plant being constructed in the area of Yerevan TPC CJSC, the Department of Nature Protection submits his positive conclusion on the planned activity.

Best regards

Temporary executor of the Department

of Nature Protection of Staff

S. Maksapetyan

Հավելված N2

ՀՀ բնապահպանության նախարարի 2014թ նոյեմբերի << 18 >>-ի N 347-Ն հրամանի

ՏԵԽՆԻԿԱԿԱՆ ԱՌԱՋԱԴՐԱՆՔ /նախատեսվող գործունեության/

su <u>37</u> <<<u>23</u>>> <u>06</u> 2016p

Սույն առաջադրանքը կազմված է <<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահատման և փորձաքննության մասին>> ՀՀ օրենքի (այսուհետ՝ Օրենք) դրույթների համաձայն և հիմք է հանդիսանում նախատեսվող Ա կամ Բ կատեգորիայի գործունեության՝ փորձաքննության հիմնական փուլին ներկայացվող շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության հիմնական գնահատման հաշվետվության մշակման համար՝ ըստ ստորն ներկայացվող պահանջների.

1.	Ձեռնարկողի անվանումը և հասցեն՝	<<Ռենկո Արմեստեյտ>> ՍՊԸ /ք. Երևան, Մ. Խորենացու փող. 1-ին փակուղի, շենք 8/
2.	Նախատեսվող գործունեությունը և նրա կատեգորիան՝	<<Համակցված շոգեգազային ցիկլով էներգաբլոկի>> կառուցման նախնական գնահատման հայտ՝ <<Ա>> կատեգորիա
3.	Ազդակիր համայնքը (ները)	Քաղաք Երևան
4.	Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահատման գործընթացում դիտարկվող օբյեկտները և բնութագրերը նախատեսել համաձայն Օրենքի 7-րդ հոդվածի 1-ին մասի 1-ից 13-րդ կետերի	Անհրաժեշտ է դիտարկել կետերում նշված բոլոր օբյեկտները և բնութագրերը:
5.	Շրջակա միջավայրի և մարդու առողջության վրա ազդեցության գնահատման հաշվետվության բովանդակությունը և դրան կից ներկայացվող փաստաթղթերը նախատեսել համաձայն Օրենքի 18-րդ հոդվածի 2-րդ մասի 1-ից 15-րդ և 3-րդ մասի 2-ից 6-րդ կետերի	Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահատման հաշվետվությունում անհրաժեշտ է ներառել նշված բոլոր կետերի ցուցանիշները և փաստաթղթերը:
6	5 C 1 S 1 1 1 1 S	

 Համապատասխան ոլորտի պետական լիազորված մարմնի եզրակացության կամ կարծիքի վերաբերյայ պահանջո՝ 7. Գործընթացի մասնակիցները համաձայն Երևանի քաղաքապետարան, հանրություն: Օրենքի 4-րդ հոդվածի 1-ին մասի 22-րդ կետի

8. Հանրության ծանուցումը քննարկումների իրականացումը կատարել համաձայն Օրենքի 26-րդ հոդվածի 2-րդ մասի 2-րդ, 3-րդ կետերի, 3-րդ մասի, 5-րդ մասի 1-ին, 2-րդ կետերի, 7-րդ և 8-րդ մասերի և <Հանրային ծանուցման և քննարկումների իրականացման կարգր սահմանելու մասին>> ՀՀ կառավարության 19.11.2014թ N1325-Ն որոշման

և Գնահատման րնթագքում քաղաքապետարանը ձեռնարկողի htm համատեղ պետք F իրականացնի ծանուցում հանրության հանրային h քննարկումներ։ Արձանագրությունները, տեսաձայնագրության կրիչը, հանրության դիտողությունների հիմնավորված պատասխանների ամփոփաթերթը պետք է ներառել 2pgulu միջավայրի Jnu ազդեցության գնահատման հաշվետվությունում և ներկայացնել ՀՀ բնապահպանության նախարարություն՝ փորձաքննության։

- 9. Պետական տուրքի չափը՝
- 10. Ստացողը և հաշվի համարը՝
- 11. Վճարման նպատակը՝
- 12. Փորձաքննության հիմնական փուլի սկիզբը համաձայն Օրենքի 19-րդ հոդվածի և <<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության փորձաքննության իրականացման կարգը սահմանելու մասին>> ՀՀ կառավարության որոշման

500.000 (hhuq huppnip հազար) դրամ՝ Ա կատեգորիայի համար

22 ֆինանսների նախարարության գանձապետարան 900005000196

Նախատեսվող գործունեության փորձաքննության գործընթացի իրականացման համար

Տեխնիկական առաջադրանքի համապատասխան կազմված **PUU3** հաշվետվությունը՝ ՀՀ բնապահպանության նախարարություն՝ շրջակա միջավայրի Jpm ազդեցության փորձաքննություն ներկայացնելը:

<<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցությա փորձաքննական կենտրոն>> ՊՈԱԿ-ի տեծո



Վ.Սահակյան

<<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության փորձաքննական կենտրոն>> ՊՈԱԿ-ի փոխտնօրեն

Maxed Ս.Փահլևանյան

<<Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության փորձաքննական կենտրոն>> ՊՈԱԿ-ի մասնագետ

Ա.Մինասյան

Annex N2 of the

N 347-N order of 18.11.2014

of RA Minister of Nature Protection

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION

/of the planned activity/

TS <u>37</u>

23.06.2016

The present specification is made according to the RA law clauses on the "Assessment and expertise environmental impact" (hereinafter referred to as Law) and is taken as a base for the planned A or B category activity for the processing of the report of main assessment of environmental impact being submitted to the expertise general phase, according to the following specifications:

1. The name and address of undertaker:	"RencoArmestate" LLC / 8 M. Khorenatsi St., 1st Blind Alley, Yerevan/
2. The planned activity and its category:	Primary assessment application, "A" category for the "Combined cycle power plant"
3. The affected community (communities):	Yerevan city
4. To foresee the objects and characteristics being observed during the process of the Environmental impact assessment according to the Law 1-13 points of the 1 st part of the 7 th article:	It is necessary to observe all the objects and characteristics indicated in the points.
5. To foresee the content of report of the human health and environmental impact assessment and the attached documents according to the Las 2-6 points of the 3th part and 1-15 points of the 2nd part of 18 th article:	In the reports of the environmental impact assessment is necessary to include all the indicated documents and indicators of the points.

6. The requirement on the opinion or conclusion of state licensed body of the relevant field:	
7. The participants of the process according to the Las 22 nd point of the 1 st part of the 4 th article:	Yerevan municipality, society
8. To execute the public notice and the implementation of discussions according to the 7 th and 8 th parts, 1 st and 2 nd points of the 5 th part, 3 th part, 2 nd and 3 th points of the 2 nd part of the Law 26 th article and according to the N1325-N decision of 19.11.2014 on the "Establishment of the public notice and discussions implementation procedure":	During the assessment the municipality should realize public notice and public discussions with the undertaker. The minutes of meeting, the video flash, the answers summary sheet based on public remarks should be included in the report of the environmental impact assessment and should be submitted to the expertise of the RA Ministry of Nature Protection.
9. The amount of state fee:	500.000 (five hundred thousand) AMD for A category
10. The recipient and the account:	treasury of RA Ministry of Finance – 900005000196
11. Payment purpose:	For the implementation of the planned activity expertise
12. The beginning of the expertise general phase according to the Law 19 th article and to the decision of the Government of the Republic of Armenia on the "Establishment of procedure of the implementation of the environmental impact expertise":	The submission of the environmental impact assessment report made according to the technical specification to the expertise of environmental impact – to the RA Ministry of Nature Protection .

Director of "Center of expertise for Environmental impact assessment" State Non-Commercial Organization

V. Sahakyan

Deputy director of "Center of expertise for

Environmental impact assessment" State Non-Commercial Organization

Specialist of "Center of expertise for Environmental impact assessment" State Non-Commercial Organization S. Pahlevanyan

A. Minasyan



Comments to the	Comments to the Draft Final ESIA Report				
Do vou wish to re	ceive an answer	to vour	Yes	No	
comments?					
If yes, please mark how you	Post	l elephone	E-mail	Others	
wish to be	Address:	Contact number:	E-mail	Please	
contacted			address:	specify:	
Proferred					
language for	Armenian	Russian	English		
communication				Please specify:	
				op o o	
L prefer to rema	ain anonymous				
Gender:					
Title:					
Name: (Please do not fill this field if you would like to remain anonymous)					
Signature: (Please	e do not fill this fie	ld if you would like t	o remain anor	nymous)	
Local:					
Dale.					

11.2 Annex 2 - Form for comments

11.3 Annex 3 - Stakeholder Log

#	Entity/Individu al person's name	Representative	Contact details	Communication media	Comment	Answer and Action for follow-up	Responsibility	Deadline	Confirmation of close-out		
1	Municipality of Kharberd	Karo Kakoyan, Mayor	+(374 093) 400-122 Nor Kharberd village, Ararat Marz norkharberd.ararat@mta.gov.am	Personal meeting	04.07.2017 No concerns regarding the implementation of the Project; no medical/ health issues of local population concerning the operation of the existing YCCPP-1 were reported; the		04.07.2017 No concerns				
2	Municipality of Ayntap	Karen Sargsyan, Mayor	+(374 094) 722-222 Ayntap village, Ararat Marz <u>ayntap.ararat@mta.gov.am</u>			04 07 2047					
3	Municipality of Yerevan, Head of Erebuni Administrative District	Edgar Mkrtchyan, Head of Department	+(374 11) 518-388 Building 87, Sasuntsi Davit str. Yerevan			population concerning the operation of the existing YCCPP-1 were reported; the	Not applicable	Not applicable	Not applicable	Not applicable	
4	Municipality of Yerevan, Head of Shengavit Administrative District	Armen Sargsyan, Head of Department	+(374 11) 518-808 Building 26, G.Njdeh str. Yereva		the Project will create jobs for the local population						

11.4 Annnex 4 - Public Grievances Form

Description of Incident or Grievance (What happened? Where did it happen? Who did it happen to? What is the result of the problem?)						
who did it happen to ? what is the result of the problem ?)						
Date of Incident/G	rievance:					
One time incider	nt/grievance?		Date:			
Happened more	than once?		How m	any times?		
On-going (currer	ntly experiencing p	oroblem)				
Do you have suge	estions on how	to solve the	e proble	m?		
Do you wish to regrievance?	Do you wish to receive an answer to your Yes No grievance?					
mark how you						
wish to be contacted	Address:	Contact n	umber:	E-mail address:	Please specify:	
Preferred language for communication Armenian Russian English Others Please specify:			Others Please specify:			
I prefer to remain anonymous						
I prefer to remain	l ain anonymous					
Gender:	ain anonymous					
Gender: Title: Name: (Please do	ain anonymous	you would li	ke to rer	nain anonyme	ous)	
Gender: Title: Name: (Please do Signature: (Please	ain anonymous not fill this field if e do not fill this fie	you would li Id if you wou	ke to rer uld like to	main anonymo o remain anoi	ous) nymous)	



The legal framework of the earthcover pollution standardization in Armenia and the results of the YCCPP2 territory research



Customer Renco Armestate LLC

Executer Consecoard LLC

Yerevan, 2018

CONTENT

1.	Leg	al framework	3
	1.1.	RA land code	3
	1.2.	Sublegal acts	3
2.	The	standardization of soil pollution	4
	2.1.	The standardization of soil pollution	4
	2.2.	Soil classification by hazardness and the assessment of impact	6
3. TE	AN. RRIT	ALYSIS OF MONITORING RESULTS CARRIED OUT IN THE YEREVAN TPP-2 ORY	9
	3.1.	Introduction	9
	3.2.	Soil pollution assessment in the territory of Yerevan TPP-2	10
4.	Con	clusion	12

ABBREVIATION LIST

RA	Republic of Armenia

- RF Russian Federation
- TLV Threshold limit value
- TPP Thermal power plant
- SN Sanitary normative
- LLC Limite Liability Company

1. Legal framework

1.1. RA land code

The Land Code defines the basic directions of State regulatory system improvement concerning land relations, development of various organizational and legal forms of land economy, fertility of land, land use efficiency raise, protection and improvement of an environment – favorable for human vitality and health and the legal framework concerning the protection of the rights on land. The land code has been passed on 02.05.2001.

The Article 6 of the Code defines "Due to its target position, the available land of the Republic of Armenia is classified:

- 1) Agricultural
- 2) Settlement
- 3) Industrial, for entrails-use and production
- 4) Energetic, transport, communicational, public structural
- 5) Specially protected areas
- 6) Special importance
- 7) Forestry
- 8) Water
- 9) Reserved land

The lands of the thermal power plant due to target position are classified as "Energetic".

According to the Article 15 of the Code: "Lands allocated for construction and maintanence of thermal, nuclear and hydro plants, high voltage cables, gas pipes and use on other energetic purposes are considered the lands of energy objects".

The Article 16 defines "The goals and objectives of land protection", under the 7th clause of which "in order to provide for protection of human health and environment, the Government defines the general requirements of the protection the earth from pollution, the maximum allowable norms of land contaminative substances, lands pollution level assessment order.

1.2. Sublegal acts

Based on the RA land code requirements the RA Government has passed several sublegal acts, the main ones of which in the land use and protection fields are the followings:

 "The technical regulation of the general requirements of the protection of the lands form pollution, the list of the contaminating substances, polluting the lands, and the assessment of the lands pollution level" (RA Government resolution N1277-N of 24.08.2006),

- "The technical regulation of the requiements for the decision of land fertile layer removal norms and the protection and use of the removed fertile layer" (RA Government resolution N1026-N of 20.07.2006),
- "The order of the assessment of the impact due to the economical activity on the land resources" (RA Government resolution N 92-N of 25.01.2005).

The land resources pollution indexes and the requirements for them are regulated by the "Sanitary rules and norms, hygienic requirements, for the soil quality N2.1.7.003-10", approved by the order N01-N of 25.01.2010 of the RA Minister of healthcare.

2. The standardization of soil pollution

The soil pollution permissible level is regulated by the ""The technical regulation of the general requirements of the protection of the lands form pollution, the list of the contaminating substances, polluting the lands, and the assessment of the lands pollution level" (RA Government resolution N1277-N of 24.08.2006) and "Sanitary rules and norms, hygienic requirements, for the soil quality N2.1.7.003-10" (order N01-N of 25.01.2010 of the RA Minister of Healthcare).

2.1. The standardization of soil pollution

The threshold limit values (TLV) of the chemicals (including also the pesticides) in the soil are defined in the table 1 of the sanitary norms N2.1.7.003-10 (presented with abridgements, considering the possibility of existance in YCCPP2 territory).

Table 1

N	Denomination of the substances	TL value mg/kg, considering the background (clarck)	Limiting indexes
15.	Petrol	0,1	Air-migration
16.	Benzol	0,3	Air-migration
19.	Vanadium	150,0	General sanitary
52.	Xylols	0,3	Translocation
61.	Nitrates	130,0	Water-migration
74.	Mercury	2,1	Translocation
75.	Lead	32,0	General sanitary
79.	Sulfur compounds (S), elementary sulfur	160,0	General sanitary
80.	Hydrogen sulfide	0,4	Օդամիգրացիոն
81.	Sulphuric acid	160,0	General sanitary
85.	Styrene	0,1	Air-migration
87.	Antimony	4,5	Air-migration
88.	Toluene	0,3	Air-migration,

THE THRESHOLD LIMIT VALUES OF CHEMICALS IN SOIL

N	Denomination of the substances	TL value mg/kg, considering the background (clarck)	Limiting indexes
			Translocation
96.	Potassium Chloride	360,0	Water-migration
102.	Cobalt	5,0	General sanitary
	Manganese		General sanitary
	a) turf-podzolic black soil, derived	700,0	
	by 0,1N H ₂ SO ₄	300,0	
	рН 4,0	400,0	
	рН 5,1—6,0	500,0	
	pH ≥ 6,0		
103.	b) pH 4,8		
	turf-podzolic black soil, derived		
	by ammonium acetate buffer		
	рН 4,0	140,0	
	рН 5,1—6,0	60,0	
	pH ≥ 6,0	80,0	
		100,0	
104.	Copper	3,0	
105.	Nickel	4,0	General sanitary
106.	Lead	6,0	General sanitary
107.	Zinc	23	Translocation
109.	Chrome	6,0	General sanitary

However the direct use of TLVs according to the sanitary norms N 2.1.7.003-10, is applied only to certain contruction types:

"10. In the soils of residential construction territories, territories, envisaged for the recreation areas for health purposes, sanitary protection zones of water supply centralized systems structures it is not allowed:

- excess of threshold limit values or orienting permissible quantities with chemical pollutants by sanitary-toxicological indicators",

...

"15. For the assessment of the soil sanitary condition of the sanitary protection zones residential construction, pre-school, school organizations, yard playground territories, recreation areas for health purposes, water supply centralized systems structures, including the water intake".

For other activity types (industrial, agriculture, not civil contruction) only land use proposals are presented.

According to the pollution level, the land use proposals are defined in the Annex 2 of the Sanitary norms N 2.1.7.003-10.

Annex 2. THE LAND USE PROPOSALS, ACORDING TO THE POLLUTION LEVEL

Land pollution class	Land usage offer
Clean	Usage without restriction
Permissible	Usage without restriction, except for the objects of high vulnerability - children's, school organizations, residential areas, sports, playground, children's recreational areas, resort zones, water objects, water mains
Moderately dangerous	For filling of trenches and pits during construction, for areas foreseen for landscaping, by adding 0.2m layer of clean soil
Dangerous	Restricted use for filling of pits during construction, adding no less than 0.5m layer of clean soil. In case of an epidemic hazard, disinfection (dezinvasion) is carried out on the recommendation of the hygienic anti-epidemic controls authorities, with further laboratory supervision
Emergency dangerous	Transportation and utilization in special polygons. In case of an epidemic hazard, disinfection (dezinvasion) is carried out on the recommendation of the hygienic anti-epidemic controls authorities, with further laboratory supervision

2.2. Soil classification by hazardness and the assessment of impact

Classification of soil by hazardness and the assessment of impact is made according to "The technical regulation of the general requirements of the protection of the lands form pollution, the list of the contaminating substances, polluting the lands, and the assessment of the lands pollution level" (RA Government resolution N1277-N of 24.08.2006).

Lands protection requirements and classification of land by pollution levels are provided in chapters III and IV of the regulation.

III. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE LAND PROTECTION FROM POLLUTANTS

4. General requirements for the land protection from pollutants include

••••

b) industrial and household trashes (if they contain elements necessary for soil nutrition or chemical amelioration) using as fertilizer or chemical amelioration to thoroughly examine their chemical composition to prevent the importation of heavy metals and other toxic elements and compounds into the soil;

c) Removal and utilization of waste, emissions, outflow, wastewater and their sediments by implementing soil pollution preventing measures.

d) pesticides, mineral fertilizers, storage and transportation of other chemicalization by implementing measures to prevent environmental pollution.

e) the planning of cleaning structures that exclude the chemical pollution of soil in the designs of new industrial organizations to be constructed, and technological lines;

f) excluding pollution and contamination of industrial and domestic wastes, coarse objects, stones, macadam and construction waste during the construction, structuring and other works, of linear structures and meliorative objects.

IV. LIST OF LAND POLLUTING CHEMICAL SUBSTANCES AND REQUIREMENTS FOR SOIL CLASSIFICATION BY POLLUTING CHEMICAL SUBSTANCES IMPACT

6. Lands according to chemical pollution are classified on the basis of threshold limit value (TLV) of chemical substances in soil and on background levels of these substances.

By pollution, the lands are classified as:

a) highly polluted lands where the content of polluting chemicals exceeds their maximum permissible concentration or approximate permissible concentration, related to the chemical pollution have low biological activity, significant changes in physical-mechanical, chemical and biological characteristics, as a result of which the chemicals content in crops exceeds the defined norms,

b) moderately polluted lands where excessive permissible concentrations of chemicals are observed, with no apparent change in soil properties,

c) less polluted lands, where the content of chemicals does not exceed the permissible concentration but is higher than the background level

7. The hazardness of soil pollution is determined by the potential adverse effects of pollution on the environment (water, air), nutrients and human health, as well as biological activity and self-cleaning ability of the land.

By the hazardness, the degree of chemical pollution of soil is divided into the following categories:

safe, permissible, moderately hazardous, hazardous, highly hazardous.

The method of soil pollution assessment is provided in Chapter V of the Regulation.

V. EVALUATION OF LANDS POLLUTION DEGREE IMPACT CALCULATION AND ASSESSMENT

12. The impact of land pollution degree is calculated on the basis of the land pollution concentration coefficient, integral index of heterogeneous land pollution indices and the land counteracting response reaction rate.

13. Soil pollution concentration coefficient (H_{i}) is calculated according to the formula-1

$$H_{\psi} = \frac{C}{C_{\phi}} \quad \text{or} \quad H_{\psi} = \frac{C}{C_{U\phi^{\psi}}} \quad (1)$$

where

C- is the total content of pollutants, mg / kg, Cs-is the average background level of pollutants¹, mg / kg, Cupy-is the threshold limit value mg/kg

14. integral indicator of heterogeneous soil pollution (H_{sj}) is calculated according to formula 2,

$$H_{\mathcal{J}_j} = \text{ or } \sum_{j} (2)$$

where

 C_j - is the sum of controlled contaminants, mg / kg, C_{i} -is the sum of background levels of pollutantss, mg / kg.

15. Land counteracting response reaction rate. (K_h) according to the chemical pollution impact on the state of the land, is calculated by formula 3,

$$K_{h} = \underline{\qquad} (3)$$
$$A_{\phi}$$

where

A-and A_b-are controlled parameters respectively, in polluted and background test samples.

16. The land pollution degree is considered:

a) according to the sanitary number in accordance with the norms in Table N2.

Table N 2

Land characteristics by pollution	Sanitary number
Clean (Practically)	0,98 and greater than that
Low contaminated	From 0,85 to 0,98
Contaminated	From 0,7-to 0, 85
Highly contaminated	Is less than 0,7-

b) according to the pollution hazardness categories and the hazardness classes of organic and inorganic compounds contained in the soil in accordance with the norms in Table N 3.

¹ Soil background pollution or background level, the content of pollutants in the soil of a particular territory before import of such pollutants as a result of new activity.

Pollution	Sanitary	Indicator of		Content in soil, mg / kg					
category	number	pollution	Hazard 2	L-st class	Hazard 2	-nd class	Hazard 3	Hazard 3-rd class	
1		sum	organic	inorganic	organic	inorganic	organic	inorganic	
		number	compound	compound	compound	compound	compound	compound	
Safe	0,98 and		From	From	From	From	From	From	
	more		background	background	background	background	background	background	
	than that	_	value	value	value	value	value	value	
			up to	up to	up to	up to	up to	up to	
			(TLV)	(TLV	(TLV	(TLV	(TLV	(TLV	
Permissible	0,98 and	Is less than	From 1-up to	From	From 1-up to	From	From 1-up to	From	
	more	16-	2	background	2 TLV	background	2 TLV	background	
	than that		TLV	value 2		value 2		value 2	
				up to TLV		up to TLV		up to TLV	
Moderately	From	From 16-					From 2 up to	From TLV up	
hazardous	0,85-	up to 32					5 TLV	to	
	up to 0,							$\mathbf{Y}_{maxim.}$	
	98								
Hazardous	From 0,7-	From 32-	From 2 up to	From TLV up	From 2 up to	From TLV up	From 2 up to		
	up to 0,	up to 128	5 TLV	to	5 TLV	to	5 TLV		
	85			Ч _{тахіт.}		\mathbf{Y}_{maxim}			
Extremely	Is less	Is more	From 2 up to	From TLV up	From 2 up to	From TLV up			
hazardous	than 0,7	than	5 TLV	to	5 TLV	to			
		128		Ч _{maxim}		Ψ_{maxim}			
प- is the may	imum per	missible leve	l of substance	s by one of th	e hazard indica	ators			

u- is the maximum permissible level of substances by one of the hazard indicators.
The pollution total index is the sum of the concentration coefficients of pollutant chemical substances determined by formula 1.

3. ANALYSIS OF MONITORING RESULTS CARRIED OUT IN THE YEREVAN TPP-2 TERRITORY

3.1. Introduction

Soil pollution assessment in the Republic of Armenia is carried out according to the abovementioned technical regulation (N1277-N resolution) methodology. However, that methodology practically is taken from the relevant standards of the Russian Federation without modification, the TLVs are particularly taken from "*Cahumaphile HopMill CahПuH 42-128-4433-87* "*Cahumaphile HopMil допустимых концентраций химических веществ в почве*" ("*Sanitary Standards of Maximum Allowable Concentration (MAC) of Chemical Substances in the Soil*" *Sanitary norms SanPiN 42-128-4433-87*). In relation to pollution degree, the soil use proposals (Annex 2), Chemical pollution level of land (Table 2), according to the pollution dangerousness category and the dangerousness classes of organic and inorganic compounds (Table 2) are taken from СанПиН 2.1.7.1287-03 (SanPiN 2.1.7.1287-03) of the Russian Federation (table 3 and annex 1 respectively).

However such kind of imitation has generated several complications, that do not allow to assess definitely the pollution impact or degree. The calculation methodology of soil pollution integral concentration coefficient and integral index of heterogeneous soil pollution is based on such an approach, that the background pollution level of soil is essentially lower, than threshold limit values. It is acceptable for the Russian Federation, because the overwhelming majority of soil background pollution of that country is very low, however lower, than TLVs.

Based on the geographical conditions and geological structure of territories, in Armenia the content of heavy metals background in soli is very high and in many places significantly higher than TLVs.

Besides, accepting the brief options of the Russian Federation normative documents, the definitions and grounds of many issues were left out.

It should be particularly mentioned, that in *CaHPuH (SanPiN)* 42-128-4433-87 **the pollutants** classes of danger are defined, and in the technical regulation approved by the 1277-N resolution there is no such definition. In the annex of the N 430-N order of 201.12.2006 of the RA Minister of Nature Protection the "List of waste classified according to danger" is established. However, that normative act regards only the waste and there is no classification of elementary metals.

3.2. Soil pollution assessment in the territory of Yerevan TPP-2

No background pollution data of Yerevan TPP-2 territory have been found in the literary sources and internet sources.

On the order of "RENCO ARMESTATE" LLC, sampling has been carried out from 45 points in the territory and the samples analysis have been carried out in the Ministry of Nature Protection Monitoring Center laboratory.

In order to evaluate the soil pollution and determine the use procedure of that soil, calculations have been carried out according to the "Technical regulations for general requirements for landprotection from pollution, list of substances polluting the land and assessment of land pollution level" methodology (N1277-N resolution)".

3.2.1. Calculation of soil pollution concentration coefficient

The calculation has been done according to the formula 1 of technical regulation:

$$H_{ij} = \frac{C}{C_{jj}} \quad \text{or} \quad H_{ij} = \frac{C}{C_{U^{j}}} \quad (1)$$

Taking into account the chance of choise and registered background value data, the calculation has been done according 2nd variant of formula.

Such pollutants have been included in the calculations, in one or two analysis of which the excessive TVLs have been registered.

Pollutants	Unit of	Threshold limit	Average	Maximum	Pollution
	measure	value	measured	measured	concentration
			concentration	concentration	coefficient
Vanadium	mg/kg	150.0	98.3	166.6	0.65
Chromium	mg/kg	6.0	72.7	230.8	12.1
Manganese	mg/kg	400.0	568.0	834	1.4
Cobalt	mg/kg	5.0	23.8	38.7	4.8

Table 3.1.

Pollutants	Unit of	Threshold limit	Average	Maximum	Pollution
	measure	value	measured	measured	concentration
			concentration	concentration	coefficient
Nickel	mg/kg	4.0	31.0	48.1	7.8
Copper	mg/kg	3.0	46.4	125.3	15.5
Zinc	mg/kg	23.0	54.1	119.8	2.4
Arsenic	mg/kg	2.0	13.4	19.9	6.7

3.2.2. Integral index of heterogeneous soil pollution

The integral index of heterogeneous soil pollution (H_{a}) is calculated according to the 2nd formula:

$$H_{ij} = \text{Or} \quad \sum_{j=1}^{C_j} (2)$$

where

C_j – is sum of pollutantns to be controlled, mg/kg,

 C_{Φ} - is the sum of pollutants background levels, mg/kg.

As the background pollution level is higher, than TLVs, here the previous subparagraph approach is also applied and the background value has been replaced with TLVs. This approach is more acceptable, as the result is stricter.

C_i – is the sum of average values of pollutants that exceed TLVs

 C_{Φ} – is the sum of pollutants TLVs, mg/kg.

Pollutants	Unit	of	Threshold	limit	Average	Maximum
	measu	ıre	value		measured	measured
					concentration	concentration
Vanadium	mg/kg	;	150.0		98.3	166.6
Chromium	mg/kg	;	6.0		72.7	230.8
Manganese	mg/kg	;	400.0		568.0	834
Cobalt	mg/kg	;	5.0		23.8	38.7
Nickel	mg/kg	;	4.0		31.0	48.1
Copper	mg/kg	;	3.0		46.4	125.3
Zinc	mg/kg		23.0		54.1	119.8
Arsenic	mg/kg	;	2.0		13.4	19.9
Sum			593		907.7	1583.2

Table 🗄	3.2.
---------	------

 $H_{s_j} = 907.7:593 = 1.53$

In case of maximum indexes: $H_{\frac{3}{2}} = 1583.2 : 593 = 2.67$

In order to determine the soil use procedure, the obtained coefficients are put in the third column of the technical regulation 3rd table - "Total pollution index".

In both cases (average factor - 1.53, maximum concentrations factor – 2.67) the index is less than 16 and the soil category is "permissible". Besides, even in case of use of separate substances pollution indexes factors, none of them does not exceed the "16" index.

The soil classification according to categories mentioned in the table 3 is carried out in two ways – on the basis of pollution total indexes and TLV or its multiple. In addition, on some lines of this table there are not the TLV indexes (second method).

In the previous subsection it is presented that this or any other normative act does not contain a defined pollutant classification of danger. So that method cannot be used.

Besides, it should be taken into consideration that the soil of Yerevan generally has a high background of heavy metals. This is highlighted by the investigations carried out in the vicinity of USA Embassy and the investigations done by American University in other places. It is also mentioned on the main layout of Yerevan, zoning project of Yerevan and in other documents.

4. Conclusion

The RA normative acts listed in the Report do not contain any barrier or restriction on carrying out an industrial activity or construction of an industrial facility on any landcover. These normative acts define the maximum threshold limit values of hazardous substances in the soil, but in the same normative acts it is mentioned several times, that it is prohibited to carry out construction of residential buildings, schools and preschool facilities or to install potable water containers, if there are excessive TLVs in the soil of that area.

For other activities, the soil use *proposals* are only mentioned.

The carried out calculations have shown, that the land pollution level does not generate any restriction, or requirement of taking additional measures.

Director of "Consecoard" LLC Vram Tevosyan



Yerevan YCCPP-2

Soil, Surface water & Groundwater Study



Project-No.: 17.10.453

13.02.2018

Client	:	Fichtner GmbH & Co. KG
		Sarweystraße 3
		70191 Stuttgart / Germany

Contractor : U/C-tec Umweltconsulting + Technologie GmbH Impexstraße 5 69190 Walldorf / Germany info@uc-tec.de



Contents

- 1. Scope of Work
- 2. Geology & Hydrogeology
- 3. Field Work
 - 3.1 Soil Borings & Sampling
 - 3.2 Groundwater wells & Sampling
- 4. Analysis Results
 - 4.1 Soil
 - 4.2 Groundwater
 - 4.3 Surface water

5. Evaluation

5.1 Soil

- 5.2 Groundwater
- 5.3 Surface water

6. Risk Analysis

- 7. Recommendations
- 8. Summary

Attachment:

- 1. General Plan
- 2. Detailed Plan
- 3. Soil profiles of the new wells
- 4. Geoterproject Report
- 5. Analysis Results Report
- 6. Photodocumentation

1. Scope of work

In Yerevan the Thermal Power Plant (TPP) II is planned on a site south of the city center of Yerevan next to the existing power plant TPP1. RENCO SPA will be the EPC Contractor for this Project, which will be operated by ArmPower CJSC, a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA.

Within the scope of the Environmental Impact Assessment prepared for YCCPP-2, it is necessary to get information about the near surface geology and especially about potential contamination of the soil, surface and groundwater. Our tasks are:

- Survey of field work and support of the local contractor (drilling, sampling)
- Evaluation of field work and analytical results
- > Comparison to international and local standards / threshold values
- Design of a complete study with risk analysis

Field work, sampling and chemical analysis were performed considering Armenian standards. Evaluation follows international standards (EU, Germany, Armenia).

2. Geology & Hydrogeology

The area is located in Armenia ca. 8.5 km south of the Yerevan city center on an altitude from ca. 925 – 933 m above sea-level with following coordinates:

The total size of the investigated area is ca. 74,000 m².

The investigation area is situated in the "Little Caucasus" region. The regions climate is considered to be dry terrestrial with hot summers with high temperature up to $+ 41^{\circ}$ C and cold winters with minimum temperature of $- 31^{\circ}$ C. The quantity of annual precipitation does not exceed 300-400 mm.

The geology at the YCCPP-2 site shows under fill-up materials (mixture of construction waste like concrete, gravel, sand and silt / clay) quaternary sediments (debris, gravel, sand, silt) up to 30 meters. Gypsum content is reported from a former geotechnical investigation. The base of the quaternary sediments is at an altitude of ca. 900 m. Beneath these sediments are tertiary (Miocene) sediments containing gypsum and igneous rocks.

The first groundwater table is supposed to be between less than 1 to 3 meters below surface depending on the geomorphological relief; the groundwater has a high mineralisation (sulphate up to 2000 mg/l).

3. Field work

Totally 45 boreholes and 3 wells with sampling and analysis were performed by Geoterproject Ltd., 27 Azatutyan Ave., Yerevan, Armenia; Geoterproject was directly contracted by RENCO SPA.

The field work was performed from November 11th till November 29th. Attachment 2 shows the map with boreholes (numbers & depths), attachment 3 contains the soil profiles and technical construction of the new groundwater wells; for the 45 boreholes no information about the soil layers is available.

3.1 Soil Borings & Sampling

Totally 45 boreholes were distributed over the area with a diameter of 110 mm. They were drilled from 2 meters (20 x) to 4 meters (25 x). The sampling depth was 1.7 to 1.9 m respectively 3.7 to 3.9 m.

3.2 Groundwater Wells & Sampling

Three new groundwater wells were installed with a depth of 10 meters.

Groundwater table was measured between 1.9 to 2.7 m below surface. The soil description of the wells is shown in attachment 3.

4. Analysis results

The chemical analysis were performed by order of Geoterproject Ltd by the Environmental Monitoring and Information Center in Yerevan. See attachment 5 for soil and water test reports.

The comparison with threshold values is done with Armenian, European (EU-WFD) and German (BBodSchG, VWV-BW, OGewV) standards which are shown in each chart.

Abbreviations:

ТРН	Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons
PAH	Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocabons
DE VWV-BW	Deutschland / Germany Verwaltungsvorschrift über Orientierungswerte für die Bearbeitung von Altlasten und Schadensfällen, Landesanstalt für Umweltschutz Baden- Württemberg
P-M3	Prüfwerte zum Schutz der Gesundheit von Menschen auf kontaminierten Flächen - Gewerbeflächen German: Baden-Württemberg administrative regulation
BBodSchG	Bundesbodenschutzgesetz; Federal Soil Protection Act
EU-WFD	EU Wasserrahmenrichtlinie; EU Water Framework Directive
GrwV	Verordnung zum Schutz des Grundwassers; Groundwater Protection

	Regulation; German implementation EU-WFD
OGewV	Oberflächengewässerverordnung; Surface Water Regulation
BOD ₅	biochemical oxygen demand in 5 days
COD-Cr	chemical oxygen demand bichromate

4.1 Soil

The results from the laboratory analysis in original matrix (mg/kg) are shown on following tables:

	Borehole 1	Borehole 2	Borehole 3	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	20	19.7	28.6		
Sodium	20604	18717	25508		
Magnesium	14366	13974	27846		
Aluminum	65270	64620	33130		
Potassium	7608	6564	10249		
Calcium	85760	81470	96790		
Titanium	2359	2508	2574		
Vanadium	90.5	96.9	124.5	150	
Chromium	61.7	55.4	230.8	6	500
Iron	47020	45310	53160		
Manganese	473	400.4	839.5	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	23.3	21.2	38.7	5	
Nickel	32.7	31.9	48.1	4	300
Copper	40	39.9	125.3	3	
Zinc	65.2	59.1	119.8	23	
Arsenic	9.3	9.1	17.2	2	130
Selenium	9.1	9	12.7		
Strontium	444	423.7	506.3		
Molybdenum	1.222	1.473	1.515		
Cadmium	0.1364	0.1516	0.1602		60
Tin	0.8928	1.141	0.9202		
Stibium	0.3494	0.4252	0.4446	4.5	
Barium	652.4	588.9	505.4		
Lead	10.1	12.5	13.7	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.2282	0.1493	ND	0.3	9
Xylene	0.009	0.0122	ND	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	10.93	24.93	13.46		

Polycyclic	ND	ND	ND	100
Aromatic				
Hydrocarbons				

	Borehole 4	Borehole 5	Borehole 6	Armenian	German
				requirements	VWV
				N 2.1.7.003-10	BW
					P-M3
Lithium	27.3	7.6	6.1		
Sodium	24474	6119	5833		
Magnesium	26671	5128	4629		
Aluminum	30040	19200	18480		
Potassium	8032	6655	5215		
Calcium	99230	16790	15000		
Titanium	2901	3867	4370		
Vanadium	121.8	163.3	166.6	150	
Chromium	145.2	85.1	77.9	6	500
Iron	52510	34070	34600		
Manganese	749.4	417.2	374.9	400 - 700	
				(depending on	
				pH)	
Cobalt	30.6	18.8	17.9	5	
Nickel	44.8	40.7	39.9	4	300
Copper	113.9	44.1	42.4	3	
Zinc	89.3	79.5	78	23	
Arsenic	15.7	10.3	10.1	2	130
Selenium	10.8	4.3	3.9		
Strontium	539.8	182	165.2		
Molybdenum	1.773	1.273	1.471		
Cadmium	0.152	0.1102	0.1156		60
Tin	1.1488	1.2748	2.1542		
Stibium	0.4944	0.4968	0.588	4.5	
Barium	519.7	517.8	273.7		
Lead	15.7	10.7	13.8	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.3736	0.4483	0.0154	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0066	0.0079	0.0052	0.3	
Petroleum	38.21	45.85	21.78		
Hydrocarbons					
Polycyclic	ND	ND	ND		100
Aromatic					
Hydrocarbons					

	Borehole 7	Borehole 8	Borehole 9	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	22.8	21.6	19.7		
Sodium	9215	8765	10102		
Magnesium	19369	17971	14135		
Aluminum	28510	27900	51710		
Potassium	8030	6823	8130		
Calcium	188220	172690	85330		
Titanium	2296	2624	2372		
Vanadium	93.3	93.7	122.9	150	
Chromium	136.1	101.7	76.1	6	500
Iron	48020	46530	50190		
Manganese	874	681.9	631.9	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	38.3	37.8	26.2	5	
Nickel	38.3	37.2	37.9	4	300
Copper	40.7	37.2	44.9	3	
Zinc	50.1	41.4	55.6	23	
Arsenic	14.2	13.8	16.6	2	130
Selenium	11.3	9.7	9.3		
Strontium	709.4	655	416.6		
Molybdenum	0.837	1.011	1.998		
Cadmium	0.1446	0.197	0.156		60
Tin	0.8692	1.1072	0.8976		
Stibium	0.4038	0.4572	0.4524	4.5	
Barium	353.4	369.4	535.7		
Lead	10.2	10.9	11.6	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0612	0.6002	0.0191	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0063	0.0254	0.0054	0.3	
Petroleum	37.81	221.48	7.73		
Hydrocarbons					
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 10	Borehole 11	Borehole 12	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	17.9	17	7		
Sodium	9465	9111	5023		
Magnesium	13595	13279	4533		
Aluminum	49230	47200	19640		
Potassium	7636	7347	6284		
Calcium	82490	79700	44150		
Titanium	2330	2283	2180		
Vanadium	120.7	119	101	150	
Chromium	74.6	72.5	60.4	6	500
Iron	48750	47790	24720		
Manganese	613.6	597.1	345.4	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	26.2	25	17.1	5	
Nickel	37.3	36.6	29.7	4	300
Copper	42.7	44.6	25.6	3	
Zinc	54.1	52.7	41.8	23	
Arsenic	16	15.8	14.6	2	130
Selenium	9.5	9.1	6.1		
Strontium	406.5	404.1	197.7		
Molybdenum	1.953	1.957	1.142		
Cadmium	0.1444	0.1538	0.1056		60
Tin	0.8664	0.877	0.7492		
Stibium	0.459	0.458	0.3366	4.5	
Barium	537.1	535.2	251.9		
Lead	12.3	12.2	10.1	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0061	0.1045	0.0201	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0039	0.0062	0.0019	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	7.36	9.64	10.15		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 13	Borehole 14	Borehole 15	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	6.7	16.4	11.9		
Sodium	5004	8911	9003		
Magnesium	4371	12767	10420		
Aluminum	19280	46560	45670		
Potassium	6350	7271	7264		
Calcium	44430	78080	107480		
Titanium	2190	2244	2686		
Vanadium	101.5	118.8	112.7	150	
Chromium	59.4	71	94.4	6	500
Iron	24570	47400	52240		
Manganese	344.6	596.9	821.3	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	16.8	25.2	32.2	5	
Nickel	29.3	35.9	39.3	4	300
Copper	25.3	42.9	38.2	3	
Zinc	41.5	53.2	53.6	23	
Arsenic	14.1	15.8	19.7	2	130
Selenium	5.1	9.1	10.3		
Strontium	199.3	405.5	550.4		
Molybdenum	1.154	1.907	3.066		
Cadmium	0.109	0.1442	0.1516		60
Tin	0.7526	0.8864	0.9146		
Stibium	0.3394	0.4542	0.3976	4.5	
Barium	252	538.5	796.5		
Lead	10.2	12.4	12.9	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0036	0.0085	0.01064	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0016	0.0065	0.00816	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	8.81	11.85	14.81		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 16	Borehole 17	Borehole 18	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	11.4	10.4	9.6		
Sodium	9075	8580	7589		
Magnesium	10303	9874	8950		
Aluminum	44970	43360	39060		
Potassium	7419	6864	6184		
Calcium	106190	104140	95550		
Titanium	2617	2545	2395		
Vanadium	112	109.6	102.9	150	
Chromium	94.8	94	89.2	6	500
Iron	51320	50820	49200		
Manganese	799.4	782.2	759.4	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	33.3	33.6	34.6	5	
Nickel	38.8	39.2	38.1	4	300
Copper	36.5	38.2	37.6	3	
Zinc	52.2	52.4	50.1	23	
Arsenic	20.3	19.9	18.8	2	130
Selenium	10.1	10.9	10.6		
Strontium	546.4	542.8	527.8		
Molybdenum	3.057	3.063	2.959		
Cadmium	0.156	0.1684	0.1544		60
Tin	1.016	1.0224	1.0344		
Stibium	0.3928	0.4136	0.399	4.5	
Barium	781	805.8	804.5		
Lead	12.8	14	14.4	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0128	0.0117	0.005	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0098	0.009	0.003	0.3	
Petroleum	17.77	16.29	13.954		
Hydrocarbons					
Polycyclic	ND	ND	ND		100
Aromatic					
Hydrocarbons					

	Borehole 19	Borehole 20	Borehole 21	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	7.8	6.9	6.7		
Sodium	7650	6675	4942		
Magnesium	6020	5147	4433		
Aluminum	30930	26660	19220		
Potassium	6890	6248	6217		
Calcium	51500	46670	43480		
Titanium	1920	1851	2131		
Vanadium	107	105.9	99.6	150	
Chromium	55	52.8	60.7	6	500
Iron	33830	33320	24050		
Manganese	527	534.4	339.5	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	20.5	21	16.6	5	
Nickel	26.6	26.2	29.1	4	300
Copper	122.3	121.3	25.5	3	
Zinc	73.1	73.4	41.1	23	
Arsenic	12.6	12.3	14.4	2	130
Selenium	8.5	7.6	5.4		
Strontium	358.4	344.8	201.7		
Molybdenum	0.0008	0.773	1.164		
Cadmium	0.00017	0.1606	0.097		60
Tin	0.00097	0.9938	0.7516		
Stibium	0.00038	0.3852	0.3408	4.5	
Barium	723	761	253.3		
Lead	14	15.6	10.3	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0085	0.0119	0.0307	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0065	0.0059	0.0051	0.3	
Petroleum	11.848	12.398	5.331		
nydrocarbons		ND	ND		100
Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 22	Borehole 23	Borehole 24	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	7.1	6.7	9.7		
Sodium	6988	6710	5764		
Magnesium	5541	5093	6338		
Aluminum	27970	26810	32020		
Potassium	6501	6333	6154		
Calcium	48830	46130	63510		
Titanium	1923	1858	1821		
Vanadium	105.7	104.7	96.2	150	
Chromium	53.9	52.1	78.4	6	500
Iron	33080	32770	36550		
Manganese	529.5	515.7	580.1	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	21.2	20	20.4	5	
Nickel	26.6	26	29.3	4	300
Copper	119.3	116.9	34.8	3	
Zinc	72.5	71.7	42.7	23	
Arsenic	12.4	11.9	15.3	2	130
Selenium	7.8	7.5	2		
Strontium	358.9	348.1	419.6		
Molybdenum	0.847	0.761	1.126		
Cadmium	0.1462	0.151	0.135		60
Tin	0.979	0.9852	0.899		
Stibium	0.3974	0.3742	0.4296	4.5	
Barium	773.4	760.9	535		
Lead	15.5	15.4	16	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0141	0.0166	0.0225	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0033	0.0039	0.0064	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	4.68	5.5	9.09		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 25	Borehole 26	Borehole 27	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	10	6.6	10.9		
Sodium	5992	4778	6480		
Magnesium	6598	4326	6536		
Aluminum	33640	18910	36450		
Potassium	6474	6104	7216		
Calcium	64720	42940	69270		
Titanium	1837	2145	1961		
Vanadium	96.7	98.8	102	150	
Chromium	81.5	59	80.7	6	500
Iron	36770	24090	38990		
Manganese	567.7	340.9	606.6	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	20.8	17.1	20.6	5	
Nickel	29.5	29.4	28.9	4	300
Copper	36.1	25.6	35.7	3	
Zinc	42.2	40.9	44.3	23	
Arsenic	15.6	14.1	15.9	2	130
Selenium	2.2	5.5	2.1		
Strontium	428.1	200	428.2		
Molybdenum	1.149	1.144	1.148		
Cadmium	0.1464	0.1088	0.1354		60
Tin	0.8936	0.7794	0.8736		
Stibium	0.4072	0.3324	0.4032	4.5	
Barium	526.4	254.5	503.9		
Lead	15.5	10.4	13.7	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0086	0.0062	0.0013	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0047	0.004	ND	0.3	
Petroleum	8.44	7.56	12.52		
Hydrocarbons					
Polycyclic	ND	ND	ND		100
Aromatic					
Hydrocarbons					
	Borehole 28	Borehole 29	Borehole 30	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
--	-------------	-------------	-------------	--	--
Lithium	11.6	8.7	5.4		
Sodium	7417	8053	10675		
Magnesium	7346	6179	4878		
Aluminum	39210	39700	26490		
Potassium	7757	7108	5049		
Calcium	74740	83940	25860		
Titanium	2048	1992	1886		
Vanadium	106.1	105.6	73.2	150	
Chromium	84.6	72.5	35.9	6	500
Iron	39370	54710	20430		
Manganese	621.1	822.3	459.1	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	20.8	28.7	17.9	5	
Nickel	29.7	22.9	29	4	300
Copper	36.8	42.2	24.5	3	
Zinc	45.9	41.1	57.2	23	
Arsenic	16.5	13.9	7.5	2	130
Selenium	2.1	10.9	7.3		
Strontium	433.6	302.2	360		
Molybdenum	1.155	1.53	1.839		
Cadmium	0.1428	0.1624	0.1112		60
Tin	0.8682	0.9872	0.8906		
Stibium	0.3996	0.4488	0.3196	4.5	
Barium	493.5	1235.1	817		
Lead	12.9	17.8	15.9	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0055	0.0055	0.008	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0033	0.0035	0.0057	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	5.37	6.69	11.16		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 31	Borehole 32	Borehole 33	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	6	8.4	9.9		
Sodium	10833	7499	8261		
Magnesium	4922	5759	6414		
Aluminum	26990	36780	41470		
Potassium	5181	6723	7595		
Calcium	27150	76930	88900		
Titanium	1930	1893	1992		
Vanadium	73.4	101.7	105.1	150	
Chromium	34.5	65.4	71.4	6	500
Iron	21310	52060	54950		
Manganese	475.5	776.3	812.1	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	17.8	26.4	27.2	5	
Nickel	29.5	20.8	21.9	4	300
Copper	24.7	40.2	40.7	3	
Zinc	57.4	39.3	41.2	23	
Arsenic	7.7	13.1	13.7	2	130
Selenium	6.7	10.8	10.9		
Strontium	365.6	296.6	311.4		
Molybdenum	1.852	1.441	1.539		
Cadmium	0.0958	0.156	0.1644		60
Tin	0.8842	0.9892	0.9772		
Stibium	0.3296	0.4256	0.4538	4.5	
Barium	810.9	1185.2	1192.4		
Lead	15.4	17.2	16.4	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0656	0.0534	0.0427	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0215	0.0175	0.014	0.3	
Petroleum	18.29	14.87	11.9		
Hydrocarbons					
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 34	Borehole 35	Borehole 36	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	8	6.9	6		
Sodium	6990	13698	11868		
Magnesium	5464	6136	5346		
Aluminum	34890	32680	30320		
Potassium	6632	6061	5445		
Calcium	75960	29990	27350		
Titanium	1729	2137	1994		
Vanadium	95.8	82	76	150	
Chromium	65	37	35.2	6	500
Iron	50240	22000	21110		
Manganese	747.3	501.1	478.6	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	27.5	17.5	17.3	5	
Nickel	21.5	30	28.6	4	300
Copper	39.2	24.3	24.1	3	
Zinc	38.8	59.7	58.2	23	
Arsenic	13.5	8	7.6	2	130
Selenium	11.2	6.4	6.7		
Strontium	287.8	381.2	366.9		
Molybdenum	1.431	1.904	1.801		
Cadmium	0.1416	0.1252	0.1060		60
Tin	0.9826	0.8734	0.8528		
Stibium	0.4552	0.3264	0.3238	4.5	
Barium	1229.1	752.8	779.8		
Lead	18.7	12.4	13.7	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0138	0.00133	0.00951	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0106	ND	0.00684	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	19.26	12.64	13.29		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 37	Borehole 38	Borehole 39	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	8.6	9.2	9.8		
Sodium	5905	6464	6886		
Magnesium	7370	8176	8490		
Aluminum	36160	39270	41290		
Potassium	5398	5484	5668		
Calcium	84900	89850	93860		
Titanium	1567	1598	1611		
Vanadium	70.9	72.4	74	150	
Chromium	60.6	63.3	65.1	6	500
Iron	42160	42180	42960		
Manganese	584.6	579.4	594	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	27.8	28.2	28.3	5	
Nickel	25	24.7	25.4	4	300
Copper	35.2	36	37.1	3	
Zinc	38.8	39.2	40.4	23	
Arsenic	13.6	13.8	14.4	2	130
Selenium	8.4	8.2	8.3		
Strontium	386.9	392.9	397.9		
Molybdenum	1.408	1.487	1.496		
Cadmium	0.1298	0.1542	0.1784		60
Tin	0.7906	0.7796	0.7988		
Stibium	0.3298	0.3216	0.3312	4.5	
Barium	649.7	629.1	633		
Lead	12.5	11.4	11.3	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.048	0.0044	0.0715	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0158	0.0026	0.0042	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	13.39	4.33	6.6		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 40	Borehole 41	Borehole 42	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	8.7	9.2	9.8		
Sodium	6253	10781	11251		
Magnesium	7653	8010	8604		
Aluminum	37290	31740	33000		
Potassium	5669	6315	6709		
Calcium	87170	64400	66010		
Titanium	1594	2181	2284		
Vanadium	73.4	62.8	66.7	150	
Chromium	62.7	52.5	53.4	6	500
Iron	40680	30660	31560		
Manganese	574.5	364.8	385.1	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	28.9	18.5	17.4	5	
Nickel	24.3	27.6	27.1	4	300
Copper	36.3	30.2	29.9	3	
Zinc	38.9	48.8	49.6	23	
Arsenic	14.1	10.4	10.5	2	130
Selenium	8.8	7.7	7.2		
Strontium	386.8	437.1	445.3		
Molybdenum	1.450	1.903	1.883		
Cadmium	0.1558	0.162	0.1404		60
Tin	0.8112	1.1134	1.1008		
Stibium	0.335	0.3064	0.3034	4.5	
Barium	634.3	700.7	678.7		
Lead	12.1	14	13.3	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0804	0.00156	0.0014	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0048	0.00179	0.0016	0.3	
Petroleum Hydrocarbons	7.42	10.121	9.01		
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

	Borehole 43	Borehole 44	Borehole 45	Armenian hygienic requirements N 2.1.7.003-10	German standards VWV BW P-M3
Lithium	10.2	8.8	10.1		
Sodium	11823	10212	11714		
Magnesium	8911	7969	8641		
Aluminum	34400	29490	34320		
Potassium	6585	5942	6760		
Calcium	66480	60770	67820		
Titanium	2319	2135	2322		
Vanadium	66	62.8	67	150	
Chromium	53.2	50.7	53	6	500
Iron	31660	29860	31820		
Manganese	387.4	369.6	384.7	400 – 700 (depending on pH)	
Cobalt	17.5	18.6	16.9	5	
Nickel	27.2	27.5	27.4	4	300
Copper	29.9	29.2	29.8	3	
Zinc	49.6	48.5	50.5	23	
Arsenic	10.3	10.1	10.5	2	130
Selenium	6.7	8	7.5		
Strontium	454.1	449.7	451.1		
Molybdenum	1.878	1.917	1.9		
Cadmium	0.158	0.1460	0.1536		60
Tin	1.0932	1.137	1.112		
Stibium	0.2992	0.3082	0.3074	4.5	
Barium	681.3	715	665.6		
Lead	13	15.3	12.7	6	4000
Benzene	ND	ND	ND	0.3	0.01
Ethylbenzene	ND	ND	ND		
Toluene	0.0116	0.0052	0.0041	0.3	9
Xylene	0.0083	0.0022	0.0018	0.3	
Petroleum	16.22	12.65	10.12		
Hydrocarbons					
Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	ND	ND	ND		100

4.2 Groundwater

The results from the laboratory analysis in original are shown on following table:

	S	Sample No.		German	German	
		•			Imple-menta-	standards
					tion	BBodSchG
					EU-WFD	
		_	GrwV			
Parameter	Borehole	Borehole	Borehole	Unit		
	1	2	3			
pН	7.41	7.96	7.55			
Minerals	1495	1490	3145	mg/l		
BOD ₅	1.18	1.01	1.6	mgO ₂ /l		
COD-Cr	64	32	60	mgO/l		
Lithium	34.91	11.49	58.3	μg/l		
Sodium	200.6	442	304.5	mg/l		
Magnesium	28.5	2.81	82.19	mg/l		
Aluminium	31.83	802.61	28.89	μg/l		
Potassium	2.5	0.2753	6.02	mg/l		
Calcium	188	15.59	485.8	mg/l		
Titanium	7.26	57.56	5.83	μg/l		
Vanadium	84.95	759.87	52.84	μg/l		
Chrom	4.41	12.37	9.98	μg/l		50
Iron	125.09	912.14	106.59	μg/l		
Manganese	238.24	74.39	464.01	μg/l		
Cobalt	1.1	5.4	2.33	μg/l		50
Nickel	14.96	5.41	25.28	μg/l		50
Copper	7	9.47	10.74	μg/l		50
Zinc	4.64	3.78	7.41	μg/l		500
Arsenic	22.94	215.5	16.57	μg/l	10	10
Selen	6.73	8.75	8.42	μg/l		10
Strontium	2.42	406.03	5.59	mg/l		
Molybdenum	72.97	219.4	58.45	μg/l		50
Cadmium	0.25	0.59	0.16	μg/l	0.5	5
Tin	0.04	0.1	0.05	μg/l		40
Stibium	0.25	0.31	0.16	μg/l		
Barium	39.86	31.43	36.57	μg/l		
Lead	0.08	0.18	0.09	μg/l	10	25
BETX	<1	0,56	<1	μg/l		20
Benzol	<1	<1	<1	μg/l		1
TPH	168	7407	<1	μg/l		200
PAH	ND	ND	ND	μg/l		0.2

ND = Not detected

4.3 Surface Water

The results from the	laboratory	analysis in	original	are shown or	n following table:
		Jana			

	Sample N Befo chan	lo. "B" - ore mel	A	rmen Scale	German Standards OGewV			
Parameter	Result	Unit	1	2*	3	4	5	
pН	7.45				6.5 –	9.0	I	5.5-8.5
Minerals	666	mg/l						
BOD ₅	2.52	mgO ₂ /l	3	5	9	18	>18	<3
COD-Cr	42	mgO/l	10	25	40	80	>80	
Lithium	26.6	μg/l	1	36	50	<2500	>2500	
Sodium	64.94	mg/l	4.96	9.92	19.84	39.68	>39.68	
Magnesium	27.5	mg/l	2.8	50	100	200	>200	
Aluminium	0.0138	mg/l	65	130	260	5000	>5000	
Potassium	5.74	mg/l	1.54	3.08	6.16	12.32	>12.32	
Calcium	68.06	mg/l	9.7	100	200	300	>300	
Titanium	6.72	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	
Vanadium	14.96	μg/l	1	2	4	8	>8	
Chrom	4.34	μg/l	1	10	100	250	>250	
Iron	106.72	μg/l	0.08	0.16	0.5	1	>1	
Manganese	26.11	μg/l	5	10	20	40	>40	
Cobalt	0.34	μg/l	0.14	0.28	0.56	1.12	>1.12	
Nickel	3.31	μg/l	1	11	50	100	>100	34
Copper	1.83	μg/l	3	23	50	100	>100	
Zinc	2.5	μg/l	3	100	200	500	>500	
Arsenic	6.77	μg/l	0.13	20	50	100	>100	
Selen	2.1	μg/l	0.47	20	40	80	>80	
Strontium	387.97	μg/l						
Molybdenum	3.24	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	
Cadmium	0.021	μg/l	0.02	1.02	2.02	4.02	>4.02	0.45
Tin	0.0006	μg/l	0.09	0.18	0.36	0.72	>0.72	
Stibium	0.0912	μg/l	0.19	0.38	0.76	1.52	>1.52	
Barium	32.3	µg/l	9	18	36	1000	>1000	
Lead	0.21	μg/l	0.3	10.3	25	50	>50	14
BETX	<1	μg/l	10	30	42	50	>50	50
TPH	<1	μg/l	0.05	0.1	0.3	0.5	>0.5	
PAH	ND	μg/l						0.27

* = standard value in Armenia

1 = Excellent 2 = Good 3= Moderate 4 = Poor 5 = Bad ND = not detected / not analysed

	Sample No. "C" -		A	rmen	German			
	From c	hannel		Scale	e and S	tandard	ls	Standards
					OGewV			
Parameter	Result	Units	1	2*	3	4	5	
pН	7.76				6.5 –	9.0		5.5-8.5
Minerals	593	mg/l						
BOD ₅	2.87	mgO ₂ /l	3	5	9	18	>18	<3
COD-Cr	26	mgO/l	10	25	40	80	>80	
Lithium	25.28	μg/l	1	36	50	<2500	>2500	
Sodium	82.2	mg/l	4.96	9.92	19.84	39.68	>39.68	
Magnesium	21.96	mg/l	2.8	50	100	200	>200	
Aluminium	3.3	µg/l	65	130	260	5000	>5000	
Potassium	4.715	mg/l	1.54	3.08	6.16	12.32	>12.32	
Calcium	50.65	mg/l	9.7	100	200	300	>300	
Titanium	6.09	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	
Vanadium	17.7	μg/l	1	2	4	8	>8	
Chrom	3.73	µg/l	1	10	100	250	>250	
Iron	80.14	μg/l	0.08	0.16	0.5	1	>1	
Manganese	8.18	μg/l	5	10	20	40	>40	
Cobalt	0.55	μg/l	0.14	0.28	0.56	1.12	>1.12	
Nickel	4.04	μg/l	1	11	50	100	>100	34
Copper	1.53	µg/l	3	23	50	100	>100	
Zinc	0.6	μg/l	3	100	200	500	>500	
Arsenic	7.58	μg/l	0.13	20	50	100	>100	
Selen	1.1	μg/l	0.47	20	40	80	>80	
Strontium	254.36	μg/l						
Molybdenum	5.98	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	
Cadmium	0.03	μg/l	0.02	1.02	2.02	4.02	>4.02	0.45
Tin	0.003	μg/l	0.09	0.18	0.36	0.72	>0.72	
Stibium	0.12	μg/l	0.19	0.38	0.76	1.52	>1.52	
Barium	16.72	μg/l	9	18	36	1000	>1000	
Lead	0.092	μg/l	0.3	10.3	25	50	>50	14
BETX	<1	μg/l	10	30	42	50	>50	50
TPH	<1	μg/l	0.05	0.1	0.3	0.5	>0.5	
PAH	ND	μg/l						0.27

	Sample No. "H" -		A	rmen	German			
	After c	hannel		Scale	ls	Standards OGewV		
Parameter	Result	mg/l µg/l	1	2*	3	4	5	
pН	7.47				6.5 –	9.0	•	5.5-8.5
Minerals	661	mg/l						
BOD ₅	3.91	mgO ₂ /l	3	5	9	18	>18	<3
COD-Cr	30	mgO/l	10	25	40	80	>80	
Litium	27	μg/l	1	36	50	<2500	>2500	
Sodium	59.63	mg/l	4.96	9.92	19.84	39.68	>39.68	
Magnesium	27.46	mg/l	2.8	50	100	200	>200	
Aluminium	13.2	μg/l	65	130	260	5000	>5000	
Potasium	5.58	mg/l	1.54	3.08	6.16	12.32	>12.32	
Calcium	67.72	mg/l	9.7	100	200	300	>300	
Titanium	6.374	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	
Vanadium	13.205	μg/l	1	2	4	8	>8	
Chrom	4.477	μg/l	1	10	100	250	>250	
Iron	106.66	μg/l	0.08	0.16	0.5	1	>1	
Manganese	28.988	μg/l	5	10	20	40	>40	
Cobalt	0.304	μg/l	0.14	0.28	0.56	1.12	>1.12	
Nickel	3.085	μg/l	1	11	50	100	>100	34
Copper	1.679	μg/l	3	23	50	100	>100	
Zinc	2.253	μg/l	3	100	200	500	>500	
Arsenic	6.365	μg/l	0.13	20	50	100	>100	
Selen	2.069	μg/l	0.47	20	40	80	>80	
Strontium	391.98	μg/l						
Molybdenum	2.763	μg/l	7	14	28	56	>56	
Cadmium	0.019	µg/l	0.02	1.02	2.02	4.02	>4.02	0.45
Tin	0.006	µg/l	0.09	0.18	0.36	0.72	>0.72	
Stibium	0.11	µg/l	0.19	0.38	0.76	1.52	>1.52	
Barium	32.977	µg/l	9	18	36	1000	>1000	
Lead	0.692	μg/l	0.3	10.3	25	50	>50	14
BETX	<1	μg/l	10	30	42	50	>50	50
TPH	<1	μg/l	0.05	0.1	0.3	0.5	>0.5	
PAH	ND	μg/l						0.27

5. Evaluation

There are no uniform international standards, therefore the evaluation is done by following standards: BBodSchG / Germany and GrwV (German implementation EU-WFD). The threshold values of these lists are similar in several European countries. The analytical results are compared to the threshold values of Armenia if existing. Exceeding results are written in **bold** letters in the above tables.

5.1 Soil

The bold printed results in chapter 4.1 are exceeded threshold values. Overall the Armenian threshold values of the hygienic requirements were often exceeded: the parameters Chromium, Cobalt, Nickel, Copper, Zinc, Arsenic and Lead always exceeded the threshold values; the parameter Manganese is often exceeded and rarely the values for Vanadium and Toluene are too high. On the other hand, the international standards for soil quality (the German VWV BW P-M3) are always respected, the values are typical for industrial areas. The Armenian hygienic requirements are far more strict than the international standards.

The RA Sanitary Norms 2.1.7.003-10 foresee proposals for land use based on the degree of contamination of the soils.

Category of contamination	Summary indicator of contamination	Proposals for land use
"Clean"		Using without any limitation
"Permissible" (allowable)	Less than16	Use without restriction, with the exception of high vulnerability objects: school buildings, residential construction areas, sport's and children's playgrounds, health and resort areas, water objects, water mains
Moderately dangerous	16 - 32	For filling of trenches and pits during construction, in the areas intended for landscaping, adding 0.2m layer of clean ground
Dangerous	32 - 128	Restricted use for the filling of scrapers during construction, adding no less than 0.5m layer of clean ground. In the event of an epidemic hazard, by the recommendation of the hygienic anti-epidemic supervision body, disinfection (dezinvasion) is carried out with further laboratory supervision.
Extremely dangerous	More than 128	Transfer and handling in special polygons. In the event of an epidemic hazard, by the recommendation of the hygienic anti-epidemic supervision body, disinfection (disinvasion) is carried out with further laboratory supervision.

Proposals for land use based on the degree of pollution (Annex of the RA Sanitary Norms 2.1.7.003-10)

The "Indicator of Contamination" described in the table above is established by the Armenian Decision N 1227-N "On establishment of technical regulations for general requirements for protection of lands from pollution, list of substances polluting the lands, and assessment of level of land pollution". It is calculated as follows:

$Indicator of Contamination = \frac{Average \ concentration}{National \ MAC}$

Focusing on the pollutants for which the MAC is exceeded, the following table shows the calculation of the Indicator of Contamination for the site.

Substances (heavy metals)	Unit	Maximum permissible concentration (National standard)	Average concentration	Indicator of contamination Factor
Vanadium	Mg/kg	150.0	98.3	0.65
Chromium	Mg/kg	6.0	72.7	12.1
Manganese	Mg/kg	400.0	568.0	1.4
Cobalt	Mg/kg	5.0	23.8	4.8
Nickel	Mg/kg	4.0	31.0	7.8
Copper	Mg/kg	3.0	46.4	15.5
Zinc	Mg/kg	23.0	54.1	2.4
Arsenic	Mg/kg	2.0	13.4	6.7
Lead	Mg/kg	6.0	13.4	2.2

The results show that the soil at site falls under the category "Permissible (allowable)". This means that for the construction of the PP, no restrictions are imposed and the soil may be used.

5.2 Groundwater

In all three groundwater samples the results show several values exceeding the international standards (Arsenic, Molybdenum etc.). There are no national quality standards for groundwater. The sample 2 has to be pointed out, because here are the highest values for most of the analysed parameters. Remarkable is the value for TPH (Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons) with 7,400 mg/l.

5.3 Surface water

All three surface water samples show exceeding national threshold values for following parameters: COD-Cr, Sodium, Potassium, Vanadium, Iron and Cobalt. The international standards (German standards: OGewV) are mostly complied with (only the BOD₅ value is once exceeded slightly). The exceedances are verified before, at, and after the discharge point, and therefore no specific influence from the YCCPP-1's discharge can be determined.

6. Risk Analysis

The soil exceeds national quality standards, but it is classified as "Permissible (allowable)". Both nationally and internationally, no special treatment before construction is required.

The groundwater exceeds international threshold values. It is assumed that these contaminations have their origin from areas in the groundwater upstream.

For surface water, nearly no international threshold values are exceeded, but nationally it can be classified as within the 5^{th} grade ("bad" quality). Most relevant for the assessment is the indication that the discharge of water of YCCPP-1 does not seem to have a negative influence on the water quality of the river.

7. Recommendations

- Soil: no treatment of the soil is necessary before construction.
- Groundwater: in case the water is used by the project (not foreseen presently), it shall be treated to respect international standards
- Surface water: the report does not show an influence of the existing power plant in the water quality of the river. It is recommended that the water discharged from the new power plant is treated to fulfil international standards before discharge.

8. Summary

In connection with the planned project "Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP) 2" a soil, surface water and groundwater study was requested. According to this it is necessary to get information about the near surface geology and especially about potential contamination of the soil, surface water and groundwater.

U/C-tec GmbH was asked to supervise this study. Primarily tasks were:

- Survey of field work or support of the local contractor (drilling, sampling)
- Evaluation of field work and analytical results
- > Comparison to international and local standards / threshold values
- > Design of a complete study with risk analysis and recommendations

Field work, sampling and chemical analysis were performed following Armenian standards. Evaluation follows international and national standards (EU, Germany, Armenia).

Totally 45 boreholes and 3 wells with sampling and analysis were performed by Geoterproject Ltd., 27 Azatutyan Ave., Yerevan, Armenia; Geoterproject was directly contracted by RENCO SPA.

The field work was realized from November 11th to November 29th.

The analytical results were compared to Armenian and European / German threshold values. The comparison shows that:

- Soil samples show compliance with international standards. The soil is also nationally classified as "Permissible (allowable)" and no remediation measures are therefore necessary.
- Groundwater samples show incompliance with international standards.
- Surface water samples show compliance with almost all international standards, and show incompliance with national standards. The incompliance cannot be attributed to the existing power plant.

The results of this study are based on punctual investigations (drillings). It is possible that between the drillings other conditions could appear.

Walldorf, 13.02.2018

Dipl.-Geol. Gerd M. Wiedenbeck U/C-tec GmbH

Dipl.-Geol. Jochen Zolk

Revised by Fichtner, 14.02.2018

Annex 1





	Annex 3	
SIGN AND SYN	IBOLS (see DIN 4023) SAMPLING AND GROUNDW Grade of doil samples	/ <u>ATER</u> add. DIN 4021 Tab.1
r <u>PES OF SOIL</u> lay clayey and	T t groundwater	r after compl. of boring
<u>ONSISTENZ</u> wch Se	soft fst solid	
U/C-tec GmbH	Project:	Enclosure no: -
	Soil & Groundwater study	Date: 25.01.2019
	Plan description:	Date. 20.01.2010
		Scale: 1 · 75

U/C-tec	GmbH
---------	------

-

						······································	Enclosu	re: 3	
			L i S	Report:					
			tor oberiga witho	AR COMENCE	us gannig or c		FN:		
Project:		Fichtner GmbH &	LCo KG, YEREVAN YCCP	P-2 Soil &	Groundwater	study-soil profiles from gr	cundwater	wells	
Soring							Date:	25.0	1.2018
No.:		Borehole 1 H / Pag	e 1						
ſ		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2			3	4	5	6
	а)	Type of soil and additions						Gained sample:	s
m	b)	Additional remarks 1)			Remarks Special samples Water duct			Depth	
invest. point	C)	State of drill chips	d) State of drilling process	e) Color		Bering tools Core loss	Тура	No.	in m bottom edge
	f)	Usual denomination	g) Geological denomination 1)	ከ) 1) Group	i)Lime contents		2		
	3)	sand, clayey, with gra	ivel, sandy-clayey and sa						
-	b)		••••						
4,80	(c)		d)	e)	e)			:	
	f)		g)	h)	i)				
	a)	clay, with content of g	gypsum crystals	J					
10,00	b)		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
	c)	c) (d)			ley				
	ť)	f) g) h) i)							
¹) Notatio	in is	done by scientific review	wer	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		I	····	<u></u>

.



U/C :	təc	GmbH
-------	-----	------

-

						Enclosu	re: 3	
4		Lis	Report:					
		tor borings witho	ur commuo	us gaining or	core samples	FN:		
Project:	Fichtner GmbH a	S Co KG, YEREVAN YCCP	P-2 Soll &	Groundwate	er study-soll profiles from gi	roundwater	wells	
Boring						Date:	25.0	1.2018
No.:	Borehole 2 H / Pag	ie 1						
1		2			3	4	5	ଚ
	a) Type of soil and additions						Gained sample	3
m below	b) Additional remarks *)				Remarks Special samples Water duct			
invest. point	c) State of drill chips	d) State of drilling process	e) Color		Boring tools Core loss	Турэ	No.	in m bottom sdoe
	f) Usual denomination	g) Geological denomination ¹)	h) 1) Group	i)Lime contents				
	a) sand, clayey, with gr	avel, sandy-clayey and sa						
	b)							
7,00	c) soft to solid	d) e)						
	ī)	g)	h)	1)				
	a) clay, with content of	gypsum crystals						
10,00	b)							
	C)	d)	e) mot	ley				
	1)	g)	h)	i)				
1) Notatio	n is done by scientific revie	wer					l	

.



U/C-tec G	mt)?	ł							
			5	Enclosu	ire: 3				
			core samples	Report:					
							FN:		
Project:		Fichtner GmbH &	Co KG, YEREVAN YCCF	P-2 Soil &	Groundwate:	r study-soll profiles from gro	undwater	wells	
Boring							Date:	25.0	1.2018
No.:		Borehole 3 H / Page	1 1						
1	Ţ		2			3	4	5	6
	a)	Type of soil and additions						Gained sample	l s
m below	b)	Additional remarks 1)				Remarks Special samples Water duct			Depth
invest. point	C)	State of drill chips	tate of d) State of rill chips drilling process		r	Boring tools Core loss	Туре	No. ∤	bottom edge
	f)	Usual denomination	g) Geological denomination 1)	h) ¹) Group	i)Lime contents				
	a)	sand, clayey, with gra	vel, sandy-clayey and sa	ndy liners					
	b)								
7,20	C)	soft to solid	d)	e)					
	f)		g)	h)	i)				
	a)	clay, with content of g	ypsum crystals						
	b)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>						
10,00	c)		(d)	e) mot	ley				
	f)		g)	h)	1)				
1) Notatio	in is	done by scientific review	J /er		_Li			<u> </u>	Ł

.

.



Annex 4

		Date: 11.1	1.2017-13.11.201	7			
Samplers:			Signatures:		Weather conditions:		
Sample ID (as in bag)	Sample name (as in bag)	Time	Depth, m	GPS Coordinates	Sample description (type and moisture)	Anthropogenic/ Natural Features in area	
Borehole 1	sandy loam	10.00	2.0	x-4440534.591 y-457058.321	Low moisture	Cloudy	
Borehole 2	sandy loam	10.30	2.0	x-4440512.100 y-457054.471	Low moisture	Semi-cloudy	
Borehole 3	sandy loam	11.00	2.0	x-4440488.082 y-457053.117	Low moisture	Cloudy	
Borehole 4	sandy loam with gravel	12.00	4.0	x-4440458.083 y-457052.391	Moisture	Cloudy	
Borehole 5	sandy loam with gravel	12.30	4.0	x-4440423.059 y-457053.989	Moisture	Cloudy	
Borehole 6	sandy loam with gravel	10.00	2.0	x-4440533.241 y-457092.539	Low moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 7	sandy loam with gravel	11.00	4.0	x-4440513.103 y-457091.482	Moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 8	sandy loam	11.45	4.0	x-4440487.820 y-457096.105	Moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 9	Sand with gravel	12.30	4.0	x-4440462.755 y-457093.727	Low moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 10	sandy loam	13.15	2.0	x-4440407.791 y-457087.129	Moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 11	sandy loam	13.45	4.0	x-4440520.939 y-457128.533	High moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 12	sandy loam with gravel	14.00	2.0	x-4440487.313 y-457122.281	Low moisture	Sunny	
Borehole 13	Sand with gravel	14.40	2.0	x-4440463.202 y-457119.314	Low moisture	Sunny	

		Date: 14.1	1.2017-16.11.201	7		
Samplers:			Signatures:		Weather conditions:	
Sample ID (as in bag)	Sample name (as in bag)	Time	Depth, m	GPS Coordinates	Sample description (type and moisture)	Anthropogenic/ Natural Features in area
Borehole 14	Sand with gravel	10.00	4.0	x-4440410.149 y-457110.018	Low moisture	Sunny
Borehole 15	Sand	10.40	4.0	x-4440371.347 y-457106.387	Low moisture	Sunny
Borehole 16	Sandy loam	11.00	4.0	x-4440343.253 y-457059.644	High moisture	Sunny
Borehole 17	Sand	12.00	4.0	x-4440338.463 y-457102.657	Moisture	Sunny
Borehole 18	Sandy loam	10.30	4.0	x-4440347.060 y-457164.130	Water-saturated	Sunny
Borehole 19	Sand	11.00	4.0	x-4440449.492 y-457115.310	High moisture	Sunny
Borehole 20	Sandy loam	11.45	4.0	x-4440436.107 y-457164.288	Moisture	Sunny
Borehole 21	Cabble stone, gravel	12.00	2.0	x-4440440.311 y-457195.398	Moisture	Sunny
Borehole 22	Sand	10.30	4.0	x-4440411.802 y-457188.518	Moisture	Sunny
Borehole 23	Sand with cabble stone and gravel	11.10	4.0	x-4440416.503 y-457158.038	High moisture	Sunny
Borehole 24	Sand with gravel	12.40	4.0	x-4440527.997 y-457172.447	High moisture	Sunny
Borehole 25	Sandy loam	13.30	4.0	x-4440479.585 y-457165.229	High moisture	Sunny
Borehole 26	Sandy loam	14.15	2.0	x-4440379.155 y-457190.612	High moisture	Sunny

		Date: 16.1	1.2017-18.11.201	7		
Samplers:			Signatures:		Weather conditions:	
Sample ID (as in bag)	Sample name (as in bag)	Time	Depth, m	GPS Coordinates	Sample description (type and moisture)	Anthropogenic/ Natural Features in area
Borehole 27	Sand	14.40	2.0	x-4440369.032	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457220.183		
Borehole 28	Sandy loam	15.15	4.0	x-4440397.024	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457219.620		
Borehole 29	Sandy loam	15.40	2.0	x-4440420.874	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457218.826		
Borehole 30	Sandy loam	16.10	4.0	x-4440442.961	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457220.607		
Borehole 31	Clay loam	10.40	4.0	x-4440468.739	High moisture	Sunny
				y-457225.429		
Borehole 32	Sand	11.10	2.0	x-4440490.630	High moisture	Sunny
				y-457225.574		
Borehole 33	Sand	12.00	2.0	x-4440509.348	Low moisture	Sunny
				y-457259.649		
Borehole 34	Sand	11.00	4.0	x-4440483.511	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457262.589		
Borehole 35	Sand	11.40	2.0	x-4440459.617	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457259.840		
Borehole 36	Sandy loam	12.30	4.0	x-4440430.635	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457260.629		
Borehole 37	Sand	13.15	2.0	x-4440411.296	Low moisture	Sunny
				y-457256.538		
Borehole 38	Sandy loam	13.50	4.0	x-4440390.927	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457255.824		
Borehole 39	Sand with gravel	14.30	4.0	x-4440359.317	Moisture	Sunny
				y-457253.071		

Date: 18.11			1.2017-19.11.201	7		
Samplers:			Signatures:		Weather conditions:	
Sample ID (as in bag)	Sample name (as in bag)	Time	Depth, m	GPS Coordinates	Sample description (type and moisture)	Anthropogenic/ Natural Features in area
Borehole 40	Sand with cabble stone and gravel	15.10	4.0	x-4440331.207 y-457250.792	High moisture	Sunny
Borehole 41	Sandy loam	11.00	2.0	x-4440489.050 y-457308.720	Low moisture	Sunny
Borehole 42	Sand	11.40	2.0	x-4440468.929 y-457295.788	Low moisture	Sunny
Borehole 43	Sand with gravel	12.30	2.0	x-4440429.310 y-457298.440	Low moisture	Sunny
Borehole 44	Sand	13.10	2.0	x-4440374.051 y-457302.843	Low moisture	Sunny
Borehole 45	Sand with gravel	13.50	2.0	x-4440329.460 y-457298.229	Low moisture	Sunny



REPORT

On geological survey and laboratory analysis of Yerevan TPP new

area

(Part 1)



Yerevan 2017

ÐÐ, ⁰ñ[™]Ý, Բшղրши́յши 57, 4 Đ»é. (374 10) 20-10-71, 20-10-81 ¾É. ÷áёï. geoterproject@mail.ru www.geoline.am 4, 57 Baghramyan st. Yerevan, Armenia

Tel. (374 10) 20-10-71, 20-10-81

E-mail. geoterproject@mail.ru

www.geoline.am

R E P O R T

On geological survey and laboratory analysis of Yerevan TPP new area

(Part 1)

Client: 'Renco Armestate' LLC

Director

Chief specialist

R. Manukyan

F. Avetisyan

Yerevan 2017

Contents

page

1.	Introduction, description of the works	4
2.	Area and site overview	6
3.	The format of the geological works (45 boreholes) and conditions: annex 3	8
4.	Bibliography	9

Text annex

1	Copy of the terms of reference	1
2	Hydro-geological boreholes lithological columns	2
3	Copy of license	3

Graphic annex

1 Space picture of the area	1
2 The map of the actual materials	2

1. Introduction, description of the works

Pursuant to the contract N17/09, signed on 8.11.2017 by "Renco Armestate" LLC and "Geoterproject" Ltd, as well as annex N1 (technical specification), during November-December of 2017 the company "Geoterproject" Co. Ltd has carried out a complex geological survey and laboratory analysis of the territory of Yerevan TPP new area in Republic of Armenia.

The schematic plan of the area has been provided by the Client.

The study area is situated in the south-eastern part of Yerevan, in Erebuni district, RA.

The following operations have been carried out:

- 1. Collecting of the data on geotechnical and projective surveys carried out in these and neighboring areas, their coordination, comparison and analysis.
- 2. On the area mentioned by the client (75.000 square m.) for soil and water sampling had been done geological reconnaissance by drilling. These drilling works have been carried out by drilling rig UGB-50M (d=151mm, 131mm, 127mm and 112mm) by the dry mechanical column method, with a screw auger, core selection. 45 boreholes have been drilled in the proposed areas. 20 boreholes with 2m depth, 25 boreholes with 4m depth with overall volume of 140m/l.







Pic: Drilling and sumpeling works.

- 3. Using the drilled holes core, the sampling of soils has been carried out depending on non-disturbed and disturbed structure. Depths according to the technical task (2m and 4m, 45 boreholes, one sample from each).
- 4. For underground waters sampling have been drilled 3 hidro-geological boreholes, each by 10m depth with fastening. Drilling was made with a diameter of 151 mm, PVC porous tubes are installed in each of 3 hydro-geological wells. Each boreholes walls and the middle of the filter was made topping by sand. From each hydro-geological borehole was taken one water sample. From 1st borehole at the depth of 1.9m, from 2nd at the depth of 2.6m and from 3rd at the depth of 2.7m: depending on the groundwater stabilization level. See Appendix 3 hydro-geological wells columns.
- On the area mentioned by the client has been carried out sampling of 3 of surface water samples from the following locations:
 Sample 1, upstream of the sewage discharge point of the Yerevan TPP1,
 Sample 2 downstream of the sewage discharge point of the Yerevan TPP1,
 Sample 3 at the sewage discharge point of the Yerevan TPP1 (access had been provided).
- 6. Carried out field and fund works office exploration.

7. Had been carried out analysis of the implemented works.

The field survey works, engineering-geological operations and office works were coordinated and headed by the director of "Geoterproject" Co. Ltd R. Manukyan and chief specialist geological engineer F. Avetisyan.

2. Area and site overview

The study area is located near the existing Yerevan TPP, in the south-estern part of Yerevan, RA, towards South from Yerevan TPP.

The absolute levels vary from 923.0m to 930.0m.



Pic. The space photo of the area

The study area is located in warm climatic zone, with hot simmer and cold, windless winter.

The absolute maximum air temperature is +41°C, the minimum- -30°.

Winds, having South-Western direction of maximum 5.9m/sec. speed predominate in winter (January), while winds of North-Eastern direction – in summer (June). Winds with the velocity up to 24m/sec may occur once in 20 years. Wind velocity pressure reaches up to 45kg/m².

Annual atmospheric precipitation is 302mm.

The highest snow cover in this area reaches 58cm, pressure- 70kg/m². Maximum depth of frost in soil is 60cm.



The geological structure of the area and the study site is represented by radical clays, generally covered by contemporary alluvial, dilluvial-prolluvial, and technogenic generations, formed of clayey and sandy soils.

From the seism tectonic respect the territory and the study area are located within the limits of corrugated zone of Armenia. The territory is one of the seism active zones in Armenian plateau.

From the hydro-geologic respect the area underground waters are related to alluvial and dilluvial generations, belong to layer waters type.

3. The format of the geological works (45 boreholes) and the conditions

Bibliography

a. published material

- 1. Àñeàíýí À.Ò. Đåãeìíàeuíàÿ ãåîeiãeỳ Àðìåíee. "Àéïåoðào", Åðåâàí, 1958
- 2. Áàëuÿí Ñ.Ï. Ñòðóêòóðíàÿ ãåîìîðôîëîãèÿ Àðìÿíñêîãî íàãîðuÿ è îêàéìëÿþùèõ îáëàñòåé.
- ÂÎÑÒ 25100-95. Ãðóíòû. Êëàññèôèêàöèÿ.
- 4. ÂÎÑÒ 12071-84. Îòáîð, óïàêîâêà, òðàíñïîðòèðîâêà è õðàíåíèå îáðàçöââ.
- 5. ÑÍèÏ 2.02.01-85. Îñíîâàíèÿ çäàíèé è ñîîðóæåíèé.
- 6. ÑÍèÏ IV-2-82. Ñáîðíèê. Çåìëÿíûå ðàáîòû.
- ĐĐÞÜ II-6.02.2006. ê»ÛëÙ³Ï³ÛáõÝ BÇÝ³ñ³ñáõÃÛáõÝ: Ü³Ë³·ÍÙ³Ý ÝáñÙ»ñ
- ĐĐÞÜ 1-2.01-99. ÆÝŻݻñ³l³Ý ѻﳽáïáõÃÛáõÝÝ»ñ ßÇݳñ³ñáõÃÛ³Ý Ñ³Ù³ñ: ĐÇÙݳl³Ý
 ¹ñáôÛÃÝ»ñ.
- 9. ĐĐÞÜ II -7.01-2011.ÞÇÝ³ñ³ñ³Ï³Ý ÏÉÇÙ³Û³µ³ÝáõÃÛáõÝ
- 10. $D^3\hat{U}^3\ddot{e}_i^3\dot{Y}C^{31/2^{-3}}\hat{U}C\dot{Y}^{3i}\dot{E}^3\ddot{e},$ $\$

b. library material

- "Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP 220/110/35kv substation" "Geoterproject LLC" 2017
- ^{2.} "Report on engineering-geological survey of Yerevan TPP new energy block area"

"Geoterproject LLC" 2016
























ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND INFORMATION CENTER State non-commercial organization 46 Charents Str., 0025 Yerevan, Armenia, Tel.: (+374) 10 272007

Annex 5

Client: "Geoterproject" LTD Contract number: 22-1/17 Date of receiving of sample: 13.11.2017 Date of issue of results: 20.12.2017 Soil sampling: Client

Sample ID: Borehole 1

Sample name (as in bag): Sandy loamy



APPROVED Deputy Director G. Shahnazaryan

SOIL TEST REPORT

N	Testing parameter	Unit	Measured value	Maximum permissible concentration
1	Lithium	g/kg	0.0200	NA*
2	Sodium	g/kg	20.604	NA
3	Magnesium	g/kg	14.366	NA
4	Aluminum	g/kg	65.27	NA
5	Potassium	g/kg	7.608	NA
6	Calcium	g/kg	85.76	NA
7	Titanium	g/kg	2.359	NA
8	Vanadium	g/kg	0.0905	0.15
9	Chromium	g/kg	0.0617	0.006
10	Iron	g/kg	47.02	NA
11	Manganese	g/kg	0.4730	0.7
12	Cobalt	g/kg	0.0233	0.005
13	Nickel	g/kg	0.0327	0.004
14	Copper	g/kg	0.0400	0.003
15	Zinc	g/kg	0.0652	0.023
16	Arsen	g/kg	0.0093	0.002
17	Selenium	g/kg	0.0091	NA
18	Strontium	g/kg	0.4440	NA
19	Molybdenum	mg/kg	1.222	NA
20	Cadmium	mg/kg	0.1364	NA
21	Tin	mg/kg	0.8928	NA
22	Stibium	mg/kg	0.3494	4.5
23	Barium	g/kg	0.6524	NA
24	Lead	g/kg	0.0101	0.032
25	Benzene	mg/kg	< 0.0001	0.3
26	Ethylbenzene	mg/kg	< 0.0001	NA
27	Toluene	mg/kg	0.2282	0.3
28	Xylene	mg/kg	0.0090	0.3
29	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	mg/kg	10.93	NA
30	Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	mg/kg	ND*	NA

NA*-not assigned

ND-not detected

Submitted:

Head of Water quality research laboratory

Mh. Ginen Turs.



ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND INFORMATION CENTER State non-commercial organization 46 Charents Str., 0025 Yerevan, Armenia, Tel.: (+374) 10 272007

Client: "Geoterproject" LTD Contract number: 22-1/17 Date of receiving of sample: 17.11.2017 Date of issue of results: 20.12.2017 Soil sampling: Client

Sample ID: Borehole 19

Sample name (as in bag): Sand

APPROVED Deputy Director G. Shahnazaryan

SOIL TEST REPORT

N	Testing parameter	Unit	Measured value	Maximum permissible concentration
1	Lithium	g/kg	0.0078	NA
2	Sodium	g/kg	7.65	NA
3	Magnesium	g/kg	6.02	NA
4	Aluminum	g/kg	30.93	NA
5	Potassium	g/kg	6.89	NA
6	Calcium	g/kg	51.50	NA
7	Titanium	g/kg	1.92	NA
8	Vanadium	g/kg	0.107	0.15
9	Chromium	g/kg	0.055	0.006
10	Iron	g/kg	33.83	NA
11	Manganese	g/kg	0.527	0.7
12	Cobalt	g/kg	0.0205	0.005
13	Nickel	g/kg	0.0266	0.004
14	Copper	g/kg	0.1223	0.003
15	Zinc	g/kg	0.0731	0.023
16	Arsen	g/kg	0.0126	0.002
17	Selenium	g/kg	0.0085	NA
18	Strontium	g/kg	0.3584	NA
19	Molybdenum	mg/kg	0.0008	NA
20	Cadmium	mg/kg	0.00017	NA
21	Tin	mg/kg	0.00097	NA
22	Stibium	mg/kg	0.00038	4.5
23	Barium	g/kg	0.723	NA
24	Lead	g/kg	0.0140	0.032
25	Benzene	mg/kg	< 0.0001	0.3
26	Ethylbenzene	mg/kg	< 0.0001	NA
27	Toluene	mg/kg	0.0085	0.3
28	Xylene	mg/kg	0.0065	0.3
29	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	mg/kg	- 11.848	NA
30	Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons	mg/kg	ND	NA

NA*-not assigned

ND-not detected

Submitted:

Head of Water quality research laboratory

U. Ginen Euros.

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND INFORMATION CENTER State non-commercial organization 46 Charents Str., 0025 Yerevan, Armenia, Tel.: (+374) 10 272007

Client: "Geoterproject" LTD Contract number: 22-1/17

Date of receiving of sample: 21.11.2017 Date of issue of results: 20.12.2017

Water sampling: Client

APPROVED Deputy Director Jenniel G. Shahnazaryan

Sample ID: C

.

Sample name (as in water sampling bottle): from channel

WATER TEST REPORT

N	Testing parameter	Unlt	Measured value	Maximum permissible concentration
1	pH	(4)	7.76	6.5-9
2	Mineralization	mg/L	593	148
3	BOD ₅	mgO ₂ /l	2.87	5
4	COD-Cr	mgO/L	26	25
5	Lithium	mg/L	0.02528	0.036
6	Sodium	mg/L	82.20	10
7	Magnesium	mg/L	21.96	50
8	Aluminum	mg/L	0.0033	0.13
9	Potassium	mg/L	4.715	3
10	Calcium	mg/L	50.65	100
11	Titanium	mg/L	0.00609	NA
12	Vanadium	mg/L	0.01770	0.002
13	Chromium	mg/L	0.00373	0.011
14	Iron	mg/L	0.08014	0.16
15	Manganese	mg/L	0.00818	0.01
16	Cobalt	mg/L	0.00055	0.00028
17	Nickel	mg/L	0.00404	0.011
18	Copper	mg/L	0.00153	0.023
19	Zine	mg/L	0.00060	0.1
20	Arsen	mg/L	0.00758	0.02
21	Selenium	mg/L	0.00110	0.02
22	Strontium	mg/L	0.25436	NA
23	Molybdenum	mg/L	0.00598	0.014
24	Cadmium	mg/L	0.00003	0.001
25	Tin	mg/L	0.000003	0.00018
26	Stibium	mg/L	0.00012	0.00038
27	Barium	mg/L	0.01672	0.018
28	Lead	mg/L	0.000092	0.01
29	Benzene	nıg/L	<0.001	0.03
30	Ethylbenzene	mg/L	<0.001	NA
31	Toluene	mg/L	<0.001	NA
32	Xylene	mg/L	< 0.001	NA
33	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	mg/L	< 0.001	0.1
34	Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	mg/L	ND**	NA

BODe-Biochemical Öxygen 5-days Demand, COD- Cr Chemical Öxygen Demand bichrom

NA*-not assigned ND*-not detected

Submitted:

Head of Water quality research laboratory

M. Grun Lugs.



ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND INFORMATION CENTER State non-commercial organization 46 Charents Str., 6025 Yerevan, Armenia, Tel. (+374) 10/272007

Client: "Geoterproject" LTD Contract number: 22-1/17 Date of receiving of sample: 21.11.2017 Date of issue of results: 20.12.2017 Water sampling: Client

Sample ID: B

Sample name (as in water sampling bottle): Hrazdan river, before channel

APPROVED Deputy Director Generation G. Shahnazaryan

WATER TEST REPORT

N	Testing parameter	Unit	Measured value	Maximum permissible concentration
1	pH		7.45	6,5-9
2	Mineralization	mg/L	666	148
3	BOD ₅	mgO ₂ /l	2.52	5
4	COD-Cr	mgO/L	42	25
5	Lithium	mg/L	0.0266	0.036
6	Sodium	mg/L	64.94	10
7	Magnesium	mg/L	27.50	50
8	Aluminum	mg/L	0.0138	0.13
9	Potassium	mg/L	5.74	3
10	Calcium	mg/L	68.06	100
11	Titanium	mg/L	0.00672	NA
12	Vanadium	mg/L	0.01496	0.002
13	Chromium	mg/L	0.00434	0.011
14	Iron	mg/L	0.10672	0.16
15	Manganese	mg/L	0.02611	0.01
16	Cobalt	mg/L	0.00034	0.00028
17	Nickel	mg/L	0.00331	0.011
18	Copper	mg/L	0.00183	0.023
19	Zine	ung/L	0.00250	0,1
20	Arsen	mg/L	0.00677	0.02
21	Selenium	mg/L	0.00210	0.02
22	Strontium	mg/L	0.38797	NA
23	Molybdenum	mg/L	0.00324	0.014
24	Cadmium	mg/L	0.000021	0.001
25	Tin	mg/L	0.0000006	0.00018
26	Stibium	mg/L	0.0000912	0.00038
27	Barium	mg/I.	0.0323	0.018
28	ilead	mg/1.	0.00021	0.01
29	Benzene	mg/L	< 0.001	0.03
30	Ethylbenzene	mg/L	<0,001	NA
31	Foluene	mg/L	< 0.001	NA
32	Xylene	mg/L	<0.001	NA
33	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	mg/L	< 0.001	0.1
34	Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	mg/L	ND*	NA

BOD,-Biochemical Oxygen 5-days Demand, COD- Cr Chemical Oxygen Demand hichromate

NA*-not assigned

ND*-not detected

Submitted:

Head of Water quality research laboratory



ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND INFORMATION CENTER State non-commercial organization 46 Charents Str., 0025 Yerevan, Armenia, Tel. (+374) 10 272007

Client: "Geoterproject" LTD Contract number: 22-1/17 Date of receiving of sample: 21.11.2017 Date of issue of results: 20.12.2017 Water sampling: Client

Sample ID: H

Sample name (as in water sampling bottle): Hrazdan river, after channel

APPROVED Deputy Director G. Shahnazaryan

WATER TEST REPORT

N	Testing parameter	Unit	Measured value	Maximum permissible concentration
1	pH		7.47	6.5-9
2	Mineralization	mg/L	661	148
3	BOD ₅	mgO_/l	3.91	5
4	COD Cr	mgO/L	30	25
5	Lithium	mg/L	0.0270	0.036
6	Sodium	mg/L.	59.63	10
7	Magnesium	mg/L	27.46	50
8	Aluminum	mg/L	0.0132	0.13
9	Potassium	mg/L	5,58	3
10	Calcium	mg/L	67.72	100
11	Titanium	mg/L	0.006374	NA
12	Vanadium	mg/L	0.013205	0.002
13	Chromium	mg/L	0.004477	0.011
14	Iron	mg/L	0.106664	0.16
15	Manganese	mg/L	0.028988	0.01
16	Cobalt	mg/L	0.000304	0.00028
17	Nickel	mg/L	0.003085	0.011
18	Copper	mg/L	0.001679	0.023
19	Zine	mg/L	0.002253	0.1
20	Arsen	mg/L	0.006365	0.02
21	Selenium	mg/L	0.002069	0.02
22	Strontium	mg/L	0.391978	NA
23	Molybdenum	mg/L	0.002763	0.014
24	Cadmium	mg/L	0.000019	0.001
25	Tin	mg/L	0.000006	0.00018
26	Stibium	ing/L	0.000110	0.00038
27	Barium	mg/L	0.032977	0.018
28	Lead	mg/1.	0.000692	0.01
29	Benzene	mg/L	<0.001	0.03
30	Ethylbenzene	mg/L	< 0.001	NA
31	Toluene	mg/L	< 0.001	NA
32	Xylene	mg/L	< 0.001	NA
33	Petroleum Hydrocarbons	mg/L	< 0.001	0.1
34	Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons	ma/L	02*	87.4

BOD, Biochemical Oxygen 5-days Demand, COD- Cr Chemical Oxygen Demand biehromate

NAT-not assigned NOT-not detected

Submitted:

Head of Water quality research laboratory

Fotodocumentation Yerevan TPP2 November 2017 Annex 5



Foto 1: Entrance area to YTPP-2 site Fotos 1 – 8 were taken by GefaÖ in 2017



Foto 2: Area overview with construction site (center) and TPP-1 on the right side



Foto 3: Larger overview of the area, view NW



Foto 4: On the site, view to SE



Foto 5: On the site with some waste



Foto 7: On the site, view to NE

Fotodocumentation Yerevan TPP2 November 2017





Foto 7: On the site, view to N with TPP1



Foto 8: On the site with old barrels and pollution with unknown liquid



Foto 9: Drilling works from November, 15th of borehole 14 (4 meters)



Foto 10: Drilling core from borehole 14 ready to take sample.



Foto 11: Taking soil sample from borehole 14 in plastc bag

U/C-tec GmbH

Fotodocumentation Yerevan TPP2 November 2017



Foto 12: Drilling core of borehole 13 with soil sample. TPP1 in the background.



The legal framework of the emissions standardization in Armenia and the assessment of the planned YTPP-2 emissions



Customer Renco Armestate LLC

Executer Consecoard LLC

Yerevan, 2018

Contents

1	Main principles	3
2	Permits	3
3	Normatives of hazardous substances emissions limit values	4
4	Legal frameworrk	4
4.	1 Law abuot protection of atmospheric air of the Republic Armenia	4
4.	2 Sub-legal acts	4
5	Assessment of the planned YTPP-2 emissions	5
5	Conclusion	7
ANN	IEX 1	8
LAW	/ OF THE REPUBLIC OF ARMENIA	8
ANN	IEX 2	.10
ANN	IEX 3	.15
ANN	IEX 4	.16
ANN	IEX 5	.17
ANN	IEX 6	.18

ABBREVIATION LIST

RA	Republic of Armenia
TLV	Threshold limit value
ELV	Emissions limit value
ТРР	Thermal power plant
EIA	Environmental impact assessment
LLC	Limite Liability Company

1 Main principles

The standardization of the hazardous substances in Armenia is carries out on the basis of sanitary-hygienic principle. The main criteria is the consideration of the sanitary norms of the given substances content in the air of public areas (cities, settlements, villages).

The emissions simultaneous maximum quantity (on the edge of the tube) is defined on the conditions that after dispersion the given substance ground level concentration, considering the unfavourable weather condition and background pollution, does not exceed the maximum threshold limit emissions one-time concentration (maximum one-time TLV).

This order has been passed yet during SSSR, the aim of which was the protection of the polulation.

2 Permits

The enterprises get separate permits for the impacts on the different components of the environment, such as for water use and wastewater leaks, emissions to the atmospheric air, placement of hazardous refuses, separately. All of them are given by the RA Ministry of Nature Protection.

The permits are given based on the normative projects of the water use, limit permissible leaks (LPL), emissions limit value (ELV) and refuses formation.

The order, form and the content of the permits are defined in the relevant legal and sub-legal acts.

In 2011 changes have been made in the RA law "On the atmospheric air protection". Together with other changes, the enterprise's minimum limit of the pollution potential has been defined, based on which the way of the definition and release of the emission norm of the substances, polluting the atmosphere, is defined. According to that change, based on the ELV project, the emission permit is given only to those enterprises, the required air use¹ (RAU) of which exceeds 2bilion m³.

For the enterprises the RAU of which is from 200mln to 2billion m³, the emission norm is defined based on the factual emissions (RA Government resolution N259 of 22.04.1999). The enterprises the RAU of which is less than 200mln, are not to be registered. In case of having more than 2billion m³ RAU, the enterprises develop drafts of Emissions limit vales (ELV) normatives and submit them to the RA Ministry of Nature Protection for approval and for getting emissions permit.

Starting from the moment of giving emissions permit, the emissions quantities, presented in the ELV draft, become normatives of the relevant enterprise (equipment).

¹ Required air use- the volume of the clean air, necessary for rarefying the polluting substances emissions up to threshold limit values level

The emissions permit is given to the objects, which are under construction, enlargement and reconstruction, on the basis of the state ecological expertise positive conclusion, for a term of 1 year, starting from the commissioning day. After that term the emissions standardization is realized according to the atmospheric air protection law.

3 Normatives of hazardous substances emissions limit values

The ELV normative draft describes technologies, used raw materials and products, sources of emission parameter query of sources, emission substances names. In the draft there are mentioned substances with a hazardous amount of impact, the timeframe for achieving the ELVmorms and the costs required for it, the extent of damage, caused to the environment by the organization's emissions.

Based on technological processes, quantities and productivity of consumed substances, the quantities of all emissions are calculated at average annual, t / year, as well as short-term emissions at maximum productivity with g/sec quantity.

Based on these data, The Ministry of Nature Protection of Armenia performs a dispersion calculation compares the calculated concentration of each substance with the established maximum lump-sum TLVs and if the results do not exceed the TLV, an emission permit is given.

4 Legal frameworrk

4.1 Law abuot protection of atmospheric air of the Republic Armenia

« The subject of the RA law "On the atmospheric air protection" is the regulation of the publis relations in the field of the atmospheric air cleanliness protection, minimization and prevention of the hazardous impacts on the atmospheric air.

The law has passed on 10.11.1994, after which several changes have been made.

The articles, referring to the standardization of the hazardous substances emissions, are given in the annexes.

4.2 Sub-legal acts

In pursuance of the requirements of the law, the Government of the Republic of Armenia has made the following resolutions:

- a. "On the approval of the state registration order of the harmful impacts on the atmospheric air" (22.04.1999 N 259)
- b. ON DEFINING THE DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL PROCEDURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES EMISSION LIMITS NORMATIVES AND ON DECARING THE RESOLUTIONS OF THE GOVERNMENT OF ARMENIA N 192 OF MARCH 30, 1999 AND N953-N OF AUGUST 21, 2008 AS INVALID (27 December 2012, N 1673-N)

 c. "ON THE APPROVAL OF THE NORMATIVES OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES THRESHHOLD LIMIT VALUES (CONCENTRATIONS-TLV) IN SETTLEMENTS" (2 February 2006, N 160)

The air quality of the workplaces in the produtive enterprises areas is defined by:

The rules "ON DETERMINING "THE CHEMICALS THRESHOLD LIMIT VALUES IN THE WORK ZONE AIR OF WORKPLACES OF ORGANIZATIONS" N 2.2.5-004-10 SANITARY RULES AND NORMS", approved by the resolution N27 of 6 December, 2010, of the RA Ministry of Healthcare

The productive organizations should organize sanitary-protective zones in order to mitigrate or minimize their impact.

These zones are defined by the CH 245-71 construction norms, which may be adjusted in the result of comparison with the TLVs of the concentrations, received in the result of the hazardous substances emissions dispersion.

Those articles or sections of the listed normative acts, which refer to the emissions standardization, are given in the annexes of the present report.

5 Assessment of the planned YTPP-2 emissions

In 2016-2017, the planned power plant EIA works were organized by "Renco Armestate" LLC, according to the RA acting legislation. Emissions quantities calculation was done in the EIA framework. Taking into account that it is planned to install gas turbine equipment of Siemens production, which correspond to IPPC "Reference Document on BAT fo Large Combustion Plants" Europian normative document requirements, the calculation was done on the basis of this normative document specific factors.

Emissions dipersion calculation of obtained quantities was done with "Raduga" computer program and the results are presented in the table 1.

Table 1.

Nº	Poluttants	Residential zones maximum one-time	Maximur conc	n near-ground entrations
		TLV ² , mg/m ³	mg/m ³	on TLV
1	Nitrogen dioxide	0.2	0.0876	0.438
2	Carbon monoxide	5	0.0585	0.0117

² RA GOVERNMENT N 160-N RESOLUTION OF 02.02.2006 "ON THE APPROVAL OF THE NORMATIVES OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES THRESHHOLD LIMIT VALUES (CONCENTRATIONS-TLV) IN SETTLEMENTS"

As it is seen in the table, the obtained maximum near-ground concentrations do not exceed the Republic of Armenia standards.

Those calculations in EIA have been presented to the Republic of Armenia Ministry of Nature Protection and, in the result of the carried put expertise, a positive conclusion has been obtained by the Republic of Armenia Ministry of Nature Protection.

At the end of 2017, based on the changes done in the project, according to which the power plant project capacity has been slightly increased, at the same time the stack height has been significantly increased, a ELV normatives draft development of the power plant has been undertaken by "Renco Armestate" LLC.

The draft has been developed according to the N 1673-N resolution methodology.

Emissions calculations have been done according to the European Environment Agency EMEP/EEA "Air pollutant emission inventory guidebook"³.

Specific emissions factors for combustion of various technologies and power equipment are presented in the guidebook, according to the produced energy quantity.

For gas turbines the factors of Guidbook 3-17 Table⁴ have been used.

The emissions quantities are presented in the table 2.

Table 2.

Substance name	TLV one-time maximum,	Substance emission,
	mg/m ³	t/year
1	2	3
Carbon monoxide	5.0	365.5
Nitrogen dioxide	0.2	36.5
Hydrocarbons - limit	1.0	12.2

The table form is taken from the guidebook of "Approval and development order of normatives of the substances polluting the atmospheric air" approved by the RA Government N 1673-N resolution of 27.12.2012. In the second column of this table the maximum TLV is clearly mentioned. It is needed to mention also, that this normative on nitrogen dioxide corresponds to the quota (standard) accepted in several international documents.

Emissions dipersion calculation of obtained quantities was done with "Raduga" computer program and the results are presented in the table 3.

Tab	le	3
Tub	nC.	э.

Nº	Polluting substances	Residential zones maximum one-timeMaximum near-grou concentrationsTLV3, mg/m3mg/m3	n near-ground entrations	
		TLV ³ , mg/m ³	mg/m ³	on TLV
1	Carbon monoxide	0.2	0.0232	0.116
2	Nitrogen dioxide	5	0.002	0.0004
3	Hydrocarbons	1	0.0008	0.0008

The significant reduction of the near-ground concetrations is conditioned on the double increase of the emission pipe height. Accoriding to the Raduga computer program mathematic model, the pipe height has a great influence.

5 Conclusion

The above-mentioned calculations and grounds show, that in the result of planned YTPP-2 operation, the hazardous substances will not exceed both the Republic of Armenia and international normative requirements, even under the maximum productivity conditions.

The above-mentioned grounds and citations are received from several RA legal acts, of which relevant extracts are presented in the present report annexes part.

"CONSECOARD" LLC director:

Vram Tevosyan

³ European Environment Agency. EMEP/EEA air pollutant emission inventory guidebook 2013

⁴ Table 3-17. Tier 2 emission factors for source category 1.A.1.a, gas turbines using gaseous fuels

⁵ RA GOVERNMENT N 160-N RESOLUTION OF 02.02.2006 "ON THE APPROVAL OF THE NORMATIVES OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES THRESHHOLD LIMIT VALUES (CONCENTRATIONS-TLV) IN SETTLEMENTS"

LAW OF THE REPUBLIC OF ARMENIA

On atmospheric air protection *

Passed on 11.10.1994

ARTICLE 10.

Specifications of Threshold limit values (maximum permissible concentration) of substances polluting atmospheric air and maximum permissible physical harmful influences

Specifications of Threshold limit values (maximum permissible concentration) of substances polluting atmospheric air and maximum permissible physical harmful influences are established for estimation of a state of atmospheric air.

These specifications should answer interests of nature protection and health of people.

ARTICLE 13. The principle of establishing the limit permissible normatives of Threshold limit values (maximum permissible emissions) of substances polluting atmospheric air and maximum permissible harmful physical influences

Specifications of levels of maximum permissible emission of substances polluting atmospheric air and maximum permissible harmful physical influences are established so that taking into account prospects of development of the given region emissions of polluting substances and harmful physical influences from the given territory and from all other sources have not resulted in exceeding of specifications of maximum permissible concentration of polluting substances in atmospheric air and maximum permissible physical harmful influences.

The threshold limit values are established for those emission sources or the groups, the required air use, calculated on which emissions maximum design indicators in one year exceeds two billion cubic meter or in one second exceeds two thousand cubic meter.

All those influences on a state of atmospheric air for which corresponding specifications are not established are forbidden.

The active influences on the atmosphere or atmospheric phenomena are carried out on the procedure, established by the Republic of Armenia.

ARTICLE 14. Regulation of emissions of substances polluting atmospheric air by stationary sources of pollution

Specially authorized state body in the sphere of protection of atmospheric air permits emissions by stationary sources of pollution of substances polluting atmospheric air in each case, on the order,

established by The Government of the Republic of Armenia, within 30 days upon applying by the organizations, having stationary sources of pollution. In case of not giving an answer by the authorized body within the established terms, the normative of the emissions limit values of the air polluting substances should be considered as accepted.

ARTICLE 15. Ensuring of execution of requirements to emissions of substances polluting atmospheric air

The enterprises, establishments and organizations which activity is connected to emission of substances polluting atmospheric air, are obliged to carry out technical, economic, organizational and other actions for ensuring of execution of conditions and requirements stipulated in permissions on emission, to take measures on reduction of emission of polluting substances, to provide a working order of nature protection constructions and equipment, their uninterrupted and effective work, and also in accordance with established procedure carry out the constant account and measurement of amount and contents of substances emitted in atmospheric air.

Realization of actions on atmospheric air protection should not result in pollution of other natural environments.

ARTICLE 16. Restriction, suspension or prohibition of emission of substances polluting atmospheric air

Specially authorized state bodies in the sphere of atmospheric air protection have the right to restrict, suspend or prohibit emission of substances polluting atmospheric air, down to the termination of activity of separate establishments, enterprises, shops and organizations if the conditions and requirements stipulated by permissions are broken, and also a threat to health of the population emerges.

ARTICLE 22. Establishment of sanitary - protective zones

At selection of places for new enterprises, constructions and other objects, reconstruction or expansion of the working enterprises, constructions and other objects influencing a state of atmospheric air, establishment of sanitary - protective zones is provided.

ANNEX 2.

RESOLUTION

OF THE GOVERNTMENT OF ARMENIA

27 December 2012, N 1673-N

ON DEFINING THE DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL PROCEDURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES EMISSION LIMITS NORMATIVES AND ON DECARING THE RESOLUTIONS OF THE GOVERNMENT OF ARMENIA N 192 OF MARCH 30, 1999 AND N953-N OF AUGUST 21, 2008 AS INVALID

Based on the articles 5, 5.1, 12, 13 and 14 of the RA law on "The environmental air protection", the Government of the Republic of Armenia *decides*:

- 1. To define the order of development and approval procedure of environmental air polluting substances emission limits normatives, according to the annex.
- 2. Define that
 - 1) The normatives of hazardous substances emissions in the environment are developed for those hazardous substances for which health, nature protection or other normatives of their content in the environment are established. If in the result of the business entities' activity a substance, for which no health, nature protection or other normatives are established, is emitted, then the business entity applies to the liable authority in order to develop a normative for that substance, according to the established procedure.
 - 2) According to the resolution N259 of April 22, 1999 of the RA Government, for those organizations or private entrepreneurs (hereinafter referred as business entities) under state registration, based on whose emissions maximum design indexes the "required air usage" (hereinafter RAU) is calculated and is from two hundred million up to two billion cubic meter, the emissions limit quantities are the factual emissions, generated in the result of their activity.
 - 3) For those business entities, that have such emission sources, the RAU, calculated based on their emissions maximum design indexes, exceeds two billion cubic meter annual or two thousand cubic meter in a second, the emission quantities are defined based on the emission limits value (ELV) normatives projects, moreover;
 - a. If in the result of dispersion in the ground-level strata at the edge of the emitting organization territory and(or) in the nearest settlements the polluting substances emissions cause such concentrations which, together with the given territory pollution background concentration, do not exceed the treshhold limit values (TLV), the ELV normatives are acceptable and are emission limit quantities (emissions permissions),

- b. If the ground-level concentrations of polluting substances, formed in the result of the emissions, together with the given territory pollution background concentration, at the edge of the emitting organization territory and(or) in the nearest settlements, exceed the corresponding TLV, and the given substances background pollution does not exceed the TLV, a program of air polluting substances emissions reduction measurements is developed, the realization of which will ensure the TLV normatives formation.
- c. If for some substances, existing in the business entity's emissions, the background pollution exceeds the corresponding TLV, the ELV normatives are accepted as temporary. The temporary normatives are operating until the new quantities provision, based on the territorial standardization realization in the established procedure in the territories which have hazardous substances background over-pollution.
- 3. In the cases, defined in the b) and c) paragraphs of the 3rd sub-clause of the 2nd clause of the present resolution, the emissions quantities are provided to the extent of the ELV normatives.
- 4. To define that:
 - 1) The air polluting substances emissions limit normatives for the air polluting immobile sources are developed by the business entities which have such sources.
 - 2) The provided emission quantities remain valid as long as there are no quantitative or qualitative modifications for the polluting immobile sources and polluting substances, as well as there is no background over-normative pollution of those substances. Related to the background over-normative pollution, the emission quantities are being reviewed not earlier than within 5 years upon the provision moment.
 - 3) The information about the territory background pollution is provided by the RA Ministry of Nature Protection, on its official web-site. If the data of that territory background pollution are missing, the background pollution is determined, based on the population quantity of that territory.
 - 4) The emission quantities for the new constructed, expanded and reconstructed buildings are being determined within 7 days upon the day of its commissioning in the established procedure, for one year, based their construction, expansion and reconstruction design solutions. Then, depending on the emissions capacity or quantity, in conformity with the present resolution 2nd clause 2nd or 3rd sub-clauses.
- 5. To declare invalid the resolutions of the RA Government N192 of March 30, 1999 "On giving permissions for the normatives of environmental air polluting substances limit emissions and physically hazardous impacts permissible limit levels and for making emissions" and N953-N of August 21, 2008 on "The approval of the procedure of giving permission for the normatives projects examination of the emissions limits of the organizations, having environmental air polluting immobile sources, and for making emissions"

Annex of the RA Government resolution N1673-N of December 27, 2012

ORDER

OF THE DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE NORMATIVES OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES EMISSIONS LIMIT VALUES

- The designs of the normatives of environmental air polluting substances emissions limit values (hereinafter design) are being developed and submitted to the revision of the Ministry of Nature Protection of the Republic of Armenia (hereinafter Ministry) by the organizations, satisfying the condition, mentioned in the 4th point of the present resolution, in accordance with the guideline of the present order. Required air use (RAU) is being calculated by the formula of the present order 7th clause.
- The design, together with the attached letter (claim), is submitted via electronic version, by placing it on the Ministry's web-site, notifying the Ministry about it via email: <u>min</u><u>ecology@mnp.am</u>.
- 3. Within 30 days upon the day of the notification about placing the design on the web-site, mentioned in the 2nd clause of the present order, the Ministry informs the organization about the results of the submitted design revision:
- in case of the absence of the remarks about the design- about the approval of the emissions normatives, represented in the design, which are being considered as emissions quantities, provided to the given organization (emissions permits). Also an excerption, signed and sealed by the authorized body is being attached to the letter, the table 6 of the design "Normatives/quantities of the emissions limit values (ELV) (QUANTITIES OF POLLUTING SUBSTANCES, EMMITTED TO THE ENVIRONMENT FROM IMMOBILE SOURCES/ EMMISSION PERMITS).
- 2) In case of any remarks about the design, the remarks and their legal bases are being enumerated, and the design is being returned to reworking.
- 4. the reworked design again is submitted to revision on the procedure, envisaged by the present order.
- 5. The provided quantities of emissions remain in force as long as there are no quantitative or qualitative changes regarding the pollution immobile sources and polluting substances, as well as there is no background sub-normative pollution with the given substances. In case of the above mentioned changes the business entity develops a new design and submits it to revision, according to the present order.
- 6. If within 30 days the Ministry does not give a written answer to the organization, then the emissions normatives, submitted in the design, are considered as approved.

7. The required air use (RAU) in one year or in one second is calculated by the following formula:

RAU=
$$\sum_{i}^{n} \frac{Ei}{TLVi}$$

Where

Ei is the maximum emission of each i-rd substance, relatively in one year or in one second, according to the technological regulations (mg/year or mg/sec),

 TLV_i is relatively the average daily or maximum one-time threshold limit value of the i-rd substance (mg/m³).

GUIDELINE

ON THE COMPOSITION AND CONTENTS OF THE NORMATIVES/QUANTITIES DESIGNS OF THE EMISSIONS LIMIT VALUE (ELV)

1. The cover sheet

The cover sheet is the first page of the project and is formed based on the attached exemplary form.

2. Executers' list

The executers' list is written on the 2nd page of the cover sheet. The list represents the organizations and the surnames of all the responsible executers, co-executers, who have participated in the design development activities. On the left side the position, scientific degree are mentioned, while the surname is written on the right side. At each surname, in brackets, the number of the section they have prepared, is mentioned.

3. Summary

The summary should contain the main results of the executed works, the denominations of the polluting substances and the emissions annual quantities, the substances with harmful total impact, the terms of reaching the substances ELV norms and the expanses necessary for them, the amount of the damage on the environment in the result of the emissions by the organization.

4. Contents

The project contents should contain the titles of all the sections and the annexes, with the notes of the relevant pages.

5. General information about the organization

This chapter contains:

- 1) The location of the business entity, the quantity of production areas, information about the industrial area and the bordering objects, settlement, industrial zones, forests, agricultural fields, transport highways disposition.
- 2) The map-scheme of the business entity, mentioning the pollution sources.
- 3) The situational map of the business entity's location, mentioning the settlements, including the resort zones, resorts, kindergartens, schools, hospitals.

6. the characteristics of the business entity as a source of environmental air pollution This chapter includes:

- 1) The production technology description and the brief charachteristics of the used equipment from the environmental pollution point of view as well as information about the product, main raw material, main and reserve fuel.
- 2) The brief description of existing dust-gas-treating equipment, the generalized analysis of their tchnical condition and efficiency of the activity.
- 3) Information about the used technology, the modernity of the technological and dust-gastreating equipment and the best available production technologies.
- 4) The perspective development of the business entity.

The decisions about the information of the reconstruction, expansion, technical or technological upgrading, reprofilation, conservation, replacement or liquidation. It is made a reference to those documents which determine the development perspective: the existance of the project of reconstruction, expansion and new construction, the results or process of their ecological expertise.

5) The list of the polluting substances, emitted to the environment. Represented in the form of a table, given below.

TABLE 1.

The list of the polluting substances, emitted to the environment				
Substance denomination TLV one-time maximum, mg/m ³ Substance emission, t/year				
1	2	3		

The list of the polluting substances, emitted to the environment

Under the table the substances with total harmful impact are mentioned, as well.

The quantities of the emissions of the environmental air polluting substances (column 3) are calculated for each substance, based on the business entity operational mode, technological processes and equipment commissioning indexes, consumption quantities of raw material and fuel, on an annual basis.

6) the characteristics of the shock emissions

The brief characteristics of the shock emissions generation conditions are given. The shock emissions are represented in the form of the below mentioned table, they are not included in the table 1. The shock emissions are considered only in the emissions quantities on an annual basis. No dispersion calculation is carried out for them and they cannot be included in the quantity of the given substance maximum one-time (g/sec) emission. ANNEX 3.

GOVERNMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF ARMENIA

RESOLUTION

N 160-N of 2 February 2006

ON APPROVAL OF THE NORMATIVES OF THE THRESHOLD LIMIT VALUES (CONCENTRATIONS-TLV) OF THE SUBSTANCES PULLUTING THE ENVIRONMENTAL AIR IN SETTLEMENTS

(title modified on 05.04.07 N 403-N)

In conformity with the clauses 5, 10, 11 and 18¹ of the Republic of Armenia's law "On the environmental air protection", the Government of the Republic of Armenia *decides:*

- 1. To approve the normatives of environmental air polluting substances threshold limit values (concentrations-TLV) in settlements, in conformity with the Annex N1.
- 2. (the clause has lost validity on 05.04.07 N403-N)
- 3. To define that in sanatoriums, specially protected areas and touristic regions and (or) centers the threshold limit values of the hazardous substances, included in the Annex N1 of the present resolution, are accepted to the extent of the 0.8 threshold limit value of the given substance.
- 4. The present resolution enters into force the tenth day, successive to the official publication day.
- 5. THE NORMATIVES OF ENVIRONMENTAL AIR POLLUTING SUBSTANCES THRESHHOLD LIMIT VALUES (CONCENTRATIONS-TLV) IN SETTLEMENTS

NN	Hazardous substance denomination	TLV (mg/m ³)		Danger class
		one-time maximum	Average daily	-
1	2	3	4	5
1.	Nitrogenic acid (by HNO ₃ molecule)	0.4	0.15	2
2.	Nitrogen dioxide	0.2	0.04	3
3.	Nitrogen oxide	0.4	0.06	3

ANNEX 4.

MINISTER OF HEALTHCARE OF THE REPUBLIC OF ARMENIA

December 6, 2010

N 27-N

ORDER

ON DETERMINING "THE CHEMICALS THRESHOLD LIMIT VALUES IN THE WORK ZONE AIR OF WORKPLACES OF ORGANIZATIONS" N 2.2.5-004-10 SANITARY RULES AND NORMS

Taking as a base the sub-clause d) of the clause 12 of the RA Ministry of Healthcare statute, defined by the resolution N1300-N of 15 August 2002 of the RA Government "On creating a state governmental institution "Staff of RA Ministry of Healthcare ", establishing the Republic of Armenia's Ministry of Healthcare statute and staff structure", as well as the proposals of the World Health Organization for the development of the regions of Eastern Europe, Caucasus and Central Asia, based on the population's health care interests,

I order

To approve the sanitary rules and norms N 2.2.5-004-10 "The chemicals threshold limit values in the work zone air of workplaces of organizations", according to the annex.

Minister

H. Kushkyan

Annex

Of the resolution N27-N of 6 December 2010 Of the RA minister of Healthcare

SANITARY RULES AND NORMS

THE CHEMICALS THRESHOLD LIMIT VALUES IN THE WORK ZONE AIR OF WORKPLACES OF ORGANIZATIONS N 2.2.5-004-10

THE HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES OF ACCUTE IMPACT THRESHOLD LIMIT VALUES (TLV) IN THE WORK ZONE

AIR

Ζ	Substance denomination	Threshold limit value (TLV) mg/m ³	The prevailing aggregate state of the substance in production conditions	Danger class
1	2	3	4	5
1.	Nitrogen dioxide	2	g	3
2.	Nitrogen oxides (recalculated	5	G	3
	on NO ₂)			

ANNEX 5.

SANITARY NORMS OF DESIGNING INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES

Approved by The State Committee of Council of Ministers of the USSR for construction November 5, 1971

in accordance with the sanitary classification of enterprises, industries and facilities, the following sizes of sanitary protection zones for enterprises are established:

- class I 1000 m;
- « II 500 m;
- « III 300 m;
- « IV 100 m;
- « V 50 m.

8. SANITARY CLASSIFICATION OF ENTERPRISES AND PRODUCTION, THERMAL POWER STATIONS, WAREHOUSE BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES AND DIMENSIONS OF SANITARY - PROTECTION ZONES FOR THEM

8.1. For enterprises, buildings and structures with technological processes that are sources of production hazard emissions into the environment, sanitary-protection zones should be provided in accordance with <u>section 2</u> of these standards, depending on the sanitary classification.

Note. When organizing new productions and technological processes not included in this classification, the size of the sanitary-protection zone should be established in each specific case on agreement with the Chief Sanitary-Epidemiological Administration of the Ministry of Health of the USSR and the USSR Gosstroy.

INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES

8.2. For industrial enterprises, depending on the nature of production and capacity, the following sanitary protection zones should be envisaged.

THERMAL POWER STATIONS AND BOILERS

8.3. Sanitary-protection zones for thermal power plants and boilers should be determined by calculating by the dispersion in the atmosphere of harmful substances contained in the emissions, on the basis of normative documents approved in accordance with the established procedure.

ANNEX 6.

OFFICIAL COMMUNICATION FROM THE HEAD OF WASTE AND ATMOSPHERE EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT AGENCY



ՀԱՅԱՍՏԱՆԻ ՀԱՆՐԱՊԵՏՈՒԹՅԱՆ ԲՆԱՊԱՀՊԱՆՈՒԹՅԱՆ ՆԱԽԱՐԱՐՈՒԹՅԱՆ ԱՇԽԱՏԱԿԱԶՄԻ ԹԱՓՈՆՆԵՐԻ և ՄԹՆՈԼՈՐՏ ԱՐՏԱՆԵՏՈՒՄՆԵՐԻ ԿԱՌԱՎԱՐՄԱՆ ԳՈՐԾԱԿԱԼՈՒԹՅԱՆ ՊԵՏ

MINISTRY OF NATURE PROTECTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF ARMENIA HEAD OF WASTE AND ATMOSPHERE EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT AGENCY

<<,0010 Երևան, Հանրապետության Հրապարակ, Կառավարության 3-րդ տուն Էլ. Փոստ՝ <u>min_ecology@mnp.am</u> Հեռ. 011-818-523

2018թ.

<-Ռենկո Արմէստեյտ>> ՍՊԸ գործադիր տնօրեն պարոն Քրիստիան Կուկուռակիին

Հարգելի պարոն Կուկուռակի

Ի պատասխան Ձեր 2018 թվականի փետրվարի 5-ի N42/18 գրության, հայտնում եմ. Հայաստանի Հանրապետությունում վնասակար նյութերի արտանետումների նորմավորումը կատարվում է համաձայն ՀՀ կառավարության 2012 թվականի դեկտեմբերի 27-ի «Մթնոլորտային օդն աղտոտող նյութերի սահմանային թույլատրելի արտանետումների նորմատիվների մշակման ու հաստատման կարգը սահմանելու և Հայաստանի Հանրապետության Կառավարության 1999 թվականի մարտի 30-ի N 192 և 2008 թվականի օգոստոսի 21-ի N 953-Ն որոշումները ուժը կորցրած ճանաչելու մասին» N 1673-Ն որոշման պահանջների։

Շրջակա միջավայրի վրա ազդեցության գնահատման (ՇՄԱԳ) հաշվետվություններում վնասակար նյութերի մթնոլորտային արտանետումների ազդեցության գնահատումը նույնպես կատարվում է վերը նշված կարգով։

Ըստ այդ կարգի ձեռնարկություններն, որոնց արտանետումներն ենթակա են նորմավորման, հաշվարկում են իրենց տարեկան (տ/տարի) և կարճաժամկետ (գ/վրկ) արտանետումների քանակները և ներկայացնում << բնապահպանության նախարարություն անշարժ աղբյուրներից աղտոտող նյութեր մթնոլորտ արտանետելու չափաքանակներ/արտանետման թույլտվություններ ստանալու համար։



Տարեկան արտանետումները հաշվարկվում են պլանային կամ նախագծային հզորությունների կամ արտադրողականության հիման վրա, իսկ կարճաժամկետ արտանետումները՝ վատագույն պայմանների համար, որոնք են՝ առավելագույն արտադրողականությունը, նույն նյութերը արտանետող աղբյուրների միաժամանակ աշխատանքը և այլն։

Արտանետումների քանակների թույլատրելիությունն որոշվում է վատագույն պայմանների համար, համեմատելով արտանետումների ցրման արդյունքում սպասվող գետնամերձ կոնցենտրացիաները սանիտարական նորմերի հետ։

Գետնամերձ կոնցենտրացիաների հաշվարկները կատարվում են ըստ «Ձեռնարկությունների արտանետումներում պարունակվող վնասակար նյութերի կոնցենտրացիաների հաշվարկի մեթոդակարգի» (ОНД 86), կամ դրա հիման վրա մշակված «Ռադուգա» համակարգչային ծրագրի միջոցով։

Հաշվարկների համար մուտքագրվում են վերը թվարկված վատագույն պայմաններով հաշվարկված կարճաժամկետ արտանետումները, ինչպես նաև կլիմայական պայմանների ցուցանիշները։

Հաշվարկի արդյունքում ստացվում են մի քանի հարյուր կամ հազար կետերում գետնամերձ կոնցենտրացիաներ, որոնցից ամենաբարձրը համեմատվում է նույն նյութերի առավելագույն միանվագ սահմանային թույլատրելի խտության՝ կոնցենտրացիաների (ՍԹԿ) հետ։

Դրա հիմքերը նշված են «ОНД 86» մեթոդակարգի՝ «1. Ընդհանուր դրույթներ» գլխի 1.4 ենթակետի 1.1. բանաձևի բացատրությունում, ՀՀ կառավարության 2012 թվականի դեկտեմբերի 27-ի N1673-Ն որոշման Հավելվածի Ուղեցույցի աղյուսակ 1-ում, որտեղ տեղադրվում են վնասակար նյութերի բնութագրերը և պարամետրերը, ինչպես նաև՝ «Մթնոլորտի պահպանության միջոցառումնրի փորձաքննության համար օրենսդրական և նորմատիվամեթոդական փաստաթղթերի ժողովածու»-ի 5 գլուխի 5.2 ենթագլխի 2-րդ կետի 2.1 ենթակետում։





Մ. Ղազարյան

Մթնոլորտ արտանետումների և օզոնային շերտը քայքայող նյութերի առաքման թույլտվությունների բաժին Շ. Մադոյան 011 818 529
MINISTRY OF NATURE PROTECTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF ARMENIA

HEAD OF WASTE AND ATMOSPHERE EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT AGENCY

N 5/19.3/1900223

"15".03.2018

To the chief executive director

Of "Renco Armestate" LLC

Cristian Cucurachi

Dear Mr. Cucurachi,

In response to your N 42/18 letter of 05.02.2018, I inform that,

In the Republic of Armenia, the normalization of hazardous substances emissions is done according to the RA Government N 1673-N resolution requirements of 27.12.2012 on "Establishment of threshold limit values emissions normatives development and approval procedure of the substances polluting the atmospheric air and on consider invalid the N 192 of 30.05.1999 and N 953-N of 21.08.2008 resolutions of the RA Government.

In the environmental impact assessment (EIA) reports the assessment of hazardous substances atmosphere emissions impact is also carried out in the above-mentions procedure.

According to this procedure, the enterprises, of which emissions are subject to normalization, calculate their annual (t/year) and short-term (g/s) emissions quantities and submit to the RA Ministry of Nature Protection for obtaining polluting substances quantities/emission permissions to emit into atmosphere from immobile sources.

The annual emissions are calculated on the basis of plan or project powers or productivity, and the short-term emissions for the worst conditions, which are the maximum productivity, the simultaneous work of sources emitting the same substances etc..

The emissions quantities permit is determined for the worst conditions, by comparing the nearground concentrations originating from emissions dispersion with the sanitation norms.

The near-ground concentrations calculations are determined according to the "Methodology of calculation of hazardous substances concentrations being in the enterprises emissions" (OHД 86), or through "Raduga" computer program developed on its basis.

The short-term emissions calculated by the worst conditions listed above are entered for the calculations, as well as climate conditions indicators.

In the result of calculation, in the several hundred or thousand points near-ground concentrations are obtained, the highest one of which is compared with the same substances maximum one-time threshold limit values (TLV).

Its bases are mentioned in the "1.General provisions" chapter 1.4. sub-point 1.1. formula explanation of "ОНД 86" methodology, in the Guideline Annex table 1 of RA Government N 1673-N resolution of 27.12.2012, where the hazardous substance characteristics and parameters are added, as well as in the 5 chapter 5.2 subchapter 2nd point 2.1 sub-point of the "Legislative and normative-methodological documents collection for the atmosphere protection measures expertise".

Best regards,

M. Ghazaryan

Public Consultation Meeting at Yerevan 10th February 2018

1. Invitation letters and newspaper advertisements

Invitation letters for participation at the Public Consultation Meeting were sent to the following institutions/ agencies:

Armenia, 0025 Yerevan, 46 Charents st. RA Ministry of Nature Protection, 2 Tel: (37411) 81 85 93; /374 91/81-60-55 Silva Ayvazyan (coordinator of Aarhus Center of Yerevan)

Armenia, 0803, Ararat province, Ayntap village 6th street, 47 building Tel: +374-236-60506 Karen Sargsyan (executive of Ayntap Municipality)

Armenia, 0817, Ararat province, Nor Kharberd village, Tel: +374-236-60030, +374-93-400122 (cell.) Kamo Kakoyan (executive of Nor Kharberd Municipality)

Armenia, 0026, Yerevan 26 Garegin Nzhdeh st., (Shengavit administrative district) Tel: +374-11-518808, +374-11-518811 Armen Sargsyan (head of Shengavit administrative district of Yerevan)

Armenia, 0008, Yerevan 87 Sasuntsi Davit st., (Erebuni administrative district) Tel: +374-11-518331, +374-11-518333 Davit Grigoryan (head of Erebuni administrative district)

Armenia, 0015, Yerevan, 1 Argishti st., (Kentron administrative district) Tel: +374-11-514264 Avet Martirosyan (chief of deparment of Nature Protection of Staff of Yerevan Municipality)

Armenia, 0012, Yerevan, 29 Komitas, 3rd and 4th floors (Arabkir administrative district) Tel: +374-10-272007 Sasun Sahakyan (director of Environmental impact monitoring center (Ministry of Nature Protection of the Republic of Armenia)) Armenia, 0010, Yerevan Republic square, Government House 3, (Kentron administrative center) Tel: +374-11-818506, +374-11-818520 Artsvik Minasyan (RA minister of Nature Protection)

These invitation letters had the following content:

Public Consultation Invitation

Dear Mr./Mrs. ...

We inform, that the Ministry of Energy (MOE) of the Republic of Armenia plans to improve the total output capacity of its electric energy production, complementing the power units of the existing Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant (YCCPP-1) with a most modern and efficient power plant. For this reason a new gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant of 254 MW (YCCPP-2) is planned to be built at the site next to the existing YCCPP-1. The MOE wants to provide reliable national power supply, allow Armenia to become a major exporter of electricity, and shift the burden of electricity production from the public to the private sector.

RENCO SPA will be the Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contractor for this Project. The operation of the power plant will be made by ArmPower CJSC, a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA.

The Project has already obtained the national environmental approval from the Ministry of Nature Protection in January 2017. However, the project developer aims to obtain financing from the International Financing Corporation (IFC) and the Asian Development Bank (ADB). Because of this, an Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) has been prepared for the YCCPP-2 Project in December 2017 following international best practices.

ArmPower CJSC/RENCO SPA would like to inform all interested authorities and NGO's about the construction of the new YCCPP-2 and the ESIA. Therefore, you are invited to come and join the Public Consultation Meeting at 'DoubleTree by Hilton Yerevan City Centre' hotel 'Milano'' hall, 4/2 Grigor Lusavorich str., on February 10, 2018, at 10:00.

In a short presentation we will introduce the project to you and the general public, talk about possible environmental and social impacts and mitigation measures, and inform you about the grievance mechanism we implemented for the project. After that, in an open questions & answers session, you will have the chance to ask everything you want to know about the project.

Several experts on all different fields will be available to discuss the project and would welcome your comments and feedback.

Comments can also be emailed to: info@armpower.am

or posted to: Yerevan 0010, 10 Vazgen Sargsyan str., 105 office

We would also like to request your support for disclosing the ESIA documents that were prepared for the project, which we attach to this letter. We would like to request you to please post these documents on your official website, and to make the hard copies available at your installations, together with a sign informing people about the existence of these documents.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation and we are looking forward to seeing you at the public consultations.

Best regards,

"ArmPower" CJSC (a subsidiary company of RENCO SPA)

An **advertisement** was published on 17th January 2018 in the Armenian local **newspaper** regarding the invitation to the Public Consultation Meeting with the following content:

Public notice

We inform, that the ArmPower CJSC (an Italian RENCO SPA group company) will begin to build a new gas fired Combined Cycle Power Plant of 254 MW (YCCPP-2) near the existing ''Yerevan TPC'', in regard of which the ArmPower CJSC wants to inform all interested citizens about the new plant construction and Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA). Therefore, you are invited to come and join the Public Consultation Meeting at ''DoubleTree by Hilton Yerevan City Centre'' hotel ''Milano'' hall, 4/2 Grigor Lusavorich str., on February 10, 2018, at 10:00. For participating in consultations, free transportation is available from the following locations:

From the front of Ayntap Municipality – at 09:30

From the front of Barekamutyun Metro station of "Hayastan" supermarket (exit)- at 09:30

From the front of Shengavit administrative district – at 09:30 From the front of Erebuni administrative district – at 09:30

uusuup Suurunusnija АЯ ГАЗЕТА «АЙАСТАНИ АНРАПЕТУТЮН», ОРЦЮВРЮ, LDN3U E SBUDADU 1990 (ДЦSBUPBOD 9-D-3 HAVASTANY HANRAH ETUTION DAILY, EMERHI 17 30

Նախագահը Հայա

AUCSALUAUL 33 նախագահը ցավակցական հեռագիr է հղել Իrանի նախագահին

idwywb 7

Դիմնադrամի հոգա խուհւդի նիսsը puranuutrh

PRESS STAND

Վիգեն Սաrգսյանն ընդունել է 33-ում ԱՄՆ ռեստանին

abdhuih, h

Leusynhaantu Ադբեջանում 2017-ին նվազել է նավթի եւ գազի առդյունահանումը

jina Jujunqti til 2017p

d Guudjeh wrm 18 dig 668,9 hw 0nur 6 h0`41 Սորանվել է Օլիվեր Իվանովիչը

Նեւկայացվել են մի շարք օրինագծեր նը շառունակել է հերթական նիսsերի աշխաsանքը Iunrhrnum ւեթական ոչ առեւթուցին կագ-մոցույթին կառող են ժասնակ-թահացիները, ույիս ունեն ԿԳՆ auteuti tegtişti si

bi hr h mu 66

under Gumunguring mutowergudaughti phij 1 mtourig

.....

A part of the second se

Մի ամբողջ դաrաշրջան մաrմնավոrող կենսագrություն

անի ազգային հեrոս Հովհաննես Չեքիջյանին հանձնել է Հայrենիքի շքանշանը

հայոննել եւ ուղեսեն կույնու կույնու կույնու հուրեներին հայուներին հայուներին հայուրեների հայուրեների հայուրեներ Անում են նուրանու հայուրեներին հայուրեներին հայուրեներին հայուրեներին հայուրեներին հայուրեներին հայուրեներին հա gor m LC

Կիանդիպեն վաղը, Կrակովում

ԵԱՅԿ դիsար ված ժամանն uanuah Gu





2. List of Participants

	Name	Surname	Occupation
1	Boris	Ohanyan	
2	Qnarik	Hovhannisyan	Independent expert in water resources
3	Lala	Tevosyan	Social and technology academy
4	Emil	Sahakyan	Energy expert
5	Aram	Grigoryan	"Arsar" center
6	Suren	Sargsyan	"Golos Armenia" newspaper
7	Kristy	Harrison	ADB
8	Ashot	Mirzoyan	"Consumers Support Center"
9	Zoya	Beniamonovaya	"Consumers Support Center"
10	Karen	Chilingaryan	"Consumers Support Center"
11	Arsen	Hazarapetyan	Yerevan municipality
12	Silva	Ayvazyan	"Aarhus Center Yerevan"
13	Ruzanna	Ghazaryan	
14	Vram	Tevosyan	"Consecoard"
15	Eduard	Arzumanyan	"Consumers Support Center"
16	Samvel	Khachatryan	

3. Minutes of the meeting

MINUTES

OF PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

ON ESIA REPORT REGARDING YCCPP-2

OPENING REMARKS:

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

I welcome you all at this Public Consultations. Thank you for attending it. I wish all of us a fruitful meeting.

Ladies and gentlemen, the purpose why we have gathered is to conduct public consultations on the activities we have so far carried out in relation to the Environmental and Social Impact Assessment for Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant 2. I would like to emphasize the importance of the project for the Republic of Armenia, as it will ensure very efficient cooperation among the Asian Development Bank, the International Finance Corporation and the Government of the Republic of Armenia. The Renco Group in cooperation with Fichtner, German company, has conducted an Impact Assessment which will be presented to you today. It will be our pleasure to address your recommendations and remarks. First I would like to give the floor to Mr. Michele Arcangeletti, the Industrial Plants Division Director at Renco S.p.A., to address an opening for this event. Afterwards, Mr. Detlev Paulsch, Fichtner representative, will present the Impact Assessment. A Q&A session will follow the presentation, and you will be welcome to provide us with your remarks and opinion. This is our agenda. Please feel free to ask any question on the agenda. If there is no question, we should start.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti:

Buongiorno a tutti! First of all, I thank you all for attending this event, which relates to a stage of enormous importance to our project. I would not like to get into much technical detail regarding the project, as such detail will be presented by our colleagues. I will also skip the contractual matters surrounding the project, as it is long time you have the opportunity to get the respective information through various websites. I will address all your questions answers to which you have probably not found in the information published so far. The points I am going to make will help appropriately present the philosophy and vision of the project. If I were sitting among you, on that side, I would probably be interested in getting the answers to the following four main questions. First, it would the question: "Who will implement this project?"; second, it would be "Why this is being implemented? What is the aim pursued by the one has assumed the implementation?; third: "How well or how bad will the project be implemented?". And the fourth question I would address if I were you would be: "What will be the benefits of the project for the society at large, for the surrounding people?"

Let me start with the first question about Renco and its activities. I will try to be short to save our time for the discussions. Renco is an Italian company, born in Italy and with its headquarter in Italy, namely in Pesaro. About one hundred percent of Renco's activities are carried out abroad Italy. Now about the philosophy of what we do. Renco is not the company which enters a country for specifically one project and quits it after implementation of the project, nor is it the company which enters a country as a tourist. Wherever Renco operates, it makes that particular country its home. That is to say, Renco brings its huge expertise to that country and takes from there some of the country's experience, skills, and culture. This is the same philosophy of when a person makes its home bigger or when he builds a new home elsewhere. And this very philosophy is proved by the fact that twenty years ago Renco came to Armenia for its first project and stayed here for all these twenty years. Renco still operates here, implementing various projects, makes investments, and feeling home. Renco has become, so to say, an Armenian company, operating under the name RENCO ARMESTATE. Thus, I would like specifically highlight that we have extended the idea of what is our home. This concept leads to an answer to the second questions, which, as you might recall, refers to the reason why we have undertaken the implementation of this project. Because when one extends the area of its home or when he builds home elsewhere, he has to consider two aspects, technical and moral. The technical considerations relate to the durability of what one builds, as he wants to live for a long period. So, one has to exert maximum of his efforts to build it in a perfect manner. After, one has to be considerate and to build good relations with the neighbors on a mutuality

principle, trying to have good impact on the neighborhood. And if one wants to live well and to feel good where he lives, he cannot do it alone, but he can achieve it when the neighbors also live in tranquility and happily. Last but not least, one has to preserve and have good impact on the environment as much as possible. All these considerations lead to answering to the third question. How well will we implement this project? Is it environmentally safe? Let me give you some background to help you better understand these matters. First, one of the most important guarantees for quality is that our project must be viable for quite a long period, meaning that the project must operate well, be implemented with high quality and flawlessly, at least for twenty years, so that we can enjoy the fruits of our investments. This is why our choice of the technological partner was Siemens, a world technology giant having the experience of generating numerous gigawatts of energy all over the world. Our choice has also been conditioned by that Siemens agreed to enter into the project as a partner, as a shareholder, which fact is an additional guarantee for the minimum twenty years of viability of our project. The engagement of Siemens in the project is itself a guarantee for us, for the project. Second, as to the issue whether the project is environmentallyfriendly, whether all relevant studies and expert examinations have been carried out, we have carried out double examinations to be sure that everything is appropriate in that regard. The first ESIA has been carried out by an Armenian organization, so that we also comply with the Armenian laws and regulations regarding the expert examinations. Afterwards, we also undertook the second impact assessment, not because we did not trust the assessment of the Armenian company, but because we also have international investors and we needed to comply with the international standards required by them. Mr. Detlev Paulsch will present in detail how that assessment has been carried out. The reason why we undertook the second assessment is also that, apart from the international standards, we wanted to double check for our comfort that everything goes as it should. Almost every day, and even yesterday, we visited the site to make sure that we did not overlook or miss any detail. Whenever we took samples, even if the laboratories issued positive opinions, we conducted double examinations, not economizing on any resources for that purpose. The logical continuation of these environmental principles I was presenting is the answer to the last questions, which I would like to have addressed if I were sitting there among you. What is the positive impact that the project will have on the community and the surrounding environment? First of all, the project will create 400 new jobs throughout its construction and operation periods. To note, this is not a short project, and following the construction, the project will operate for another 20 years. This means that throughout the whole period of operation, the project will guarantee over 100 jobs. An added value is that these employees will acquire new skills and expertise, not only in Armenia, but also abroad, with the help of Siemen's specialists. Last but not least, during the construction period, millions of dollars will be circulated through transactions for provision of services, acquisition of materials and goods. I hope the answers to these four questions have provided with some introduction to the project. Now I am pleased to give the floor to Mr. Detlev Paulsch, who represents the German company Fichtner having conducted the assessment.

PRESENTATION ON THE ESIA:

Dr. Detlev Paulsch presents the overview and main details of the Environmental and Social Impact Assessment for the project, including main possible impacts and respective mitigation and monitoring measures as well as different aspects of future public participation during the Project, including the Grievance Redress Mechanism.

Q&A SESSION:

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

Thank you Mr. Detlev Paulsch for the detailed presentation. I also want to thank for the enormous work that has been done. Particularly, I would like to highlight the introduced dispute settlement mechanism for addressing the complaints. This is highly important in the Republic of Armenia. I also want to refer back to Mr. Michele's opinion, which I share, regarding neighbors and home. The approaches of the Italians and the Armenians towards this matter coincide, with no doubt, so there can be some synergy in terms of style of working and the implementation of the project. I also want to emphasize the degree of Renco's social and other responsibility, which is another important quality for an investor who will make investments and implement a project in Armenia. Now, let's commence the final section, the Q&A. I am sure you all have questions, but please take into account that everyone should be provided with the opportunity to address questions and to have these questions answered; therefore, please consider that we have time limitations and address short questions, and we in our turn will try to give short and precise answers to them. I assure you in case of further questions which will not be addressed now, the whole time will be ready to attend any matter you will later raise. Using my privilege of the moderator, I would like to start with the question of Mr. Aram Grigoryan, as he has raised some matters during the coffee break.

Question 1:

Mr. Aram Grigoryan, representative of the Armenian Technological Academy:

- Thank you for this opportunity and for the detailed presentation, which enabled us to have some understanding of the preparatory works and of the further steps. I have several questions.

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- Please, mind the time constraints. Please, stick to the "one question" principle. Each person addresses one question, then at the end we will come back to the questions which remained unaddressed.

Mr. Aram Grigoryan:

OK! But I want to note, this is not my question, that we have gathered today for consultations, but why we do not have here the representatives of our Government so that to address some of the questions to them. All what you have told us today has been rather clear, but an important matter that has been and is still unaddressed: "Was there a true necessity for commencing such a transaction, for the construction of a new thermal power plant?" But this is a question which I believe should not be asked to the speakers. Anyway, I will address one question to the speakers: "What standards, e.g. European or some other standards, have been applied for project in general?"

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- Since the main topic of our today's event is the environmental aspects, I am sure you mean the ESIA. If we talk about the project in general, then it would outside the scope of the subject of today's meeting. Therefore, I will ask Mr. Detlev Paulsch to answer this question.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- We have used two types of standards. First, the national standards, which are defined in different decrees and regulations of Armenian Government. Second, we have used international standards, which are defined for example by IFC, ADB or the World Bank. The strategy is that always the stricter one of these standards has been included in our assessment.

[One of the participants attempts to correct the interpreter's comment in relation to the translation of the word "stricter of the standards"; Mr. Sargis Grigoryan asks the participants not to make additional comment so that each question receives its proper answer; Then, Mr. Detlev Paulsch continues]:

- And where, for example, no national standard exists, international standards are used.

Question 2:

Mr. Ashot Mirzoyan, president of the Consumers Support Center:

- Welcoming your style of working, not trusting our Government, I would like to touch upon one point. Among the objectives, you have mentioned shifting of the financial burden for power generation from the government to the private sector. Please specify how you plan to do this, as the years of practice shows that at the end everything rests on the shoulders of the end-users, through an increase in the tariffs. What is the mechanism?

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- I have just noted that the subject of today's public consultations is Environmental and Social Impact Assessment; therefore, please ask questions related to this topic, and we might later discuss some global strategical questions for example during a coffee break or maybe we will provide additional clarifications later. So, please stick to the objective and format of today's event.

Mr. Ashot Mirzoyan:

- I am sorry but you have mentioned this among your objectives.

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- The objective of today's meeting is the environmental impact, and the whole presentation made by Mr. Detlev Paulsch was aimed at this very topic. So, please stick to the format.

Question 3:

Mrs. Qnarik Hovhannisyan, independent expert in water resources:

My question relates to water resources. From these reports, I could not finally understand what resources will be used to have the monthly water quantity of 300 000 m³. Surface water or groundwater? What you mean by potable water is the water supply system? Then why you mention underground water? In short, what water is used for water supply?

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- Mr. Michele has just pointed to me that we have received confirmation that water use will not have any negative impact on the consumers. Now, as to your question, I will translate and ask Detlev to answer it quickly.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- The water to be used for the operation of this power plant is taken from the Yerevan Water Grid/ Network. And there are agreements already in place with the water provider that this amount of water can be taken, and this will be no problems for other water users.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti:

You have asked a question very much to the point, relating to our concerns with the decrease in the levels of underground water. There has been a recommendation to decrease the levels of underground water. The guidelines for the international standards require that when digging is done during construction works, it should be verified and made sure that

there is no negative impact on the level of underground water. But at this point, there is not such a plan. This is just, as you said, a hypothesis that if we choose that option, we will conduct additional studies to mitigate the impacts.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti:

I would like also to come back and answer to the previous question about Tariff, remembering anyhow that the Frame Work Agreement between Government of Armenia and ArmPower is a public document. As to the previous question on financing, as you know, we do not have any mechanism of influence on the tariffs. There is special authority, which regulates the tariffs, and as you know, this authority is the Public Services Regulatory Commission. Nor we have any say in the energy balance for the upcoming twenty years, in the quantity of energy that will be required to be generated. The thing that is indeed within the scope of our competence and that is the primary objective of our company is to invest our reputation and our expertise to be able to introduce respective technology and to attract respective financial resources, in addition to our resources, to attract respective loans due to our reputation, to be able to build this very efficient power plant.

Mr. Gegham Baklachev:

 Answering to Mr. Ashot Mirzoyan about question on Tariff: Sorry, why do you address this question to us? You should address this question to the Public Services Regulatory Commission; you are a member of that Commission!

Mr. Edward Arzumanyan:

- You just tell me whether what the [tariff] will be in the first year, fifth year when the plant operates. I have addressed a question in writing, but have not received an answer.

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

 I ask you to stick to the format of our meeting and respect each other. As to the tariffs, I should repeat that it is outside the scope of our today's meeting. Anyway, we always there ready to fully answer questions. Please, next question, Mr. Arzumanyan. One question, one answer. There are time constraints.

Question 4:

Mr. Edward Arzumanyan, energy sector expert, Consumers Support Center NGO:

Since the questions on use of underground water have already been addressed, but the answers were not satisfactory, I now ask another question which is the most topical one for me at this point. We already have the bad experience. Since 2010, when the first Yerevan Combined Cycle Power Plant's 1st block, which is now next to your territory, was commissioned, we have received alarms that the temperatures of gas emitted by the plant exceed 200°C. Please answer whether in the normal operational mode or in case of 100% or 50-60% load, which is quite a possible scenario for the Armenian energy system, what will be the temperature of the emitted gas? I have more questions, but if I am to ask just one question, then this is my only question for now.

[Following the question, there starts a conversation regarding the questions of Mr. Arzumanyan which have allegedly been sent but remained unaddressed. Mr. Grigoryan says the responses have already been sent, but they will be resent if needed. Mr. Arzumanyan says he had received the response, but it referred to some websites. He says there is a question the answer to which has been left blank. Mr. Grigoryan says this is a technical matter, which will be clarified with Mr. Arzumanyan after the meeting, and clarification will be refurbished, if necessary.]

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

The temperatures of emissions at the stack will be 97° C. This temperature and also the emissions will be monitored during the operation. They are below the national and international limits. This is also the case, for example, for the emission of CO2. This will be also within the range of typical CO2 emissions which are provided by the IFC international guidelines.

Question 5:

Mrs. Qnarik Hovhannisyan:

- I am concerned with the issue of contamination. You have written here that wastewater treatment plants will be built. What type of plants are these: mechanical or biological? Do we comply with the required norms or not?

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- There will be a wastewater treatment plant constructed on site. This will be part of the new power plant. And all this industrial wastewater will be led to this treatment plant. The water that leaves this plant will be

monitored in order to adhere to all limit values. And then this wastewater will be led to the existing discharge structure of YCCPP-1.

Mrs. Qnarik Hovhannisyan:

- So, is this a mechanical or biological plant?

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- It will be both. There will be mechanical clearing, for example, for some oil contents. And there will also be biological clearing.

Question 6:

Mr. Tevosyan Vram, Consecoard LLC:

- Please specify how you are going to calculate the quantities of outflowing water. Will there be calculation or some metering device for clarifying the quantities?

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti:

- Usually the outflowing water quantity cannot be more than the 300 000 m³ of water that will flow to the power plant. Anyway, usually when designing such power plants, the preliminary data calculations are very precise, very close to the reality.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- This blowdown water will also be led to the wastewater treatment plant.

Question 7:

Mrs. Silva Ayvazyan, representative of Aarhus Center Yerevan:

- I would like to make some slight clarification. It has been mentioned that you cooperate with Aarhus Center Yerevan, but I do not know why it has been mentioned as NGO. To note, our organization is not a non-governmental organization, but is a public environmental information center. Yes we have met with representatives of Fichtner and we have promised that we will support in this public participation process. We have posted the draft on our website and have disseminated it among the public as much as possible. The interested parties are present today. This is all for the clarification part, and I also want to address a question to the representatives of Renco. The draft here mentions that the monitoring data will be coordinated with the Monitoring Center of the Ministry of Nature Protection, and thus the contamination data will be made publicly available. However, there are numerous modern technologies, innovative

mechanisms, which particularly make the information transparent. For example, the company might create its self-regulation mechanism and introduce devices for making the data available to the public online. I mean, can we expect the availability of such data on your website?

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- This will be an ongoing process throughout the construction and also the operation of the plant. So, there are different aspects. For example, the Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan will have to be developed/ sent also with/ to the communities. Furthermore, there will be information done by Renco, probably on their website, showing the ongoing process and showing the adherence to limit values and the implementation of the mitigation measures. This is all part of the Stakeholder Engagement Plan, which is also one part of our study. And also another aspect is the grievance redress mechanism, where during the construction and also during the operation people can send their concerns or their questions to the companies.

One of the participants makes a clarification with regard to Mrs. Silva Ayvazyan's question:

- "Sorry, I think she was wanting to know if the monitoring data that will be collected will be collected automatically, and then put on the website at the same time. So, automated monitoring. I think she means gas and water discharges.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- To have these data also online is a good suggestion, which will be taken into account by Renco. And the monitoring data will be sent, in form of quarterly reports, to the Ministry of Nature Protection and to the other stakeholders.

Question 8:

Mr. Ashot Mirzoyan:

- "A Waste Management Plan which shall include a risk assessment..." etc. The world is progressing. Why do we store the waste? Let's just handle this waste. I want to make a recommendation to Fichtner. There are numerous technologies in the world for waste disposal. Why do we store and thus contaminate? There are technologies for disposal, if you are interested, we can send, if you do not know of them.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- This Waste Management Plan I was talking about will, of course, follow some suggestions. This will follow waste management hierarchy, which is first to avoid any waste. If this is not possible, try to reuse or recycle. If all this is not possible, this will probably be disposed [*here the interpreter translates as "properly stored"*]. We will not have any contaminated waste.

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- Let me sum up. What Mr. Detlev said, is that there will be a Waste Management Plan, which will generate solutions depending on the different types of waste.

Question 9:

Mr. Edward Arzumanyan:

- You have mentioned that there will be no contaminated waste in the plant. Does this mean that the plant will not have a chemical plant for water treatment? If there is a chemical treatment plant, then contaminated water or wastewater will be discharged from there. This is a point with regard to the previous question which needs clarification. Now, my question. You have a heat recovery steam generator. How many sections does it have: one, two, or three?

Mr. Gegham Baklachev:

- We kindly ask you to address these questions in writing, so that we give you a detailed and precise answer.

Question 10:

Mrs. Ruzanna Ghazaryan, "Dalma-Sona" Cultural and Educational, Social and Ecological Foundation:

- I wish all the success to the project. The project area, as I can judge at first sight, is located within the Erebuni-Arin Berd line. We all know that the Armenian land is really old, unpredictable. Maybe, no historical and cultural sight has been discovered at the area during the Soviet period, but I believe there is huge probability that something might be discovered there. It has been mentioned that a proof of occurrence/absence of any cultural or historical goods will be requested from the Ministry; however, if for example some 3000-year-old cultural monument is discovered, are you ready to abandon the project at all?

Mr. Gegham Baklachev:

- Such matters are always our focus. In our case, there will be no deep digging, but if anything valuable or unusual for the soil structure is discovered, we will inform both you and the Ministry of Culture. It will be our great pleasure to cooperate with you.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- First of all, the area we are talking about, there has been some kind of earth work in the past. So probably there will be no cultural goods found anymore. But the Ministry of Culture shall be informed before the project, in order to give them the possibility to have a look at this area. And during the construction, as I said before, there will be a Chance Find Procedure. This means that if any cultural goods will be found during the construction works, during earth works, then the Ministry of Culture has to be informed about it and they have decide on the future steps.

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

 Mr. Detlev Paulsch's statements are fact-based. Let's stick to the facts. The fact is that currently there are no cultural and historical goods, but if there will be such, a proper plan will be in place. As to the termination or abandonment or continuation of the project, it depends on the particular event that will occur, the goods that will be found, and on the possibility to further implement the project. Answering your question now and saying that we will or will not terminate the project, I think will be an unprofessional attitude on our part. Thank you.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti:

- These engineering and geological studies carried out so far, do not give room for assuming that there will be any chance finding. But if we have the chance to detect anything of true historical and cultural value, we will be really happy and we will not make any decision independently, but will engage the respective authorities and the civil society. Let's hope that the big treasure, as you said, will be found not in the project site but in the vicinity. In that case we all will be happy.

Question 11:

Mr. Ashot Mirzoyan:

- The question relates to the gases. Based on what you said, the technology is quite clean and environmentally-friendly; however, please explain how it happens that the gases are so clean. Is this due to special filters or a well-developed deep combustion process?

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- Of course, this will be state-of-the-art equipment that will be installed there, including filters and, for example, low NOx burner to reduce the emissions. As you know, the stack will be 66 meters high. We calculated different scenarios for different stack heights, showing that this 66-meter stack height will have least impact on the residential areas and also showing that all national limits and all the international limits are adhered to and are not exceeded. And of course, there will be a monitoring system installed to monitor continuously the emissions.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti

The technology to be used will be supplied by Siemens, and their technology is internationally approved. Siemens plays a primary role in the world in this regard. There are just a few companies in the world competing with Siemens. This competition makes these companies to invest enormously in minimizing the hazardous emissions. And there is no wonder that by the time the emissions are less risky, less hazardous. These companies are global players, and they know that in order to sell their equipment on a worldwide basis they have to pay ever more attention to environmental aspects, to lower the emission levels, and to make their equipment more efficient. Knowing well that the environmental awareness of people is continuously raising, these global producers do not simply focus on profits, but on making their equipment more efficient and more environmentally friendly. As you know, Siemens is a German company. The Italians, whenever they learn that the used technology is German, they get the ultimate trust. When we were to choose the technology, we again relied on Siemens, relying also on the information provided by Siemens with regard to the parameters of the equipment.

Question 12:

Mr. Emil Sahakyan, energy and nature protection sector expert:

- I think the work you have done is extensive, useful and exhaustive. I have just one question. Will the main equipment in the newly built thermal power plant be different from the existing ones? And also, will their impact in terms of the water discharges be different, given that the two blocks will use the same system, which discharge the waters into Hrazdan River?

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- It is planned to use the existing discharge structure of the YCCPP-1, and the treated wastewater from the new power plant will be led to this discharge structure with pipelines and channels leading finally to Hrazdan

River. But it is important to mention that we will have our own wastewater treatment system in this new plant.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti:

- The Monitoring Plan will be applied to our own wastewater system. Though the infrastructure is shared, but the monitoring plan will help clearly distinguish how wastewater from our plant is treated. As to the equipment, the existing power plant uses the main equipment produced by General Electric, whereas we will use the equipment produced by Siemens. So they will be different.

Question/recommendation 13:

Mrs. Yepremyan, interpreter at ADB:

- Actually I live in Shengavit District, so this issue is quite relevant for my family. My recommendation or question will be as follows. As part of the mitigation plan, do you envisage any type of landscaping for particularly Shengavit and Erebuni Districts, like tree planting or maybe establishing some small green oasis within these two districts, because the districts are also very poor in vegetation?

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- It is foreseen to have a landscape management plane at least near to the power plant. But it is a good idea to also include your recommendation in this plan.

Mr. Gegham Baklachev:

- I would add that we cooperate with the landscaping department of Yerevan Municipality, and we participate in Community Cleanup Days and tree planting events in different parts of the city. This is a good recommendation. We will further focus our attention on the cooperation with the district administration offices. We are already in direct contact with them. For sure, we will implement landscaping activities.

Question/recommendation 14:

Mr. Ashot Mirzoyan:

- I just suggest that Renco to engage the Consumers Support Center as much as possible in relation to the grievance redress mechanism. We are receiving numerous complaints with regard to the road construction project with the Asian Development Bank. The practice shows that if we work in collaboration, the results are more efficient for you and for us. As

to the landscaping projects, we are always ready to help with our volunteers, etc. Thanks.

Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

- As I showed before in the grievance mechanism scheme, there is always the chance to place the grievance indirectly, e.g. with the support of NGOs, who will then direct the grievance to the risk manager at Renco.

Mr. Gegham Baklachev:

- I would like to add that it will be our pleasure to collaborate. Maybe after the event, we can exchange ideas on an additional mechanism.

CLOSING REMARK:

Mr. Sargis Grigoryan:

- Ladies and gentlemen, thank you all for your presence, your participation and for your recommendations, which are really important to us. I am sure this will not be the only such event. We are always ready to cooperate with you on different matters. We highly estimate your opinion and your recommendations. Please always feel free to approach our team, should you raise any matter. We are always here to help.

Mr. Gegham Baklachev:

 One more point regarding the earlier questions on tariffs. There is the Framework Agreement with the Government, which is publicly available, and is posted on the website of the Ministry of Energy. If you wish, we can supply it to you. There you will find the tariffs and all the relevant provisions of the agreement.

Mr. Michele Arcangeletti / Dr. Detlev Paulsch:

Thank you to everyone.

COFFEE BREAK:

During the coffee break, Mr. Edward Arzumanyan received answers to some of his questions and was informed that additional response had been sent to him the day before. Hard copy of the responses has been supplied to him.



Public Consultation Session - 10.02.2018 - Photo documentation



